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U.S. POLICIES AND PROGRAMS IN BRAZIL 

TUESDAY, MAY 4, 1971 

UNrIE STATES SENATE, 
Snmcommin 	 rm ON WEsTRRN H-maSEBERL AFFAms, 

OF mr CoAnaTEE owr Fonn.i Rn. noxs, 
Washington, D.O. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in room 
S-116,the Capitol Building,,SenatorXFunk h uch (chairman of the 
subcommittee) presiding. 

Present: Senators Church, Sparkman, Pell, Spong, and Aiken. 
Also present: Mr. Marcy, Mr. Holt,and Air. Dockery of the com

mittee staff. 
William Ellis, Director, AID Mission, Brazil; Robert W. Dean, 

Director of the Office of Brazilian Affairs for Brazil, Department of 
State; Peter Knaur, Special Assistant for Congressional Relations, 
OSD, ISA; Michael A. Samuels, Bureau of Congressional Relations, 
Department of State; Lieutenant Colonel Rohr, OSD, ISA, Inter-
Aineriean 	 Affairs; and Xean P. Lewis, Congressional Liaison Officer 
for Latin America, AID. 

O0IMNON STATEMXENT 

Senator CRnm. Gentlemen, let's begin the heaing. The Subcom
mittee on Western Hemisphere Affairs of the Foreign Relations Com
mittee today begins a series of hearings on U.S.policies and programs 
in Brazil. 

I wish to emphsize, U.S. policies and programs. Hlow Brazilians 
organize their own affairs and how they treat each other axe no proper 
concerns of the U.S. Senate. How the various agencies of the U.S. 
Government conduct themselves in Brazil and how they react to events 
there, however, are proper concerns of all Americans. These are the 
questions on which these hearings will focus. 

I also wish to express my personal appreciation and that bf the sub
committee for the cooperation which we 'have received from the execu
tive branch in preparing for these hearings. A mass of factual data 
has been presented to us in advance, and we are also grateful for the 
attendance of a number of American officials from.Brazil. We know 
that they are here atno little personal inconvenience. 

In order to facilitate as much as possible a full and free flow of in
formation and views, we are holding these hearings in executive session. 
The record will be edited for the deletion of classified information and 
will then be published. Our purpose is not only to inform ourselves but 
also the Senate and the American people. It is the people who pay the 
bill for what we are doing in Brazil, and they are entitled to know as 
much about it as the national security permits. 

(1) 
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All witnesses will be asked to testify under oath. This is for their
 
own protection, and again is part of our effort to facilitate the flow of
 
information.
 

IDENTMncATION OF WCCINMES 

Our first witness wi be Mt. 'Theodpre D.Brown, chief of the AID
 
public safety program in Brazil. He 'will be followed by Maj. Gem.
 
George S. Beatty, chief of the-U.-S.-nilitary mission and by Col.
 
Arthur S. Moura, theDefenseattach.
 

Tomorrow morning, xVe will lear Mr. Richard i-elms, Director of 
the Central Intelligence Agency, and he will be followed by Mr. Wil
liam Ellis,,Director of the AID mission in Brazil. We will niae both 
anoming and a.fternoon today and tomorrow if necessary.

On Tuesday afternoon next week, May 11, we will conclude this
 
series of hearings withAmbassador William Rountree, I
 

By hearing the witnesses in this order, we hope to establish a.factual
 
basis which will make the testifiony of Ambassador Rountree more
 
productive with respect,to brpader policymissues which may arise.-

Finally, I wish particularly to thank the w tnesses who araliere from 
Brazil for the cooperation which they extended to two staff members 
of the Foreign Relations Committee, Mr. Pat M. Iolt aid Mr. Rob
ert H.Dockery, who visited-Brazil in Mareh as a part of the subcom
mittee's preparation for these hearings. In order to.establish the factual 
basis for later discussion of policy-issues, I am going to-ask Mr. -Holt 
and Mr. Dockery to participate in the ,questioning. Members of the 
subcommittee should, of.course, feel free to interrupt.at agy time. We 
have also invited all members of the fall committeend their partici
pation at any time will also be most welcome. 

Now, Mir. Brown, will you please rise to be sworn. 
Do you solemnly swear that the teginony you will give this sub

commnttee will b the truth, the'whple truth ancibothing but the truth, 
sohelp you,God? 

Mr. BnowN. Ldo. 
Senator CERoH. Please be seated. 

- Now, before Mr. Brown commences his tostimony,.I wonder if the 
others who are present would identiiy hmsilves for the record. 

Mr. ELus.I-am William Ellis, the Director of the AID mission. 
* Mr. DrxA. Robezt W. Dean , Directot 'of, the,Office of-Brazilian 
Aiffairs, Depart.ment of State. 

Mr. KNAJD'. Peter Knaur, special assistant for, congressional' rela
tions OSD, ISA., . . 

Gemeral Bnr=. MIajorGeneral Beatty, the Chairman of the U.S. 
delegation to the joint Brazil-U.S. military mission. 

Mr. S=,unns. MichaelSamuels, Bureau of Cong-essional Relations, 
State Department. -

Colonel RoHR. Lieutenanb, 'Colonel IRohY, OSD, ISA, -Inter-
American Affairs" , - I 

Miss Lr3rs. Jean -Lewis,. Congressional. Liaison Office for Latin 
America, AID.' 

,Senator Camcn. Thank you very much. Mr. Brown, I wonder if 
you would proceed-with your statement: 'Dq-you hwvefatstatement pre
pared. 

Mr. Bnowx. Yes, sir. 
Senator COuRC. If you would proceed -with that questions will 

follow. 

http:interrupt.at
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T'STIMONY OF THEOhRE BTB bWN OHIE? PUBIC SAFETY 
ADVISER, USAID,' BRAZIL 

i -

Mr. BjowN. Ifr. Chairmanand.Senator, T lave a statemcnt. 
I was requested to answer four questions. Describe the historical

4 evelopment of the AD ,ublie safety program in Brazil. 
Give brief biographical data for each of the public safety advisers 

Inow assi ned to Brazil. I , 
Descrile briefly the work of the National Police Academy, the Na

tional Criminalistics Laboratory, the National istitute 5f Identifica
tion, National Telecommunications Center, and the Graphics Insti
tute, and what is the relationship of the AID public safety program 

.'.
to each of these. 
The fourth question, how are Brazilian participants selected for 

training in the United States and Panama. 
My statement in general follows pages 58 throlgh 71 of the respouse 

to the inquiry from the chairman of the Subcommittee on Western 
Hemisphere Affairs of the Senate Foreign Relations-Committee, pre
pared by the U.S. Department of State, Office of Brazilian Affairs. 
It is a report dated January 1971. 

HISTOCAT, DEflLOPmMflT OP PuBLIT SA METr rROBAlt 

.Question one, describe the historical development of-the AID public 
safety program in Brazil. 

Answer: There are three kinds of police forces in Brazil. Each of 
the 22 States has a plain clothes civil police force and a uniformed 
force called the policia militar, or military police. The military police
is not a military force, but a civilian force similar to the State police 
inu some States in the United States. The third force is thq 5-year-old
federal police force. The total number, of police in the ,country is 
about 27,000. 1 . 

The U.S. public safety program was begun in Brazil-late in 1959 
at the request of the Brazilian Government. Initially, formal agree
ments signed by the Brazilian and U.S. representatives defined, the 
goals of the assistance provided-to be (a) the establishment of a fed
eral police organization .atthe time that the capital of the countty 
.was,moved to Brasilia from Rio de Janeiro and (b)to deal with the 
interim problems, of pblicedevelopment in key states in the country.

Spedifically, assistance was provided in order tohelp Brazilmodern
ize police operations, expand and improve police training and central 
information service; (records), and provide for coordination between 
the to-be-established Federitl police and individual State police forces. 

-Within the-first 2 years of the project's life, additional States re
quested and received assistance of this kind. Beginning in 1965, agree
ment was reached for the-provision of assistance to still more States. 
Emphasis in assistance to the States was in the fmnctional -ireas of 
training, communications, criminalistics, records and identification,
transportation,.administration and management, -humanemethods of 
riot control, nrban patrol; reporting lrrocedues, industrial 'security 
and public relations. 

During the period 1960-69, public safety assistance efforts for the 
respective States were tailored to the particular requirements of the 
States' police forces. For example, for the State of Pernambuco,.early 
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project activities were in the fields of identification, and records, crini
nalistics, police training, police patrol, traffic control, police communi
cations, public relations and emergency operations (improving the 
capability of the police to be responsive to the need for public aid in 
disasters and catastrophes). 

By March of 1967, assistance was being provided to 15 States, the 
Federal District of Brasilia and, the new Federal police agency. In 
September of 1968, a new agreement was signed which provided for 
the main thrust of U.S. assistance to be with the-Federal police rather 
than with both the Federal police and State police forces. Its pur
pose' was to.deveIop the capacity of the Federal police to.assume an in
creasing share of the. provision of training and technical, services-for 
the State-level police forces, as well as for its own police 'officers, 

*through the.establishment and utilization of central Federalfacilities, 
including the National Police Academy, the Technical Telecommuni
-cationsidenter, and the National Institutes of Oriminalistics and Iden
tification. It providedrfor the development of mobile-police training 
teams to supplement the training resources of the National 'Police 
Academy. The character of assistance indicated by this agreement 
called for concentrating most of the public safety -advisors'm Brasilia. 
This was accomplished at the beginning of fiscal year 1970, with area 
advisers being stationed in five locations throughout the country. 

The most recent agreement (April 197t) finalized by the United 
States and Brazilian officials continued the main'thrust of assistance.aforementioned for the Federal police. It specified objectives as help
ing to increase the Federal.police agencies' capacity to provide train
ing and technidal service and to continue promoting the application 
of police responsibilities in the spirit of service to the people through 
modern, humane, minimum force law enforcement. 

Since the'end- of fiscal year 1969, the cooperative program has 
been focusing its efforts on working with the Federal Police of Bra
silia. The concept of assistance presently provided is for the develop
ment of ,capabilities to provide assistance to the respective States in 
their development of appropriate civil police institutions. This has 
resulted in concentration of' U.S. assistance to specific institutional 
Federal police elements, the National Institute for Identification, 
the National Institute for Oriminalistics, the Natioial Police 

'Academy, and the National Telecommunications Training Center. 
It has also resulted in a reduction in the number of public safety 
advisers statioied in Brazil. 

ACCO2QI TS1MAENTS O Tnhf PROGRAM 

Accomplishments of thh program have been 'considerabre. Im
provement was achieved invarious elements of the police institution, 
such as the establishment of statewide, municipal and tactical police 
networks and the improvement of' administration and 'management 
of police resources. 

Most importantly,a.significant accomplishment of the U.S.-assisted 
Brazilian effort was the establishment of the Federal police organi
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zation in 1965. This followed the provision of extensive technical 
aid to the Federal District Police in Brasilia. The success of this 
Brazilian agency led to the eventual formation of the Federal police 
agency. The Federal police have since established the National In
stitute of Identification, the National Institute for Criminalistics,
the Technical Telecommunications Training Center and the Na
tional Police Academy. Each of these has teen helped to provide
services to the police forces of the respective States. 

Since the inception of the public safety project, 611 Brazilian 
police officers have-been programed for training in the United States. 
Most of this training has been conducted at the International Police 
Academy operated by AID in Washington with some of the earlier 
training being provided by the former AID-operated training school 
for Latin Americal police officers in Panama. Tables -I and II (page
6) provide details concerning police officers who have been trained. 
It is significant that more than 95 percent of those trained remain 
with the police. Approximately one out of three has been promoted to a. 
position of higher responsibility. The great majority of the trained 
officers actively support in-country training programs and the op
eration of improvement efforts for the Brazilian police as a whole., 
Table III (page 7) provides details concerning police officers who 
have been trained from the various States in Brazil. 

FUNDING AND STAIING 

Dollar funding provided has been in the form of grants. These 
were for (1) the salaries and allowances of the public safety ad
visers assigned to the program, (2) costs for training of Brazilian 
police officers in the United States, and (3) for commodities provided 
to achieve specific project objectives, Table IV (page 7) provides 
a table giving the actual dollar funding obligated from fiscal year
1959 through6isoal year 1970 for the public safety program.

Commodities provided by the program were those selected specif
ically to achieve respective activity targets within cooperating
States and the Federal police. Table V (page 8) gives a list of 
these commodity categories and the purposes for which they were 
procured. 

The public safety stafling for the program is shown in Table VI 
(page 11). The number of IT:S. direct hires and local employees is 
given and the State or city in which employed. 

It should be noted all-the tables I have referred to above are a 
part of the response to the inquiry from the chairman of the Sub
committee on Western Hemisphere Affairs of the -Senate Foreign
Relations Committee, prepared by the U.S. Department of State, 
Office of Brazilian Affairs dated January 1971. 

Senator Cauxic. Without objection the tables and the statistical 
data to which you referred will be made part of the record at this 
point. 
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- - TABLE r--PULIBCI SAFETY. PROGRAM PARTICIPANT TRA1NEES;jBRAZIL, 

- 'C.*4 ,, 4 . - .. , 4,.Ver 4; 

. . -	 1963 libr 195 196. t. 9 16 16 1970 -oas 

1. International Miherican Police Academy.(Panama) . 
- . general course) ....... ,........ . .__'_-.-.-. ,46 : .. _46 4...

2.tGeneral cou - r s e 4 42 5A 74 52 73 '69 
- 11 	 10 3.Semer tourse ------------------------------------------.. ............ .. . ] 1 1' -19 13
8Seniorlcourse ---------- :; ---------------

4. Police execuives --------------- -- -- 1 . I 210, 1- ----- 13 j 17p 58. 
5. Communications -----------------------: ......... _- , I 'I l' I - 4
 
6. RiotSontrol (IAPA) .... ! .................. 7. 82-...... .. .... 15
 
7. 	Motor transport: . .............................. 0
 
. Caninalishes ------------------------------ . ,.. I --------. 2 ------ a.
------------- . 

?. Traffic ----	 - L.... ------- -----. 1....- --
1Q. FJ3$ alioealcaciemy - -- -- -- . . 2 
IL Miscellanous..... - ----	 ............ ... 


Tot-----..- - . . . - 54 - 4'20, 70 67.' S 9 51867 
- .. . . .. O 4, . -

TABLE II-PUGBLICSAfETY PROGRAM GENERAI! COURSE SPECIALIZAf[IN' PHASEi ' 

," • % fI .. . . . ."" Fiscal year ; . " ' 

*1963 .1964 1965 I966 13967 19698'1969, '1970 Total, 

IApA (GeneraliCourse No. 3,4, B): , ' ii 
].,firearms.-.. ... 4 ...... .. : . - .- I.L 
2. Investigations................ 2 ' .......... '.-------------------------- '10
 

-
3. Counterintelligence ----------- 5 2 - -------..... ----- 7' 
4. Handling explosives----------- 3 2 ----------------------------------------------- 5
5. Instructor methods------ _------..... 2 ------------------------------------------- 2.

(Declined special training)------------- 1------- ----------------------------------- 1 

Total --------------------- 14 22 -------- -----------------------------------	 36. 

IPA'

11.Crim/securityirfinist-------------------------- 22 13 20 12 17, 28' 112,
2. Instructol'methods ...-------------- 4 9 20 40 15 14 4 i06; 
3. Patrol operations ........................... 2 :32, 9 13 16. 16 68


rol---------------------------------------	 ;21.4 -Rieont . . ..	 -7 -2 6, 4 ,3
5. Traffic ..................... 	 I I 3 - 15 3 2z
 
6. BorderlCustoms;contral --------------- - 8. - 2 2 1 -------- 4 17 
7. Narcotics------------------ ......... 	 7. 5 12
 
8. Recordsfidentif1cato ...........4 _, _ ------------ ........ 3, 55
 
9 Flrearm s --------------------------------------------------- - -_ ........---- 3 3
 

10. Crime Lab Admin ........... _............ I ----------------	 L4_ 

C 	 -' 

Tota. --------------------- - 4 42 ' 54' 74 52 ,73 69 S6t 

I Note-6th memberof theageneral course is given 4weeksof additional tramnogid aspecial functional ara consisteot 
wjth,the needs of the respechve country and theattainment of project goals. SpecTahilntioo wasoffered oply to IAPA. 
general'coursi Has, 3,4,and 5but was not offered to general course Nos,:1 and2 (10 participants>. 

4 | • . 4! '% , , 

rt I **• 4 - - , 



TABLE Ill.-PUBLIC SAFETYIPARTCIPARTPRbUkAMi BY-STATE'AND BY FUNDING YEAR 

Fisoat;year-

States 1959 1950 1961 1962 1663 1964 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 1971, J97Z 

Acre...........----------------------------------.-------------------------Alagoas.................................................................... 6 4-. 6 4 ------------------
..................
 

Amazonas-- ....-...................----........----------.--... ..... ' 4 Y.,-----.....
 
Bahia -------------------- --.--- ---------------- 2 5 5 7, .3 7 3- 2.
Ceara -- -- ---- "--- -- - - ......-- -- - - -'- 2 

Ei'iito Sn -fo ----------------------------------------------5-- 2
 

Federal polce------------------2 3 1------ 5 5 2 1 10 17 13.
Federal Distrct ......--------------.----- 4 .... .. 2 3 ..3- -3 -5. 4 4---


Goias ------------------------------------ 1 5 3 8 6 3 6 a 3 3.. 
,Guanabar ..............- 4- 4 -- 1 t ---7- '6 ([1 6 - '3 ------ I- ----
Maranhao ---------------------------------... ------------ 5- '21 
Mato.Grosso------------------------------------------------------------------ .. . 
Minas Garais----------.--. 1 1 6 24 1 9 4 .5 1 6 1 3-. 
Pare................. .... .... .. .................... .- 2 _-----

Paraiba ............... ................................ ........ ..----- . 2--

Parana --------------------------------- 3 5 9 , 1 - 4 6 Z 8 2 1.....
 
Pernambuco --------------- 1 4" 4 ------- --1 8 6 31 110 1 I ....
 
Piaui............................ ...------ 6.61........6 1 2 .....
, .......... ....... G 

Rio de -------------------------------- ------------ 8 7 4 3 8 4-------------
Rio Grande do'Norle .............. ----------- 6 1
--------------------------- 2 ...... 
Rio Grande do Sul ------------ 1 - - 2 13 8 2 .
 

...... 
SgoPaulo - ------------- 1 4 5 12 6 6 5 9 1 10 ------- 2 -----
Santa Catarina ---------------.----------------- 2 2 5 4 8' '3 9 1 

---------------- 6 2...........................2
Sergipe-... ----- 7 . ... 

Total----------- 4 8 12 26 62 27 64- P7 7;i,59? J46 -45- 46
 

Grand total--------------. ....... . . ". 
 641
 

JABLE IV.-BRAZIL PUBLCSAFETY FUNDING; 1962 THROUGH ,JUNE 30, 1970
 

- " [Dollar amounts in thousands] 

Total Technicians Participants Commodities Other costs 

Through fiscal year- - -- 4 
1962, -------------.- : $, 287 5W 76, 660 47
 
1963 ....... ...... ... 64 334- -- - 41 163., 110
 
1964 ..---------------- 1 159_ 410 59' , 618 72
 

...... 489 " 36
- 1965 -.--- .---- 1,076 70 501 
1966 ------------------ 972 443 115 376 38
 

-1967 ------- ------------ 639 124- 129.-
-- 374- ' 12 
1968-................ 567 367 94 103 a

1989- ------------------- 482 248 132 101 1
 
1970------------------- -727 -30..- 198 219 2
 

* Total, expendltures ---- 7,557_ 3,457 . -909- 2,870 321
 

- I Yearly figures not-available. .-.. 

... .. * I 

.-- ,=- v
 



Table Y.-Brazil Uonnnodity Summary 

Motor vehicles and equipment (To increase mobility, patrol effective
aess and police coverage by the State alfd Federal law enforcement
 
agencies) :
 

Passenger Cars ---------------------------------------------- 36 

Fiscal year 1963 or before ------------------------------- 26 
Fiscal year 19064-------------- 10.------------------------

Seep vehicles ------------------------------------------------ 52 

Fiscal year 1963 or before---------------.... . .--------- 35 
Fiscal year 1964 ----------------------------------------- 17 

Trucks/trailers, fiscal year 1967------------------------------- 2 
Machine shop equipment: e.g., Lathe, drill press, grinder, spot 

welder Fiscal year 1967, fiscal year 1969 purchases---------
Telecommunications equipment (To establish nationwide and limited 

intrastate telecommunications systems, to develop portable radio 
communication capability for times of civil disturbances, to increase 
radio patrol effectiveness) : 

VHF-F" mobile --------------------------- --------------- 99 

Fiscal year 1963 or before-------------------------------- 42 
'Fiscal year 1964--------------------------------------- 24 
Fiscal year 1965--- -------------------------------- 7 
Fiscal year 1066 ---------------------------------- 6 
Fiscal year 1967 -------------------------- -------------- 20 

VHIF-FM base------------- ------------------------------- 92 

Fiscal year 1964 ----------------------------------------- 22 
iscal year 1965 --------------------------------------- 23 
Fiscal year 1966 ------------------------------- 12 
Fiscal year 1967 --------------------------------------- 14 
'Fiscal year 196 --------------------------------------- 21 

VHF-FM portable --------------------------------- --------- 269 

Fiscal year 1964 ----------------------------------------- 50 
Fiscal year, 1965 ----------------------------------------- 31 
Fiscal year 1967 --------------------------------------- 94 
Fiscal- year 198 .------- . -------------- 32 
Fiscal year 1969 ----------------------------------------- 62 

SSB mobile ------------------------------------ -------------- 104 

Fiscal year 1963 or-before --------------------------------- 51 
Fiscal year 1964 ----------------------------------------- 6 
Fiscal year 1965 ----------------------------------------- 31 
Fiscal year 1966 ----------------------------------------- 14 
Fiscal year 1967 ----------------------------------------- '2 

SSB base ------------------------------------------- -------- 45 

Fiscal year 1963 or before --------------------------------- 29 
Fiscal year 1964 ----------------------------------------- 3 
Fiscal year 1966 ---------------------------------- 13 

SSB portable, fiscal year 1967------------------------------- 5 
HF-VHF receivers---------------------------------------- 21 

Fiscal year 1965 ----------------------------------------- 14 

Fiscal year 1969 ------------------------------------------ 7-

HF-SSB transmitters, fiscal year 1969 ------------------------- 4 
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Oiummary-Continuea.Table V.-Braz Conmodifty 

Operation accessories: Total unit 
Generators --------------------------------------------------- 42 

Fiscal year 1965 :12 
Fiscal year 1966- 22 
Fiscal year 19689................- 8 

Console, fiscal year 1966_ ........... 3
 
Remote control unit, fiscal year 1966_--------------------------- 5
 
Transformers, fiscal year 1968 -------------------------------- 10
 
Antenna multicouplers, fiscal year 1969-------------------------- 7
 
Radio terminals, fiscal year 1969-------------------------------- I
 

Others:
 
Testing, installation equip.: e.g. VOM meters, traasistor testers,
 

antenna towers, wiring-Purchases, fiscal year 1903, fiscal year
 
1068, fiscal year 1969
 

Megaphones, fiscal year 1969 ----------------------------------- 12 
Public address systems, fiscal year 1968 ------------------------- 5 

(Jriminalistics laboratory (To establish new police laboratories, to assist
 
already existing facilities, to assist in equipping technical field units
 
in order that they may provide effective scientific aid to the investi
gators)
 

Totat 
ainoutitLaboratory commodites, fiscal year 1961 --------------------- $34,000 

Instruments ---------------------------------------- 14, 000 
Apparatuses -------------------------------- -------- 11, 000' 
Supplies ---------------------- ---------------- 6,500 
Reference materials ---------------------------------- 3 000 

Laboratory -commodities, fiscal year 1964 ---------------------- 34,000 

Instruments ---------------------------------------- 21, 000 
Apparatuses --------------------------------------------- 5,600 
Supplies ------------------------------------------- 6, 800 
Reference materials ------------------------------------ 600 

Miscellaneous lab commodities: e.g., replacement supplies, exam
ination kits, student microscopes, measuring devices-Purchases,
 
fiscal year 1959, fiscal year 1960, fiscal year 1963, fiscal year 1966,
 
through fiscal year 1969
 

Records and identification (To assist in the development of more effi
cient maintenance of records, to provide capabilities for quick
retrieval of information and .to develop identification capabilities) * 

Photographic laboratory outfit: e.g., enlargers, print dryers, film
 
and negative developing supplies-Purchases, fiscal year 1967,
 
fscal year 1968, fiscal year 1969 

IBM and records system -------------------------------------- 137,000 

Microfilm outfit, fiscal year 1959 ......................... 23, 00ff 
Kardveyers (-12), fiscal year 1961 ----------------------- 64,000 
IBM system, fiscal year 1962 ------------------------------ 2(,000 
IBM system, fiscal year 1963--------------------------- 24, 000 

Munition (To provide ammunition for firearm training, to provide 
police with economical capability of replenishing ammunition on a 
continuing basis): 

Reloading outfit (total units)---------------------------------- 9 

Fiscal year 1963 or before--------------------------------- I 
Fiscal year 1064 ----------------------------------

Rounds of ammunition (.38 cal. handgun) fiscal year 1964-------8 00,000 
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Table Y.-Brazi Commoaitj, g mmmafil-Contitned 

-Blotequipment (To provide fBrazilian police with means fox prptection Total. 
:,aind nonlethal suppression of riots) : - amoli4f 

Batqs,fiscal year 1968 or before--__: ----------------------------$540 

fody shie~l is and vests (total units) -------- ------- A 

riscal ',ear 1964--------------- ---- -------------------- 50 
Fiscal year 1969 .--------------- ------- 45 

Gas maslid, fiscal year 1064.. . .. .....--...-----...---- ':2 
Ga ali icl ers~4---------- ------------------- 32 

Greuai," ON (total u-nits). --- ------------- 15,230 
Friscal year 1963 or before ------- - 3U 86. 

Fiscal year 196 ------------- ------------------------ 8, 900' 

Grenades, OS (total units) ------------------- ------------- 5,100 

Fiscal year 1963 or before------- ----------------------- 1,200 
Fiscal year 1964---------- --------------------------- 8, 9 

Grenades, smoke; fiscal year 1963 or before - 110 
Crime investigation (To develop more effective investigative capabilities 

and to promote better collection and preservation of physical evi
dence) -: 

Investigation field kits, fiscal- year 1068------------------------- 7 
,Fingerprint kits, fiscal year 19t8- ----------------------- -- -20 

Training and police aids (To assist in development of training capa
bilities and to.promote more effective individual oficer action) : 

H9andcuffs .(total inits)y......... ....------- -- - 505....... ...... 


Fiscal year 196IM -. ==--------------------- ------------ 50 
Fiscal year 1969 ----------------------------------------- it 

Visuial-traiuiug aids: e.g., pr~etgors, trqffi-p and driving -testing,' 
apparatus,..taiuing films. ragnetic display boards-Purchases, 
fiscal zear 1909 through fiscal year 1964, fiscal year 16,i through 
fiscal year 1969--------.............................. 

Office equipment: e.g., dupic_ ;t-gmachines, copying machines, 
cabinets, shelves, desks, ebairs, typewriters-Purchases fiscal 
year 1959 through fiscal year 9.64 --------- .............. 

TABLE VI.-BRAZIL PUBLIC SAFETY STAFFING 

Number . umbumer 
ofil S. I of.local 

Year employees Where located employeeas Where located 

1959 --------------------- 2 Rio --------------------------- 3 Rio.190-.........-.------ 5 do------.................. Do.
---- 6. 
1 RioGradedoSjl-......................m......... . 

, 

------------

1 
I 
I 
10 

Minasera i ---- - ................ 
Pernambuco------- ------- -----
SaoNola___------------- I.
Rio-------- --------- I ----t ' .' 

,, 

.--------------------
' i2 

1 Brasilia ------------------- --I,Mu 'ferais-----1........-_t -..-.... I Brasiia . .. 
1 Perna m b u co- -- - --... . - - - -------..- - - ---

!92------------------
-

---
1 

12 
2 

Sao Pluo ----------------------------------
Rio---------------------------- 9 Rio. 
Minas Gerais .................... 2 Brasilia. 

3..r31sljoli ---------- --- ............... 
2 Pernambuco............... ....... 

1963 ............----- ------
- " 

1 Parana---....------------ - I - -
2- Sao Pgulo - -- - - - -----------

R10Rio ------------------- 9 Rip, 
6 Brasiha------------------------- 2 Bra.
I MiasGerais................... 1 Bahia.
I Pirana& ' .,-.. ,. ,-_ .... . 2 SIo Paulo,
1 Pernam buco .................................. 

I 

I Rio Grandedo Sul-.
4 Slo Paulo -------------------------........... 
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, TABLE VI.-BRAZIL PUBLIC'SAFflY STAFFING-Coneinued 

- Number 	 Number 
oflJ. of local 

Year employees Where located employees Where located 

1964....................... 	 7 Rio -- _--------------- ------ 14 Rio.
 
5 BIasSIDa ---_ _ .......-- 2 Brasilia.

1 Bahia___..--------------------- 1 Bahia. 
2 Parana ----------------------- 1 Sao Paulo. 
4 Sao Paulo-------------- - ...............
 
1 Sta, Cati na -------.-.-----------..a..........
 
2 M inas Gerais----------------------------------
1 Pernam buco ---------------------------------
1 Rio Grandedo Sul....................
 

3965....................... 7 'Ro.....................------ 13 Rio
 
1 Bahia..- -- .......----------- 2 Brasilia.
 
1 Mines Gerais- -------------------- Bahia. 
1 Parana------------------------- I SID Paulo. 
'1 Peraama ------------------buco 
I Rio GrandedoSul ..............
 
5 SgoPaulo .....................
 
I Sta Catarina ................
 
3 Brasilia .....................
 
9 Rio .------------------------66--- -- -- ---..............	 11 Rio.
 
I Bahia ----------. _.-.-------....2 Brasilia. 
1 Minas Gerais -------------------- 1 Bahla. 
4 Brasilia ----------------------I Alagoas -----------..---........
 
I Ce aa--- --.....------------- _ 

1 Parana.................
 
I.Pernambuco ----
1 Rio Grandedo Sul..........
 
2 Sao Paulo...........
2 StaCatarma -------........... 

1967---------------------- 8 Ro ----------------------1 -- 1 *Rio. 
I Bahia ---------------- --- - 2 Brasilia.
1 Alagoas ...................... I Bahia. 
1 Ceara _ . . ................ . . . .
 
2 Brasilia........ .----- ..... .-
......
 
I Parana.................. .. . ... ... ..
 
1 Pernambuco .........
.......................
 
I Rio Grapacdo Sul-..........................
1 Stacatarita ------------------------------
2 So'Paulo -----------------------------------

1968 -----------------------	 5 Rio -- _------------__-------- 11 Rio
'6 Bsia ----------.-...... ......... 3 Brasilia.
 
1 Alagoas..........-------------- Bahia.

1 Bahia ...... ................. 
I- Ceara ......---------------------.---------
1 Pernam buco ---------------------------------
1 Rio Grandedo'Sul- - ---------------

* 1 Sta Catarinta---------------------------------
2 Sao Paulo ..............................
AeE9 ..................... 3 Rio .............................- Rio,
 

-4 Brasilia' ............... 5 Brasilia.
 
2 Minas Gerais.. ........................
 
I Para.........................................
 
I Pernarfibuco.-------------. I -.............
 
I Rio Grandedo Sul.............-..............
 
2 S6O Paulo ----------------------------------.. 

l1970 -----------------------	 9 Brasilia-----.................. 2 Rio.
 
I Para. ...-.................. 8-Brasitia.
 
I. Pernanmbuco ................................
 
2 RIO.............. ......................
 
1 Sao Paulo .........................
 

Nate: All advisers will be located fnBraslta after calendar year 1970 and total number will be reduced to 4 by fiscal
 
'year 1972
 

Mr..BRow g. I will not read from the accoMpanying table here then. 

* *SOBI4RAmnGAL.,DATA OF AD VSEIR.S 

The' second quegtion-welh-this is:.tAe part that we felt yon might 
mot wish to go through entirTol 1r. Qhairman, unless you'would
,desire. I would still like to ha v it be a part -o the lrecor'd,sii? 

Sen.ator Onzntbn. Yes; 'we will itbluale the tbiographieal datt 'as 
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though you had read it. That will take us over to page 9 of your 
statement. 

(Biographical material fbliows:) 
ROBRfT 5. BARNES-BOrnjn Los Angeles, Calif. Attended.schools in California 

and Colorado. Received LI.B. degree in America Law and Procedure from 
La Salle Extension University, Chicago. 

Entered U.S. Army and served 4 years. Received basic military training, 
specialized ordinance training and basic airborne training, Served 3 years with 
military occupation forces in Japan; 2 years as assistant to legal affairs officer 
dealing with administration of justice and Japanese police administration. 

Entered U.S. Border Patrol at Del Rio, Texas on March 4, 1957. Served as 
Border Patrol Inspector performing routine patrol duties and in-sLrvice training 
officer. Graduated from Border Patrol Academy in August of 4957. Transferred 
and promoted to Immigrant Inspector at San Francisco, California and later 
transferred in same position to San Pedro California administering foreign labor 
programs for Special Projects Division of Southwest Regional Office of the U.S. 
Immigration and Naturalization Service. Transferred to position of Senior 
Border Patrol Inspector on October 1, 1981 in charge of Border Patrol Station 
at Nogales, Arizona. 

Entered on duty with AID/W on October 10, 1964. Served as class-counselor 
and program officer at IPA-AID/W. Assigned as Area Public Safety Advisor-
Bahia, Brazil on August 21, 1965. 

8/23/65 to 12/1/68 Area Public Safety Advisor to-the states of Alagoas, Bahia, 
Espirito Santo, Rio de Janeiro, Acr, Amazonas, Mlinas Corals, Para, and-Sergipe, 
and the territory of-Acre. 

12/2/69 to 3/81/71 Senior Training Advisor at National Police Academy. 
4/1/71 to present. Chief Public Safety Advisor, tSAID/Brazil. 
Ditties:As Chief Public- Safety Advisor, develops the Mission's Public Safety 

program proposal and procedures and advises the Mlission Director and Country 
Team on all aspects of the GOB law enforcement activities. He is charged with 
the formulation of the Mission's Public Safety program, with program imple
mentation -and-direct supervision of'the-advisors assigned -to the program. 

NORnAiN M. RosN n-Attended primary and high schools in Baltimore, Md.; 
Pittsburg, Pa.; Chicago, li.; Mt. Vernon, New York. Attended U. of Alabama 
and Yale U. Entered military seivice as Aviation Cadet in 1941. Retired as 
Lt.Col. in 1963. 

Following retirement from USA-P on 1 Jan. 68 joined A.I.D. Office of Public 
Safety, 6 Jan. 68. Initially assigned as Public Safety Program Officer, USAID, 
Vietnam, Feb. 68-Feb. 64. Reassigned as Public Safety Advisor, Organization and 
Administration, Feb. 64. Further reassigned as Public Safety Deputy Chief for 
Administration, October 64-April 65. 

Served' as Class Counsellor for I.P.A. Senior Course No. 3 5une-September 65. 
Assigned as Public Safety Program Officer, USAID, Thailand, Sept. 65. Served 

as-Acting Public Safety Deputy Chief for-support, April 67-March 68. Reassigned 
as Deputy Chifef-for support, 3arch-Sept..-68. 

Assigned as Public Safety Program Officer, USAID, Brazil, Nov. 68. 
Duties: As Public Safety program analyst, assists the Cliief Public Safety 

Advisor with the preparation of program documents according to the prescribed 
format. le, alto, inalyzes program proposals for conformance with the USAID 
and AID/W program planning guidelines. 

FRED , ZUmwAL.-Born in Virden, New Mexico. Received formal education 
Advanced training Phoenix College, Arizona State Universityin Arizona Schools 

Control Institute -1960, N2U.and Northwestern University. ASU. TDelinquency,T affic Institutb 1961--B.S.A.S-U. 1966. 
Entered Law Enforcement 1956. Served 12 years Phoenix, Arizona Police De

partment as Patrolman, Detective, Sergeant, Lieutenant, Director of Planning 
Police Science and Police Administration atand Training Section, Taught 

Phoenix College 6&-67. 
In June 1967 entered the U.S. Foreign Service (MafD/W/OPS/LA) as program 

!Operations Officer and taught at the International Police Academy. 

April 1068 Assigned to public Safety Project Brazil as, an Area Public Safety 
Advisor. 'Served in Brasilia, Federal Tistriet and Recife, Pernambuco. Currently 

Public Safety TrainingAdvisor, Brasilia, Brazil. 
Duties: As Public Safety training advisor, advises on curricula- development 

and improvement which cover such subjects-as patrol operations, communication 
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,utilization, manpower utilization, general, courses, supervisory training, organi
zation and management, traffic and traffic enforcement programs, instructor 
training and developing course outlines for the National Police Academy. He also 
assists in the selection and documentation of participants for training in the UES 

A=MiT L. BRYANT (Ai).-Born in Bloomington, Indiana and received formal 
education in Indiana Schools. Attended Indiana Uuiversity, School of Police 
Administration. Still require 20 academic hours for AB degree. Attended FBI 
National Academy, Washington, D.C. 

Entered Law Enforcement in Military Police in IS53. Entered Civil Law En
forcement in January, 1955 'with the Bloomington, Indiana Police Department. 
Remained there until January 1966, promoted through ranks to Executive Officer 
of Department and left to accept positionwith Public Safety. 

Served ,as, Public Safety Advisor-Training-Vietnam from February 1966 to 
June 1968. Served as School Advisor in Danang, Asst. PSD Chief Manpower and 
Training Branch in Saigon and for three months served as Acting Chief of Man
power and Training Branch. 

Served as classcounselor for English General Course No. 20 at International 
Police Academy-from July to October, 1968 

Assigned as Public Safety Advisor, Brazil from -February'969 to present (April 
1971). 

Duties: As Public Safety training advisor, advises on curricula development
and improvement which cover such subjects as criminal statistics, police records 
and report writing, operational field problems, mobile training courses conducted 
in the various states of Brazil, advises on designing or redesigning training pro
grams and,facilities td reflect both long, and short range needs. Hle, also assists 
an the selection and documentation-of ptarticipants for training in the U.S. 

'Mr. BRoww. The third question: Describe briefly the work of the 
National Pblice&Academy, the National Criminalistics Laboratbry, 
the,Nhtional Instituteof Identification, 'the Natidnal Telecommunica
tions Center, and the Graphics Institute. What is-the relationship of 
the AID public safety program to each of these ? 

T=-~ NATIONALJ rolOIC AOADflTJ 

Answer, having to do with the National Police Academy (ANP, 
after its Portuguese initials). The-objectives of teaching at the Na
tiohal Police Academy are to: increase the value of the personnel of 
the Federal Police -Dbpartment and of.the state and territorial police 
from-the moral, psyfhological and intellectual standpoint, developing 
their democratic conscience, their respect for human rights and dedi
cation to their eofntry; develop civi, and, moral standards, qualities
of direction. and leadership, a spirit of renewal; -a mentality of per
manent-cultural development, d dedication topublic security of police
integration and mutual collaboration in the performance of their mis
sion, the love of liberty and truth, and active participation in the 
nation's development.

I would likne to point out, Mr. Chairman, that that statement was 
taken from the-general plan of instruction, National Police Academy, 

chool year 1971 and that is their wording. 
The teaching of specific techniques anus at preparing Federal and 

State police officers for the performance of specialized functions, thus 
nnproving the standards, the quality, and productiveness of the polic4
service, generating more security for families, better protection for 
society~and allowing,anideal olimate for internal security. 

Courses: In collaboration with the Secretariat of Education of the 
Federal District evening courses fdr adults to complete junior and 
senior bijh school are also offered. . 

63-3i3--71--2' 
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The National Police Academy also administers examinations for 
entrance into the Federal Police Department. 

Courses at the National Police Academy are divided into the 
following categories

1. Entrance level; 
2. Promotional; 
8. Promotional in grade, that is, agentsA and B; 
4. In-service; 
5. Vocational; 
6. Specialization and integration. 

During the teaching year 1971, the academy plans, in addition to 
courses for various classes of Federal police officials, a senior officers 
course, two general courses, 30 mobile training courses--courses pre
pared at the academy are presented by ANP instructors at locations 
thlroughout Brazil-and five seminars in which xolice from state 
organizations throughout Brazil are invited to attend. 

Relationship of USAID/PSO program to the National Police 
Academy: 

U.S. advisers work directly with the director of the academy, divi
sion chiefs, course coordinators, and individual instructors to deter
mine training needs, develop curriculum and courses, teaching aids 
and provide textual and other source materiAds for the preparation 
of lesson plans, pamphlets, class handouts, et cetera. Translation of 
source material and, training aids in the English language, which 
could be usecin a course, is done by USAID/PSO staff. 

Personal contacts between public safety advisers ,and senior State 
police officials are also utilized as a means to discuss and' evaluate 
training needs within State police organizations. U.S. advisers also 
participate in the establishment of prerequisites for National Police 
Academy-courses and selection of students. 

USAID/PSO has furnished and is continuing to furnish U.S. 
publications and current texts on police and public administration. 
Films, slide series, film strips and other teaching aids produced in 
the United States with application to Brazil are furnished by 
USAID/PSO. 

Projectors, screens, tape recorders, and so forth,used for teach
ing have been furnished the academy and some field offices of the 
Federal Police Department where'mobile training courses are con
ducted under academy auspices. 

NATIONAL rNSTrrUTE OF CRDCNALSTICS 

The National Oriminalistics Institute provides laboratory exam
ination of evidence, narcotics, questioned dbuments, counterfeit 
money and liquors, perfumes suspected of being smuggled or manu
factured internally with false labels for Federal police cases and for 
State police upon request. Technicians from the institute also make 
on the scene examinations to collect, evaluate, and. examine evidence. 

Relationship, of USATID/PSO program to National Criminalistics 
Institute,: 

The USA-D/PSO has furnished scientific instruments, photo
graphic equipment and texts, U.S. training of institute criminalists 
and advisory technical assistance to the institute. Some evidence proe
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lesging and, photographio equipment is presently eing furnished by
-USAJ§DI/SO as well as limited advisory assistance and finishing
mnjon request, current U.S. technical publidations inthe briminalisOics 
-field. '* . W I 

'NA PQXO NAL INSTrrE OF sDENl lCATION -

The National Identification Institute is the natioial repository of 
-personal identification rdcords of criminals. Fingerprints' and a de
tailed personal description of persons.being prosecuted-in both State 
and Federal courts are sent to the National Identification Institute. 
rigerprits•are classified and fled by classification. Name files are-also 
fmaintined-alphabeticalLy. Personal, characteristics taken and coded 
from the detailed description are punched-on IBM cards with informa
tion concerning the crime. The Itstitute can, upon requ".f of a police 
.agency, provide past criminal record or make a mehianicatgeareh of 
their files for a suspect, type ofcrime, modus operandi, and personal
,characteristics of the suspect.

The'-Institute also maintains separately the civil identification 
,(identity cards issued, upon request of individual) records for the 
Federal District. 

All alien files are now being centralized at the Institute. 
USAIh/PSQ Relationship to the-National Identification-Institute: 
USAID/PSO has provided automated:card' files, mechanical,-data 

processing equipment, fingerprint magnifiers and smaller items of 
equipment and 'intensive advisory assistance at the time the Institdte 
-was being created and organized. Some lS. training has--been 
pr0vided-

Presentcommodity assistance is lininted'to furnishing of additional 
automated.fies. Limited advisory assistance is-provided upon request. 

TELEOOM-3rUTI OA'O1TS 

The 'elecommunications service-of the Federal police provides nar 
tionwide -telecommunications ow, teletype and/or voice between the 
Federa&Police Headquarters in Brasilia and theirfield officesthrough
-out the country. First line maintenauce of their telecommunications 
-equipmient isalso provided in'this service. 

'The Telecomimunications-Technical Training,Center providestrain,
-ing to operators and techiician§. of not only the Federal Police De
"partmentbut also State policepersonnel.-Difficult repair problems are 
-also handled:here.. 

-US 
 AID/PSO Relationsfip ,withTelecommunications, Service: 
Z(SAID/PB ,has-providendtechnicalassistanc the..plinning aiidin,


-design -ofthenationa-l n6twoikantin,establishment and preparation 
-of training courses in the telecommunications-fild, . -

Limited U.S. teclmical; training has-been Trovided ,
Equipment in -the formof .transmitters, 'receivers; portable, trans

-ceiyers, laboratory repair equipment and.tools; demonstration 'and 
-tainingaidshave been provided by USAIJD/PSO, '/ ,'>t,., 




16 

GRAIU[ICS 

Thegraphics section of the Federal Police Department designs and 
prints forms used by the department, bulletins, issued by the depart
ment and pamphlets, handouts, and books,for the National Police De
partment as well as notices and circulars containing course informa
tion to State police organizations. Graphics also produces slides, charts, 
and other visual aids used in academy training courses. 

-USAIJD/PSO program relationship with graphics:
USAID/PSO has prbvided technical advisory assistance in the 

organization and establishment of the graphics section. Advisory 
assistance has also,been provided in the development when additional 
requirements were placed on the graphics section resulting from in
creasel trainin-an new courses. 

USAID/PSt has furnished photographic, design and reproduction 
equipment. 

Presently, limited advisory assistance and translation of manuals 
for eqnipnment delivered or being delivered is provided by USAID/
PSO. 

SEOIOXi OF BRAZIAN ?ARQIPANTS 

4. Question: How are Brazilia participants selected for training 
inthe United States and Panama,? What role does AID play?
I Answer: When it is determined and agreed that a need exists for 
training in a particular area and competence in the-particular field 
cannot e found in Brazil or the training can best be accomplished
in the United States, police officers are programed for U.S. training 
and upon returning to Brazil'develop courses and teach at the Na
tional Police Academy. 

Brazilian candidates for participant training are initially selected 
on the basis of joint USAID/PSO and GOB/DPF identification and 
determination of training needs. Depending upon the skills, knowl
edge and attitude to be developed, the decision is made whether the 
requirements can best be met through,in-country training capabilities 
or U.S. trainino- Alternatively, a request may be received by USAID/
PSO from a poice executive for a particular training programu'Suchrequests are evaluated and acted upon by USAID/PSO on the above 
evaluationl criteria. Candidates nominated by the' police at Federal 
and State level are examined by U.S. project personnel to determine 
if they meet prerequisites and are in 'positions in which the skil 
knowledge and attitude to be acquired can be effectively transmitted 
to otherk. When GOB -police agencies and UJSAID/PSQ concur that 
the candidates and the courses-will meet identifidneeds, the USAID) 
nominates to OPS, or to Washington, that is, the prospective candi
dates for the designated courses. 

Mr. Chairman, that completes -aystatement. 
Senator Onmon. Thank you very much, M€r. Brown. 
Senator AnTE. I would like to ask, when you included Pahama, do 

you mean the Canal Zone? 
M'r. BRowN. Yes, sir. 
Senator AmeN. Where the training is carried on? 
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Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir; the academy for training Latin American po
lice officials was first started in the Canal Zone at Fort Davis and later 
transferred to Washington. 

BR&AX POLICE OAPArn=n S 

Senator CaUgtc. Mr. Brown, I am going to ask Mr. Uoit of our 
staff to commence the questioning.but before he-does that I have a pre
liminary question I would like to ask. Brazil is a highly civilized 
country; isit not? 

Mr. BRowN. Compared to other Latin American countries, I would 
say very much so, sir. 

Senator CHuR H. Well, it dra-ws upon a civilization that is as ancient 
as our own; does it not? 

Mr. BRowm Yes, sir. 
Senator Cimom It is not a primitive land just learning western 

ways, is i? 
Mr. Bnowr: Well, there are primitive areas, sir. 
Senator CHUmoH. Oh, yes, but I mean the Government of Brazilthat 

you are dealing with. Don't they know how to run.a police force? 
Mr. BRow-N. Yes, sir. During the period of tine that I have been in 

Brazil I have noted great improvements and certainly over the period
of time that the public safety program has been in Brazil there have 
been great improvements. Tey have the capability to manage their 
police, but they also are anxious to improve their methods as they have 
been during the past 10 years. 

U.S. ENOWLEDGE OF POLICEO TRAINIXG 

Senator Cunno[. Do you think that we have special knowledge in 
the matter of training and directing police activities that is superior 
to that of Brazil . 

Mr. BxowN. Yes, sir. 
Senator CHURcH. You do? 
Mr. BRowS. Yes, sir. 
Senator CRno. In just what ways is our knowledge of organizing 

and directing police activities so superior to that of Brazil-that we 
canbe their instructor in these matters? 

NMr. Bnoww. Well, if we are.to limit this assistance just to the train
ing area, I would say that in organization, particularly in manage
ment, we have the advantage of longer years to draw from, and T 
think-

Senator Coino. Longer years than Brazil? 

LAW PNFRoCEMENT AND HUMANE METHoDs 

Mr. Biowx. Wel in what we might callmodern law enforcement; 
yes, sir. Traditionally the Brazilian police have been military type, and 
they do not have the civil police concept, and this is one of the things 
our program has been designed for in the past, and is presently de
signed to accomplish, to bring about a public service concept of law 
enforcement and bring about modern techniques in the handling of 
people, whether it be crowd control or whether it be investigations. 



The minimuin use of force, humanae methods,, these are the types of'things Ithink'that we haveieemheipful Wvitr. - .-

Senator CUnon. Do you think that-the Braziian pblice are todar: 
known for their restrant and humane methods in deiing'wth Bra
ziian people?. . 2 

Mr. BRowN. Wel they certainl advoce this and through training
at theircdemy, t u theirinsnrice'tranrng, t-hrough h-emobile 
training Xouses. Thitis onJof urprcipa!thrusts. " 

'Senator' Cabor. Irliglt o the many reports that -e Wear of tortlure in Brazil, do you thfir4 you have been .successful in inculcating 
himan~metlos restraiit 

Mr. Bnowir. Yes, sir; ido,Senator. 
-" 

..- ' ' 
-

Senator Cfr-uadn. You d&.' You thiiiltourprbovaih haswbeefi success
rt in B3razil in achieving its objectives ? " 

Mr. BRowN. Yes. sir. -- , 
Senatol' Ontma Youreally believe that .- .. . 

Air. BRowx. Yes, Sir.. 
SenatorCSrSHG. -hk it thel,,tht-ybu give no credif to-thesere

pbrts of ,eessive usd of f6ce'andtbhture,aiud thdt 1kind oftlhing-that 
have come'out of'3raziirecenf years. 

•Mr.'B w2 . Durin t'li6 10-year period that *echave hada public 
sffety pr6gram -in have-trained,61Brazil we participantt-here in tuef 
'United States. Most ofthose men were the younger officers who were 
coming-up'through the ranks. Those offiers -

Senator 'Car-ci. I wonderif you woulT answer my question con
cerning whether or not you give any cred6nce to the 'reportsthat Bra
zilian police have engaged in crael methods, including the torture of 
prisoners. 

Mr. BRowI. I have read newspaper items on the subject. I have read 
teports. I do ndt have any personal knowledge, Mr.Chrman,of any-Isch torture methods. 

Senator CatcH. Do you believe it? Do you believe this las hap
pened or do you believe it has not? 

Mr. Bnowxr. I do not think that it is my right, sir,lo judge the
I " Brazilian people or the police. All'Ican say is- , 

Sbnator' CnmtbH. But you. h ye said, Mr. Brown, just a moment 
ago, that you thodght our program had been successful in inculcating4 
restraint and hunane treatme t riethods within the police forces of 
Brazil'. It seems -tome ,oucannotsay thatthe prograry has been suc
eessfuI andtthen wheni Xask yoU whetfher yotgive credence or no-tu, 
the wi(dspread reports 6f -violence and abusive treatment of prisoners, 
say you have no knowledge or.are unwilling to make a judgment.It 
does not seem to me you canhave itboth ways' a 

ir. BnowN. Well, within any organization there isalways the possi
biihy that there mi]fie isoTated cases of unnecessary use of force,. 
Mr.O..hairman. That is possible in Brazil-oronyother country. 

A - . -O 

- ~ Ll NSALEA ON TODRf=fD 

Senator Cnrcon. Well, Mr.Bown, you know that the repbrtsthat
have come out pf Brazil have 'hid considerably more scdpe to them 
than, isolated'iases that rnight'ocdur aiiywhere. The reports'have been 
continuous' &nd they iave been numerous, and they have had to do
with the widespread use of torture of prisoners and abuse of prisoners. 
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and indeed, some high-ranking members of the Braziian,Government 
itself have adlmowledged that this has occurred in Brazil. So, we are 
not talking about just one of those situations where an isolatedcase of 
niistreatment might occur, as it mi ht in-any country. We are talking
about a 'pattern of conduct that has become known to the world, and 
which has led to many outcries elsewhere. So, you' are aware of this,

-l-amh.ure. 
Air. BRowN. Yes, sir, I am aware of the allegations. .L,amaware of 

the newspaper items, sir. I am aware of reports on this matter and: 
early in 1969 or 1968 Minister Ellis discussed this.matter with me. 
We Were concerned about the continued reports: I in turn hre dis
cussed this ,onnumero ,occasious with the dir~ctor g~fhbral of .the,
federal police. Re assured me that he did not condone such, practiees, 
and ihdeed, if there were Teported cases that they would' be investi
gated and appnopriate action would be. taken. lie mentioned to me 
on one occasion that President Medibi did not c6ndone that type of 
police work or-alleged tortiirin'g We'eave-beea onerned-about it and 
one of the things, as I mentioned-before, -wehave.emphasized in our
training, is.theuseof humane methods. . I I I 

Senator Ojnuoa.- If you have been concerned -about it and-have 
had udany discussions with-the Brazilian, authorities, then what is the
basis for yturgtatement that you think the training program has been. 
successful in,ineuleatihgmethods of hunanetreatment. -" 

N 3E1 orP rOLIOC, TRAINED BY UNTTEO STATOS 

Senator AnrsN. Will you state at this point 'what percent of the
federal police have been trained by us either in Panama or in the-
United States? 

AMr. Biowx. Well, We have trained a muAber in the States, but in 
addition to that, Senator, we are training on a, continuing basis in 
Brazil itself. We are advising, assisting the Academy 'siaff'in a con
tinuing training program. There are 3,800 Federal police, and I would 
say somewhere along-the line we have been helpfil in trairmig across: 
the board. 

Senator Ammv, About '500 of them were trained in.the 'United
T


States? 
Mr. BRowN. No, sir., Of tie 6,1 I would say about 40 members of the

fedeial police have been trained in the States. I do not have-the exact 
figures on that, Senator. I can provide that for you. 

Senator Anx.z. I thought we trained some 691. ". 
Nixz BnowN.That, has to do with the police all throughont Brhzil. 
Senator Arxr.Well, that is what I asked. . 
Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir, 641. 

-

Senator kaR . That is what-I referred to, what p ercent of the
federal police of all Brazil hawe been trained here? 

Mr. BRowN. Well; there are 271,000 police officers in Brazil, sir; 
8,800 of thatinumber are of the Federal'police. The balancecof them, 
are the State police forces--1'6000 uniformed and 84,000 nonuni
formed in the various.states; and 6,500- make 'ip the district police
in, the Federal'District.,

Senator AREN. Do we train them in anytling-except.law enforce
menf? IDo we: train them in, conmunit dcvelbpmeit, comniunity en-
terpfises, as we have done in some other countries . -
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Mr BROWN. We have 
Senator ArN. Or are they simply trained in the field of law en

forcement? 
Mr. BRowN. No; we have a public relations program, and I would

with your permission, read from that partTo the course that we-have 
helped them to develop.

Senator ArmN,%. Is the training similar to what-we have given Thai
land, do youknow? 

Mr.-Boww. In part,the public safety program, yes, sir. 
Senator AmEN. It is. 
Mr. Bnowr. I have here a part of a course that is given, having to

do with public relations and with your permission, I wouldJust read 
this portion.

'Senator'CaoHor. Just to get on with this point that Snator Aiken 
raises, none of us on this committee -assumes that you. or any 6ther 
American dealing with this public safety program is engaged in train
ing Brazilian police to abuse Brazilian citizens. I am certain that our 
own training program is directed toward the instruction in law en
forcement techniques ofthe kind that -we would sanction in our own 
country and that we would approve. But you have made a statement 
that you feel that the program has been successful in accomplishing
certain objectives, one of which is to inculcate in the Brazilian police
humane methods. I question that on the grounds that many reports
have come out in Brazil concerning torture in Brazilian jails, and the 
existence of the torture has been acknowledged by high Brazilian 
governmental officials. 

NEWS ARTICLE ON TORTURE 

For example, I have here a news item published in the New York 
Times dated the fourth of December 1970, out of Rio de Janefro,
which reads as follows: 

A Cabinet Minister has acknowledged the use of torture in Brazilian jails. It' 
was the flrst such admission by a member of the government.

Education Minister Jarbas Passarinho, speaking on a Sac Paulo televiston 
program Tuesday -night, said that to deny that torture had been used in Brazilan 
jails would be untrue. He added, however, that it was not true to say there was 
a systematic policy of torture. 

Then the article goes on in greater detail and I would include the
whole article at this point in-the record. In other words, I find it hard 
to follow your-conclusions that our program has,been successful in this
regard in the light of the widespread instances of torture in the 
Brazilian jails which even the Minister of Education in the Brazilian 
Government acknowledges publicly.

(The New York Times article follows:) 

[From the New York Times, Dee. 4, 1970] 

BRAZiL AIDE SAYS TITUEDo Is UsEI-INxsTER ALAZiEs FIRST SUCiK GOVERNImENT 
ADMISSION 

RIo DE JEmno, Dec. 3 (AP)-A Cabinet minister has aeknowledged the use of 
torture in Brazilian jails. It was the first such admission by a'member of the 
Government

Education Minister arbas Passarinho, spealing on a Sao Paulo television 
program Tuesday night, said that-to deny the torture had been used in Brazilian 
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jails would be untrue. He added; however, that it was not true to say there was 
a systematic policy of torture. 

There have been recurrent reports of torture in Brazilian jails over the last 
two years, but high-ranking officials had denied the charges. 

In a military-court session yesterday, a university student charged with ter
rorist activities testified that he had been tortured. 

The student, Ottoni Guimaraes Fernandes Jr., who is 24 years old, said: "I was 
tied with a rope. They applied electric shocks to my mouth, ears, nostrils, -face 
and even my eyes. I was tortured for 36 hours and had two ribs broken." 

D]ATa PENASLTY ASKED 

He is charged with belonging to the outlawed National Liberating Action, an 
urban guerrilla group, and with participating in a bank holdup in which a security 
'guard was killed. The prosecution is asking for the death penalty. 

The National Liberating Action was one of two groups involved in the kid
napping last June of the West German Ambassador to Brazil, Ehrenfried von 
flolleben. Hle was later freed by the kidnappers. 

Mr. Fernandes and his lawyer asked the judge to include the testimony on the 
torture in the court records, but the request was denied. 

MNr. Fernandes said he .was arrested Aug. 23 and was taken to a house on the 
outskirts of Rio, where he was beaten. Later, he said, he was tortured in a room 
in the Navy Ministry and in a military police station, both in Rio. 

"I was tied and hung upside down," he said "Water was poured into-my nose, 
almost killing me. They laughed at me and asked if I was hungry or thirsty." 

He described a torture called "the hangman's Russian roulette." 
"They put a rope on my neck," he said. "The end of the rope was thrown over a 

.beam. They made me climb on a stool. They kicked the stool, and when I was 
almost dying they released me." 

Senator An x. I would like to ask him an easy one. Do you think 
the situation has been better than it would have been had we had no 
program? 

Yr.BRowN. I am certain of that, Senator. 
Senator AmEN. I said that is an easy one. 

SUCOESS AWD 1PACT OF U.S. PROGRAMt 

Senator Cm on. ie knocked that one out of the ball park. But can 
you answer-my question? I mean, I do not quite understand the basis 
for your conclusion that the program has been successful in light of 
these other acknowledged facts. 

-Mi. BRowN. Mr. Chairman, your question is directed at one par
ticular part of the Federal police or the police of Brazil's operations. 
Weh'ave worked with themover the years and have continued to work 
in the area of training but also in improving their communications sys
tems, in the Identification Bureau, in the Oriminalistics Bureau, in the 
Graphic Section-all of these things, and in bringing about a better 
cooperation between the State forces and the Federal forces. Certainly, 
we have stressed the importance of humane and minimum force tactics. 

Senator Cncn. I am, sure you have done that, Mr. Brown. But 
suppose that you hadbeen so successful in stressing the proper restraint 
and the avoidance of abusive treatment as a matter of professional 
police practice'that all those you had trained are model policemen. Let 
us just suppose that. You have trained how many-641? 

Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir, in the States. We have-
Senator OnnRwn. In the United States, this is the number you 

have brought here and given a full course, is that correct? 
Mr. BRowN¢. Yes, sir. 
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Senator GORuIo. Allright.How many police-are there in Brazil ? 
Mr. Bnoww. 271,000. 
'Senator Cauxon. 271;000. Now, just what impact do you-really think 

the training of such a miniscule numberof poicemen coidld have upon 
an army of police so large as that whichexists in Brazil? 

Mr. lBnoww. Well, I think, sir, that it has considerable impact but 
let me,say that The 641 trained are only those trained in the United 
States. Since the inception of our program in 1969 we have had advisers 
in the country assisting in their trainnng programs and their in-service 
training programs and their academy programs and in establishing 
-academies, and that impact has been-immense. 

In addition, the 61 returned and are utilized in trainn through
out the country, and through the multiplier effect they ave been 
--ble to reach a great number of their brother officers. So I would say, 
_yes, there has been a considerable impact. 

Senator CnRnon. How does this public safety program in its size 
'compare to those that we are conducting in other countries, do you 
know? 

Mr. BROWN. Well, a very small part, sir. Our program for fiscal 
year is $370,000. 

Senator CHURCHo. I mean, the public satfety program we have been 
,conducting in Brazil, how does it compare in size with public safety 
-programs we have been conducting in other countries, do you know.? 

AMOUNT OF MONEY N STED 

Mr. BROWN. It has been a very modest program. Over the 10-year
-period the U.S.Government has invested approximately $10 million 
-overthat period of time. 

Senator CHuRCH. How much of that money has gone into training 
and how much of it'has goneinto equipment? 

Mr. BRowN. About one-
Senator AxXXIN. Were these atrocities, Senator Church, committed 

'bythe Federal police or the State -police?As I understand it, the Fed
reral Government has not very good control over the States because 
.they are more autonomous even than the Canadian Provinces are. 

Mr. HOLT.They are notJany more. 
Senator AxEEN. That has been changed in the last few years. Then 

the Federal Government would be mainly responsible. 
Mr. BRowN. Of the total amount mentioned, sir, approximately $3 

million has been for commodities. 

xIINDS Or EQUIP2IIENT SUrPLIED 

Senator CuRo. tCan you supply for the record, though we have 
-the table here, what kinds of equipment we have supplied through 
this nrogram in a general way. 

Mr. BROWN. Well, the rineipal need of the Brazilian police has 
'been for mobility and for communications, and our main thrust inso
far as commodities has been in the area of communications. They had 
urgent need to establish communications -within the various 'States, 
and at one time we were working -with 15 States and the Federal 
District. As of June of 1969 we terminated the programs in the 15 
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States and the Federal District and now are concentrating on working 
only with the Federal police. I . 

Of the $3 'million, only $1 million of that hasrbeen for the Federal 
police. Telecommunications equipment, vehicles, various training aids, 
identification equipm6nt for the identification bureau, equipment for 
the crime lahoxatory.,. lox the graphics section, that is the type of 
equipment for which,these funds were used, sir. 

Senator C(larao. Tve-you-supplied small arms to the police. 
Mr. BRowN. None. 
Senator Cn non. -Haveyonsupplied Mace? 
Mr.Bxow-w. None. 
Senator CnxRnon. Eave you supplied tear gas? 
Mr. BRowN. Back in 1962 and 1963 a small amount was supplied 

which was used for training purposes. 
Senator GCHmnoB. Have you supplied helmets or personal gear of 

the kind that the police use for riot control? 
Mr. BRowN. Yes, we have supplied some for training purposes but 

aside from that we do not extensively equip the police. Rather it is 
for demonstration purposes to introduce a new type of equipment 
for them or, as I said, for training purposes. 

Senator Onu-uoH. All right, Mr. Iolt, will you proceed with your 
questions, pleasc? 

z2rraARYr COINTROL OF POLICE FORCES 

Mr. HOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Brown, I would like to go back to your prepared statement 

land have you elaborate a little upon the kind of police forces in 
Brazil which you mention in the first paragraphbecause otherwise 
we run into semantic difficulties in distinguishing between military 
police and civil police. 

Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HorT. 'Is it not a fact that whether they are called civil police 

or military police or federal police they are all tnder the control 
of the Brazilian ArmedForces 

Mr. BRowx. Yes sir. 
Mr. IfonT. All right. 
Mr. BRow-. Letmeniodify that, Mr.rHolt.They are actually under 

the Minister of Justice, but the key commanders in all of the police 
agencies are military. 

Mr. Hone. I have a table here which you'supplied me in Brazil show
ing the police forces, federal police, Federal District police. State 
military .police 'and State civil police with numbers, which I think it 
would be well to put into the record, Mr. Ohairnan. 

(The table referred to follows:) 

Police Forces 
--------------- - 271,000 

A. Federal.Police ----------------------------------------------- 8, 800' 
A nonuniformed force with nationwide jurisdiction in the 

investigation of crimes which are interstate in character such 
as customs, narcotics trallic, antitrust violations, censorsbip. 
counterfeiting legal tender and subversion. Also responsible for 
operation of the National Identification Institute, the National 
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Pozice Forces-Continued 

A. 	Federal Police--Continned
 
Criminalistics Institute, the Natidonal Telecommunications Cen
ter, and the upgrading of police training through the National
 
Police Academy. Respdnsible to the Ministry of Justice and Inter
national Affairs.
 

B. Federal District Police..... - __-	 6; wo 
A uniformed and, nonuniformed force responsible for main

taining law and order and the internal. security in the Federal 
District -(Brasilia). Responsible to the Go,ernor of the Federal 
District. 

0. State Military Police ------------------------------------------- 176, 000 
A uniformed police force in each state responsible for main

taining law and order and internal security in their respective 
states. Responsible to the Secretaries of Public Safety of the 

-individual states. Provisions exist for their .federalization as
 
Army Reserve units intime of war.
 

3). 'State Civil Police -------------------------------------------- 81,000
 
A nonuniformed force-perforinginvestigations and technical 

support duties and administratiye functions. Responsible to the 
Secretary of PublielSafety of the individual states. 

ST-km SEO-EWARIESOF UBfLIG 8AIMSY 

Mir. HOLT. With respect to the State militk-ry police andihe-State 
civil police the distinction seems to be that the State military police 
is-a uniformed police force and the State civil police is a nonuniformed . 
police force. Both are responsible to:'the iseeretary. of public.safety in 
the individual States. Who appoints those State secretaries-of public

Isafety? 
Mr. BRowR. The Governor oftheState. 	 -

Mr. HoLT. And with the exception of fte State of Guanahara, who 
selected-the Governors of the States,? 

Mr. ]3 ROWK. Well, they have l&ctions. 
Mr. HOLT. By whom? 
Ar. BRow-. Sir? 
M r. HOLT. What constitutes the electorate for elkcthg a State 

'Governor in Brazil? 
Mr. Brow-. As far as I 1mow, I am. not versed on that, Mr. 'Holt, 

but so far as I know, it is a general popular election. 
Mr. HOLT. It is the State-legislature, is it not?' 

' -

Mr. BnowN. I am not qualified'to-answer that-question,I am afraid. 
Mr. HOLT. You might wish to-are yoV qualified, 'r: Dean? 
Mr. DEAX. Yes, sir. The answer is "'Yes." 
Mir. I1OtT. And are the State secrotaries of public safety civilians 

or military officers? 
Mr. BRowjq. They have' been mainlj civilians during my adminis

tration there. 
Mr. Hour. Are they now? -. 

Mr. BRowN. No; I would say that perhaps the majority of them 
are now military people. 

DOPS 

Mr. HOLT. What is-the relationship to any of these police forces 
of the organizations whidh are known as OPS, those letters being
the Portuguese initials -forDepartment of Public Order and Security. 

Mr. Bnoww. The DOPS arethe hnvestigative-division of the police, 
whether-it be-the Federal police-or whether it'be the State police. 
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Mr. Houm. Where do the commanding officers of the.'DOPS come 
from? 

Mr. BRzowN. Within the secretariat of public safety there are a
number of specialized areas such as robbery, theft, homicide, -political
and social order which are DOI'S responsibilities. .The head of the 
DOPS can be a career .manbut in many cases is appointed directly
by the Governor. 

Mr. HIoLT: And he is, as of now,, more often than not, a milita.ry, I
officer 

-Mr.Brzow. I would not s4~th~at is the case, Mr. Holt.
Mr. How . What is the reltion§hip of what is known as SNI, which 

are Portguese initials for National Intelligence Serviqe.
'Mr. BRowT. National Intelligence Service is not apart bf the police.
Mr. HorT. Whlat is it,a patrt, -
Mr. Baoww. I am notqualified to answer that, sir. 
Mr. a OLT. You havehad no contat,with that? 
Mr.-BRowx. No, sir. 
Mr. HlotT. In your statement you say'that one of the initial goals.of

thepublc safety programnm Brazi was the establishent 9f a Federalpolice organ ization and that~oneo0f the.prhncipal functions' of the Fed
eral police .isto assumt an increasingshare ofthe~provson of trainingi
and technical services for the State level police forges. foe corectly
tinier in this that the FPdertl poke is moving, to take over t~e 
training tsnfrions of State police forces which were formerly per
formed by OPS O A , , - .Mr. lBnow&.- Very defiuitely, Mr. hI-olt. Since fiscal year 1U69 we have. 
encouraged.a assisted the Federal police to increase their capabili
ties to render advic& and assstance to the vaios inSttes a manner 
very similar to pur own ,tid. -For exp'e, in the 'training of par
ticipuan where'we have sonl 6i participant to the Inited States for 
trineng, the Federal Poice Aademyis prepared to rebeive'iow 

participantsfrom all 22 States, .h . { .. ng
 

)hvr..H osss.What are the fuue plans foi thea apublic saeto-pro-. 
gram yitBralelf - a, • " .--- to 

nS mir. Brown.Thike wS Ans sig an Wathingtn, ha%
reaced adeoisiothattis prpgra be phtased out in J .. of 172. _Andwe a.re gra~lualUy phasing d'own. Welifve" only' four .£ddser .left in 
Brazilia, aM butherewit e ony ihree ateir Januar 1 mftitheniaion'o 

onl program AJue.yM~r. flour. The advisers you liave left in Brasilia work mainly with 
the National Police Acadenmy'there, s thiat &orrect? 

Mvl. BrowN. :Yes,-sir,.except that nissisbing with~theomobile.train
lnmgthey do travdl into the tarious States and coordinate taedtraiing.
there. This is a new step that .the,Federal police Iaye, taiken and we" 
have assisted them in this, in.additiofi tO training at the Nationil Po
lice Academy itself, to send oftt frbn. the iteademy traifing teams :to 
assist- -sometbing like we woakdin senddng a team to-a country because 
most of the States are aslaate as other countries. 

Mr. ETour. Yes, but even these mobile training teams come' fronm the. 
National Police Academy?. 

http:goals.of
http:milita.ry
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Mr.n BR.Qw. Yes; sir. 
Air. HOLT. So even iii that work you are working with the acadimy?
Mr.. BRoWN., Yes, sir; but they do travel some into theStates. 

-Mr,. HOT. Righit. 
:FUNCONS or ADpnSrms 

WofdId you -e'rriMb a little more precisely what the public safety
advisers remaining in Brazilia.do in their relationship to the aca.emy? 
Is their fution one of advising the academy across the board or-do 
they concentrate onsome-particuar.aspect ofits work? 

Mr. BROWN. Well, in the past, when we had more advisers, they werepretty well atross the board. As we phased do-wit and as the Federal 

police are-more and more pr~pared to assumeheir fal responsibility
the advisers' duties have been spread. They are assistig, as i men
tioned, with the mobile trahn' team project. They adsoare continuing 
toadvise on a limited basi the various othet Civsions, suck as theCrbninalistics Institute, the Identification Instiute, tbeflraphids Sec
tionTand~to continue to coordinate and evaluate anil work with .the
instructors atthe academy. a n 

esow is-woridg with the academy sdhff.The pimat~function right 

Mr. Horfr. :One of thM functions of the Federal pohiceracordirg~to 
decree'iaw No. "4483bf November 16, 1964,,is censoring public enter

-

tainment and iblicions {o insure that doy not adVesely affec 
the nation l security inteets of the cohnt .y.'And one of' the courses 

listed inthe 197'1<ctalog'of the National P~olike Aca'denhy fs a course 
on censorship. Do, or have AID public safety adlviserq had any rela

-tionship witir tis .fumctionf'? 

". f.:hi s:Mr. B owm.osr thr tan. Th cenorhiThey utiie ur services r 
sCmceisa part ofuthe FederaPSequrity Pdlicea on 

Alr• Hort.,Anudyowthave nothfigt do withthat? 
Mt• Bnw. There is also a course tactical nitMfr. Iiox. No., sir.- at this academy on u 

of securiy and investigation. Wave youihaa anxyhhgto do with that? 
assist 

njng~anc forung the-curricula for the overall academy oeration, but 

i~rtha& specilc field; fl67 sir. But naturally, We h~iv4 assiste&Ytheimin the 
entire academny.,operations and so~to thatextent wer•hate li'iped ,in 
tht~area r . ... 

Mr. Bnowt. We have nothing at all to do with it. Wr in plan-

Mr.. IOLT• have %n,een sufic~emtLyelose cantact.-with tcto be 
this 


"MVh¥• B or. No, sir. N r 1 pl 
ableo tell i aittls bit abptLthe chtents of partic.r corset 

IOT ,CONTIROL xxQIflrnINTr: 
thMr.. on: I noice in-the tf'les you submitted howing the equp

tiNost all of the riot control equip, 
ont asshppe fiscai year 1963. or before• aDoes this rather shar 

Wreak 'at th at .poit iime n'chcate"thatthere was it UT.S policy change 
atuosnpplyjng eqpmientio hi ature. 

lieht that you hae supplied hof 

Mr. Bnowz. I beieve npt, .ir. Ho. As I menSined miichof the 
equipmen we provide is 61ia delionslation vbasis,oandwe have noI 

-contiiued to provdg ehadui'itg life of the proi ect., " , • 
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Senator OnmRnc. You mean by that, Mir. Brown that we furnished 
various types of riot control equipmnent t6 dem6nstiate tothe Brazilian, 
Police Academy the implements that were available for this purpose,
and having done that we had no further need, to supply more equipT 
mont of this kind, ' 

Mr. Bnr&vbk Well, all of the items that you have mentioned, Mr. 
Chairman, Were supplied prior to my administration, but as I men
tioned, we do introduwe new techniques. About 1963, it became neces
sary in some parts of the world for tear gas to be used, in crowd 
control and it is possible that this was an introduction of this technique. 
The -Brazilians manufacture, their own gas, they have their own .pro
ductibidhere now. They did~not at,that time. 

Mr ,Hor.,For the record, Mir. Brown, what wote the dates of your
serice in-Brazil.? 

Mr. BRowN. December 1967'until Mlarch of 1911, the end of:March. 

ST3IRtfl3TLANOE nQrIP=.ZmNT 

MTr. HOLT. Thank -you.
Hna Public Safty supplied to the,Brazilian police any electronic 

devices for bugging or tapping telephones or for other uses in sur
veillance? 

Mr. BRowN. No, sir. 
Mlr; HoTm. Amy gamdras? 
ArJ3:owxq. Oameras? ', -

Mr. HTOLT. Cameras. -
Mir. BROWN. Ycs, sir. 

Mr..oL~r Whatiadbf camerasl? -.-
Air. BRopw . .Wel.different -types,-cameras for mugging, pur-poses

a larger type camera for ordinary photographie work, and we aate 
also.provided a limitedamount of movie cameras .ortrtmin g pur-

Mqr. l-oI. aye yomever been-askedt o supply any,elet oic equip:' 
ment,of.ths kind? 

Mr. BRdw_X. I have not. . 

Mr. IloLT. Are.there my AI-D gidelines-otdireeive, about f.prnish
mg equipment of this sort? 

Mr. BRowN. We do not provide that type of equipment. t havye 
never done so and I have been the -o1ief a;dviser .in several different 
countries, and I have never provided it. 

(Th folloin information Was sulsequ.enty ;suplie.:) 
Specific AID guidelines for audio surveillance equipinent, are -provided,in the 

following lanual Order 1544.1, IIA.2. Additionally, it is the lics of the Office 
of Public Safety that tape recorders and accessoris may be ,considered in the 
category of audio surveillance equipment dependent on the -intended, jise. The 
Office requires a specific statement on the requisiidii from the feld iat tape 
recorders needed will not be used for audio surveillance putposes. 

IT. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
A. General 

1. The Public Safety program requires equipment which erves to"increase 
the counter-inSurgency capability- Gfkindigenons security forcts-and which con
tributes -to the effectiveiTess of 'thos6 forces in meeting normal polide responsi
bilities. The list of equipment items supplied in Public-Safety programs is quite 
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extensive but may be classified generally under four categories: (1) weapons, 
ammunition, and tear gas equipment; (2) police communications equipment; 
(3) police transportation equipment; and (4) general police equipment (for 
traffic enforcement, criminal investigation, police training, police records and 
identification, laboratories, etc.). 

2. All audio-surveillance equipment and devices (such as microphones, trans
mitters, listening devices, and recording devices of microminiature design, and 
components thereof) are on the ineligible commodity list and may not be AID 
financed. No waiver of this policy is permitted. (See A1.O. 1454.3-Borrower/ 
Grantee or Importer Procurement, Commodities, and Related Services: Adminis
tration of Requirements on Commodity Eligibility.) 

rAt.OnM. With respect to Brazil, have you found it necessary on 
occasion to turn down Brazilian requests for police equipment? 

ir. BRoww. No, sir; we have only a limited amount of funding, and 
they have been most receptive to our recommendations concerning the 
type of equipment that we felt that would be the most helpful for 
them. 

Mr. HOLT.They have not wanted more than you have been in position 
to give them? 

Mr. BRowN. They may have wanted more; yes, sir. But as I said.they 
have been very cooperative in realizing we only have limited funds. 

SPlOIAL aEOTROKIO EQUffMNT 

Mr. HOLT.In the lists of commodities which have been furnished 
there is a reference in fiscal year 1968 to special electronic equipment. 
Do you know what that included . 

Mr. BRowN. I did not follow you, sir. Where is the reference? 
Mr. -OLT. Specifically, it is in-are you familiar with this document, 

"Evaluation of the Public Safety Program USAID/Brazil?" 
Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. On page A-105, there is a commodit# proffle, for "Brazil 

Fiscal Year 1963, Special Electronic Equipment, Miscellaneous NEC 
Equipment," I do not know what that is; do you know what it is? 

M£r. BRowN. No, sir; but I could determine it for you if you wish.
II do not have that information. 

Mr. IHOT. If you could and supplf it for the record, it would be 
helpful. 

Mr. BRowN. Very well. 
(The information referred to'follows.:) 

The special electric equipment listed on line 10 of the "Oommodity Profile" 
sheet consisted of the following items: 

Test Equipment (Radio) : 
4 FM Signal Generators 
6 Volt Meters 
2 FM Deviation leters 
2 Audio Generators 
3 Portable Test Sets 
2 Tube Testers 
I Transistor Tester 
2 RF 'onitors 
3 Oscilloscopes

Megaphones total 39 provided.
Aternators40 amps-Several provided (for radio charges). 
Constant Voztage Transformers (to stabilize radio current supply) -2. 
PtbTo Afdress Systems-2. 
FieZd Type Teleplones--6. 
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Tape Recorders-2: 
Wollensak model 1600
 
Standard Commercial Model
 

Commoitt Profil.-The "Misc. NBI equipment" mentioned as the last item 
in the list of commodities provided by the Public Safety programin Y 1963 
condels miscellaneous items "not elsewhere classified" as defined und~r the 
A.LD. Commodity Code 890. This commodity code is designated for this purpose
for all A I.1) procurement The equipment that was ,provided at that time in 
this category consists of fingerprint comparators, photo developing equipment, 
police-type safety helmets, duplicating machines, vehicle traffic counters arid 
identification cameras. 

Mr. HOLT. Even if you have not furnished the kind of equipment 
we have been talking about, are you aware of Brgziian police capabili
ties in this field ? 

Mr. BRowN-. No, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. Have you or any of your staff ever seen any electronic 

equipment of this sort in Brazilian police or military installations? 
Mr. Bnowx. Well, when you say electronic what do you mean? , 
Ar. HOLT. Electronic, I mean, -iretapping devices, bugging devices, 

eavesdropping, surveillance, that sort of thing. 
AMr. Browx. I have not seen that type of equipment, and I haVe 

never had an adviser inform me of the use by the police of that type 
of equipment. 

Mr. HOLT.Yes. 
-Mr.Bjiowx. Certainly. we have never provided-ny.
Mr. HOLT. Have you ever discussed this type of police operation 

with Brazilian police forces? 
Mr. BRowN. No, sir. 
Mr. ion. Have you ever famished any polygraphs? 
'Nr. Bnows. We have not. 
M.Ar. HOLT. Or have you ever trained any Brazilian police or military

officers in the operations of polygraphs? 
Mr. Bnowx. No, sir. 

rRESEN\:T TN'f Lh SEOUIUTY SITUATION 

Mr. HOLT.Your project agreement with Brazil, or at least, some 
of your earlier project agreements have stated as the objectives of the 
program, among other things, to continue the development of the 
various police forces of Brazil and their capacity to maintain law and 
order and to provide more effective internal secuiity. 

How would you describe the internmal security- situation in Brazil 
at the present tine? 

M-r. BowN. They have a continuing problem with terrorists, bank 
robberies and other terrorist type activities. With regards to the 
general normal crimes, that we consider crimes, they have very good 
security, very good control, but they do have a continuing problem 
with Jinapings, bank robberies which are connected with the ter
rorist movement. This is a continuing problem, but I. would say, it 
has improved. 

Mr. HOLr. Since providing more effective internal security has been 
one of the obj ectives of the public safetj program, whait has been the, 
relationship of the public safety program to Brazilian. eftorte to deal 
'with the internal security problemv You just described, the terrorism-, 
the bank robbing, the kid~aping, et cetera 

69-37',-7i-3
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Mr. BROWN,. Well, the emforcement of all the laws is an everyday 
law enforcement responsibility. So our training, .our assistance, has 
been across the board, which has increasef heir capability-to,maintain 
security, -whatyou wduld call AnterrihI security. I cannot pip oint any 
certain things that we~have done -inthatcounection. I would say it is 
across-the board to increase their capabilities. 

Senator 'CaUnCH. Voul& you call that the major objective of the 
program? 

Mr. BRowN. To increase their capabilities to maintain law and order; 
yes, Sir., 
- Snator C-mtona. To maintain internal security. 

Mr. BROWN. Well, if it is to mailtain law and order and to protect 
life and property, and to enforce the law of the land, and that, of 
cOurse, Mr. Chairman, would be maintaining intrnal security-

Senator COnton. You -have testified that 3n the main where ordinary 
crime was concerned,,the Brazilian police have done a very affective job 
but that. the countryis plagued with activity, of, the terrorists who 
engage in kidnaping, bank robbery, rioting, I suspect, fronr time to 
time, but this is the principal internal problem in-Brazil, is that 
correet. 

Mir. BRowN Yes, sir. 
Senator Cnnscn. Well, if this activity in the main is to be differ

entiated from ordinary or normal crime, what is the distinction ?'Is it 
that this activity is related to the political, side of Brazilian life 
whereas normal crime -would not be? 

IMr. BROWN. Well, it is difficult to separate. For instance, it is as
sumed that some of the-bank robberies.are-connected with the terrorist 
movement, yet all of them cannot be. It is assumed that sone. of the 
bombings are terrorist activities, some of them may not be, but to 
prevent this type of occurrence, and to Maintain law and 'rder, this 
has been our work over the years. -

Senator Cmoio. By -terrorists as you used the term' you are re
ferrinmg, I take it, to Brazilians. who are undertaking acts against the 
Government, that is, they are rebels or xevolutionuaries. There are other 
terms-that might more acotirately describe their motivation than the 
ternterrorists, are-there not-? Are you-referring to people of this kind? 

Ar. BRowN. Well, I, was referring actually to people .who do that 
type of thing.

Senator Cirnon. They are revoluntionaries, are they not? Is not 
that the objectiv? 

Mr. BRowN. Yds. Whether it is a case of embarrassing the Govern
ment or to- I 

Senator CauRon, To.harass, the Government. 
Mr. BRowN . Right.
SgnatorRuRcH. And so their activ~iy in that sense is political, is 

it not? 
Mr. BRowN. It could~be .termed 

-

that way; yes,,sir. 
Senator Crxoxr. And our purpose in providirp this trainingpro

gram for the police is to equip them better to deal with this. lnd of 
disruptive political activity, is that true? 

Mr. BuowN. No. Our objective is to, improve their capability to 
maintain law and order and to-protect life and property, and,to enr 
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force the law of Brazil, which is across the board and that is a part, 
of course. 

Senator CuRIr. Yes. That is principally what we mean when we 
use the term internal security, is it not? 

Mr. BRowN. Well, I prefer as a civil police officer, to say civil law 
enforcement but the words "internal security" naturally are.used. It is 
an internal matter. But in my position, and as an adviser in policm 
work, we would refer to it as law and order, protecting life and 
property. For example, the police protect property from the bombs, 
and piotect the lives of the people. 

Mr. HOLT. Mr. Brown-
Senator CHRcmn May I just ask one more question? 
Mr. HOLT. I am sorry. 
Senator CH-uRcH. Just one more question in this regard. 
If there were no internal security problems in Brazil having to do 

with terrorists and their activities against the Government, do you 
think -thatwe would have established a public safety program of this 
kind in that country? 

Mr. BROwNr. Well, at The time the program was established in 1959 
to my knowledge, they did not have this situation. This bas been a 
development starting in 1966 or 1967, along about that time. Our 
program was designed to increase their capabilities, as I mentioned 
in regular law enforcement and it was not initially nor specifically 
designed to assist the police in dealing with terrorist problems. But this 
is indeed a part of it. 

Senator Crncn. Yes. All right. 

-i=E or U.s. ADVICE GIVEN 

Mir. HOLT. Could you elaborate a little bit more on how your advice 
to Brazilian police, which you say goes across the board, operates? 
Have they ever come to you or any of your advisers requesting advice 
on what to do about this terrorist problem or bank robberies or 
kidnapings? 

ALL. Bowt. Oh, very definitely, that is discussed on a day-to-day 
basis with our counterparts. If they seek advice and assistance having 
to-do with kidnaping, and certainly we were involved at the time our 
own Ambassador was kidnaped, they were seeking guidance and any 
advice that they could receive. 

Mr.HOLT. What advice have you given them on this problem 
Mr. Bnowx. Here again, it goes across the board. We do not have 

any capsule that we could give them that would deal with ]dnaping, 
but police communications plays-an important role in preventing this 
type of thing, police mobility is a very important element, and surveil
lance training and all of the various things that go along with good 
every day law enforcement work, help cope with the problem. The 
protection of the dignitaries is a part of the Federal police responsibil
ity, and we have worked with them in the proper deployment of people; 
the use of escort cars and this type of thing. 

BANN ROBBERY PROBLEM 

Mr. HOLT. What about bank security in the prevention of bank 
robberies? 
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Afr. HOLT. It is Internal Defense Operations Center. 
Mr. BowN. It is not part of our program, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. You have no knowledge of it 2 
Mr. Bnowx. No, sir. 

ADVISERS' LANOAGE CAPABILITY 

Mr. HoLT. Just as a matter of interest, there are now four publid 
safety advisers left in Brazil; are there not? 

Mfr.Bowx. . Yefuesir. 
r.-OT. is their 

Mr. B owN . Three of them have excellentR , and the one adviser is 
program analyst who does not deal with the counterpaits. 

REACTIONT OFBRA ILAWS TO FEDEFkL POLICf 

Mr. -OLTT. -WThat has been the reaction of the Brazilian States to the 
establishment of the Federal police and the National Police Academy? 

Mlr. BRowx. What hasbeen their reaction? 
Mr. I-TOLT. Reaction. Do they think this is a good idea or a poor idea? 

Do they welcome it or resist it? 
Mr. BROWS. Well, the Federal police, being a new organization, has 

had problems in gaining the confidence of the police agencies through
out the country. They have been, I suppose, suspicious that the Feds 
were going to take over perhaps but they are overcoming this rapidly 
through thi-r public relations work, through their efforts to assist the 
various State police agencies and indeed, through the establishment of 
the National Police Academy. Although the officials in the various 
States were not overly enthusiastic about the idea of training at the 
Federal Police Academy, they have since become very receptive to the 
idea, and in most cases are very enthusiastic about it,The academy cer
tainly can be considered as one of the best in South America, and it 
enables a larger number of men to receive training. As they receive 
training and return to their states it creates a hetter relationship be
tween the Federal police and the State police agencies in addition 
to improving the capability of that individual to carry _on training 
in his own State. 

Mr. HoT. Is one of the functions of the AID public safety advisers 
who remain in Brazil to foster this relationship ? 

Mr. BRowN. -Yes, sir. 

fUTU'R 'nrUBLIO
SArETY ASSISTANCE, 

Mr. H LT. Is it contemplated that AID will continue to make local 
currency available to the National Police Academy or to other police 
institutions in Brazil -affei, the public safety advisers are with

drawn? 
Mr. BRoww. I believe I amnot qualified to answer that, sir. 
Mr. RoLT. What about equipment. is that contemplated to aontinue? 
Ur. Biow-. It isnot contemplated no, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. It is not contemplated. 
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USE 1F AID E UWMPENT N CONTROLLING RIOTS
 

Senator Church asked you a few minutes ago ab6ut -the &tent to 
which AID equipment might have been used by Brazilian police 
and military to control riots and that sort of thing, and I believe you 
said that it had not been, to the best of your knowledge; is that 
correct? 

Mr. BRowN. I cannot recall, I cannot remember, sir, what I said, but 
would you repeat it? Are you-making it in the form of a uestion? 

Mr. Hour. Yes. To wlt extent has,AID. equipmentbeen used by 
Brazilian police or he military to control riots or -tooccupy universi
ties or ot herpurposes like that . 

Mr. B~owN. Communications equipment has been used extensively,
dnd this is, 'has been, an important factor in their improving their 
capability to better control crowds. The vehicles that have been fur
nished, the increased mobility, has been helpful to them. 

Senator CHuRcH. May I ask if the public generally is aware of the 
aid, the equipment, the instruction, that we have been giving the 
Brazilian police?.. 

Mr. BRowN. I think they are generally,. informed; yes, sir, Mr. 
Chairman. We have over the years used thp AID -handclasp and we 
have had some publicity on it. 

Senatpr C=. In other words, there has been an attempt on bur 
part to publicize this insofar as we were able? I 

Mr. BROWNt. I would not say that we have attempted to publicize, " 
but certainly there has not been any secret and, as -I said, we have used 
thehandelasp. 

Senator Canon. 'The handclasp js intended to publicize the fact? 
Mr. BRowx. Yes, thatis right. 
Senator Gaumo. That the equipment bearing that particular sym

bol has been furnished by the United States as part of the AID pro
gram; is that not conzect? 

Mr. BRowN. Yes. 
Senator COHcUH.. You say this eqdlprent has been used' extensivelyIin riot control; youl.ust testified to that. 
Mr. BRoxW. Yes; I said the telecommunications equipment, and the 

vehicles. 
UGE OF RIOT EQUIPMENT 

Senator Gnr i. That makes relevant a quotation that I have been 
furnished. This comes from the New York Times, on April 6, 1971, 
havng to do with -the comment of a Brazilian politician on the 1968 
police occupation of the Uiversity of Brasilja. H&is quoted as 
'havingsaid: I 

'Those kids are'never going to forget that the police whorused clubs on some
 
of them were wearing equipment that still had USA-stenciled on it
 

Mr. BRowN, I recall that inbaldent, Mr. Chairrian; and it was no
iAID equipment. 

Senator CnuRoH. Well, 'was it equipment that had USA' steniled 
on it? 

Mr. BRowN. I did not see it but I heard that there was such an item. 
Senator CHURcH. Where did that equipment come from? 
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Mr. BROWN. I am not aware, sir..I know that it was not AID public 
safety equipment or AID equipment.

Senator CHUmcH. It is possible that it was equipment supplied
through our military assistance program? 

Mr. BROWN. I am not aware, sir, of what it was. 
Senator COruROH. Was it equipment supplied by the United States? 

Areyou aware of that? 
Mr. BROWN. I am not aware of that, no, sir. 
Senator C m. You simply do not know anything about that.Did 

you make any inquiry? 
Mr. BRowN. Yes; we made inquiry, and determined that it was not 

AID public safety equipment. I recall that it did 'have USA on it. 
Whether it was something that someone had obtained. in some way 
or whether it was provided, I amnot sure. 

Senator Cauxon. When you found out that it 'had not been fur
nished through your program, did you carry your inquiry any further? 

Mr. BRowN. No, sir. 
Senator CEOncRo. Or do you know whether your inquiry was carried 

any further by the Embassy?
Mr. BROWN. I believe it was pursued, yes, sir,by the Mlissi on. 
Senator C-RCH. I think we should ask the Ambassador about that 

matter. 
(The following information was supplied subsequently:) 

Subject equipment were olive-drab canvas pouches for carrying gas masks; 
they bad U.S., stencilled In large black letters on the pouch; below the emblem 
was an insignia believed to be of the U.S Army Chemical Corps and in smaller 
size stencilled lettering a capital "U" and the words "Army Service Gas Mask." 

US A.ID.Public Safety was informed bk the acting commander of the Wilitary 
Police Battalion that the mnsks were loaned to the military police by the 
Brazilian Army. 

Vollowing the incident,US A-TD.Public Safety advisors discussed the subject 
with Secretary of Public Safety for the Federal District and he made the decision 
to have all of the U.S. markings on these pouches painted over with black paint.
He later issued orders to 'the ilitary Police Commander to make certain that 
all equipment on loan from the Brazilian Army be checked and U S. markings 
painted over. 

T'OURIGN BROADCAST IN TERCEPTS BY POLICEl 

Mr. HOLT.This evaluation report to which I referredl earlier con
tains a reference by the director of Federal police telecommumica
tions to foreign broadcast intercepts, n activity that he supervises
from his office in Brasilia.-Since your advisers have worked with Fed
eral police telecommunications, can you tell us Pnything about this 
foreign broadcast intercept activity which they carry on? 

Mr. BROWN. No, sir; it was not a part of our telecommunications ad 
visors' work. 

Mr. HoLr. You do not know anything aboutit? 
Mr. BRoWN. No sir. 

CEIE STATISTICS 

Mr. HoLT. Are there any crime statistics for Brazil that would make 
it possible to compare the general crime situation today with what it 
was 5 years azo? 

Mr. BRow. No, sir; this is one ofthe areas that we are encouraging 
them to develop through their identification bureau. They have not 
maintained that type of record. 
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_O~er t Jr1 . . + .. ' + 1; " "f
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Ar. 1MtroNWX Orim. [$ am;convanced.,they haw iimprted.tha'cme
 
pictme. There are less crimes, aside from the rnor "A'I'nt'",es .jt
,, -. , t, -. . . ., ,,%haveruptedduringthelasIfeF years., 


1~S~at~rGBEIOH'Y~imean;. aaeo hei~erron. 7 .. t l.,
'S 
Mr. BROWN. Yes, sir. : a,, g..
 

, ~bf~t(LT.Would you flee sAi- by yqUrs ]f n e
t steet at.
 
inWashington or nv Rio v, d.+rowNr.Itwonldfeelswfer iu~i.> . "- ,. ,.. 

Senator CnRocE. If that is the case then how is it that we arg §0.well qualified to instructthe Brazilins ona equ.te pql'c protJtifi
 
I 
method ., " " % . 

Mr. BnowN, I amn sorry, sir, I did not kuitemeusnaat eu ion. 
I Senator -Onmn. If-you feel safer _Walking in the Itreets of Rio 
than in Washington, th6 Capital of this count ry, how, is it that'ivdare 
so speially qualified t instruct the Brazilians on pr6per ple,methods, ' 	 , . " -

Mr. ]3nowN. I would not say that my statement hadto do--yng 
to do-wi, the-quality jpf our law enforcement orthe qualificat os 
h~ft our '.aw enforcementrsonnel have. I think it is just the' fats 

.'Seatrt * ;,Well, isit no tfact of file, 'Mr.Brown, that ti4 
-Iost sensitive of al'elatioshipsthatnxist beween a.government and 

'igovarnedf'Ihto,do with the police,,the internal secuirty, the main
knance byth gdveriznent 6f that you would call ]iiw aOnd order,?' Is 
tht-,notiprpbmbly the-eost. sensitive kond of all, be twqe e goverligovern-il-~m~ft 5,dtheig 
41 /W,'Bow. YesI*6Wds6,yso.

'e'atb5 C(ftq,. Tt6 s6 ajoo.s-that not-irlly th6 heart pf
soverregty when it comes W tha umblical cord conne ng gover
ment with theipe.ople',gvered4. I-cannob feature anything thai ismor 
intimately connected in an organized socieby betweeni the government'ahnt'l	ipeoplet hh,rtfisoirticuflar-rltion~hp~cana t .- .. r t: 

1waBOli gr1-PTee. ~-

Senator b.CntcHgWell, that beinX.tha cae, wtatdf4the ]Brgzihas
•weup 'hereinstru~ting~us in pohce tehniques, suppyin.ous wFA 
equipment, and demonstrating to us what we ho'uld do to, maintain 
proper order within ou.,owncountr-y -wouldyou. ap,provp ofthat.astan 
American? • -,

Mr. BRowN. Yes, I would-ppov.e._IJtwould not be i4 prerogative 
to
.-'See ntor- *dfr."Ybuouldithikiti.would be, proper'business of 

Mr. BRowN. If the Brazilian Government felt they vould, do.that,
.prbvde 4,dvsory'sevitea.aad ,nbhamoditieg asd "we, Tn:turnAesitedthat"andrqqiitdt;,y s- -': ' " '* ...,: S3'' ,a 
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Senator4 nbn. A&ndyon, as, ai, 'Amerikan,tizen, ,wauld.approve 
ofitbis palntieulart-id of prQgam in the Uited.,States, financed-n 
cofidiuted&)hBraziliansi? You would-2 -,

Mr. BRomr I would approve, yes,_s 4f there was that need...I 
would hope that we would not have that heed. We have expertise 
here in this country that I am confident-can and will continue to 
maintain law and order in this country. But if the case would be that 
te& Eiorh1Thih of Brazil fia& he resdiirces 'and ,were\vmifing and 
any,naltiettar' Sate ot oir (ovevnmene deemedor,decided-Mtatahe 
neededit, I-fbldi6tobje6U ' - '."-.. 'tI .r-- I' ,-7'' -. I ; 

Senator Cnmicn. As a freyoiiue'of, tcfreetnd,4ror ,hink'dbat 
#b'c76u'ld 'b ehsfytpersuad ltbht-a foreign, g&ernmentv.Wasmeededto rovid u.s .ith,,5_nstm ctidn ia~th'&jmpeniaent stndugendta direo-r 

M.'.Browx. Well, I beieve, sir. that you will find an exeiagef. 
luni for-z I &eMnti~dttW'g'_'t e roan.r olas a:,',; ,va ere - I ,SenatortGHmdnnot t ub~t, an eha-ngb ,ot idet,s. '' l~hn 
am tal about the kindt otf ,i lonvncedand- operated .b"gsng progran ,Brazilians in tlfis-toit~r-y that we 4lave Jden fnaicing- and operatig 

Mr. th t is hai tn aunmegt bu that is ,njit% different om
 
ai, &cbange6of deas, is i fl that, t Brazilian-


Mr. Bxow-. I believe I answeredlat;ThM.hairfin. Lhoe idi&
 
MSenator cnr.AAnlighLe' -far ,:t 2. -a 

Mr. HRox. What do you see as the ohpaative advantages -nd 
disgantages-under, which, the poice openta eim.the .Unitd tateg 

M r. Btows. I think equipment wise prim6.pily.,It think our vpolce. 
wr nuchbettwz'equippedaid, secondly, much better paid. ,-

OWfrnpdb STTR Nqr oiositaios AN'Bzhh1~nrrA
1&nmtor nqxcf m Are there ay advantages tththeBraziliana 

police have in peorpming, thir,d uiesrtnI1rour- police-.onYot-,aveA, 
tion,. BoWN with,ae-anorea -far nore -se~ous- msthey @se: confronted&belieye- that oupolice hae srios ,roletat itiuatio@ tha,,are, 

the izilian police. i " ., 7 I -. ! 
_,rSenator Omnca. What do.'yoe mean byrOtro._proke-ms andtiare 
on.ruontibymraserio situations ., ',,. r, .' f" ; ,
Mr. BRowN. I tink thnt onea day/to'-dibasis 'oli poiioce-,ar con?: 

43onted with more.ceimes, witlhmoe dmeut9prob'kgasy n .ba.e
ysear in-trafnic, in, hame controlc rne&Apt tfaliy,bhc Brazilians _re 
avyceaefic-people and idonot I;ju do td--rinVin,obse, a-; 
tion, believe the p6lice have as serious a problem as we have here ,int 

realing with thepeopln.,-n:.j b o ,; th .-_ew .",a qT' ",,m. 
,senaior C'fWech aWhyave they in -needhe catis ,deiorateinstructional and trainirigprogram?.. J ii',.. -, 

M[r. Brotxw. WtI.1, as T xaientioned ea~ie 4n. jny itqstinxon,: Mr. 
hairrnan, thle police ,of-Brazil have come a ]opng'.way jnthepast 1O 

years in changing from a military concept of x.rh at ayU._e .cvpoicee

cont~pt,'or ,a concept df ervice-to-tlie ,people;Jand-rined .mnnn 
u!se d,force. l th' k that 'this.is-the- ar a- hat A e ,hhve be~i- able to 
bring abouV :a phange, mMtd n ,addition.;tO,tt-at'w~tly eqiprneht as_ 
said before. We have had and have now commumoatio-ns equipment 
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that is second to none in the world, and by introducing, demonstrat
ing the value of communications, I think it has been most helpful to 
them. But they are approaching right now very fast a full capability 
indeed to train their own people. 

PUBLIC AMlTUDES TOWIARD POVo 

Senator Cauon. Do you know anything about public attitudes in 
Brazil? For example, do you know whether or not the police in Brazil 
have been traditionally well thought of by Brazilian people? 

Mr. BRowNw. I think generally; yes, sir. 
Senator Cncm. They have had a reputation for integrity and 

honesty, the people have a high regard for them and the courts, the 
general law enforcement system that has traditionally existed in that 
country?

Mir. BRowN. I am not certain they have always been thought of 
in that way but I do know that the image of the police has improved 
in recent years, and that generally they are respected. 

Senator C cm. What do you base that opinion on? 
MT. BRowN. My own observations having been in the country for 

3 years, and to observe the operation of the police, to observe the atti
tude of the people toward the police. 

Senator Cnio. Do you have any objective evidence apart from 
your own subjective judgment on that question? 

Mr. BRowN. Well, I can use one example, Mr. Chairman. Not too 
long ago they introduced the idea of public relations, of developing 
films, both the Federal police and some of the State levels particu
larly in Guanabara, public relations type films, to bring about im
proved relations, to improve the image of the police, to gain the 
confidence-of the people. 

Senator CnRno. If the reputation is generally good what is the 
need, for public relations programs of films and other public relations 
methods to improve, as you say, improve the image?

Mr. BRowN. I think the contribution that we have made, Mr. 
Chafrman, over the past 10 years has been helpful in bringing this 
very thing about. 

Senator Cnuno. Well, do you think these new programs that you
referred to are needed for the purpose of improving the image of 
the-police? You said that is their purpose. 

Mr. BRow. That is not the sole purpose of the program, of course, 
sir, but it has been a part of it. It has been an integral part of the 
program,'and I believe that this has been most helpful in developing 
this. 

Senator CUROiH. Youmean, of our program? 
Mr. BnowN. Yes; our program has been designed in part to 

accomplish that. 
Senator Cnuron. In part to improve the image of the-police? 
Mr. BiowN. Yes, sir. To assist the Government of Brazil, or the 

police there, to do this. 
Senator Cnrcn. Then, we must have felt there was a need for im

proving the image of the police or we are wasting our money and our 
time organizing programs that are designed for that purpose. 
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Mr. BRowN. Well, I think in any police organization there is a 
constant need to improve their image, and I -believe that this not 
necessarily just to improve their inae as it is to gain the confidence 
and the support of people, because without the support of the people
the police cannot cope with these problems on their own. 

Senator Cnmon. Well, do you think they lacked the confidence 
and the support of their people so that these programs had, there
fore, been necessary? 

Mr. Bnow. Not entirely, but rbeieve this type of program is most 
helpful to them, and that they are increasing their efforts in this 
direction. 

Senator Cnoi. All right,Mr. Holt. 
Senator Pell wanted to ask a question. 

tV0S Or TORTURE 

Senator PELL. I, just -hada very brief question or two and I was 
interested in this problem. One of the problems, the dangers, is in 
interrogation and I have been as interested as any because of the 
increased violation of rights of prisoners. I see signs of this starting 
to happen in Brazil and I was wondering about the reason. Is it a 
correct statement to say that without the use of physical torture, 
do you find that the same information can be derived as is obtained hy" 
physical means? In other -words, from the,viewpoint of efficiency is 
torture necessary for the securing of information ? 

Mr. BRow-N. Certainlynot. 
Senator PEL. Right. This-has been the experience in the Com

mnnist countries. Tey were very brutal-I used to be stationed 
there a number of years ago. They do not go in for it now and seem 
to achieve the same results. 

The thing that arouses me and arouses American public opinion 
a good deal, is this use of physical torture. Why is it the Brazilians, 
who are intelligent people, use torture-I am not saying with your
approval or support-but why do they use torture as a police method 
when it will alienate their friends and allies around the world? 

Mr. Brown. Well, first of all) I wish to state that I answered a 
questionpreviously to Senator Church that I am not personally aware 
of this torture. 

Senator PELL. Please be brief in your answer. Can't we accept
the premise that physical torture does occur on frequent occasions 
in Brazilian jails.

Mr. BRowN. Why certain people do things, that is a difficult ques
tion for me to answer, sir. 

Senator PLL. I realize that.' 
Mr. Bnowr. Why do some people beat their wives, these things

why do they occur, itis difficult forme to answer. 
Senator 'PEL. But would not a strong statement of condemnation 

from our Government and from your mission, have perhaps an in
hibiting effect on them? Certainly world public opinion has affected 
the Greek regime, you will agree to that. 

Mr. BRowN. I do not believe, Senator, I am quilified to answer 
that. 
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Senator PELL. But Irom, a police viewpoint, you would agree that 
psychological, nonphysical methods of interrogation can be jusb as 
af ective as the physical, as torture? 

Mr. BRowN. That is the only method that can be used. You cer
tainly cannot use torture methods. 

Senator PEL,. I realize wedo not but-
Mr. BRowx. The police in any free country cannot., 
Senator PELL. Should not. 
Mr. BRowN. Should not; that is right. 
Senator PELL. That is all, thank you very much. 
Mr. HoLT. T]ank you. 

OIVX. POLICE CONORPTS 

Mr. Brown, you mentioned that the pQlice in Brazil have come 
a long way in the last 10 years toward what I believe you referred to 
as a civilpolice concept. One of the recurring themes in this evaluation 
report is the desirability of instilling civil police concepts in Brazil, 
and could you elaborate a little bit on how -thathas been done, as you
said they have come a long way in 10 years, and how it might be 
continued in view of the fact that for the last 7 years anyway, the 
trend qeems to be, from the outside anyway, toward greater military 
control of the police. Is -therenot a contradiction here some Place? 

Mr. BROwN. I believe not, Mr. Holt. I am taildug of the image 
of the police, the overall operations of the police. They tend to be more 
civil, on the civil police side even within the short period of time that 
I wa there, in 1967. I think there is a gradual approach to a, more of 
a. civil police aspect.

The fact that militax police officers -are-pardonme, the fact that 
:military officers are as'signed to head the various organizations is 
really aside from that. This is u means of providing highly trained 
career officers to head the administrative part. But the actual train
ing has continued along civil police lines. 

Mr. Hor. Very well. 

POLICE ASSISTA-XCE FROM OThIE COU'STRFS -

What police assistance is Brazil receiving from countries other than 
the United States? 

Mr. BROWN. As far as I know, it has been very limited. There have 
been advisers from some of the countries on communications, and some 
of the police have been invited to Germany and, I believe, Japan for 
observation tours and that type of thing. But insofar as a mission such 
as our program they do not have any other one. 

M.r. HOT. Anything from Bngland?
Mr. Browx. Yes, there have been visits scheduled to England, the 

invitation for officers to attend courses there. 
Sr. HOLT. Could you supply for the record a more detailed state

ment on this question?
Mr. BRowN. Could I? 
Air, HOLT. Yes. 
Mr. BROWiN. Yes, sir. 
(The information referred to follows:) 
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Foreign. countrieshat thaie proidod -training&rautsr tott'Ohs _pohqe or
ganizations include Argentina, Chile, England, France, Wes GermaL, Gr6ece, 
Italy, and Panama. .- ,1> 

The Inspector General of the Military Police reports that for the ?eriod1967
1970 sixty-six officers have received this tiaining in fielddIV intelligence, counter
insurgency, police dog training, fire prevention contoland in,general police pro
cedures "ohirtyflhree ol thiszgroup £f-Thlhtary Police officerb receivedlintelligence 

1training inFrance. ' , , - A 
* Participatihk State and Federal luilitary Police organizations include those 
of tpe Federal ,District, the States 9L Ggias, Guanabara, Minas-Gerais, Verlnam
b u&o Parana, Rio G'rande do Sul Sao Paulo. : I " I , 
-i -agomplete inf0rmatioi og the Inspe tor General prevints the'provision i f 
n or details at the'>resenttflowever, they report lC.iowledge of other ,tate 
Military Police ohicers wlib have received training but -qcords are-not available. 

The Federal Police Department reports a totAl of twenty-twa6 officers who 
have received training by non-U S c6uintriesfronm 19gOO through1O0: Twency-one 
were trained in W'Vest Germany in. the fields of eriminalistics, intelhgence, VIP 

:4ecurus, toider 'and highway patrol, photography and, alien control. One was 
traineTin Enklandn the dxamination oequestioned-dpocuments. ' 

--Mr HoT. Thank jruo: .4 A 

AID'S '*ROLE A-N GAFZTVENrIGXWI I URTnl 

- ouwere inBrazil' I believe, ,at the -time,of the murder-of Captain
-Ohanler. 

Mr. Bnovx. Ye§, sir. 
•,'fi. Hour. Th.SaoPaulo. Wbat role, itaA , didIU ,publicsafetyplaymithe iyasbgition of the-murder.? - - 

."v; BRowN. Weli the rolg I presdme that we,would say'wbuid have 
to do with the 'trainingthat had been provide&cthe police over ,the 
years, 'ad''ordss -the board' As I nmntioned before, utiliiatibn of 
,equipmelnt,, n,(trailhig-teohniquestht'we provided. • 4 

lMr: *IJnT.For, thve record; et. us-b'ack ,up,amoment. Who 'was 
'Ci0qtin Ohaidler and waiit weie-tle-ifcumstances- of-h~ s -d ath:? 

Akr. HiowN. Well,I do,ngt have The 'I!u dettils here; sir--
Mi.10LT. To the hGest of your lnowledge , I 
'r.. BROIW (continuing). Bhl rhe wbs an AImy captaiiru I md'er

sband,, - ttnding tt ing tIt"the col ge in Sao- ulo, an ' lie was 
targeted b.terrorists and: executed ,as h6','backed out "of his.garag% 
'mowed'dbwii withmachine gun de. - _ I -

Mr. oL. "Iwstere an AID-public, safety adviser who worked 
with the Sao Paulot p6lie in -the investigation of Ehiat murder.
- {r. Yes, sir..,

,.Hf.IoLT. 'Wtat-role di~h l~, -- -, 

T-. Mir. IRowx. iHe was ,thepublic safety adviser assigufed to'oar staff 
and upon'orders'of Ambassador TaI, was assigned-to fh6 Embassy 
&n1 le'wrked withe te Embassy Deople and wyent to Sao Paulo 
iian 'attempt to obtain iformation as qmcldy' as ossible concerning 
reports,of the progress that -had beentmade: 'Ambassador Tuthill,was 
gr Ltly' ,Ocermedl;" Akerican'ieizem-vd ' enmurde ed, and he 
was anxious to get-the details as sqon as possibe adviser teported
'direed1y tofmthe mbassy during -that period of-time. andrwasi on-detail 
-tothem. Ii lvas Tobjpdrt~oftouloperatbn. .- '-

Mr. HoLT.How long was that pid 6ntim' - . ''" " 
Mr. Bnow-. About 3 months. 
Ar. HoL. About 3 months. 
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Was anybody ever charged in connection with that murder? 
Mr. BRowN. Yes. 
Air. HOLT. Tried? 
Ar. BRow. Yes. 
Mr. HOLT. Convicted? 
Mr. BROWN. I am not .sure of the full details in that matter and 

I would prefer to provide you with the information, Mr. Holt,if you 
would,allow it. 

Mr. IOLT. If you could, we would like it for the record. And include 
in it, if you would, a statement of whether or not any suspects or any
body who had been interrogated in connection with the murder were 
themselves later murdered. 

(The information referred to follows:) 
On Odtober 12, 1968, Captain Charles Rodney Chandler, United States Army, 

was machine gunned to death in the driveway of his home before the eyes of his 
nine year old son and his wife in Sao Paulo, Brazil. 

On or about November 6, 1968, U.s. Ambassador John Wills Tuthill ordered 
the USAfD M5ission Director to have the Chief Public Safety Officer assign his 
deputy to the Chandler case as his (Ambassador's) representative. The Deputy
Chief Public Safety Officer (DOPSO) was detached from, his regular duties and 
assigned as the Ambassador's representative to work with the police charged
with the-investigation to report on police progress, obtain and study investigative 
reports and advise the police where necessary to insure that a complete profes
sional investigation was made and keep the Ambassador informed. 

The DOPSO proceeded to the City of Sac Paulo and after consulting with the 
U.S. Consul General met with the Brazilian Secretary of Public Safety for the 
State of Sao Paulo. Alter explaining his mission he was promised full coopera
tion The DOPSO then travelled to Brasilia, where in the company of the U.S,
Embassy's principal officer in Brasilia, he met with the Director General of the 
Federal Police. The Director General also promised full cooperation in their 
investigation into the Chandler case. 

The DOPSO returned to the City of Sao Paulo and 'thereafter maintained 
daily contact with the State and Federal Police agencies responsible for the 
Chandler investigation, reviewed police reports and offered advice to the police
in addition to reporting daily police progress to the U.S. Embassy The DOPSO 
remained in this assignment until February 8, 1969 when he was transferred to 
Washington on a rotation assignment,

As a result of the police investigation, eight persons were identified as prin
cipally involved in.Chandler's murder. They provided the following information: 

1. Carlos Marighella-previous communist party deputy, author of the "Mini
manual for -the Urban Guerrilla ;" referred to as the "intellectual author" of 
Chandler's murder ;-killed'in gunfight resisting arrest on November'1969. 

2. Marcos Antonio Braz de CarvalhoA--identified as one of Ohandler!s murder
ers.-killed. in police gunfight resisting arrest in Sanuary 1969. 

3. Diogenbs Jose Garvalho de Ollveira-confessed murderer of Chandler
arrested March 1969. Exchanged for Japanese Consul, March ,9.0.

4. Pedro Lobo de Oliveira-driver of' nurderer's vehicle-arrested January
'19G9. Exchanged ,for German Amnbassador, June 1WO. Returned to Brazil and 
killed by Brazilian authoritiesdin 'January 1971 while -resisting arrest

A5 Dulce De Sohza--confessed involvement in planning and surveillance of 
Chandler-arrested 3anuary 1969'and exchanged for Germ=n Ambassador, Sune 
1970.. - I 

6. Onof-re Pinto--started "Revolutionary Tribunal" mentioned in pamphlets left 
at scene of Chandler murder-arrested March 1909 and exchanged for U.S. Am
bassador,' September 1069. 

7. Joao 'Carlos -Efouri Quartim de Moraes--member of "Revolutionary Tr
bunaF'-fled'country, believed to be in France. 

8. Lacislau Dowbar-member of "Revolutionary 'ribunal"--arrested.and ex
changed for German Ambassador, June 1970. 
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OPERATIONS BAKNPEIINTES AWD BIRDOAGE 

Mr. HOLT. What is Operation Bandeirantes? 
Mr. BROWN. I have heard that expression and it slips m, mid right 

at the moment what it is. 
Mr. Hors. Could you supply a statement for the record on that in

cluding the relationship, if any, between Operation Bandeirantes and 
AID public safety ? 

Mr. BROWN. Yes, sir. 
(The information, referred to follows:) 

OperuqYo Baideirmbtes was established in Silo Paulo in mid-1969 as a pilot 
project to-coordinate military and pohce efforts to combat terrorist activities. The 
various secuity agencies represented in OperaotioBandeirantes include repre
sentatives of the local Army, Air Force and Navy intelligence sections and of the 
local state and federal police organizations. The coordinator is the Army intelli
gence representative in'Sao Paulo. 

The formation of the OB was in-response to the intense level of terrorist activi
ties during 1968 and early 1069, including bombings of military installations and 
robberies, The then commander of the S1o Paulo based Second Army felt that 
this situation required better coordination among the various intelligence and 
police agencies concerned with subversion. 

During late 1069 and 1970 the OB concept was extended in the form of Centros 
do Opreacocs cie Defesa Inten.a (OODI-Internal Defense Operation Centers) to 
other major Brazilian cities. The CODI centers are under the coordination of 
the local Army intelligence representative. 

In practice the operation of the Sdo Paulo based O and the more recent CODI 
centers varies from area to area. In Sdo P~ulo and Rio de fneiro'tba organiza
tions maintain what, in effect, are their own staffs capable of conducting autono
mous anti-subversive investigations. Elsewhere the centers are frequently limited 
coordination offices where information and' plans are periodically exchanged 
among the various sepaxate investigative agencies. Prinary responsibility among 
the various OB and CODI-member agencies for staffing and cbnducting investiga
tions also tend to vary from area to area. 

The Public Safety program had no relationship to this Brazilian activity. 

Mr.HoLT. What was Operation Birdcage ? 
Mr. BRowN. It certainly was not any part of the public safety pro

gram,:sir. It is Ibreign to me. 

BDAZflXANS MOWE TwnrS'lE IN Ul.S. TRAINING OR rQUiPMENT? 

Mr. HoLT. Is it your impression that. Brazilians, Brazilian police, 
are more interested in U.S. training or U.S. equipment? 

AMr. BRowN. They are more interested in U.S. training. 
Mr.IIHoTT. They are? 
Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. oht do you base that impression on? ' 
Mr. BRowN. I base iton their eagerness to participate in the training 

programs both in Brazil and in the United Statps, they are dedicated 
.officers, and'lhey -havearrealdesire to improve their capabilities. 

Mr. HOLT. You are talking now -about those .who personally want 
to be trained in the United States. 

Air. BRowN, I believe that is what your-the way you phrased the 
question, I am not sure. Certainly, they are interested in equipment. 
I believe your question being which.are theymost interested' in? 

Air. ROLT. Yes. 
ir. BiowN. 1*oud say rai~ing: 

Mr. HOLT. Yousaidtraining and.thenyou refsrre o_theeagerness 
that individual officers have to be trained th,.heUnited.Stat0.. 'was. 
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referring to t h6'atlitV sin~genera6f the.Brazilian-p olice commanders 
with whom you would work and come in.contact, Would they be more 
interested in sending X n{tnber of their policemen to th&'United 
'States for ttrih'ihg r"-ou]d theyh-a more intdrested in gettfg"addi
tional jeeps or patrol cazs or radios or that kind of'thin," 
L'MT.. Bxbt,%& Welt-'it is !iiy judgmbefit, 15%-IP~t; they are interested n both: -Ceft~iuly, they are interested' in (equipment,"but ,they are 

equally interested in the training, and during my adminietratiofi -it 
was never put up 'to them that Way, ', hih would youn rather have" 2 
So, I cannot really, it is diffibult for nt to answer the question. I can 

lonly sy that-,they reintrested iiboth. 
~t~ir. rThCan you distinguish betwdentheir interest in trainina, in 

Tia'ted-2if States.,and their Nterest i training in Brazil? Are ley 
-more eager to c6mteoiter,nitedStates, " 
. Mr. Bnowm. As individuals, yes, sir. But as, insofar as the admin
-istratiQr: T conderned the Federal police, they ar&more interestec in 
$6veoping tle4': ownfacilites. 

ItESTRAINTS rT02 ON FoLIL 

r.1o= What political'or judicial resraint, if 'any,,dothe Bra
zilian police work underi - 1 -1" 
j.tMr. 33uoww. What, Uf any-,- I 

TMr. 'f-onv: Political-or judicial restraits. 
M1vf. Bii6w-x. T'v0ould' ndt say that they work under any particular 

Ipo~ltical ,estraint or- judicial restraint. They perform their duties,
.,nsof&r:a". inow,'and< carry but their -assigned tasks without undue 
restraint that I know of..... '. 1 11 

Air.. Hor. So, in effect, they are an unrestrained force within the 
country. 

Mr. BRowx. I would not say th . 
r.M%.Font. Then;'4ht are'theresttaints thatare Yputupon them4.
 

ATT. BROWN. Well, they operate withinthe h,&.Thec onl,-enforce
 
the law of the land. 

Mr. HaLT. Who makestlaW? 
Mr. BRowN. The Government, the people. 
Senator CrmnoH. W at do the people have t6bdo witli themakidng of 

the law in Brazil?, 
Mr. Bxow. Sir?" 
Senator Carenm . What do the people have,'to do with making of 

the law in Brazil nowadays? , 
-r. 3ROWN. Wel,; ,lhve-
SenatprP Cn-mcH. Ha-,vetiey electedhtlieGovermeat ..... 
Mr.3noww. Yes sir;they legislate ws. '' ,%' ,'R, 

Seiator CEf*ok. It is,your opiniofr hat 
-

the pv.ole, f-Brazil Have 
.eletedd the preselt Gornment - - -' , '.. -, " t .;' 

"Ir. Bzqwx 1t is notas it has' &n'perfhi.a but tifelws that the 
*Qhc0-are efiocing ar'e fminly.thbs6 tbat; ,}hv;i Indde,UVr -aong
periodyei~61 

Ur.lloc. WLpuld you describe ThiA~utibnal AW'b.. :.s, oii ,of the 
r
al.sffeqfi p, in j j'vio %'stb imeT 

I 
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Mk..-oL'. A~Ikwhaft wdsthe origin of Instihutiofiul Act Nd. 5,? 1 
Ifr.-BRowg. It was -a decreB esLablished by ,th&Government, the 

President. 
d1r.-HorT.'B't 

Mr. BowN. Yes,-sfr. _ 
M "iePresideat?' 

I 

Senator-CH-oFcdn Was the Presidentcl~os n,bytheeopiel 
Mnfr.Bzow ANt-by voteno, sir. b .Senator CnO Ho-.'o" •,," 

-Mr. HoLT.. For-the benefit of' the -ecord, couldyou summarize soffie
-of the more important provisiofis of Institutional. Act No. 5? --

MMir. Bxow.•The most importantone is 'that which affected our owa 
bperations, 'ha4 'to do witlh the reoro-anization 'of th4 military polic;
and the placing, -better- coordinated'traininof actiVities and 3u- mnY 
ways improved the operations of the-State policelor the military'police 
which .arethe State police. Aside from that insofar as our program is 
concerned, the police wdrk is concerned, it was not a great hiference. 
Tie police have carried on their fmctions as they have in theBast 

Mr.-HoLT. Did it affe t'he right ofhabeas corpus'?
Mr. BRowN. Yes, sir, that has to do with the courts. I an saying so 

far as the police work per se. Habeas corpus had -todo Wth the courts. 
Mr. Hox'r. It would also be a renioval of a judicial f6straiAt u'on 

the police, would it not? I -I 
Mr. BRowN-. Well, the police are only empowered to effect an, arrest 

for a crime committed or attempted in their presence, or .for a crime 
they know has been committed and they feel the persou has-committed, 
that part of it insofar as it pertains to the police work. But the courts, 
we do not work with the courts and I am not in very good position {o 
answer that.' I - I . -" -

DEATH SQUADS 

Senator'auRoamb.Mr Brown, you are in position to tell us-about the 
death squads in Brazil, are you.not? Do you know about them? 

Mr. BRowi . I aavehearffalout'them, sir. .I 
",Senator OnucH. Wht hatve you heard about them4

Mr. BRowNi. I have read,numerous articles in the papers in Brazil, 
and I haves-ead ourown official v.epn', I , 

S.enator Crn~o-n. What are-these-death squads, 'based upon what 
you-haveread, and. what you know,.engaged in doing in Brazil ? 

Mr. BRoww. Well, it f alleg&d that they are.% roup of"rrestonsible 
police that has 'taken -thelaw intoitheir 'own hands, so to, speak,, and 
felt that 'it was tleir duty to, take direct action and not 'bother about 
recourseto the courts, 

Senator CuMucH Yo. mea. by that, they.simply novce in an& seize 
Brazilian citizens and deal with them in whatever w y they choos%,is 
that wha~they,are- iion? .. •' 4, '. 

MYr. Bown. I am not saying that-they'd.o am say i fwas allo eit, 
-that I -have..neadofthes.things. -1. or not..theynhactua1, 4oh 

sernator QaIuxon. fl Lt,itis~omrmon tttjk in lBrazil ;is -itlot ,
-Mr. Bnowx. Ye s14 Vtrq has 1; -iin per i '-j/on

-thelsubjeck, • * I' •t' ;'j- - j . 
t:enar I o maen heA.Bitsazian.,L.pnmrne renm~~oiis-b tboye!ivtl: 

63-3T3---7i----4 

http:Senator'auRoamb.Mr
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Mr. BROWN. There have been investigations made and are being
made. The federal police have been directed to make investigations in 
these matters and they are continuing to pursue this. 

Senator Cunc. Does the activity continue according to common 
talk, I mean as of now, is this activity still going on? 

Mr. BROWN. At the time i left, we were not reading as much about 
it, and it did decline in number of these instances.. I might add, sir in 
discussions with the police they have-maintained that many of the in
cidents that were blamed on the policehad to do with different factions 
warring among themselves and leaving -this cross which indicated 
it would be the death squad. So all of the reports that we saw in the 
papers that might be claimed were police they maintain.-it was other 
factions, gang warfare like we one time had in Chicago.

Senator CHmROH. Go ahead, Mr. Holt. 

TEXT OF INSTITUTIONAL-AOT NO. 5 

Mr. HOLT. I would like to go backto Institutional Act No. 5 for a 
moment. Was another of its provisions the abolition of Congress, the 
suspension of Congress? 

Mr. Bnow-. Yes. 
Mr. HoLT. Could you supply, I suppose it more appropriately comes 

from Mr. Dean, a copy of the text of Institutional Act No. 5 for the 
committee? 

Mr. DEAN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. Which I think it would be well, Mr. Chairman, to put in 

the record. 
Senator CHUcrH. Yes, indeed, it will be placed in an appropriate

place in the record. 
(The document referred to follows:) 

Article 1. The Constitution of January 1967 and the State Constitutions, with 
the changes contained in thisact, remaindn force. 

Article 2. The President of the Republic may decree recess of the National 
Congress, the state assemblies and the municipal chambers through complemen
tary edicts whether or not a state of siege is in force. Tley will ie called into 
session again-only by the"2resident of the Republic.

Paragraph 1. Until the Congress begins operating ,again, theexecutive jpdwer 
may legislate on all matters set forth in the constitutions or laws of the 
municipalities.

Paragraph 2., During the recess, Senators, Deputies and Councilmen will re
ceive only their basic salaries. 

Paragraph 3. In case of the recess of -municipal chambers, the financiat and 
budgetary inspection of municipalities which do not have auditing agencies
(Tribunais de Coatas) will be exercised by the auditing agelicy ot the respective
state. Its action will extend to auditing functions and to the judgment of ac
counts of administrators and other persons responsible for public properties and 
valuables. 

Article 3. The President of the Republic in the national interest may decree 
intervention in the states and municipalities without the limitations set forth 
inthe constitution. 

Sole Paragraph. The. interventors in the states and municipalities wilt be 
appointed by the President of. the,Republic and will exercise all functions and 
duties which are the respective responsibility of the, Governors or Mayors and 
will enjoy all privileges, salaries and benefits fixed by law. 

Article 4. In the interest of preserving the revolution, the 'President of the 
Republic after consultation with the National Security Council and withbut'the 
limitations established in the constitution will be-able to suspend the political
rights of any citizen for ten years, and to cassate federal, state or municipal
elective mandates. 
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Sole Paragraph. Federal, state and municipal legislative members whose man
dates are cassated will not be replaced and the parliamentary quorum will be 
adjusted in accord ,with,the number of places effectively filled. 

Article 5. The suspension of political rights 'based on this act will simul
taneously: (1) terminate the right of special hearing for certain privileged 
officials (Foro Privilegeado) ; (2) suspend the right to vote and to be a candi
date in labor union elections; (3) prohibit activity or manifestation of a 
political nature; (4) apply when necessary the following security measures: (a) 
freedom under surveillance; (b) prohibition against visiting certain places, 
(c) designation of place of residence. 

Paragraph 1. The Act which determines the suspension of political rights 
may establish restrictions or prohibitions related to the exercise of any other 
public or private rights. 

Paragraph,2. The security measures dealt with in item 4 of this article will be 
applied by the Minister of Justice and excluded from review by the judicial 
authority.

Article G. The following constitutional or legal quarantees are suspended 
(a) life tenure, (b) fixed place of employment, (c) job tenure, plus the exercise 
of functions for fixed periods. 

Paragraph, 1. The President' of the Republic may by decree dismiss, remove, 
retire, or place on call any holders of the guarantees referred to in this article 
as well as employees of autonomous entities, of public enterprises or of mixed 
public and private organizations, and he may dismiss or transfer to the reserve, 
or retire, members of the armed forces or the military police. He may also 
guarantee, when appropriate, the salaries and other advantages which are due 
them according to their time in service. 

Paragraph 2. The provision of this article and its first paragraph applies 
also in states, municipalities, the federal district and the terrorities. 

Article 7. The President of the Republic in any of the cases set forth in the 
Constitution may decree or extend a state of siege and fix the period it will be 
in force. 

Sole Paragraph. In case the national congress is recessed, the requirement of 
paragraph 1, Article 1-3 of the Constitution is dispensed with. 

Article 8. The President of the Republic, afer investigation, may decree con
fiscation of property of any persons who gave illegally enriched themselves 
while exercising public office including autonomous entities, public enterprises 
or mixed public and private organizations without waiving any- penal sanctions 
which may also be applicable. 

Sole Paragraph. If the properties are proven to be legitimately acquired, they 
will be returned. 

Article 9. The President of the Republic may issue complementary edicts for 
the execution of this institutional act as well as adopt, if necessary for the 
defense of the revolution, the measures established in items (d) and (e) of 
paragraph 2 of Article 152 of the .Constitution. 

Article 10, The guarantee of habeas corpus is suspended in eases of political 
crimes against the national security, the social and economic order and the 
consumer economy. 

Article 11. All activities carried out in accordance with this act, its comple
mentary acts and its respective effects are excluded from judicial review. 

Article 12, The present institutional act goeq into effect on this date and 
all provisions to the contrary are hereby revoked. Brasilia, December 13, 1969 
Signed by the President of the Republic and all Mfinisters of State. 

Articles 1i2 and 153 of the Brazilian Constitution hre as follows: 

CUTAPTER V-THE STATE OF SIEGE 

Article 152. The president of the republic may decree a state of siege in case 
of: 

L Serious disturbance of order or threat of the outbreak of such dis
turbance; 

II. War. 
Paragraph1. The decree of a 'state of siege shall specify the regions it is to 

cover, shall name the persons responsible for its execution, and shall indicate the 
standards that are to be observed. 
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=" 'Parao,:*jpr2 .Astateofusiege authorkzesith6 follovingeer ive.fiIeagutes: 
a 'Obligatibu'toresitlet'W~Cert~iflplaCe,; - , i - . f-,, w4 

b. Detention n 'buildihgs, nob intend~tl,,fotperions, iohiweted' of ,c6mmon 
~i e; -F~x!il ' 1.*- 11 ,1 I ., T --- j . 1.V*p 

Z2.e: JSearch-of ahd arrestin thebome; -.. ,IE"" 

-t.., d. Snspdnsion 'of freedbm of assemlIY and :of as~ociaton ;
'e: -@ensure of corre§jondenec, iprinting, :telecommurfidation%, and public 

',:drusements,;. I . : ' 
* 	 '.', f: Use-of temporaryoccupationof property of'an autonomous,ehity, public 

enterprise, mixed-capital company, or holder ,of a coneessidn for public
ri', serviees, ,as well as suspension ;of-' the , exekcise of- apost, Tunction,- or 

1, employment'insuch-an entity. I 
Paragraph S. In order to preserve the integrity and th& hidepndente of the 

eountry, thbefre'gfnnctiting' of'.the'powers, abdth6 6peration-of the-institutions, 
whenthese' ar6e seriously threatened, by elements 3fisubFersiohrcorruption; the 
-president of the republic, having heard the National Security Council, marfthke 
Wthermeasures provided'for by law. 

Article 1638. Except in the event of'war, the ,duration of-a-state of siege shall 
not exceed sixty days, but it maybe extended for an eqiiartetod' " - ' I 

-, Pardgrapft1:'I-any,case, the president of th iepublic shall-submit Ws act to 
the:iNatonal Cdtgresg, accompalied, by a justificAtion, ,withinftriedIys: i. : 

'Paragrapk2: If -the'National 'Congress-is nt'iunsessWn, itslalbeconvoked 
,zinediately bkthepcsident ofthe federal Senate " -i - 

,-M'.Xr. HO , I]ustha&ve-iouple of more.questionstq be surethe record 
is.clear on- , a couple of pints. ~" , 4i'T 

,LJAT1Nw_ OF BRAZI Nh&&RIID)POROES TO POtl Te 

Ini terms of contT e6hnd dfrectlon, is there any real distinctiom wtich 

can 	be ,nade at -this'timwbetween the Brazilian armed forces and the 
Brazilinniapolice3 -I . -


IZrBxi'o Y'N. iDistincbioA V
 
-- r. [HoT., Yes. nc*lon
 

- Mr. Bzowa. -Yes, sir; :the police areadirected by thea Ministry of 
Justice,, and do not come under the same directioii as-the military. 

Mr. HoLT. Whb directs the Miiister ofjiisiee." ta.-

-Mr. Low4-N. T- jrects him? , , . 
Mr.Horm: Ye§ " ' '- - * - ,* 

Mr. BRoV.4 ThePresidWn ofth. count y1 " .
 

Mr.RoT.. Andwhoishei 
 -

,,1..cowV,T ulxesiden±fMedici. . I 9 
-	

* 
Air. HoLT. And what was he before he became President of tthe 

country. . ..... 
- .1tnr oIv. I-6hvasmilitary.. - . 7. 0'. 

Mr.i Hol-m. 'Let .me Put-it another- -way.-Do. you, have .any-example 
from your experience'moBrazil in ,whih leopolice have done anything 
whidih was inconsistent with the general policy of the armed forces? 

-Ar.BRvow.: ,Pardonme, would you repeat that, which was contrary 
to what? 

Mr. HOLT. The general'polioy of-thearmedfbrces. 
Mr. B Opw Tdo noL know of.any suchpartieular incident, no, ir, 

any 	case where they have done anything contrary to, it. 
• oTX.HOLT, 'Mhav I am trying,to get at is where the,ultimate confrol 

o0 Brazijian society lies at this poit i time, aYd of agneies 'of the 
Brazilian Government. .- 14 .-

X rM B~oww., LWQ!l, fromnmy ownxknowledge,it.stems-fromthe Presi
•d~ent d6hsh;tr6uglbthte,Ministries ,througlite .wrions.]ieadsr:f agen



qiegvIvht woodrJein:ny :ase4hroughLthe Mfiniser of Justice mdoam,7 
oFederal,1olice. j, 

l:fr- .or1 Wuld: yousayf.his -is generalt exeroispd, byl. 'rned. 

,{tuBfqiwv-NNdt4d 1ny1noledge.. It ist ough,, xe..Iiniter t , 
-Ju~ticez ., fhrif 1t!.i I ' 

mr. oLT. It is not. You want to leave.the record then to show that', 
the Minister of Justiceatd-the police in, rtszibogeratdpend.epty 
-ofthe armed forces? 

Mr. BRowi . to find-Something I have here.My -Itake,oneinomeni 
The decree reorganizes the Justice Ministry and charges them with ,e t ilbishin. .edera1 olioy._kn-ong' tlk 3duties, of the Ministr~yoP ffis

tic&idsrthe one' organizig' ,and maintfmnig the ilederwl poice i, 
order to, troughiout he ationltdritory carS bot rthe iserdc5 4o 
maritime aerial and border police; repress the traffic of '.aarc6ffcs;, 
smuggling,and, ilegal 'deVAtionof imported goods;' learup' pnal 
illegalities against the national security, the political, social, andqdoral 
•6rder Or 'whjch aflects ilsetS, ,Servides in the-iritcrest lo the, ITion; 
prevent and clearup penal 'T .ctions whibh cusess r dletus~ioir in'niorehan'iond start% 'thms re iurng cgntrahizedfdmion-'ed.h1an
dling, and execute the service of censorslIn and public interst t' 
activities. '. 

ts-'-"oihd re Zi4t rsp'onsi'bihts, as ~m~aat,6f the Iffistry of Justice 
and, asIsaid, it includes the police. ,K " , '2 ' " 

Mr. HOLT. And he carries out threse esponsihiitier-indelid tly
of theanned forces2?Mr.Bnowx. Inso:far~asAI kniow s':* ~
 

Mfr. 11tTl'"A11 ht. ' .
 

NO '.S. TRA-ED, POLTCEflENl"d44NI-ETED W1T~th DrATH SQUADS 

r.Ohe'ilastiquestion' torte 'ske.ofkelaric'ing the Precofd. Isthidre-iiy 
evidence,. dd fou.-Eave' any,evdenee, that amy Brazilian who h as beenA 
trainedthrough AIID.publicjsafety as a Brailiai policeman has been' 
cbnmcted -iy".vay .'with torture 'or with'death squads2" 

- £r33O .o;~iV o tdfly'knowseuge. , ", - ,' ,:, 
'3 Bl.i~r. Thatisrall I lhave,M-r. Chairman. : .r:,,, ,: 

"ifILAfARY, CONTROMhED 'GOVERNMENTt . ' 

/Senator,Gmmon: Well, l£r.~-Brown,-yoa have testified,that in-Brazil 
today the authority comes from the top.down'and', of cours%,t.isgen-r 
erally,tnownthat -the rauthority at the-top is miitary inchgracterj. 
this,is a,inilitgry governtont isit-not, in BrazilP"By-noddng -your, 
headyouaid,yes. , r - -, --- r 

jVi~r. Bnoyjyr. rTes, sir. . - .- I . 
S$enator "QuxoH. _.e there ,any problems peculiar t 'operating 

a.publicsaety,,program imta-country, under military control . 
*Mr. BRoww.: We rave not -experienced pi'oblems, Mr., Chairman,. 

The ivorir has ibeen,,,as: T,have mientoned- earlier; at the eivil ipoic-g 
le~vwel.,.The ,rofesiqab~poliee-remav in-the,xanks. The heads.,th'ab, 
are appointed, tlhechange ua.dminiiistration .beingr,ilitary. peoplu 
inthI.rnosti oases K uomre~onthe adripnistative side. Itmthe liaison. 
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with the Governmentour work has'been atthe levelof the civil police,
and I have not had difficulty. The Director General of the Federal 
police, even though he is a regular military officef, has been most 
anxious that we work with and assist inimproving the capabilities
of the Federal police to do these things that I have tried to outline. 

Senator CHUmH. Now, that is a job that could go on and on, could 
itnot? 

Air. BRowN. Well, it could but our program is 

TERMNATION Or PUBLIC SAEETr PROGRAM 

Senator 'COnm . You could not,envision a time when this kind 
of instruction and the provision of instructional equipment and that 
kind of thing would no, longer be needed by the Brazilian police, 
could you? 

Mr. BRowr. Oh, on the contrary, yes; I think they are nearing that 
point now. 

Senator Cmncn. Are you in agreement that the program should 
be terminated by the end ofTfiscal year 1972? . 
1Mr. BRowN. The program is indedd scheduled to be terminated 

then. 
Senator Catnon. And you feel that it should be. 
Mr. BROWN. I feel, that the police, yes, are ready to,pick up the 

task that we have had. 
Senator COnRon. Carry on without us? 
Mr. BROWN. Yes, sir. 
Senator Caounn. Ithink lhavenofurther.questions. 
Mr.HOLT. There was one I overlooked, if I may, 3\r. Chairman. 

SELECTION OF AOADBEY PARTICIPANTS 

Mr. Brown, in the, statemeit you gave us earlier, you emphasized 
that in recent years-the public safety program in 'Brazil has concen
trated on the Federal police. I have here a dopy of-the program-of the 
graduation ceremony of the most recent class at the Inernational 
Police Academy here in Washington. In this class there were 16 Bra
zilian students but only.,one came from the Federal police. Why
would that be if we are concentrating upon the Federal police?

Mr. BRowN. Well, since the inception of the program we have 
worked throughout the various states, and selected qualified officers 
to attend training, And although we terminated the program in the 
15 states and the Federal District, we have continued to send selected' 
officers from those states. This is a .sbpaxate thing from our project 
agreement in 'woting with the Fedral police. Our'entire thrust now 
is working with the Federal police, but the selejctioi of-participants
has been and continues to be nationwide, the teason-beifig that this 
ties-in with the overall program-because the'in§ructors at the acdemy 
are not all Federal police personnel. They utilizethe services of former graduates in some cases or of key offcers from te different states,an~lthig brings about more cooperation. It is not-ibst a staff of Fed era 
policeofficerswho are eac int:They are dleete&-fom vaoous states. 
Therefore, trainig here in, at, the academy is helpfu. Those officers 
go bacirand assih in the training in their state, yes, 'but they also 
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6n occasion are invited to attend in the training as instructors at the 
Federal Police Academy.

Mr. HoLT. Is it contemplated that Brazilians will continue to be 
trained at the International Police Academy here after the termina
tion of the public safety program in Brazil? 

MKr. BRowN. I -amnot qualified to answer that, sir. 
Mr. HoLT.OKthank you very much. 
Sehator nuRo. Mr. Brown, thank you for your testimony. We 

kept you onmearly all morning and it has been a long session for you,
and we appreciate your answers to our questions very much. 

Ir. BROWN. Thank you, sir. 
Senator Cmn a. I think we will go over until 2 o'clock this 

afternoon. 
(Whereupon, at 12:25 p.m., the hearing was recessed, to reconvene 

at 2 p.m., this day.) 
ATERNOON SESSION 

Present: Senators Church, Sparkman, Pell, Spong, and Aiken. 
Senator Onmcr. The meeting will come to order. General Beatty, 

we are pleased to welcome you this afternoon. I would invite you to 
proceed with your statement. 

SWEARIWNG I OF WITNESS 

First of all, I will ask you to stand and be sworn, if you will, please.
Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 

truth, so help you God. 
General BEATTY. I do. 
Senator Cnucor. The record will show at this afternoon's hearing

the same people are in attendance who have identified themselves 
this morning. -

General, if you would like to proceed with your statement. 

TESTIMONY OF MTAI_ .-GEN. GEORGE S. BEATTY, CHAIRMAN 
U.S. DELEGATION, JOINT BRAZIL-UNITED STATES MILITARY 
CO1IfSSION 

General BnATT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

UTITflED STAflIS-BRAZLXAN MflATAXY IELATIONSEI 

It is a pleasure and privilege for mne to be here to discuss the mili
tary relationship between Brazil and the 'United States. The history
of Brazil-United States military relationships dates from 1922, when 
a U.8. naval mission was sent to Brazil at the request of the Brazilian 
Government. Army and Air Force missions were requested and sent 
during the 1930's. During World War II the Joint Brazilian-United 
States Military Commission (JBUSMC)was established by agree
ment between the two countries for the purpose of closely coordinating 
common military interests and activities. U.S. representation in the 
Commission -was composed of the personnel of the Army, Navy, and 
Air Force training missions already inBrazil. 

During World War II, United States use of Brazilian air bases,
air routes,,and coastal ports and facilities;. and provisions of the'20,000
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tao'.0;00-mnu BkIazilia&,Army .EpetionDary Force and, the Air 
Force group that served in Italy; and the cooperatte Navyrpatrofl 
actiWities, a] Ie South Atlantic .ware ,aII greatlyfa ilitated by .elose 
cocliboratoh bet'weenA,h-United States;and-Brazlian- dtoegio to 
the Commission. As the result,of iyartme.aud- os-*ar;colIaboi'ati-4,, 
U.S. concepts of hetispheori 4defense were adopted ps he.asi s foi 
common 	defense planning, and standadiXzatiqn o4, equ~pment. , 

fI.195_;, the Vnited-States proppsed airlexclin& ,ots,64,an 

agercy in Brazl, for military -collaboration between1the,1,o qopn7 
tries and would 'permit its registry with the. United Ntions' as7 an 

in. Sept '955,Witbflittieilal magiley; The notestvere exchanged rlr 
and thereafter the U.S. Joint Chiefs of Staff (JOS)aid the Armed, 
Forces G@enerol Stalff of Brazil. (EM)FA) announced a cobrdinate& 
and jointly approved "statement of the comnp6sition, objectives and 
functions of the Commission" that has .since served as its te"eris-of 
reference. 

A mihtary assistanc areement was' concladed with Brazikin. -1952. 
At iThlifaiy 'axsiscan:ie-adisoryigx5ap (jAAG)'dffered-by'the iied 
States wts r.fismd- by the' Braziia r authorities .who: preferec that, 
these funetions be performed by the JIBUSM.,Acordingy;the. De
partrnent of Defense approved the JCS recommendation that the 
provisions of the military.assistance, agreement be carried out for the
titgd states by the U.S.delegation, JBUSMG. AMl matters of mili
thr depperatfioh, inldffng .the-Iiiitary' dssi'sta~ci ,ft~oreign iiifi
tar-y sales; excepts attaedh6 matters, 1have .smic ttheh been" -under th]e 
direction of the chief of the 12.S. delegation, JBUS'MO, who under 
the. guidanuce of the chief of the dfiplomatic 'mission,is -resp ilsible 

h cnniie 9i h~ •~'~~US othrr Command 
(-fJWG'htSOjftothe JOS ±or UJS. 'military eoperatite activitiesin, 
Brazil. Although the U.S. delegation, JBTJSMO, is sometimn'stref erre~di 
to in U.S. atdmini~trai ve publifc£t ions as IVLKALG, ,Bhtzfl, ,and was 
amqe. recently desdeated by U.S,. commander in chief, Southern Corn
nmand 4s t.S. MVilitary Group B3raz-il, .tfre urli]i"n adnthori i om7 

as enclosure 1. 	 ~6r.Pl~nart'nt 
The JBUSMC is headed by a Brazilian four-star genera! and as an 

international entity is, or~ganizagionily,,-unaer 'the,President of The 
flepublic. The head of JBUSM[C also heads the Brazilian delegation 
which is sffbordinat 'to EAL-FA' and is composed'of general and flag 

two countries are attached 	 (See page 56:),r"4'' 

ad~ybams. , . _y U.S c:. 	 ' . o~cers tnd teabniqal aqlvi~ors from, each .oft~he armed services. The 
l]iad'.o6f %t qjoit ,con~nisio a~iAJ -hiefe of thpT5.S. delegatiion
§Ii'at."bffi& sab& in <ix B~az'hLifK '6%Sment 'ti, 11.o.,r'e 

,9 	 - , ,,,.. i -k*
Tail coipmisson eU.nodlnc frqeAi formaIorenmeet

tigs; Uweyr cgopratiop hAcdhafibn'w It-isioai e S. 
f,aruedn4q Bazrcen ienbesm and 1r el i-tS . but on 

tw hnorgaieia attchdiutes.a rl 1.yvailabe, adeeptive
The JiBUSl is had Br4raziind o genealoag 6ndaninkta fubr-es fr 


ittir of-]jbna ndas, eririteiyirt,-co o
enteest o 	 bri'beied the 

ea ulitge 'nnhead of BMzian lsohereasangmgto froumyoung
staff odficers to'stehon-auhy romeade carmedt Thethand sesters. 



53
 
- - SESENT -1!.&. [LTMflflrmh Sir ATONX Ti. BIIAZTL. :6 $*4 

.J.5. ,,mlitaryreplesentation' b, Brazil, at en timl consistsp -n 
.of J3TUSMC,.aepresentttion f)om I h@ Inter7Aneican Geodetiq 5wrT
veythe Navy Communications .TectnicJ Group RIio,; p1entiaMe 

no theDefenseK ResebhhkOffice Latin Anerica, 4nd- aliaison -detach
ment from thie Military Aiilift Ciomnknd.s J""US ' iscoi psad of 
a small headntuarters group which includes a liaison officer to the Bra
zilian Ngational' War-Oollegeiand Army,.Kavy, tand.41r Force sections 
of approximately equal size. A- list of the members of JBU$MC, and 
thdr' duty assigithents 'i -attqh6d at 'ehtldshr6 S' (.sae 'page,. 82.)
.Thj mision of JIBTSMO has evolved hsough the ybal{'Ahd i cu' 
'rently- described by 'the JOS 'apprdved terms ' t6of xefer nde WA
 
COWOSO regulation, copies df -wkcdh are httachefat enclosures 3 and
 
4. (Seecpages 83 and 84.) Brieflt iated,'the missi6h of the U.S: delegi
tion to JBUS_£rCis to assis, apit of the 'TJ:S. c6tryteaq in Brazil,
 
hrf 'achieving U.S. policy objectives. iAs''w.as itated earlier, the clair
'man and' hekdqnarters sta "of the U.S. deegation, J-BUSMVIO,"al-e
 
"do-16cated witi the Brazilian delegation in a 3razilian Government
 
building in Rio de JanMTo. Th4,-Army, hivy and Air Fbrce sectioh§
'of JBUSMC are physically located" in theifr resp'ective, Brazilian 
ministry buildings. 

Tfhis rovides daily contact with Brazilian c6nmIterpamts-at all lavelk 
from action. officer to'Cabinet minister. The atmosphere, has been and 
ts today one of friidlycooperation 

-
and mutual, respect in dealing

-with whatever mattdrsanay arxise. 
The Inter-American Geodetic Survey is a small U.S. group sta

tioned in Brazil to provide support in'tle brodudtion of geographic,
ctaiographic, and geophysical information, and topographic lfltps on 
nBailv The group Werks in,collaboration with a nunber of Brakilian 

civilian and military organizations.,. I 
, It is contemplated, that this.ulfit will ebntinue its' woOk with ,the 

ifour militafy-and six civinh'spa&e eurxently-authorized. I 
-TheNavy Cominiations T-chnical Group Rio-is an activity of tle 

-I:S. fNaval Commiuiication§-'Command 6peratig- 'a'a dii'jsioh of 
the 'Brazilian naVaf iadib stionl'Rio :de Jateiro. This anstallatioA 
)rovides essential "comi cAiatioApto -. S. Nvy ships trdnsithr,t16 
South Atlantic arohn&Capa H rn andi t]e.'Oape ok Good Hope. Y1iiT 
support bannot be provided floni j othercui'reitly pkistihg'facilit . 
'The mission of th; -Naval 'ronun~ation§"Techni ai Goup'hiMo'isto provide technical training and opqdrafionat assiblince to, theB-']fa
zihaff,avy ffl'odei' o rnake .prs'iblte t commnrflcation~al asistauc 
of the7Braziiaa, nial cbmmnrncatln sy4stbm to tlYd I.&.Nawyotlldr
It.S. ao~erinet a&Mne kta he Br&ziianfi'T, w between Rilo-kffd 
. Viasn~onh T.O.-The U.S. e~sonndi conmis t-of h'~ r- -

Th&De~en~e R adr, ieh tin 'Ambica wasi.gnitd.n 'Z~e 4"4 4ta'bhshed i- 4-l62
d1o0DJanDre ai' was constitfifed'of my and It orce dU enth 

until May l9T0 wheA fte 'hdr rlorMe gasd to particijate. The lPr's'erit 
?staff is~onecxviliam anti ore ]ocally hired ,secretary.The mission 6f thi 
offlcpvis to servig aia Agn~aetjioint ffSSuC d1 at!}Armn scentist-
r~esearch age~e4s 'ftt r@ilvhg~ahi &"cahiai. gresearch .rop0os'sl
Ymenb'toR'IT.R ms rr or n ~tisai6 ns'f tllegUejAd Scatdkf 


.ilbo'teeutmg
grants for romoiAg rsearc I rogosalsregeied_s 6"1 t sein P6~1 -cisd 
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provide defense representation as appropriate at scientific meetings 
which are related to the B. &D. program. 

The Military Airlift Command liaisoil detachment consists of one 
officer and one enlisted man- who facilitate the arrival, maintenance; 
loading, and dispatch of military aircraft transiting Rio de Janeiro. 
It is expected that a detachment of this type will be required as long 
as MAC flights are scheduled through Rio, -

TRAINING PRI$ARY FORM OF YRIIIRENT ]Al' 

The military assistance program iniBrazil has'evolved through-the 
-years as indicated on enclosure 5 (see page 8) from- a fairly large 
program of training only. Numbers of personnel trainedandcprincipal 
courses ,provided since 1964 are shown at enclosure 6. (See page 85.) 
-Therehas been no grant material aid programed since fiscal year 1968. 
The current military assistance program consists of $906,000 and the 
fiscal year 1972 program is proposed to be $892,000. Since training 
is.our primary form of assistance at this time, it wou d be well to un
derstand .the manner in which persons trained are selected and ap
proved for training. Competition within the Brazilian Armed Forces 
for U.S. training is intense, and the high qualifications of -the Bra
zilian military students are reflected in the academic achievements re
ported by U.S. training facilities. United States and Brazili/n repre
sentatives fully discuss the desires and needs of the host service for 
the priority areasin which jtkP'training might be-utilized. 

Appropriate qualifications as indicated by the U.S. schools involved 
are used by the host service in the selection of the individual. The final 
selection is made on the basis of best qualified and includes English 
language proficiency, previous academic grades, and professional ca
pability. All selections are given final approval by the minister of 
the service concerned. 

For courses of less than 6 months, the candidate is required to pass 
an English language test as a condition for selection. F6r courses in 
excess of 6 months, the candidate. undergoes intensive language ,in
struction pro.vidediby the Brazilian military services and must be able 
to reach a high level of competence prior to selection. U:S. advisers 
obtain and provide orientation material for the trainees as to U.S. 
norms and customs. Student orientation is accomplished also by the 
U.S. training facility, which is provided LAP funds for the purpose 
of group visits to appropriate areas of interest, for example, visits to 
Congress, a -university,et cetera. 

RIecords are maintained on trainees for a 8-year follow-on period. 
These records indicate the utilization of the training or schoolig pro
vided the trainee. In addition, U.S. advisers during visits to educa
tional, or training facilities keep in edntact with former trainees not 
only to view the utilization -madeby the host Government but to get 
,their reactions to the-courses and their exposure to the U.S. w, yof 
life. To the extent feasible, U.S. trainees'are brought into U.S. s'ocial 
gatherings-and receptions'in Brazil-to maintain their interest and-ori
entation. 

The technical training helps io provide technicians with advanced 
training in skills and at levels fo which Brazil- does not, yet .have 
training facilities, or in specialties for,which training-facilites would 
be uneconomical.rrofessional training ,provides upciftingof teaching 
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techniques and curriculum for armed forces professional schools and 
keeps services abreast of modern management and operational 
concepts. 

Orientation visits provide a unique opportunity to acquaint selected 
groups of current and future leaders with U.S. culture, technology, 
and government. To-the staff and command schools, these visits mean 
knowledge of the United States at a formulative time of the officers' 
development. To the high-level civilians and military of the War 
College, orientation visits furnish a broad insight of the UnitedStates 
at a time when the national and international interests of their country 
are under discussion and review. 

The magnitude, extent, and costs of the U.S. defense effort are 
brought dramatically to their attention during visits-to defense instal
lations. Theit recognition of this magnitude has been very influential 
in persuading the Brazilians that the U.S. strategic capabilities enable 
them to keep their military equipment procurement primarily limited 
to their needs for internal security and-defense of contiguous maritime 
communications. 

Given the scholastic atmosphere under which this training is con
ducted and these visits are made and the ensuing discussions, debates, 
and comparisons which follow on their return to Brazil, it is probable 
that the participant's U.S. experience will increase his understanding 
and friendship towaxd the United States in carrying out military and 
civic responsibilities. I mention-civic responsibilities since the Brazilian 
Armed Forces have had an important and traditional role not only 
in civic action projects of a socioeconomic nature but also in technical 
and managerial positions in Government-run entities. For a number 
of years running through several Brazilian administrations, there 
have been approximately 1,000 positions in the Government at Federal, 
regional, State, and local levels occupied by military men on a 
detached, reserve, or retired status. It seems likely that this situation 
will continue for the foreseeable future. 

U.S. training and orientation visits provided by the military assist
ance program bring the officers into contact with a broad cross section 
of U.S. areas of development. In addition, therefore, to enhancing
the officer's personal, professional, or technical abilities, his knowledge 
and friendship for the United States could serve alsb as a stimulant 
to his aspirations for shilar Brazilian development in areas of his 
particular interest-and competence. 

BRAZIL'S INTERNATIO-1TAL FEACESEErING EFFOrTS 

As the only South American ally during World War I and the only 
South American country to provide substantial forces to the Allied 
cause in World War I, Brazil has consistently alined herself defen
sively with the United States. Brazil responded promptly in the 
Dominican Republic situation, and was one of two South American 
countries to provide substantial forces. Active participation in the 
U.N. peacekeeping missions in Suez and the Congo have also demon
-strated Brazilian Armed Forces' interest in and acceptance of Brazil's 
international responsibilities. Of all the countries in the hemisphere, 
Brazil has been the most consistent contributor to international peace
-keepingefforts and is equipped and motivated to continue these efforts. 
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ARMEDfFORCES r.S. ORI NT D 

Brazil's Arrmed Forces have been largely U.S. oriented since World
YT.rar I. This orientation is the result of close professional collabora
tion between United States and Brazilian Armed Forces over the 
years. Brazil has adopted U.S. military doctrine, tactics, and tech
niques and has, until recently. almost exclusively sought U.S. equip
ment and logistic support. U.S. Armed Forces' advisers have main
tained strictly apolitical attitudes and have been closely associated 
vith the host military at all levels of Brazilian Armedc Forces' pro

fessional training and education. 
It is generally believed that the Brazilian Armed Forces will con

tiare to be a major influence in the formulation of Brazil's national 
policies for some years to come. In the light of Brazil's continuing 
imporbtceto U.S. objectives, it is considered to be in the best interests 
of the United States that U.S. friendship and cooperation with the 
Brazilian Armed Forces is maintained. 

The U.S. defense agencies in Brazil operate as integral parts of the 
U.S. country team and are considered to be contributing effectively to 
the achievement of U.S. policy objectives in that country. 

This completes my presentabion, sir. If you have any questions I 
will attempt to answer them. 

Senator Cnrxcn. General, I am going to ask Mr. Holt to commence 
the questioning and then I will have some questions of my own. 

General B A . Sir. 
Mr. HOLT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I think the enclosures to the General's statement should be included 

in the record. 
Senator CaURoH. Yes, they will be included at the appropriate 

place. 
(The enclosures follow:) 

S.-	 [ENCLOSURE 1] 

U -mTm STATES-BRAZILiAN /MILITARY AuGMEEMEXTS' 

1. (5) Polhical/Military (1942). 
2. (S) -MilitaryAviation (1944).
8. 	 (,U) Naval Mission (1942) 56 STAT. 1462.
 

Extensions: (1046) 61 STAT. 2338 (1954) 5 UST 1594.
 
4. (U) Military Presence (1948) 62 STAT. 195t. 
5. (U) Joint Group on Emergency Supply Problems (1951) 2UST 1594. 
6. 	 (U) Military Assistance (1952) 4 UST 170-Amended: (I964) 15 UST 163; 

(197 18 UST 157. 
7. (U) Mapping (1952) 3UST488--Amended: (1965) 16 UST 1704.
 
S (U) JBUS Military and Defense Commissions (1955) 6UST 4103.
 

- 9. (U) Reproduction of Charts (1959). 
10. 	 (C) RadioDio Station (1962). 
11. 	 (C) Balbo/Reecife Circuit (1903). 

.Ny 27, 1942. 
POLITICAL 'MILITARY AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES Or REAzfIL AN) THE ENITED STATES op AMERICA 

[Deleted.] 

1 Sales agreemenfs, vessel and equipment loan and lease agreements and expired agree
ments arenot Included. 



MILITARY AVIATION AGREEMiNT BETWEEN BRAZIL AND THE
 
UNITED STATES
 

- JUNE 14, 1944. 
, [Doeeted1 ,

I V h'dtWW. tAMISSION 

AWQRh]h9Mf)NT DE±\W)1I tfE'flOVEIUNMENTS ' OFTHE TJN'ITED 'STATES 
F 'AMER1Gk iND rD NUINTED -STATES O BRAZTh "., 

" ", , "',""" ' '" ' . .. TAX 7; i9"42 

In conformlty with the reqiiest of the Ambassador of the United 'States6f 
Brazil in -Washington, D.CI, t'o' the- Secretary of State,' the' rxesldeh of t1le 
Ltnited"Stdes bf Anerih, by virtue of the authoity . ronfered -y etheaet of 
Congress (44 Stat. 565) of May 19, 1926, entitled -'An Act to Authorize the 
President to Detail Officers and Enlisted Men of the United States Army, Navy 
and Marine Corps to Assist the Got-rnments of the Latin-American Republics 
in Military and Naval Matters",as amended by the Act of May 14,1935 (49 Stat. 
218) to include the Commonwealth of the Philippine Islands, has authorized the 
nLppointment of officers, and.,enliste& men to constitute a Naval' -Mission to ,the 
United States-of Brazil under the ,conditions specified below 

-. PURPOSE AND DURATI)N ' _ 

Artce J.-The' purpose of this itssion is 'to cooperate with the Mlidster bf 
Marine of Brazil and with the Officers of the BraziliaAi Navy, with,,a tvv ,to 
hnhhningthe-efflbiency of the Brazilian Navy.- 

Sfrtib~e°2.-Zis {issibn ' hall continue-for a peribd of four yea sfrom, the date 
of the signing- of this -agi'e~ment 'by the accredited representatives ,of,the Gx;e'rn
pienr of BrantY and ot thb -tiltd States df America; unless' soo ,,ftmfinartod 
orextetnded'as hereinafter provided:Any member may be-detached by the ruited 
States Government after tle-exipiration of two ,yeais' service, in' whiWhease'an
other membervifl be furnished inreplacement." - - . 

Article --f the Government of Brazil should desire that the'servees.of the 
MisMi-6 be 6xtend~d-beyomii the u6riod-stipuldfed,,a proposal'totbhat effe'ct shall 
tenA&, -i tlngssir nths b fore the expirafionof'thi agreement ,

Ar'tcle 4--This agreeiieit 'mar be termbinated! prior to theexpiration of the
tieriod of fouri'years pre rilJd~iTh i&'tdle- 2, or pridr 'to ,The apbzateu of the 

extension authorized in Article 8, in the following manner:,
 
a
')--83r ef-er Govrnmfiit, subject tothree -months' notice in writing to the

othet Oovernment ' 

'tkb--yte Tec l of fheAAtire personnel' of the lfhssion by the-United,8tate
 
In 'the9mblizhiuteiesl df the United Stafes,; 'without compliance,'wvitlv (a) ' -

Ai hele 5 -This agreement is subject to cancellation -upon the initiative of
 

giil Ueitel Stales hi- ease either Government becomes invoxved
her n'ratil'o.h 

invdoue.stc 6r6reivnhostlihies: 

-'J CMPOSI~CON AD PERsofl-flx&- -- 

tvi~iicM.-42-This Iissiou-Ahalb consist -Ofia 'Chief of Mossiouiot--the,-rank Of 
iCdptaiinon aetie:sex~icedirthenlfnited States..Nanv-ansuch, other Unitedit~ tes 
-nihal'peisonnel.,as inav subse~quently, be. xequestadn by..the4 Mnnstmy of Marine 
-of'Brazil htbtghdtsabhoized, represeatattve in ,.ashgton-'nt agyes pon 

.rth .UabntWfhStates~avylepauitment " '. ' ~ 

-to;Brazil maysoiutinne,,tbei seviees'iraccordance-with the ermsiofthisave 
-nen 5./effee tivefron theAte-ol 'Which: itdis signedrib -tbhe' duly,,uthoried.,repee~ '-t~.
of ,tberGoveflnminfttoAatil,aaD.-~xe,,UMt~l'dStthp s,:]re
 
[of,s~chqIeTsoumilatea dy nncdit y hmtrazil .%i-te [nite ,tatea214T h~SZflss
 
-sha4 t;L~s~s er, icq undei thiLag~ee~nent -fo~halbpurposes',tbbth-enjoyi.e1mt',0_f
 

which or the exercise of which requires not less thariq- _g7'y',mh sei' ,tq th 
the Mission. 

http:the'servees.of
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TITLE lI 

DUTIE , RAXK AND PREOEDENOE 

Article 1.-The personnel of the Mission shall perform such duties as may be 
agreed upon between the Minister of Marine of Brazil and -theChief of Mission. 

Article2 -The members of the Mission will be responsible solely to the Minister 
of -Marineof Brazil through the Chief of Mission. 

Article 8.-Each member of the Mission with the rank he holds in the United 
States Navy, and wear the uniform thereof, but shall take precedence over all 
Brazilian officers of the same rank. 

Article .- Each member of the Mission shall be entitled to all the benefits and 
privileges which the Brazilian Navy Regulations provide for Brazilian naval 
officers and enlisted personnel of corresponding rank. 

Article 5.-The personnel of the Mission shall be governed by the disciplinary 
regulations of the United States Navy. 

TITLZ IV 

COMVPSSNSATION AXND PEQUIISITES 

Article 1.-Members of the Mission. shall receive from the Government of 
Brazil such net annual compensation expressed in United States currency as may 
be agreed upon for each individual member between the Governments of the 
United States of America and Brazil. The said compensation shall be paid in 
twelve (12) equal monthly installments, each due and payable on the last day of 
the month. Payment may be made in Brazilian national currency and when so 
made shall be computed at such rate of exchange as may be agreed upon between 
the two Governments. Payments made outside of Brazil shall be in the national 
currency of the United States of America and likewise in such amounts as may
be agreed upon between the two Governments. The said compensation shall not be 
subject to any Brazilian tax, or to tax by any political subdivision of Brazil, 
that is now or shall hereafter be in effect Should there, however, at present 
or during the life of this agreement be any taxes that might affect the said 
salaries, such taxes shall be borne by the Brazilian Ministry of Marine, in order
to comply with the provision stipulated above that the compensation agreed. 
upon shall be net, 

Article 2.-The compensation agreed upon in the preceding Article shall com
mence upon the date of departure from New York of each member of the Mission, 
and shall continue, following the termination of duty with the Mission, for the 
return voyage to New York and thereafter for the period of any accumulated 
leave which may be due. 

Article 8.-The compensation due for the period of the return voyage and 
accumulated leave shall be paid a detached member prior to his departure from 
Brazil, and such payment shall be computed for travel via the shortest usually 
traveled sea route regardless of the route and method of travel elected by the 
said detached member. 

Article 4.-Hach member of the Mission and his family shall be furnished by 
the Government of Brazil with first class accommodations for travel, via the 
shortest usually traveled sea route, required and performed under this agree
ment, between New York and Rio de Janeiro, both for the outward and for the 
return voyage. The shipment of household effects, baggage, and automobile of 
each member of the Mission between New York and his residence in Brazil shall 
be made in the same manner by the Government of Brazil; this shall include all 
necessary expenses incident to unloading from the steamer in Brazil and packing
and loading on board the steamer upon departure from Brazil. Transportation 
of such household effects, baggage, and automobile shall be effected in. one ship
ment, and all subsequent shipments shall be at the expense of the respective 
members of the Mission except when the result of circumstances beyond their 
control. Payment of expenses for the transportation of families, household effects 
and automobiles, in the case of personnel who may join the Mission for tempora43 
duty at the request of the Mlinister of Marine of Brazil, shall not be required under 
this agreement, but shall be determined by negotiation between the United States 
Navy Department and the authorized representative of the Ministry of Marine of 
Brazil in Washington at such time as the detail of personnel for such temporary 
duty may be agreed upon. 



59
 

Article 6.-Th Government of Brazil shall grant, upon request of the Chief of 
Mission, free entry for articles for the personal use of the members of the Mis
sion dnd their families. 

Article 6.-Ifthe servicesof any member of the Mission, should be terminated 
by action of the Government of the United States of America, except in accord
ance with the provisions of Title I, Article 5, prior to the completion of two years' 
service, the provisions of Title IV, Article 4, shall not apply to the return voyage. 
If the-services of any member of the Mission should terminate or be terminated 
prior to the completion of two years' service for any other reason, including those 
set forthin Title I, Article 5, he shall receive from the Government of Brazil all 
the compensations, emoluments, and perquisites as if he had completed two years? 
service, but the annual salary shall terminate as provided by Title IV, Article 2. 
But should the Government of he United States of America detach any member 
for breach of discipline, no cost of the return to the United States of such mem
ber, his family, household effects, baggage or automobile shall be borne by the 
Government of Brazil.Article 7.-Compensation for transportation and travelling expenses in Brazil 
on Brazilian official business shall be provided by the Government of Brazil in 
accordance with litle III, Axticle & 

Article 8.-The Chief of Mission shall befurnished by the Brazilian Government 
with a suitable automobile, with chauffeur, for his use an official business. Suit
able motor transportation, with chauffeur, and when necessary a launch properly 
equipped, shall on call be made available by the Government of Brazil for use 
by the members of the Mission for the conduct of the official business of the 
Mission. 

Article 9.-Sutable office space shall be made available for the members of the 
Mission. 

Article 10.-If any member of the Mission, or any of'his family, dies in Brazil, 
the Governmnent of Brazil shall have the body transported to such place in the 
United States of America as the surviving members of the fanily may decide, 
but the cost to the-Gov&nment of Brazil shallinot exceed the cost of transporting 
the remains from the place of decease to New York City. Should the deceased be 
a member of the Mission, his services with the Mission shall be considered to 
have terminated fiftedn (15) days after his death. Return transportation to New 
York City for the family of the deceased member and for their baggage, house
hold effects and automobile shall be provided as prescribed in Title IV, Article 4. 
All compensation due the deceased member, including salary for fifteen (15) 
days subsequent to hi's death, and reimbursement for expenses and transportation 
due the deceased member for travel performed on Brazilian official business, shall 
be paid to the widow of the deceased member or to any other person who may 
have been, designated in writing by the deceased while serving under -theterms of 
this agreement; but such widow or other person shall not tbe compensated for 
accrued leave due and not taken by the deceased. All compensation due the widow, 
or other person designated by the deceased, under 'the provisions of this Article, 
shall be paid prior to the departure .of such widow or person from Brazil and 
within fifteen (15) days of the decease of the said member.. 

TITLE V 

REQUISITES AND CONDITIONS 

Article 1.-So long as this agreement, or any extension thereof, is in effect, the 
Government of Brazil shall not engage the services of any personnel of any other 
foreign government for duties of any nature connected with the Brazilian Navy, 
except by mutual agreement between the Government of the United States and 
the Government of Brazil. 

Article 2.-Each member of the Mission shall agree not to divulge or by any 
means disclose to any foreign government or person whatsoever any secret or con
fidential matter of which he may become cognizant in his capacity as a member 
of the Mission. This requirement shall continue to be binding after termination 
of duty with the Mission and after the expiration or cancellation of this agree
ment or any extension thereof. 

Article .- Throughout this agreement the term "family" shall be construed 
as meaning wife and dependent children. 

Article j.-Each member of the Mission shall be entitled to one month's annual 
leave with pay, or to a proportional part hereof with pay for any fractional part 
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of a year. Unused portions of said leave shall bQ eumulative from year to year 
during service as a member of the Mission. 

Article 5.-The leave cited in the preceding Article may be spent in foreign 
countries, but the expenses of travel and transportation iLvolved. shall be borne 
by the member of the Mission taking such leave. All travel time, including sea 

addition to that authorized, in thetrs vel. shall -count as leave and shall not be in 
pDrceding Article. 

Article 6.-The Government of Brazil agrees to grant the leave specified in 
Artiele 4 of this Title upon receipt of mitten application approved, with due 
eonl3drration for the convenience of the Government of Brazil, by the Chief of 
Mission. 

Arti7e 7.-Except when otherwise mutually agreed upon in advance by the 
respective Govennments, reliefs shall be effected by personal contact in Brazil 
between the retiring and the relieving members. 

.4rticle 8-Suitable medical attention shall be furnished by the Government 
of Brazil to members of the -Mission and their families. In case a member of that 
Mission becomes ill or suffers injury, he shall, at the discretion of the Chief of 
Mision. be placed in such hospiital as the Chief of Miission deems suitable, after 
consultation with the Brazilian naval authorities, and all expenses incurred as 
the result of such illness or injury while the patient is a member of the Mission 
and' remains in Brazil shall be paid by the Government of Brazil. If the hospital
ized member is a commissioned officer, he shall pay his cost of subsistence, but if 
an enlisted man the cost of subsistence shall be paid by the Brazilian Government. 
F amilies shall enjoy the same privileges agreed upon in his Article for members 
of the Mission, except that a member of the Mssien shall in all cases pay the cost 
of subsistence incident to hospitalization of a member of his family except as may 
be provided by Title III, Article 4. 

Article Pr-Any member unable to perform his duties with the Mission by 
reason of long continued physical disability shall be replaced. 

Ix WIVNESS wHEREoF, the undersigned, duly authorized thereto, have signed 
this agreement in duplicate in the English and Portuguese languages, at Rio de 
Janeiro, this seventh day of May nineteen hundred and forty two. 

,[SzMLJ JErERSONT CAnrT. 

fsE7.LO] OSWM.)O-ARANUIA. 

EExTsNsIo o)r N.VAL MissxIo K AGREEMENT, 1946 

FTranglation) 

EMBASSY OF THlE UITED STATES Or BnAziL 
Washbigton,Jawnary8, 1946. 

-NO. 1/530.1(22) 
MR. suchReTARY OF STATE: 

In as much as the Agreement for the United States Naval Mission in Brazil 
is due to expire May 7, 1946. 1 respectfully request Your Excellency to use your 
good offices with the proper authorities to the end that the said Agreement 
nay be extended for a period of four more years. 

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

CARLOS MARTINS PEREIRA E SOcS A 

:is Excellency J-AMEs F. EnNEs, 

Secretaryof Stateof the Untted States of America. 

The Acting Secretaryof State to the BrazilianAmbassador 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
-WASRUTGTON 

Jan 18 1946 
ExCBLLENT: 

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of Your Excelency's note of 
.aniay 3. 1946 in which you convey the request of your Government for the 
renewal of the Agreement entered into on May 7, 1942, between the Governments 
of tie United States of America and the Republic of Brazil, providing for the 
assignment of a United States Naval Missiont to Brazil. 

I note that Your Excellency's Government desires to renew this agreement for 
a period of four years, the renewal to commence upon the termination of the 
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present agreement on May 7, 1946, and I am pleased to inform Your Excellency 
that this arrangement is agreeable to this Government provided the agreement 
is so amended as to include the following language as an additional, article to 
the basic agreement:

"The members of this Mission are permitted and may be authorized to 
represent the United States of America on any commission and in any qther 
capacity ha-ing to do with military cooperation or hemispheric defense 
,withoutprejudice to this contract." 

I shall appreciate it if Your Excellency will in orm, me whether the suggested 
amendment is acceptable to the Brazilian Government.. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration. 
For the Acting Secretary of State: 

SPEUILLE BADN 
His Excellency 

OALOS MARTINS, 
Ambassador of Brazil. 

[TranslationJ 

EMBASSY OF THE UNITED STATES OF BRAZIL 
Waskbtgton, March 21, 1946 

MR. SECRETARY OF STATE: 

I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of the note of January 18 of the cur
rent year by which Your Excellency informed me that United States Government 
concurs in extending for a period of four years, beginning on May 7, 1946, the 
Naval Mission Agreement between the United States of America and Brazil, 
after the following additional article has been included in the same: 

"The-members of this Mission are enabled and may be authorized to repre
sent the United States of America on any board or -in any capacity -which 
pertains to military cooperation or defense of the Hemisphere, without 
prejudice to this agreement." 

2 In reply, I inform Your Excellency that the Govermwent of Brazil concurs 
in the inclusion of the additional article mentioned above. 

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

CALOS MARTINS Pm=IA E SOUSA 
His ExCELLENoY JAmES F. BYRNES, 

Secretaryof State of the UnitedStates of America. 

,xTEhssIO or NxvAL MISSION AGREEENT, 1946 

The Brazilian AmbassadorJo the Secretary, of State 

[Trai dmioli] 
ERGET EPMBAS$T OF THE UNITED STATES OF BRAntr . 

No. 98/580:1 (22) - Washtngton, Ma, 2, 1946 
lIyR. SECRETARY OF STATE: 

Supplementary to my note No. 61, of March 01 last, concerning the renewal 
of the Naval Mission Agreement between the United States of America and Brazil, 
I have the honor to inform Your Excellency that the Brazilian Government 
wishes to have certain additions and alterations inserted in the articles of the 
Agreement which is to come into fore on the seventh of the current month, in 
order to: 

a) Establish the fact that the officers of the Mission ,may work in conjunction 
with the Staffs of the -Naval' Forces or in the various Bureaus of the Navyl
whenever their technical and professional experience is required on such 
commissions; 

b) Modify Title I, Articl 2, of the present Agieement by the addition of anew 
sentence, to read as follows: 

"In case members of the Naval Mission are appointed for the purpose of 
familiarizing the Brazilian Navy with the use of special equipment or 
methods, the United States Government may ,withdraw them vithout re- • 
placing them, on the completion of the special assignments for which they 
were appointed," 
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e) Modify Title IV, Artiele 4 of the present agreement, changing the final 
sentence to read as follows: 

"-In the case of personnel who,.at the request of the Minister of Marine ot 
Brazil, may be appointed as members of the Mission for the purpose or 
familiarizing the Brazilian Navy with the use of special equipment or 
methods, as -set forth in Title I, Article 2, the payment of expenses for' the
transportation of families, household effects and automobiles shall not be 
subject to this agreement, but shall be determined by negotiation between, 
the representatlvedlf the United States Navy andcthe authorized representa
tive of the Miuistry of TMarine of Brazil in -Washington at such time as the 
choice of the personneltfor such duty may be agreed upon."

2. The changes given in paragraphs b and c, suggested by the United States 
Naval Mission, are intended to provide for the need which the Brazilian Navy
will have in future for the assistance of personnel of the United States Navy in
questions of training, maintenance and supply which will arise during the period
in which Brazilian personnel is being familiarized with the new ships and 
equipment.

3. Although that duty constitutes one of the functions of the United States,
Naval Mission, in view of the fact that in many cases it will be of a temporary
character, it will not be necessary that the personnel assigned to It be included 
as full members of the Mission for the entire two years of the agreement.

4. However, it will be advisable to assign the personnel who may be appointed
to such duties a status which is defined in the agreement, to terminate upon 
completion of their particular assignments.

5. Wibh regard to the strength of the United States Naval Mfistion, the Bra
zilian government would like for it to be composed of: 

a) Offieers 
Chief -------------------------------------------------------------- (x) 1
 
Assistant chief ----------------------------------------------------- (x) 1
 
Finance officer ------------------------------------------------- (x) I
 
Ordnance officer ------------------------------------------------ (x) I
 
Communications officer ------------------------------------------ (x) I
 
Naval construction officer -------------------------------------------- (x) 1
 
Officers to serveas Instruetors
 
Officer for the Naval War School ---------------------------------- x) 1
 
Officer for theTra1iing Center and Instructors' School----------------- (x) 1
 
Officer for the System of Selection of Subaltern Personnel-------------- 1
 
Officer for the School for Training Technicians in the repair and mainte

nance of electronic radio, radar and sound equipment----------------- I
 
Engineer Officers 
Boller officer --------------------------------------------------

Turbine officer -----------------------------------------------------

Damage control officer ---------------------------------------------- I
 

Officers to serve at Staff Headquarters of the Mission------------------ (x)
 

Torpedo factory officer ----------------------------------------------- 1
 
Medical officer ------------------------------------------------------ I
 
Marine Corps officer ------------------------------------------------ 1
 

Total number of officers -------------------------------------- I.
 
b) Petty Oficers
 

Petty officer specialist in the repair and maintenance of optical equipment- 1
 

Nachtinist's mate with a knowledge of steam turbines-------------------


Petty officer to serve at Staff Headquarters of the Mission------------- (x) :r
 

Petty officer torpedoman with experience in. submarines ---------------- I
 
Petty officer motor expert, with u knowledge of refrigerator plants-------- 1
 
Petty officer, boiler specialist, with a knowledge of high-pressure .boilers_- 1
 

Electrician's mate with a knowledge of.gyroscopes and internal communi
cations ---------------------------------------------------------- I
 

Petty officor specialist in thelocalizing and control of damage------------ I
 
Gunner's mate or turret chief with a knowledge of the organization and
 

training of-gun crews-and the maintenance-of their Tespective batteries-- I
 

Petty officer to serve at the headquarters of the Naval War School-------- 1
 
Petty officer to serve inthe office of the Director of Naval Instruction --- 1
 

total number of petty officers --------------------------------- 1x 



The officers and petty officers marked "(x)" are already in Brazil. 
C. I should be very grateful if Your Excellency would be-so goon as to inform 

me whether the American Government is in 'agreement with these proposals of 
the Brazilian Government, as set forth by me in this note, with reference to the 
additions and alterations in the articles of the Naval Mission Agreement and 
also with referenc4 to the composition of its complement. 

7. Lastly, I inform Your Excellency that the Brazilian Government has no 
objecqton to the suggestion made by the United States Naval Mission concerning 
the reestablishment of th clause which appeared in our agreements prior to the 
one now in'force, according tb which the members of-the Mission were granted 

.the same rights and privileges which are enjoyed by diplomatic representatives 
of corresponding rankaccredited in -Brazil. 

I avail myself'of'this opportunity to renew to Your E xcellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

CARLOs MARTINS PEEIRA E SOtSA.
 
His Excellency *
 

JAf ES F. Bym s
 
Secretary of State of the UVitea States of Anicrica
 

The Secretary ot State to the Brazilian Ambassador 

DEPARTMENT 	 OF STATFT 
WASHINOTOI' 

June 8, 191] 6 

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of Your Excellency's note, no. 
98/530 1(22) dated Mlay 2, 1046, requesting certain modifications'to the basic 
Agreement ent~redl into on May 7, 1942 and extended for a period of four years 
by an exchange of notes dated Ianuary 3 and 18 and March 21, 1946 respectively,
which provides for the assignment of a United States Naval Mission to Brazil. 

In this connection, I am pleased to inform Your Excellency that the modifica
tion of TitleIV, Artiele'4'of the basic Agreement, as suggested in paragraph (c) 
of Your Excellency's note under reference, is acceptable to the Government of 
the United States of America provided-the Agreement is amended as follows: 
after the Word "appointed" there shall be inserted "for a period otfless than six 
mbnths." The Navy Department is of the opinion that for periods longer than 
six months, temporary members of the Ifission.-should not, in peacetime, be 
ordered'to duty which would require separation from their families for an exces
sive length of time. When the services of temporary members are required for 
longer than six months, they should'be entitled to, the privileges of the present 
Agreement. 

With regard to the new composition suggested for the Mission, the Navy De
partment informs the Department it cannot make definite commitments to furnish 
all the specialized personnel of officers and enlisted men requested, although 
every effort will be put forth to make them available. 

I shall appreciate it if Your Excellency will inform me whether th suggested 
amendmnent is acceptable to the Brazilian Government 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of.my highest consideration. 
For the Secretary of State: 

SpRuILE BEDE 
His Excellency 

ARLOS MARTINS,-
Ambassador of BraziL. 

The BrazilianAtbassad6rto-the Acting Secretary of State 

[Translation] 

EMDAssY OF TfE UNnTEb STATSs OVEX1AZfLJ 
No. 205/530.1(22) 	 Wal ,ngt n, Aust 10, 1904 
MR. SECRETAZY*,03 STATE: 

,In supplement to my note No. i24/830.122),of,June 11 last [,'J relative to the 
agreement for the American Naval Mission in Brazil,,I have the honor to inform 

[Not printed.] 
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Tour Excellency that the Brazilian Governnent, taking into consideration the 
reasons given by the American Government, agrees to the proposed change in 
the wording of Ark 4, Chapter IV, of the said contract 

2. 	This article shalt thetefore be worded thus: 
"In the ase of personnel who, at the request of the lIinister of Marine 

f Brazil, may join the hixssion for a period of less than SYt months for the 
purpose of instructing the Brazilian Navy in the use of equipmentor special
methods, as provided iu Title I, Axt. 2, payment of expenses for the transpor
tation of families, household effects and automobiles shall not be required
under this Agreement, but shall be determined b'y agreement between the 

srepresentative of the United States Navy and the authorized representative
of the Ministry of Marine of Brazil in Washington at such time as the detail' 
of personnel for gueh duty may be agreed upon"

8. With respect to the snembers of the Aumerican Naval Mission in Brazil, I 
communicate to Your Excelleucy that the Brazilian Government would be grati
fied it there were among the members a "Chief Fire Control Man" who has passed, 
a course in repairs at the Navy Yard in Washington._ D.C,, and who -is wel]
acquainted with repairs on the Director XSXIII type system, distance control, 
electric and hydro-electric, types 4 and.t 5,, and who has likewise had experience
in the installation of artillery equipment aboard the new destroyers. 

I avail myself of this occasion to renew"to Your Excellency the assurances of 
-my highest consideration. 

CARLOS MARTINS PEJIBA E SOUsA 
T:is 	Excellency DEAN A0nESON, 

Acting Secretaryof State of the United States of Ameria. 

DEPAnTMENT 	OR STAT, 
WASINGTOS, 

Sep 17,19116"
Rs3crwfoY : 

,I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of Your Bxcellency's note, no. 
205/630.1 (22) of August 10, 1946, concerning the renewal of the Agreement for 
the United States Nival Mission to Brazilsigned May 7,1942. 

In this cobnection, I an pleased to note that the extengion of the Agreement,
with thechmmges in the wording of Title IV, Atricle 4&as set forth in your note, 
is agreeable to your Government. 

I am informed that the Navy Department is seeking-a, Chief Fire Control Man 
and as soon as a suitable selectionis made his name and biographical sketch will 
be submitted for consideration by your Government. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration. 
For the Acting Secretary of State: 

SpnunIn BanAEN 
Ilis Excellency CARLos MAxNiS, 

Ambassador of, Brazil. 

EXT&NSION AND AMFNDMENT'OF NAVAL MISSION AGREEiNT. 19JU4
 
(Effected by Exchange of Notes Signed: at Rio de Taneiro Tune 21 and October 9,
 

1954; Entered into force October 9, 19 4; operative retroactively May 7, 19.54)
 

The American Ambassadorto the BrazilianMiniteri~or-oreignAffairs 

THE FORETSN SERVICE 
OF TIM 

UITTTD STATES OF AUERI0A 
No. 41 

I haye the honor to refer to Your Excellency's note DPo/121/52 (22) dated 
March 9, 1954, In which was conveyed the request your Government for the
extension of the Agreement between Governments of the United.States of Brazil 
and the United States of America (providing-for the assignment of the United 
States Naval Mission to Brazil subject to minor alterations in the Agreement
which was last extninded effective as of May,7. 1950. 

Subject to the concurrence of the Brazilian Government, my_ Government 
suggests that such minor alterations include the following: 

1. That the sentence reading 
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"Payment may be made in Brazilian National Currency and when so 
made shall be computed tt such rate of exchange as may be agreed upon 
between the two Governments." 

be deleted from Title IV, Article 1 and that the following sentence be substituted 
therefor; 

"Payment may be made in Brazilan national currency as when so made 
shall be computed at the average rate of exchange prevailing in-the free 
market in Rio de Janeiro during the month for which due." 

2. That Title II, Article 1 be amended to read as tollows: 
"This Mission shall consist of a Chief of Mission of the rank of Captain or 

above on 'active service in the United States Navy and such other United States 
Naval personnel may subsequently be requested by the Ministry of Mission of 
Brazil and agreed upon by the United States Naval Department." 

3. That it be understood that this Agreement is hereby extended indefinitely 
subject to termination as provided in Article 4 or Article 5 of Title I. 

Upon receipt of a note from Your Excellency indicating that the undergoing
modifications are acceptable to the Government of the United States of Brazil, 
the Government of the United States of America will consider that this noth 
and your rejly constitute extension of the Naval -Mission Agreement as modified 
effective May 7, 194. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration 
JAM\Es SooT Knn'nm. 

JUNE 29, 1954 

[Translaiion] 

'MINISTRY OF FbEEIGN Ars'Ans, 
RIO DEi JANEEiO,

October 9, 1954 
1) Po/DAI/423/530.1 (22) 
Ka, AIBASSADOR: 

I have the 'honor to acknowledge the receipt of note No. 441 of June 29, 1954, 
in which Your lThcellency, in considering the extension of the Naval Agreement 
of 1942 between Brazil aid the United States of America, suggested that the 
following changes be made in the official text of the agreement: 

(a) 	That Article 1, TitleIV, which reads: 
"Payment may be made in Brazilian currency and, when made, shall be 

,computed at such rate of exchange as may agreed upon between the two 
Governments." 

be changed to read: 
"Payment may be made'in Brazilian-currency and, when'so made, shall be 

computed at the average rate of exchange prevailing in the free market in 
Rio de Janeiro during the month to which it pertaing." 

b) That Article 1, Title II, whichTeads: 
"The Naval Mission shall consst of a Ohief of Mission of the rank of 

Captain, on active service in the United States Navy, and of such other 
American Navy personnel as may subsequently be requested&by the Ministry 
of \Marine of Brazil, through its authorized representative in Washington, 
with the aiproval of the United States Department of the Navy." 

changed to read: 
"The Naval Mission shall consist of a-Chief of Mission of the rank of 

Captain or higher on active service in the United States Navy, and of such 
other American Navy personnel as may subsequently be requested by the 
Ministry of Marine of Brazil with the approval of the United States Depart
ment of the Navy."

c) That it be understood that this Agreement is extended indefinitely, and it 
shall terminate only in the manner provided in Articles 4 and 5 of Title I. 

2. In reply, I am happy to inform Your Excellency that the foregoing changes 
are acceptable to the Brazilian Government; accordingly, this note and Your 
Excellency's note to which I refer at the beginning constitute the agreement 
of our two Governments to extend the agreement in force from May 7, 1954. 

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

IAIL !PEuNANDEZ 
His 	Excellency 

JAmES ScoTT KEMPER; 
Ambassador of the 

United States of America. 
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MILZAR PRESENCE, AGREEENT, 1948 

Agreement betwveen the United State&of America' and Brazil.rspecting United 
States personnvel stationed in Bi#?zil atit )razijjan personnt stationed in.the 
United States. Effected. by emchante of notes signed,at Rio de .aneiro ,Decem
ber 15, 1947, and ebruary2, 1948;,entered into force,Febrary, 1948. 

The Brazftamn Minister jar Foreign Affairs 'to th AinIericanP zrgd. d'Affaires 
I adt int rim 

*JTranslation.l 

IINSTRn FO'R FoREIGN ArnAims, 
1Uo DE JALmUO. 

Deember15,1947. 
DPo/251/602. (04) 
MR. CnnARe D'AYwAI ES: 

With reference to the verbal understanding reached. last September with the 
Ambassador of the United States of America regarding the applicationon the 
part of our countries, of the provisions of Paragraph 7-of the 'Resolution on the 
Principles Governing the General Regulation and Reduction of Armaments, [)
adopted by the General Assembly of the United Nations on December 14, 1946, I 
have the honor to inform you that the Government of the United States of Bra
zil agrees to make officially, jointly with the United States of America, the 
following declaration: 

a) Military personnel of the United States of Brazil now stationed In 
the territory of the United States of America, including members of the 
Joint Brazil-United States Defense Commission in 'Washington, have been 
and are so stationed with the full and freely given consent of the last
mentioned country; 

b) Military personnel of the United States of America now stationed 
in the territory of Brazil, including members of the Joint Brazil-tinited 
States Military Commission in Rio de Janeiro, have been and are so stationed
with the full consent of the Government of Brazil; 

c) The Governments of the United States of Brazil and the United States 
of America mutually agree that the aforementioned military personnel
shall continue to be so stationed until such time as the Government of the 
country in which they are stationed withdraws its consent thereto;

d) The military personnel of each of the two countries, stationed with 
the territory of the other, including members of the Joint Brazil-United 
States Defense Commission and the Joint Brazil-United States Military
Commission, does not comprise any combat forces. . 

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to ,you the assurances 6f my very
distinguished consideration. 

11AUL F RNANDES
Mr. DAVID MOKENDREE Ksr, 

OhargA d'Affaires of ithe United States of America. 

The American Uhargd d'Affaireg ad interim to the Brazi~ian Minister 
for Foreign Affairs 

flnnASSr OF THE 
UMfTED 	 STATES On AMERICA 

RDo EIT.Emno, Bflzm 

February 2, 1948. 

No. 21
EXCELENeYI • 

I have the honor to- acknowledge the receipt of ihe Ministry's 'note -No.' 

rUnited Nations. Resolitions adopted by the, General As embry during the Second.Part 
Oi its FirstSession fron 23 October to 15 December 1946, p. ,6. Lake Success, 1947. 
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"lPo/251/602..(04) dated December -. in reads16, 1947, which, translation, as 
tollows: 

"With reference 'to the verbal understanding reached in September 1947 
with the Ambassador of the United States of Anerica regardingtheappllca
tion, on the part of oar two countries, of Paragraph 7 of the Resolution 
on the Principles Governing the General Regulation And Reduction of 
Armaments, adopted by the General Assembly of the United Nations on 
December 14, 1946, I have the honor to inform ,you,that-the Government ,of 
the United States of Brazil agrees to issue officially, jointly with the United 
States of America, the following declaration: 

a) Military personnel of the United States of Brazil now stationed in 
the territory of the United States of America, including those attached to 
-the Joint flrazil-mnited States Defense Commission in Wa hington, have 
been and are so stationed with the full and freely given consent of the 
Government of the United States of America;

b) Military personnel of the United States of America now stationed in 
the territory of the United States of Brazil, including those attached to 
the Joint Brazil-United States Mifitary Commission in Rio de Janeiro, have 
been and are so stationed with the full and freely given consent of the 
Government of Brasil; 

c) The Governments of the UnitedStates of Brazil and the United States 
of America mutually agree that the aforementioned military personnel
shall continue, to be so stationed until such time as, the Government of the 

-country in which they are stationed withdraws its consent thereto;
d) None of the military personnel of either country, stationed within the 

territory of the other government, including military personnel attached 
to the Joint Brazil-United ,States Defense Commission and the Joint Brazil-
United States Military Commission, comprises any combat forces." 

The above quoted declaration by the Government of the United States of
 
Brazil has been duly noted by the Government of the United States of America
 
which-adheres fully to'he statements contained therein.
 

Accordingly, I have the honor to inform Your Excellency that the Ministry's
note, together with this note in reply, wilrbe considered by the Government of the 
United States of America as placing on record the understanding of the two 
governments in regard to this matter.
 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration.
 
DAVID M K. KEY 

Ilis 'Excellency
 
Dr. RKl PERNANDES,


The MinisterforForeignAffairs,
Rio de Janeiro,Brazil. 

BRAZIL 

JOINT GROUP ON EMERGENCY SURPLt PROBEMS 

Agreement effectc by exchange of notes signed at Rio de JaneiroJuly 24, 1951; 
enteredinto force Ju y 24, 1951. . . 

The ,tmerictAmibassador to t7iBrazilianMjnf.9ter for ForetgnAffafrs 

No. 40 
Rio DE JANEro, BnAzn,, July 24, 1951 

ElXOELLBNCY: 
have the honor to refer to-an understanding reached by members of the 

Brazilian Delegation to the Fourth Meeting of Consultation of Ministers of 
Foreign Affairs designated by Your Excellency and officers of the Department 
of State of the United States, which was embodied in a document dated April 'LT, 
1951, enitled "Memorandum of Understanding.Concerning Implementation of 
fl6solution XVI of tie Fourth Meeting of Consultation' of 'the,Ministers of 
Foreign Affairs", ['j and to state that,.following conversations with officers of the 

Notprinted. 

I 
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Ministry under the direction of Your Excellency, I am authorized to agree on 
behalf of the Government of the United States of America to the following 
arrangements: 

1. There shall be established at Rio de Janeiro a Joint Group on Emergency 
Supply Problems. 

2. This Group shall be composed of representatives of the American Embassy 
or such other agencies as'the Government of the United States may designate, and 
of the Bank of Brazil or such other agencies as the Government of Brazil may 
designate. 

3. The functions of this Joint:Group shall be: 
a) to ascertain and submit recommendations on essential needs of the 

Brazilian economy for scarce products to be imported from the United States;
b) to consult on measures for facilitating -the export to the United States 

of Brazilian products needed in the economy of the United States; 
c) to act as an instrumentality for continuous consulatation within the 

meaning of Resolution XVI of the Fourth Consultative Meeting; 
d) to make recommendations for improving the operation of the systems

of export control and priorities 'adopted by the two countries. 
4 In case of agreement within the Joint Group, the findings of fact upon

which its recommendations 're based shall be set forth and shall be regarded 
as final. 

5. In case'of disagreement between the two parties composing the Joint Group
On any matter, such matter will, at the request of the Foreign Minister of Brazil 
and the Ambassador of the United States, be referred for decision to the Joint 
Brazil-United States Commission 'for Economic Development. 

6. If the quotas established by the authorities ,of the United States are ap
preciably lower than the quantities specified in the recommendations of the Joint 
Group, the United, States will be-prepared, upon request, to advise that Group of 
the reasons for such decision. 

7. The control of distribution of the products imported into Brazil from the 
United States shall be the responsibility of the Brazilian authorities in ac
cordance with Section 6 of Resolution XVI of the lFourth Consultative Meeting
and the Joint Group shall serve as,a channel for consultation as contemplated 
by that Resolution. 

A reply from Your Excellency indicating the agreement of the Government 
of Brazil to the above provisions will be understood by my Government as con
stituting an agreement covering the establishment of a Joint Group on Emergency
Supply Problems. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my most distinguished con
sideration. 

HERSCHEL V. JOHNSON 

His Excellency
JoAC NEVES DA FONTOuRA 

Ministerfor-Foreign.Affairs
 
Rio de Janeiro,RraziZ
 

The BrazilianMinisterfor ForeignAffairs to the American Ambassaor 

[Transation] 

MTNTSTRY orFFomncz AMPAn5,
Rio DE JNAimo, 

Julyi 21, 1951. 

Dee/620/60.8 (20) 

Mm AIMASSAnOn, 
I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of note No. 40 of July 24, 1951, 

jn which Your Excellency refers to the "Memorandum of Understanding Con
cerning Implementation of Resolution XVI of the Fourth meeting of Consulta
tion of the Ministers of Foreign Affairs", the said Memorandum having been 
concluded in Washington on April 17, 1951, by representatives of the Department
of State and members of the Brazilian Delegation to the Fourth Meeting of 
Consultation. 
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2. With respect- thereto Your Excellency informs me that the Government 
of the United States agrees that: 

[For the English language text of the arrangements, see U.S. note above.] 

3. In reply, I am pleased to state that the Brazilian Government, fully agreeing
tthe-provisions noted above, considers Your Excellency's note and this,note as 
.constituting a formal agreement on the matter. ,

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. "" 

Joiao NDEvs DA FONTOURA 
His Excellency izuRsConiV. 3OdINwoN, 

Ainhassatlorv the U-niter! States of Amzerica. 



MUTUAL DEEDINSF ASSISTANCE1 

AGREEME T BflwEET THE UNITO STATES OP AMEEXCA AFlD, BRAZIh 

Signed at Rio de Si'neiro Mareh 15, 1952 ;-Entered into force May 19, 1953 

Militaryassistanceagreemenfb'dtuve the Uttifed2Statesof'Amerimc 
auL the Republicof the UnitedStates of Brazil 

The Governments of the United States of America and of the Republic of the 
United States of Brazil: 

Conscious of their pledges under the Inter-American Treaty of Reciprocal 
Assistance [1 and other international instunaents to assist any American State 
subjected to an armed attack and to act together for the common defense and 
for the maintenance of the peace and security of the Western Hemisphere; 

Desiring to foster international pe ce and security within the framework of 
the Charter ot the United Nations [2] through measures which will further the 
ability of nations dedicated to the purposes and principles of the Charter to 
participate effectively in arrangements for, individual and collective self-de
fense in support of those purposes and principles;

Reaffirming their determination to give their full cooperation to the efforts to 
provide the United Nations with armed forces as contemplated by the Charter 
and to obtain agreement on universal regulation ad reduction of armaments 
under adequate guarantee against violation; 

Taking into consideration the support that the Government of the United 
States of America has brought to these principles by enacting the )tutual Defense 
Assistance Act of 1949, as amended, [] and the kt'tual Security Act of 1951, [E)
which provide 'for the furnishing of military assistance to nations which have 
joined with it In collective security arrangements;

Desiring to set forth the conditions which will govern the furnishing of such 
assistance by one contracting Government to the other; 

Have designated for these purposes Plenipotentiaries who have agreed as 
follows: 

AMTIaLE I 

1-Each Government will make'or continue to make available to the other, and 
to such additional governments as the Parties hereto may in each case agree 
upon, such equipment, materials, services, Or other military assistance as the 
Government furnishing such assistance may authorize and in accordance with 
such terms and conditions as may be agreed. The furnishing of any such assist
mice as may be authorized by either Party hereto shall be consistent with the 
Charter of the United Nations. Such assistance shall be so designed as to pro
mote the defense of the Western Hemisphere and be in accordance with defense 
plans under which both Government8 will participate in missions importaftt to 
the defense oa the Western Hemisphere. Assistance made available by the Gov
ernment of the United States of America pursuant to this Agreement will be 
furnished under the provisions, and subject to all the terms, conditions and termi
nation provisions of the Mutual Defense Assistance Act of 1949 the Mlutual 
Security Act of 1951, acts amendatory and supplementary thereto and appropria
tion acts thereunder. The two Governments will, from time to time, negotiate 
detailed arrangements by the exchange of notes to carry out the provision- of 
this paragraph. 

t Treatles and Other International Acts Series 1888; 62 Stat, at. 2, p. 1681.
 
Treaty Series 993 ; 59 Stat. 1031.
 
63 stat 714; 22 US 0. if 571-3004.
 
65 Stat 373
 

(70) 



-,Each Government undertakes to make effective use of assistance received 
from the other Government pursuant to this. Agreement for the pfirpose of im
plementing defense plans, accepted by the-two Governmenth, under which the 
two Governments will participate in missions important to the defense of the 
Western Hemisphere, and will not, without prior agreement of the other Gov
ernment, devote such assistance to purposes' other than those for whicht it-was 
furnished. The'transfer of equipment'or materialson wreimbursable basis-shall 
be in accordance with terms and conditions.relating to such transfers,which may. 
be'agreed to by the two Governments. 

3-Arrangements will be, entered into under which equipment and materials 
furnished pursuant to this Agreement and no longer required, for ,the purposes,,
for which it was originally made available, (except equipment -and materials 
ftriished under terms requiring reimbursement) Will-be returnedto the Govern
afent whidh furnished such assistance for appropriate.disposition. ,

4-tn the common security interest each Govetrnmenundertakes not to transfer 
to any person not -an' officer- or employee or agent of ,such Government, or to 
any other Government, title to or possession of any equipment, materials, og
services furnished under this Agreement ,without the prior 'agreement of, the 
other Government The transfer of equipment or materials on, a reimbursable 
basis shall be in accordance with terms and conditions relatingto such transfers 
which may'be agreed to by the two Governments. I 

5-If the funds-allotted for implementing any 'assistance programs undertaken 
by the Government of the United States of America under the present agree
ment are made subject to any judicial 'process 'in the Republic of the United 
States of Brazil which would ,obstruct or make 'difficult their free and imme
diate use for the purposes for which they were originally intended, the Brailian 
Government will promptly take ,actiori to insure, for the i'execution of such ,pro
grams and achievement of such objectives, a contribution, equivalent to the funds 
referred to; for this ,purpose the Administration, will utilize funds, at its disp&,
siti6n or will request them from the National Congress.

6-Each Government will, take such security measures' as may be agreed in 
each case between the two Governments in order to prevent the disclosure or 
compromise of classified military articles, services or information furnished by 
the other Government pursuant to this Agreement 

Each Government will take appropriate measures consistent with'securiy to 
keep'the public informed of operations under this Agreement. 

-ARTICLE -

The two Governments will, upon request'-Tor either of 'them, negotiate appro
pri4te arrangemens between them to provide for the a ailability of patent
licenses and technical information tequired in furtherance of the obijectives ,of 
this Agreement. 'In these-negotations considbration'shill be givdn, to the inclu
sion of a clause, whereby each Govdrnment wilF.assume therespon'sibility for 
all cfaims of its nationals arising, inder-suh arrangements, and such clurs 
arising in its jurisdiction of nAtionals of 'any 'country not'- a party to this 
Agreement, - --

ARTISTS IV 

1-The Goyernment of the lRepublic of the United States of Brazil agrees to 
make available to th' Governmdnt of th6' Unit6d"tates of America funds in an 
amount to be aigreed upon in-Brazilian currency fOr the use of'the 'latter Govern
ment for expenses of administration oftservices it wilt execute 1n implementing 
the objectives of the Mutual Security Act of 1951 in the Republic of the United 
States of Brazil.' 2-Tbe two Governments willforthwith initiate discussions with a view to de
termiining the -amount of Brazilian qurrency and to agreeing,.ulpon arrangements 
for thefturnishing of such currency, , "- r

-~~ - ' 4'~- 1' 

ARTICLE V 

The Governmentof theRepublic of the United' Statel'sof Brazil"will 4xcept-is
otherwise agreed, grait duty-free treatmeWt and exemption from infernal taxa
tion upon importatfon or exportAtion 'to products, property materials or, equp
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ment imported inb its territory in connecti6n with this Agreement or any similar 
agreement between the United 'States of America and any other country receiving
military assistance. 

ARTILE oil 

-I-Each Government upon being'appropriately advised agrees-to receive ?erson
nel of the other Government who wilbdischarge-responsibilities of the other Gov
ernment in connection with the implementation of this Agreement. Such personnel 
will be accorded facilities to observe the progress of assistance furnished pursuant 
to 'this Agreement. Such personnel who are,nationals of that other country, in
cluding personnel temporarily assigned, will, :in their relations with the Govern
ment of the country to which theytare assigned, operate as a part of the Embassy 
under the direction 'and control of the Chief- of the Diplomatic Mission of the 
Government of the sending, country, and shall be accorded all privileges and im-' 
ninnities conferred by international, custom to Embassy personnel of correspond
ing rank. Privileges antcourtesies incident to diplomatic status, such as diplo
matic automobile license plates, inclusion on the "diplomatic list", and social 
courtesies may be waived by the~sending Government for its personnel other than 
the seniornilitary member and senior Army, Navy and Air Force officers and their 
respective immediate deputies. 

2-The two-Governmnents will negotiate arrangements for classification of per
sonnel and for appropriate notification thereof to the host Goveininent. 

8-The Government of the Republic of the United States of Brazil shall grant 
upon request of the Chief of the Diplomatic Mission of the United States of 
America, exemption from customs duties on articles imported for the personal 
use of such personnel and of members of their families. Should it 'become nec
essary ,to.send Brazilian personnel to the United States of America in connection 
with the provision of military assistance by the Republic of the United States 
of Brazil to the United States of America, the United States Government shall 
grant, upon the request of the Chief of the Brazilian Diplomatic Mission, ex
emption from customs duties on articles imported for the personal use of such 
personnel and of menbers of their families. 

ARTICLFS VII 

Existing arrangements relating to Armed Forces missions of the United States 
of America established under other instruments are not affected by this Agree
meat and will remain in full force. 

ARTICLE VI 

In conformity with the principle of mutual 'aid, as provided in Article I, the 
twoGovernments hereby,reaffirm Resolutions XII, XIII, XIV and XVI set forth 
in 'the Final Act of the Fourth Meeting of Consultation of the Miinisters of For
eign Affairs of American States, held in Washingtiiri in 1951. which embody de
cisions'tsken, by American States for the purpose of cooperating-technically and 
financially-with a view to increasing production of basic and strategical materials 
and providing one another with materials, products and services required for their 
common defense. Transfers of materials will be effected according tb legislation 
in force and specific agreements already existing or to be negotiated. 

ARTICLE iX 

In the interest of mutual security, each Government will cooperate with the 
other in theadoption-and application of measuresof economic defense and com
mercial controls destined-to protect the Western temisphere against threats from 
any country. 

ARTI[CL- X 

1-The two Governments reaffirm their "determination to collaborate inpromot
lug international understanding and good will and-maintaining world peace, to 
proceed as may be mutually agreed upon to eliminate causes of international ten
sion, and to fulfill the military obligations assumed under bilateral and multilat
eral agreements or treaties to which -bothare-parties. 

2-The Government of the Republic-of the .United States of Brazil will make, 
consistent,, with the political and. economic stability, of the country, the full 
contribution permitted by its manpowei, resources, -tacilities and general 
economic conditions to the development and maintenance of its defensive strength, 
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the defensive strengthof the Westernt Hemisphere and.of the Free World,, and 
will take all reasonable measures which may be needed to develop.its defensive 
capacities. 

ARTICLE XI 

Whereas this Agreement -hasbeen negotiatedand concluded on the basis that 
the Government of the United States of America will extend to the other party
thereto the benefits of any provision in a similar agreement concluded by the 
Government of the United States of America with any other American LRepublic,
it is understood that the Government of the 'United States of America will 
interpose no objection to amending, this Agreement in order that its provisiOAs 
may conform, in whole or in part, to the corresponding proviSions of any similar 
Military Assistance Agreement, or agreements amendatory thereto, concluded 
with an American Republic. 

ARTICLE XII 

1-This Agreement shall come into force when the Government of the Republic
of the United States of Brazil shall have notified the Government of the United 
States of America [1] of its ratification and shall continue in force until onle 
year after the receipt by either Party of written notice of the other Party to 
terminate it, except that the provisions of Araicle I, paragraphs 2 and 4 and 
agreements made pursuant to the provisions of article, 1, paragraphs 3, 5 and 
6 and of Article III shall remain in force unless otherwise agreed by the two 
Governments. 

2-The two Governments shall, upon the request of either of them, consult 
regarding any matter relating to -theapplication or amendment of this Agreement.

3-This Agreement shall be registeied with the Secretariat of the United 
Nations. 

In witness whereof, the Undersigned Plenipotentiaries have signed the preseiit
Agreement, in duplicate in the English and Portuguese languages, and have 
affixed thereto their seal, in Rio de Janeiro this fifteenth day in March, 1952. 

I SEA'L) 

FOR THE UNfITED STATES OF AMERIOA 

XIERSOREL V. SonnXSOTN 

JOAO NEVES DA FONTOUVR 

[SEAL] FOR T3HE MfnLiO OF TILE U-TrED STATES OP BRAzIL 

DEFENSE: "ILITARY ASSISTANCE 

-hUderstanding effected by exchange of notes 
Signed at Rio de Janeiro January 30, 1964; 
Entered into force January 20, :196t. 

The Brazilia&Minister of Foreign Affairs to the American Gargd d' Affaires 
ad interim 

(Tranlslation] 

MNISTRY OF FORIeN AFFAIRS, 

G/AAA/2S/550.(22) JanuarySO, 1901. 
'MR. OHA3G n'A'rAnEs: 

I have the honor to refer to the recent conversations that took pilace b~tween 
the representatives of our two Governments concerning the furnishing of military
assistance to the Government of Brazil in accordance with'the provisions of 
Article 1, -paragraph 1, in fine, of the Military Assistance Agreement of March 15,
1952. -J 

'may 19, 1953. 
TIAS 2770; 4 UST- 174. 
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2. Conscious of the obligations which devolve upon them with reference to the 
individual and collective inter-American defense, the Government of the United 
States of Brazil and the Government of the United States of America, wishing to 
strengthen their capacity to counteract threats or acts of aggression or any other 
dangers to peace and security, in accordance with the undertaking assumed in 
treaties and agreements such as the Charter of the Organization of American 
States [3] and the Treaty of Reciprocal Assistance signed in Rio de Janeiro on 
September 2, 1947, ['3 reached an understanding concerning arrangements fnorthe 
furnishing of military assistance for the above purposes by the Government of 
the United States of America to the Government of Brazil in accordance with the 
provisions of the Military Assistance Agreement, it being understood that the 
undertakings set forth therein, limited to assistance for the implementation of 
already-existing plans under which both Governments will participate in missions 
important to the defense of the Western Hemisphere, will be adjusted by mu
tual agreement as deemed necessary.

8. Bearing in mind that both Governments are inspired by the desire to pro
vide for the defense and maintenance of peace in the Western Hemisphere, 
the Government of the United States of America is prepared to furnish such 
military assistance as may be mutually agreed upon, having in mind the above
mentioned purposes.

4. For this purpose, the representatives of the two Governments will deter
mine the terms and conditions of the assistance to be furnished. The assistance 
to be furnished under this understanding shall be carried out in accordance 
with the terms of and in the manner prescribed by the Military Assistance 
Agreement.

5. I have the honor to propose to Your Excellency that this note and, Your 
Excelleney's reply thereto shall constitute an understanding between the two 
Governments on the subject, which shall enter into force on the date of Your 
Excellency's reply. 

I avail myself of the opportunity to present to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

Oano AUGniSTO DE ARAuJO CAsTRo 
His Excellency 

OHN GORDON MrIN, 
Ohargi d' Allaireaadinterim 

of the UnitedStates of America. 

The American Chargd d' Affaires ad inter!?? to the Btazilian Minister 
of Foreign Affairs 

No. 575 Rio DE JAN Emo, January30, 1964. 
ExoE ENoy: 

I have the honor to refer to recent conversations between the representatives
of our two governments concerning the furnishing of military assistance to 
the Government of Brazil in accordance with the provisions of Article I, para
graph 1, i-i fine of the Military Assistance Agreement, of 'March 15, 1952. 

I. Conscious of the obligations which devolve upon them with reference to 
their individual and collective Inter-American defense, the Government of the 
United States of Brazil and the Government of the United States of America 
wishing to strengthen their capacity to counteract threats or acts of aggression, 
or any other dangers to peace and security, in accordance with the undertakings
,contained in treaties and agreements previously concluded, such as tle Charter 
o-f the Organization of American States and the Inter-American Treaty of 
--Reciprocal Assistance signed in Rio de Janeiro on September 2, 1947, have 
reached an understanding concerning arrangements for the furnishing of military
zasistance for ,the above purposes by the Government of the United States of 
America to the'Government of Brazil in accordance with the provisions of the 
VIilitary Assistance Agreement, it being'understood that the undertakings therein 
-which -are limited to assistance for existing defense plans under which both 
Governments will participate in missions important to the defense of the Western 
flemisphere shall be adjusted by mutual agreements as found necessary. 

TIAS 2361; 2 UST 2894.
 
tTIAS 1838; 62 Stat 1,081.
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,2. Bearing in mind that both, Governments are inspired by the desire to pro
,vide fq the Jdef6hse and Inaiftenaffce bf 'gata in the'Westr)rfileiIspTareI the 

-,Government of the Uiitd 'Sta W of Amenei'a is pgrbe&e& futnih milit'ry 
assistance as mat be mutua ly agreed, havn= 'in- mind the above metion4d 
,purposes, -, 'J ''* 

3: Jor. this purp6se, .tbe rep'iesentgtives of'"the two Governments will deter
mine the terms and conditiong'of thd assistance' o be £u nisd.'he assistance 
to be furnished.under this understanding shall be.cariied.out inlacbordance with 
_And ubject to the provisions of the Military Assistance Agreemenjt. 

4. I have the hofor to propose to Your Excellency,.tbqt this note and -Your 
Excelleney!s reply thereto shall constitute an undeIstanding betkveen. the :two 
.governments onthis subject which shall enter irtoiore on this date. 

Aqcept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration. 

_ RA'4k~jo0 C-ASTR 0, 

Minister-ofForeignAffairs, -


R to de Janeiro.
 

BUAZIL 

DEFENSE:" DisposprioN OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL 

Agreement effected by exchange: of notes Signed at tio de Sanelro franuary 27,-
1967; Entered into force Januaimy 27,1967., 

The AmericanOhargd d'Affaires ad interinm to t1e Brazilian.'Acting Minister of
 
ForeignAffairs
 

RIo D SANEIRO,January27,1067
lsO. 613 - ,I
-. 


I Jhave the honor to inform Your Excellency that the Government of the 
Uited-States of America, wishing to see precise norms established for the return 
of equipment and materiel which have been or will be provided as a fesuit of 
the Military Assistance Agreement signed at lbo de JaneirovonMarch.15, 1952;1 ] 

- agrees' to .the proylsions set-forth in -the following, items: • 
I- or the jpurposes -of -this agreement the ,termn "materiel" means all.equip

xment, materiel, inclding ships, or parts thereof whihaavetbee-,providedby one 
to the other of the Contracting Partiesanderthe terms of the Military Assistance 
Agreement signed at Rio de Janeiro on. March 15,1952. 

2. Each Contracting Party shall n6tify the other, 'through the Delegations 
maintained at the Joint .Brazil-Unite- States Military -OomraIssion, of the exist
ence of materielconsidered unnecessary, whether because it is no longer required 
for the Durposefor ,which intended, opbecauseit has outlivednorml -usefulness 
or because it has 'been damaged or.rendered. useless beyond repair. Each Con
,tracting Party ,may 'also-inform the other, throughthe versonnel referred to in 
the first sentence of this paragraph, of any such materiel which may come to the 
attention of either party, and when so informed, the party so-notified shall enter 
into consultation with the party giviiig -notification with-a view to, disposing of 
any such materiel according to the procedures set out in the following items. 
3.The notifications made in accordance with the preceding item will contain 

whenever ppssible a detailed list of the material whiict willbe grouped according 
to the reasons for which the materiel iSno longer required, 

4. After notification in accordance with items 2 and 3, the Assignor of such 
materiel will indicate to the Assignee, in the manner established by item 2 for 
notifications, the materiel which the Assignor considers should be accepted by it 
for return. 

5. The return of the materiel will be evidenced by statements of delivery and 
by receipts signed respectively by the duly authorized agents for the Assignee 
or the Assignor. 

'TIAS 2776; 4 UST 170. 

http:JaneirovonMarch.15
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6. The Assignee of the materiel, the return of which was determined in accord
ance with item 4, shall deliver it at a port, airport, or other point of embarkation, 
designated by mutual.agreement between the Contracting Parties, in-the national 
territory of the Assignee. 

7. It is understood that the Assignee will bear only the expense of transporta
tion and loading of the materiel to be returned as far as the port, airport, or 
other point of embarkation. 

8. Materiel determined to be no longer necessary and not selected for return 
by the Assignor will as soon as possible be disposed of by mutual agreement be
tween the Contracting Parties. 

9. All of the materiel which has been provided under the Military Assistance 
Agreement of March 15, 1952, and which becomes unusable or becomes scrap 
will be subject to notification in accordance with items 2 and 3, and its disposition 
will be governed in accordance with the provisions of items 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8. 

10. This agreement shall enter into force on the date on which it is concluded. 
11. This agreement shall remain in force until six months after the date on 

which one of the Contracting Parties notifies the other of its decision to terminate 
it Such termination will in no way affect the legal effects of the Agreement of 
March15,1952, providedit is still in force. 

This note and that of Your Excellency of the same date and contents will con
stitute an Agreement between our two Governments on this matter. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration. 
Pnr RAINSE 

CharoS d'Affaires a.i. 
His Excellency

Ambassador MA Ozr. Fio ConEA, 
Acting Ministerof ForeignAffairs, 

Rio do Janeiro. 
The Brazilian Aothng Minister of ForeignAffairs to the American Ghargd 

dl'Affaires ad tnterim 

(Translation] 

MINSTRY OF Foniow Amr s, 
January27, 1967. 

DAS DAI 34/524.2 (22) 

MR. CnAxe19 D'AFF~imEs: 
I have the honor to inform you that the Government of the United States of 

Brazil, wishing to see precise norms established for the return of equipment 
and materiel which luhve been or will be provided as a result of the Military 
Assistance Agreement signed at Rio de Janeiro on March 15, 1952, agrees to 
the provisions set forth in the following items: 

[For the-text see U.S. note above,] 

2, This note and your note of the same date and contents win constitute an 
agreement between our two Governments on this matter. 

Accept, Sir, the renewed assurances of my very distinguished consideration.
M Pro a 

Mr. Pn ' RAINE, 
Charg4d' Affaires ad interim of the
 

United States of America.
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- •BRAZIL 

S. AERIAL MAPPING PROGRAM 

Agreement effected by exchange-ot notes signed at ie de 3aneiro.Tune 2, 1052; 
- - entered intoforce June 2, 1952 

!IhAsnericarAnbrnsatorto~thle Brazltfa,Mligter of7 Statejar Foreig2nAffairs

.:-;'HEjoPMaN SMVIO OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMURICA 

I RI1ornE JAWELIRO,BRLAZ1L, 
p June,2, .ZO5S. 

I have the honor to refer to the conversations which bare taken plade-between 

'representatives of the -Goiernment of the United States of Americax and repre
sdntatives of he United- Stafes' of Brail 'regarding the establishment of a col
laborative piogram of aeronautic 'charting and"topogrtphic mapping in Brazil. 

Acting in accordance with instructionsF-reeeived' from my- Gbvernment, I am 
glad to inform, Your Excellency fhat ,the Government of 'the United States of 
Anjerica agrees that a program of aeronautic charting and topographic mapping 
in Brazil 9halI be established in accordance with the following provisions:

'The two Goveinments agreeito establish a Mixed Commission to -be composed
of technicEl personnel of the United; States of America and of the United States 
ofBrazil'ThbCbmmission shalrbe resiqnsibI for'the formulation of theltechni
cal work plans and for their execution and'suervision. 

The Mixed Commission shall designate geodetic technicians of both Govern
tments to act as ,a technical commission- whose functions,-shall be: 

1. to andly:e existinj geodetic surveys and prepared comprehensive plans 
for their integration; 1

2. to determine the amount and.locatidn of additionalhotizontal and 
vertical controlof'first-order accuracy;

3.to -determine the amount-and location of supplementary horizontal and 
vertical control necessary for accurate map and chart compilation,, and 

4. toAsupervise the*,execition of al1'operations in order to assu're their 
compliance with the, standards adopted by the Pah American institute of 
Geography ,and H11istory, and by the International Union of Geodesy and 
Geophysics. , II 

The Governmentof the United States'ofAmerica.alsoagrees:
1. to excute as' expeditiously' as .-o~sible the trimetrofigon and vrtical 

photograph2 in areas of mutdial intdrest required by this collaborative 
program; 

2. ,to ptvide such technical helpin 'the form of'peronnel, equipment and 
otbei articles as may be, available, within the limitations of' funds if re
quested by the-agencies, of the Governmntof the United States of Brazil 
for the execution of geodetic, astronomic, and 6ther precise technical work 
in areas of ffutual'interest;" 

3. to keep the Government of the United States of Brazil currently in
formed regarding the entry into Biazil of civilian and nillitary personnel 
of the Unite2 Statesof America, the date andtdace ofentry; and other niat
ters relating to the collaborative program; hnd 

4. to furnish to the Governmenf of the :Uniteu State6 of Brazil: 
a. two domplete'sets of prints of the trinierogon photography accom

plished;'or, in -liethereof, one set of dUplIicate negatives on-topographic 
base-film; 

b. One set of duplidate negatives on topographic base film of the -ver
tical photograb y accomplished; 

c. one set of. plot maps of each'tybe of'phbtogiaphy, indicating, the 
lfines of flight and the photographic coverage; 

d. duplicate copies of geodetic control data; 
e.'two -ets-of the base compilation sheets for the aeronautic charts 

at a scale of 1:500,000 and 1:1,000,000 
f. tWo hundred copies each. of the aeronautic chirts of a scale of1:1,000,000; ' " •- •' 
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g. two sets of the base compiltation sheets of the topographic mfaps;
and 

h. two hundred-topies each- of the topographic maps which may be 
produced under the program.
 

'The Government of%the'UniteW'States -of Brazil also agrees':

1. to permit the iaking of ,such aerialkiphdtography of its territories and 

the entry into Brazil of such personnel of the United States of America as 
may'be necessary for-the accomplishment ofthe tasks previously, established 
by the Mixed Commission; 

2. to 'make available all, astronomic, geodetic, and topographic data and 
all related charts, maps and sketches which are now in. its, possession or 
which shall come into its possession during the course of this program, and 
to provide technical units in order to establish with required precision all 
points of reference, including photogrammetric picture points, in sufficient 
number and in such locations as may be necessary for purposes of coxupila
tion by modern photogrammetric methods;

3. to coordinate its future mapping program with thih program so far as 
may be practicable ; but, performance of the proposed program will,notlimit 
the complete liberty of the Government of Brazil to do .any cartographic 
work to~meet its ownrequirements; 

4. to permit the importation, free from ,the payment of duties anil other 
customs charges, of equipment, fuel,' supplies, and other articles necessa'ry
for the execution of perational projects ,undertaken by agencies of thie 
Government of the ,United Statesof America,.as well as any And, all articles 
for the personal use of the civilian andimilitary personnel of, such agencies
residing in Brazil, if the article is not one.the importation of which is-pro
hibited by the laws of the United States-of ,Brazil, and to fermit the expor
tation free of taxes and ,other charges of equipment and other articles 
brought into Brazil by such agencies and personnel of the Government of 
the United Statesof America inconnection with thisagreement. 

In order to assure proper protection and security for their interests, -the two 
Governmentsiurtheragree that: 

1. all work incident to this program.-shall ba-accomplished-exclusively for 
the mutual benefit of the-two .Governments and the results thereof shall be 
considered their exclusive property; I 

2., that the aerjal photographs obtained through the accpnplishment of 
this program shall not be- revealed by either Government to nationals of 
either-country without tbejpriox consent of theother Government; 

3. specific or detailed information relating to the aerial photography,
geodetic surveys, andother technical operations -undertaken as a part of 
this program.shall not be revealed to athird,country, its-nationals or agents,
by, one of the Governments without the prior consent of the other Govern
ment; and 

4- the original negatives of the-photography-and-the original field notes of 
the technical agencies of the Government of the United States of America 
shall be retained- in the archives of that Government subjectto the security
restrictions set forth above. 

The two Governments undertake ,that the Mixed-Commission shall be formed 
at the earliest possible date.. 

The provisions of this agreement shall apply to the extent possible, In the 
judgment of the Mixed Commission, to the informal ,arrangements between the 
two Governments relating to ,aeronautic charting and topographic mapping in 
Brazil which are.in effect at the present time. 

This agreement may be terminated at any time by either the -Government of
the United States of Brazil or the Government of the United States.of America, 
subject to 6ighteen months' written notice to the other Government. 

The present note and that of 'Your Excellency of today's date and the same 
tenor, in the Portuguese language, will be considered as the instrument of ad
ministrative agreement between our two Governments on the~subject in question.

Accept, Dxcellency, the -renewed assurances of my highest ,consideration. 
[SEAL] 

HKasoHEL V. fiHswNHis Excellency 
J01 NEVES DAYONTOURA, ' " 

Winst&o/ State for Foreign Affairs of Brdzil,
 
Rio e Janeiro.
 

http:States.of
http:America,.as
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-TkeBrazilianMinister'ofState for PoreigwAffairs tothe Anerican.Ambassador 

Tyranswaion] 

MinIsTRY OF FoREIGN A'Amus, 
RXo Dr TANEIRO. 

7no 2,1952MR. AmBASSAnOB, 
I have tMe honor -to aebkowledge receipt of note No. 568 of June 2, in which 

Your Excellency refers to the conversations that have taken place' between the 
'Brazilian authorities and the representatives of the Government of the United 
States of America regarding 'the establishment of a collaborative program for 
the preparation of topographic maps and aeronautic charts in Brazil. 

2. I am authorized to' inform Your Excellency that the Brazilian Government 
agrees that the topograihic map and aeronautic chart program shall be estab
lished in accordance with the following provisions: 

[EFor the text of the provisions, see U.S. note above.] 
11. Your Excellency's note No. 568 and the present note, both dated today,

shall be considered the instrument of administrative agreement-between our two 
GoVernments on the subject in question.

I avail myself of the opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 
of my highest consideration. 

olo NEVES DA FONTOURA 
His Excellency IIESOCnEL V,. JONSoN, 

Ambassador of the United States 
of America. 

Agreement interpreting the agreement of June 2, 1952. Effected by exchange
of notes. Signed at Rio de .Taneiro September 22 and 28, 1965; Entered into 
force September 28,,1966. 

The American Ambassador to the BrazilianActing Minister of ForeignAffairs 

Rio DE XAwmo, September 22, 1965. 
No. 277 
EXCELLENCY: 

I have the honor to refer to the exchange of notes signed at Rio de Janeiro 
on June 2, 1952 [f] effecting an agreement between our two-governments con
cerning a collaborative program of aeronautic charting and topographic map
ping in Brazil and, in connection therewith, to record the understanding of my
government that any provision of that agreement notwithstanding, the original
negatives of the photography may be retained in the possession of the Govern
ment of Brazil. 

If the Government of Brazil concurs in that understanding this note and Your 
Excellency's note in reply shall constitute an agreement between our two gov
ernments interpreting the aforesaid agreement effected by ,exchange of notes of 
June 2, 195!. 

Accept,, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest consideration.
 
LiNwoLN GORDON.
 

His Excellency

Ambassador ANTo Io BORGES LSAL CASTWZO BRONCO Ena:O,
 

Acting Atnisterof ForeignAffairs,
 
Rio de Janeiro.
 

ITIAS 2 56; 3 UST (pt. 3) 4838. 
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The BrazilianActing Minister of Foreign Affairs to the Amerioa'Ambaesador 

[Translation] 

AfNISTRY oF FOIaN AFrRS, 
September 28, 1065. 

DA-/DAI/ 248/592.54 (22) 
IR. AmRAsADOR: 

I have the honor to, acknowledge the receipt of Note No. 227, dated Septem
ber 22, 1965, in which Your Excellency refers to the agreement between ourtwo countries effected by an exchange of notes on June 2, 1052, with regard to a collaborative program for the preparation in Brazil of aeronautic charts andtopographic maps, and expresses the understanding of the United States Government that Brazil may retain in its possession the original negatives of the
photographs.

2. In reply, I inform Your Excellency that the Brazilian Government concursin this point of view and that this note and Note No. 277 referred to above shallconstitute an agreement between our governments interpreting the agreement
concluded by the ezchange of notes on June 2, 1952.
I take this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the 
assurances of my
highest consideration. 

A. B. L. CASTEIo RBrANcoHis Excellency
 
IncOLN Grtxo,
 

Amicraoador of the United gtat&es

of America.
 

BRAZIL 

DEFENsE: JOINT BrAZIL-UNITED STATBS MILTAtY ANfl DEFEnSCOMOmMISSIoS 

Agreement effect ed by exchange of notes Signed at Rio de Janeiro August 1 an. 
September 20, 1955; Entered into force September 20, 1955 

Tke Ainerivan Ambaseador to the BrazilianMinister of ForeignAffairs 

THE FOREIGN SERVICZ oM TE INITED STATES OF AMERICA 

EMBASS OF TE
 
UNITED STATES OF AltERICA,
 

No0. 28 Rio de Janeiro,August 1, 1955.
 

EXCELLEN oy:
I have the honor to advise Your Excellency that the Government of theUnited States of America, recognizing the long friendship and mutual cooperation which have existed between our two Governments throughout their historyand mindful of the ever-increasing community of interests which our twoGovernments share, and desiring to further the ability of the United States of
America 
and of the Republic of the United States of Brazil to participate moreeffectively in arrangements tor their individual and, mutual security and the
security of the hemisphere within the scpe of the ITnter-AmOrican Treaty of
Reciprocal Assistance and the framaework of the Charter of the United Nations,
 

proposes the following agreement:
(1) The joint Brazil-United Stater Military Commission (JBUSMIC), originallyestablished in Rio de Janeiro during World War II by the two Governments as a means of assisting each other in achieving their common goal of mutual
security, will continue to function as the principal agency in the United States
of Brazil for facilitating military cooperation between 
 the two countries.(2) The Joint Brazil-United States Defense Commission (JIBUSDC), originally
established in Washington, D.C, during World War 1I by the two Governmentsas a means of assisting each other in achieving their common goal of -mutualsecurity, will continue to function as the principal agency in the United States
of America for facilitating military cooperation between the two countries.(3) Each Government, upon being appropriately advised, agrees to receive
personnel of the other Government who will discharge responsibilities of thatGovernment in connection with the implemeutation of this agreement 

http:248/592.54
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(4) 	 Arrangements governing the conposition, functions, and procedures of 
into 	from time to time, as necessary, bythe 	two commissions may be entered 

the 	appropriate military authorities of the two Governments. 
(5) This Agreement shall remain in effect until one year from the date of 

notice by either Government of its intention to terminate the Agreement. 
If the foregoing provisions are acceptable to Your Excellency' Government, 

I have the honor to propose that this note and Your Pxeellency's reply thereto 
shall be regarded as constituting an agreement between the two Governments 
concerning this matter. 

Accept, Excellency, the renewed assurances of my highest esteem and con
sideration. 

JAMES CLEMENT DUNN. 

His Excellency 
RAUL FEENANDES, 

Miniter of Forefgn Affairs of Brazil, 
Rio do Janeiro, 

The Brazilian MiniSter Of .ForeignAffairs to the Amertcan Ambassador 

[Trawslation-] 

MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFAIRs,
Rio do Janeiro,September20, 1955. 

nromnh1/l2/62o (20) 

Mr. AmRAssAroR: 
I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of note No. 28 of August 1, 1955, in 

which Your Excellency states that, in view of the ever greater community of 
interests between Brazil and the United States of America, and of -both Govern
ments' desire to develop this understanding through agreements aimed at in
creasing their mutual security and also the security of the hemisphere in the 
spirit of the Inter-American Treaty of Reciprocal Assistance and the Charter of 
the United Nations, the Government of the United States of America, desires to 
enter into an agreement for the reorganization of the Joint Brazil-United States 
Military Commission on the following bases: 

[For the terms of the agreement, U.S. note, above.] 

2. In reply, I am happy to inform you -thatthe Brazilian Government accepts 
the proposal submitted by Your Excellency and assumes, on this date, the com
mitments deriving therefrom. 
'I avail myself'of the opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurances 

of my highest consideration. 

His 	Excellency 
JAMES CLEMENT DUNN, 

Amlassador of the United States of America, 

AGarEM'ENT TO BJEPROD1TCE flNCLASSIIED GIHARTS IN MoIMaED FAcSIIfL) 

It is hereby agreed by the Director General of flydrography"and Navigation
of the United States of Brazil and by the fydrographer of the Navy of the 
United States of America that effective with the signing of this document their 
respective hydrographic offices will be authorized to reproduce the unclassified 
charts Of the other office, in modified facsimile, for sale to the general public.

This Agreement is in accordance with the Resolution%adopted at the Seventh 
International Conference of the International Hydrographic Bureau. 

S/ 	 Pedro Paulo de Araujo Suzano /s/ H. a. ?funson 
PEOR0 PAULO DE ARAUjO SUZANO, H. G. MUNSON, 

VADUM CAPT., U.S.N.,
Director General of ifyurog- Hvdrographerof the Navy, 

raphy and Navigation of the United States of America. 
United , tates of Brazil Date: September 16, 1959
 

Date: Dec. 4, 1959
 

AGRESMENT CONCNINxG RADIO Rio STATIoN (1962) 

[Deleted] 



82 

AGBEmENT FR OPRETION OF R&E1LA/REEOCI CIRCUIT (4908), 

[Deleted] 

[Enclosure 2) 

U.S. SECTION JOINT UNITED STATES-BRAZILIAN MILITARY
 
COMMISSION
 

Command and' Joint Staff 

2Maj./Gen. G. S. Beatty, Commander.
 
Capt. G. R. Webster, Aide.
 
Col. It. L. Smith. Chief Joint Staft and Secretary, U.S. Delegation.
 
Col. W. D. Clark, Liaison officer, Escola Superior De Guerra.
 
GS W. P. Renny, Plans officer.
 
Cdr. R. 0. Brown, Plans officer.
 
Lt. Col. W. K. Heyer, Administrative officer.
 
Capt. R. S. Kobayashi, Finance officer.
 
E-S H. 0. Clause, Administrative NCO.
 
E-7 A. Rosado, Supply supervisor.
 

Army 

Col. T. A- Goldes, Combat arms advisor.
 
Col. J. A. Font,Deputy Chief, operations.

Lt. Col. B: C. Winship, Artillery/ordnance advisor.
 
Lt. Col. V,D. McNamee, Engineering advisor.
 
Maj. R. LBDe Mello, Signal advisor.
 
Lt..Col. C.L. Butler,.Airborne/infantry advisor.
 
Lt. Col. L. Harper, Armored cavalry advisor.
 
Lt Col. V. Moya, Logistics advisor.
 
E-7 J. S. Lyon, Administrative NCO.
 

Navy 

Rear/Adm. C. A. Hill, Chief.
 
Capt W. 3. Doyle, Sub chief, advisor to Naval-War College.
 

-.Cdr. J. A. Roberts, Ship engineering and hull advisor. 
Cdr. A. R. Gustafson, Supply/logistics advisor. 
Lt. Col. T, X. Woodham, Marine' training advisor and advisor to,Naval War 

College.
Cdr. F. G. Haswell, Communications and research advisor.
 
E-7 H. N. Hinckley, Administrative yeoman
E-7 J. A. Lomba, Assistant engineering advisor.
 
E-71. i. McCaughan, Assistant supply/logistics.

D-4 .. B. Storey, Map administration.
 

Air Force 

Brig./Gen. 3. 3. Liset, Chief. 
Col. R..C. Carnwright, Deputy chief, operations.

Maj. R 0. Morrison, Maintenance/supply. advisor.
 
Lt. Col. W. A Hamilton, E1ducation/training advisor.
 
Maj. S. T. Stihi, Communications advisor.
 
B-S R. C. Kilgore, Administrative supervisor.
 
Capt. J. R. Brewer, Operations advisor.
 
E-7 B. G.Hines, Assistant maintenance advisor. 

,-6 0. Bosch, Assistant supply advisor.
 
E-7 1.K. Overbeck, Aircraft crew chief.
 
E-7 N: S. maral, Aircraft flight engineer.
 
E-7 L, A, Robbins, Aircraft radio operator.
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[Enclosure 3] 

Section 7.U.S. DELEBGATION, JOiNTBRAkZIL, UNITED STATBR-MILITARY 
COMMISSION (Rio defJaneiro,Brazil) 

Organization Chart (Chart 21) 

"U:S.Deleghtion, Mission and' unctions 

Miilitary Secretary 

U S DELEGATION, JOINT BRAZIL-UNITED STATES MILITARY COMMISSION 

RIODe .~mCLo. ORAZIl, 

cF"wN I LIAISOq OFF[cR' Us 


US Dt.eTo -I EAZUt ATIOqAL, 
WIC WA CL2:) 

I JO'MTEZXECUTIVr OQARO 

ir
I IsI IUSARW CAI F_1C WtM 

-.-- -. ] ------ L....--,---------------I 
US ArMY US US AM VORCSSteL L s*~ ASC0 

tYImaty G,.C Jp (mAAG1 
/ 23US' WX ER;S AtE NtRAL at n'AG OFFICtR R~rRSSRTA,,w's OF "IrtI tESPSC',1V 

US CNIZFS OF ST Wfl '1 59I V.RMSS OSIG'I O SCKIn4-

Chut 21 

Orgnization;: As showm on the US Delegation, Joint Brazil-United States 
ilitary Commission (JETUSMO) Organization Chart (Chart 21). 
The JEUSMO is the principal agency in Brazifor facilitating military coopera

tion between the two countries. It is- a bilateral organization for international 
cooperation and makes recommendations on bilateral military matters. It co
ordinates on matters of mutual concern with the Joint Brazil-United States De
fense Commission-in Washington, D.C. 

U.S. DELEGWTION 

Mission: The US Delegation represents the United States on all matters "com
ing before the JBUSMO, and participates with the Brazilian Delegation in ar
rangements for furthering the individual and mutual security of the two coun
tries and the security of the hemisphere within the scope of the Inter-American 
Treaty of Reciprocal Assistance and the charter of the United Nations. 

vauctiont: 
1. To participate in the work of the JBUSIC' and to represent the United 

States on all matters coming before the organ. 
2. M1ake recommendations on subjects within, its purview to the US Joint 

Chiefs of Staff, or to the military authorities'designated by them. 
3. Responsible-for the preparation of bilateral studies. 
4. Responsible for military matters as directed "by appropriate military 

authority. 
5. Additionally, the US Delegation, JBUSA10, performs the functions of a 

military assistance advisory group, and in this capacity is responsible-to-the corn
mander of the unified command in the geographical area. 

l 
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YFunictiomg: 
1. Responsible for -organization, administration, and operation of the Secre

tariat, US Delegation, JBUSMC. 
2. Keep the Chairman and Delegates, US Delegation, JBUSMC, advised of all 

pertinent Joint Chiefs of StaR,,Office Secretary of Defense, and State Department 
activities pertaining to Brazilian affairs. 

3. Represent the Chairman, US Delegation, JBUSMC, in Commission matters 
)pertaining to Brazilian civilian authorities, and be responsible for supervising 
commission matters pertaining .to customs, ,police, port authorlites, and other 
agencies.

4. Responsible for maintaining constant liaison with the Brazilian Delegation, 
3BUSM0, and for coordinating and expediting actions of joint interest. 
5. Maintain constant liaison, by personal conferences and visits, with appro

priate Brazilian governmental departments and agencies, i.e., Ministry of Finance, 
Chief of Police, Director of Traffic, Post Office Department, Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs, Inspector of Customs, Port Director, and the Vehicle Registration Bureau, 
in order to facihtate JBUSiM interests within those agencies. 

6. Maintain the central office oX record for the US Delegation, the Joint Execu
tive Board, the Joint Planning Board, and other boards or committees established 
by the US Delegation, 3'BUSNIC, and is responsible for the security of all official 
matters pertaining thereto. 

T. Prepare agenda for and record meetings of the US Delegation, the Joint 
Executive Board, and the Joint Planning Board. Coordinate inter-Service actions 
within the US Delegation, 53BUSM3C. 

S. Monitor Department of Defense projects in Brazil as they pertain to US-
Brazil relations. 

9. Act as liaison officer 'vith the United States Embassy for JBUSMO matters. 
10. Provide for the translation and preparation of US Delegation documents 

and correspondence in the Portuguese language 
11. Provide for arrangements in connection with international conferences. 

[Enclosure 4] 

TER2MS OF REFEREcE, DrrsiD STATES MILITARY GroUrs 

[Deleted] 

[Enclosure 5] 

VALUE OF MILITARY ASSISTANCE (INCLUDING TRAINING) AND SALES BY FISCAL YEAR 

[In thousands of dollars] 

Military Excess (acquisition 
assistance value) Foreign military sales program 

Program Del. Program Del. Cash CrediL Total Del. 

iscal year:
1950-------- _---------------------------------------- (I--- ------------------- g 
1951__........................................................ -- 546, 
1952 ------------------------------------------------------------ )-------- ------- 4,220 
1953 ............------ ) 3,030 Q) 52,783 ----- 771 
1954- ---------------- () 17,566 Q) 5,017 .................... 402 
1955 -------- 12.671 (k) 2,230 -------------------- 440 
1956 ................... 7,774 t) 564 .................... -8752,044.-----------------8,270 () 150 
195 ---------------- 18,205 9 2,802 ---------------- 1,457
1957 ----------- ------. 

1959 ------ 11,713 ) 659 .----------------- 933 

1060 ------ 18,121 ) 2,256 5,079 
I9162 ------------------...................
 

1963 ----------------- 165,553 
,964 ------------- 10,346
1965 ....----- - 11,144 
196 --------------- 17,349 

9,976 
9,115 
,440 

9,517 

72,529 
1,116 
2,252 
5,076 

3.081 
239 

1,690 
1,990 

18,861- -------
2,911 23.400 

238 ----------
463 11.843 

1861....... 
26,311 

238 
12,306 

75 
3,491 
13,290 

1967_............ 
1968--------------
1969 ----------------
1970....----------------

12,215
2.S61 
3805 
914 

13,446 1,523 2,964
12,619 217 3-954 
6,636 -----------------
4,335 ---------- () 

1,539 18,434
4,525 19.004 
2,163 --
2,075 ...-------

19,973
23,525 
2,163 
2,075 

6,099
15,684 
17,700 
11,655 

Total ----------- 221,007 217,679 82,715 82,500 32,775 72,677 105,452 84,901. 

1 Program data not available by year prior to fiscal year 1964. Amounts shown in program columns for f#scal year 1963 
-are cumulative fiscal year 1950-63. 

2 Training only. 
I Not available. 
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NUMBER OF STUDENT TRAINEES BY FISCAL YEAR 

Umited States Panama Total 

Fiscal year.
1950-1963 ..............................................- 3,120 29a 3 419

1964 -----------..------------------------------------.. 304 54 358
1965....................................... 219 51 270
 
1966 ------------------------------- .------ . -------.... 353 126 479

1937 --------------------------------------- 403 148 551 
1968 ---------- .................. 527 66 593
1269 520 56 626 
1970------------------------------------------------- 515515 57 5621970 ........................................... 47 62
 

Total ----------------------------------------------- 6,011 847 6,858 

[Enclosure 61 

MILITARY ASSISTANCE TRAINING PROGRAM-BRAZIL 

lFigures inparentheses are number of students trained overseas] 

Total number of students trained (fiscal years) 

Category of training 1964 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 

---- ------ 6Flying----_ _ _----- .... ...... 9 11 (6) 3
Operations --------------------- (28) 50 (34) 46 (34) 2q (20) 16 (10) 11 24 (14)
Commurncation/eleclroncs ------- 35 21 8 (2) 22 (14) 16 (3) 30 (5) 30 (6)
Maintenance--------------------- 22 14 (2) 59 (57) 92(65) 24 (4) 14 (3) 9

,Logistics......................... 13 5 19 (2), 5 10 23 17 (1)

Adm;nistrave ---------------- 7 4 - 5 (4) 2 1
Professional ----------------- 58 54 (4) 51 (5) 30 (4) 70 (25) 80 (2A) 72 (13)
Orientaion....................... 158 (26) 133 (22) 296 (26) 313 (41) 448 (24) 455 (18) 406 (13)

Missile --------------------------- 2 

Total students-- ----- 358 (54) 283 (62) 479 (126) 551 (148) 593 (66) 626 (56) 562 (47) 

PRINCIPAL COuTESES PROVIDED WITHIN EACH CATEGORY OF TRAiNI-NG 

Fying.-Pilot transition, Helo Instrument Pilot Instructor, Undergraduate 
Navigator, On-the-Job Aviation Training. 

Logi8tic&-Army Logistics Management, ADPS Plans/Opns Officer, Foreign 
Officer Supply Course, Transportation Management, Budget Officer, Logistics Ex
ecutive Development 

Operations.-Engineer Officer, Field Artillery Officer, Flight Safety Officer, 
Special Forces Officer, Foreign Officer ASW Course. 

Adtmnistration.-Personnel Management, Chaplain Officer Career, Navy Ship
yard Management, Technical Instructors. 

Ca nwunioations/Pletroics,-RadioSystems Officer, Communications Officer, 
Electronics Technician, Air Traffic Control Officer, Ground Radar Sys Technician. 

ProfessiwiaZ-Jfngineer Officer, Field Artillery Officer, Infantry Officer, Ord
nance Officer, Signal Officer, Armor Officer, Command-Gen Staff Officer, Ail Com
mand and Staff College, Afilitary Intelligence, Naval Command Course, English 
Language Training. 

Maintenance-Aircraft Maintenance Officer, Weather Equipment Repairman, 
Electronic Instrument Repairman, Aviation Machinst Mate, Engineer Equipment 
Maintenance. 

Orientation.-Orientation Tours/Visits.
MisseZ-odern Weapons/Tactics. 

r.s. ronorY OBJEG=nrnS 

Mr. Hour. General, on page 8 of your statement you say that the 
mission of the U.S. delegation is to assist the U.S. country team in 
Brazil in achieving U.S. policy objectives. How would you define those 
objectivesg, 

General' BEA=T. Well, very simply, I think. We want to maintain 
a mature relationship of assistance-economic and social-we want to 
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provide them the opportunity to develop in the best way that they can,
vaiid *6 want to do this at all times with the idea of a partnership as 
•opposegto our being the paternatimage in the act. 

Mr. IToLT. In the next sentence on that same page you mention that 
'the chairman and headquarters staff of the U.S. delegatioA are co
located with the Brazilian delegation -in a Brazilian Government 
building. What is that building known as? 

General BATi. It is known as the Palaeio Monroe.. 
Mr. HoLT. What was it formerly used for? 
General BEATrY. It was the Federal Senate prior to the move to 

Brasalia. 
ROISE OF J-OINT COMMISSIOr 

Mr. HOIT. On page 4 you say at the top "the atmosphere has been 
-midis today one of friendly cooperation and mutual respect in dealing
-with whatever matters may arise." 

This refers to the joint commission. What matters do arise; what 
matters does the commission deal with ? 

General BeAt . Well primarify these days matters of training, that 
is the primary thing. OA course we have some follow on MAP coming 
up, and that is the sort of thing that we deal with. But these people 
feel very free to consult our people on matters of their own training,
-matters of technique, and matters of operational correctness, in our 
view, and so on. 

In other words, you can say that they seek advice on almost any
matter concerning an armed force. 

THREAT TO BRAZIL'S SECUTY 

Mr. HOLT.In a letter to Senator Fulbright of July 2, 1970, Assistant 
Secretary Meyer wrote: 

The military mission's role in Brazil is primarily an advisory one. Under our 
military assistance agreement it helps the host government assess the threat 
to the nation's security and counsels on the strategy and tactics for dealing with 
the threat. 

What is your assessment of the threat to,Braiil's security? 
General BEATTY. fDeleted:]
Mr. Hour. Well, could you elaborate on that a little bit. Is it a 

serious threat, is it a minimal threat, what is the nature of it? 
General BEAr. [Deleted.]
Mr. HoT.I am asking what it seems to you. 
General BnATb. [Deleted.] 
Mr. Hour. Well, the Assistant Secretarj of State has said you

helped Brazil assess the threat to the nation's,security, If that is why 
you are in Brazil, you must have sdme notion about -'hatthe threat 
to Brazil's security is. 

General BArr. [Deleted.]
Senator CHtmcxx. And the training you are giving now, General, 

relates primarily to-this [deleted] threat. 
General BnAn. No. The'training we give is training that would-be 

apropos for any military force in any country regardless of the 
ikind of threat..It is true that during the Kennedy adnmistration there 
-was an emphasis on counterguerrilla and counferrbvoiutionary train
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ing. Some of that still continues because, of course, that is a possible 
threat anywhere, but it is not aimed at this entirely. For instance, ob
viously the Navy's activities are mostly nonrelated. Much of the Air 
Force's activities are.nonrelated to this. 

LOCATION OF TRAINING rROORAXS 

Senator Ounon. In connection with the training of Brazilian of
ficers to which you referred, where does this training,primarily take 
place?

General BEAThr. Primarily in the United States and in Panama. 
Senator CanRu i. You have testified that your responsibilities are 

carried out under a command structure which runs through the 
Panama Command. 

General BEATr. Right. 
Senator Cnmcx. Could the training that you are now doing be 

accomplished satisfactorily without that Panama Command, that is 
,could you maintain a training program of the kind you are now 
conducting and do it satisfactorily without functioning through the 
Panama Command? 

General BngprY. Yes, it could be done. It would be more difficult 
and, I believe, our South American friends would consider this a 
very direct slap in the face. 

Senator Camc. Why?
General B rrY. Primarily because they have become accustomed 

to it. They know that this is there, it is an evidence of interest in that 
part of the world, and they recognize that the weight of -that head
quarters has been used on a number of occasions to assist them in get
ting things which they felt were necessary to their own programs and 
their own countries. 

Senator CHunca. Could the training that is now taking place at 
Panama take place within the United States itself at military bases 
here in our own country so far as the program itself is concerned.? 

- Could it be conducted satisfactorily In military facilities located in 
the United States? 

General BrATTY. Most of them, I think with the possible exception
of the jungle training, sir. There we have the ideal setup; we really
don't have a good jungle in the United States of the normal descrip
tion. It would be much more expensive. -

Senator CUcRCH. We also have a lot.of asphalt jungles. [Laughter.]
That is all we have at themoment. 
Mr. HonT [Deleted.] 
General BEATTY. Yes. 

U.S.ADVIOE ON INTERNq-AL SECURITY T=InEATS 

Mr. HOLT. And Secretary Meyer has told us that one-of your jobs is 
to counsel on the strategy and tactics for dealing with the threat. What 
advice have you given or do you give the Brazilians for dealing with 
the threat to their internalsecurity?

General BDATTY. Not a bit; none, because they don't ask. 
Mr. HOLT. In this same connection in the material which the Defense 

Department submitted to the subcommittee last December in response
to some questions, it said that,: 
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" As the ,resultof post-war 'collaboration U.S. concepts of hemispheric defense 
were adopted as the basis for common defense planning and standardization of 
equiphent. 

In a second series of questions~the subcommittee asked what were 
U.S. concepts of hemispheric defense, and received an answer which 
in pertinent part reads as follows: I I 

U.S. concepts, of hemispheric defense changed during the post-war period in 
-response to the ,perception of the threat. Today ,our policy -is to assist Latin 
American nations to develop their capabilities to' counter internal security 
threats. 

.Now, ifI understand you correctly you are sayh!g you are-not doing 
anything to advise the.Brazilians on how to counter their internalsecu
rity threat? I. I 

General BEATTY. It depends on how you define advice, Pat, because 
from the standpoint-I 

Mr. HOLT.Well, advice, counsel was Secretary Meyer's word. 
IGeneral BEATTY. Yes. 

Mr. HOaT. Or what are you doing in'the words of the Defense De
partment to assist them-to counter the threat. 

General BEAT. In all of this training, of course, there are things 
that are done' which assist them to make their units more responsive, 
more mobile, more capable; and as:more capable military forces they 
are therefore useful to them in handling this problem. But from the 
standpoint of my advising the Brazilian military on how to take care 
of their internal threat they simply don't ask how I would do it, and 
I don't offer to tell' them. 

Senator CH mH. I would like to just follow up. That makes a great 
-deal,of sense to me, that is how I would have expected it to -be, and I 
'appreciate your frankness, because we are trying-to get at the basic 
facts.here. 

What you are really doing then, General, is furnishing training most 
of which takes place in the United States or in Panama-

General'BrATrTY. Right. 
Senator Cnuxtou (continuing). To upgrade the professional -stand

ards of the military as we might upgrade our own standards, that is 
in accordance with our own concept of' a well-trained and "operated 
professional military force. 

General'BnArrr. Right. -

Senator ntRon. All right. 
Mr.HoLT. But to follow up what Senator Church was saying, after 

they have received this training what they do with it is quite outside 
your area of concern. 

General BrATTY. Yes. 

SUBECTS COVERED rW TRANING CORSES 

Mr. HoLr. I think at this point, Mr. Chairman, it might be well to 
put in the record some of the points which are covered in some of the 
'training courses which Brazilians receive in the United' States. These 
come from a number of course outlines which were submitted to the 
subcommittee by the Defense'Department and 'in case we are -isin
terpreting what is involved here it -would be well for General Beatty 
or the Defense Department to comment or othehwise elaborate on it. 

Some of the topics that come from these course outlines deal with 
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censorship, che6kpoint systems; chemical and biological opetations, 
briefings on the CIA, civic action and civil affairs, clandestine opera
tions, communism and .democracy, cordon and. search operations, 
counterauerrilla operations, cryptography, defoliation, dissent in the 
United tates, electronic intelligence, electronio warfare and counter
measures, the use of informants, insurgency intelligence, countern
telligence, subversion, countersubversion, espionage, counterespionage, 
interrogation of prisoners and suspects, handling mass rallies and 
meetings,.nuclear weapons effects, intelligence photography, poly
graphs, -populace and resources -control, psychological operations, 

raids and searcheg, riots special warfare, surveillance, terror, and 
undercover eO rations. -

Do you have any comment on this, either now or later ? 
General BnATTY. No, I think those are all subjects in -some and 

probably a number of intelligence courses, differing ones, depending 
onv the level. I think.the senior officer courses have-some things andthe 
NCO courses have others but I would have to look at it, you-have 
been looking at it so I -assumethey ate subjects in the courses but they 
sound like they would be. 

Air. HOLT. And you don't know to what use the Brazilians put this 
training after they have gotten it? 

General BFA~ry. No. The men usually wiad up being intelligence 
instructors in one of their schools. That is what the'y-usually db. 

Senator Cnurcn. General, is there a heavy emphasis on military in
telligence m your training courses 

General BrATrY. No, sir; no more than any other. They are interested 
in intelligence as any military group would be but I don't see that 
there is any overemphasis or great emphasis even. They are inth±ested 
in it. They are also interested in how to fire artillery pieces, too. 

DIFFEnfNOE BETW:Efl OINT'BRAZIL- U ITBD STATES MILarARY 0OflISSION 
AND DVlFENSE COMMISSION 

Mr. HOLT. Could you distinguish between the Joint Brazil-United 
States Military Commission and the Joint Brazil-United Stat s' De
fense Commission2 

General BATTY. I would be glad to. They were created at the same 
time, and the Military Commission is iT Brazil. The Defense Commis
sion is here in Washington. The Military Commission i chaired, pr6
sided over, by a Brazilian; the Defense Commission is presided over 
here by an American. 

Mr. HOLT. Do they do substantially the same things .-
General BEA+,. Actuly the Defense Commission has' hhd less 

business in recent years than it had when it was created', apparently 
for the reason that so muciof the Brazilian arrigements for students, 
for travel, et cetera, in the United'States is handled through other 
agencies such as the Infter-Amefiean Defense Board or the atta'ch or 
the Military Purchasing Commission so that therDefetseCommission 
has found itself less occupied thasn t was iwyears gone by. They 'con
sult very seldom, as I Ynderstancl it, but are available, and everyone is 
on it on an ad hoc basis; that is to say he is a member ofit in addition' 
to his other' dutids.. Thig includes both the Brazilians and' the 
Americans. 
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Mr. I-IoT. Could you tell us or could you supply for the record the 
numbers of Brazilians and the numbers of Americans who are on this 
Defense Commission? 

General BEA-Ir. Yes. There are three Brazilian and three U.S.mem
bers of the Defense Commission. 

Mr. HoLT.On that point we have for the record your statement about 
the size of your group in Rio. Could you also give us a statement about 
the number of your Brazilian counterparts, that is, the Brazilian dele
gation to the Joint Brazil-United States Military Commission? 

General BrATrY. Actually they have 11 people assigned. What they
have is a small headquarters-type organization similar to mine and 
then of course they have designated in the Army, Navy, and Air Force 
certain flag or general officers who are, in addition to their other duties,
members of the Commission, and they meet on the call of the president.
Of course they have access to the entire armed forces in the same way
that our Defense Commission president here has access to all the staffs 
of the Army, Navy, and Air Force, so it really isn't a problem. There
fore there are just a small number of people assigned. 

WORE OF JOINT COMMISSIONS 

Mr. HILT. In the material which DOD submitted to the subcommit
tee it said that the objectives ofboth the Defense Commission and the 
Military Commission are, among other things to "facilitate prepara
tion of joint military planning between the two Governments." 

How much and what kind of joint military planning do you do? 
General BRATTY. Well, I think that is largely outdated in the sense,

of planning for what we used to consider a large military operation.
The planning we do together now is planning for this military train
ing that we have. That is, the main planning that we do together is how
we can do it with fluds available, and how and who to send anti 
what course and so forth. 

Senator Cmmon. Isn't that work done in other Latin countries by

the military assistance group, General?
 

General BEATYr. Yes, it is.
 
Senator Cauo. Is your commission which does the same kind of
 

work in Brazil comparable in size to a military advisory group that
 
would do this kind of work? Imean, is this just a question of nomer
olature or is there considerable difference in the headquarters setup,
 
inthe rank and numbers involved?
 

General BEAzrY. Actually it is mostly a matter ofterminology. The. 
Joint Brazil-United States Military Commission, as I said, has been 
in existence a long time. The Brazilians like it in as much as it in
dicates a partnership kind of operation [deleted].

Senator Cnnxcn. Your commission has historic roots that date back. 
to the Second World War, is that correct? 

General BEAr . That is correct. But the work we do is essentially
the same as isdone by MAAG's or missions, they have many different 
names depending on what the country likes to call them. 

Brazil likes to keep its title which in Portuguese is a mixed com
mission, and they ike it. 

LMr. Hor. You have said most of the joint planning now is really
concerned with training and selection of people and so on. Could yor 



elaborate a little bit on 'how that works? Do you or your people go to, 
the Brazilians and say "we think you need to emphasize artillery or 
air navigation or intelligence, or whatever," or do they come to you
and say 'we have so many people we want trained in 'infantry tactics, 
or signal corps or something else?" 

General BEA=. It really sort of evolves out of this day-to-day
operation. In other words, our people are out with these people and 
their units and their schools, and sometimes it is our man -who sees 
something going on and says "we-do this a-different way. You, i think, 
could do it better if you would try our way." But more often really 
they come and say "we feel we have a need for an electronic repair
man, what can you offer us in the way of training for electronics 
rep airmen." 

So we say "OK," we get out the catalogue, 'there is what we can 
oiler you. It depends on the level of training he has already had. We 
can put him in at the bottom or we can have him working on the elec
tronics of the most sophisticated type." 

So the simple answer is most of the time they are asking us. Some
times we indicate an area in which we believe they can profit by using
the course that -wehave. 

IFUNIDING OF COURSES 

Senator Cnnca. Do we pay the full cost of the course? 
General BArZ, The course costs, yes, Sir. 
Senator COuRon. What does the Brazilian Government pay in con

nection with the training that we furnish? 
General BEAr-Y. It depends. Of course they pay the man's.pay and 

allowances and housing and all this sort of thing. The course costs I 
think we pay in most cases. 

Senator Cwocn. What about the transportation costs for the 
trainees to and from the United States? 

'General BEATTY. These are paid by military assistance program 
funds. 

Mr. HorT. Do you ever turn down Brazilian requests ior training 
on the grounds that the training they are seeking is inappropriate? 

General .BEArr. Happily we have never had to. -
Mr. HoLT. If you turn them down at all is it because there aren't 

spaces available in training schools? 
General BEA=. That is right. 

IlTfR-AMfEMfCAN GEODETIC SIRVEY 

Mr. HoLT. Let me turn now briefly to the Inter-Americadi Geodetic 
Survey. You say on page 4 it is contemplated that this unit N11 con
tinue its work with the four military and six civilian spaces currently 
authorized. 

The Foreign Rei-tidns Committee has been ifornecl in cbnnection 
with something else by the Defense Department that the Inter-Ameri
can Geodetic Survey is being ended. 

General BEA'nr. It is news to me. 
Mr. HOLT. Is our other information erroneous or is there a spesial

situation in Brazil?. 
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General BPATvy. It is news to me. I had not heard that; no, sir. If 
it is going to be terminated I had not heard about it. 

Senator CHRlcH. Can you be a little more specific, General, about 
the work being done by this geodetic survey? Is it simply 

.APPrXXr OF 13RAZMt 

General BEAY. I will be as specific as I can, sir. What personnel
there are from the U.S. side are a couple of military engineers, and 
the civilians are geographers, cartographers, geophysicists, and they
work with the Brazilian authorities in efforts to set up their geodesy
of their areas in an orderly way so that they can get Brazil mapped. 
They are working on this, and have made some progress. 

Senator CnuRcH. Yes. 
I am wondering about the military connection. Why should this 

be a military program? 
General BEATy. Well, it isn't really a military program in its-over

all sense except that it is aimed at mapping and, of course, our engi
neers have been our mappers for many, many years, but the people
involved in it are largely civilian scientists who have expertise in the 
field. Of course, the military people who are there are engineers and 
they are people who have background in the mapmaking business. 

Senator CHuRoH. Well, is mapping carried on in Brazilby the mili
tary or by civilians or do you know? 

General BETTY. No; at is done by two outfits whose names I can 
get for you. One is military and one is civilian, but they work in col
laboration-the actual names are the Instituto Brasilero da Geogra
fica, which is the civilian agency, and then the Diretoria do Servicio 
Geografico is the army mapping agency under the armed forces gen
eral staff. 

There are 11 other private, State, and Government agencies that 
cooperate.

Senator CHnuor. What percentage of Brazil has bedn mapped, do 
you know? 

General BxAEr. I don't know, sir. We can find out and let you
know. 

, (The following information was subsequently furnished for the 
record:) 

Basic mapping has been completed for only 6% of the country. However, about 
47% of Brazil has been covered by aerial photography in preparation for 
mapping. 

Senator CmnioH. Th connection with this ctivity are we furnished 
the maps or copies of the maps that are made? 
1 General B.ATrX . Yes; we are.' 

Senator CnxRon. So that we will secure full detailed and accurate 
maps of Brazil as an end product of the help we give; is that correct. 

General BE&=. Exactly. We do this through-
Senator Cnrmcn. Is that our national interest in this particular 

program? 
General BEA=rr. I think so. 
Senator Onuno. Very well. 
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LOCATIOI OF NAVY COMMfUNICATIONS Z OHNIOAL GROUP
 

Mr. HOLT. I would lile to tarn now to the Navy.Cotnunications
Technical Group Rio whiit ydwdescribe briefly on page.& 

You are familiar, I think, -with the press reports about its. rela
tionship or its physical proximity to a room in the Navy Ministry
in Rio where prisoners are interrogated. Could you tell us about 
that? 

General BE&=r. Yes. I know, I read the same article you did, and 
at the time I inquired into it to see what was known on our side, and 
every individual of NIKTCOMTECH Group Rio interviewed by the 
chief of the navy section stated tha he had no knowledge of such go
ings on and fither that he had not niade any statements or had any 
conversations with any members of the press which, inasmuch as the 
start of thq thing ?ame froX one of those who was expelled from 
Brazil and was in Chile whel the man talked to him or her, made it 
seem like maybe there wasn't as much to.it as was originally thought.*

Mr. HOLT. I have a copy here 6f an Associated Press story from Rio 
which says: -

U.S. Naval mission here is on the same floor -? the Brazilian Navy Ministry 
as a room in which political prisoners claim to have been tortured. 

One American assigned to the floor said recently "I have been hearing screams
 
ahd groans' for about two, years. I was frightened." Other UtS. personnel were
 
reported to have seen Brazilians being dragged to and from the interrogation
 
room by Brazilian-naval agents.
 

]\To one, insofar as can be determined 'has -ever reported anything about it to 
U.S. Navy oitcials ortthe U.S. Embassy. . -

Admiral Cfarence Hill, Commander of hbe'ILS. Aiissioh, sdidvh-i Inew nothing 
"aboutthis kind of thing." :" f . 

But after newsmen began making further inquiries of U.S. personnel there,' 
Hil- ordered.themaiot to discuss the subject. The Americap was reported hearing
 
screams would no longer talk about it.' "
 

Do you know if Admiral ill gave such an order? -

General BE&,TrTY. That is not a real accurate description of what 
he did. Hie invoked a standard

Mfr.'i otr.Please.give-Mus an.fqcuratedescription.. , 
General T3DA.w: He iiivoked' akNavy regulation whih requires

that if-theie are things outof: A7je&in,any organiza.tin .he e.,faIts 
be iadd knowi.to persons in th chain';of colmnand,,that is whatrhe 
told .thet. AnU that is thb same .time that, they allsaid, CI didn't; 
Imow about it and I didn't talk to anybody.about it." -

Mr. I-Ior. Do you know what the rest of :this parbicular toQr inthe Nravy MinigtrjVin,,Riois,,useCL or?h. H./i rY' :,. fl9,,;, 

.General BMArtv-A- simple.answer isf ao. [Deleted.],, I. 
Mr. HOLT. I think if you could supply for the record a statement 

of such informatiou as you can get ous what it 5 ued for it Would be 
useful'. a +. * " . 

(The 16o1owing information was :subsequently furnislhed,.for the 
record:) -

In addition J6" N00VCOhIfTEOHGRfl ;(Radio lio) and th4 Navy 'Section, 
USMILGP, the 7th floor is occupied by Brazilian Naval Communications offices,' 
Brazilian First Naval District Headquarters ahd, a portion. ,of..'the offices of 
the Brazilidn-Ohief of.Naval-Operations. , . 

Mr. fo' T. Wlhy 'h 'the Navy 'Conniiunations, Technical, Group, 
housed in this'pi rticular location?. ,. "-* 

63-378-7-

http:knowi.to
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General BFTan. I think bcause this is the headquarters, this -is 
the Navy Ministry, and this is where they have their naval communi
cations. And when we undertook to' be their technical advisers and
to work hand and glove with them this is where they said we were 
going to work. 

MSTORY OF CO3rUNXOATIO NS TECHNICAL GROUP 

Mr. HOLT. Could you give us a little of the history of this particular 
communications group, how it started and what its present status in 
relationship to the Brazilian Navy is. 

General BEATTY. As I understand it during World War II we had 
a separate radio Rio, U.S. owned and operated installation. This was 
operated for a period of time, and then at some point the Brazilian 
Government decided they didn't want an outside country operating a 
radio facility over which they had absolutely no control, so initially, 
and again I would have to go back and check the actual fact, but I 
understand an approach was made and they said "well, close down 
your station," And we then made an approach and said "well, how 
about let's work something out," and what we worked out was 
NAVCOMTECH Group Rio in which we furnish half the personnel, 
they furnish half the personnel, and the thing operates 24 hours a 
day for their benefit and for our benefit, and we also furnish the 
technical assistance, that I described earlier in the statement. 

Senator Cannon. In connection with that facility, the arrangement 
then is such that if the Brazilian half of the operation were to object 
they would be in a position to prevent the broadcast of messages, would 
they not? 

General BFATTY. If they were to object they could close us down 
tomorrow, sir. 

DtVORTAWE OF COMAMNIWATOWS GROUP TO NAVY 

Senator Cuwcn:. Yes. Well now, how essential is this facility to 
the Navy? Can you give us more information on that? 

General BEAr. I can tell you what I have been told. I am not a 
communicator but I am told that this is the only facility of its kind 
in this part of the world and that without it we would have to put up 
another station of some kind so that we could communicate with our 
naval vessels in the South Atlantic. 

Senator CHUoCH. Can you tell us whether or not this facility is relied 
upon to maintain contact with our nuclear submarines in the South 
Atlantic? 

General BnArr. No, sir; it is not. 
Senator Omn~c. And are you testifying that if this facility did not 

exist we could not maintain contact with our other ships through alter
nate facilities? 

General BEATT. We could do it-but we would have to put-up some
thing else. 

Senator C-manon. In its place? 
General BRATTY. In its place. If they were to close it on us tomorrow 

I am sure we could get something going so we could communicate with 
our vessels but we would have to do something additional that we are 
not now doing. 
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- -S~nator"CO'cm We have no ;global communications system -with 
Aiaval'vssels'that does' not.delpend"upon facilities of this kind 'oated 
inforeign countries, ifthit 18 the-case. Are -facilities like thig one, in 
Brazil also located in-certain, other countries in order to give us-global 
communcation with thefavy? 

•'General BnAn'. I dont know. This is the-only one I know about., 
Senator Crmiqn. You see what. concerns me is if this Brazilikn fa

cilitt is really necessary in-order to reach or coremunicate with naval 
vessels in the South Atlantic, then I suppose it would follow that 
some comparable kind of facility would be necessary to reach-and com
muiicate with naval vessals in the Indian 'Ocean and in the South 
Pacific and in other parts of the world. 
I General BrArrY. I honestly don't know. I can find out for you and let 
you know, but I don't know., 

Senator OnunRa. I 'think forthe record we ought to know whether 
this is the case because I think there is a general assumption that we 
are in a position to reach our naval vessels, particularly our Polaris 
submarines anywhere in the world on the basis of a communication 
network thatis.global inscope, but~this is a highly'technical question. 
I dort't know the answer to it, and"this just raises the question in y 
mind that perhaps there are -in'addition to the facilities in Brazil a 
number of others that 'we 'really must rely upon, facilities located. in 
foreignu -lands ii order to maintain global 'ontact with these 4essdls. 

General BxArr. I am under the impression, Mr. Chairman, that 
there are vessels of ours, nuclear subs being among them, who have 
this capability, but that it is not true in bul of our ships, and there
fore we do need a radio facility of this type. 

Senator Cmcn. I see. If you could supply,for-the record an au
thoritativestatement on this general question it would be appreciated. 

General Bxwiij..'Yes, sir. 
Mr. HoLi. Include in that, if you would, General, whether satellites 

could be used in lieu of this shore station. 
,(The.informationfollows:) 

The U.S. Navy operates a worldwide Naval Communications System which 
provides communications support to fleet operating units and Naval shore res
tablishments. The system is, in effect, an extension of the Defense Communica
tions System (DOS) which is designed to provide communications support world
wide to virtually all elements of the Department of Defense. operating as part 
of the Naval Oommunications System, 26 Naval Communications Stations 
(NAVCOMMSTA), both in the United States and overseas, provide operating 
units communications services and act as vital. links relaying commands and 
directives from the national cofmand authorities to on-scene commanders. The 
services provided by these communications stations enable-the national command 
authorities to exercise firm command and control over fleet operating, units to 
ensure rapidI effeetike response-to Presidential direction regardless of thedoca
tidon of the Naval Forces. The services and support provided fleet units include 
multi-channel and: single channel radoteletypewriter broadcasts, 'Morse or Car
rier W"ave (OW) broadcasts, facsimile broadcasts, weather and hydrographic
data broadcasts, special broadcasts for merchant shipping, single and multi
channel ship to shore radioteletypewriter dircoitry. Morse or carrier wave ship to 
shore circuitry, entry into the worldwide voice radio networks ad into the DOS 
worldwide telephone'networks. 
'In addition, the Navy operates special subiarine broadeasts employing very

low frequency (VLF) systems. These systems were developed for command and 
control of submarines to take advantage of the physical principle that VLF 
radio waves penetrate sea water; "thus permitting, the submarines to remain 
completely submerged while receiving communications. The transmitter statiots; 
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because of ,other physical principles, must -be extremely large and powerful, and 
are therefore very expensive. These transmissions are reliable at long ranges,
thus permitting coverage of large portions of the- oceans from relatively few 
stations. [Deleted]

In addition to the Naval Communications Stations above, numerous smaller 
units throughout the world perform specialized functions in support of the 
Naval Communications System and the Defense Communications System. -Tiese 
facilities may or may not perform any or all of the functions of a 7aval Com
munications-Station. One of these specialized units is the Naval Communications
Technical Group, Rio de Taneiro (NAVCOlMMTEOHG4RU RIO), whose mission 
is to provide technical training and operational assistance to the Brazilian Navy
in order to make possible the communications assistance of the Brazilian Naval 
qommunications System to the U.S. Navyandother U.S. Governmental Agencies

[Deleted.] Three activities are currently providing communications support
to fleet units in the South Atlantic: the U.S. Air Force facility on Ascension 
Island. the State Department -Regional Relay Facility at Monrovia and the 
Naval Communications Technical Group Rio de Tanciro. NAVCO2 TRIGOGRTU 
RIO, through the facilities of the Brazilian Naval Communications System, is 
the primary, [deleted] source of coverage of the South Atlantic areas.
 

[Deleted.]
 
Satellite communications systems [deleted].

In addition to supporting USN ships, NAVCO1XTECHGRU RIO also provides

communications-support to the TJYS. Coast Guard, the International Ice Patrol 
and U.S. Military aircraft when needed. The Brazilian Naval Radio Station,
Rio -de Janeiro, (Radio Rio), of which -NAYC0MITEOHGIRU is a division, also 
provides communications support to the Brazilian Navy, other South American 
Navies, Merchant shipping and to the 'U.S Navy when requested by the U.S. 
Chief of Naval Oberations and with theconeurrence of Brazilian authorities. 

oirnAnOaxs or Coit!r-UacA'noNs oRonr 

Mr. HOLT. Is this purely a U.S. Navy operation, or does it serve 
Ithe Brazilian Navy as -well? 

General BnA r. tYes'; a joint Navy opIeration. 1 " . 
Mr. HOLT. Does it handle commercial or lion-Lavy traffic? 
General Bntxnx. Well, yes; it handles noft-Navytiaffic. It handles 

nine; it handles my traffic. 
Mr. BOLT. To the South Atlantic? 
General Bftrrx. Negative, It handles !nine td Pannam for instance, 

or tb Washington. . II' 
Mr. HOT. Does it Also handk the American Tmbassy s? 
General BrA~rx-. Negative., . 
Mr. HOLT. It does not. 
General Bnawrr. It could:-It serves as a backup in the -evcnt some

thing -would happen, but at the moment it does not. . I I 
'Mr. o;T.: 'So it handles Brazilian Na#y traffic'and 'U.S. Navy tiaf

fie and tour -military traffic to Panama and that is all? 
General BirAr. Yes.
Mr. HoL. ,Howdo,Ameriean merchant ships in the,South Atlantic. 

communicate without this facility. 
General' BE trr. Well; you may be quife tight,'they probably do 

communicate with this radio station, I don't kmow. In other words,
when I said-Navy I *as thinking Brazilian. Navy, but I think it in
eludes Brazilian merchant; ships. • 

Mr. HOLT. Well,rdoes it include merchant shps ofa11 nations? 
Geneial lAwr=.'I guess so. I will ave tofnd out. I just doq~tI j 

-o,° know ., " . 
.- r. H'oLT.If you could.' floes it include naval vessels of any con-. 

tries other than the United States' and Braffl?,'

http:H'oLT.If
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General BEATTY. Itdobs.once ayear for-
Mr. HaLT. Operation Unitas. .. " 
General. B Dsrr.' Unitas. 
Mr: H6LT. The- Soviet 'Union sends, naval vessels into the South 

Atlantic from tine to time, does it.not? 
'General Bn4rA. I am sure they-do.
Mt oLT. Doyon know how they communicate .General BEATTYz. No, I don't. •. , 

Air. HoL. If you could clarify for the. record as many,of these 
things we have been talking about as you can it would be appreciated. 

(The information follows':) 
The Soviet Navy has begun to operate at great distances from its home terri

tory only in the past few yearn and has not yet developed the requirements for 
a high volume communications system. In cases where propagation difficulties 
over long distances preclude the useof communications modes, usually employed 
near -its homeland,,,the Soviet Navy relies dpon Morse-communicatiops, a form 
of communications which would be especially ineffective for the high volume 
communications encountered in a modern emergency or wartime situation. 

Access to or use of the Brazilian.Naval Commutications System is a matter of 
Brazilian national policy. NAVOOMMTECIE{GRURIO has no transmitter and re
ceiver facilities .under -its unilateral control. These facilities are Brazilian and, 
therefore, subject to Brazilian policies. When requested on a CNO to-iNO level, 
Brazilian facilities have been made available for U.S. Navy support requirements. 

Vessels of the Soviet Union, as do those of all nations, have access to U.S. 
Naval Communications facilities worldwide in cases of maritime emergency or 
safety of life at sea. If required for such cases, the U.S. Navy would request
Brazilian Naval Communications support for Soyiet vessels as it -would for 
vessels of any -nation. The technical and operational assistance and' advice of
NvAVCOi'.tTE0flGHU RIO personnel would -be made available as it is now. 

Senator COnuon. Wat we really are trying to get at, General, is 
the'present necessity for the'maintenance of such an,installation. You 
know there is a tendency for installations-tobe established when there 
is a need for them ahd then just to continue on indefinitely. 

General BEATTY. Yes; because it is there. 
Senator Gauon. Yes; because it is there. 
Have you any further questions onthat facility?
Mr. HoLT. Onthis particular point, no. 

rnURrosn oP DMFXSE MCnRESE OFicE 

Senator CGucH. I want to go on to another'one that intrigues me. 
In your statement, page 1, General, you say: 

The Defense Research Office Latin America was established in 1962 in Rio de 
Janeiro and was constituted of Army and Air Force elements until May 1970 
when the Air Force ceased to participate. The present staff is one civiliam, and 
One locally hired secretary. The mission of this office is to serve as a contact 
point for South American scientists and research agencies for receiving and 
evaluating research proposals pertinent to R&D mission of the 1.S.; arrange for 
negotiating or executing grants for research proposals received, and provide 
Defense representation as appropriate at scientific meetings which are related 
to the R&D program. 

If I have ever heard language-straining to justify one civilian and 
a secretary in the matter of research work, cientific re4earch work, 
this is it. Is this really -necessary . 

Genera] BEATTY. I think'this fellbw stays quite busy. I-Ie has man&, 
proposals made, some of which are interesting, and some df which are 
teken up. I am not enough of a scientist to 'know how important this 
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is. I gather that it is important *andthat -hehas picked up some very 
.. , . .. .interesting projects.. 

LSenator CHURCH. Butyou couldn't tell us what they-were., • I 
I'0neral BEArn. Yes;- I can tell your what they w~re., They have 

-mainly to do with medical research. They get into what I would,;cal[ 
exotic diseases or diseases that haveresisted.solutionby people to date, 
and so some guy has-a new idea,-so they givehim,$15,000 and he works 
on it for a couple of years to see what he dan find out. I 

-"Senator Cukc,. Is this being paid for bythe military, through the, 
military budget?

General BrATTY. Yes, it sure is. 

-FUNDING 0] RESEARCIt 

Senator Onamy~o. How much money-does this involve each year? 
General BAnTY. Not very much, $199,000 is the current program. 

Theoretical physics,.biological and medical sciences primarily, eight 
grants in Brazil, one in Chile, one in Colombia, two in Peru, and one 
in Uruguay.

Senator CHURCH. Don't you think this kind of work can better be 
carried on by our institutes-of science and of'medicine set up and gen
erously funded for this purpose? I fail to see the military connection. 
. General Bnnrr. I would say that this is apparently straight re
search. It is blind alley kind of research where you put your-money on 
the horse and if he falls dead why, that is it. On the other hand it.may 
be the answer like the Salk vaccine. 

Senator Coyon. But how is tisrelated to a military function? 
General BEAr. Well, in these cases, I'would say it is related pri

marily to this.business of our medical research. 
Senator CrooC. And this fellow, with his secretary,-is the conduit 

-forgrants, research grants? 
General BnA=. Exactly.
Senator Cfuno. In.this field? 
,General BnAT. Right. 
Senator nuino. Which are financed out of our military budget? 
General BrAT . Right. Conduit is a good word. He is simply a 

-pointof contact. 

WOr OF MLhITAIflt AORL~iT COALMAND 

Mr. Hon'..I would like to go now to the Military Airlift Command 
liaison detachment which you say facilitates the arrival, maintenaice, 
loading and dispatch of military aircraft transiting IRio and it is ex
pected that a detachment of this type will be required as long as K&C 
fghts are scheduled through Rio. How many MAC flights are there 
through Rio in a typial week,? 

General BEA-TT. One. 
Mr. ion. Why could, not the air attache facilitate their arrival, 

maintenance, et cetera? - I 
General BrAT. Well, I think it is a question of ho--much can one 

man do.and, of course, as you know airplanes coming in from long 
distances are often late, and when they come in they often have prob
lems,.and the air attach6 is normally doing other things, and for him 
to be in touch with the local contract maintenance people and to scurry 



99
 

up parts and things like that, I think would be more than he could 
really do. 

Mr. HOLT. When one refers to the air attaclh6, is there more than 
Ione? 

General BE..=. Well, there are two. But the other guy has to fly 
the embassy aircraft, they both do, so should the Ambassador want 
to be gone some place 'the day the MAC flight comes in we would 
be in dire distress. 

Mr. HOLT. What is required to facilitate this one flight a week other 
than a telephone call to the control tower at Galeao or to the Air 
Ministry saying "we have atight.coming in and this is its flight plan 
and ETA will you please let him land?" 

General BEATrY. We have to arrange for the off-loading and the 
warehousing or ,the transportation of whatever is on board in the way
of material and so actually the auy in the course of arrival of one-air
craft a week normally spends le better part of 3 days working on 
his problem. As you know getting things through customs is not the 
simplest thing even if you know the ropes and if you don't know the 
ropes you might as well forget it. 

Mr. HOLT. hat is the purpose of this one IAC flight per week ? 
General BATYrx. It is to provide contact between the United States, 

Puerto Rico, Panama, and then the capitals in South America, and it 
brings both people and things. 

Mr. HoLT. What kind of things? 
General BEATTY. I can't honestly answerthat one now, Pat. It used 

to be in our case; and still is to a certain extent, MAP follow-on 
parts and things like that and I suspect it is a good partof what it is 
in other places.-

It is a very small amount of stuff but it is the kind of things that 
they always need. 

Mr. HoLT,.These wouldn't be subject to customs clearance. 
General BEATTY. Everything has to come through., Somebody has 

got to let it off the field. 
Mr. i oLT. But there are all kinds of agreements in here which I 

want to discuss a little bit more later on which say-
General BrATTY. Not subject to duty. 
Mr. HoLT. Right. 
General BEATTY. That is rioht, that is true, and 't am not subject

to going through a lot of stuRf when I get there with a diplomatic 
passport it says here but I still don't go wandering through., 

Mr. HOLT. What sort of people, who are the people who ride on 
this MAC flight? 

General BEATTY. People- from the States, from Panama and from 
the other capitals who are on business to the other capitals around -tie 
line, sometimes military training teams, sometimes inspection teams, 
sometimes people on orders fromhere inWashinton. 

MT. HoLT. It wouldn't be cheaper to buy them a ticket on Pan 
American? 

General BArrY. It depends. If we are just sending one guy, 'I would 
say sure, it would be a whole lot cheaper. 

I think there is enough-MAC can no doubt justify the flight to you
better than I can in terms of requirements and tonnage and passenger 
lists, but it appears to me that it is a well-used facility. 
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runrOSE OF 1 r.o n'ZGTS . ... 
:uu~tVOSE TMO orx', 

Mr.*r1OLT. I notide iii one of 'the documents yousuppliea.from 
SOTITHCOM, terms of reference U.S. military groups, there is ,a 
piovision in 'paragraph 4 (d) "iiormally admiistnretiv16gistica! sup
,port of the U.S. military group will be provided bythor host govern
ment in accordance with the appropriate bilateral agreementand or 
by the U.S. Embassy in the host country." 

In view of that, whydo you need the MAC flight? Why Aoesn't the 
Brazilian Government provide this kind oflsupport . 

General BATTY. I-am not sure *hat you mean, Pat. 
Mr.HOLT. Well maybe I am confused. 
General BRATTY. What kind of support?
Mr. HOLT. I am confused by the purpose of the M AC flight. I 

thought it'was to provide logistical support forthe military group 
andthe rest of the American establishment in Rio. 

General BEATTY. Only partially. The administrative support for 
the military groups in South America, isnot dependent entirely on the 
M-AC fliglit

Mr. BTO. Anld the ILIAO flight does other things than provide pro
-videlogistical support for you 

General BEA=T. Well, yes, it partly supplies Argentina, Paragu.ay
and so on. 

Mr. HOLT. No, but I am talking about in Brazil. 
'General BnAVrr. Well, a lot of the-materiel and ersomel are-tran

siting, many times they spend the night, which again is'a probldm that 
has to. be handled when you have 12, 15 people ivho wobid have to 
stay overnight while the crew gets crew rest and the aircraft is main
tained. The detachment personnel must prepare flight briefings, in
cluding weather forecasts, for the flight crew, arrange for aircraft 
maintenance, file proposed flight plans, -dndarrange for the handling 
of both classified and unclassified materials. These are just some of 
the things. Of course there is Medevac: people are Sent to Panama 
on this plane when they have problems that need attention and can 
be handled in Panama. 

Mr. HOLT, How often does that happen?
General BrATTY. Well, in our case I would say we send people about 

once a month, about two people once a month. We-are just bhe of the 
many countries that have people going there. 

Mr. HOLT. Yes. 
U.S. PERSONNEL COSTS UT MA?-

You say the current fiscal year 1971 military assistance program 
consists of $906,000, as opposed to the proposed [deleted] in fiscal year
1972.,Does that include U.S. salaries and allowances? 

General Beatty. I don't think so,.but I will have tofind out for sure. 
(The information follows:) 

Although salaries of military instructors involved in training are not included 
under the Military Asistance Pogram, the salaries of civilian instructors are 
as part of the overall course costs. Salaries and-allowances of U.S. military per
sonnel in JBUSIIC are notincluded in MAP. 

http:Paragu.ay
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ORnI NTATrO- TOURS 

Mr. HOLT. In your statement, referring to Brazilian trainees in the 
United States, you say student orientation is accomplished also by the 
U.S. training facility, and mention specifically visits to Congress.
Could you supply for the record how many visits to Congress there 
have been in the last year of the people you are talking about in this? 

General BEATT. It would take a long time because I would have to 
go to the infantry school, the artillery school, the engineer school, avia
tion school, andso forth. I can tell you what I did in the flight training 
center. We used to, send about 60 Vietnamese once a week. 

Mr. HorT. To Congress? 
General BEA=T. Sure. Let me say they came to Capitol,Hill. I can't 

tell you who they saw over here, but somebody who was available, I 
hope. 

TMr. IoLT. I see a lot of visiting foreigners but very rarely a Bra
zilian or Vietnamese military trainee. 

In following this up, in connection with the orientation visits, of 
high level civilians and military, students in the War College and 
people of that sort, I would like, with your permission, Mr. Chairman, 
to insert in the record the programs of the visits of some of those 
groups in the last few years which we received from the Defense 
Department. 

Senator Cautcn. Very well. 
(Theinformation follows :) 

The '( S. Army conducted the following orientation to.urs of Brazilian officers 
during the past three years: 

FY 1968-None. 
FY 1969-Orientation Tour, Brazil, 195-69, Army Command and General 

Staff College.
FY 1970-0rientation Tour, Brazil, 25--TO, National War College.

-rientation Tour, Brazil, 25-I-71, National War College.
-Orientation Tour, fBrazil, 195-70, Army Command and General 

Staff College.
Itineraries, Americans met by Brazilians while on tour, numbers of personnel 

on each tour, and the cost and funding for each tour are attached. 
The itineraries for the orientation tours conducted for the 'Brazilian personnel

included military and civilian activities to give the visitors a cross-section of
American life covering economic, political, and social facets as well as the mili
tary. During the Washington, D.C., portion of the orientation to.urs, visits to the 
Ctpitol, the Department of State, and to historical sites are arranged within the 
time available,

The United States defense effort is emphasized to the Brazilians by visits to 
several military installations for observation of training and equipment, espe
cially the 7ateat oeaPon developed for elefense. Time permitting, groups are also
scheduled to visit Cape Kennedy for briefings on the Apollo and other space 
programs. The military installations emphasize the role of the military and the 
civilian community and visits include an opportunity to observe local govern.
ments in operation, local industrial plants, public schools, agricultural areas, and 
cultural affairs. 

Guests lists for social functions hosted by the activities visited for the Bra
zilian personnel include prominent local civilian personnel as well as the mili
tary personnel in the area, thus giving the visitors an opportunity to meet in
formally with American personnel. Whenever possible, visits to. homes of Amer
icans are arranged, It is through these visitg that lasting friendships are cemented 
and the foreign personnel gain a thorough knowledge of the American way of 
life. 
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OREnTATION TOUR, BRAZfl, 195-69-flr COMMAND AND
 
GENEML STAFF CoLLEGE
 

*ti . -r V f*. 
SI - * ' I ' . ' I 

Date'. 6 June 19!9 tlrough,28.jne_ 1969 " - IFort S5UW Oklahoma ."" 

United States Army,Commanld and' Gendral' Staff' College; 'Fori lavenwofttrRkahsaso-': 
Fort Bragg, North Carolina - , -

Fort Knox,!Kentucky ,
 
Fort flenr u ng, Gborgia ,
 

NASES AND,POSITIONS: oF A34E5XOAMS WItO METZHE ' flBAZ 7 PRSONNE 

Mr. Sherman, Department of State, Miami, Florida 
Mr. Harkey, Detarlnnet bf State, Miami, -Florida 
Mr. Wallace,:Department of'State, Miami, Flbida, 
Mrs. Isa McKartney, SeCretary, Committee for international Visitors, Miam 

Florida * , , , i 1 .1 ,
The XHonorabl&James Merriek, Mayor, Oldahoma City, Oklahoma ,: f , . 
Brigadier General Lawrence Carnthers,' Acting .Commaiding"!Genexal; Fort:I I I I

Sill, Oklahoma ... 
Major General John 11. Ua ,Commandant, United States Army Comimand and 

General Staff Aollege, Fort Leavenworth, Kansas 
Brigadier Geneiral Starnes, Office of the Ciief of Engineers, Washington, D.C-
Major General Surles, Chief of Staft, Continental Army Command, Fort Mon.roe, ,Virginia 
Brigadier General Rattan, Fort Bragg, North Carolina 
Major General Deane, Commanding General, '82nd Airborne, Division, Fort 

Bragg, North Carolina I .,
Major General Bowers, Adjutant General of North Carolina 
Lieutenant General Tolson, Commanding Generar Fort Bragg, North Carolina. 
Mrs. Jesse Scott, Wife of the Governor of North Carolina 
Speaker of the House, State of North Carolina 
Major General Sutherland,, Fort Knox, Kentucky 
Major General Forsythe, Fort Benning, Georgia 

NUMBER OF B'DTAZILIAN FERSONNfl ON OREINTATIOIf TOUR 

115 Brazilian personnel---Staff and faculty 108Studenits 

COST AliD SOURCE OF FUNDS FOR ORMTATION TOUR 

Estimated Cdst: $iasieo: 
-

Source ofu'Ftmds: Military Assistance 'Program 


ORENTAtfO& TobY, BRAmZU, 25-1- 7--NATioNAL WAD Co0-EGE
 

Date: 4 Xuly-1969 through 26 July 1969 -

FotBenning, Georgia A
 
Air University,Maxwell Air-Wbrce Base,Alabama
 
lJ'ited State Arpmy Tank-Automotive Command, Detroit, Michigan

Fozd ,actory,, Detroit, Michigan
 
United Nations, New York,.Xew York
 
United States Military Academy, West Point, New York
 
Washington, D.C.

Inter-Americapl.efense Board
 
Organization of Ameriean.States .. - *1
 

Titer-Americdn Defense College
 
Industrial College of the Armed-Forces
 
NationalWar College'


CINOLANT Fleet, Norfolk, Virginia

Langley Air Force Base, Virginia
 
Strategic Air Command, Omaha, Nebraska
 
United States Air Force Academy, Colorado Springs, Colorado
 
Fort Leavenworth, Kansas 



NAMES AX]) POrlX2rMI9NA.OM TH~ BRAZITTAN PERSONNEL 

Major General Lollis, Commanding General, United States Army Tank-Autqo
motive Command, Detroit, Mchigan, -

Commanding General, Maxwell Air Force Base, Alab ma 
Commanding.General,.Fort Hamilton -New :ork I .-
Commandant, United States Army Command and General Staff College, Fort 

Leavenworth, Kansas 

NUMBER O RRAZILIAN -PERSONTNxEL ON ORIENTATION TOOR 

62 Brazilian personnel- v- , 
7 Staff and-facult . - .55 students 

COST AND SOURCE OF FUNDS FOR ORIENTATION 'dO . -

Estimated Cost: $7O,200.00
 
Source of Funds: Military Assistance Program - 

-.-- 0IETAI6N- l~~iT,'.25-fl--7Ot-NATImmLO~i, WAR'. COLhEGE, 

XElNERARY 

Date : 15vAugust 1969 through -6September 1969 -

GINCLANT Fleet, Norfolk, Virginia. . -

Langley Air Force Base, Virginia 
Batt6lle.vemorianl~stitfite, Columbus; hio., , 
United States Army Tank-Automotive Command, Detroit, Michigan
UnitedNations, New.,York,,New.York , , •.I 
United States Military Academy, West Point, New York 
Washington, D:O.--",.... - *", ,, I_-

Inter-American Defense Board
 
Organization of American States
 
National War College
 
Inter-American Defense College
 
Industrial College of the Armed Forces
 
Office of Economic Opportnity, -


Department of State
 
Strategic Air Command, Omaha, Nebraska 
Atlanta, Georgia-Nuclear Research Center and Rinh"Elechonie dohmput&r Cen

ter, GeorgiaInstitute of Technology 

NAMES AND POSITXONS,'OF AyERICANS, WHO MET THE BRAZILIAN PERSONEL, 

Dr. awcett, President, Battelle Corporation, Columbus, Ohio 
Dr. Black, Vice Presideit, ,Battelle Corporation, Columbus, Ohio 
Major General, Lolls,Commanding General, United States Army Tank-AutoMo

tive Command, Detroit, Michigan 
Lieutenant,General Alger, Chairman, United States Delegation .to the Intei-

American Defense Board. I 
Brigadier General Reed, Chief of Staff, Third United States Army, Atlanta, 

Georgia 
.Brigadier General Ward, Continental Army Qomnand,,Fort Monroe, Virjipia 
Mr. Nick, Matthews,, owner, Nick's.,Seafood Pavilion, Yorktown,, Virginia 
Brigadier General Rogers, Commandant of Cadets, United Siates Miltary'I, IAcademy, West Point, New York 
Lieutenant General 4cCaffery,,: Dpartnent of the Army, Washington, D.C., 
Lieutenant General Glen,M artin, Strategic Air Command, Omaha, Nebraska 
Major.General-Ducey, Obtef of Stair, StrategicAir'Command, Omaha,Nebraska 
Major General David Tones, Test Range, Cape tennedy; florida 

N-0 EIR, IOF RAZITAN .PERSONNEL ON ORIENTATION TO-UR 

0razilian yersoanel-Z .
 
13Stafandf cult I I.

,
 

67 Students
 

http:7O,200.00
http:POrlX2rMI9NA.OM
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COST AND SOUCE OF FUNDs rOR ORIENTATIoN' TOURl
 
Estimated Cost:-$93,600.00
 
Source of Funds: Military Assistance Program
 

ORIEnTATION TOUR, BRAzH,, 195-70--Anmy ComMAND Am GENERAL STAn 

COLTSEGE 

ITINX&Y 

Date: 15 May 1970 through 81 May 1970
 
Fort Bragg, North Carolina

Headquarters, Continental Army Command, Fort Monroe, Virginia

Washington, D.1.-


Industrial College of the Armed Forces
 
Organization of American States

National War College
Inter-American Defense Board 
Inter-Araerican Defense College

United States Army Command and General Staff College, Fort Leavenworth,
Kansas
 

Fort Benning, Georgia
 

4ATAES AND POSITIONS OF AUfIlCANS WHO MET TIE RAZTLIAX 

PERSOMEL 
Lieutenant General Alger, Chairman, United States Delegation to the Inter-

American DefenseBoard .
Major Qeneral Bennett, Secretary of the Genetal Staff, United States Army 

NUTMIER OF RRAZILIAN ?Raso3J ON ORIENTATION TOUR 

130 Brazilian Personnel
18 Staff andVaculty
 
117 Students
 

COST AND SOURCE OF FUNDS FOR ORIENTATION TOUR 

Estimated Cost: $128,400.00
 
Source of Funds : Military Assistance Program
 

The U.S. Air Force conducted the following orientation tours for Brazilian officers during the past three years:
1968--Visit of Brazilian Air Force Command and Staff School
 
1969--None

1970-Visit of Brazilian Air Force Command and Staff School

-Visit of National War College
Itinerary and lists of escort officers and Brazilian personnel on each tour are

attached.
Generally, briefings are conducted by the host commander/deputy commander.The names of the briefers/hosts are not available at Air Force Headquarters.Such records are normally considered transistory and are destroyed 30-90 days


after the tour.

Brazilian. National War College visitors and those from the Brazilian AirCommand and, Staff College were briefed on the broadest possible aspects ofAmerican life, ranging from Government institutions to agricultural productiveness. The national governmental ssytem with its bicameral structure was described 'to show the distinctlon 'between the two houses of Congress, and the relationship of Congressional members to their constituents. The Wederal system was.xplainedto show 'the independence of state governments, and the relationship

of these to city and local governments.
The Brazilians were given an opportunity to observe USAF units in a readinessstate, and "received operations briefings where-seburity permitted. Depending onthe Air Force bases visited, they were briefed on base functions, and o2)theUSAF organizational structure. While in Washington, thjy were briefed on Titter-

American Defew2so arrange}ents. 

http:128,400.00
http:Cost:-$93,600.00
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Similar efforts were made to acquaint Brazilian visitors with a balanced under
standing of American Governmental structure and military posture, regardless 
of whether the visitors represented the Escola Superior da Guerra, the Naval 
War College, or the Air Force Command and Staff College. 

Trip costs were as follows: 
(1) Brazilian Air Command and Staff College visit, June 1970 cost was 

$101,600. 
(2) Brazilian Air Force Command and Staff School visit, October 1968 

cost was $63,902. 
(3) Brazilian National War College visit, August 1970 cost was $01,800. 

All funds used were USAF MAP training funds. 

ITINERARY FOR THE VISIT OF BRAZILIAN AIR FORCE COMMAND AND STAFF SCHOOI, 
80 SPTrMBER-17 OCoBEa 1968 

Monday, 30, Sept. 1968 
2045 	 Arrive Miami, Florida via Pan American Vlight 88. 

Evening at leisure. 

Tuesday, I Ot.1968 
AM At leisure. 
1530 Depart Miami via USl Special Air Mission aircraft. 
1730 Arrive Eglin Air Force Base, Florida. 

Evening at leisure. 

Wednesday, 2 Oct.1968 
AI Tour facilities of Special Operations Force (S OF). 
1200 Luncheon hosted by SOF. 

Continue tour of SOP. 
1000 Dinner hosted by SO. 
T'wrsday, 3 Oct. 1968 
A M1 	 Continue tour of SOF. 

Lunch. 
1500 DepaTt Eglin AFB, Fla. 
1540 Arrive Maxwell AFB, Alabama. 
1700 Dinner hosted'by Air University. 
Friday,4 Oct. 1968 
AM Tour facilities of Air University (AU) 
1200 Luncheon hosted by,AU 

Continue tour of AU 
PM Evening at leisure 
Saturday,6 Oct. 1968 
AM 	 Continue tour of AU 

Remainder of day free 
Sunday, 6 Oct. 1968 
AM At leisure 
1500 -DepartMaxwell AFB, Ala. 
1700 Arrive Randolph AFB, Texas 

Evening at leisure 
Mondayj 7 Oct. 1968 
AM Tour facilities of Air 'Training Command (ATO) (Randolph 

12OO'.,' 	 Luncheon hosted by ATO 
CIontinue tour of ATO 

1900 	 Dinner hosted.by ATO 
Tuesday, 8 Oct. 1968 
AX Tour facilities of'ATO (Lackland AFB) 
1200 Luncheon hosted by ATO (Lackland AFB) 
PM Tour facilities at Kelly AFB and Brooks AFB 

Evening at leisure 

http:hosted.by


'WeZnesda, 9 Oct. 1968. 
AM - Morning at leisure
 
1800 Depart Randolph !A$B, Tex,.

1480 Arrive Tinker APB, Oklahoma
 

Tour facilities of Oklahoma City Air Materiel Axea (OCA.MA)
1900 Dinner hosted by OCAMA 
Thiursay,10 Oct. 1968 
AM Continue tour of OCA3IA 
1200 Depart Tinker AFB, Oda. 

Lunch aboard aircraft 
:1785 PDT Arrive Nellis Air Force Base, Nevada 

Evening at leisure 
rIedav, 11 Oct. 1968 

AM Tour facilities of USAF Tactical Fighter Weapons Center 

1200 Luncheon hosted by TFWC
 
Continue-tour of TFW0
 

PM Evening at leisure
 
Saturday, 12 Oct. 1968 
0855 Depart Nellis APB, Nev. 
1000 Arrive Long Beach, California Municipal Airport

Tour facilities of McDonnell/Douglas Corporation (Long Beach 
plant)

Reemainder of day free 
SundaV, 13 Oct. 1968 

Free 

MondaY, 14 Oct 1968 
AM Tour facilities of Space and Missile Systems Organizatl n 

(SAM O), Los Angeles, Calif. 
1200 Luncheon hosted by SATMSO; continue tour 
pM Evening at leisure 
Tuesdav, 15 Oct 1968 
0730 PDT 	 Depart Long BeachMunieipal, Airport 

Lunch aboard aircraft 
1730 EDT 	 Arrive Andrews AFB, Maryland 

Wcdnesday, 16 Oct 1968 
Detailed Washington Schedule will be published 

Thlrsday,17 Oct 1968 
1000 Depart Andrews APB, Md.
 
1820 Arrive Miami, Florida
 
1800 Depart Miami Florida via-Pan American Flight 8a.
 

Mnd of Official tour. 

WAsHNnToN iPRO.GoAI FOR ViSnT OF BRAmuN Aan Fonor Coint nD AND ST r 
1a , 98 Sonoor, 15-17 Ooz1oBE 1968150 

1780 Arrive Andrews'Air Force Base, Maryland. Greete&tby
Major General William W. Berg,.Director of Manpower 
and Organization, Hq JUSAF. . 

Proceed to Distinguished Visitors' Lounge for refreshments 
1800 Depart Andrews AFE for Ambassador Hote 1412 K'Street, 

Zfyening at leisure 
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Wednesday,,6--Oot1968 	 

0930 Depart lmbassador Hotel 
1000 , ,A ve nte -American Defense Board, 2600 16t .St.eet, NW. 

BIE- our-ofacilities.
1130 Dep6A-ittneriAnerican Defense Board 

Luqqbeon arrangementsto.be announced., 
1520 Arrive Mmiorial Gate, Arlingtoa National Cemetery 
1530 Wreath laying ceremony at TVomb, of the Unknown Soldj'er.by 

-. eneral:Qarlos Alberto.. • I . .
 
1545 Procee&to gravesite of President.Joln F. Kennedy for wreath
 

laying ceremony. 
1615 Depart Arlington National Cemetery for Ambassador Hotel. 
1830. 1 hotel forAndrews.AFB.,,Depart 

1900-2100 Reception at Officers' Ojen'%Mess,.lhosted by Maj. GeneraLbaJd 

AIrs. Berg. ... - " ; • . 
ltemainaer ofvening -at leisure. 

Tbursay,17 Oct.1968, .', 
0400 jQgQlJg-.pt of -hotel. -lace baggage in. hotel lobby.

0430 Depart hotel for AndrewvsAFB
 
0500 Depart Andrews A1fB,Md.
 
1000 Arrive -KiamiuInt'l, Airport, Miaiai, ,lorida,
 
-100 	 Depart Miami via ,Pant.A-meriea.Fligbt,87.
 

End of Official Tour.
 

IB~ZnAN Ar FoROS An COSMAwn A2xD STAI'V Cormno IrlNmAgy' 

Sunday, 24 Ma 
0510 Arrive via Braniff Flight #920. Los Angeles International 

Airport. Clear Customs, immigration and proceed to Hai
enda Hotel, 525 N. Sepulveda Blvd., E1 Segtndo.

1100 Buses depart hotel for visit to Disneyland. (Visit is optional). 
Evening . At leisure. 
Monday, 25 May 	 " 

0915L-0930 Luggage packed and teady for pick-up..heck out of hotel.
 
0945 Depart hotel via buses for Headquhrters SAMSO.
 
1000-1130 SAMSO briefings. '
 

.1200-1380 Luncheon.
 
1400 Depart Los Angeles nternational Airport
 
1445 Arrive MeCarren.Airport, Las Vegas; Nevada. Proceed',to
 

0 E,lamingo'Hotel.
 
Evening At leisure... 

2330 Midnight Dinner/Show at the-Stardust RoteL.
 

ht,Tuesday, 20 May 
0930 Buses depart hotel for Nellis Air Force Base.
 
1000-1200 Briefings and tour of Nellis AFB.
 
1215-1330: , ,Lugcheonat-Nellis "WB Officers'Club
 
1330 Depart for hotel
 
Afternoon/Eve At leisure I$
 

%
Weditesday 27 Mad 
0745 Luggage packed and~eady,.orplick-up. Check out of hotel.
 
0800 Buses.departforanipot 1.
 
0830 (PDT) fDepdit CarrenAirpor ta Vegas ., . 
1100 (MDT) Arrive Peterson FPield, Colorado
 

Proceed to Palmer House Hotel 
Noon, ,'- Lunch , ;- ,.. . I. "
 
1300 Depart hotel for Ent Air Force Base
 
1330-1445 Briefings at Ent lv'B
 
1500 Depart for Cheyenne Mountain Complex
 
1530-1630 Tour of Complex
 
1700 Arrive at hotel
 
1900 Social function
 

http:jQgQlJg-.pt
http:arrangementsto.be
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ThA dJ 28 May 
0600 
0615 

0700 (MDT) 


0915 (CDT) 

0930-1200 

1200-1830 

1330-1600 
Evening 
Friday29 Hay 
0780 

0745 

0830 

0980 

0930-1200 

1200-1330 

1330 


Afternoon 
1830 
1900 

gaturday80 May 
AM3 
1415 
1500-1700 
1700-1830 
Evening 

gaunjay 81 Msv 
AM 
1300 

1400-1600 
Evening 

Monday 1 Jue 
0730 
0800 
0930 
1120 
1200-1330 

1880-1600 

Evening 

Tuesday 2 Jt-ne 
0915 

1000 
1100 
1130-1300 
1300-1600 -

Evening 

Wednesday S June 

Luggage Packed and ready for pick-up. -Check out of hotel.
 
Buses depart for airport.
 
Depart Peterson Field. (Departure will be via two aircraft

41 passengers on one aircraft, 42 on the other.) Breakfast 
on board aircraft
 

Arrive Sheppard Air Force Base, Texas
 
Briefings at Sheppard APB
 
Luncheon
 
Proceed to Quarters at Ramada Inn, Wichita Falls
 
At leisure
 

Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of hotel. 
]uses departfor airport 
Depart Sheppard AFE 
Arrive Ellington Air Force Base, Texas 
Briefings and tour of Elington AFB 
Luncheon at Ellington AFB Officers' Club 
Proceed to Quarters at Sheraton-Lincoln hotel, 777 Polk 

Street, Houston, Texas
 
At leisure
 
Depart via bus for downtown Rjouston
 
Dinner at Casteels restaurant
 

Free time 
Buses depart hotel for Astrodome 
Tour of Astrodome 
Tour of Astro World (optional) 
At leisure 

Free time 
Buses depart hotel for NASA Manned Spacecraft Center 

(MSO) 
Tour of Center (MSO) 
At leisure 

Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of hotel 
Busesdepart for airport 
Depart Ellington Air Force.Base 
Arrive Offutt Air Force Base,-Nebraska (SAC) 
Luncheon 
Briefings at SAC 
Proceed to Quarters at Offutt Inn 
Dinner at Offutt AFB Officers' Club 

Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Cheek out of 
Quarters. 

Depart Offutt APB 
Arrive Scott Air Force Base, Illinois 
Lunch 
Briefings and tour of Scott AFB" 
Proceed to Quarters, Stauffer's Inn, St. Louis, Mo. 
Attend'St Louis Cardinals baseball game 

Program in St. Louis area as outlined by Scott AVB officials 
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Thursday 4 June 
0780 Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of hotel. 
0800 Buses depart hotel for airport 
0900 (CDT) Depart Lambert Field, St. Louis 
1100 (EDT) Arrive-Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio 

Proceed to Quarters on base (VOQ) 
1200 Lunch 
1330-1600 Briefings and tour of Wright-Patterson AFB 
Evening Dinner,at Wright-Patterson Ar Officers' Club 

Friday5 June 

0000 Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out at 
Quarters. 

0950 Depart Wright-Patterson APB 
1100 Arrive Andrews Air Force Base, Maryland

Proceed to Ambassador Hotel, 14th & K Streets, Washing
ton, D.0. 

See Detailed Washington Itinerary 

Monday 8 June
 
0715 Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of hotel.
 
0730 Buses depart hotel for Andrews APB
 
0830 (EDT) Depart Andrews AFB. Breakfast served on aircraft
 
0905(CDT) Arrive Maxwell Air Force Base, Alabama
 
0930-1180 Briefings and tour of Air University (AU)

1200-1330 LAncheon
 
1330-1530 Briefings continued
 
1.30 Proceed to Quarters on base (VOQ)
Evening Dinner at Maxwell AFB Officers' Chlb 

Tuceday 9 June 
1015 Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of Quarters 
f100 Depart Maxwell AFB 
1180 Arrive flurlburt Field, Florida 
1200-1330 Luncheon at Hurlburt Officers' Club 
:1330-1600 Briefings and tour of base. 
1630 Proceed to Quarters at Howard Johnson Motel at Fort Walton 

Beach 
Evening Dinner at Hurlburt Officers' Club 

WednMday 10 June 
Free 

AM Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of Quarters. 
1100 Buses depart Motel for airport. 
115 Depart Hurlbiirt Field 

Lunch on board aircraft 
1200 (CDT) Arrive Patrick Air Force Base, Florida 
1400 (EDT) Briefings at Patrick AFB 
1430-1600 Proceed to Quarters on base 
Evening Social fuduction' 
Tl~wrsay 11 June 
0730 Luggage packed and ready for pick-up. Check out of Quarters. 
0800 Depart for Cape Kennedy 
0880-1200 Tour Cape Kennedy 
1230-1400 Luncheon at Patrick AFB Officers"'Club 
1430 Depart Patrick APB 
1510 Arrive Miami Tternationai Airport, Florida 
1800 Depart Miamivia Braniff Flight 977. 

Official tour ends 

63-3738-71-8
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WASHINGTON I IEnAUY FoR VISIT OF BRAzIIaAN AIR FOREl AIR COMA D AND
 
STAF COLLEGE, 5-8 JUNE 1970
 

Friday 5 June 
1100 Arrive Andrews Ait Force-Base, Maryland.
 
1100-1130 Welcomed to Washington. Coffee will be served in the Dis

tinguished, Visitors Lounge. 
1130 Depart for Ambassador Hotel; 1412 K.Street, N.W. 
1200-1300 Lunch. 
1305 Buses depart Ambassador Hotel. 
1325 Arrive Fort Lesley T. MeNair. 
180-1500 Briefing Inter-American 'Ddfense College. 
1530-1700 Inter-American Defense Board briefing. 
1700 Buses depart for Ambassador Hotel. 
Evening At leisure, 
Saturdya 6 June 

Day and evening at leisure for individual activities. 
Handag 7 June, 

fay at leisure for individual activities. 
1830 Buses depart Ambassador Hotel. 
1900-2100 Reception in the Capitol Ball Room, Bolling Air Force Base 

Officers' Club. Hosted by Maj General Donavon F. Smith, 
Dir of Opal Rymts & Dev'lans, DOS/R&D. 

Alondaij8 J ne 

0715 Luggage in hotel.lobby ready forpick-up. 
0730 Buses depart Ambassador Hotel. 
0820 Arrive Andrews AFB. Proceed directly to aircraft atd~board 

immediately. 
0880 Depart Andrews AFB. Breakfast will be served on board the 

aircraft. 

BRAZIxiAN NATIoNAl WAR COLLEGE ITINEEARY, 14-28 AGUST 1970 " 

Note: Information on departure timesfrom hotels/motels for airport or social 
functions that are not indicated,ofl the itinerary'will be furnished by the Escort 
Officer. I . 

Baggage should be ready for pick-up I hour prior to'the,departnre time-from 
your lodgings. 
Fri 14j Au!i 
1605 EDT Arrive Miami International Airport via Braniff KLT Fit 

#976. Greeted by Mr. Roberto Fernandez, Public Affairs 
Mgr, floo Brasilere;Mr. Rudolpho .Ledgard, Sr Advisor 
Public Affairs, Bsso Internationaland Major Frederick G. 
Qvale, USAF Escort Officer. 

Proceed to Holiday Inn Motel, 2201 Collins Ave. on Ocean, 
Miami Beach, Florida. 

Evening At leisure. 

Hat 15 Aug 
AM At leisure for shopping and. sight-seeing.
 
1200 Informal lunch.
 
1900 Reception/Dinner hosted by Esso Inter-Americas o. Bath
 

':Cub,Miami Beach. ' 
Sun. i6 Aug . 

1230 EDT DepartMiami International Airport. 
Lunch aboard aircraft: I 

1285 CDT Arrive Hurlburt Field, Florida. Greeted by Brig Gen Leroy
3. Manor; Comdr, USAF Special Operations Force. 

PM Special Opus Force (SOP) Briefingat Hurlburt Field. 
Proceed to Howard Johnson Motel, 245 Miracle Strip Park

way, S.W., Fort Walton Beach 
Free time 

1900 Reception/Buffet at flurlburt Officers' Club 
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Alon17Aug 
AM - 9 1 Static. Display and, Demonstration at Hurlburt Field 
1200 Hosted Luncheon, , 
1400 CDT Depart Hurlburt Field, Fla.,,onors. 
1715 EDT Arrive New York City, LaGuardia Airport. Greeted,by Major 

Zint, SAPOI New York EscortiOcer : 
Proceed to Belmont Plaza Hotel, 49th & Lexington Ave., ,N.Y; 

Evening At leisure 
Tue 18 Aug 
1000 - iVsit United,Iations
1200 Lunch at Governors Island. ,Hosted by Rear Admiral Benja

minF.'Engel, CDhR 3rd Coast Guard District 
PM Tour.Manhattan Island courtesy US Coast Guard 
wed 19 

0900. Depart New York City via chaetered bus (Party will depart 
from Beltont Plaza Hotel) 

1100 Arrive Philadelphia,' Pennsylvania. Proceed to Benjamin 
rranlin Hotel, Chestnut St. and-Ninth 

Tour of Philadelphia conducted by Philadelphia Convention 
and Tours (Mr. Hornstein, Director) 

Informal Lunch 
PM' • . Continue tour ofPhiladelpbia -

Thu 20 Aug 
1000 EDT Depart,.-Pbiladelphia, via chartered bus (Party will 'depart 

from 3en VFrahluin flotdl)* 
1280 Arfive Washington, D.C. Proceed to Ambassador Hotel, 1412 

i. ... . • X St,, NW. 
Thu-Mon 21-24 Aug 

'See Detailed Washington Schedule 

Tue 25 Aug 
1100 DDT -Depaitment Washington, DC'from Andrews ARE. Honora 

Lunch aboard thelafrcraft 
1310 CDT Arrive Ellingtoi AFB,Tex 
PM Briefing and tour of Ellington 

S,Immediately folov.ing briefing, proceed to SheratonLinc6ln 
H16te1 777 Polk Avb.,floiiston 

1900 Reception/Buffet"Social Functibn at'Ellincton XWB Offieers' 
Club 

Ved 26-Aug! 
Guests of Humble Oit onvpany " 

AM, Brief sessions in Humble Building by Humble Management 
No6i LunicheoaIntfltrleumOluh . ! I! , C 
PM Tour ofEsso Production Researchdaelity , 
Evening Party at tsrodomm''. ' -

Thu 27 Aug . , ,. 

0900 Visit N.ASA Manned SpaceCenter; floston, Te.
Noon Informallunch t$-)!,' " I.' ., ., .,
 

1400 v -, roceed-oRieenivdtsityfor tour and-briefing p..-


Evening Afleisure, : .: p . 

120t--. i -Ho..u. ' .. 

120K. •. par .fnto*~ ,erattn 4i• . . an Ap6lci...


.S Tour Ends,n 


% ' . < j i k h . * * ~ ' 
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WASHINGTON ITn'IURY rOR 'VTSIT OF BiAzaMAN NATIONAL WAR COLLEGE, 
20-25 AuGusT 1970 

Thitr 20 Avg 
1230 - Arrive Ambassador Hotel. via chartered bus 1412 K Street, 

N.W., Washington, D.C.
Informal lunch 

100-1630 Visit IThter-Ameriean Defene College, Ft McNair Wash
ington, D.C. 

Evening At leisure 
Fri21 Aug 
0730 Depart flotel via bus for Carderoel, Maryland.
0830 Arrive Naval Ship Research and Development Center for tour 

and briefing
1130 Depart Center for Port McNair, Washington, D.0. 
1230 Luncheon at Fort McNair Officers' Club hosted by Lt. Gen. 

John B. McPherson, Commandant, National War College
1400 Briefing and tour of National War College
1900 Reception/Buffet at Andrews Air o'rce Base,, Foulois Room, 

hosted by General McPherson. 
Sat 22 Aug At leisure 
Sun 23 Aug At leisure 

Mon 24 Aug 
0900-0945 1st Group-Tour and Driefing of Inter-American Defense 

Board, 2600 16th St., N.W., Washington, D.C. 
1015-1.15 2d Group-Tour and Briefing of IADB 
1145 Arrive Pan American Building, 23d -and: Virginia Ave. Walk 

to "C" Street Entrance of State Department welcomed by
Director, Office otbrazilian Affairs 

Luncheon hosted by Assistant, Secretary, Charles A. Meyer
in Franklin Room, 8th Floor 

1580 Depart State Department "0"StreetEntrance 
Z545 Arrive Brazilian Embassy, 8007 Whitehaven St., N.W. 

1600 Informal meeting anid introductions 
1800, Reception/Buffetgiven by Brazilian Embassy

1900 Depart Embassy to returnto hotel
 

Remainder of evening at leisure,
 
Tue 25 Aug 
1000 Baggage truck depart Ambassador Hotel for Andrews APB 

MACPassenger Terminal
 
1010 Personnel depart for Andrews AFB DV Passenger Lounge

1100 Honors Will Be Rendered
 

Depart Andrews Air Force Base for Elington AFB, Tex 
End of Washington Tour 

The U.S. ,Navy conducted the followingorientation tours of Brazilian officer
 
during the past three ySears:


196--Brazflian National War College--Group I
 
-Brazilian National War College-Group II
 
-Brazilian Naval War College


1969-Braziian Nat'al'War College

1070-Brazilian Naval War College


Itineraries, Amrians met by Braiflians, numbers of Personnel on each tour
 
and the cost and funding information for each tour are attached.


Itineraries are developed from proposals made by Brazil via the MAA. These 
detailed proposals are followed as closely as possible. Orientation visijt to the 
U.S. Capitol, State Department; aid-other U.S; institutions and military facilities 
are suggested but are not reitired. Paramount consideration is given to the 
specific desires of Brazil expressed in the proposed itineraries provided the 
objectives of the Juformational.Programsare met. 

No specific lectures are given to explain the role ot the 'U.S. military in the 
U.S. defense effort. The many and varied orientation visits within the mili
tary establishment as delineated in the itineraries provide the most graphic
and realistic exposure possible of the role of the U.S. military. 

http:1015-1.15


113 

I 
16 MkY-7 JUNE 1968 

ITnmERY Fop B&Tzuwr NATIONAL WAR COLLEot Visrr-GRou 

(all times local) 

TBURSDAY, 16 MAY Iac8 

0430-Arrive Tocunmen Airport via Braniff flight #972. Proceed to El Continental 
Hotel. 

1030-Travel to U. S. Southern Command, Quarry Heights

1100--Welcome by Major General G. B. IDANY, USAF, Chief of Staff, U. S.
 

Southern Command, followed by SOUTHCOM Briefing.
1145--Travel to Naval Station Rodman Officers Club 
1200--Lunch 
1330-Walk to Rodman Theater 
1835- elcome by Rear Admiral George P. KOCH, USN, Commander, U.S. 

Naval Forces, Southern Command, followed by USNAVSO Command Briefing. 
1415-Break 
1440-Travel to Building 1, Fort Amaador 
1500-U. S. Army Southern Command Cordon 
1510-Travel to Fort Amador Theater 
1515-U. S. Army Southern Command Briefing
1610-Return to hotel 
1800-Travel to Admiral's house 
1880-Reception hosted by Commander in.Chief U. S Southern Command, Com

mander U. S. Naval Forces, Southern Command, Commander, U. S. Army 
rorces, Southern Command, and Commander, U. S. Air Forces, Southern, 
Command. 

2080-Return to hotel 
FRIDAY, 17 MAY 1908 

0830-Travel to Albrook Air Force Base Headquarters Building.
 
0900--WNTelcome by MfaSor General R. J. CLIZBE, USAF, Commander, U.S. Air
 

Forces. Southern Command. followed by U.S. Air Forces, Southern Com
mand Briefing.

1000--Travel to Tocumen Airport (Governor's Lounge)
1200-Depart for Miami abroad Braniff flight #976' 
1520--Arrive Miami International Airport. Met by Brazilian Consul representa

'tive and Lieutenant Commander MC BAIN, USN. Proceed through
customs. Proceed to Carillon Hotel. 

RON--Carillon Hotel 
SATURDAY, 18 MAY 1968 

Free for shopping and individual sightseeing.
RON-Carillon Hotel 

SUNDAY, 19 MAr 1968 

Free for church and sightseeing
RON-Carillon Hotel 

MONDAY, 20 MAY 1968 
Break-fast at hotel 

0800--Depart for Homestead Air Force Base via USAF buses. Tour Homestead 
Air Force Base. 

Lunch at Officers Club, Return to hotel. 
RON-Oarillon Hotel 

TUESDAY, 21 MAY 1968
 
Morning free
 
Lunch at hotel 

1400-Aircraft departs airport for Louisville. (Ground handling by Delta Air
lines) -Snacken route 

1610-Arrive Louisville Airport. (Ground handling by Piedmont Airlines) Met 
by Captain BELCHER, USN, Professor of Naval Science, University of 
Louisville. Proceed to Executive Inn. 

1820-Reception and dinner hosted by Captain BELCHER 
ItON-Executive Inn 
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0800-Proceed by Army bus to Fort Knox
 
Lunch at Fort Knox 

:1600-Return to Louisville
 
Evening free. Transportati-Awill be proiTddd to downtown Louisville.
RONT :-xecutive .nnl ". .. r 

TE'USDAY, 28 MAY 1908 ' . 

.0800-Depart Louisvtlle-tA'rport for' Colorado-Srings 'Breakfast'Aen',router
0815--Arrie Colorado-Springs. (Groiind- handflng by 'Froiitier 'Airllies) Mt 

"
by fajor JANOSEXO,, USA. Piode~d 6A tlerA RHotel, rt 

Lunch at hotel , -, ", , a .".. r, 
1300-Proceed by U.S. Air Force bus to Ent Air Force Base for' briefing by

NORAD. 
1630--Rtuhi to hbtel ' '' ." t, i.:, ., 

- Eve&Lg-te6- s7. '.. 
RON-Antler's Hlotel , ., 

F ThAY, 24t2SMIT- 196$' ''
 

Breakfast at hotel , - I "' 

0900--Proceed by bus to Denver via U.S. Air Force Acaddemy " ,

1080-Arrive Brown Palace HoteL,Met 'by',Captain J. G,.DoW:hf;bg USN,-Cohi

manding Officer, Navy and Marine Corps Reserve'Traiifihg'Cdnter.' 
.Lunchat hotel K , 

4800-Depart hotel fhr toi 6f C6entral-'o~ty . ...
 
1800--Return to hotel. : .
 
1900a-Reeepionat-Bro*n Palace Elote'hosted'by Captain t 0G.Downing, USN
 
RON--Brown Palace Hlotel 

SATURDAY, 25 MAY 1968Breakfast at: hotel , . .
 

0900---Depart hotel forfull day of sightseeig-in'Denver area
 
,Eventing free
 

RON-Brown Palace Hotel
 

'U2WA7, 26 MIAY 1968. 

Morning free forsihurch-and sightseeing 
1100-Depart Denver for San Antonio (around'babwkg"by Frontier, Airlines). 

Lunch en route. I I.... . I 
1850-Arrive San Antonio. (Ground handling by T ans-Texas Airline3.)'Met by

Lieutenant Commander Dean fl. 'CHAKNt LLOR, Commanding Officer. 
Navy and Marine Corps Reserve Training Center, and Chamber of 
Commerce'Red Carpet Committee.. .. 

Proceed to Sheraton Mvotor.in 
1800-Texas Barbecue hosted by Lieutenant Commander CHANCELLOR 
RON-Sheraton Motor Inn 

MONDAY, 27 MAY 1968 

0730--Breakfast at hotel 
0830-Departfor Randolph Air Force Base for-tour and briefingby Air Training

Command 
0900--Arrive Randolph Air Force Base 
10-Lunch at Officers Club 

D280-Depart Randolph Air Force -Base 

lals-Arrive Hemisfair 
1800-Dinner at Casa Rio 

After dinner return to Hemisfair. Shuttle bus will be-provided for-ieturnto 
motel. 

RON-Sheraton Motor nn - ,. -

TUESDAYT, 28 MAY 1968 . " 

0780--Breakfast at motel 
0900-Check out 1 
0980-Departfor Alamo and Buckhorn Saloon tours 
1130-Luncheon hosted by Lieutenant Commander CHANCELLOR 

http:Mvotor.in
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1800-Depart for airport - , . -j . . ',., 
1400-Depart for Norfolk. Snack en route ,
1745--Arrive Norfolk Naval Air Station., met by Commander in ,Chief Atlantic 

representative. Proceed-to Quality Courts Motel.. 
RON-Quality Courts Motel. 

WEDNESDAY, 29 MAY, 1968 • 
Sreakfast at motel • , 

0900--fepart motel ,
0930-Arrive ,Operational Control Center, Commander in Chief U.S. 'Atlaitic 

-Fleet 0IINCLANT/CINOLAXTFLT Command Briefing. Tour of Anti-
Submarine Tactical School. 

1145--Proceed to Naval 1Station Officers Clubforlunch, 
1316-f.DepartOfficers-Club - l 
1325--Visit Armed Forces 'Staff College.-Welcomed by, kajor ,General K W. 

Norris, USA, Commandant. 
1430-Units 1 and,2 visit USS CONYNHAI-

Units 3 andil visit USS LAWRENCE ., 
1530-Visit USS FORRESTAL • 
1980-Reception 
2180-Return to motel 
RON Quality Courts Motel 

THURSDAY, 30 MAY_1003 (MEMORIAL DAY) 

Breakfast at motel. 
0800 .-fepart inotel for visit to Colonial Williamburg 
16O0--1eturn to-motel " S-

Evening free 
RON-Quality Courts Motel", " . 

FraiDAY, 31 -MAY 196S 

Breakfast at motel A "6 " 
0900-Depart motel 
0930--Visit Fortress Monroe. Schedule as 'arranged by Contijentai Army 

Command. 
Lunch at Fortress Monroe. 

1330-Proceed to Little Creek. Schedule as arranged by Comniarfder !mphibious 
Force, U.S. Atlantic Fleet.

160-IReturn to motel 
Evening free 

RON-Quality Courts-Motel 

SATURDAY, 1 JUN'E,1963 ' 
free

Morning 
NAVAL. A $TATION 

1400-Depart Norfolk Municipal Airport. (Ground handling by Piedmont Air
lines) 

1480-Arrive Washington National Airport. (Ground handling by Page) Met 
by N0 Representatives. Proceed to Winsgor-Eark Hotel. 

1800-Depart hotel for National Navral Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland 
180-Ileeeption hosted by Rear AdmiralS i. FLE MING, USN, Assistant Dep

uty Chief of Naval Operations (Plans and Policy) 
204r5-Return to-hotel 
RON-Windsor-Park Hotel 

SUNDAY, 2 JVN2E 1968 

forning free for church 
Lunch at hotel 

1800-General sightseeing by bus 
1700-fRemirn t6-hotel -' 

Evening free " 
RO -Windsor-Park Hotel 
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MO JDAY, J., X 8, 19D8OS 
Breakfast at hotel.
 

0800-Depart'hoter-forArlington7Nationar Cemetery.
I0845-Arrive Arlington. 

0900-Observe Changing of the Guard at the Tomb of-the Unkno*ns.

0905-Wreath laying ceremony at the Tomb of the Unknowns. Major General'
 

Humberto de Souza Mello. 
0915--Proceed to John F. Kennedy Gravesite on foot. 
0925---,Wreathlaying ceremony at Gravesite. Return to buses. 

.945-fDepart Arlington'Nationat Cemetery-pass'Iwo Jima Menorial. 
1000-Arrive Federal Bureau of Investigation (9th and Pennsylvania Avenue 

Entrance)- Met by FBI Agent for tour and briefing. 
l00-Depart Federal Bureau of Investigation. ' I 

1115-r-Axrive Smithsonian Institution, Museum of fltstory and Technologyf16r
self-guided tour.
 

1215-Depart Smithsonian Institution.
 
1480-Arrive Inter-American Defense College for briefinand-tour.
 
1600-Depart Inter-American Defense-College.


Return to hotel.
 
Evening free.
 

RON-Windsor-Park Hotel. 

TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 1908 
Breakfast at hotel.

0845-Depart hotel. 
0930-Arrive Naval Ship Research, and Development. Center. Met by Q4ptain

Vincent, Commanding Officer and Director. Briefing and tour of Naval 
Ship Research and Development Center.

21200-Depart Naval Ship Research and Development Center.
 
1300--Arrive Marine Corps Base Quantico. Lunch at Officers Club, followed by
 

tour. 
1500-Proceedto Brazilian flmbassy for reception.


Eroning free.
 
RON- Windsor-Park Hotel. 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5, 1968 
Blreakfast at hotel. 

0800--Check out of hotel. '
 
0830--Depart hotel for New York by chartered bus.
 
1300-Arrive New York met by Commandant, Third Naval District representa

tive at Warwick Hotel. 
Remainder of day as arranged by Comandant, 'Third Naval District. 

RON-Warwick Hotel. 
THURSDAY, JUNE 6, 1068 

As arranged by Commandant, Third'Naval District. 
RON-Warwick Hotel. 

F.WAY, TIEF 7, 1968 

"Dejart New York for Rio de Janeiro 
Nom's: All CONUS air travel will 'be by Southlern Airways Charter DC-9 jet. 

IIriran FRe BnAz~trAN NA 'IoNAa WAn. COLL.EGE Vrsrr':-Qnour T-,Tums2Z 
ULY i9, 1968 j " 

(All times local) 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 19G8 

1555--Arrive Toeumen Airport via Pan American flight No.,576t Remainder of 
day as arranged by C0OI'USNAVSO. - 

-r 

THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 1968 

As arranged by CONIUSNAVSO. 
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FRIDAY, JUTTE 28, 1968 

A.M. As arrangediby COMUSNAVSO.
 
1405--Depart Panama for Miami via Pan American flight No. 82.
 
1735-Arrive Miami International Airport via Pan American flight No. 82. Met
 

by Brazilian Consul representative, and Lieutenant Commander 
MlcBain. Proceed to Carillon Hotel. 

RON--Oarillon Hotel. 
SATflEDAY, JUNE 29, 1968 

Free time. Shopping an-d sightseeing. 
RON-Oarillon Hotel. 

SUNDAYZ, JUNE 30, 1968 

Free time. Church and sightseeing. 
RON-Carillon Hotel. 

moNDAY, JULY 1, 1968 

1000-Depart Miami for Patrick Air Force Base. Ground handling by Dispatch 
Service. Coffee en route. 

1045-Arrive Patrick Air Force Base, Proceed to Holiday Inn Motel, Cocoa 
Beach. Remainder of day free. 

RON-Holiday Inn Motel. 
TUESDAY, JULY 2, 1968 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0800-Check out of hotel. 
0830--Depart hotel. 
0900-Tour Cape Kennedy. 
1200--uncb. 
1300-Tour Patrick Air Force Base. 
1600-Depart Patrick Air Force Base for Fort Sill, Oklahoma Lawton Airport. 

Dinner en route. 
1830-Arrive Fort Sill. Ground handling by R. B. Owens. 

Proceed to Ramada Inn. 
Evening free. 

RON-Ramada Inn. 
WEDNESDAY, JULY 3, 1968 

Breakfast at Ramada Inn. 
0800-Commence full day of briefings and visits to Artillery Center facilities 

and Artillery School. 
1030--Recreation hosted by L. G. Thn J. Kenney, acting C.G. and assist com

mandant of the U.S. Army Artillery Missile School & Mrs. Kenney.
Evening free. 

RON-Ramada Inn. 

T URSDAY, JULY 4, 1968-INDPPENDENOE DAY 

Breakfast at Ramada Inn.
 
Visit Wildlife Refuge.

Attend Independence Day Picnic and fireworks display.
 

RON-Ramada Inn. 
FRIDAY, JULY 5, 1968 

Breakfast at Ramada Inn. 
1000-Depart Fort Sill for San Diego, California. Lunch en route. 
1180-Arrive Naval Air Station North Island. No, honors. Met by Commander 

First Fleet, Commandant, Eleventh Naval, District, Commander fleet 
Air, San Diego, and Commanding Officer, Naval Air Station North Island. 
Depart for Hotel Del Coronado. Check into hotel. 

1410-Depart Hotel Del Coronado. 
1440--Arrive Marine Corps Recruit Depot. 
500-General FRAGOSO to review Marine Corps Recruit Depot parade and 

others to observe. Commanding General, Marine Corps Recruit Depot is 
Major General L. ENGLISH, USMC. Honors will be rendered to Gen
eral FRAGOSO, Brazilian War College at parade. 

1600--'Depart Marine Corps Recruit Depot. 
160-Arrive Hotel Del Coronado, 
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181--Depart Hotel Del Coronado. 
1880-Reception hosted by Commandant, Eleventh.Naval District, Rear Admiral 

MarshalL.E. DORNIN and Mrs. DORNIN, at Naval Air Station North 
Island Officers Club. ServiebtDress White Uniform. 

2O30--epart reception.for .qtel. 
RON -Hotel Del Ooronfido. A Y 

Breakfast at hotel 
1000--Buses depart hotel for Natal Station Exchange shopping as desired. 
1200-Buses depart Exchange for hotel. Remainder of day free. 
RON-Hotel Del Coronado. 

SUNDAY, JULY 7, 1968-
Breakfast at hotel. 

0915-Buses depart hotel. 
1600--Mass followed by sightseeing tour. 
1230-Buses return to Hotel Del Coronado. -Remainder of day free. 
RON-Hotel Del.Coronado. 

MONDAY, JULY 8, 1098
 
Breakfast athotel.
 

0745--Baggage in hotel lobby for pickup 
0815--Group departs hotel. 
0900--Visit University of California at SaR Diego and Scripps Institution of 

Oceanography. 
1030-Depart
100--Arrive Lindbergh Meld for departure to Omaha, Nebraska. Lunch en route. 

IT00-Arrive Omaha, Nebraska, Epley Field. Ground'handling by Ozark. met by 
Rear Admiral George R. Museor Rear Admiral Edwin J. Zimmermann, 
Jr.Proceed to Prom Town House Motor Inn. 

RON-Prom Town House Motor Inn. 

TUESDAY; JULY 9, 1908 

0900-Depart Motor Inn.
 

0930-Visit Naval Reserve Training Command. Welcomed by Rear Admiral
 
George R. Muse, Commander, Naval Reserve Training Command. 

1200-Lunch at Birchwood Club hosted by Rear-Admiral Muse. 
1330--Visit Boys' Town. 
1600-Proceed to Lyndon Hall for reception hosted by Rear Admiral Muse. 
1900--Return to Prom Town House Motor Inn: 
RON-Phorn Town House Motor Inn. 

WSDNTESDA7Y, JULY 10, 1968 

0730-Depart Motor Inn.
 
0830-Briefing and tour hosted by CINCSAC.
 
1200-Lunch at Offutt Air Force Base 0ffcers Club hosted by CINOSAC.
 
1380--Depart Offutt Air Force Base. 

Sightseeing in afternoon. 
1800-Reception hosted by Leo A. Daley Co. 
RONr-Prom Town House rotor Inn. 

THURSDAY, JULY 11, 1968 
Breakfast at hotel. 

1000-Depart hotel for Epley Field. 

fL00--Depaztfor-Washington, D.C. Lunch eu'rotte. 
1715--Arrive Washington, "D.C. Natignal Airport. Groindhandling by Page Air

ways. Met by CNO representative, General Planning Programming
rrlivision. 


Proceed to Windsor Park Hotel:
 
Evening free. .
 

RON-Windsor Park Hotel. 

FRIDAY, JULT 12, 1963, 
Breakfast at hotel. 

0800-Depart hotel. Proceed to Departnent -of Housing and -Urbani Develop
ment,-7th and E Streets, S.W. Welcomed by'Mr. Iamds A. Moore, Direc
tor, Division of Internatoinal Affairs. 
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0900--Briefing and discussionstfollowedrby.-tour ofrenewal projects. 
0945-Vice Admiral HEITOR call on Commandant, U.S., Mbtrie-Coips;,General 

Leonard F. Chapman. iRjoingroup~at-Foit ticNair Offiders Club. 
1230-Arrive Fort McNair Officers Club. Luncheon 'hosted, by -Major General 

John B. Henry, USAF. Director, U.S. South Com. 
1415'-SBriefing at'Ihte -American flefCiseCollege.,
1515-Depart Inter-American Defense College. 
1600-Arrive Inter-American Defense Board. Welcomed by.Lieutenant General 

James D. Alger, USA. 
1700--Return to hotel. 
RON-Windsor Park Hotel. 

SATORDAY, JULY 13, 1968 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0820-Depart hotel. 
0900-Arrive White House for Special Tour. Talk by Mr. Walt Rostow. 
1000--teturn to hotel. 

Afternoon free for shopping.
1780-Depart hotel. 
1800-Arrive National Naval Medical Center Bethesda Officers Club. Reception

hosted by Adm. and Mrs. Francis T.Blouen. 
200--Return to hotel. 
RON-Windsor Park Hotel. 

I " SUNDAY, V UOY 14, 1968 
Breakfast at hotel. 

0900-Depart' hotel. 
090-tass at the Shrine of the Immaculate Conception.
1030-Return to hotel.Lunch ht hotel. 
1800-Commence sightseeing tour of national-monuments. 
1700-teturn to hotel. 

Evening free.
 
RON-Windsor Park Hotel.
 

MONDAY,JULY 1 , 1968 
Breakfast at hotel.
 

0815--lepart hotel.
 
0845--Arrive Arlington National Cemetery.

0900-Observe Changing of the Guard at the Tomb of the lUnkiowns. 

-0905-Wreath laying ceremony. General Anugusto, Fragoso, Brazilian Army, Di
rector Brazilian National War College. U.S. host-Rear Admiral Elliott 
Laughlin, USN, ,Commandant Naval District Washington.'Proceed to 
Kennedy Gravesiteon foot 

0925--Lay .wreath-at Kennedy Gravesite.IReturn to ,buses& , , 
1000-Visit Iwo Jima Memorial
1015--Depart Iwo Jima-Memorial. 
1030--Arrive State Department, "C" Street Entrance. Briefing, 'by Mr. Eugene 

* ostow. 
1800-Depart State Department. Return to hotel.
 

Aftetnoon free.
 
1715--X)epart hotel for Brazilian Embassy.

1730--leception hsted by Honorable Jorge de,-SA Almeida, Minister Counselor 

of Brall. 
1900--Return to hotel. 

Evening free. 
RON-Windsor Park Hotel. 

TUESDAY,-JULY 16, .1968 
Breakfast at hotel.
 

0800-Depart hotel.
 
0900-Arrive Marine Corps Devdlopient and EducationCommand, Quantico. 

Luncheon hosted by the Commanding General. - ' . -

L1600-Return to hotel. 

Evening free. . 

RON-Windsor Park Hotel. 
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-' .rWDTESDAY,, JY, ZT.196 I,. 
Breakfast at hotel, .
 

0830-Xpart'hotel for New Yorlr via chartered:bus., 
1300--Arrive New York. Proceed tto Plaza Hotel .
 

Afternoon free. ., -. . ., -, - , 
I800-Reception 'hosted by Honorable Lauro Soutello Alvez, Minister,. Counsel 

General of Brazil.
 
2000-1eturn to hotel.
 
RON -Plaza Hotel.
 

THURSDAY, JULY 18, 1968 
Brealkast at hotel. 

090-Depart hotel. Arrive United Nations for tour and briefings. 
1230--Luncheon hosted by Vice Admiral Andrew McB. Jackson, Jr., USN, Vice 

Chairman, U.S. Delegation, U.N. Military Staff Committee.
 
1430-Depart U.N. Return to hotel.
 

Afternoon free.
 
1900-Visit Radio City Music Hall as guests of the Coca-Cola Company.
 

Rteturn to hotel.
 
RON-Plaza Hotel.
 

FRDAY; JULY 19, 1968
 

fDay free to prepare for rdturn to Rio de Janeiro.
 
1700- (Approximately) Depart hotel for airport.
 
2100--Depart New York for Rio de Janeiro via Pan American flight No. 201.
 

No: ALL CONUS air travel will be by American Flyers Airline Charter--
Electra Turbo Prop L122, Tail No. 182H. 

ITIERARY FOR BRAzILIAN NAVAL WAR COLLEGB JULY 17-AuGflst 9, 1968 

WEDN ESDAY, TULr t7, 1968-PANAMA 

1555-Arrive Tocumen Airport -via Pan American flight No. 516 from Rio de 
Taneiro. Met upon arrival by Rear Admiral, G. P. lKoeh, USN, Com
mander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern Command/Commandant, Fifteenth 
Naval District.
 

1630-Proceed to Hotel Continental.
 
Evening free. 

RON-Hotel Continental. 

THURSDAY, JULY 18, 1968 

0720-Breakfast.at Hotel Continental. Uniform.: Tropical White Long. 
0830-Joint Honor Cordon at Quarry Heights followed by USOINOSO briefing 

to be conducted by Colonel K. A. Frith, USA,- Foreign Liaison Offic-er. 
0945--Official welcome by Rear Admiral G. P. Koch followed by USNAVSO 

briefing at Rodman Theatre, U.S. Naval Station. 
1100-United' States Air Force, Southern Command, briefing at Albrook Air 

.Forceiase. 
1200-Luncheon at Albrook Officers Club hosted by Major General Sanborn, 

USAP, Commander, U.,S. Air'Force, Southern.Command. 
1830-United States Army, Southern Command, briefing at Fort Amador Theatre 

Conducted by Colonel K. A. Frith, USA.,
1830--ioint reception -at Quarters "A", Fort Amador hosted- by. Rear Admiral 

Koth, Major General Sanborn, General Porter, and" Miior General 
Johnson. Uniform: Service Dress White. 

Remainder of evening free. 
RON-Hotel Continental. 

F=DAY, JULY 19, 109 -PANAMA/frnhr 

Breakfast at hotel Uniform: Tropical-White Long. 
1000-PanamatCanal Briefingand tour of Afiraflores Locks: . .
1100-Return to Hotel Continental. 
110--Luncheon at Hotel Continental. 
1215-Luggage ready for pickup.. 

http:0720-Breakfast.at
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1230-fDepart Hotel Continental on route-to Toeumen Airport. 
1405--Depart Tocumen Airport en route to Miami, Florida, via .Pan American 

flight No. 82. -"I 
173---Arrive Miami's International Airport. rollowing-customsprocessings pro

ceed to Carillon Hotel, 6801 Collins Avenue, Midint Beach., 
Remainder of day and evening free. 

RON-Carillon Hotel. 

SATRDAY, JUaY'20, 1068-IAMfi/WASHINGTON 

Breakfast at hotel. 
Morning free for shopping.

1100-Depart Carillbn, Hotel' en route to Miami International Airport. 
121i-Depart Miamis International Airport'via chartered aircraft en route to 

Washington, D.C. Luncheon servedin flight I 
1520-Arrive, Washington's National Airport' '(Page. Airways Terminal) via 

chartered aircraft. Proceed to Sheraton 'Park Hbtel,'2660 Connecticut 
"
 Avenue, NW. - " 

1730--Depart hotel en route to Fort Lesley J.McNair. 
1800--Reception hosted 'by Rear Admiral and -Mrs. G. R. La Roeque, USN, 
2000 Director, Pan American Affairs. Uniform: Service Dress White. 
2015--DepartTort MeNdir'for Sheraton Park Hotel: 

Remainder of evening free. 
RON-Sheraton Park Hotel. ' I * 

'SUNDAY, JULY 21, 19GB-WASHINGTON 

Bfeakfast.at hbtel " " 
0900-L-*'VDepart Sbeiatoff Bark'Hotel' for National Shrine of tle Immaculate 

Conception for celebration of CatholicMass. 
Morning free for those not attending church.' 
Lunch at Sheraton Park Hotel or as desired. --
Afternoon free. Buses available- for local sightseeing on a voluntary basis. 

1900--*Depart Sheratoh Park Hotel en route to 'Wilson, Line Headquarters, 
Pier 4, Maine Avenue. 

1930--Depart on, motor yachlt 'founnt Vy noif'for 'evening Potomae River-cruise. 
Dinner-served on board. ' 

2230-Return to Pier 4 and proceed to SFeratbn'Pi rkUo ee : "" 
RON-Sh'eiatdt Pait "~'b?- '''I 

j'Uh~j T- . Imix nY 2 ; hdo43--AstiGToN'' 

0800-Breakfast at Sheraton Park Botel; -Uniforin'z'qyopmeal iWhite,-Long:- 
0845-flepart hotel en route to Inter-American Defense Board Hleadquartfers,'-,.- , -.
2600 16th Street, NW, , . " 1 i| , -.51," 
0900-Tour and briefing at Inter-American Defense, Board to be conducted by 
1030 C , , ,09lonel;PauloE.Souto, Army of d3ajl.,-,' . 
1030--Depart Tnter-Amei'ican Deensoar,.a1 eadquarters:en route ,to Inter
S-1 .AmericaiDefense Collegq,%forb.LeslerJ.kicNair., ,, , . -r '. 

1060-Tour and brieffig at Inter-American Defense College to,be cdnducted by 
1220 Captain Oswaldo de.Andrade,.Navymq.Brazil., . -- . 
1280-Lunch at Fort Lesley I. MeNair Oflicer's Club hostedby/Major General J.B. 

Henry, USA, Director, Inter-American Defense CoIege: , 
1345--Depart Fort Lesley J.McNair Officers Club en route'to Headquarters, 

Marine, Corps, Arlington Annex. ... 
Special arrangements niadfe for the engiheerA and doctors fiom among the 

student body to visit the Naval Ship Research and&DevelopmenttCenter 
and the Bethesda Naval Hospital respectively. 135 departurebj sedans 
from Fort -McNairOfficers Club arranged. . " .. .. 

1400--Orientation brie&ings by mernberspf~the.Oommandaut, Marine Corps-staff, 
1600 Room. 220tdTarineCorpsHeadqlarteis.' -w 1630-Admiral Levy Reis calls on generaIlL; Chapman,, Jr.,- Commandant; 

Marine Corps: - , [A, . ... , I , ," , •.,, 
Returnto,Shqr9tonaak-Hotel. , ", ,7 " 

f815-Depart,heraton Park f.o~telen.Toute-tq Brazilian Embassy. 

* Denotes optional participation. 

http:Deensoar,.a1
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1830-Reception at the Brazilian Embassy, 3000 Massachusetts Avenue, hosted 
by'Charge d'Affaires Jorge de Sa Almeida.
 

Uniform: Service Dress White.
 
Remainder of evening free.
 

RON-Sheraton Park Hotel. 

TUESDAY, JULY 23, 106-WASHIGTON/NEW ORK 

0715--Breakfast at Sheraton Park Hotel. Uniform: Service Dress White. 
0815-Depart Sheraton Park H1otel en route to Tomb of the Unknowns, Arlington 

Cemetery.
0850-Arrive Tomb of the Unknowns. 
0900-Witness Changing of the Guard, Tomb of the Unknowns. 
0905-Admiral Levy Reis lays wreath at Tomb of the Unknowns on behaltof the 

Brazilian Naval War College.
Followiug wreath laying ceremony proceed on foot to President Kennedy 

and Senator Kennedy gravesites. 
0935--Depart Arlington Cemetery for Sheraton Park Hotel. Change into Tropical 

White Long uniform.
 
10195-fDepart Sheraton Park Hotel en route to Pan American Union.
 
1030-Briefing and tour at Pan American Union.
 
1200--Depart Pan American Union en route to Sheraton Park Hotel.
 

Lunch at Sheraton Park Hotel. 
1300-Luggage ready for pick up outside rooms.
 
1330-fDepart Sheraton Park Hotel en route to Washington's National Airport.
 
1400-Depart Washingtonrs National Airport via chartered aircraft (Page Air

ways Terminal) for New York. 
1500-Arrive New York's LaGuardia Airport. Ground handling by Butler Avia

tion. Met by COMTHR]hE1B Representative. Proceed to Warwick Hotel, 
6th Avenue and 54th Street. 

Remainder of evening free. 
RON-Warwick Hotel. 

WEDIQSSDAY, JULY 24, 1968-NEW YORK 

Breakfast at hotel Uniform: Civilian Informal. 
0000-Depart hotel on chartered bs for United Nations Headquarters.
0915--Arrive United Nations Headquarters. 
090--Briefing on the organization and functions of the United Nations -by mem

bers of the Brazilian Mission to the United Nations. 
1030--Tour of United Nations. YIP -tour and Portuguese speaking guides 

scheduled.
 
1145-Luncheon in the Delegate's dining room.
 
1245-
1300--Depart United Nations Headquarters for hotel. 

Remainder 'of afternoon free. 
1745-Depart hotel for Commissioned Officers Mess (Open), U.S. Naval Station, 

Brooklyn. Uniform: Civilian Informal. 
1880--Rteception hosted by Rear Admiral V. D. Foley, USN, Commandant, Third 

Naval District 
2030--Depart Naval Station, Brooklyn for hotel. 

Remainder of evening free. 
RON-Warwick Hotel. 

TMU SDAY, JULY 25, 1968-NEW YORK/NEW LONDON 

Breakfast at 6teL
 
Xorning ree.
 
Luncheon as desired.
 

1400--Luggage ready for pickup outside rooms.
 
1415--Depart New York for New 'London, Conn., by chartered bus.
 
1700--Arrive Groton Motor Inn, Groton, Conn.
 
1800-Reception and dinner at Commissioned Officers Mess.

2 2 00-(Open) hosted by Rear Admiral 0. D,.Nace, USN, Commander, Submarine
 

Flotilla Two.-Uniform: Service Dress White. 
RON-Groton Motor Inn. 
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FRIDAY, JULY 26, 1968-NEW LOWDOW 

0800-Breakfast at motel. Uniform: Service Dress White. 
0845-Depart motel. 
0000--Honors at Main Gate. 
0915--Welcome aboard by Rear Admiral C. D. Nace, USN, COMSUBWLOT 

TWO. 
0920
 
0920--Area Orientation. 
0935 
0935--Breflg on the role of the Nuclear Submarine. 
1005--Coffee break. 
1015-Briefing on the role of the Nuclear Ballistic Submarine. 
1045 
1100-Bus tour of the Submarine Base. 
1130-Lunch at Commissioned Officers Mess (Open). 
1300 
1305-Tour and demonstration of facilities including Submarine Diving Trainer, 

Mooring and Docking Trainer, Attack Teacher. 
1455 
1500--Tour of submarines. 
1600 
1600--Boat tour of Thames River, weather permitting. 
1700 

Dinner, Commissioned Officers Mess (Open). 
Evening free. 

RON-Groton Motor Inn. 

SA TURDAY, JUlLY 27, 1',68-NEW LONDON 

0800-Breakfast at motel. Uniform: Tropical White Long. 
0900--Depart motel. 
0915-Tour of United States Coast Guard Academy. 
1115 

Lunch at Commissioned Officers Mess (Open), Submarine Base. 
1300--Tour of Mystic Seaport. 
1580
 

Return to motel following Mystic Seaport tour. 
1700--Informal beach picnic. 
2100 
RON-Groton Motor Inn. 

SUNDAY, JULY 28, 1) 68-NEW LONDON/NEWPORT 

0930-*Attend Catholic Mass. 
100-Brunch at Commissioned Officers Mess (Open). 
1300
 
1430-Depart for Newport, Rhode Island via chartered bus. Uniform: Tropical 

White Long. 
1600-Arrive Newport Motor Inn. Admiral Levy Reis will proceed -directly to 

Naval Base Headquarters, Building No. 10, Coasters Harbor Island to be 
greeted by Naval Base, Newport representative. 

1615-Admiral Levy'Rels departs Naval Base Headquarters er route to Newport 
Moter Inn. 

1845-Admiral Levy Reis departs Newport Motor Inn for Quarters AA, for 
dinner hosted by Vice Admiral J. T. Hayward, USN, President, Naval 
War College. Uniform: Service Dress White. 

1700-Remainder of party departs Newport Motor Inn for Commissioned Officers 
Mess (Closed). Dinner at Commissioned Officers Mess. Uniform: Civil
ian Informal. 

1830-Buses return party to Newport Motor Ini 
Remainder of evening free. 

RON-Newport Motor Inn. 

*P enotes optional participation. 
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_-ONlW0DA, JULY 29,'196S-NIEWPORT 

070-Breakfast at Newbort Mvotor Inn -- Unif6rm :iropical White'Long. 
0845--Depart Newport Motor Inn en route to Naval War College. 
0900--Admiral Levy Reis calls on Vice Admiral 1. T. Hayward, USN, P]xelIdent,

Naval War College." " 
0915--Admiral 	

-". 

Levy Reis and Senior Stafr Officers confer with Academic Plans 
Department on Naval War College curriculum. 

0900-Remainder of party commences briefing and tour of'Navil Wtt, College:
1200-Admiral Levy Rels calls on Rear Admiral Means Johnston, Jr., Comman-
der, Naval Base Newport. , •1 - I 
1215--Luncheon at the Comissioned Officers Mess (Closed). ' 
1315--Depart Commissioned Officers M"ess 'en route to Naval Iustide School. 
1330-Briefing on the Naval Justice School. 
1400--Depart Naval Justice School for tour of Historic Newport.
1G30S-Return to Newport Motorlnn. 
1745-Depart Newport Motor Inn en route to Comissioned Officers Mess (Open). 

Uniform: Service Dress"Wbite. I -I 
1800--Cocktails and dinnef hosted by Rear AdniiraVlleans, Johnston; Jr., USN. 
RON-Newport Motor Inn. 

TUTESDAY, JTULY 30, 1968-TZwoRT/NRFrOLK 

07S0-Breakfast at Newport Motor Inn. Uniform: Tropical White Long.
0845--Depart Newport Motor Inn for Naval, Destroyer School (Blue Group) 

and Officer Candidate School (Gold Group).
0900-Blue Group: Briefing and tour of Naval Destroyer School. .. 

Gol Group: Briefing and tour of Officer Candidate School. 
10165--Blue-Group: Briefing and tour-of Officer Candidate School. 

Gold Group: Briefing and tour of Naval Destroyer School. 
110--Luncheon at Commissioned Officers 'Aess (Closed).

1230--Depart Commissioned Officers Mess for Newport Motor Inn.
 
1800-Luggage ready for pickup. 

180-Depart Newport Motor Inn enroute to Naval Air Station, Quonset Point
 
140-Depart 1 AS Quonset Point via chartered aircraft en route to'Norfolk. Va.
 
1600--Arrive Naval Air Station, Norfolk (LP-1). Met -by Vice -A'diiral F. M. 

Ashworth, USN, Deputy Commander, in,Chief, Atlantic. Proceed, to 
quarters (Quality Courts Motel). - , 

Remainder of day and evening free.
 
RON-Quality Courts Motel.
 

WNEDXFSD1), JULY 31, 1968-NOFOLK. 

Breakfast at motel. Uniform: Tropical White.Long..
0900-Proceed to Atlantic Command Operations C ntrol Center' (LAATCO [O-

PCONOEN) Auditbzium. Welcome and opening remarks by Vice 4d
miral .Ashwoith. 

OINCLANT/CINCLANTF LT command briefing.
1010-Anti-Submarine Warfare Forces, Atlantic, briefing. " 
1045*%--Proceed to Atlantic fleet Afiti-Suuimaxine Warfare 'Tacticdi SehobI. 
1055--Briefing and tour of LA'NTFLTASWTACSCOL. . I " 

1200-Admiral Levy Reis proceeds to Commander in Chief, 'Atlahtic Fleet Flag 
Mess for lunch. 1 1 1 

Remainder of party proceeds "Commissipnto, Naval Station 	 ,Officers 
.Mess (Open) for lunch. - -.. 

1315--Admiral Levy Reis depart ,,3INOLAXitEIT Mess and joins .party.
1380--Proceed to U.S. Naval Amphibious Base,Little Creek (Gate ) 

1400-Arrive U.S. Naval Amphibious Base for briefing and tour by CO'-P Il-
BLANT to include &Th, UDT demontrations and ship,visit. 

160--Depart Amphibious Base for quarters, - '., 

* Supply Corps officers proceed to Naval Supply denter fo btleflngs'and toiuis L00
1680 	with lunch at Commissioned Officers Mess (Open). I I , ,, ,

Six Instructors proceed to Anut-Submarine Rorees, Atlantic Headquarters for tour andbriefing on Shipping Control, Luncheon at Commissioned Officers Mess (Openy and-par
ficipation in regularly scheduled events subsequent to luneheon. 
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1000--Reception at 'Commissioned Officers Mess (Open) hosted, by Vice, Admiral 
Ashworth. Uniform:: Tropical White Long. 

Remainder of evening free. o . 
RON-Quality Courts Motel 

THURXSDAY, AUGUST 1, 196-NORFOLIK/A-MP LfEUNTEIL/CARSTON 

Oi0--Bxeakfast at motel. Luggage ready for pick up. Uniform: Tropical White 
* Long. , I
 
0845--Depart motel for Naval Air Station, Norfolk.
 
091--Depart NAS Norfolk for Marine Corps AirT'acility; New River.
 
1000--Axrxive -Marine Corps Air Facility, New, River' Grdeted ,byh lajor General
 

J. 0. Butcher, USMO, Commanding General, Marine Corps- Base and 
2nd Marine-Cotps Band. 

1430-Tour of Mfarine Corps Base and.facilities. 
1200 
1200-Luncheon at Commissioned Officers Mess (Open). 
1800 .. ,' , 
131-Visit to and observation of demonstrations at Marine Corps. Engineers'I1400 School. 

1400-Visit to 2nd Marine Corps Division Center of Guoi.la Warfare.'
 
1445
 
15I&7-V;§it to Marine Corps Service Supply School.
 
1545 
1615-Depart Marine Corps Air Facility for Charleston, S:C, 
1700L-ArrivdoMunicipal Airport, Charleston, South Carolina (Air Force arrival' 

portion of terminal). Met 'by Commandant, Sixth'Naval' District, R*ear 
Admiral H. 3, Kossler, JSN. Proceed'to Hotel'Francis Marion. 

1880-Dinner for Admiral Levy Reis hosted by Rear Aadmiral E. P. Bonner, 
USN, Commander, Mine Forces Atlantic, at Quarters "B". Uniform: 
Civilian attire. 

Dinner at Hotel FrancisMarion for remainder of'party. 
Evening free. 

RON--Hotel Francis Marion. 

FRIDAY,'AGUST -2, 198-OFARLESTON ." 

0700--Breakfast at Hotel Frai6is Marion. Uniform: Tropical White Long. 
0880-Depart hotel en route to Naval Mine Warfare School. 
0900-COMINELANT briefing and tour of Mine Waffaie School, Mobile 'Afne 

Assembly Team, Explosive Ordn"Ide Unit No.2 ad 0S's, 
120D-Lumh aboard U.S.S. Oia-k (MCd 2). - 
1315-Delart U.S.S.- Ozark and procded' -q Fleet Blastic, Mmisk§d Training' 

Cdnter. 
1880-Commander, Snbahfiiie Fldtilh 'Si t btiefihg And torte of 'Fleet' Bhlistic 

Missile Training Center. , 
1530-Proceed to Nav'yEbk'hange. . . 
:t600 -Depart Navy Exchanje aifrdpedce~d'to -te.F# & aribn. 
130-Depart hotel, nd. proceed to Commsioned Offier- s .(Ope'n).
1800-Receptioii'is6ted byt1ear.AiImIa H. RK6sler,.USN, Commandant, Pixth, 
2000 Naval District Uiform: Sbrvice.Dress-Whiite. 
2015-Buses depart Commissioned Officers Mass (Open) 'forbdtei. 
220-Buses depart Commissioned Officers Mess C,0pen). hibte1i 
RON-Hotel Francis Marion. . 

- SATIEDAT,. AUG.UST 3,,31 Q68-OAILESTO 

Breakfast'as desired,'at hb6tel. 
1000--tCommercial bus tour of Historic Charlesto;n'departingfrom Eotel-Frandis 

Marion. 4 . ,T ,," -, , ' , , " 
128ff-Bistdric Charleston- tour 'completed f participants feturned' to' hotel; 

Lunch as desired. 
- aemainder of, day .and, evening frde Bub transportation to -be provided'

'frbm hotel totbeach 'at 1330 a3id return £rofibekch to hotel at.1620. Bus 

'Denotes ;ptional pdrticipatio. " . -' 



transportationwto.be provided from hotel to Commissioned Officers Mess 
(Open) at 19S0 and return from 0Ol(0)to hotel at 2200. 

RON-Hotel Francis Marion. 

AUGUST 4, 196S-CARIJCT0 ' SUNDAY, 

Day free. Church services available a&listed in Information Packet to b& 
provided 

1800-Bus transportation provided from hotel to beach with return to hotel at, 
1030.1 

1400-BS transportation provided from hotel to Fort Sumter Docks for harbor 
tour. Bus transportationprovided at 1630 fromdocks to hotel upon com
plettonof harbor tour. 

180-BUs transportation provided from hotel to Commissioned Officers :Uess 
(Open) with return to hotel at 2200. 

RON-Hotel Francis Marion. 

MfONDAY, AUGUST 1, 168-OHARLESTON/PATRIC A3 FORGE BASE 

0730-Breakfast at hotel. All luggage made ready and placed outside of rooms for 
pick up. Uniform: Tropical White Long. 

08320-Depart hotel for Air Force section' of Charleston Municipal Airport. 
0930-Depart Charleston en route to Patrick Air Force Base via chartered 

aircraft. 
1030--Arrive Patrick Air Force Base. 
1045-Briefing on the Organization-and Mission of the Air Force Hastern Test 
l145 ,Range presente&l,by.Eastern Test Range staff members. 

1150-InfOrinal lunchon 'at the 'Atlantic Room, Commissioned Officers Mess .
( 0 ibli). .,, . 
1300 
1800-Todr of' thb facilities of the Cape Kennedy Air Force Station and the 
1700 Kemedy Space Center. Proceed to motel upon completion of tour. 
1900--Poolside Luau at the Commissioned Officers-Mess (Open;. Uniform: Civil

ian Informal. 
Remainder of evening free. 

TUESDAY, AUGUST .6, 19Q8--PATRlIG M-SFORCE fASEWPENSACOLA 

070-Breakfast.at motel. UJniform: TiropicaL,Whit~e Long.0830 ,.. " -" 

0730-,-Luggage ready for pickup.

0880-Depart motelenroute to Patrick AiriForce Base.
 
0915-Depart Patrick Air 6Foce Base en routeto Naval Air'StatioA Pensacola.,
 
0930- Arrive Naval Air Station Pensacola. " I I t 

10001-dmn'and toribfidk by Chief of Naval ir '1casic Traiihng i epresentative. 
1030--Tour ofNaval Aerospace Medical Institute Facilities. 
1l3gb-Depart for NrAAS, Fllysdn Field.
 
1215--Luncheon at Eflyson Field Bachelors Officert Quatters; .

. 1800-Briefing and tour.of HT-8 (Helicopter Traiin )-. 
1430---Depart for NAAS Siufley ield . .. . ' 
1500 -- Briefing, axdrtdur,6VTrl an VT5 (P: ed Wing Training).
 
1630=-Departfor-RodewayInn,.710 Palafox Streept,.ensacola. "! ' -;
 

1815-Depart for-NAS Pensacola Officers ClFb.•
 
1880-Social hour and dinner.
 

Remainder of eveiingfree. . r -, 

RON-Rodeway Inn. 
'196S- ACO 7 tA/kMWEDNgSbAY, -AUGUST ' 7, 6kE WEST 

0700-Breakfast at motel. Uniform: Tropical White Long.,. 
0S00--=Lifgga rTealy-for piekup.' • ', - ',, . " 
081i-DeDart motel forNaval Air Station Pensacola. , 
0900-4-fDel5art Pensacola via,chattered aircraftienroute-toNaval'Air Station-Key

West. 
1200:-Arrivi Naval !Air Station Zey West -rom Pensacola..Met by Bear Admiral 
I : 'F... Brush,, USN,i Commander, KeyWest Force. Proceedrto BOQ. 

1300-Luncheon at OQ. 
1400*-Afternoon free. Fishing trip arranged for those desiring to,pari-cifptte. 

* DenOtes optional participation. 

http:070-Breakfast.at
http:transportationwto.be
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1800--Cocktail party and reception hosted. by Rear Admiral Brush at Naval 
Base Officers Club. Uniform: Tropical White Long. 
Remainder of evening free. 

RON-BOQ. 
THTRSDAY, AUGUST 8, 1968-KEY WEST/MTIAf I 

0800-Break-fast at BOQ. Uniform: Tropical White Long.
0900-Briefing by representatives from Helicopter Squadron One, VX-1, and 
1200--Advanced Undersea Weapons School
1200-Luncheon at Naval Base Officers Club hosted by Rear Admiral Brush. 
1400-Coach Train ride covering military facilities -in area as well as local points 

of interest. Tour will terminate at BOQ.
1630-Depart BOQ for Naval Air Station Key West. 
170-Depart NAS Key West for Miami International Airport via chartered 

aircraft. 
174--Arrive Miami's International Airport. Proceed to Everglades Hotel, 244 

Biscayne Boulevard, Miami. 
Remainder of evening free. 

RON-Everglades Hotel. 

FRIDAY, AUGUST 9, 168-MIAi 

Breakfast at hotel. 
-Dayfree-for shopping, sightseeing, etc. 

1800-Depart Everglades 'Hotel for Miami International Airport. 
1945-Depart Miami en route to Rio do Janeiro via Pan American flight No. 441. 

ITIXERAXY FOR BRAZILIAN NAVA WAR COLTZEGQ, FXJBRUARY -18, 1009 

SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 1969-PAAMA 

110--Arrive Tocumen Airport via Pan American flight No. 516. Met by repre
sentative of Commander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern Command/Com
mandant, Fifteenth Naval District. 

Proceed to Continental Hotel.
 
RON-Continental Hotel.
 

MO-NDAY, FEBRBARY 3, 1969-PANAMA 

Breakfast at hotel.
 
085--mS. Southern Command briefing at Quarry Heights.

0945-U.S. Army Southern Command briefing.
 
1115--U,S. Navy Southern Command briefing.

1200-Luncbeon at Rodman Officers Club hosted by Rear Admiral G. P. Koch,


USN, Commander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern Command/Commandant,
Ftifteenth Xaval District.
 

1315--U.S. Air Force-Southern Command briefing.

1415-Briefing and tour of-Miraflores Locks.
 
1515-Free time.
 
1900-oint reception at Admiral's Quarters, Port Amador.
 
RON-Continental Hotel.
 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 196S-PAAMA/MLIAI/HOUSTON 

Breakfast.at hotel. 
0800-Depart Tocumen Airport en route to Miami, via Pan American flight No.86. , 
1030-Arrive Miami's International Airport. Met by Lieutenant Commander 

McBain. Proceed through customs. 
1380-Depart Miamils International Airport en route to Houston via National 

Airlines flight No. 27. Lunch enroute. 
1545-Arrive Houston. Met by Captain John C. Allman, USN, .ommanding

Officer, Naval Reserve Training Center, Houston and-- Lieutenant F. 
Turbeville, USN, -Naval Reserve Officers' Training Corps Unit, Rice 
University.

1645-Arrive at Lamar Hotel, Main and Lamar Streets, Houstoi, Te.xas. 
1900-Reception at Lamar Hotel, Main Banquet Room, hosted by Captain. John 

0. Allman, USN. 
RON-Lamar Hotel. 

http:Breakfast.at
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-r ~W~WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY-5, 19£9-MOUSTON 

Breakfast at hotel. 
08SS--Depart hotel for Manned Spacecraft Center, Houston. 
0980--Arrive Mained.Spacecraft -Center Houston. 'Met by Mr_ . MeMurray. 
• Tour of Manned Spacecraft Center.
 
1200-Luncheon in Main Cafeteria!
 
1a00--Cotinue tour-of Manned Spacecraft Center.
 
1430-Iepart Manned Spacecraft Center for Astrodome.
 
1580-2 -Arrive Astrodome. Tour of 'Astrodome.
 
1680-r-Depart Astrodome for hotel.
 
1700-Arrive hotel.
 
1830-Hosts and Hostesses meet at hotel topick up students.
 
1000-Dinne5 at homeslof members of.Institute of International Education. 
ROIN-Lamar Hotel. 

TERSDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 1069-EOUSTON/SAIN 'DIEGO 

Breakfast at hotel. 
Free time. 

1030--Check out of hote 2 l -..

100--Depart hotel for Port of Houston. 
2200--Arrive Port of Houston for harbor' tour hosted by the City of Houston 

and the Portof Houston abotrdtle Sam Houston. 
Texas barbecue aboard .the Sam Houston. 

1400-Return to pier. Depart Port of Houston for airport, 
%t445-ArriveHouston airport. 
1§50-Depart Houston en route to San Diego via Trans-Texas Airways. 
1700--Arrive San Diego's Lindbergh Field, Military Ramp. Met by 'Rear Ad

miral ,l. E. Dornin, USN, Commandant, Eleventh Naval District. 
Proceed to-Royaqnn at-the Wharf. 

RtON-Xoyal Inn.. 
FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 1969-SA-LT DIEGO 

Brealdast at hotel. 
0850-Deart hotel. 
0900-Welcome by Rear Admiral M. R. Dornin, USN, COMELEVEN, followed 

by command briefing.
 
0930-Depart COMELrVEN Headquarters.
 

V. Smith, USN, Commander, Amphibious1000-Welcome by Vice Admiral J. 
Force, U.S. Pacific Fleet, followed by command briefing and tour of 
amphibious facilities. 

120-Luncheon hosted by Vice Admiral J. V. Smith, USN 
1400--Depart Amphibious Base. 

on Rear Aid1440-Arrive Naval Traiflng Center. Vice Admiral Muller to call 
miral A. A. Bergner, USN, Commanding Officer, Naval Training Cen
ter San Diego. 

1500-Recruit graduation ceremony. Vice Admiral -iluller to be oreviewing pf
ficer. Full honors to be rendered.: " 

1600-Depart Naval Training Center. 

1615-Arrive hotel. 
1746--Depart hotel. 
1800--Reception hosted by Rear Admiral and,Mrs. M. D. Dornin at the Admiral 

Kid Club. Uniform: Service Dress Blue.
 
2000--Depart Admiral Kidd Club.
 

• RON-Royal Inl.
 
SATVRDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 1969-SAN DIEGO
 

Breakfast at hotel.
 
0930--Buses departotel for NavalStation Exchange Shopping.
 
1200-Depart Exchange for hotel.
 

Afternoon and-evening, free.
 
'RON-Royal Inn. F
 

I sUXD A,FEBUARY 9, 1969-BAN DIIEGO 

Morning free for ehiirch.
 
P.M.-Visit.San Diego Zoo (optional). -,
 

Evening free.
 
RON-Royal Inn,
 



129 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 1960-SAN DIEGO 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0845--Depart hotel. 
0900-Welcome by Major General L. E. English, USMC, Commanding General, 

Marije Corps Recruit Depot, followed by command briefing, tour of Re
ceiving Station, combat training area and other facilities. 

1200-Luncheonhosteaby Major General L.E.English, US0. 
130-Depart AICRD. 
1400-Welcome by Captain T. W. Montgomery, USN, Commanding Officer, Naval 

Development and Training Center .followed by command briefing and 
tour of facilities. 

1600-Depart Naval Development and Training Center for hotel. 
Evening free. 

RON--Royal inn. 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 19G-SAN DIEGO/SAN FRANCISCO 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0845-Depart hotel. 
0900-Welcome by Capt. J. D.Reilly, COS,Commander Training Command, U.S. 

Pacific Fleet followed by command briefing. 
0930--Blue Group proceeds to Fleet Anti-Air Warfare Training Center-Com

manding Officer-Captain J. C. Weatherwax, USN. 
Gold Group proceeds to Anti-Submarine Warfare School-Commanding 

Officer-Captain A. F. Fischer, Jr., USN. 
1015--Blue Group departs FAAWTC. 

Gold Group departs ASW School. 
1030-Blue Group arrives ASW School. 

Gold Group arrives rAAWTC. 
1140-Gold Group departs FAAWTC for Admiral Kidd Club. 
1145-Blue Group departsASW School for Admiral Kidd Club. 
fl50-Blue Group arrives Admiral Kidd Club. 
1155-Gold Group arrives Admiral Kidd Club. 

Return to hotel. Lunch at hotel. 
1200-Luncheon hosted by Rear Admiral E. ED. ,Grimm, USN at Admiral Kidd 

Club. 
1300-Baggage pick-up. 
1830-Depart luncheon for San Diego's Lindbergh Field. 
1430
1515--Depart San Diego en route to San Francisco via United Airlines flight 

No. 5241 
1710-Arrive San Francisco. Met by Rear Admiral Leo B. Mcuddin, USN, Com

mandant, Twelfth Naval District or his representative. 
Proceed to Sheraton-Palace hotel. 

RON-Sheraton-Palace hotel. 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 1969-SAN FRANOISOO 

Breakfast at hotel.
 
0830-Depart hotel for Grayline tour of San Francisco.
 
1180--Return to hotel.
 

Afternoon free.
 
1740-Depart hotel for Treasure Island.
 
1800-Redeption hostedby Rear Admiral and Mrs. Leo B. MoCuddin.
 

Uniform: Service Dress Blue.
 
2000-Return to hotel.
 
RO'N-Sheraton-Palace Hotel.
 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1909-SAN FRANCISCO 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0945-Depart hotel for Naval Air Station Alameda. Uniform: Service Dress Blue. 
1015-Arrive Naval-Air Station Alafneda, Building #1. Briefing by Captain M. 

Vance Dawkins, USN, Commanding Officer, NAS Alameda followe4 by 
tour of Naval Air Rework Facility by Captain S. 'T.Armstrong, USN, 
Commanding Officer, Naval Air Itework r acility. 

1200-Luncheon hosted by Captain AT. Vance Dawkins, USN. 
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-1330-Depart NAS Alameda.. .. 
Remainder of afternoon and evening free. 

"RON-Sheraton-Palace Hotel, 

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 19G6-SAX FtASOISCO/EOS ANGELES 

Breakfast'at hotel. 
rree time. 

1645-Depart San Francisco en route to Los Angeles via United Airlines flight 
No. 5M5.

1740-Arrive Los -Angeles. Met- by Commander Naval Base Los Angeles 
representative. 

Proceea to Edgewater Inn, Long Beach. 
RON-Edgewater Inn. 

SATURDAY, FEBRUARY IS, 1969-LOS ANGELES 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0900-Depart hotel for Universal Studios. 
1000-Tour Universal Studios, Hollywood. Lunch at Studio. 
1400- (approximately-) Depart Universal Studios for hotel. 

Remainder of afternoon and evening free. 
RON-Edgewater 'Inn. 

SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 1969-LOS ANGELES 

Breakfast at hotel. 
1100-Depart hotel for Disneyland. 
1200--Arrive Disneyland. Lunch. 
1300-Tour 'Disneyland. 
1700- (approximately) Depart Disneyland for hotel. 
1830--Evening free. RADhVL H. V. Byrd, USN, CDIR., -Naval Base, Los Angeles/ 

Long Beach.
 
RON-Edgewater Inn.
 

MONDAY, FE1BRUARY 1T, 1909-OS ANGELES, 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0815--Depart hotel for North American-Rockwell, Space Division, Downey, Calif. 

Uniform: Service Dress Blue,
0900-Tour North American-Rckwell, Space Division.
 
1100-Depart North American-Rockwell for Lockheed Aircraft Corp., Burbgnk,
 

Calif.
 
1200-Arxive Lockheed Aircraft Corp. Lunch.
 
1300-Tour Lockheed Aircraft Corp.
 
1500-Depart Lockheed Aircraft Corp. for hotel.
 

Evening free.
 
fRON-Elgewater Inn.
 

TUESDAY, FEB)UAEY 18, 1969-LOS ANGELES/RIO DE JANERIO 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0720-Check out of hotel. Depart for Los Angeles International Airport. 
0830-Arrive Los Angeles International Airport. 
0930-Depart Los Angeles en route to Rio de Janerio via Pan American flight 

No. 516. 

ITINERARY FOR T3HE ORIENTATION VISIT OF THE BRAZILIAN NAVAL WAR COLLEGE-
JANUARY 18-FEuWARY 4, 1970 

SUNDAY, TAl WRAY 18, 1970 

1700-Arrive Tocumen International, Airport via Pan American flight 510.
 
Proceed to Continental Hotel.
 

RON-Continental Hotel.
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MONDAY, JANUARY 19, 1970 

'Breakfast at hotel. 
,0845--lSCINCSO briefingat Fort Amador Post.Theater. 
.0945--USARSO briefing.
1100--USNAVSO briefing. 
-1200-Luncheon at Rodman Officers, Club hosted by Rear Admiral Charles D. 

Nace, USN, Commander, U.S. Naval Forces,, Southern Command/ 
Commandant, Fifteenth Naval District - I 

1400--USAFSO briefing at Albrook Air Force Base. 
'1510-Briefing andtour of-TAiraflores Locks. 
1930-Reception hosted by Brazilian Ambassador. 
RON--Continental Hotel. 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, -19O 

0500-Baggage pickup.
 
,0515-Depart Continental Hotel for Tocumen International Airport
 
'0800-Depart Panama for Miami via Pan American flight 86.
 
1035-Arrive Miami International Airport. Met by Commahding Officer, Naval
 

Reserve Training Center representative.

Clear customs.
 
Proceed to International Airport Hotel Check in.
 
Evening free.
 

aON-International Airport Hotel. 

WEDNXSDAY JANUARY 21, 1970 

Breakfast at hotel.
 
Morning free.
 
Lunch at hotel.
 

-1435-Depart Miami International Airport via Air West -charter (local agent

representing Air West is Despatch Services tnc) CAM 22. 

-1OO--Arrive Patrick Air Force Base. Met by Commanding Officer, Air Force
 
Eastern Test Range representative.
 

Briefing on arrival.
 
Proceed-to Holiday Inn Motel, Cocoa -Beach.
 

ON-Holiday Inn Motel. 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 22, 1970 

Breakfast at hotel. 
-0900-Depart hotel. 
091l5-Arrive Cape Kennedy, South Gate. 
'0925--Briefing and tour of Space Museum. 
1035-Tour of ICBM Road. 
-l100-Tour and briefing of Titan III Facility. 

.,1205-Lunch incafeteia. 
180,--Depart cafeteria for Kennedy Space Center. 
1315-Briefing and tour of Kennedy Space Center. 
1620-Depart Kennedy Space Center. Return'to Patrick Air Force Base. 
1615-Depart Patrick Air Force Base via Air West charter CAM 28 en route 

to San Diego (dinner on board). 
2015--Arrive San Diego's Lindbergh Field, Military Ramp, General Dynamics, 

via Air West charter CA-3I 2.,Met by Rear Admiral M. E. fornin, USN, 
Commandant, Eleventh Naval District. 

:2215-Proceed to Royal Inn At The Wharf. Check in. 
RON-Royal Inn. 

FRRiDAY, JANUARY 23, 1970 
" Breakfast athotel. 

'0900-Depart Royarlin. 
0915-Welcome by Rear AdmiralL,,,. Dornin, USN, COME LEVEN, followed by

-1 "cemmandpresentatiofi;,hTOcoAference room, 5th deck. 
'0940-Depart.
100Q -Yisit Naval Amphibious Base as arranged by COMPH IEPAC,;includinjg 

belo rescue demonstration on ship,.if possible. 
'1200-Reception and luncheon hosted, by Vice Admiral -. ,V. Smith, USN, 

COMPIIHIBPAC 

http:ship,.if
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1330--Depart.
 
1410--Arrive Naval Training Center.
 
1430-Recruit Graduation Cerenony. Vice Admiral Muller act as reviewing
 

officer. Honors to be rendered,'includlng 15 gun salute. 
1530-Return to Royal Inn. 
1825--Dpart Royal Inn for Admiral Kidd Club. 
1830"Reteption hosted by Rear Admiral and Mrs. M. B. Dornin. 

,Uniform: Service Dress: 'Blue. 
2030--Depart Admiral Kidd Club. 
RON-Royal Inn. 

BATURDAY, -ANUAItY 24, 100 (oPTIO KAL ACTIVITIES) 

0930--Buses depart Royal Inn.
 
0945-Shopping at Navy Exchange.
 
1200-Buses depart Navy Exchange for Royal Inn.
 
1400-Bus departs Royal Inn for visit to Sea World.
 
170i--Bus departs Sea W~rld for-return to Royal Inn.
 

Evenuing free. 
'RON-Royal Inn. 

Sm'D.Y, JA,NUAkr 25, ;g70 (OPTIONAL ACTIVITXES) 
A.31-Free' time, 

1880--Buses depart Royal Inn for visit to San Diegoj ZOO. 
1600-Buses depart Zoo for return to Royal Inn. 

Evening free. 
RON-Royal Inn. 

MONDAY, TA-TUART 26, 1070 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0846--Buses depart'Royallnn.. 
0900--Arrive Fleet Anti-Submarine'Warfare School, Building 52, for command 

Gaw, .USN, Chief of StadY, COiM!RAPAC.briefing bY Captain B. D. 
0926-Blue Group departs for Fleet Anti-Air Warfare Trainint.Center. • 

Gold Group remains at FLEASWSCOL for presentation and-Aour of train
ing facilities by Captain J. C. Weatherwax, USN, Commanding Officer. 

0985--Blue Group arrives FAAWTC for briefln and.,tour of training faclities 
by Captain I. B. Pettitt, USN, Commanding Officer. 

1040--Blue Group departs FAAWTC. 
Gold Group departs FLEASWSCOL. 

1050--Blue Group arrives FLEASWSCOL. 
Gold Group arrives FAAWTC. 

1150-Blue Group departs FLEASWSCOL for -Marine Coips Recru-it Iepot 
Depot Officers Club. 

Gold Group departs FAAWTG for Marine Corps Recruit Depot Officers 
Club. 

1200--Arrive Marine Corps Recruit Depot Officers 'Club for reception and 
luncheon hosted by Ma,jor QeneralJ. q. "McLaughlin, "USMC, Comatmd
ing General. Marine Cor s Recrhit Depot ,
 

1300--Tour of iarine Corps Recruit Depot.
 
1530--kDevart.
 

Evening free.
 
RON-Royal Tn.
 

TUESDAY, TANU4RY 2T, 1970
 

Breakfast at hotel, I 
0930-All baggage in lobby of Royal Inn ready for pickup. All members -of the 

College should be checked.out ofrooms. 
0950-Buses depart Royal Inn for sightseeing trip around San Diego including 

visit to Cabrillo Monument, Mount Soledad, and downtown La Jolla. 
An informal luncheon will be arhange& prior .to departure. 

1400-Depart San Diego's Lindbergh Field, Military Ramp, en route to San 
Francisco via Air West charter, CAM 24. 1 

.150-Arrive San Francisco InternationahAirport. Met'by Commandant, Twelfth 
Naval District representative.
 

Proceed to St. Francis Hotel. Cheek in.
 
Evening free.
 

RON-St. Francis Hotel. 
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WEDNESDAYtJAXUAXY e2%,1,970 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0900-fDeparbhhoteltia GI-ayline charter'bus fortounof San-Frucisco., I 
1200--Lunch at Castagnola's Restaurant on Fislierman's,Wharf. 
130-Depart Fisherman's Wharf for tour of,Mutir -Woods (tRedwood, Forest). 
1600-Return to hotel. 
1800--Depart for Treasure-Island. 
1830-Arrive Treasure Island for reception hosted by Rear, Admiral :,eo B. 

Mc~udden, USN, Commandant, Twelfth Naval -Distfict, and Mkg . 
McCudden at Garden Room, Fleet Admiral Nimitz Club. Uniform: 
Service Dress Blue. 

2080-Depart for hotel. 
Evening free. 

RON-St. Francis Hotel. 

THU'RSDAY, JANUARY 29, 1970 

Breakfast at hotel. 
0830-Depart hotel for Naval. -Air Station, Alameda for briefing and tour of 

Naval Air Rework Facility. I I 
1180-Lunch at Officers Club, NAS Alameda, hosted by Captain ThI. Holbrook, 

USN, Commanding Officer, NAS, Alameda. 
1800- Depart NAS -Alameda for Ghlradelli Square,,San Francisco, for sightsee

ing and shopping. 
Remainder of day free. 

RON-St Francis Hotel. 

*3'IDAY, JANUARY 30, 1970' 

Breakfast at hotel. - . 

0900--Baggage picked up by handling detail. Cheek out. 
0930--Depart for San Francisco Bay Naval- Shipyard at Hunters Point for 

briefing and tour. 
lS0-Lunch at Hunters Point Officers Club hosted by Captain. LiIdas n- Mayeft 

USN, Deputy Shipyard Comniafdet: 
1300--Tour of U.. S. Oriskany (OVA--4) undergoing overhaul at Shipyard. 
T30--Depaft U.S.S.Oriskahy en route San Fnineiscd IntetnatiinalAirport. 
1550--Arrive, airport.
1630-Depart Sail Franico via Air West chartei CA 25 for Los A~igele 
1730-Arrive Los-Augeles Internaonal Airport. Meib7y Commander, Nayal Base, 

1000--Depart for Disneylgnd. UnifQm :'Civian Attire, 

-os Angelesrepresentative. . 
1800-Depart for Edgewater Hyatt House. 
1900 tArrive HattHouse. Checkin . 

A 

. - ' , 

, - I I 

Evening free. 
RON-H yatt, House. 

I SATUXDAX,. JANUARY 31, 1 " '17,0,j. , .. 

Breakfast at hotel. . ". 

0900--Depart or -Universal Studios. 
1000--Tour studios. I' .. , -

10--Lnch at Studios. 
1400  part for hotel. 

Evening free. 
RON-Hyatt House. 

SUlNDAY, nTBEUAR' 1, 19 ...... 

BFeakfast at hotel.., -. " '" : , - -

I'00-Comnediee tour of'Disneyland." " " I -,
 
1200--(about) Lunch at Blue Bayou. -,
 

1300-7(about) Continue.todr.
 
1700-Depart for hotel.
 

E ening free. . _
RON-Hyatt House. 



MONDAY, FRfBV1AUYt2,:197o, 

Breakfast at hotel. 
08S--Depart for North- American, Rockwell, 'Space Division, -Downey, Calift 

Uniform :'Service Dress'Blue. k-. - , ; .
 
0900-Commencetour at gatelgOA da takewoodBoulevard:.
 
1130--Depart for hotel.
 

Afternoon, free (bus available for trip to Navy-Exchange).

Evening free.
 

RON-Hyatt House.I .
 TUESDAY, ,FERD3UAnY 3, 1070 

Breakfast at hotel. 
080O--Depart for Douglas Aircraft Company, Long'Beach.
0830-Commerce briefing/tour. 
1100-Depart for Allen Center. 
-1180-ArTiveAllen Center for luncheon,hosted by Rtear Admiral H. V. Bird, USN,

Commander Naval Base Los Angeles-Long Beach/Commander Mine 
Force, U..S. Pacific Fleet.
 

1400-Depart for tout of U.S.S. -Bronstein,(-E-1037).
 
1600-Depart for hotel.
 

Evening free.
 
RON-Hyatt House....
 

W EDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 1970 

Breakfast at hotel.
 
0800--Load 'baggage. Check out.
 
0900--Depart for Los Angeles International Airport.

2000-Depart Los Angeles via American AirlinesfIight 006.
 
1816--Arrive JFK International Airport.
 
2100--Depart New York via Pan American flight 201.
 

THUTRSDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 1970 

0840--Arrive Rio de Janeiro. 

NAMESANDPOSITIONS OF AMERICANS MET By PATICIPANTS 

NATIONAL (SUPERIOR WAR SCHOOL) WAR COLEGE, GROUP I (MAY 16-JUNE' 7, Y90*8 

Major General G. B: Dany, USAF, Chief of Staff, U:S. ,Southern Command.' 
Rear Admiral George P. Koch, USN, Commander, -. S: Naval Forces, ,Southern 

Command. 
Major General R. J. Clizbe, USAF, Commander, U.S Air Forces;--Southern, 

Command. 
Captaii Belcher, USN, Professor of Naval Science, University of Louisville. -

Captain 3. G. Downing, USN,'Commanding'Officer, Navy and Marine Corps lIe
serve Training Center, Denver. 

Lieutenant Commander Dean H. Chancellor, Commanding Officer, Navy and. 
'Marine Corps Reserve rlraining Center, San :ntonio. 

Major General F. W. Norris, USA, Commandant Armed Forces Staff College:
Rear Admiral A. P. Fleming, USN, Assistant Deputy Chief of' Naval' Operations 

(Plans and Policy). 

NATIONAL (SUPErIOR WAR. SCHOOL) ,WAR COLLEGE, .GROUP 11 (JUNE 26-fUL 19, 1968) 

Brigadier General John I.Kinney, Acting Commanding General and Assistant 
Commandant of the U.S. Army Artillery Missile School: 

lMajor General L. English, Commanding General, Marine Corps Recruit Depot" 
San Diego. I I -

Rear Admiral Marshall . Dornin, Commandant, Eleventl Naval District 
'Rear Admiral George R. Muse, Commander, Naval Reserve Training, Command, 

Omaha. 
Mr. James A. Moore, Director, Division of International Affairs, D6partment.opf. 

Housing and Urban Dvelopment. 
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MGen John B. flenry, USAF, Director, Inter-American Defense College. 
LGen James D, Alger, USA, Inter-American Defense Board. 
Mr. Wait Rostow, Special Assistant, Thternational Security Affairs, OSD. 
Vice Admiral F. J. Blouin, Deputy Chief of Naval Operations, (Plans and Policy).
Rear A-dmiral Elliott Loughlin, USN, Commandant, Naval District, Washington.
Mr. Eugene Rostow, State Department
LGen Louis X. Fields, USMO, Commanding General, U.S. Marine Corps;Develop

meat and Education Command. 

BRAZILIAN NAVAL WAR COLLEGE (JULY 17-AUGOST 9, 1968) 

Rear Admiral G. P. Koch, USN, Commander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern Com
mand/Commandant, Fifteenth Naval District. 

Colonel K. A. Frith, USA, Foreign Liaison Officer, USCINOSO. 
MGen Sanborn, USAF, Commander, U.S. Air Force, Southern Command. 
Rear Admiral G. R. La Bociue, USN, Director, Pan American Affairs, Office of 

the Chief of Naval Operations. 
MGen J. B. Henry, USA, Director, Inter-American Defense College.
Rear Admiral F. D. Foley, USN, Commandant, Third Naval District 
Rear Admiral C. D. Nace, USN, Commander, Submarine Flotilla Two. 
Vice Admiral J. T. Hayward, U SN, President, Naval Wiar College.
Rear Admiral feans Johnston, Jr., Commander, Naval Base Newport.
Vice Admiral F. L. Ashworth, USN, Deputy Commander in Chief, Atlantic. 
MGen 5. 0. Butcher, USMC, Commanding General, Marine Corps Base and 2nd 

Marine Corps Band, Camp Lejuene. 
Rear Admiral H. J. Kossler, USN, Commandant, Sixth Naval District. 
Rear Admiral D. P. Bonner, USN, Commander, Mine Forces Atlantic, Charleston. 
Rear Admiral F. 5. Brush, USN, Commander, Key West Force. 

fRAz[LTAN NAVAL WAR COLLEGE (FEBRUARY 2-18, 1969) 

Rear Admiral G. P. Koch, USN, Commander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern Com
mand/Commandant, Fifteenth Naval District. 

Captain John C. AlIman, USN, Commanding Officer, Naval Reserve Training
Center, Houston. 

Mr. R. MeMurray, Manned Spacecraft Center, Houston. 
Bear Admiral M. B. Dornin, USN, Commandant, Eleventh Naval District. 
Vice Admiral J. V. Smith, USN, Commander, Amphibious Force, U.S. Pacific 

Fleet. 
Rear Admiral A. A. Bergner, USN, Commanding Officer, Naval Training Center, 

San Diego.
Major General L. S. "English,USMC, Commanding General, Marine Corps Recruit 

Depot, San Diego.
Captain 3. D. Reilly, Chief of Staff, Training Command, U.S. Pacific Fleet. 
Captain X. 0. Weatherwax, Commanding Officer, Fleet Anti-Air'Warfare Training 

Center. 
Captain A. F. Fischer, Jr., USN, Commanding Officer Anti-Submarine Warfare 

School. 
Rear Admiral E. H. Grimm, USN, Commander, Training Command, US. Pacific 

Fleet. 
Rear Admiral Leo B. McCuddin, USN, Commandant, Twelfth Naval District. 
Captain M1. Vance Dawkins, USN, Commanding Officer, NAS, Alameda. 
Captain S. T. Armstrong, USN, CommandingOfficer, Naval Air Rework Facility.
Rear Admiral H. V. Byrd, USN, Commander Naval Base Los Angeles/Long Beach. 

BRAZILIAN NAVAL WAR COLLEGE (JAliUARY iS-FEBRUARY 4, 1970) 

Rear Admiral Charles D. Nace, USN, Commander, U.S. Naval Forces, Southern 
Command/Commandant, Fifteenth Naval District. 

Rear Admiral M. E.Dornin, USN, Commandant, Eleventh Naval District.
 
Vice Admiral 1. V. Smith, USN, COMPHIB-PAC.
 
CaptainiB. D. Gaw, USN, Chief of Staff, COMTRAPAC.
 
Captain 3. C. Weatberwax, USN, 0.0., FiWASWSCOL.
 
Captain R. B. Pettitt, USN, C.O., FAAWTO.
 
Rear Admiral Leo B. McCuddin, USN, Commandant, Twelfth Naval District.
 
Captain 3. L. Holbrook, USN, 0.0 ,,NAS, Alameda.
 
Captain Lueas B. Mayer, USN, D3eputy Shipyard Commander, Hunter's.Point.
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NU Mrfi OF PARTIoIPANTS FOR EA 5 H VISIT 

National (Superior War School) War College, Group 1: (,16 May-i June 1969). 
Number of Participants: 65. 

National (Superior War School) War College, Group II: (26 June-19 July 
1968). Number of Participants: 70. 

Brazilian Naval War College: (17 July-9 August 1908). Number of Par
ticipants: 74. 

Brazilian Naval War College: (2-18 February 1969). Number of Participants: 
63. 

Brazilian Naval War College: (18 January-4- February 1970). .Number of 
Participants: 59. 

COST OF EAeCH VIsIT AND SOURCE OF FUNDS 

National (Superior Tr School) War College Group I: (16 May-7 June 
1968). 

National (Superior War School) War College, Group II: (26 June-19 July 
1968). Cost, $153,91O (for both groups) ; funds, MAP. 

Brazilian Naval War College: (17 July-9 August 1968). Cost, $90,900; funds, 
MAP. 

Brazilian Naval War College: (2-18 February 1969). Cost, $53,200; funds,MZ&P. 
Brazilian Naval War College: (18 January-4 Febrhary 1970). Cogt, $67,090; 

funds, MAP. 
CIVIC ROLE OF BRAZILIAN ARMEED FOROES 

Mr. HOLT. You also discuss the civic responsibilities of the Brazilian 
Armed Forces and the traditional role of the Brazilian Armed Forces 
in this respect. Has this role grown in the last 6 years " 

General BEATTY. It has not. It is about the same as it has been since 
our records go back, which is 1962, It is about the ,same as it Was 
before the 1964 change-of government, and it has bean the same right 
on through-just seams to be sort of a constant. Itstays there because 
these people are useful in a variety of positions, and so they do it on 
a detached or reserve or retired basis. . 

Mr. HOLT. Are you saying that the Brazilian Armed 
. 

Forces don't 
have any more to do with running the country now than they did 5 
years ago? 

General BEA='. [Deleted.] 
Mr. HOLT. Ten years ago ? 
General BEArTr. [Deleted.] What I ar saying is that the people 

with managerial and administrative capabilities that are useful in 
these types of jobs seems to be constant; that they are used in these 
places about the same as they werebefore 1.964. 

Mr. HOLT. I see. Your comment is limited to the thousand positiond 
to which your statement refers as normally held by military men. 

General BEAr. No; I am saying because of their background and 
schooling many of the military people are used in civil type jobs, a 
thing we dont find as muoh, for instance, in this country. 

CON IBUTION TO DOXINICAW REPUBLIO IWT8RVENTO.T 

Mr. HOLT. Later on you say Brazil was one of two South American 
countries to provide substantial forces in the Dominican Republic. 
What was the other one? 

General BEA=. I think it was Paraguay. 
Mr. OLT. Thank you. 
General BEA=. Brazil sent a battalion and Paraguay sent a 

company. 
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-'flTED STAT] SrBiflZTLfAN 3U:]LITAIY AOED flSAI 

Mi. HOLT. would like to turn brifly ,now to the .tatt6hments td 
your sestement. You list.a number oflikiitedStates-iBrazilian liarv 
agre,ements and ootnote it sayilg,1'Salesagredements, essel nd .qmip
inent loans; Tlase agreements, and expifed agree:ents~are ngt in
eluded." 

Can we correqtly take it-fromnthat that all of the agreements you did 
list are still in fb'rce? - -
General BEAT=. This ismy underfsanding from,our legal section.[Deleted], . . , .. . . / ,'K 
M, 9oIT: There is an- agreementhere dated,1942rxdspeoting -anivi 

mssion' whichf proyides- that,, among other things, fc"the mnember8'!of 
the mission will be responsible .splely to the Misnitry ,otMarine of 
Brazil through the chief of. mission;, members of the mission- shall 
r§ceiye #rointhe Government -ofiLBrazil such net annua cogmp.ensation
expressed in U.S. currency as may be agreed upon for.eaqh indilidual 
member," and there follow- -

General 'BEATCZ. It sounds pretty good; doesn't it? 
Mr, LT.. Yes; and-i had thoughthat .there"was a-provision of 

law which prohibited 'this sorb of thing now. 
General-BFArY. There isandthey do-not... 
Mr. HOLT.But the ag'reement is still in force. 

-

GenelraI 'B,m'd. Well,there7 is -anaddition to that one whiclh statesi 

thatthe cfaval missid'n will undertake thenaval-responsibilities of :ant 
other bilateral missions ,and therefoke they will do- this job. So the 
Navy section of the Joint Brazil-United States Ml1itaryComnission 
is also the naval mission to Brail,. and -ofcourse, their No. 1 loyalty 
is to ,tie t nlte&l States,-and' the provisiodis which provide for pay ana 
all the other emoluments that you read:thther have gone into/disdaid 
an&are no longer used... - , - ' -

Mr. HOLT.Thank you. . 

* -- . I PATENT 1lrCENSE 77f~p --

The Mutu.. Defe3se Assistance Agreepaent:dated: 1952 provides, 
among other things: 

The-two Governhients Will,-uponrequest of either of them,negotiate atproprate 
arfangements 'between, them- t1 provide for- the availability of patent licenses 

,and technical information required in furtherance of the objectivje of this, 
agreement.: , I I I - - - I 

General BEAkT. Where do you find that, Pat? 
AL article 3. And my,question is;'within theframlefr. HOLT.That is, 

work of the military assistance -prograib, 'Brazil', do we have any 
arrangements about the availability of patent license ; technicealinfor
mation, and soon? . , 

'Genefal BnATTF. This'has ndt doile;up',since Lhavebeen therc,.and 
I don?'tmow that ithas,inrecent yeax's..Ittprobably-wgs put inthere in 
the course of trying to facilitate the exohange oV inforfation fof a 
highly tecimicaitype-but it has'not comeatpsince I hav ben'there.' 

Mr. HOLT.There is also an agreement.... . 1.1 ',,",3 I, 
General BEATTr. Mr. Knaur says this is a standard clause that goes 

in all of the agreements of this type, 



Mr. HOLT. There is also-an akreement dated.1952 fbr an, aerial map
ping program. I-low does this differ from the Inter=-American Geodetic 
Skaieyfbr is itthe same thing? . 

G'eneral BEATr. Well, it-reallyis W fuitherance 6--in other words, 
ths was arrived at in order to acilitate -the aerial mapping .program 
that was gding on. 

*uN ENTU'IED soucRE 6r RIOT ZQUFi3N-T." 

Mr., Hour. You 'were 'herethis' morning and heard the discussion 
with Mr. Brown about the use of equipment that had ]SAstenciled 
on,it in connection-With the Brasilia University'trouble ib,1968 and 
Mr. Brown said 'he had' investigated' sufficiently to be -sure that this 
was not AID public safety equipment. 

Can you tell us whether it was'MAP equipment?
General, BEATY. This morning was the first time I ever 'hearl of 

it, and I haveno idea. 
Mr. HOLT. For the record, what are the dates of your service in 

.Brazil? 
General BEATTY. I arrived there August 20, last year-1970. 

Xf-LGROflQ s BELATIONSH=r TO INTLLIGENOE AGEBNCIES 

-Ir. HoLT. What relationship, if any, does, your 'Milgroup have to 
the) ihtelligenceiagencies of the Brazilian Armed Forces or other'intel
ligence agencies oftheBrazilian Government! 

General BETzr. None. 
Mr. HoLr. Do you know anything about CODI? 
General BEATTY. I read about it in 0 Globo, but that is' all. 
Mr. H orT. W-hat does 0 Globo say? 
General BrrTr. The 0 Globo defines them variously, good, bad, 

and indifferent. 
Mr. HOLT. It is a Brazilian military operation though-; isn't it? 
General BEA=. Ican't even swear-to that; I dont even know that. 

DISCONTINUATIO"N OF GRANT MrATFIIEL ASSISTANCE 

Mr. HOLT.You said grant materiel assistance to Brazil had been 
ended. Do you contemplate-that this isa permanent or reasonably in
definite condition? 

General Bi_nrr. Yes; I do inasmuch as their economy is doing so 
well. 

Senator OnnRon. Have you supplied, General, for the record, the 
total amount of grant aid that we have furnished Brazil? 

General BzATrr. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HorT. Yes. 
Senator Crneom. And does this information break down the data 

so that we can be-so that the record will show what kind of weapons 
have been supplied? 

General BRATTY. The information does-break itdown. 
(The information follows:) 



MAP DELIVERIES TO BRAZIL 

[Inthousands ofdollars] 

Categoryiter 
Fiscaltart Fiscalear Fiscalyear
1950T1963 f964 1965 

Fiscal year
1966 

Fiscal ear 
N967 

Fiscal ear 
1968 

Half-year
July-

December 
1968 

Quarter
January-

March 
1969 

Quarter
ApriI-
June 
1969 

Quater
July-

September
1969 

QIater
October-

Deceinber 
1969 

Quarter
Jinuary-

March 
1970 

Qafrter
Apll. 

n 
1970 

t 
Total 

Deleted I 
Total aircraft ................
Deleted.jlel Ships...... ......----
IDeleted.] 

Totalvehictes and weapons-..
Total ammunitron-----------
Total comolunicalions equip

ment ..................... 
Total other eqaipfneit ....... 
Total repair and rehabilita-
tion------------------

Total supply operatio ...... 
Total training--------------
Total other serices---------
Total grant aid.............. 

46,797 
21,480 

30, 389 
9,914 

13,803
4,731 

3,207
13,987
3,679
2,084

150,571 

1,494 
148 

1,264
989 

286 
2,261 

333 
1,350

555 
435 

9,115 

1,489 
3,217 

1,565
999 

1,039
748 

168 
1,032

687 
496 

11,440 

2,929 
260 

1,416 
-879 

692
958 

234 
1,040 

602 
507 

9,517 

1,861 
512 

2,425
592 

2,169
2,205 

304 
2,089
1,141

148 
13,446 

1,123 943 283........... 
229 90 25 73 

2,855 1,186 473 697 
1,258 115 ----------- 90 

1,892 257 81 222 
2,865 454 438 116 

197 6 12 ........... 
858-

1,123 -.-.-- -.....-... 
219 154 27 38 

12,619 3,205 1,337 2,094 

174 
17 

264 
1 

25s 
164 

I 

1 
3 

883 

45 27 31I 
177 a 1,092 

83 177 102 
19 2 17 

259 36 95 
101 43 176. 

................................ 

511 - 173"------ ----
34 198 46-

1,229 664. 1,559 

57, 196 
27,328 

43, 393 
14,875 

21, 039 
15,260
4 
4,462
0,5------------------------------------------20,356
9,331
4,389

217,679 

INot available by year prior to fiscalyear 1964. 
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Senator Cnuon. You personally are saitisfled that it is no longer 
necessary or advisablefor the JVnitedStates to give Brazil more mili
tary equipment, more military weapons under the grant program? 

General BEArY. Well, of course, that isn't. x4y decision to make, 
but-

Senator CHrmoiDo you quarrel with that'decision? 
General BEATTr. Negative.
Senator Cnmcao. Personally. 
General BEATT. Negative.
Senator CGanmc. What about excess weapons that we recondition 

and distribute to foreign governments; that is to say, weapons that 
we declare excess to.our own needs and thefn supply through military
assistance channels to other governments. Are weapons of this char
acter being supplied to Brazil? 

General BEATr. No, they-are not . 

3xLITARX SALES TO BRAZIL 

Senator CnRuonI What about thd sale of military equipment to 
Brazil; do you handle the sale of equipment through your mission? 

General BEA=. We ,participate in the. iiegotiation would be the 
proper way 'to say it. Actually, normally ,the sales are consummated 
here in Washington between the Departn:ent of Defense and the-mili
tary purchasing committee from Brazil, but we do participate in the 

I.arrangements. 
Senator Cunoa. Now, in fiscil year 1971, if I read this chart cor

rectly, we are selling $20 million worth of military-weapons, military 
equipment to Bra-l,:'and in fiscal year :972 an :estimated total of 
$60 million. Do you:know what we contemplate selling in the upcom
ing year to the Government-of Brazil? 

General BEATTY. There are a number of things which the Brazil
ians are interested- in. They want to- purchase, and are planning to 
purchase, some tanks, armored personnel carriers, self-propelled ar
tillery, and some towed- artillery -for the- Army. They would like 
to purchase some helicopters and some C--30's for their Air Force, 
and their Navy is- -

Senator C n c. The figure, General, coimes from a report given 
this committee under the caption International Security Assistance 
Program, Foreign -Military Sals." It is part of the congressional
presentation for the fiscal year 1972. 

General BEArTY.. I thin thit is a-proposal, dir, rather than that 
because we justhave not negotiated for any of it yet. 

Mr. KNA-cm. Mr. Chairman, may I just say 
Senator CarmeOn. Yes. . 
Mr. KNAUR. Being based in Washington and having to do with 

putting together that book, that is merely an illustrative figure of 
what would be,.conceivable as a sales project for Brazil for the up-, 
coming fiscal year.

Senator COrn"on. Well, if the figure has any meaning at all, it must 
reflect what theGovernment of ihe United States plans to sell Brazil 
in the coming year. 

'Mr. KNAUR. jt is more sir; rather than planned, what we see as 
possible. 
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,-Senator Caumon. What .would account foi:" the increase from 
$2Qmiili~fto $60 milliojn then inanilitary sales .What !has taken place 
that Wold,lead Yiou to believe that the sales program to _hz'azil will 
be tripled&r. . . . , 

,Mr.KNAIm: Well,. one 'of 'th&things that would enter into that ,is 
that the new legislation increases the 'ceiling because, as,you know, 
thte is,a. ziling, for all of L-atin America whicl up until this year 
.was-$T5million. 

The new legislationproposes a ceiling of $150 million., 
'Snator-O~uRof-. That would require'congressional approval, would 

it not? I I %I 
Wr., I A1A . Yes; sir; that is the,legislation which has already been 

submitted by the President. I 
Senator Cucnr. Now these particuar sales, -wouldthey involveo or 

could the.y involve equipment that we have declared excess to our own 
needs, and reconditioned for sale? I 

Mr. KNAUB. They could, but I don't think they do. I don't think 
this' particular'illustiative paokage.does! includ escessequipment. 
. Senator Oaroar. So it is-your judgment that;the proposed,program 
would involve new equipment? 

Air,,KNA n. New production, sir ;es; sir. 
SeilatoaCor I ment.lTewlyprodced equi 

:- CASE AIND,CREDITSAT A1tANfGEBIfNTS 

Senator Crunxxo. Your illustrative ,chart,shows that'S40 million is 
allocated to cash, sales, and,$20 inillion is allocated, to credit, sales for 
the!fiscal yeatr .198.Can,you ,describe the-specifics of the typical cash 
skle,axrangement, and t credit-sale arrangement, sothaut thetwo-can be 
adequately distinguished? -, . . -

Mr. twU R. Well, an F$;casb.s~e~aruangemen.wond be between 
th&,Go7Ornnent of Brazil-,nd ,the/lAS: Department of Defense and 
would be on a dependable undertaking cash basis. - - 
- 7Sehator Chauor. Tli, cash'to be paid.on delivery, is that ,the-mean
"gg.qoa IaslIsale , . 

Mr. ]MAuR. Essentially it means that we agrvee, to procure -for a 
foreign ,goernment and that .foreign-,goverument agrees to pay-the 
fal,amount ,ofsuch contract -and'that:they will make fundsvadlable 
in such amounts- d,.atsuch tiaes,,as ,maybe -required,to meet pay
mentsrequired bythe contract. - - I 

Senator Ornnin. And the-entire amount is paid on-delivery? 
-



m£r. 1{xAE. yes. I.. - /2 ." 

Senator OnHucH. It is a cash trkasaction. What, about the creditsale3- ,' - . 

Mt:I2zrA ..A oredit sale, or, as it is called, a Foreign 2tfilitary Sales 
Agreement, can be in support of a foreign comtry's purchase of de
fefise articlesor services from-the UI.S.Deparptment of Defense or pur
chased directly from U.S. industry. The credit agreement can provide 
for (1) all 'credit being furnished direct froni the 'U.S.-Government 
using FMIS credit funds appropriated to the Department ofDefdnse.; 
(2) amix of difrect FM.IScredit and private bahk creditt'ithth'e latter 
being guaranteed by the U.S. Government. In this case, 25 percent 
of thevaln&(6f the.prrvate financing istheamount of 'BS'cr dit funds 

63-S7S-T1---.---10 
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required to beset aside:for the guarantees;- an&y (3) a credit agreement 
entirely financed -by-private banks with a U.S. Government guarantee 
6f ,tha-eltire'amount bf the private bank loan. usink the FMS Act 
guarantee provision. The credit would be repayable within 10 years 
sncWectin'23 'of the FMIS Act prdhibits repaymlents in,excess of 10 
years. The rate of interest 6n direct FMS credit is the-cost of mdneyth 
the U.S ,Governmnent at the time a credit agreement is signed. The 
credit sale would most probably be government to government sale, 
although it could,be a commercial sale repayable within 10 years with 
a rate of interest 'at the current cost of money to the Government, at 
the time the credit agreement is signed. 

Senator Ommcll. Is there any element of subsidy inthat kind of a 
credit sale? 

Mr. KMN-Au. No, sir; there Is not. 

AVAILABILIT K OF HARD FIGURS TO CONGRESS oNSALs-

Senator CiuRoH. Since this is just an illustrative program,based on 
what must be nothing more than a, guess; how can Congress obtain 
any hard figures on military sales in advance of their taking place? 

Mr. KNAUU. It isn't just a guess; it is not made 'up outof-the whole 
cloth, General Beatty aniis people, and our people here in Washing
ton.have a continuing dialog with Brazilian military people in-coun
try and attache people in Washington. These are items in which the 
Brazilians have expressed an interest which we could foresee selling 
them if.they satisfy valid. requirements. But there are various criteria 
which would have to be met before the sale is consummated. 

'Senator Onrmo. We have had experience with these illustrative 
proposals, illustrative programs, in the past and have found after
ward that it was hard to even correlate the figures we were given with 
what later transpired, not to my knowledge in-connection with Brazil, 
but in connection with some other countries. 

Mr. KNAIF. In' connection with sales; sir; or in connection with 
excess? 

-Senator Ca-non. In connection with both. Though, as I recall, the 
most flagrant cases involved a large quantity of excess weapons, as in 
the case of Taiwan, for example. 

Mr.. KwAuR. That was ibecause at that time we made our presenta
tion document we were not in a position to foresee or to predict what 
would become excess for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

-Senator Canton. Rave you ever undertaken-to study your projected 
programs as presented to the Congress and correlate those projec
tions with what the programs actually were after the fact, so as to 
determine how close you-normally come in your estimates?. 

Mr. KNA-u. Personally I have not. But I understand they correlate 
fairly well as far as what was done at the completion of a fiscal' year 
and what we had foreseen as an illustrative sale package for a country.

Senator CHRaCH. Have you done any studies that would bear this 
out? 

Mr. ENAUR. No, we have not. I mean I am not aware of any, let me 
put it that way.

Senator naunon. This question keeps coming up 'with greater and 
greater frequency in the committee because of the growing feeling
that the projected' programs that we look at when the Foreign, Aid 
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Act is befbre- ids luave insufri ient relation to what actully happens.
This is undermining confidence in these partichilar'presentations. If 
you iave any sthidibl-thkt; wowl'd ,bearout,what yoff s4; I Think it 
would be -helpul'to-the foreiganaid program if' thosestudies were 
presented so that-this feeling that is developing;in th'comniittee.coulfd 
be zllayed. -

Mr. IKwAmR 
' 

If thigfe are-any papers, sir, can,I submit-them for the 
record at'tils-point? 

Senator Cn'ac. Yes, please do. 

TNTEt9ST -fTEnAMS FonR ORSDIT SALiS 

Now, in comectibn'Wir these credit sales, are the terms equivalent 
to those that are provided by the Eximbank on sales of military equip
ment that.the Bank finances,?'' 

Mr. KNA-u. I believe-the terms that are under the f6reign mili
tary credit sales are what it costs the Governamentto-bor.row the money 
to S62ance the' sales at 'the time the credit agreement' s signed, It is 
the current cost of money. 

Senator Cnnon. Are provisions written into these contracts that 
would protect the Government against losses that would be incurred 
if interest rates to the Government go up during the peiiod of the, 
contract? 

Mr. K1Nuu. N , itis the current cost. 
Senator C-uRCH. So if you had a contract that lasted for 10 years,

the Government is gambling that whatever interest rate is established 
will prove sufficient over the 10-year period. 

Mr. XNAU "Yes, sir; as is the country in case it goes down. 
Senator Ononc. And there is no provisi6n that would provide for 

an adjustment. 
Mr. KNAIR. That is correct. 1I dont think either-party would be pre

pared to take that chance because of the escalatory and deescalatory
possibility. 

ELITAIIY SALES TO BRAZIL FROM O)TflR COUNTRIES 

- Senator COnuon. In your statement, General, you said that upuntil
recently Brazil obtained its military equipment mainly from the 
United States, and I take it 'rom that phrase, until recently, that 
Brazil is-now purchasing equipment and supplies for the military from 
other countries. 

General BEATTY. That is correct. 
Senator Cnrxon. What countries in the main are they now buying

from in addition to the UnitadStates? 
General BEATTY. Germany, England, France, Italy, are the main 

ones. They have smaller, I uderstand, suppliers, but those are the 
principal ones. Aircraft from Italy and France, boats from German , 
and frigates from England. 

Senator Cnnrcn. Do you see any objection to this ? 
General BEnri. I think it would be in our interest if they didnot,

for the simple reasoif that when you introduce a piece of equipment, 
partimclarlg if it is anything 'like a ship or a plane which is, fairly
complicated,. there are automatically advisers, tech teps, and dthers 
who come in to assist in'tl~is, and ihen depending on 'how large, the 
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operation jsrwhy it folloEs on,groupsof people who x'emajn to. assist 

Senatot 5qt QH. Q ,yeu ,undgrtake, ?nsofar as ,yQU cn,,to, per
suade, them% to do this or,,do, you think this is -eir usrnessaid, you 

s, frinits 
u BneralBirr. "Well, i is really their business. I don't utde§t'ke 

to persuade-them in the.sense of urging themper se,-lint.I ca and-do 
point out the advantages to them and the advantages.to uspt.iintain
ing theirmaterielbaseinU.S. produqt§. . . 

M4 URFATURUE OF ARO1AXW N DRAZIL 

Senator CmJRoH. Is Brazil currently,planning tqasemble or pro
dt-ce'under lice~ise anytype.of jetlIghter aircraft? 

General BrArTr. I thnk-I'm givina you informtion, that agin
Appear& in the paper but Iunderstand &ey are goin tomanifacture 
eventually an. Aeto Maehj ,jet trainer which is Itawlan. 1he-Italians 
will furnishthem. initialy, andthen some part will'teO.hit, in Brzil 
and fmally they will produce the finished product.;, ... , 

Senator C m xr. oold yoh tell us whether: or not -Brazilhas any
plans or the future forexport of slieh anaircraft ." 

,General BnExAy. Tdon't klnow. That -Aero"Macchi sta, trainer air
craft, it is a,small jet trainer. 

TEtUDING ,1 rIr]TA Y SALES PROGRAX.,-, 

Senator 'OaHumc. Why is it leing proposedithat -we inerease-the 
ceiling in.our military salesiprogram from $75 million W$150 mi ion 2 

Do you jmow the answerto that'question. I " . 
General Bt . I can't gie you an Answer, I am n6t party to it,
 

so I just dont lmow.. .i I •
 

Scnator:Cncmnit . Cananyone supply tha' answer . 
Mr. KNAuX. I believe it was felt, sir, that L todavx world the $75 

million, ceiling was being unrealistic, and that foreign governments, 
especially -France and-the United Kj'ngdom have been making sales 
in Latin Americ, in the neighborhood df $800 millioi which has 
posed ,aserious question to-the United 'States with regard ,to the in
fluence--the natjrl ties with the Western Iemisphere countries. 

Senator On oa. In other -words,you see this,ceiling as an impair
ment of oar ability Ao,compete with England, France, and other 
European countries in the sale of weapons to Latin America; is that 
correct? 

Mr. IOw&vn. That is correct., 
Senator Gmona. Well, if that is the case why don't y'ou propose 

that th ceiling be -removed entirely as it Applies to sales? 
Mr. NvuR. I think that this was a decision to-that was made to 

show the .Congress.that we are still accepting some sort of limitation 
but have adjusted that limitation to todays realities. 

Senator Onojoa., But has the -limitation been-hdfirsted to today's
realities if European countries are selling $800 million worth- of 
weapons to Latin America, and then you propose-that we restrict ours 
to,$150.million- What is the reality ofthat? I I 

Mr. I NAiM. Well, it is taklg-into aceunt, what w&e feel, what the 
administration feels, are valid: xequirements" of th6 Latin American 

http:anytype.of
http:advantages.to
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country that we are in a position to sell them. We are not asking
for a situatioh -where we could simply flood the Latin American 
country with our arms production fst because We can sell it. 

Senator, C-m~o. European countries are in a position to flood the 
Latin ma-rket'; are they not ?, 

11r. NA R. Yes, sir; they are. " 
Senator COnron. So what do we accomplish witha $150 million 

ceiling? 
Mr. KNAnn An, increased level of sales to satisfy what we consider 

ilr6 valid requirements. 
Senator C'nxcn:. Somehow I have a feeling we are going in circles. 

That ceiling, even if it is increased to $150 million) is going to have 
no'meaningful effect upon the amount of weapons that Latin countries 
buy, isn't that so, inasmuch as they can look elseivhere and buy from 
Western Europe.as much as they care to buy. _ 

rt. KNAun. To a certain,degree that is correct, but also I should say 
that for -1971the President did.make a dete nminqtion -whichwaivedithe 
$75-million ceiling so that thereis a 2-year input which we wohuld have. 

SM-r. Chairma&, that $800-million figure that I quoted was not b,1-year 
period. That was a S-year period? 

Senator' nomn.A 2-yoar'period?' 
Cal -you eit&tht -provision of the law.that permits a waiter of the 

ceiling limitation? .' I I 

.Mr. XATJR. Section 33(a) of the Foreign Military Sales Act. 
,Sehator Cn'd6oi. I think this is th4 first time the cobmittee has 

'been inforaed' hat'theeeilin ha been breached. 
* ,Mr. K-Au. I believe thafthe-proper commiuicationwwill go,to th6 
'Cofigress. 
' Senator COinV : Veiy, -welL i think j hat 'that inforniatibn ought 
to be spread on the record su that the basis -for tihe waiver is made 
clear. 

MIr. Holt. % 
EQ1TP.3FTNT rLEQrESTED BY BRAZIL 

Af.' IIoTt'A oule of moie questions onthis FMS matter, General. 
Have the B.i.r flian Armed, Forces expressMd an interest''n buyig 
ASW eqipmeng fro& us? * 

"[Deleted.) ' •, 
Mr. IfonT. -Delekd.] f-ave they &-k e-sed any iiitereAt spebiflcally 

in.the P-3 Orion aircraflt.OeneaBE r.7e, th~yhave .. . 

Mr. HoLT. -Whaisthe present'status of that? 
Generai-flA . o. Wheii iMiflt Brazil they were.talking 

on this subject. ThqThVench.had c6mein with a vety strong effort on a 
bird callcd the Atlanfique, and.,nhy apparehtly liked this; they were 
going ahead ofyif. (n fhe.other iagd),they were interested in the P-3, 
and we had provideihei witlithe inrormalio on it, its character
istics and so forth, and theywere gohi4'td odk attthat. 

[Deleted.] 

ROLE OF u.S. 3L-I2ITAXY co:mmnssIoSI -DMMGATION 

Mr. HoLT. In connection with foreign military sales, do you con.ceive your job to be to maximize them or to minimize them 
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General Bn'r. Neither one. I see 'my.job is to put the Brazilian 
interested party, Army, Nayy, Air Force, in touch -with the right 
_people and seethat what they can do. 

k'r.IIoLT. You are thergo-between,in other words. 
General BBA=rr. Well, if they express an interest in a P-3, for in

stance, why I provide them with the information that tells them this 
is the kind of a thing you.can-get. 

Mir. HosT. Right., 
Senator Cacor. May I ask in furtherance.of that, do you regard 

your role, General, as the role of a salesman to promoteas many sales 
aspossible 
* General BAm. No, sir. 

Senator -Onutmon. You are rather just -thereto-accommodate Brazil
ian requests that come to you; would,that be a fair staement of your 
role. 

General BnxTrY. Well, obviously I am interested in U.S. products 
being the ones-that are purchased if they are going to makea purchase.

Senator Cnunon. Yes. 

General BArr. On the other hand, I don't consider that it is my 
role to make that sale. 

Senator Cnrmon. In connection with your work or the work of those 
who -are under your command, do you solicit sales by suggesting to 
the Brazilian military that they ought to have certain kinds of equip
ment that you are in position to sellthem? 

General BEATY. No, we don%t do this because, of course, the Brazil
ians take all the journals and digests and things from all over the 
world, -andthese all have an R. & D. portion in them, and they all 
show the latest greatest, whatever it is, missile, airplane, boat, sub
marine, and they accordingly say "How about one of those?" and 
then we go aheaa,,and say."Well, here arc the specifics on it." 

NU3IBERt OF 3IILGROU STAFF 

Senator COnuca. Now, inview ofthe way you conceive your role and 
define it, and-in view of the fact that we have terminated military 
grants of equipment to Brazil and the training program is now less 
than a million dollars a year, and the balance of the program is now 
a sales program which last year, at least, aiiiounted to $20 million, do 
you really need .all of the .personnel -that are now assigned to your 
-command? 

General BEATrY. I think we do, with the idea.in mind of maintain
ing contact -withthe Brazilian rmed Forces at various-levels. At the 
moment the number of people we have afthorized,.is being reduced, 
and, when it is-completed we will have about five military people in 
each of the Army,-Navy,, Air Force sections, and I will have about 
what I have now myself,, the chief of staff, an administrative officer, 
an adviser to the Brazilian.natidnal war college, and this will provide 
us the contact at differing levels.*l the military of the Army, Navy 
and Air Force. 

Senator Cuinon. This will make for a total of 'how many, once the 
reductions have taken place? 

General BFATTY. It is in negotiation now. If my recommendation 
is approved, there.will be:45 UR personnel of whomroughly 32 would 
be military. - . 

http:afthorized,.is
http:furtherance.of
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Snator Cnron., How many Brazilians do you hive,,anyl 
GeneralIBEATY. Yes, we have about 16 Dr 16 local wage-ratepeople. 

$hese are .translators, chaufleurs, people who work in 'the various 
ministrie.. 

Senator ,QauoE,_So the total payroll, including both locals and 
Americans. if your -recommendations are accepted,, would be in the 
viciityof60. , - % 

-

General BATTY. Right; 60,to-65. , 
Senator Cn-uxom. How does this compare'to the total payroll in the 

past? --

General BEATY. Well, about 3'yearsago there wbieaover 200 in-this 
Milgroiip, and this has been xeduced -gradually to where the -current 
anthorizatiomis60. W.e:have attrited against that anticipating a greater 
loss which is why you have the numbers you have there--',believe-you 
have 41 on the list you have. This is because we-iereanticipating these 
losses so we are down to aroundi a'quartgr of,what we were, 2, 21/i 
years ago. 

Senator Onucxon. W-henyouareadown to thatlevel,.you feel you will 
have a sufficient staff to carry on your mission. 

.General BATY. I think it-is £ -minimum staff to maintain cofitact 
at/the various levels. You could-cut outthe lower ranks, you could-cut 
out the higher ranks, but when you do you miss,a point of'contact if 
that is considered impbrtant and which'we do-consider is important. 

Mr. HoLT Yon mentioned the role of contact with the 'Brazilian 
Armed Forces which you and tiour staff maintain. is this contact as 
broad as you can make it or is it pretty much limited'fo your counter
parts in the Brazilian section of the joint'United 'States-Brazilian 
Military Commission? 

General BrAftn. No, 'it is as broad as we can make it. By that I 
mean that the people go into the Army, Navy, Air Force Ministries 
and.physically' work there, that is have their offices there on a idaily 
basis, but more importantly they -go-out to the sdhobls and to the units 
that are scattered around the country, visit; attend their training ex
ercises and-variouaoperations that'they conduct, and maintain as broad 
a contact 'as they can 'vithin the limits of the .funds that 'Ihave t@ 
permit them to'makethese trips. -

L-ANGUAGE'OAPAB=LTY OF RESON1NEL 

;Senator'CnMRc. How many of the personnal under your command 
speak fluent Portugese? 

General BEATTY. Well, fluent Portugese'T would say' about 85 per
cent.The-others -are able td conmmmic&e and; they get Mlong quite well 
andSthey ard leaining, -butI would sayabout 85. percent. ' 
'Senator 'CH umr.Do you -put a,4heavy emphasis, upon language 

capability? , '" t- . . I.. ", II 
-General BEAT2 Yes, we do,very .greafi'because in ny -opinion, it 

is one of thd nost important factors in mainta'inig contact. Unless 
you are fluenf in the language -you haiean-automatic problenr: and' 
you' must learn it 'afnd learn, it as w-ell as' you can 'and 'ai'fast as you 

'Senator Chrxio-' Of tcourse. And' you have the smilitary itself 
furnishing fanguage instruction for. ourpergonnel. -
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General 'BEA!PrY. Normally they atten4 school at 'Monterey ,orhere 
in Washington for-a period of time before they go depending on the 
timing, but normally they learn,enough so .thatwhen they arrive inthe 
country they are able to speak and get along. Where the problemnarises 
of course is with the ability to converse, 'to redlly discuss. They can 
all say good morning, good afternoon how are you, how are your 
children and did you enjoy your trip and so on, but actually discussing 
matters is more difficult because only through time and study. can

Ithey getthis. 
Senator CHuRcH. I-ow long are your people retained in Brazil in 

order to achieve this lbgistie capability. 
General B.Ar . Three years is the average tour. The Air Force 

has just come up with a 4-year oversea tour so their people -would be 
stayng four. 

Senator Cannon. Do you think that is long enougl to enable your 
people to become proficient in thle languageI I 

General BEATT. It is. I think it is one of these problems whereas 
you might wish t6 keep an individual longer because he now is fluent 
in the language, you risk Ihih becoming too far removed from his own 
service piofessionally, and so we have maintained this' totational 
business-even recognizing that from thelanguage point:of View alone 
no doubt-he could do.befter if hestayeddoiger. -

"We think the benefits all around arebetter if we bring them baeki 
and get them back into their respective ervices and4-the, perhaps let 
them, ao again. Wehave many people Who are backfor second tours 
and oT course ,they do: better. . 

-Senator Onihcr. AAllight, ; t . . 

Mo~rV-AlON- OF BRAZIlSR A tD F0RCES, 

Mr. HoLT.With his variety of contacts which Tou describe, you 
must havea pretty good view or a.grey,&clearidea 6f what Brazilian 
Army, Navy and Ai Force officers are like, what, they are thinking 
about and that. sort, of thing. What would; you say,J§ the dominant 
motivation-or driving force in th'Be.3razilianArmed Fbrpes.now? 

General BEArr. Obviously we are in the area' -of conjectuie and 
opinion, but to me they are dedicated to the government, and their 
country, and they wantto seeit.continne to grow, pntinue to develop. 
[Deleted.]

Mr. HOLT. Do you 'seein them a very stroag jeeling of natjbnal 
pride ? 

.
-Gen'eratgBEXnC.'Yes, indeed
Mn HOLT.Do you seA aniy evidencethat this Very-strong feeling of 

national pride is leading them to 'become or-to welcome the fact, that 
they are more independent of the United States han they used tobe? 

General BEA=T. Not in just those terms. I think they are proid of 
the facr that they are standing on their Own feet.They &Y6 buying the 
things they need, these are not being.given-tothein.KI think that,they 
would wishh to have more-things than they have. On the Nher hand 
they recognize that they haveso-many things to do, Aid they wantto 
do them so rapidly, that it is not possible to devote more -of their 
economic ro.urces to the military side, and I think it is interesting 
to note, -that-thesize of-the armed forces has not increased since 1964', 
it is roughly the same, the Army is about 150,000, 80,000 to 85,000 in 

http:being.given-tothein.KI
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the Navy and Air Force, 10,000 in the 11arines, so they fluctuate be
tween 200,000 ind 250,000 total, and that tas remained, fairly constant 
As a matter of fact it is a little lower now than it was in 1964. 

Mr. IOLT. iave military salaries gone up more than the cost of 
liv ng since 19643 

Gefieral BKaTY. I can't answer that. Iknow only that they are not very high.
Mer.y of. Iwould like to

rOSSIBLB EXTERNAL TBMREAT TO BRAZIL 

Senator Crurcn. On that line of questioning, I would like to ask 
the General if the military inBrazil perceive-any- external, any serious 
external threat to the country at thepresent time. 

General BEATTY. My opinion is they don't, no. 
Senator CRmnc. It ishard seriously to consider any of their neigh

boring countries as capable of mounting any severe external threat to 
Brazil; isn't that true? 

General BEATTY. I think [deleted] the possibility of guerrilla groups 
iorning m some of the isolated areas with the idea of creating prob
lems for them. 

Senator C mon. But that is a-matter of internal security; isit not? 
General BEATTY. It is primarily Edeleted]. 
Senator Cn-on. But certainly those countries that border Brazil 

in -themselves would not constitute a -threat to a country the size of 
Brazil or having the economic strength of Brazil. 

General BEATTY. Idon't believe they so consider it. 

AMRICAN MUILITARY IRESENOEB 

Mr. HoLT. I would like to read you an excerpt from notes-made of 
a conversation I had in Brazil with -a,Bra$ilian civilian"and then ask 
you to commentan it-TIs man said: 

Brazil is becoming less dependent on the,United States and Brazilians areglad
of this 'The process has:been hastened by .th jzefusal of the United States to sell 
military equipnient, -threby'forcink Brazil to go to Europe. But the kormer over
tyhelming predominance of U.S. military equipment in Brazil was itself' an irri
tan. People used tQ, §ay that theol ,thingBrazilianin the Independence Day
parade was.tbe flag. 

Everything elsd 'Was AJnerican-t ueks, guns, even uniforms. 
Does that reflect--a point of.view that you have found among ,the 

Brazilian Armed Forces? 
General BmArr. No. 

ATIJTUDE OF BRAZIaAN MILITARY TOWARD NATIONAL GROWTH 

MAfr. -OT. Within this genera attitude that you have described of 
riational pride and devotion to the country and wanting to see the 
country grow, and so on, have you-detected any differences-among the 
Brazilian Officer Corps as to the way in which this nitional growth 
ought to come about! , ,.

Is there, particularly in the lower ranks, a group which would be 
more inclined to follow, let us say, the Peruvian model than the way 
Brazil has gone since 19.64? 
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General BnATr. No; I think the opinions of the military are dis
phkate as they are in any group, and I am sure.there are-those who 
vould wish to go faster, go slower, do differently, but.I don't-see any 

-particulargroup that-wants to change entirel'yi I I 
Mr. HoLT, Do you see anything which might -bedes6ribd hs a gen

'eratibn gap or -a minigeneration gap between people in the rank of 
-colonel or major and people in the rank of general in this -respect? 

General BEArY. No more than in the American Army. 
Mr. HoLT. How much is that ? [Laughter.] 

BRAZMXAN &ATONAL WAR COLLEWE 

,"What is our 'relationship with the Escola Superior da Guerra? 
General Bmxnr. Well, that is the Brazilian National War 'College 

.and at their request we jissisfed them in setting it up. After it was set 

.up and had run for a few years they said "Thank you very much,'? 

.ahd 'asked that we simply keep a liaison oicer there. And we do have 
,a full-time American officer as a member of the faculty of the'Escola 
'Superior de Guerra. 

'r. 0,T As a memberof the faculty. 
General ]3nErTx. He is there with-I should say with faculty privi

leges. Ie'does not taach-,participate in that respec-but-he is-there; 
lie works with them, continues 'to help them improve their coursei, 
.gives them the latest on whatour National War College is doing, and 
-SO on. 

Mr. HIOLT. Do we pay for him or do the Brazilians pay for hin? 
General BEATTY. We pay for him now. -For a period of time the 

Brazilians-did pay for him. Now he is a U.S. responsibility. 
Mr. HoLT. Is there a preaominant point of view in the Brazilian 

War College-the IESG? Does it havea reputation for being the site 
,of a carTain school of thinking? 

General Bms~ry. No; it doesn't. It has many different points of view, 
and this is because of its student body -which is composed of both 
-ivilian and military and normally it has been about-even-military 
.and civilian. This year it is about two-thirds civilian and one-third 
military, an&the- eiviliansare'brought in from all walks of life. They 
-are doctors,-and labtyers, and economists, and financiers, clergymen, 
and they 'bring with them very, very different points of view, and'they 
are debated in the war college. They look at their national security 
in an extremely -broad sense. It is by no means 'limited to a military 
-consideration. That is just one part of it. 

BRAZIL/ARGENTINE 3ILITARY EnXroISmS 

Mr. HOLT. The Economist magazine in London reported last DeT 
'comber that Brazil and Argentina had staged secret joint military
,exercises recently for the first time iii several decades; and related 
this to joint Brazilian and Argentine concern over events in Chile. 

Do you kn6w anything about thit report ? 
General BEATTY. I dont. [Deleted.] The papers'in io speculated

there was something goinjon-that trrangementswere-being made
budt actually I doit.know [deleted]. 
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REPORT OV JNTERNTATIONAL COmirSSION OF JURTSTS -

Mr. HOLT. Are you familiar with- the report of' the Ihternational 
-Commission of Jurists of last summer about.tte situation in Brazil. 

General BEATTY. No. 
Mr. HoLT. Let me read you an excerpt from, it and ask for-your 

comment: 
Since ,the second military coup of 1968 the Brazilian government bas-adopted 

the policy of subversive war. Brazilian officers have learned such methods from 
American experts and theoreticians whom they meet in great number either in 
their own military schools in Brazil or during regular training courses in the 
Panama Canal Zone. 

General BEAr. What was the first allegation there? 
Mr. IoLT. Since the 
General BEATTY. What is it we are supposed to be teaching them; 

subversion? 
Mr. 1ow (reading). 
Since the second military coup of 1968 the Brazilian government has adopted 

the policy of subversive war. Brazilian officers have learned such methods-from 
American experts and 'theoreticians whomn they meet in great number either in 
'their own military schools in Brazil or -during regular training courses in the 
Panama Canal Zone. 

G'eneral BATIT. Negative.
Mr. HOLT. YoU are not aware. of any American experts or theore

ticians that Brazilian officers have learned subversive war methods 
Irom? 

General BDATTY. Negative; none. 

PUERiomISN OF 2flJTTARY AND rOLTcO rQMr NT' 

Mr. HOLT. Going back for a moment to military sales, leaving aside 
the more publicized items such as F-4's and that kind of thing, how 
frequently do you decline to-make'military sales to Brazil? 

'Generai BEATr. As often as we don't have a.,ceiling to permit them 
'orwhen we can't make arrangements.

Mr. HOLT. Do they make all their military purchases through you or 
for some items do they go through normal commercial channels 
through their mission in Washington or their consulates? 

General BEAm. They are free to go any way they want to. They
have been coming through me since I have been there and I think this 
has been the pattern before. 

Mr. Hor. To what extent, if at all, through your group, has the 
United States sold the Brazilian Armed Forces such items as we were 
talking about this morning of tear gas,.Aot control equipment, police. 
type weapons? -.. 
.0 eneral BEaT . I don't know of any that we have sold, Mr. Holt. 
I would have to check the actual sales to determine this for sure. 

Mr. HoLT. Would you do that for the record because I think th6 
record ouoht to show it. 

GenerafBATz. None have been sold since I have b en there, and 
based on the limited sales we have-made in'recent years I would.sus
pect none. 
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Mr. HoLT. And while you are checking on that for the record, could 
you check also with respect to eleetronic and other surveillance devices,
polygraphs and wiretapping equipment?

General BATrr. Yes. 
(The informatibn follows:) 

DOD has Provided the,following riot equipment to Brazil: 

Year 
Type Quantity programed 

Riot grenades ............. .......... - 20,348
----------------------------- 19
Riot control guns-------.---------.----------------------------------- 1964.......

Riot control gun ammunition----------------.-----------------------....... t 11,I061 1964

Chemical agent (CS) -------------------------------------------------------- -- - 2100 1965 

I Round•t
 
Containers (50 capsules each).
 

DOD has not provided wire tapping devices, polygraphs or any other electronic 
surveillance equipment to Brazil. 

JUSTnCATION FOR PRESENOE Or '.S. MGROfP 

Senator CnRoa. Geneeal, with respect to the.testimony we have 
had about this large volume of military purchases being-made now 
from France, Germany, England, and Italy, let me ask you do anyof
these countries maintain in Brazil a military group comparable to that 
which we -maintainthere?
 

General BTx. No. They do not. Many civilians though.

Senator Csrmcn. Yet, without the benefit of such groups they have 

been selling large quantities of military equipment to Brazil. 
General BRATTy. Right. -
Senator CHuRCH. Wouldn't it then be possible for us to sell military

equipment in the-same manner without the need to maintaih a military 
group of this size in Brazil? I 

General BBATWY. If all we were down there to do -wastosell equip
ment I would say absolutely but that is not our mission. I 

Senator Onnow. What else are we down-ffhere to do? You described 
the mhission as to furniish training. 

General BDEA=-r. Right.
Senator CaRinm. Which now comes to less than a million dollaxs a 

yeotr. There'is no further grant dill; the balance of thle work is military
Isales. 

Do you mean that the training aspect of your,fhissiot'reqfties the 
maintenance of this kind of group?

General'BnATr. I would put it this -vay,Mr. Chairman ;the United 
States has this long-standing st6rehuse of'goodwill and mutual coop
eration and understanding with Brazil. We deem this important; we 
would' like to keelp it. We feel that thisis being done by the presence of 
these people that *e have there now. ' '- : 

Senator Ommio. Now the presence of the Americans is known to the 
Brazilian people at lage2 is it.not? 

General BiAWTr. Yes; It is. ' -

Senator CHmRCH. You think this cofhtributes affirmatively to good
feeling on the part of the Brazilian people toward the United States, 
or do you refer to the attitude of the military in Brazil as distinct from 
the public at large? 
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General BtAnrY. I am really -talkingabout the military. I think'the 
ublic at large, how~ver, is aware ,of the fact we are there and not 
isturbed thereby. 
Senator Ononcn. What is the basis for that conclusion'? I mean do 

you really have any objective way of iedsuring the attitude of the 
public at large toward our military group?

General BEATTY. No; I do-not. .-

SEIZUR OF flSMrG VESSELS CAN SUSEND SALS -PRdG~tiA 

Senator CHuRcH. Under ection 3'(b) of the Foreign-Miitary Sal~s 
Act-, sales-oredit-and-guarantees-are to be-suspended -forI year if the 
country seizes our fishing vessels beyond the 12-mile limit. The 
President may waive, this provision iHhe determines it to be in our 
national security interests. With Brazil having claimed the 20-mile 
territorial sea, seizures-are likely to occur;, at least we h-ve had this 
experience with othed Latin countries. If there are seizures, would you 
recommend the sales program be suspended ? I t 

'General BEATTY. Well, Athink the case would have to be judged, at 
the time, circumstances,' and everything surrounding it. 'I wouldn't 
prejudge it. 

Senator Crurcn. Such- suspensions have occurred2 I -think, in 
Ecuador. 

General BEA-rT.. Ecuador, yes.
Senator OC'xiox. We have had the same-problem, if: my memory 

serves me right, with Peru. 
General BA=-nY. Peru. . -

Senator CHOXCH. Do you know whether we continue to maintaimin 
Peru a military advisory*group, §ice-thetime that the Perivian: Gov
ernment asked that the-grbnp lea'e the xiuntry? 

General BEAny. The MIJLGP depaite& Peru in July 1969 and, 
at the request of-the Peruvian Government, was replaced by a smaller 
unit. 

Senator Cnmcn. Those particulars fall outside your ,province no 
doubt. 

General BmA~rr.'They do. 
Senator Cn-uncn.,AAymore questions? 

BRAZILIAN ASSZ0N'MENWRTS 'TO JBUTSMO 

Mr. RoLT. Just two anore Mr. Chairman.. Does the hssignnent of o 
Brazilian officer to the Brazilian delegation of the Joint Brazilian-
U.S. Military Commission indicate that this particular officer is on his 
way up in the Brazilian militaryestablishment or does it indicate he 
is on is way out or on the shelf . 

General BE t. Agan 'Inhav6nt the fatsbht my i4ression from 
recollection of just a few cases is that they ate bn -thpr way up-" 

Mr. HOLT. 'Cbuld, you supply -Ior the' record; if you-don't know it,
the present assignments of the last threecommandersof the Bi'ziiian 
delegation? . 

General BrAn r. Yes; you araspeaking of Brazilian. -
Mr. -oLT. Brazilian, yes. 



154
 

,General BEA TY. Right; I can give you one example, the last presi
dent-of the Joint Brazilian-U.S. Military Commission is theChief of? 
the Armed,Forced General Staff 6f Brazil, 

AIr. NoL. That is a good example. 
(The information follows:) 

FORMER PRESIDENTS. JBUSMC 

Date as chairman Name Present duty 

1957-69-------------- - Muillo Vasco do Valle e dva----- Chlef, Armed Forces General Staff. 
1965-66 -------------- _- Gen. Nilo Guerreiro Lma-------------- Retired. 
1964-65 .................... Gen. Nesor Penha Brasl.------------ --- Do. 

nRAZ:IAN VIE:W OF IITSPMRE ROLE 

Mr. IOLT. One inal question. Howdo the Brazilian military officersr 
that you.-and, your staff come in contact with view Brazil's role in the-
Western Hemisphere? 

General BEArr. T think they feel that they have international 
responsibilities, that is they have evidenced it by their willingness to
support not only Western Hemisphere but United ±Nations type peace-
keeping operations. Beyond that I think they are interested in their
internal problems primarily, and not concerned with anything else. 
I think they Seel that they have enough to do to take care of their
own problems'at the moment. 

:FFECT O0 leAN ELECTIONS 

Mfr. HoLT. Is, there ail uneasiness over the election results in Chile
last year? Does this uneasiness extend to current internal conditions
in Uruguay, Argentina, Bolivia, Peru? -

'General BEATTY. I have not heard the- mention these. Chile, I 
think, because it got such wide coverage in the press was more a sub-
ject of discussion. The others [deletedj-I don't know what they think_ 
because they haven't brought it up. 

Mr. IHOLT. Is it the Brazilian Armed Forces or is. it some ,other, 
agency of the Brazilian Government that is responsible for border
security?

General BEATTY. It is-the armed forces. 
Mr. HOLW. It is the armed forces. Have you detected any unduet 

concern on their part about their border with Uruguay? 
General BrA=KT. [Deleted.] 

BRAZIL'S 3D ARMY 

a 1r. HOLT. Is-it the 3d Army thatissin, Rio,Giande? 
Qe.eral BEnian. Yes. -
Mr. HOLT. is-it-trfte it is ,the largest armyin, Brazil? 
General B'T-xY. In numbers-you mean. 
Mr. Hor. Yes; in numbers of people. 
General BEATTY., Yes ;itis. [Deleted.] _" 
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IDEVELOPMENIT OF WESTERN, BRAZIL 

Mr.. HoLT.In conrection with the northeart-ana the,Amazon-arec 
and specifically the project to -bnld,.th T ians-Amazonia'n high'wiy
what do you think is the principvlmotivation- for' that project?, 

.General BEATTY. I take them at face value- I -Thfink they -want. to
developtheir west. Their east coast is nicely developed and coinmg
along but they haw gotthis vastwestern territory that they just don't,even know in ,many oases-what is there,'and they want toopen it up,
and develop it and see what isthere. 

Mr. Hour. And the TxansAmzonica is not he _only highway they_ 
are engaged in building, is that it .•General BE±Tr. No 1 t isn't. '' 

Mr. HOLT. All going ithe same general direction though.General Brrr. Just trying tb -move westwkrd and open it up. 
ar. oLT. And this you thiek is purely mainly. for-reasons of'

economic development and not concerned withmiltary strategy o 

national security?.General Bwn . in my opinion it is really"ameconomic and social 
thing. 'hey want to- get the country available for use, which at the.moment it is not. 

Mr. I-tor'. Have you served as a MAAG chief anywhere besides i'n 
Brazil?General BiArrX. No, I have not. 

Mr. HoL. So Brazil is your only experience with running thisf 
program ?General BEATT. Yes. 

hr. IOT. That keeps me from as you how it compares to othervlng 
places you have been. That is all I have got, Mr. Charman. 

SECURIT oLEARANCES FOR TN~flLL -oENncoOsEs 
General BnxTTw. If I mhay, Mr. I-olt, when We were talkng abot 

intelligence courses, you lsted a number, and I know that they arecourses in some intelligence course but of cose I think it is import
ant to note that the intelligence courses are a very small part of theoverall training that is done in the United States. 

Mr. HOLT. That is good. Since you mention it there is one other 
question I had about these intelligence courses. A considerable number
of them require a security clearance, in one casew"onfideial," in sev
eral cases yecret," forces officerand in one case--namely the specia 
course at Fort Bragg-the classification is secret no foreign," and do. 
you know how Brazilians manage to get in a course like that? 

General Bri . No; I willook into that for you.
Mr. HOLT. Do you know, Colonel. . 
Colonel Road. No, sir; I must have mssed it. I am not speakineof 

missing the note for it but I didn't notice they were classefied 
"scre'G as far as qualifications were concerned. I thought several of 
them were onfidentitdh"g 

http:bnld,.th
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General BEA=. Basically confidential is the classification which 
we afford. I am not even aware that we extend it to secret in any case 
but we will look into that and let you know. 

(The information is as follows:) 
Although most courses are unclassified, there are courses which include Con

fidential portions. In several highly technical couises, access is granted to some 
Secret material. In every case of the release of classified material, the recipient 
of the training has been carefully screened prior to the granting of clearance. 
As to the specific case -of material classified Secret NOFORN in The Special 
Forces Officer Course at Ft. Bragg, no Latin American officers are given access 
to classified portions of the course. 

Mr. I-oLT. That is all. 
Senator CRmon. I don't think I have any further questions, 

General. 
Thank you very much for your testimony. I appreciate it. 
The hearing then will go over until 10 o'clock tomorrow morning 

when we will hear from Mr. Helms of the CIA and then we will 
hear tomorrow afternoon from you, Mr.Ellis. 

Thank you, General, very much for your testimony. 
(Whereupon, at 4:45 p.m., the hearing was adjourned, to recon

vene at 10 a.m., Wednesday, May 5,1971.) 

I 4 
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BIIEFIN'G ON BRAZIL BY RICHARD E. HELMS, CIA 

WEDNESDAY, WAY 5; 1971 

UNITED STATES SENATE, 
SuBcomIrr ox WEsTERN HErnsrE RE ArFAIRs 

OF TH13 CO3dnTnE ON FonnxGN RwLATIONS, 
Washington, D.C. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in S-116, The 
Capitol Building, Senator Frank Church (chairman of the subcom
mittee) presiding:

Present: Senators Church, Fulbright, Sparkman, Symington, and 
Javits. 

Also present: Mr. Holt, Air. Kuhl, and Mr. Dockery, professional
staff members, [deleted].

Senator CHURcH. Why don't we commence? Iwill ask you to stand
and be sworn. Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you will give
this subcommittee will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but 
the truth,so-help you God? 

Mr. ItsLM. I do. 
Senator CHuRcH. I wonder if the other gentlemen in-the room would 

identify themselves for the record. 
[Deleted.] 
(Whereupon, at 12:20 pam, the hearing was concluded.) 
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U.S. POLICIES AND PROGRAISi IN -BRAZIL 

. WEDNESDAY, M4Y 5, 1971 

UXTm 'SPrATBS SEN-ATE, 
SpBcoMMnT17E ON -WESItERN HE-MISPHEMRE AYFZAIRS 

OFTUIE CoMifrT 9N FORnXO RrLATrONS, 
* . - l, W~ahington, D.U. 

The subcommittee niet, pursuant to nqtice-at 2:30 p.m. in room 
S -116, the Capitol Bhilding,,,Senator YFlnkChvch (chaiiman of 
the subcommitfee) presiding. 
* Present: Senator Church. 

Us6-present: .2r.Holt and Mr.,Dockery of the ommittee staff. 
Seniator' CRavAc. .The subcommittee will come to order. 
Do yoju sojiemtly swear the testimony'you will give this commit

tee will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so 
help you God? s I . 

Mr. ELEs.-YesSir. 
Senator COnuiDG Would youidentify those with youthis afternoon, 

pjease,_, 
Mr; ELIS. Mr. Philip Schwab, of the Office of. Brazilian Affairs 

Department of State; Mr. Robert Dean, Director, Office of ]ra 
zilian Affairs; Mr. Mike Samuels Office 'of Congressional Relations, 
Department of State Mrs. Jean Lewis Office of Congressional Relations, AID.Senator -MH ,Iunderstand that youC. are .prepared to summarize your statement, 'Mr, this afteroon, -with the' undr-Ellis, 

standing That the entire statement will appear'in the record:
Mr. E nms. Yes, sir... . -

Senator On-ron., Very welJ, .vith that nnderdthndirg -than, Whydon't you proceed. t ; . 

TESTIMO0NY,,OF WILLIAM A. 3EL1IS, DIXCTORg, USA4ID ,RAZIL " 

BIlisSfui sta( ur. tement appears onpage 18w&th.e 

The staemnt itself is addressed the ilquestions 

provided the Department of State. 


Mr. ExLuS. Thank you, Mr. Ohaiman.o , '"'. which wede 
. . 

aT lSTOR r O F , AUD aI OGRAIR U.S. BRA ZIL 

Trace tle history of the Its: ad piogram in razi l since World 

SIn.194, s~pired byiwartime need kor-fod and raw _aterils' andbecause of the strategc imtortc"5f'Te norted the Stads.o.twt 
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began its formal bilateral assistance relationship with Brazil. Under 
the leadership of Presidential Assistant for Inter-American Afflairs, 
Nelson Rockefeller, the Institute for Inter-American Affiairs (IIAA) 
was formed and supported multimillion-dollar programs in minerals 
exploration. 

The bilateral technical cooperation program began in 1951 under 
the supervision of the Joint 'Economic Commission. The United 
States spent about $2.8 million annually over a 7 year period through 
1957 and increased its spendino- substantially thereafter, reaching a 
peak of $12.2 million in 1960. tver the decade, the Brazilian Point 
Four program cost $64 million, about 40 percent of which was obli
gated in the last 3 years of the period. 

The programs of the late 1940's in public health, industrial voca
tional training, and the minerals investigations continued and were 
expanded during the early part of the 1960's. Point Four began with 
a commitment to a philosophy of balanced programs, but establish
ment of a comprehensive process for deciding program Priority was 
slow in developing. Priority was given to agricultural training
through a bilateral agriculture service created in 1953, and through 
a program of supervised rural credit. Late in the decade, technical 
assistance programs in public and business administration were begun, 
as well as programs in education, audio-visual techniques, and public
safety, 

THE ALTANOF YItEARS Or TIM 10601S 

Under the Alliance for Progress, Brazil benefited from both in
creased aid flows and improved financing terms. AID grants and 
loans with low interest rates and long grace amortizatio periods
have accounted for about 60 percent of $2.1 billion in U.S. economic 
assistance received by Brazil during fiscal year 1962-70. 

In the decade-
Senator Cuq-RoiH. Let'8 just get that, those figures. Can you tell us 

the total cost of the aid program from the period following the Second 
World War to the beginning of the Alliance for Progress?

Mr. Ems. I do not have the figures for the 1940-s, sir,Mr. Chairman. 
Senator Crrmjcn. What figures do you have? 
Mr. E nIs. The figures for the Alliance for Progress itself-
Senator CEXmIO. I mean do you have any figures prior to the 

Alliance? 
Mr. ELlis. Yes; $64 million by AID's predecessor agencies for the 

decade of the 1950I's. 
Senator CURoCH. Decade of the 1950's, $64 million total?MVr. Enzis. Yes, sir. 
Senator' umeon. All right. What was the figure for the decade of 

the 1960's? 
Mr. ELIs. Decade of the 1960's plus 1971 (estimated) is $1,240 mil

lion, loans and $141 million, grants. 
Senator CEuTcE.. Does that encompass all forms of American aid? 
Mr. ELLIS. No, sir. In addition you have Food for Peace, both grants

and loans; this is for the 1960's only, $643 million. You have Export-
Import Bank loans net of $299 million. Total loans both-hard and soft 
window are $934 million dollars by the TDB. 

Senator Cnnmon. That is the Imter-American Development Bank. 



Mr. ELLIs. Yes, sir. 
Senator Con.'What I would like to have is a comparison of the 

aid program in Brazil prior to the installation of the.military govern
ment in 1964 as compared with.the American aid program since then,
broken down by years so wC can have a clear picture, and that to in
clude all forms of bilateral aid. 

Mr. ELLIS. Yes, sir; including Food for Peace. 
Senator CO omn. Including Food for Peace. I think that sinpce pre

sumably the aid given through the Inter-American Development Bank 
comes through a multilateral organization that has its own decision
making process, there would be no need to incorporate that figure. We 
would like to have the figure but what I want incorporated together is 
all forms of our bilateral aid, by years, so that we can see what the 
trend has been in the program and what relationship it has had to the, 
present government.

Mr. ELIs. Yes, sir. Would you like it broken exactly on the date of 
the revolution? 

Senator COton. As nearly as youcan, so that the figures reflect the 
size of the program sincethe advent of the present government as com
pared to the size of the'program prior to that. 

If you can give,us,that information, it would be very helpful. 
(The information follows:) 



CQMPARISON OF US. BILATERAL ASSISTANCE TO BRAZIL PRIOR TO-AND FOLLOWING FISCAL YEAR 1964
 

IU.S. dolJars in millions, neL]
 

Program 1960 1961 1962 1963 Ron-add Nonaidd1964 subtotal 1965 19G9 1967 196, 1969 - 1970 1971' subtotal Total 

A.I,D, total -------------------- 11,9 7.0 84 5 86.3 173.6 368,3 230.7 242.3- 213.7 187.7 -11,7 1. 76.9 1, .000 1,369.1 
Development loans...... - -0.3 ---------- 74,5 62 9 2165.4 .......... 213.4 229.1 199.0 176,3 -21 8 49.3 6 0 915,3-.......
Grants ------------------- 12.2 7.0 10.0 23.4 13.2 12.3 13.2 14 7 11,4 10.1 11.9 11.9 85.5 ..........


Foodfor Pe.ace, total........ . 1..8 84.7 72,5 48.6 151,4 359.0 24 7 79.1 216 82.9 
 10.4 68 6 43.5 338 0689.38 

Titlel .................... ........ 81.5 44 0 32.6 115,9 .................... 29, 1 .......... 62.7 ..... 20 1 2.0 136 9 .......
 
Title I1.......... 1.8 3.2 28.5 16.0 35.5 .......... 24.7 
 50'0 21.6 20 2 10.4 48 5 18,5 193,9 ... ... 

Ex-Im loans.................... G-s 188,3 ------------------ () 195,1 36.0 16.9 30.0 50.8 28.6 656 d75,0 272,9 468.0 
Total economic............ 20.5 280 0 157.0 134 9 330.0 922 4 2614 338 3 
 265.3 321.4 27.3- 195 4 '195.4 1,604.5. 2,526 9 

1Etimfted. aExcludes refunding of $304,700,000 in fiscal year 1961; $85,600,000 in fiscal year 1964; bnd
2 Inclades a$50,050,000 pioaram loan authorized following change of government All other fiscal $5,603,000 in fiscal year 1965. 

year 1964 loans, to best information available to AIDJW, were under negotiation prior to Mar. 31, 1954. 4Esimato based an $67,000,000 total infirst 9 inantha of isCal year 1971. 
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,'r.i Mr. ,E~~IS; U,S.: 'assistance str,:;ttegy.,v[1rjed.in the A,Jlia,nce. y~a~~, 
according to conditiolli3,in Brazil,>vhich can' he ;e~a.ru;c~,~rt~ed as( it) 

,The,Quaclros-Goulart: years,'r19()1-64, ,«(b)' the. stabIlIzatIOn years, 
. '1964-68; a~ld (c) ~he'year9,of secb?r'!lssiqtanc~,,~969;70.· ;,' 

~"""'. ,~; \, .,~. ", f~ .? "1"1' ': .' 
·T.!m QUADROS~GOUL~RT YEA~~ " " 

- "' ,~ -. • • ~ •• • '.. ~ .. <"' f .. .. f • ."-' 

J. From the outset Of the Alliance· to the revolution of 'March 1964:,tlHi . . 

U.S. 'assistance 'program ,was'a:dversely,.affected by the poli~ical tur
moil'which .characterized':the' Quadros and Goulart governments. In 
contrast to, tl;ie. ~apid industrializat,~Qn and high grow'th :rates in the 
1950's, the Brazlhan economy ground almost to a halt III the early 
1960's due largely. to rami:>ant infl~,tion al1cl in~J;easing political in
stability. " '" ~.., ." . 
.. . Elected with·t8,percep.tof the popular vote m October 1960, Jamo 
Quadros, Kubitschek;~ssuccessor, got .off to ,an. excellent sfart in his' 
domestic programs: He focused on fiscal responsibility and adminis
trative reform. His' comprehensive antiinflati~naryprogram earned 
.~h~ suppq~t of t~e. IM:fa~<:l the U.S. Government. We too~ the lead 
lIl' arrangmg a,] omt multIlateral program of external aSSIstance to 
aveH, Brazilian financial collapse'ancl to give him ti,me to carry oui, 

. 	his stabilizationpI;ogram. This consisted o~,a rollover Of hundreds of 
In'illions of dollars of foreign debt and. the proyis~on of impressjve 
amountsof.new,cr.e<;lits. Unfortunately, Quadros"programs never g9t 

. ,off the..ground. After 7 months in office, he sent his resignation to 
Congress and'it. was accepted.,. : 
: Quadros was suc,ceeded by his 'vice president, Joao Goulart, who 
took over in:. the, mi~st of 'great. politicaLturbulence and ec;onomic .un
~certaintymarked,.by' rampantinflation:and the: threat of interria,tion~l 
'insolvency.. After:',renewedassuranceofreforp.1 intentions, the United 
:States m'ove,d ,to, h~lp ,~ith \1 new 16an,ra:ising the totalimmediately 
~tvai1able to Goulart t()$178 million. On the oasis of further elabora
tion of stab~lization, p}ans, the famous Bell-Dantas agreement was 
.reached in early 1963, providing 'for another $398.5 million of U.S. 
supPQrt,for the Goul;:trt Government.'., " , 
',,!,UJ;lfortnnately, G.<?uhirt, for po~itical re~sons,. failed to support the 
stabilization program . ,upon ,.which· U.S.' proO'ram -loans and IMF 
standby support were pred~cated. Further U.S: assistance to Brazil 
under Go.tllart ~as limited to techni~al assistance, PI;r-480 shipments, 
and certampro]ect loans. Our programs turned more to thestat.es and 
.regions of. Brazil, such as the drought stricken northeast. area. where 
~\'e signed a special agreement in 1962.., The focus'of that $131 million 

,program was on highway maintemince and construc,tion,. electri~ 
,power, health, public. administration, and education, with most of .the 
assistance, channeled through Sudene, the regional' development 
'agency. . 1 ' 

1964-(;8: THE STABILIZATION YEARS 

. \:Vith the re';olution :of. 1964, Brazil's 'grim' 'economic' pro~ipects 
changed almost overnight. The newly appointed ministers. of finance 
and planniilg were giV:eIM .r.elatively free hand to implement stabiliza
tion and administrative l:efor;m programs.',:, , . "" " ,'.: 
. Capital assistance supp-ort by t~le United ,Stat~s was extensive' be: 
tw'een 1964: an~ 19.6,9. Inl\ddition to larg~~scale program lending~' there 

. •;: ....... t··~·· t ' . .:.. ( .:.' ,. ; • .. , 
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,~er~ pJ;oje~t;lo~ns Tor~l~ctrl~aF~~i}~ratr~g; ~nd', diitribution :6apacity, '. 
'tr~lispor~~ti'on~ JiJi!l ag~i!?~Wlra,~law:W.ndust~ia~I'c~e;d.iti ;> .,' '-<;:~':! ' ' 

"We assIsted the, BrazIhan Governme~lt' In Its';r~Toqn0plans"In' the, 
fieIds oJ agricuI t lire,' , ed'lleatibn; Jioii~ilrg,. thiHax'fSYi?terrfH1'ealth; 'and", 
governmental 'administration' by means OT the, largest: technical 60-' 
operation program i'n Latin America;' , ,,"~ '\;', '~ " ' 
:,'r :Ip addi~ion:t9. ,l~3:n~, 3r!l,d, :t~~~ni~aL c9PEer~t~Qn, w~ _~lsed t'Y<? o~her 
development tools In assIstance to Brazll~Food Tor Peace assIstance 

:{title'!, a;~d'I;i.), total~H:~5'~f:Q.'rr{~liih!~ ~h}962~.7.9; 'a?d,ip,ves,tinent.guar
aI?-te.esJor ,n.e:v ::o:S:, pl'lyat~,ll).y.~st~~~}~,)C?,:,~t;l~~, ~11~' 'In~r~Sl~¢~\~~ ,<?T , 
~b()~t~20p\ m~glOn'll1'n,e,y,I~y,c¥;r,:,o,I,?~ ,9f camtal}n~~,~r~z~l.:;~ > ,r;: 
f,'/ :'i> '~' '.; ',It 1.,:~:~i~:-.~ ;~(tiitl;'·-~nf'" ;'1',';."\,', :,; '~\ .. t.~;/t::. 

" , , ,', ,., 1,D,6D~70: THE,.~~RS ,OF,~ECTQ~ 'ASSISTANCE,: , ',":;I~,: ;,. 
': , 'Politiqal' dev~Joprnl?nt~3"iii;])ecem15eF196s-<,led't,o au' ei,t~nsive'revi~w ' 

'OT oUr pr,ogriLiils;',a:rid 'no,new1lbans wer~ atithoi-ized'iri' fiscal y~at''1969. 
-Ktechriical. assfsta~lice dhq' Fq6dtTOr Pi~ce"pr'ograrh::was'c9ntini.i'edas ' 
ip.,the19~4-:68'l?e'fiod~"!',:';.:.:1", f, ,', ,t".,,':; ; :>~~"'~" 1., ;J', "/,, 

,: R~yi'!'\w OT tl~e ecorioll.li6-':peHor:r:nance o:f 'tlle·'Bhiiiliaii Goverrime~t 
_c ,in)i;he 1964::-6'9 i)cl'iod has 'bee~l'-'esp'!~cialli impressi've;, shthving high 

'and'iTI:creasingannmil gh~wth.rates In;f~)67', 1968:,"and'19.69:Th'ese'Tac- , 
',tof~', 'phis .' a~ .. i:p.crea~e: l:ri' ,t'EX:{hlbank '1endihg;l~:rMF:;~tanahy':agr.ee- ' , 
nients,iiitl\e'$tO~$100 ',inillion.'raJ?,ge;' IDI31end~lj.g'levels at 'about $150 

"iriilli(:ni per, annum, and',IDRB'JevelS 'expected' to ,totar $'I:'billioiljn, 

; the'llext' iFyeais have redilced tlleiieed 'Tol' bilaleral con:c~ssj'oi1al 'lend'7, 

ing. AID loan assistailc~is now Tocused on'a 'Tew·'selected sectors; 'that 


, is,,' education, •. agriculti~l:,e;. heal~h, .and..,ilew:, ,~:A~~OOS00 'pi'?'posals 

,such as'export' promotlon'andeaprtal.mar'ket development. BIlateral 

'lending-in fiscal year I970,totaI'ed $75'inillioll'tor'.twoloans. So Tar'in 

'fiscaLyear 1'971 we have 'authorized three'l611118 totaling $42;'5 million. 


;No\v'T wbuld 'like'~;"ery bri'efly to summarize'these l'oa~s;'llbt to i'ead 
O 

~~hem,~ .":-', ,"~ .. ')' "·r.<~···::·;··:" .'1' r"rJ~" \._;~f' :: ~:I,,\~i i ",<' "(~'~:',:' 'f::I ..' .' ., 

, REASONS FOR LARGE' U.S'-,AID PROlJRAM','· ,:" . 
• • ~ • '~ ••'~'~' ,j ,t, j-,(; .. :,,':. ,., 

Senator CHURCH. BeTore we get into that, '.the'·prbg~affi',yo1i have 
~~d.ministered at'least 8iilce: I9Q4' has:Qeen the largest aid program; that .' 
,~ve have extendE)d.to,ri,nycQuntry olttside'9T:lndia, has itriot? ' " ' ' " 
, " Mr. ~LLIS. Excluding Vietnam ~s ,veIl; sir. j ": ", ' 'J "'::,' • 

'Senator CHuRCH. IV ell; 'yes, Vietnam. '," 1;" i " '", , . 

,Mr. ELI::'is. Ye~, sir. ,r,!", ,,[:,' :,:-', ";" (, , ' 

:,Senat~r O¥URC'H. WefLr'e in the pr6cess OT blo'-(ving that C9\liltryup, 
l).otextelldip.g aid. ~Aricl. the total ainount oHhe aid to Brazil ,vcHild be ' 
'in theneighp<;irhdod of ~omethil:ig bctweerl$2 an,d $3 billion.' ' 
, Mr. ELLIS. You mean Sin:CEd~64:No, since 1964 it would 'be more 
like $1.5 billion. i: '", ' 

,Senator CHURCH. Including the Food Tor Peace and all aspects OT 
bIlateral. ' , . , . ,", .':., , ",:, ",' 

Mr. ELLis. Yes" sir; closer.to $2 billion. Between $1.5' and $2 ,billion. 
, 'SenatorCr.iuncI'f: Oloser 'to; $2 billiori. That is ~{'great deal OT mOlley 

to qe,~pendiiig in one country, isri'ti~? '.' ,":: ", '" " , . 
" Mr. ELLiS," Mr. Chairman, iT yop. look at this.in various periods, if 
you take the 19.64-:68 p~i-iod, which you' might ciill 'an. exte1l(;led eco
'llorriic emergency, aild recall some'oT the economic, conditions in Brazil 
'at that'time;Tor exri:inple; inflation rmrning overlOOper«ent 011 an an
nual rate, Toreign exchangeresei'ves depleted, commercial arrears OT 

http:closer.to
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several hundred million dollars the country having to pay, sharp re
duction in production and employment, per capita income running at 
anegative figure, a rate of decrease 

Senator Cirron. I understand the chaotic economic condition in 
Brazil. I am just trying to relate this to the interests of the United 
States. Do you regard these economic problems as a part of our national 
responsibility? 

Mr. ELLIS. Yes, sir. 
Senator Cnuon. You do. 
Mr.ELLIS.Not in the sense that we are the cause of the problems. 
Senator Cr- mc= Why? 
Mr. ELLIs. But in the sense I consider it to be in the U.S. interests to 

assist in resolving problems in a country of this size and. importance. 
Senator Cannon. Why?
Mr. EmLmS. During that period. 
I felt then, and I still do, sir, that this enormous country, which was 

shifting into a period of both economic and perhaps even political 
anarchy, was, I was about to say, ripe for political,developments which 
might be antithetical to our interests, at least the possibility of such 
political developments was high enough to pose a serious risk to U.S. 
interests. 

.Senator Ciutmon. How do you know that political developments, 
even revolutionary developments, would necessarily have been adverse 
to our interests? 

Mr. ELuS.I do not know, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator Cninr.There is no way really of knowing. 
Mr.ELLIS. It is a question of judgment. No way really of knowing. 
Senator CannRon. So $2 billion have been spent since 1961 on the 

speculation that our interests would be better served by shoring up the 
government that took power in 1964 than taking chances on-

Mr. ELLIs. Uncontrolled-
Senator Cnumonr. Unrest bringing some other government to power, 

is that correct? 
Mr. E Lis. [Deleted.] 

U.S. INATIONTAL INTERESTS IN BRAZIL 

Senator Cauon. I-Tow does the present government in which we 
have invested $2 billion, serve the national interests of the United 
States, in your judgment?

Air. E~ms. Well, first of all, perhaps I should state what I think 
some of the U.S. national interests are in Brazil. 

One of them is the existence of a government or society which is gen
erally consistent with our national, specific national, security interests 
in the hemisphere which would not pose a security threat to us. 

Second would be the protection and expansion, if possible, of our 
economic interests, trade and investment, in the hemisphere. 

PRIVATE I-NVESTMENT 

Senator CaRno. Can you tell me how large the American private 
investment is in Brazil today.

iMr. ELLis. Itis gomewhat over $1.6 billion.' 
Senator Cuoii. So -we have pumped in $2 billion since 1964 to 

protect a favorable climate of investment that amounts to about $1.6 
billion. 
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•?r. ELLIS. Thit is only one of theoBlijectives, -Mr.Olairfiian. 
%SAator. oc. I want to get -these things in -relation. W6 have 

spent $2 billion on a program one obiective of which is the protection
of a favorable investment climate for private business hifterests in 
this country.

-3M1r. ELLis. Yes. 
Senator CHTICmn. Aid the total amount that private business 

interests have invested in Brazilcomes to about $1.6 billion. Are-those 
the correct figures? 

MN[r. EILls. $1.7 billion is the rough total. 

OTIER 'U.S. ATIONAL -IN'mRETS 

Senator Cnnon. What other national interests ate thdre. 
MN[r. ELLs. I thinL tbehird, Mvr. Chairman, is the ecohomic and

social development of the country, which liabeen stated. As a U.S.objectiv eJt has, I think, overlapped with ourdecunity objectives and 
with ouh nitriainresn neots i country tfilnze.a.SenatorO c. ow does this, in your judgment, directly relate 
to the national interests of the United States? 

M'r. ELLs. It is very difficult to prove any casual relationship be
tween economic development and subsequent political development 
or subsequent security relations between the two countries. I like to
think there is one but I could not prove it and it certainly would not 
be, the correlation would not, be very high.

In ; negative sense, though, I think the lack of development, a1
chaotic, retrogressive situation, a case can be made for political, devel
opments in that situation that carry some probability of risk. But 
beyond that-

Senator CHORcH. Aren't these really highly conjectural judgments 
on .which to base the expenditure of nearly $S billion since 1964? 

M.Esr. EBs. I agree that they are highly subjective, 11T. Chairman,

highly subjective judgments that cannot be demonstrated, certainly

not -by facts. There is another point-


CORRELATION BETWDN ECONOM.IC A1 ) ANID COMMNISM 

Senato-Cuno-x. It has long been a maxim of the AID program,
at least as it has been sold to the Congress and to the people of th& 
country, that economic development should be promoted in foreign
lands because this discourages the tendency that might otherwise
develop to have a Communist government.

Yet, Communist governments have been established in countries 
where the level of economic develoment was relatively good, and 
wihere large amounts of investment had been made, Cuba being one.

Now we have the instance of Chile, which certainly isn' the most 
backward country in Latin America from the standpoint of economic
development, turning voluntarily to a Marxist regime by electing it 
to power. The objective evidence would, seem to suggest that there is 
munist government. 
no necessary correlation between economic impoverishment and Com-

Mr. E Lms. Well, Mr. Chairman, I don't think I said Communist 
government. I said any political deveIopment which might be-

Senator CuRno.- I would think that the only kind of government 
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that might pose a possible security threat to the United States, which 
was the first interest you listed as justifying this expenditure of $2 
'billion, would be one that was Communist oriented and tlat might fur
nish a base of operations to a country, such as the Soviet Union, that 
could be potentially dangerous to the United States. Yet I don't quite 
see, and on the basis of the objective evidence, the correlation between 
such large inputs of .American capital to achieve economic develop
ment, and forestalling the possible threat of communism either in 
Brazil or anywhere else. 

Mr. Em s. Well, Mr. Chairman, I hope I didn't leave the impression,
and if I have I correct it, that this was an attempt to, has been an 
attempt to, prevent a country from going Communist in a simple black 
and white way of looking at it. I think there are all kinds of shades of 
relationships between two countries. There was a feeling that assist
ance of this type would cement not only a strong historical relationshi 
but also provide opportunity for economic development. It would lea, 
and I think subsequent events show that it has led, in our areas of 
mutual interest, to cooperative, cordial relations. 

Senator C UCH. But if we had to pay that kind of money for 
cordial relations all around the world we would soon go broke. 

PERt CAPITA EXPE URE 

Mr. ELLIs. Mr. Chairman, the average per capita expenditure dur
ing this.period works out to between $3 and $4 per year per capita. 

I am not minimizing the sum of money, but I think the majority of 
countries in Latin America would have received a larger amount on 
a per capita basis. 

Senator OnmiRcH. I wonder if you could give us figures on the aid 
program broken down in that way so that we can make some com
parisons between the program in Brazil and the programs that have 
been furnished other Latin.countries. 

Mr. Bn=s. Yes, sir. 
(The information follows:) 

COMPARISON OF PER CAPITA A.I.D ASSISTANCE IN LATIN AMERICAN COUNTRIES, 1964-69 

Population
of major Total A I O. Annual 

LA recipient 1964-69 Percent per capita Rank of per
countries Percent of (U S. dollars of LA share capta
(millions) population inm illions) A . (dollars) share 

Region --------------- - - 1483 100.00 3,695 0 100 0 3.02 ------------
Bolivra....--------.---- 3.7 .25 170 0 4.6 7.-,65 4 
Brazil-------------- -- - 81.3 54.8 1,415.4 38.3 2.90 12 
Chile------------------ 8.7 5.9 497.6 13 5 9.25 
Colombia--------------- 15 8 10 7 49& 0 13 5 5 25 6 
Costa Rca --------------- 1 4 9 50,0 14 5.95 5 
Dominican Republic ----- 3.6 2 4 317.1 8.6 14.68 1 
Ecuador....------------- 5 1 3 4 75.1 2 0 2 46 13 
El Salvador _------------ 2.9 2.0 51.6 1.4 2 95 11 
Guatemala ------------- 4.4 3 0 51.5 1.4 1 95 14 
Honduras-------------- 2.2 1.5 48.9 2 3 3.71 9 
Nitcaragu --............ 1 1 2.1 3,
s - 1 6 76.9 801 
Pnaina --------------- 1 2 8 103.4 2.8 4.36 7 
Paraguay. ........... 20 1 3 50 0 1.4 4.17 8 
Peru_ ---------------- 11 7 7 9 127.3 3,4 1.81 is 
Uruguay- ............. 2.7 1.8 54.4 1.5 3 36 10
 
Mu[tnatrori regional 

funds......---------------....... 2.3 107,8 2.8 ------- _-------------


I Of major recipient Latin American nations
 
2Teconical assisajice grants, development loans, Food for Peace.
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ANTICO3 NXUYISDI 'UNON-VINOCING -IMASON{ FOR AI)
 

Senator Crnncn. I am not opposed to economic development for 
other lands I think that it is a desirable-objective, and-it seems to me 
that capital furnished for that purpose from developed countries has 
or could have %constructive role to play. 

But the program has never been. presented to the Congress in these 
terms nor politically has it been sold to the American people in these 
terms. The principal argument made for a foreign aid program, eco
nomic assistalce, in the Congress is that this money is an investment 
against the growth of communism, and that aseconomic.development 
occurs there is less tendency in underdeveloped lands to resort to a 
leftist governmient, Marxist governments, Communist governments,
however we may describe them,.and all lumped' together as inimical 
to the interests of the United States. That thesis needs much more 
searching analysis than it has heretofore been given.

But I fail to see the basis for this argument in the light of what 
actually has occurred here in this hemisphere and elsewhere. I think 
itisa thesis that cannot be sustained. 

There may be other reasons for extending ,aid.. I can think of a 
number that I would be willing to endorse, but anticommunism is a 
most unconvincing one. I think we know solittle about the dynamics
of politics in our own land, let alone the other lands, that we are really
not ina position to say with any degree of assurance that economic 
development, as such, either tends to.deter or to promote Communist 
governments. There may be very little correlation at all between the 
two; aud there is much evidence to suggest that the most impoverished
.lands are politically the most stable since poverty tends to inculcate 
conservatism for a great many other rbasond that are not ideological
butvery practical'. So it is this thesis that has *been'thecorliers'tone of 
the aid program and 'has beeh repeated over and over again and ac
cepted as gospel that I question. That is why, it seems-to me, that when 
you say the program we have financed in Brazil has promoted the 
national security interests of the United States, i don't see the evi
dence that that is necessarily so. ... . 1 

All right, I doi'T mean to 'dothe-testifying here.-
Mr. Eunis. Well, Mr. Chairman, you recall, yon- isked me what the 

U.S. security interests, wereand I was trying to define them. 
We had not got to the question.of evaluating whether the AID pro

gram was related -or correlated to these interests. I think I mentioned 
security and economics, I think the third interest, call it humanitarian 
or development, call it whatever word you wish, I certainly concur 
"heartilywith what -yousaid on that point. 

LOAN ron SEWERAGE SYSTBMS 

To go-through the loans we have made in the last 9 years very hur
riedly: In 1970 we made two loans. The-first was for sewerage systems
in the northeast wad north of Brazil. There is-a fairly fixed financial 
plan in Brazil for water, sewerage, and housing because the funds for 
the housing bank come from the social security system. There is not 
too muohiceway for subsidized terms. The AID loan makes it possible
for the poorer communities in the poorer parts of Brazil to participate in this national program. 
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The loan was the result, to a large extent, of technical assistance 
which traces itself all the way back to the Rockefeller programs in 
the 1940's under which thousands of sanitary engineers were trained. 

LOAN FOR EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM 

The second loan, I think, is one of the most complex and potentially 
interesting made anywhere by AID. It was a $50 million loan to-the 
Ministry of Education and Culture to provide an incentive system 
for states to improve their educational planning, budgeting, admin
istration and to become eligible for increased funds for capital 
expenditures. 

The objective is not so- much the capital expenditures, which are 
largely 'or schools, but the qualitative changes in administration; 
planning, curriculum, teacher training, and so on. 

With the matching Brazilian contribution, there is a total of 
$100 million addressed primarily at the secondary school level 
where you have had a very acute bottleneck in Brazil, where less 
than 5 percent of eligible children complete the secondary 'school. 
This creates not only technical shortages-but I think it constitutes a
most serious impediment to social mobility and to an equitable distri, 
bution of income and opportunity. 

That loan I would say would probably, according to present plans, 
be 50 percent for the northeast. 

1971 LOANS 

This year we have authorized three loans. The first is for farm-to
market rural roads, and the financing principle is very much like the 
first one I mentioned. It is to provide subsidized terms for the poorer 
States. This loan would also be for the north and northeast, and give 
them a chance to compete on some equal basis with the richer States 
within a national program handled by the national development 
bank ($P5 million). 

Another authorized loan this year is for marketing centers, urban 
marketing, wholesale marketing centers, in the northeast and north, 
and assembly points for faim products outside the cities. 

Senator Uiiunon. Now these are all what you would call project 
loans. 

Mr. izns. Well, in our present jargon, Mr. Chaii'man, they are 
called sector loans but for-all practical purposes they are project loans. 

Senator Cntcn. Are you still engaged in making program loans 
to the Brazilian Government? 

Mr. ELrs. No, sir. 
Senator Caon. That has been terminated. 
Mr. ELLs. The last program loan was in 1968. 
The last loan is just $2 million for training of power engineers, 

specialized training. 

TYPIOAL TERMS or LOANS 

Senator Cn cn. Can you tell me what the typical terms of these 
b*oans are? 
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hr...Etns. All,ourIoans sincel1964 have Jbeentatthe maxinum.terms 
allowedby~tha las,,at,tie present tinief40 years; I0-year grace peiiod, 
;ft 2,percent durins-4he ?grace period, ,ad tilen 3 percent thereafter. 

*Wehave not varied them. 
Senator CUmncn. For the first. 10, years none of the principal is 

repaid. 
.. Mr. ErLrS. Yes,'sir. 

Senator 'Cn'ua. Two perce~it interest paymhent. on:the loal.After 
the first 10 years then vhb.prineipalis ,repaid'along :withinterest. 

'Mr. EmsAs.Yes;:sir.. -' - " 
Senator:CniTcn. Fora -30-yearperiod . 
Mr. ELms.That is right. 
Sefliator Cnionwc.- hat kind,of,.oans.areive now making in Brazil 

that' could nob be @iadetthrough one of'the ihultilateral agencies. 
Mr. ELLIS. I think. tbiv only loin where .would niake that ease, and 

I would make it'only on'the basis of th 'act they-have not done-it and 
don't appear to 'have ,the interest, is,the education -loan. There is.no 
reason- hy any of the.btliers could not be 'made by the international 
agencies. Tlieteducation Joair'will lhav-e a largd cdmponent for research, 
new tedhnolog, otler specialized:technichl assistance; would have an 
American saff on the grobind;inot ,ofGovernmenf employees but con
tractors, of 25 to 50 people. It involves oalose relhtionship with several 
levels, of the Brazilian Governmnent in thesector;:and has not lent, it
self to the method of operation of multilateralagencies: 

The others that I mentioned are not this complex and could have 
been handled out of Washington byaninternational agency. 

Senator Cxrmnc. Very well. Now please continue.. 
Mr.'ELLS. Th only thing-1 willadql,on the'loans;.as, I cal'culated it 

inmyhead; is thdt ove- 75.pei'cent of the total for these 2 years will 
got-worthcastern Brazil. ...-

- .. ', .REPAYMENT BRECOflD--, , 

Senator CuncO. Can you tell me what the record of 'repayment h1as 

beenon.the-part :of -Brazilfor.loans- that have been e±tended' to .that 
Governhnent or.tQo-that-countrytinthe pask . 

Mr. ELLIS. There have 'been several major rescheduling exercises, 
Mr. Chairm.n,%-the lastof which Lbeliete, 'was inlate 196. The terms 
-were extended as a result of a consortium of all major lenders .. hose 
reschedulhigs, -if they-had not-been' done, Brazil, would,probablydiave 
had to,default ,on. several loans. '4ut tthey were always 'done in -time, 
and to my knowledge there never has been-a default on a U.S. Gov
ernment loan, certainly not in my experience., I think in every ,case 
there was rescheduling or bail out operation, if.yo wish, to avoid 
'this from 'happening. Since 1964 they have been2 extremely punctual 
in their payments. 

Senator Cntion. The:bailout simply means an.extension.
 
Mr. ELLIS. A rollover.
 
Senator Cirrunc. A rollover.
 
Mr. ELLis. Yes, sir.
 
Senator CRWciO. What repayments have been made since 1961?
 

Yon.said since that~timetherepayments have been punctual. 
Mr. ELLIS. Well, the repayments to AID, on our earlier loans,'havd 

teen, negligible, small. Ex-Im repayments have been substantial. 

http:the'loans;.as


•Se.atorACanmn.iA o~eoterfloans from othersources are now being 
repaid.. 	 -, .. r - ". "
 

Mr. Emfs, Yes, sir. .
 
Senator Omrno . On schedule.
 
Mr.ELs. -Yes,sir.- . "
 
Senator Chcia.Ias there -been any neeeskty fr'ah~tlhir rixllbver 

exercises, as you~call.them,,sinpe 1964?,o 	 -:"

1r BLis. No, although, tleii debt service 'burd. .isgetting Iup
toward,what mightbe called-a dangerous leyel of ovier , percet of 
their foreign exchange earnings per year. . . 

- • ThRMtS, OF LOANS -	 ". 7 

One further point on terms. We mak the loans to the Governfent 
of Brazil on these liberal terms. They .are not,necessarily passed on 
to the ultimate borrower at the same terms. That will vary depending 
on the borrower. I-f it-is a ,qriwatefirm, they'will get,,something ap
proximatingithe commercial rates. 	 - ' - -' 

Senator COunRo. ,Whyshouldn!t ,ourloans. fo l6ng-term, economic 
assistance carry the sae interest -as our loanset's,say for.the;pun 
chase of weapons by Brazil 2 That- is Ithe,cost,of,borrow ig;money by 
theGovernment-of the-Unit~d States:. I I ) I I: I -

Mr. ELmxs: Mr. Chairman, atour -present level of.operationsi the 
difference, would not be that significant., The ,economiceffect would be 
almost a drop in~the'bucket in terms ofthetbttalprograming of ,Brazil
ian foreign exhhange, In the periodrof 1964,66,. however, the liberal 
terms were a very significantpart6if the-aid itself:Ondof-the analyses 
that *asmade verycarefully'during that-pdriod -was6ithe burden; 
our loans were such a big part,otth&6verall financing-that the terms 
made -a significant contributionin getting Brazil-over, a dangerous 
hump. ' 
Y6 can no loiigetr-acatelthat ease althoukh the-dontinued&accumula

ti6n of'short-term borrowiDg by Brazil is:oneof -theaTeas,-oT concern 
'in their economic picture.! . 

"- ~D:BBT PrOBLUi --------	 

, .
 " 
 . I| 
,Senator CoBC. That-seens.tonmatQ riean tht.tazilds-reaching

that point where-the interest of its bwn'-econom sugges.r,,a curtail
ment in botrowing from abroad and, d'xeate" relahce on gendrating 
capital from within. , ' , , "
,'.£r.Bns.,The 'raziliansare aware ofthis and are devloping techmiq~us for impi-ovingdebtlnanagement.' .I I 
* W¥hen Robkefeller was in,Brazil-2yeats ago; this-was one 
of the -primary points that they made ,thim.They explained their 
debt problem, I think, to 1990, and their point was that the lending 
couritries should -reduce, the terms generally. Bu,your point is also 
valid. A high rate of bapital formation -withinthe-country could tend 
-toreduce the need-for f6reigM exchange.
* In any developing country you Teally have two economic:gaps to fill: 
Qe- is your rate-of savings; and the dfther foreign exchange avail
ability. Dealing with thefist one does not necessarilj take.careof the 
second., " 

http:Se.atorACanmn.iA


1-72
 

Senatot Cfrmoxt. BuV'when the-total-paymentapproa6he 25 per
cent of the exports, then the country, in your own words, is"reaching a,.
 
critical point-

Mr. ELUS. Yes, sir. ...... I. 
Senator Onmon. -in relation to continued reliance upon ihported 

capital, is it not . 
Mr. E Lms. That is right. Two things theylhave to,,do are be more 

'selective in 'Which debts'theydttke on to -mAte'sure the projects have a 
high -pribrity; and,, second, try to 6btain' fnbte'cooperation on longer 

'terms from other creditors. I I . - . 
I think it is for this reason that even though our program is small, 

we have tried to retain these favorableterms for symbolic purposes. 
.Senator Onimo . All xight. 

PROGRESS"UlXDER CHARTSR OF UNTA D.EL ESTE 

,Mr.- LXs. I think the last section I would summrrize Mr. Chair
man, is Brazilian progress under the Charter of Punta del Este. 
. In aresponse to a 1968 request from the Committee on, Government 
Operations of the-House of Ilepresentativs, ithe Agency, for Interna
tibhalDevelop m ent undertookfa stud tto deter-mine Whether the.goals 
of the Alliance for Progress were realistic or attainable in,light-of 8 
years, experience. AID's review concluded that total accomplishment 
of the' ambitious goals within the -decade 1961-71,as contemplated. in 
the tGharter of Punta del 'Estewasnot possible. Toomuchhad been-ex
pected too soon; nonetheless, achievement.had been substantial. 

Both generalizations hold true -for,Brazil: 
S.(,1), Thi alliance 'goalstwere uni-ealistic -in the given time frame; 

(2) Progresswassubstantial by 1968.
 
Among the reasons for this.progress were':,: ..
 

(1) Sound economic planning and policy determination. 
"Aneffective ministry of planning emeiged -afterth revolution of 

19641, led-bya internationally known-economist,-Robertb -Campos, who 
cooperated closely with a distinguished Minister, of Finance, Otavio 
Bulhoes. Their successors, Joao Paulo dos Reis Veloso and Delfim Neto, 
respectively, have maintained the high professional standard and a 
general continuity in policy. Macroeconomic planning covers in.broad 
terms Brazilian -development priorities over the next 5 years. Sector 
plans havae been drawn-up and are beingfblowed in key areas such as 
education, agriculture, highway construction, shipbuilding, and steel 
expansion. These are basially self-help programs maiking-maximiu 
use of domestic resources, although mosb-of them include support from 
international lending institutions. Economic, policy has been flexible 
and creative, with basic reliance on the private sector grid an open

Ieconomy.
The personnel for this-strengthened planning and'policy system have 

been -trainedin local institutions, frequently with postgraduate, work 
in the United States. Outstanding among Brazilian-institutions produc
ing economists for this effort has been the University of Sao 'Paulo 
-which- underan AI-F ord Foundation grant, has availed itself of the 
professional assistance of Vanderbilt University in the development 
of a graduate school of economics equal to any in Latin America. 
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(2) Monetary and fiscal stability: Rate of inflation-1961 (peak), 
140 percent; 1970, 19.8 percent.

Brazilian development strategy after 1964 was based on the two 
simultaneous goals of curbing inflation and restoring growth rates. It 
is no easy trick to reconcile these two somewhat incompatible goals. But 
through a skillful, flexible combination of fiscal, monetary, wage, and 
foreign exchange policies, Brazil has achieved one of the most im
pressive economic recoveries and growth surges in recent times. Brazil 
created an atmosphere in which meaningful and coherent national development plans could be drawn up, domestic savings and foreign 
capital attracted in support of these plas, and implementation moved 

forward under a free market economy relying largely on private
enterprise. 

(3) Dynamic private sector, paricularly in the last 3 years. 
increase in filers, and improvement i the system of compliance.(4) Tax collections, particularly in income tax area, spectacular 

BtRAZIL TAX DATA 

Senator Onoxofi. Can you give us a little more data on that? 
Mr. Em~s. I have some figures here from the Internal R~evenue Serv

ice, and iI suspect it is as reliable as I can get, broken down by bothi
individual and corporate income taxes for 1965 through 1970, which 
I will supply for the record. 

Senator Onoo. Yes,.they will be incorporated in the record at thispoint. Let me just glance at them. 
- (Information follows :) 
The following table shows the course of income tax receipts during the period 

1965-1970 expressed in real terms in millions of dollars. 
Also included herewith is the USAID prepared table showing trends in income 

tax filing in Brazil during the same period. 

BRAZILIAN INOME TAX PERFOANCE IN REAL TERMS 

[aamilions of dollars e 

Conversion 
rate 

1965-0 
gross1965 t 

a revenue 
ohtax 

receipts 

income tax 
s percent of 

gro s 

Yearm 

1965 ......----------------.................... 1.85 $2.0655 $552.8 26 62
 
1966.... . ..------------------------------------ 2,642 5 23.042,20 608 8
1967 ------------------------------------ 2.70 2,542 0 574.1 22 58 
1968----------------------- ------------- 3 40 2,919.7 641.1 21 96
1969 ------------------------------------------ 4.10 3,478.9 916.3 26. 34
1970 ------------------------------------------ 4.60 3,989 5 1,04 2 26.68 

Adjusted for inflation.
 
CR dollar equal US.$1,
 

Source: FTAS, I RS,Washington, D.C. 

06-373-71--1--12 



Total 

1955------------------------- 674.075 
1966 ......... ------------ 847,824
1967-------------------------786,326 
1968 ------------------------------- 926,286 

1969 ..........------------ 4,660,407 

1970 ...................... 7,744,8 2 


MCOME TAX RETURNS FILED, 195-7o 

Total . " ndivLtlul 
rTaxable K T 

Non- Percent of No . 
taxable Number total Total taxable Nutnber 

272,256 401,819 59.6, -353,923 166,407 187,516 
353,585 494, 238 58-3 529,273- 273, 307 250,966
304,682 481,644 613 468,730. 232,281 236,449 
321,137 605, 149 65.3 584,1534 250, 323 333,830 


2,715,406 1,945,001 .41.7 4,276,828 '2,681, 926 1,594,897 

5,186,773 2,558,119 33,0 7,024, 035- 4,924,833 2,099,202 

Percerifef 
total-

. 53,A
47.4,50,4' 
57,1

37.3,_
29.9 

r • 

-, 

Totsl 

320,152
318.551317,596 

- 342,133 
383,534 

720,857 


Corporalloms 

Te~bl&. 

Non-" *Percent of 
taxable - Nember total 

105,849 214,3 3 . .. 66 9: 
75, 279 243, 272 - 76. 4
72,401 L245,195 77.2 
70 814 -271,318 , 79.3
 '
 -33,480 350, 104 9173
 
261,940 458,917 - 63.37 

, - 



175
 

In real terms, federal taxorevenues increased-l .9% in 1969 and 14.7% in 1970. 
While economic growth at 9.0% to 9.5%'was in paftresponsible, due credit must 
go to the marked-improvements in tax administration. Since 1067 almost seven 
million taxpayers baveteen addedto the tax rolls; intensive drives'seek, out non
flers and examinations of their eturns ptdduce additional revenue,; taxpayer
relations andl assistance programs are broad-based and professionally-conducted;
automatic'refinding of 'overphid takes, has become a standard operation.' This 
concern of the sOB,ior abalance betweendts obligation and'tat of the taxp'ayer
has created an unprecedented tak'consciintiohsness in :Ba~il, 'nd equated tax 
ddmiliistratibn with"'social justice." . , • I I 

"Operhtion Dragnet" in 1968-1969 identified .161,17Z non-filers, and brought in 
over Cr$33rmillion. inl additional revenue. "Operation Loan Shairks," directed at 
money lenders, resulted:in collections of over Or$60ifillion and th6 imprisonment
of the'major tai evaders. Early.in 1970, subpoenas were issued to 350,000 buiness 
firms wlich bad'failed toflRrd A subsequent drive-late in 1970,has already pro
duced Cr$43 million dntates and fines from 273,000 firms. The requirement-to
have a Taxpayer Identification Card (used in transactin business and'obtfiii
able only upon, filing ,areturn) brought in an additional 581,000 returns from 
individuals. A follow-up drive-will begin in June; 1971. -

Th Fiscai Adininistration-expects to'addanother-millionrta payers to its rolls 
during 1071. The first audit program on a national basis.will bring in additional 
revenue, while promoting voluntary compliance in future years. The rate of in
crease in revenue receipts should again exceed that of economic growth. For the 
first quarters of 1971 receipts were up,20% over~those during the same period in 
1970, based on real terms. 

Ai .ELLIs. Thererwas aea'l increase 211 income tax 5blleelions Al 
percent 'in 1969, a 4fqrther 28- enin"crease U 1 9 7 0 .g Income tales 
still account for less th:an hPl9f ftheir govxrlrnment revenue but this 
progressive tax, as opppsed to their ponsumer aind other more regres
sire taxes, has shifted the whole niture of the tax structure. 

-, r 2ERCAPITA GROWTH 

I will c15heciting th-e-specificobjcti-vs of-the Charter eof Punta del 
Este and 'comparing ,Brhzilian-,peror ance, The first is per 'capita
growth.'Thd target was'2.5 pdrcent per'year. Brazil,has attained that 
tai get. In thea last 3 yeaIrs, j has aver&&ed',Gpercent on a per capita 
bass, amonjthe lighest-grob'th fates nthew6rld. 

Senator J Cyrc.That is over and above the populdtion jtowtb 
Air. Esr. Yes"irh; tey are net pet'capita figures. 

IN0031J3 DISTRIhUTOW 

Second, income distribution. The changes~have not been striking but 
there has been some Upward shift. I have a paper which has Thdicated 
a sabstnitial increase in what -we would call in the Uhited States a 
blue collar worker class which represents, I think, perhaps a lower 
entry into the lower middle class; into an organized econbmic society.
I think this is extremely sigmificant. This.group ha& grown very rap
idlyinthe last few'years. b o 

Investment'levels as a percentage of GI\PThave improved in the last 
few years and' re now higher than the general historieal level They 
are still relatively low. 'Oneofthe surprising things 'about Brazilian 
growth is that ithas•ccurreJlwithout exceptionally high levels of in
vestmeht.Thera'are various explinatons for this.,One has been called 
a matiagerial revolution in Brazil. Ainothdr is -the availability of so 
much land which-can be cultivated-with,little investment. 
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TRADE fE,X1hRsICATX 

Trade diversification. One of the most striking changes has been a 
sharp reduction insthe dependence on coffee and the emergence of man
ufacturers. Of course the total exports is the most significant of all, 
exports have doubled, virtually doubled, since 1961 and really since 
1964, because they did not grow in the first 3 years of the decade. In
dustrial growth (average rate) has been 12 percent well above the 
growth rate. Agriculture was always a lagging sector in Brazil; it 
was possibleto increase agricultural production and meet the increased 
demand for food and fibres without much investment and vithout an 
increase in productivity, simply by expanding the availability of land. 
This policy tended to doom the rural population to -perpetual low 
incomes. 

In the last few years, there has been a much better balance between 
agriculture and industry. The overall growth of agriculture has been 
6to 8 percent-in the last year. 

AGRARIAN REFOIZ3E 

Agrarian reform. Brazil recognizes the need for agrarian reform. 
There is a great deal of concern about agrarian reform but it is not 
generally equated with redistribution of land already under oultiva
tion. Instead the emphasist-as been on relocation and colonization. The 
Trans-Amazonica Highway is an example of resettlement.
 

Senator CnmRni-. Let me ask you this
 
Mr. ETus. Yes, sir.
 
Senator Cn-Ron (continuing). In connection with the new land to 

be settled, has lhe government adopted a land policy that would assure 
that settlers could move on to and develop and own their own land, that 
is to assure that the new settlement won't soon fall into the same pat
tern as the old land ownership in the settled parts of the country.

Mr. ELUs. Well, I think more accurately they are-trying to develop 
such a policy, Mr. Chairman. 

As you can imagine this is an extraordinarily complex job, much 
more difficult than colonizing, say, our Mississippi Valley. The physi
cal problems are difficult. The capacity of the people involved is far 
lower, their health and education standards, so that without a com
prehensive program of education, agricultural technology, credit 
health services, marketing facilities, and so on, they will just be simply
shifting subsistence farming from one area to another part of the 
country.

You can hardly exaggerate the importance and difficulty of this 
dnd of social engineering. 

Senator Cn-wo. You will remember that in the settlement of the 
West here in the United States, Government policy was to attract 
settlers by making the.metals and the minerals available to those who 
located them. That is simply a policy, I suppose, of what you might 
call finders keepers, and the lure of gold brought many people West. 

The second and more important inducement was making the land 
available for settlement through the fomestead Act, and the Desert 
Land Entry Act, and other policies of that dud. Is there anything 
comparable to that going on in Brazil? 
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Mr. E LLs. Writh reference to ,the Amazonica project which is far 
and wa;y the largest, there will be cleartitle given to 240 acres, a 
100 hectares- I don't know about mineral rights. At least.on the draw
ing board, the programs to provide comprehensiv&.services for these 
people are being worked on. Most of the controversy over the 
project-

Senator COuion. I don't know whether you can answer this ques
tion, but one of the staff'here has suggested that I ask you. IThat in 
general is the diflerence in costs between brealng up existing farms 
and bringing ne* land into condition for cultivation ? 

TMr. ELLIS, I don't thihk I could answer that. There ae areas m 
the sugar zone in the northeast, for examle, that are not in cultfiva
tion that are right in the urban food -sheds, so obviously the problem
in this case is hot economic. There are other factors involved. If I had 
to generalize on it I would-fliere would be many areas in which 
redistribution would be a more economical process.

Just a few -weeks ago the Government announced a decree on agi
cultural credit, and ,a share of that credit, I forget the amount, 'ut 
a sizable.amount, is-to be used fbr long-term money tor land purchases
to allow the marketplace to effect th& redistribution from the larger 
to the smaller farmers. This I would consid:er a very intelligent way 
of stimulating redistribution. 

TAXA'TION 

Senator Qilunon. Insofar as the redistribution of wealth within 
Brazil is concerned, is taxation -the major reliance of the bresent 
goyernment?. 

M11r. ELLIS. No-well if there is 'such a 'thing as a strategy for a 
redistribution of wealth I would say it was to'achieve -the highest
possible overall, growth rates, and second, to,broaden, the' educational 
structure so that a larger segment of the population can participte
in this growth. I think I would put taxation third on the list. 

Senator CGla . I see. 
Mr. ELLIS. Taxation, as I said earlier is becoming less regressive, it 

is becoming more progressive, but it is still not a significant factor 
among income groups. Among regions, or hetiveeu the south and the 
northeast,itishighly significant. A special tax incentive program for 
private ivestments, a 50-percent rebate on corporate income tax, has 
shifted over a billion dollars into the northeast since 1963, mostly in 
the latter years.

The northeast xeceives something like 175 percent of the general tax 
revenues that they p".This sort of thing occurs hithe United'States 
t6o. 

Senator Gamon. Yes. 
MT. ELLrs. But among income groups taxation is not significant. I 

would say education is the primary element in this strategy.' As I said 
earlier, what has occurred has been, what is occurring in Brazil, is 
the very rapid upward mobility into the middle class. Not among the 
very bottom groups inthe society, not theailliterate groups who remain 
on .the mirnmnm, wage or as subsistence farmers; they are kind of 
caught in what the economist calls a trap. But the second quartile of 
the population moving very rapidly into an organized economic en

http:least.on
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vionment such as large businesses, ,commercial farms, service indus
tries, and so on. Literacy is also a part of this picture. Illiteracy has 
dropped from 50 percent among adults in 1956, to 33 percent in 1970. 
I now have a'later figure than the one in the text-: There are over 1.4 
million people in %new literacy program which is -headed by a,well
known economist, Mario Simonsen, whom I suspect you have met. 

-HOUSING DEVrLOVIEN T 

Senator CHURcH. W1hat about the slum problem in major cities? 
Ias there been any perceptibleimprovement inthat? 

about Rio than the country as aMr. ETLls. I can tell you more 
whble. There has been a large reduction in the favelas in Rio and, a 
relocation of these people in the area. There are pros and cons of this 
policy, of course, but by and large the quality of the housing they have 
received and the other services, transportation to work for example, 
which has been a problem in the past, has improved. I think the gen
eral receptivity to thisis high. 

If you generalize about the question of housing, one of the most 
strikini institutional developments in Brazil has been the National 
UrbanIIousing Bank whiclf covers water and sewerage as well as 
housing. This bank didnb start until 1964, one of the many contribu
tions of Roberto Campos. It didn't really get started until about 1967. 
They have constructed over 600,000 housing units, mostly low cost, 
providing housing for 3.5 million people. Gross investments in hous
ing were over a billion dollars in this short period, mostly in the ]atter 
part of the period. And not just public housing, but stimulating a 
general system of private and public savings institutions. The Na
tional Housing Bank is not financed with fiscal sources 'but either 
social security contributions or private savings. Returning to the pre
vious question, 35,000 families, 28 percent of the favela dwellers in 
Rio, have been resettled. 

X'0rULATIrON INCREASE, T URBAN ATwAS 

I think one of the most troublesome problems in Brazil and flmost 
any country like Brazil-is .the rapid rate of urbanization, 

-Preliminary 1970 census figures are now in. The country is about 
55 percent urban.. Rural population is becoming pretty close to static. 
The increase in popplation is occurring almost entirely in the urban 
areas, at around 5 or 6 percent per year. If you look at a country 
with this, tremendous land availabilities and obvious potential for 
extensive agriculture, as opposed to most Asian cduntries, you can 
see this urban population going up to 80 and even 90 percent, asours 
is now in the nineties. And to provide what we, w.ould consider ade
quate housing and other urban services, water, sewage, and so on for 
this highly geographically mobile society would consume the entire 
investment or the entire available savings of the country in this one 
sector alone. 

Senator COincu . Is the government doing anything to discourage 
the migration to the cities other than attempting to open. up the 
hinterland? -



179
 

Mr. EmLis. That is one of the motivations for op6ning up the.hinter
land by Trans-Amazonica. People are studying this problem and are 
concerned about it. The presidefit of the National Housing Bank has 
written an extremely provocative paper, an alarming paper, about 
the consequences of not doing something about it, advocating empha
sis on the middle-sized city, cities up to 500,000. In the distribution 
of the resources of the National Housing Bank, he has attempted to 
skew the funds in favor of smaller cities which appear to have indus
trial or agricultural marketing potential and away from the large
cities such as Sao Paulo and Rio. 

The fastest growing cities are these medium sized cities. Rio, for 
example, is growing perhaps at most at 3 percent a year, which is 
about the national average, but the national urban average as some
thing more like 6 percent. There are many cities in the 250,000 to 
700,000 range which have been growing 6, 7 percent per Tear. It is 
completely beyond the capacity of any government at any level to 
cope with this. 

SIGNIFECANT EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMXENTS 

Education: I think what is going -on in education is the single most 
significant thing in Brazil, not only for economic reasons but for social. 
There has been a substantial expansion of enrollments since 1965; 
I consider the expansion in secondary education to be the most sig
nificant. Secondary education in a country such as Brazil is your
passport into the middle class, at least the upper middle class, and a 
child with the intellectual capacity denied the opportunity for lack 
of facilities has really been denied a chance to function in a modern 
society.

Brazilian expenditures on education have expanded significantly.
They are now over 3 percent of GNP, a larger share than expendi
tures on military, and. have expanded 11 percent in real terms per 
year since 1961. 

HEALTH AND NFLwATION rROBLEBM 

Health has not been one of the areas of greatest forward move
ment, with the exception of water and sewage which is handled by
the National Hoiusing Bank. 

Low-cost housing we have already mentioned. Slum relocation I 
mentioned. Maintenance of stable prices: The story on the Brazilian 
fight against inflation is -well known. From a peak rate of 140 percent
it finally got below 20 percent in 1970. The charter also stresses the 
need to bear in mind the necessity of maintaining an adequate rate of 
economic growth. The extraordinary feature of Brazil's fight against
inflation was that it was concurrent with a successful restorafion of 
a high growth rate. Latin American economic integration: The pic
ture is not-

Senator Cun. Even with this remarkably improved, record on 
inflation, how can ordinary people possibly save anything and have 
their savings mean anything when inflation is at a rate of 20 percent 
a year?

Mir. Emis. Mr. Chairman, one of the-as Mr. IHolt knows-one of 
the things that the Brazilians have been most ingenious at in the last 
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few years is developing devices for protecting themselves, against 
inflation. 

Let me mention a few. Annual adjustment of wages: Just the first 
of May the President announced am increase dn minimum wages of 20 
percent, xoughly 'equivalent to the previous year's inflation. This is 
taken now as an automatic thing. You don't have to~negotiate for it; 
it is.automatic. 

Mortgages tend to be pegged to prices, or to wages, which is even 
better. 

All financial instruments, I don't think there are .any major excep
tions now except equities, are pegged to inflation. For example the 
bonds of the Ntional Housing Bank carry 8 -percentplus-an adjust
ment for inflation, what is called, monetary correction. The, people
who are financially sophisticated, and this includes, almost everybody 
all the way down the list, know how to deal withthis. 

Senator CuoRn. On a long term loan, -let'ssay a mortgage, is, the 
repayment of the principal tied to the purchasing power of the 
money? Would you explain how that works? I -am rather intrigued 
on how they come to deal with this kind,of inflationary situation. 

Air. Elimfs. As an aside,, Mr. Chairman it is much easier for the 
Brazilian middle class to cope with inflation at 20 percent than it is 
for me to cope witirinflation at 6 percent. I 

The common arrangmeht on the mortgage -fora low-income group
is that the payment would be, say, 25 percent of salary, and as the 
minimum salary went up then your payments wbuld:,goup accordingly.

if, as the bank calculates the adjusted interest, there would be so 
much left to be applied 'to principal; this could .change the length, of 
time in which your mortgage was ,repaid'. 

For example, originally it might be calculated at 20.years but-might 
end up to be 25 years. 

Many people object to this. They feel they are getting into an open
end contract, and it is a disadvantage. But J think the other side,of 
the case, as a hedge against inflation more thanoffsets it. 

It is hard to explain this sometimes to illiteratepeople. 
-

Senator COnrcio. What happens to money that is deposited -i 
banks? Iow is the inflationary problem coped with there? 

Ir.Erms. Well, demand deposits of course do 'not pay ifiterest,
and- people tend to keep extremely 4ow balances, working balances. 
Savings accounts do pay a nominal rate of interest-so etimnes hot so 
nominal up to 8 percent-pins orrection for infltion. So the only 
type of money that is left pr is thedemad deposit for wqi'k0otecteding capital which of course tends to berolled over rttpidly. .

Senator OI cRH. Yes. Thank you.

a C0dO0 !N lGflATX0 A D C" MODITY STABIIZAsO 

Ingr. Eus. I think we are about to conclude. On Latin American 
integration, economic initegration, progress has been limited..Ilt shows some increase in -exports but as a percentage of the total it s 'not 
sgnficant. I thnk the fact of life s that you :have ittle economic 

complementarity among the various countries in Latin America. 
Lastly, commodity stabilization. Irthink df is worth mentioning

that Braiil has cooperated in, the coffee -agreement. Some-tim~e ago 
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they-made a rigorous effort to reduce their own production, to pre
vent the accumuhition of latge surpluses, and even though they have 
reduced their own dependence on coffee, and many Brazilians feel 
they can.live without the Coffee agreement,; they are concerned about 
the potential disruptive effect on other coiutries who are still heavily 
dependent on coffee.. I 

I think that concludes my summary, 'Mr.Chairman.I-t " (The gtatement'follows:) 

STATEMENT BY WILnrim A." m s, DRECTOE, UTSID BRAzn,, A3ND MINISTER FOR 
-EcoNoMio AFAins, A-MERICAN EMBASSY, BEFORE THE SnnonITTEE ON WEST

"BRN HEiMISPnERE AFFAIRS OF THE COMITTEE ON- FoREmGN RELATIONS, U.S. 
SENATE 

Trace the hitory of UnitedS tatesai program (economio and lechnical) ia.Brazil 
siadeWor)L '"VarII 

WORLD WAR.' TI- AND AFTERIM TH 

Institutefor Diter-AMnertcanAffairs, 
In 1042, inspired by wartime need for food and, raw materials and because 

of the strategic importance of the .country, the United States began its formal 
bilateral assistance relationships with Brazil. Under the leadership. of -Presi
dential Assistant fot iter-American Affairs, Nelson Rockefeller, the Institute 
for Inter-American Affairs (L..A) was formed and supported multi-million
dollar programs in 'minerals exploration, public health, rubber growing, and 
food production. I 

In the field of minerals exploration, geologists of the United States Geological 
Survey made surveys of Nforth- and,Northeast .resources of lead, zinC, talc, mag
nesite, barite, and other critical and strategic materials. A dozem USGS tech
nicianswere assigned-to -Brazilin-those years. 

A-wartime efforf to revive rubber .production in Brazil was p'rimarily directed 
to the Amazon region, with a lesser effort aimed towardthe Northeast. The food 
supply division of the .I.A A., in cooperation, with the Brazilian Government, 
established units to-aid in. the emergency foodprogram and in the lonk-term im
provement-of agriculture-and butritiol 

Contributions by the U.S. for I.I.A.A. activities 'in Brazil in the-Post-War 
Relief Period, 1946-1948,, totalled $8 6 .million. I.I.A.A. contribution through the 
remainder of the life of the 'Institute, 1049-151, amounted to $2 8 million. 

Beginning in 2942, the U.S was active in a cooperative program of industrial 
edication. A joint undertiking, known as the -3razilan-American Commission 
for Industrial Biducation (OBAI) w9s created to focus binational efforts on 
this critical sector of the Brazilian educational system. Over the years, 55 
Americans served in OBAI and a total of 156 Brazilian teachers and administra
tors of industrial education were trained in'the United States. 

In Iulj 1942, following a meeting of the foreign ministers of the American 
states, an agreement was signed between the Governments of fBrazil and the 
United States creating the Cooperative Health Services (SESP) to protect the 
health of U[.S. and Brazilian military and civilian personnel. United States con
cern stemmed from a memorandum to President Roosevelt written by Nelson 
Rockefeller pointing out the importance and value of setting up bilateral co
operative endeavors to strengthen various phases of the health and educational 
work of Latin American republics. 

United States contributions in the first three years were much greater than 
Brazirs; by 1945 the Brazilian share greatly exceeded that of the united' States 
Total United States-contributions to the joint health program were $16.8 million 
in the period 1042 to the phase-out of U.S. participation in 1960. 

U.hS..personne, at one time numbering 70 on-site, diminished in numbers as 
Brazilian expertise increased: A total of 200 U.S 'teobnicians served in Brazil in 
the eighteen-year period of U.S. cooperation. When U.S. assistance phased-out 
in 1960, there were more than 2,000'Brazilians trained and at work in SESP 
activities. SESP has provided a variety of in-service training courses for more 
than 12,000 people. In addition to a br6ad spectrum of-health services, campaigns 
against communicable diseases, and maternal and child health programs, SESP 

I 
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developed competence systems for statistical and medical laboratorial services. 
One of the best executed programs of SESP was in the area of sanitation facili
ties, where 131 public water systems were constructed in the 18-year period,
mostly in smaller communities of less than 2.500. 

1948-19499: Joint BraziZ/Unitei States Tech ica? Commission (Abbink
Mission) 

In 1947, discussions began between the Governments of Brazil and the United
States which lea to the establishment in 1948 of the Joint Brazil-United States
Technical Commission. The Commission was to analyze the factors in Brazil 
which were tending to promote or to retard the economic development of Brazil. 
It was to assess the capacity of Brazil for economic expansion through the maxi
mum use of internal resources. The Commission was not to undertake an appraisal
of the merits of specific projects or to evaluate the desirability of obtaining for
eign financing.

The United States delegation, headed by John Abbink, arrived in Brazil in
September 948, whereupon the Joint Commission was organized into a Central 
Commission and eleven subeommissions. The subcommissions, consisting of tech
nicians from both delegations, were each to study one of these subjects: agricul
tural and livestock development, banking, electric energy, fiscal problems, fishing
and fisheries, industrial development, labor and manpower, minerals, refrigera
tion and warehousing, and transportation.

The Joint Commission submitted its report to Presidents Truman and Dutra in
March 1940, The report identified four ways in which Brazil was to finance its
expenditures abroad for machinery and other capital goods and related services: 

1. Use available foreign exchange reserves and supplement those reserves 
by selling some of its gold.

2. Secure additional foreign exchange by increasing its exports, by pro
ducing in Brazil some articles then being imported, and by limiting the in
portation of non-essentials. 

3. Attract an increased inflow of foreign capital in the form of direct in
vestments by foreign companies or individuals. 

4. Provide a satisfactory basis for loans from foreignor international in
vesting institutions and other investors abroad. The World Bank and the
U.S. Export-Import Bank were cited as two institutions where interest in 
Brazil was already well defined. 

The principal policy, recommendations of the Joint Brazil-U.S. Technical Com
mission (Abbink/Bulhoes Mission) focused on the problems of inflation, balance
of-payments pressures, railroad rehabilitation, and tariff reform. 

1951-1953: Joznt Brazil/Unitez States Bconornic DOvelopmcnt Commis
sion (KnapplBohanMission) 

Under an agreement between the two countries signed in December 1950, a
Joint Brazil/U.S. Economic Development Commission was established which
operated until December 1953. The U.S. delegation Was headed first by J. Burke 
Knapp and then by Mervin L. Bohan. 

The Joint Economic Commission was created to provide a working mechanism 
to produce practical results In the area of economic cooperation between the two
countries. United States participation was based upon provisions of the Act of
International Development, popularly known as Point Four. Previous assess
ments of the problems of Brazil had demonstrated the pressing needs (a) for for
eign investment, (b) to correct deficiencies in basic sectors of the economy, and
(c) to promote conditions for further growth.

Those developmental needs and aspirations were seldom substantiated in con
crete, soundly worked-out projects which could be submitted fbr consideration of
financial institutions such as the Ex-Im Bank or the World Bank. 

The Joint Economic Commission was structured to provide technical assistance
within the purposes and provisions of Point Four so that Brazilian institutional 
technical competence could develop a flow of developmental loais from interna
tional or U.S. lending agencies which would, in turn, stimulatevrivate investment. 

The need for private capital was recognized by technicians of both governments.
But it was also clear that public loan capital was needed to overcome bottlenecks 
in basic sectors, such as transportation and power, without which opportunities
for private capital investment would be seriously impaired.

The ultimate aim of the Joint Economic Commission was to create conditions
for, and eliminate obstacles to, an increase of the flow of investment, public and
private, domestic and foreign, needed to promote economic development. 
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The Joint EMonomie Commission-was divided, into two sections: one,Brazilian, 
one American. Technical work was done in the subcommissitns established for 
that purpose. Six -subcommissions 'were, functional throughout the life of,the 
Joint Economic Commission: Electric Energy, Railway Transport, Water Trans
port, Agriculture, Ports, and Technical Assistance. 

The main responsibility for extension of loans and credits rested with the 
National Bank for Development (BNDE) which, was organized- during the, life 
of the Joint Economic Commission for that purpose. For financing 'of the for
eign currency components, the Irogram depended upon the World Bank ,and 
the Ex-Im Bankl 

The Joint Economic Commission transmitted all of its projects and recom
mendations to the Department of State, which was requested 'to ascertain 
whether the World fank or the Ex-Im Bank were willing to undertake nego
tiations. A total of 42 projects was submitted. There were IS railway projeets, 
9 power, 5 shipping, 3 agriculture, 3 ports, 2 highway, and 2 industrial proj
ects. The Ex-3m Bank-financed 25 ot'these. -

Besides its responsibility in framing an'investment" program involving rec
ommendations for loan financing, the Joint Economic Commission coordinated 
and supervised technical assistance activities conducted under the Point Four 
program. The technical assistance activities were directed in -some cases to 
complement the investment program in railway, highway, 'andT water transport. 

Bilateral Center Assistance 
The .bilateral, teehical cooperation program -began in 1951 under the. super

vision of the Joint Economic Commission. The United States spent about $2.8 
million annually over a seven-sear period-through 1957 and increasbd'its spend
ing substantially thereafter; reaching a peak oft$12.2 million in 1960. Over the 
decade, the Brdzilian Point'Four program cost $64 million,,about 40% of which 

fas obligated inthe last three years of,the'period. 
The programs of'the late 1940's in. public health, industrial vocational train

ing,and'i'minerals investigations continued and were -expafided during the earls 
part of the 1950's. Point'Four' began with a-eommitment tota-philosophy ,ofbal
anced programs, but establishment of a. comprehensive process.for deciding 
program priority was slow in developing. Priority was given to agricultural 
training through a bilateral Agriculture Service (ETA) created in 1953, and 
through a program of supervised rural credit (ABOAR). Late in the decade. 
technical assistance progtams in public and business administration were 
begun, as well' as programs in education, audio-visual techniques, and 'public 
safety. 

TheAZlianeeYears of theaSvties' 
Under the Alliance for Progress, Brazil benefitted from both increased' aid 

flows and' improved financig terms. AD. grants aid loans -With -low interest 
rates and long grace and amortization periods have accounted for about 60% 
of' the $2.1 billion in "U.S. economic ,assistance received by Brazil during FY 

-1061-70 
In the-decade, A I-.D., and to. a lesser ext~nt, the Ifiter-American -Development 

Bank (IDIS) have been'the majortsources of'foreign economic assistance. 
Although funds from th6 'j:S. program§ were only a small percentage of 

Brazilian domestic investment during the 1960's, they have made an Important 
contribution to growth. Assistance 'has gone into key areas, initially into eco
nrnnic infrastructure,,sucb as dams and highwaysand more recently into social 
infrastructure, such as education, and.health, where domestic and other avail
able foreign resources were inadequate. .The programs generated by this assist'
ance have helped focus attention on these crucial areas. Highway construction 
and maintenance programs have helped' open new areas~to the marcet economy, 
enabling farmers to ship food to urban areas more economidally and enlarge the 
market for industrial products in rural areas. U.S. assistance has also enabled 
Brazil to gain badly needed capital equipment and technical skills, which its 
balance-of-payments position did-not otherwise permit 
U.S. assistance strategy varied in the Alliance years, according o conditions 

in Brazil, which can be characterized as (a) the Quadros-Goulart Years, 1961
1964, (b) the Stabilization Years, 1964-6S; and (c) 'the Years of S6ctor Assist
ance, 1069-70. 

1.961-19611: The Quadros-Goidart Years 
From the outset of the Alliance until the Revolution of March 1964, the U.S. 

assistance program was adversely affected by the political turmoil which char
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,aeterized the Quadros and GoulartGovernments. In contrast tothe rapid indus
trialization and high growth, rates in the 1950's, the Brazilian economy ground
almost to a halt'in theearly 60's due largely to-ranpantiuflation and increasing
political instability. I 

Elected with 48% of the popular vote in October 1060, Tanio 'Quadros, Kubit
schek's successor, got off 'to an excellent start in, his domestic programs. He 
focused on fiscal responsibility and administrative reform. His comprehensive
anti-inflationary program earned the support of the MF and the 'U.S. Govern
ment. We took the lead in arranging a joint -multilateral program of external 
assistance to avert Brazilian financial collapse and to give him- time to carry
out his stabilization program. This consisted of a roll-over of hundreds of mil
lions of dollars.of foreign debt and the provision of impressive aifounts of new 
credits (see section on Loan 512-A-0061 iii Question 3a for details). Unfortunate
ly, Quadros' programs never got off the ground. After seven months in office, he 
sent his resignation to Congress and it was accepted.. ' 

'Quadros was succeeded by his vicepresident, Joao Goulart, who.took over in
the mids&t of great political turbulence and economic uncertainty marked by
rampant inflation and the threat of international insolvency. After renewed 
assurance of reform intentions, the U.S.moved to help with a new loan raising
the total immediately available to Goulart to $178:million. On the basis of further
elaboration.of stabilization plans, the famous Bell-Dantas agreement was reached
in early 1968 providink for another $398 5million of U.S. support for the Goulart 
Government. 

Unfortunantely, Goulart, for political reasons, failed to support the stabiliza
tion program upon whichiU.S.program loans and IMfP standby support were pred
icated. Further U.S..assistance-to .Brazil under. Goulart was limited to technical 
,assistance, PL-480 shiPments and certain -project loans. Our programs turned 
more to 'the states, and regions of Brazil. such as the drought-stricken. Northeast 
area where we signed a special agreement in 1962. The focus-of that $131-mil
lion -program was on- highway maintenance and construction, electric power,
health, Public administration and -education, with most of the assistance chan
neled through -SUDEN), the regional 'development agency. 

1964-1968:2'he StabilizationYears 
With the,Revouttibn of 1964, Brazil's grim economic prospects changed almost 

overnight. The newly appointed Ministers of Finance and Planning were given
a relatively free hand to- implement stabilization and administrative, reform 
programs.

Capital assistance support by the U.S. was extensive between 1964 and 196M. 
'Inaddition to large-scale program, lending, there were project loans for electrical
generating and distribution capacity, transportation, and, agricultural and in
dustrial credit, 

We assisted the Brazilian Government.in its reform plans in-the fields of agri
culture, education, housing, the tax -system, 'health; and governmental adminis
tration by means of the largest .technical cooperation program in Latin America.

In addition to loans-and technical cooperation, we used two-other development
tools in assistance to Brazil-Food for Peace-assistance (Title.I and II) totalled
$564.8 million-in 1962-70, and Investment Guaranties for new U.S. privateinvest
ment, covering the introduction of about $200 million in new techology or capital

into Brazil.,
 

1969-1970: Te Tears of Sector Assistance 
Political developments in December 1968 led to an e'tensive review of our 

programs and no new loans were authorized in Y 1969. A technical assistance 
,and Food for Peace program was continued as in the 196-1968 period.

Review of the economic performance of the Brazilian Government in the 1064
:1969 period has been, especially impressive, showing high and Increasing annual
growth rates in 1967,1968. and 109. These factors plus an -increase in Ex-Im
Bank lending, IMP standby agreements in the $7O-100 million range, IDB
lending levels at about $160 million per annum, and IDRtB levels expected to 
total $1 billion in the next five years have reduced. the need for bilateral con
cessional lending. A.T.I) loan assistance is now focused on a few selected sectors,
Le., education, agriculture, health, and new IA-ECOS0C proposals such as 
export promotion and apital market development. Bilateral lending in PY 1970
totalle '$75 million. Technical assistance grants continue to support the sane 
general objectives. 
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Vit&, r spectlo,eac ,rograi Zoan ,sho.o:.date,,amount,sihe eirCenZstanoos hn 
whick it was aw e;-its terjm amt eonditions, the~date&6? zbhiejeaelb trdnoea 
wastreleasedandtlheirczmntancesof jeadh release.Includehthcreiatiovahip, 
if any, to the-pofloies,of the-IAfFan OAP Give particauirattention to,the 
reviews, ifany; iubich took place prior to tile-release.of,eae1ktranche. 

The leads to b .'consferediinder.this query ae thefollowing: 

Amourt 
Date (millions) 

Loan Number. 
512-A-404 .................... ............ ....... .-.N. $74.5
. ...- .Nov. 20,1961 
612-K-010-------------------------------------------------- ------- --- Apr. 24,1963 25 5 
512-Kt-024------------ I ------------------ June 24,1964--------------------------------- 5020 
512-L-034----- Dee. 150.0.............-- -----------------------..----------------- 14,,1964

512-k-055 -------------------- --------....-.................. ------ Feb. 10,1966 150.0
 
512-L-064----------- -- 1-1..---- ..---------------------- 100.0.....------- Mar. IL 1967' 
512-L-073 -- ----...................................... ....... ............ May 23, 1968 75.0 

The-seven A..D. "program" loanslisted above-fall into at-least two-and pos
sibly ,threadistinct,categories The first ,two loans were made aarelatively; small 
parts of two, major -U.S. efforts to Ahelp Brazilian governments avert economic 
collapse by 'supporting proposed .stabilization -and -financial ,reform, programs 
'The third'loan was an-emergency measureto meet a,.foreign-excbange crisis and 
the last four were designed -as primary -support .to a systematic Brazilian effort 
to stabilize and develop-theeConomy. Each, of the loans is discussed separately 
below.:, 

Loan No. 512-A-D04-745 Zlon -Novem;ber 20, 1961 
Terms: 40 years-0-year grace period---% .of. .% nterest.bn disbursed, por

tion of ldan. , - ' , 
Tranche release dates: '11/20/61, 1/11/62 antl 4/19/62, Originally for $100 

million. Reduced to $74 . million at time disbursements suspended Balance of 
$25 5million reauthorized as Loan No-512-K-010. 

While Brazil had badperiodie balknce-of--payments andrinflationary crises in 
the past, economic and financial difficulties reached new highs duringthexegimes 
of Presidents Quadros-'and,'Goulart '(1061-1964-5 The -first of these occhrred in 
early 19t. At that -time, 'the U.S. took a strong lead in arranging.a joint multi
lateral program of external assistance. ifitended-to. avert Brazilian, financial col
lapse hnd give-the n6w Quadros Administration time to carry out -a program, of 
filiancial stabiliation. In May 1961,' the-c6nclusion of blateralfinancmial begoti
ations culminated in T.S agreement'to provide'new',ereditsoto Brazil amounting 
to $338 millionof new money.-Of.this total 'Treasury.-was4o provide $70 million, 
A:ID$100 million, and Ex-Im Bank-$168 milllorn Itwas also-agreed.to postpone 
to later years -principal-repayments to -the:Ex-Im Bank ,amounting to.-$304 mil
lion. These consisted of (4) $212 million.of payments due ihtthe periodTune191 
through July 1967 -of' piyments dus undei previously established, balance-of
payment loans and (2) $92'million-of paynents under project credits-due'in tbd 
period Tune 1961 through, June 1963. All the payments deferred, were rescheduled 
over a 20-year period. - - I 

The IMF, in order to assist in.-tte Brazilian stabilization program, annoneed 
on May -1-7, 1061, that-it had-pntered into a one-year standby-arrangemeiit under 
which it woulil proVide the Brazilian Goernminent with an equivalent of $160 
million. Payments-to be made to the Fund-against previousdrawings totaling the 
equivalent of $140 milton would also be rescheduled. 
Brazilian negotiations, with a group of New York banks resnlfe&in the exten

sion ,of-the -repaymentschedule-for $114 million -in-priheipal due in the next few 
years, as well'as-in the-_ranting of additional credits of $48 million. 

Representatives of the-Goternments of -Belgium, France, West Germany, the 
UK, Italy, the Netherlands, Sweden and Switzerland concluded, negotiations in 
Paris on May 24, 1961, with a Brazilian financial mission. European cooperation
in the Brazilian stabilizatiof-prograni included the consolidation of refinancing 
over a period of ten years (subject to extension) of about $800 million in obliga
tibns falling due by the end of 1065. Credits amounting to $110 million were 
negotiated by Brazil with private European banks. 

Although the Brazilian Government made no written commitments, U.S. and 
European help was extended with the understanding that the Brazilian-authbri
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ties would follow a.program aimed at financial stability, which,,was embodied 
inits agreementwith,the IALF." 
, Implementation of the May 1901 agreement was delayed until completion of 
Congressional action on the AID. appropriation (a ,part of the-original under
standing) and*until the details of other credit transferarrangements could be 
worked out. During this period it became increasingly clear that the Quadros 
Administration was either unablb or unwilling to take th6 restraint measureq 
agreed upon and no disbursements had been made at the time of President Quad
ro' sudden resignation August 25, 1961. 

The new regime of President Goulart found itselflin the midst of a raging in
flation at the border of international insolvency. After renewed assurances of 
reform intentions, the US. moved swiftly to provide helj. The release offifty 
,million dollars concurrent with the signing of Loan No. 512-A-004 on Novem
ber 20, 161,'brought the total of new U.S. -assistance to the Goulart Government 
to $178 million. The first loans under the iay agreement were -released on Sep
tember 7, 1961. 

.The 1-1F was also concerfied about the faltering Brazilian stabilization pro
gram and informed the-Goulart Government that the current $60-million draw
down on its standby agreement was the last until a new agreement could be 
reached after -further consultations. The Brazilian, Government was at first re
luctant to invite further IMF consultation; -but just prior to the releaseof the 
second tranche of Loan No. 512-A-004, Brazilian/IMF consultations wTere ar
ranged. The release was made on January 11, 1062, in the amount of $15 million. 

No further releases were made 'under the loan until April 19, 1002, when 
the last ti-anche release for $9.5 million was made. This was a pait of a $8 
million release from the $129' million balance of the May 1961' understandings. 
The April 19 action was taken after Brazilian Minister of Finance Moreira 
Salles had held intensive discussions with the IMV and U.S.- agencies about 
stabilization plans of his government during a visit to Washington in March 
of':1962. Despite the high-hopes expressed by all participants at the time of the 
release, financial, reform remained unrealized and no further A.I.D. program
loans 'werdmade-until April of 1963. 

Loan No. 50-H-010--$25.5 Milion-Apri$24; 1968 
Terms: 40 years--l-year grace period-% of '1% intereston disbursed por

tion of'loan. 
Tranche, release date: 4/24/63. While carried-as 'a,separate, loan and derived 

from a later year's contingency fund, this loan can also be considered as the 
final release of tbe May 196k understanding. 

By the ,beginning of 1968, Brazil was still in deep financial trouble. In -March 
190S,new-'Finance Minister Dantas headed a MXission to the U:S. to seek sub
stantial assistance in,support-of Brazil's highly publicized Three-Year Economic 
Development 1Plan. After,lengthy negotiations, the Bell-Dantas agreement was 
reached, on March 25, 1963, ,under which $898.5,milllon-waseto be made-available 
by theUS. to the Brazilian Government gearedto ,the implementation, of an 
effective economicstabilization program, the general terms of which .were out
lined inan exchange of letters (available on request)-. The-ass uption was made 
that, Brazil, would also be ,able,to-obtain- financla-help from European. financial 
sources&. Dantas statedin-his Jetter that negotiations-would-be held'shortly with 
the IMP for a standby arrangement and that the 1MF hadagreedto a deferral of 
a $206.5 million payment obligatqn -which was otherwise due in-March 1963. 

tt;alsoq stated that the, Brazilian Government hoped to ,negotiate with European 
sources and, Japan for a credit of up, to $100' million; including reactivation of 
the $77 mnillion Which was.pot used Onderthe; European standby.credits negoti
ated in 1961. - " . 

The Bell-Dantas agreement included -provisions for Ex-Tm Bank refindng of 
debt repayments of $44.5,million falling'due between JnAe 1, 1063,$andMay 81, 
1964. It also provided that tbe~remaining $85 millioiir=sx- m $8'3 millioj.,Treas
ury $25.5 million, ,and A.I.D._425.5 .million-of the May 1961 package be part 
of the $89&5 million and le, released immediately. It was actially released in 
April 1963. 

Shortly after the, Bel/Dantas exchange of lettefs the GOB: agreedto a 70% 
wage, increaseq*for,,ggrernlmen employe.es; was unable to conthid other ,govern
ment expenditures; could not ,reduce-the -treasury cash deficit; add could not 
make significant trides to tmplement the .program uion which further.release 
o~f i-S. program -loan funds was predicated. lFurheg U.S. Assistance to Brazil 
under the- Goulart regime!was linited,.tptechnical assisnahce,PL-SO shimelts, 
and a few project ldns. 

http:employe.es


Loaiffc. 512l-4i-24 -50 MiZlion-.Tune 24, 1964 
Terns :'40-yeasa-"-IO-year giace:period-/ of I% interest during giace period 

and'2% thereafter ondislbirsed portipn of thke loan. I 
'Tranche release'date: June 23"1964, the date of-signing. 

'The- April "Re~blution" of 1964 'brought the installation of General Castello 
Branco as President. -The distinguished economist, Roberto Campos, was named 
Minister of' Planning anid a determined ahd effective governmental efforh to stabi
lize and reestablish the ' ecofidtions or further economic growth was begun. 
While the U.S. wa anxious to help, its experience with the Quadros-and Goulart 
regimes bad suggested caution in accepting, expressed' intentions in lieu of actual 
performance in the financial ahd economic field. -Onlyafttr'the Castello Branco 
Government had actually begun its long series of highly successful reforms was 
the first contingency loan for finan4ng the procurement of essential commodities 
made. 

Loan No. 512--L--084-$150 MfA -Io,--Decembwr14, 1964 
Terms: 40 years--10-y6ar grace period-Ie% interest on disbursed portion of 

loan during grace period and -2 % thereafter. 
Tranche release dates: December 1964, June 1965, October 1905, and Decem

ber 1965. 
The Castello Branco Government atacked with determination and vigor -the 

continuing stabilization, and development problems that had faced its predeces
sors. On September 5, 19364, we officially took note of this difference in approach 
to economic problems. In replying to a letter from Pres'ident Castello Branco, 
President ohnson'noted that: 

We aie joined in .(the) struggle l'the Alliance for Progress. The charter 
of Punta del Este was not only a commitment, but a challenge to achieve 
that historic mission. 

"We in the United States bave been heartened-and I believe the whole 
Hemisphere looks to the future with more optimism-because of the vigorous 
manner in Which your Government has accepted this challenge. We have 
followed with great interest the initial efforts of your Government to re
verse the serious economic deterioration which confronted yon when you 
took office, and to step firmly forward on the road to economic prosperity 
and well-being. We know that decisive action in the economic life of Brazil 
can and must come only from the Brazilian Government and people: But I 
Want to assure you; as you press forward on constructive programs for the 
welfare of Brazil, that my country stands ready to give its sincere support 
through the Alliance for Progress."

The economic plans of the GOB were presented to ClAP in October 19G4. 
These plans were-subsequently published in, two volumes under the title, A Pro
grain,of Action. On December 7, 193, the Brazilian Government indicated its 
stabilization and development plans for the coming year in a letter to CrAP 
(Int&american Committee on the, Alliance for Progress). Shortly thereafter, on 
December' 14, .1964, Loan Agreement No. 512-L-034 was signed. In addition to 
otherrequirements,,-the loan :specifically noted that the' GOB had described its 
"specific policies ,jnd goals of the action program in a letter to the chairman 
of CIAP" and that the A.I.D. program loan wasbeing made in support of the 
Brazilian action -programn Specific provision was made in ,the loan for -joint 
quarterly reviews-of progress.made under the action program. $52.2 million was 
reelased at the timeiof loan signature. The first- quarterly, review -was com
pleted during the period May 24 through May 29, 1965, and performance being 
agreed to have-beensatisfactory, the second tranche of the loan, $325 ,million. 
was-released in June 1905. Similiarly, the second.quarterly review wascompleted 
on September 28, 1965, with the third tranebe release, $32.5, million, being made 
in .October. The-lourth and, final $32 5 ,million tranche release took place on 
December 14, 1965. after the completion of a satisfactory fourth quarterly reyiew 
on December 13, 1965. 
Loan No. 512-)2-055--$150Milon--ebruary10, 1966 

Terms: 40 years--10-year grace, period-1%/ interest on disbursed portion of 
loan during grace period and 2 01 thereafter. 

Tranche release dates,: March 1966, August 1960, October 1966, and Febru
ary 1967. -

Brazilian progress during 1935 bad been impressive. The annual rate of in
flation was reduced from above 90% to less than 50%. The Gross National Prod



not increased. The Federal deficit was held to-levels estimated in the December 
1964 letter to CLAP and in general the broad stabilization and economic de
velopment program set forth in Brazil's, action program marched steadily 
forward. On December 20, 1965, the GOB addressed a letter to CLAP indicating" 
its intention to continue its planned program and setting fbrth various specific 
accomplishment targets which it hoped.o reach in.the course of theyear. Loan 
512-L-055 agreed to lenff $150 million in support of thist.program for develop
ment, stabilization and reform as described in the December'20 CLAP letter. 

Prior to release of the first tranche of the new program loan signed on Feb
ruary 10, 1966, there was a joint review with Braziian authorities of economic 
-progress during the fourth quarter of 1965 (complete't March 8, 19066). The first 
tranche of $45 million was released at this time. The second quarterly review 
covering economic performance during the.flrst quarter of 1960 was completed on 
July 80, and the release of the second $45 mnilli6n tranche followed on August 10. 
Similar reviews for ensuing quarters were completed in late September and Jan
uary with the third tranche of $30Jmillion being released in October of 1960 and. 
the final $30 million tranche in February~of 1967. As in the prior year, Brazil's 
1966 negotiations with the IMF for a standby proceeded smoothly. 
Loan No. 51--L-064--$100 Mifion---arck11, 2967 

Terms: 40 years-10;year grace period-1%/ interest on disbursed portion of 
loan during grace period'and2 % thereafter. 

Tranche release dates: July 1967, February 1968, and May 1068. 
The negotiation of the 1967 programloan proceeded along the same'lines as th& 

two that bad preceded'it. In February, the Brazilian Government informed 'he 
chairman of ClAP of details of its continuing economic develophment plan and on 
March 11, 1967, Loan 512-L-064 was signed. On Alarch 15, Pxesident Costa e 
Silva replaced General Castello Branco as President of Brazil and a new Bra
zilian economic team headed by Finance Minister Delfim Neto took over the 
direction of Brazil's development program. 

The accomplishments of the Castello Branco Goyernment were indeed impres
sive. They included the reform of public administration, a return to economic 
stability with the putting of fBrazil's financial house in order, and liberalization 
of trade policy along with a revival of'the country's growth dynamism. 

The Costa e Silva Administration 'modified slightly the approach of the Gas
tello Branco Government toward the economic problems of the country. This in- 

volved a greater sensitivity toward de 'level of business'activity and a greater 
willingness to peimit'some delay in achieving stabilization goals,Af necessary, to 
avoid causing too high a cost in-terms of business recession and unemployment. 
Concurrently, an effort was made to stimulate greater private sector activity and 
encourage private investment. . The Costa e Silva Government had initial difficulties in applying its-new policy

and thd result was a rapid risein the Government's cash deficit and an increase of
 
inflationkry pressures. It took a period of time for the new Finance Minister to
 
develop a compensating expenditure-containment plan to gosalong with the stim
ulation to the private sector -required by the new 4overnmenta policy. Thus, 
there were slippages in the economic performance targets anticipated'if the CIAPI 
letter and 'as these were revealed in periodic joint peiformance reviews% there 
were delays in tranche releases. 

After the first 'review ,of economic'perfornance in April 1967, there were far
ther discussions of Governmental intentions through July when the first $25 
million tranohe of the 1967 program loan was released at the end of that month. 
There were no further releases during the balance of 1907 as the Costa -e Silva 
Government worked out more fully its proposed adjustments in its approach to 
economic, development. The second $25 million tranche was released in February
1968 and the remaining $50,million of the loan was released concurrently with 
the signing of the-new program loan for 1968 which took placein May of that 
year. 

Loan No. 512-1-073-15 Million-fap23, 1968 
Terms: 40 years-10-year grace period-29 interest on the disbursed portion 

of the loan during the grace periodiand .21/ % thereafter. 
Tranche release dates : March 1969 and November 1969. 
By late April when the annual OIAP review of economic performance took 

place, Brazilian authorities had further reconciled.their interest in stimulatlg
private sector development with'the need to continue firm stabilization policies 
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in such areas as credit restraint, reduction in governmental expenditures, ete. 
These intentions were once again spelled out in the May 2.Braziliau letter to the 
chairman of CIAP and this letter again formed the program basis for which 
A.I.D.agreed to lend up to $75 million for the dollar costs-of commodities and, 
commodity-related services required for the Brazilian program. When Loan 512

-078 was signed on May .g2 1968; the U.S. 'concurrently released the last $50 
million of the prior year's program loan. Early in-December, the U.S. concluded 
that -Brazilian performance under the loan met the agreed criteria and was at 
the point of authorizing a first release of $50 million when the Brazilian Govern
ment promulgated Institutional Act No. 5 suspending many of the traditional 
democratic,freedoms then enjoyed by the'Brazilian population. 

'Concerned about the implications of this action for the continued economic 
and--political stability of the country, the U.S. began an extended examination 
of the full gamut of its bilateral aid relations with Bra2il. This review wasnot 
concluded until March 1969, at which time6 the first tranche of the 1968 program 
loan was released. Brazil's economic development during- 1969 continued at a 
remarkable pace, given the political difficulties and changes tolvhicl_ the country 
was subjected. In November of that year, the last $25 million tranche, of the 
1968prograin loan was'released after the satisfaetory-completion of an economic 
performance review of October 15 of the same year. 

At the present time, Brazil is.completing a sixth year of almost.uninterrupted 
economic growth. Credit for this phenomenal success lies preponderantly with 
the Brazilians. Future historians may 'decide that U.S willingness to provide 
coneessional loans and technical assistance on a sustained basis was alsoim
portant to the Brazilian accomplishment. 

WITH RESPECT TO PROJECT LOANS, SHOW THE TOTAL OF SUCH LOANS, BROKEN DOWNBY YEAR AND BY 
WHETHER BORROWER WAS PEDERAL GOVERNMEINT, FEDERALLY OWNED ENTERPRISE, STATEORLOCAL GOVERN.-
MENT, OR GOVERNMENT-OWNED ENTERPRISE, OR PRIVATE ENTERPRISE; AND WHETHER OCLLARS OR 
CRUZEIROS 
 TOTAL LOANS " 
 -

+ Catendaryear DoUlars Cruzeiros- - CombIned 

1956 ------------------------------------------------- $14,529,6S3:32, $I4,529,653.32 1959---------- ----------------------------------"96-----------... .. . . .. . . . 227;451.76 ........................................
 
1962 ------------------------------------------------ : ..... .2,9BZ,669.95 24;321,167:19- 27;303,837.14
2 02 9 t881 1 9  1963------ ---------------------------------------- . . 20257947-96 49,2S7,829.15 
1964 ------------------------------------------------------- 10,619,051 76 87,674 5t5.34 196,293,617.30 

--- 51,397;5.74 
1966 ... 6OOO.00 3,672,360.9 4 69,272,360.94 
1965 -------------------------------------------------.-. 7s,845,410.22 130,743,O75:96 

1967:..--------..--------------------------------- -----. 50,17,000:0 2,%2;264736 ,52,949;26"6
1968: --.--------------- I----.........------------------- 10 ,700, 00.00 ........... _- tO;70o,000.O0

1969---------- - ----------- ------------ 65,2OO00.O --------------- 65,200,OOO.00 
1970 ---------------------------. ------------........15,400,000.00 -------------- i5400,00 ,00 

-Total---------------------------------------- 426,921,524.83 204,945,565.05 631,867,01.93 

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT- ...... .. 

'Caleday6ar Dolifs - Cfiirb "Cdfibed 

1956._----------- -------- ---------- - ------- ------$14 529; 653- 32- $14, 529,653:32
 
-1969-------------- --- ..................*
-:1959 ---------------------------- - ------ -- - ------------------------------- - --------

16..----- ........---------------------------------------...............
.
1962 ............. ........... ..... _"24,321,167.1!9 "24,8$21,1I67.19
 ............-........................:.-. ---

1963--------------- ---------------------- -18;551&r95.t 18r55lr395,9I 
1964 ------------------------------------------------------- '$40,309,043 69 60,553,602.67 100,852,646.36 
195---------------- _-----------------............................... 393,819 47 393;819.47
1956 .......... . . . . . . . . . . 3,672;360.94 5,072,360 94. -00.000.001 4O---
,1967. ..........- .................................. . 400,0 .------- 8,400,000.00
_, 0 ................ 


10,700.000.00
1968-------------------------.--------------- _---------- 10,700.OOO-0 _ .-----------
1969 ------------------------------------------------------- 37,800,_00 00 -------------- 37,800,000. 0 
1970 -------------.-----------------------. _-..-------..... 15,400,O0O.0 -------------- 15,400, 000.00 

1970 ............................................ 1..903.91262 6.026,3,041 
Total----------------------------------144,009,04&69 122022,000.50 23,031,1044.19 
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FEDERALLY OWNED' ENTERPRISES 

Calendaryear Dollars Cruzeiros Combined 

1959 .......................................................................................................
 
1962 .........................-------------- -----------.-------.............................---------------


1963----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
.......... 748,764.75
 

1965.. ............-------------------------------------- , 960,0005C00 _-.-.--........... 1,960,00O 00
 
1964 ----------------------- -------------------- $748,764'75 -.............. 


196K ---------------------------------------------------- - 13,175,000.00 -------------- 13,175,005.00 
1967 ---------------------------- 41, 917,000:00 41,917, 000. 00T.------------------------- --------------
1968 ---..................... ............. . ................................
 
10-------- -- - -----------------------------------

Total ---------------------------------------------- 57,800,764.75 ................ 57,800, 764.75 

- -'- ' STATE GOVERNMENTS 

Colendaryear -- Dollars Cruzetms ,Combined 

1956 ------------- I I-. .......... . . 

14959
499---- --------------------------------- ,5.5 $ -- 1----5 

1964-------------------------..M-- ----------------..------ =., -.............-,.9---
-1 .-----5§1962 ------- --------------------- 3--------54 . .... 63.5.1963 - jt-- - - --- ----- - -- - - - - -- - - - - -- , 1 3 . .. -,----------- ---196 . .. .. ....------------- - ------- - 2 ......... 

196 -----------Tt---- =------------ ---------- 204,0800, 000 2647,65m54-5,602 4,1. 400 ...................... 48?,800,000 ........ --- 9,14,5&.242
w..= :.................
1964... - ---------------

l16s--- ------sgt--------------------------------------------W--------------
9 - - - ollars Combined
-alendarear- . Cruzeiros 

19------------------ ----------------------------------- 7 6.....................
 

196................... ...........----------------------........
.----

-15----------- --------- ---------------------------------- -------------
195967 --------------1 ota ------------------- ... -- ... ... 000 . . . . 56. -- -- -- --....---- -- ...-- -- ... ----------- .... ... 481,0, 2.13.:...... 0953,674,35,353,675.56982,669,95....1962 -- .... --mm ... .......... 

1963 .. w....... _.----._-.-..7,6.4,.....9 -..-- . 9
196-----...... .... ........... :........ ..-------------------------------------------.. ... . ....
•1964 ................................................ .....................
00 _------- 42 ,.0... 
1976.......... .. . .. .. .w.---............-- -- - - ...... . . . .. "
 

Total -- ------ ---............. 26,91,110.44 23,953,675.56 50,244,786'05

- 2, - % 
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PRIVATE ENTERPRISES 

Calendar year Dolrars Cruzeios Combined 

1956.. . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . .. . . .
. . . . 5.. . .. . . ... . . . . . .
 

1959 ............................ .......-.......... $227,451.76 ----- - $227 451.76
 
--- ---- ---- -- --- - - - -- -- - .. - -- -- ---- ..
 11911 - - --- ---- - ---- -- ----- -- ---- .. .. .. .. --.. . ---- --.... .. -- ... .. .. .. ...
 
! 2 ..............................................
... ......................... .........................
 

19963 _ -........................21,415. 001.70 --------
........... ......... -------- 21,415,'001.70
 
1994 ....-................. .......-........ . . 12,192, 62.32 $7,429, 939.22 19,622; 67l:54,
 
19 5..........- -- ._....- ...- . 41,097,343.68 1,295:474.17 42,392,l18o85
 

---------------- 14,300,0 0.00 _-_-----.. 14, C00,0O0.01966 ----- I------- -----
19978 2,592,64. 36 2,592264,86 

... ..... .... ..... ..... ! -------......................................
 
1969 .1..........................._!----.......... ;---------------------------------------------------
1970------ .. .. . . . . . .............................---Y - -.. ---- - - ..---

198 ....... ..... ..... .... -----


. ..............- -- - '_- - -....... "
 

Total .....................................-----......... 89,*732,479.46', 11,117,782.75, !01,050,28,21
 

, 'PRIVATE AND GOVERrNtrENTM~ OWNFRSHIP '(M IXED) 

Calendarnyear ; Dotlurs CUzeirs Comlbined 
1968 .... 

1959...........M........... .......................................... ............--.................
 

.......... ...............
................
......... ---------------------------- :
1961----------------- __ 


-: -- 
1965 ............... _. . I..................................--- 11,488, 126. 54 11,489, 126.54 

. - .. . - - - - ----------- 35,175,00.0.. -1964.. .. .. --.. .. - - - --.. .. . ---------- ....... O0 .O -. . .- . ..--

W ................ 


1966 .................. I........--- --- ---- l622%009 00 ............... 6,,228,000
---...... ---- _--- 

t9- - - - - -- -......................................- - - . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..._ . . . .._ .
- -- - ..........-- - --- . . .
19-9 7... 2740,00.00 
1970.. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .... .. . .. .. --.. .. - - - .. .. - - - - .. -----.. .. . .. . . .. .. - ..- .. -------


,Tota ......... ..... ---......... 9(1,288 ,J26.54 ----.............!h J90,288,126.54
..... ..... .. ---.. 


The range of interest rates,and :maturities for"each type of borrowver' follows: 

D3ollar Loqans--U1o2/_%10 years.
•Cruzeir.,o L~n- -470-0yas.. . . 
FederalyJObraed.nterpriseS' "",' 

Dollar l.oanE--1"o-6.-- yeas..= 

. Dollar Loan~s-%,%--3_ty-18-40 years."'Lo7s-0 %--0-40"years.1 r 9zeiro 51 -
Stato-twle4 " ". .4ter'r8,ea9 l"87 "." 

"" 7.. .2f""-'Ar-' ! .. :" .. 

Dollar Loan"--% %-l"-0years.
Cruzeiro Loans--%%-20-40 years I 

"=PrivateEnterprises .-CaDollar Lolns--lrs-8qr-7-40 years.
 

S CrUzeiro Loans-%0!o-5Y2%-20-40 years.
 
Mitced2 EnterpriseDollar Loans- %-6% 7-25 -years.--

Describe in detail the carr~nt.-andZ proposed (i,.e..flacal year 1970 .and 1971) 
sectorloan to BFrazil. 

Authoried-in 1970:.
 
1- Urb~an Sanltait 70aD
 

BdrroWr ii d 'ecuting-agen~y : tationaitl~"using Bank --BINH)-Authorized: May 15,645, 75 00.. 0J;0 

2lding4a 2AtOret0t2ter y4ears 0lfeargraca'eriod-.0 0drg 

tl~egrac wenoro e¢fter ._r" • 
'Includes loans where two-step proeedure ap~plies under which GOB _assumes~rfeDay

merit obligation to B.S. ,under.most len~ent toe permissible by AID. legislation In eff*r,
 
at the timo-loan-wai authorized, ,., d • , • - 1 1, , I ,I_ r
e wade GOB bandngsytem for exclusive use of pbrvate sectow--Includes loans to 

http:J90,288,126.54
http:2740,00.00
http:11,117,782.75
http:89,*732,479.46
http:1,295:474.17
http:21,415,'001.70
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I. Backgrorntd: Gastro-enterie diseases are the major communicable diseases 
affecting Brazil's populatiOli, and produce one of the highest death rates in the 
world among children under five Tears.,TheGoyernment of Brazil (GOB) recog
nizes that only through the continuous extension of water and sewerage serv
ice to an ever-increasing proportion of the population can the ddath and illness 
toll-of ,gastro-entrie diseases be sharply diminished. Health education, diagnosis 
and treatment activities are also required to fully combat the incidence and 
transmission of gastro-enteric diseases; however, the -provisiou of safe sanita
tion is, a basic precondition necessary tQ the effective control of these diseases 

Aa a follow-up of a technical assistance program which. extended over more 
than, 25 years, AID authorized a PL-480 loan in 1965 and a $15.4 million-loan 
in 1968' which'resulted in the -acceptance by the Brazilian Government of a 
"Loan Fl nd concept (to replace a paternalistic-and ineffective grant program) 
as the model for water and sewerage financing. Within this approach and with 
a large commitment of national resources ($300 million for a i en year period), 
the GOB Is providing municipalities with long term loans- for constructing
financiallyself-'supporting watersupply facilities. 

b. Purpose Due to a- shortage of resources, urban, centers in. the Northeast 
and in other poorer states of 'Brazil are unable to meet the minimum financing
contribution required by the BNHs Sanitation izifince System (SFS) (BNH 
83%%, Siates 371/%, Municipalities 26%) ;.this is especially true for sewerage 
system flnaning ,because of the prior debts assumed 'by many municipatl-water 
authorities in obtaining financihg for water systems. This situation adversely 
affects the demand for available BNH -funde, and prejudices the execution of 
l3razfl'Mnatiobal water sewerage programnin-the'poorer'states. 

The BNHt is -providing some special assistance to such municivalities for 
sanitation system financing (in the form of short term construction financing.), 
but cannot provide concessionab assistance over its normal 37- 2% contribution 
without diverting its resouircesi from th6 muhicipalities which can meet -the 
25% 'contribution-required by the SES. At the request-of the -BNH, AID an

-thoxized, 	 the loan to provide sjfecial.'financing assistance to -these poorer 
municipalities. 

,o. Description of Program AJD funds loaned to the BNH will be repassed
'at concessional terms (5 to 8%, 10 to 20years)'to poorervstates and municipali
ties to cover their investment short-falls. Criteria to determine the eligibility
of munfeipalities and states for- additionar assistance, were deieloped to- ensure 
'that the most needy received most favorable subloan terms. On~the basis of 
,these criteria, the BNE identified qver 100 mpnicipalibs, incllding te'apital
cities of' seven Northeast states, with, sewerdge-projeets whose costs.total about 
$200 million as potentially eligibIe for financing,over the next three yearsunder 
this type of program. However, to tkeep the -&ogram. within m'anagdable limits, 
the BNH1 and' USA-ID agreed on d "'00 miillion portion 6f the'three year pro
gram which will provide financing to, eligible. sewerage projeclton a f#st come, 
first served basis, with preference, given to, the seten. Nortbeast capital cities.' 
The Financial plan for the MD-assisted shilithtibn prog Ia{ ik as. follows, 

[in milons of 0s.: dlr)J 

W' - . , .. . 4 1 Percent 
Funding source ' '. , . Amodnt" ontrbutio 

--------------------- ------ 250' 25
 
Statelwtertnd and muhilpal_.'.- ....................... . .37.5 37W
 

Total__.... ........................................................ . ' 100 0 '100
 

AID loa .. . . . . . . . . . . . ..---------------------------

Up to $250,000 nay be used by the BNH to provide teehi),cal assi tnce and
 
tmaining to muicipalities in water and sewerage system mhaafgemeit and administration. 

AIlD funds will be used to finance local costs incured in construction of sewer
age -systems. Costs, of. engineering supervision, construction 'services and ma
'terials Will all be xelhibursABile to the BNH: by AID. No'imports are seen necessary
lor this project since materials needed are manufactured 'in Brazil... . 

'Capital cities: S lo Lir, *Teresina, Joio Pessoa, EReife,, Tortaleza,, Aracaju, ahc, 
- -" " Salvador.. ,, 
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The financial participation of AID in the~share-of state and municipal financ
ing for any ,one -project will vary depending on BNH assessment of needs. In 
the first instance the BNH will disburse the amounts chargeable to the AIlD. 
loan using its own funds, then,USAID will reimburse the BNfl-izrom the loan on 
a monthly basis. 

2. Rucation Sector 'Loan II1 
Amount: $50 million. 
Executing agency: Ministry of Education and Culture (MEG). 
Authorized: June 29, 1970. 
Terms: 40 years including a 10-year period with interest "at 2% during the 

grace period and 3% thereafter. 
a. Background: The Brazilian analysis of its primary-secondary system. as. 

reflected in the recently published priority plan for education (1970-8) describbs 
a system which is in serious need of improvement if it is to provide the trained 
middle level manpower and well prepared candidates for continued education 
needed for Brazil's social and economic development. The -plan points to a, need 
for greatly expanded enrollmehts, for improved teacher and,staff preparation, for 
new and more realistic curricula, for improved flow of students'through the sys
tem (high failure, repetition and drop-out rates exist), and,for improved' man
agement and administrative efficiency. 

These deficienies continue to exist despite prior and present efforts of the 
GOB. The Government program has resulted' in ,a rapid growth. of 'enrollment 
at all levels, but enrollments are still very low when compared with the appro
priate age group. Public expenditures in education have increased at'ah-avetage
annual rate of 11.2% since-1961, and education expenditures now represent-ap
proximately 8% of'the federal budget and 30 of the GNP. Improvemeift of' thd 
education system has'become a priority of the GOB whicb has deionstrated)'its
serious intent by supplying not only~greatly increased financial resources to ed
ucation, but algo by appointment of highly, competent individuals-to key posts in 
the Ministry of Education and Culture. 

In recognition of these needs and of the seriousness 'of purpose .with which 
the GOB addressed this sector, USAID, in 1968 authorized a $32 million loan 
(matched by an equal GOB contribution) to assist the Ministry of Education 
and Culture to expand and -improve the ,ginfisio level .program in -four states 
which had developed sound multi-year plans for this purpose. To permit more 
states to participate in this education improvement program and, in support of 
growing Brazilian experienceand competency, ,to assist in establishing a bioader 
scope of reform activity, USAID, in 1970 and at .the request of the GOB, au
thorized this second loan. 

b. Objectives: the primary purpose of theloan is to support a comprehensive 
programof qualitative and quantitative-improvement in primary-secondary eldu
cation while concomitantly strengthening the capacities of, the iHinistry of.Edu
cationiu d Culture.and the State Secretariats of Education to-pam and admin
ister broad-scale improvement programs. In support of ,this purpose the loan 
provides adequate technical ,assistance and also supports the development, at 
the federal level,-of a, ew .and well conceived financing mechanism which will 
provide financing ,to, states which. present.,viable improvement programs based 
on a thoroughi analysis of.thelreducationmneeds andg6als.

Morespecifically,,the program seeksto,: . 
(1) Improve the management and increase. the.efficieney of the primary

secondary system. 
(2) .Impiove the quality -of primary and secondary. eduation and. nake 

it more 'relevant in terms of Brazilian social and economic development 
requirements. 

(3) Expand the primary-secondary syste i t6 ea6 l _the' GOB to pro
vide such education to a .larger proportion of the appropriate.age group. 

a. ProgramDescrption.:The Ministry of Education.and Culture (MEC) will 
allocate (by loans and grants) financial and technical-assistance to participating 
states. Each -participating state, as-a condition tor dssistance, will analyze fully
its assets and deficiencies in the educational sector and.-set forti witl specificity 
a four-year ilan-otfnancial-investrment. 

The State Plan will be submitted to MEG which will evaluate such -plans in 
accord with, guidelines agreed ,upon by A.LfD. and ViEG. Each State Plan ap
proved will be utnced pursuant to terms set forth in a ME/State agreement
which will include policy, program and budget commitments necessary to the 



atainmknof prbgram goals. While tIe state -invstment program willt be multie 

year finandal,/commiitments in support-of thies6 programs -wllbe-limited to,one 
yeir. ruture year uaheing *ill be subject to the performance of the State in' 
exeenting the 2,IE/Stat6 In -estment Program andfullilling'its confmitments. 

Since qualitative improvement is an essential goal of this program, each state 
plan will encompass projects directed at six special programs, in addition to 
addressing quantitative system needs. These are: educational innovation and 
research, modernization of curriculum and methods, development of a manage
ment information system, provision of adequate instructional materials for stu
dents, and, teachers, teacher and staff training programs,, developument-of im
proved school design and equipment guidelines. Thus in each state, the pro, 
gram will result .inadditional students enrolling in new or remodIled facilities, 
following a 3Modernized curriculum, using adequate materials and, taught by. 
well prepared teachers. 

Thus the.major financial components of state investment programs will be: 
(1)- the construction, renovation and equipping of education facilities, (2) 
teacher and.staff traihing, (3), theprovision of textbook and other instructional 
materials, and (,4) technical assistance and staff support to specified state agen
eieszesponsible for the development of fundamental. and secondary education. 

Although the number of states to be assisted by this 'Progiram will not be de
termined, in advance, assistance will be limited to 8,states or'less. In addition, 
MEO may approvethe participation of additional states in limited portions of 
the program, such as,in one of the,six special programs directed- at qualitative 
imptovement.-

AID, fundswill .be utilized to.finance local currency costs of the program and 
dollar costs for U.S. technical assistance and for the traiitg of educators and 
education administrators in tbefu.S. Dollars utilized for local costs will be con
verted to cruzeiros, as needed for thelprogram. These eruzeiros will be repassed 
to the partieipating -states to pay contractors, suppliers otjtextbook8 anid. mate
rials of technicians which providegoods and services for the'investmoot programs. 

Atth orzeSLin 1971: 
1. Ritral Road (nsirneftion Program 
Amount: $26 million. 
Borrower andi executing dgency: Brazilian National Economic Development 

Bank (BNDE)'. 
Authorized: February 26, 1971. 
Terms 15 years including a 5-year grace period, with hiterest at 2% during the 

grace period and 3% thereafter, to be paid to the-Government of 'Brazil -(GOB) 
which will repay AID over 40 years including a 10-year grace period with interest 
at 20/ during the grace period'and 30% thereafter. 

a. Backgitouid: In Brazil agricultural production increases have historically 
been accomplishad by placng additional land in production. However, due to the 
fact that the new lands are distant from the markef, further gains in production 
can be inost'economically achieved thr6ugh more productive use of, land within 
the zone of influence of the existing transportation system. A serious limiting 
factor in attaining' this -objective is the. nadequate road system which exists in 
areas of agricultural potential. Such rural roads as exist in many such areas are 
mostly unimproved earth roads, usually passable only during'the dry'season. 

b. Objecties: The purpose of the loan isto assist the GOB'in the-furtherldevel
opment and institutidnalization of national'ruralfoad Ifuaneing program, respon
sive to state and local government initiative and needs, and to facilitate a closer 
coordination of federal and state transport planning by requiring states and 
municipalities to utilize economic and' engineering criteria similar to-those used 
in national transport planning. 

From an economic point of view, the purpose is to reduce the transportation 
costs and improve transportation reliability to distant farmers in selected agri
cultural areas, thereby stimulating increased production and providing lower 
priced inputs necessary to increased productivity. 

e. Description~of the Programt:The loan will finance a three-year program to 
assist state and local government agencies in financing the construction and im
provement of rural agricultural roads. The resources provided under the $25 
million AID loan combined with contribution of the BNDE-wil be loaned to state 
and municipal agencies to finance (-1) the construction of all-weather, two-lane, 
secondary roads linking agricultural communities 'to federal and state primary 
highway networks; (2) the improvement of existing earth roads which perform 
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thesamefunction to'all-weather'status.and, (8) ,the constructionlof economically
viable "penetration" roads into areas of high agricultural potential , 1....,, 
. AD'and BNDF.resourcestotalling US$50.million, will be used, to ftnance 60% 

of fhe total ,poject costs,, the xemaining, 40%, totalling 3 million, will be
financed.by the sub-borrowers. Jt is anticipated that under the $83 million Rural 
Road ionstruction Program approximately Oi0 'nles of all-weather rurai access 
roads will be constructed or improved throughout Brazil. 

The GOB and AID loan fands will be made available by the federat-governmilt
executing agency, the National Economic Development Bhnk (ENDE), to the 
state and local government -gencies on the basis of stibmitted project proposals
meeting eligible criteria mutually agreed upon by the mh3DD and USAID. The 
eligibility criteria. for th subloan, program will encompass: (1) the technical 
standards,tobe followed by the sub-boriowers-for the construction -nd improve
ment of the loan financed roads, (2) the financial requirements of the subloan 
program and (3) the economic methodologies to be used by the sub-borrowers (o:
their consultants) in analyzing and selecting rural road projects for financing
under the program. The National Highway Department (DNER) will assist the 
ENDE in reviewing the project proposals to assure consistency with DNER en
ginering 'standards and specifications and with national transportation plans.
The B DE will evaluate the economic, financial and technical feasibility of the 
projects and approve financing for the individual projects. Each project approved
under-the Rural Road Construction Program will be supported by economic and 
technical studies prepared in accordance with the criteria and guidelines ds
tablished by the BND1U and AID. For approved projects, the sub-borrowers will 
finance 40%-of the total project costs, the iemaining.60% will.be financed equally
by the BNDE and AID. AID dollars will -beconverted, intocruzeiros and will be 
disbursed,monthly (on a pari-passu basis-with BNDE, funds) against evidence 
of work done by contractors in c6dsfructing rural roads. 

2. rortheastAgricultureMarletina: 
Amount: $15 million. 
Borrower and executing agent: Brazilian National Economic Development

Bank (BNDE). 
Authdrized : February 26,19T1.
Terms: 20 years including a 5 year grace period, with interest at 2%-during

the grace period and 3% thereafter, to be baid to the Government 'of Brazil 
(GQB) which will repay A.I.D. over 40 years, including a ten year grace period
with interest at 2% during the grace period-and '8% thereafter. 

a. Backgroid:Except for Isolated areas, such-as Sio Paulo, the existing food 
distribution system'in Brazil is largely -ntiquated and inefficient. Most farm 
production in the North and North 'ast is carried to collection centers manually 
or on pack mules and sold to intermediaries who generally sell to truckers for 
shipment to urban centers. Practically ail of perishable produce entering the 
urban centers pass through old public wholesale market facilities, where spoilage
losses are high, vehicular and human traffic is congested, operating scale is small 
and health conditions are sub-standard. 

While modernization is needed at all levels of the distribution channel, the 
most urgent bottleneck is poor wholesale facilities",for perishable products. For 
that reason the GOB Ts responding to requests of many state and municipal gov
ernments to provide assistance for the construction of modern facilities. 

&. ObJicttes: The objective of the loan is to, ptovide financial and technical 
assistance to the GOB-in creating a well structured, and efficiently managed agri
ofiltural marketing system'to improve the marketing and distribution of food in 
the North and-Northeast. 

a. Desciptionf The AID loan will-assist-in financing a portion, i.e., the North 
and Northeast, of the GOB's national program of constructing, equipping and 
operating wholesale and,wholesale/retail food markets in the urbaincenters and 
produce assembly markets in major interior food collection points. The total cost 
of the program is $40 million; AID wilfinance $14,million, the B1\rnfE $14 million, 
and' the states $12 milion. $1 'million of'the $15 million loan will be used by the 
Ministry of Agriculture for training and!technical assistance. 

Ten wholesale and wholesale/retail markets will be built in the larger urban 
centers, and nine rural produce assembly markets will-be constructed in interior 
cities. Part of the operating-system of the markets includes a market/price news 
service and a produce classification and grading program. Technical assistance 
financing will be provided for training and equipment for-these activities, as well 
as for guidance and training in the creation, organization and management of 

http:iemaining.60
http:financed.by


wholesale food market, operations, wholesale/retail: food marketing, and rural/
urban marketing integration. 

The BND"Wil faake subloans to mixed economy companieswhich will con
struct, own and operate the -markets, and to the Brazilian Food Supply Company
(COBAL) which will make an equity investment in the operating companies. 

. ileotrioPower Training angL TeoltniciZ Assi&tance 
Amount: $2.5 million. 
Borrower and executing agency: ELETBOBRAS. 
Authorized: March 12, 1971. 
Terms: 20 years, including a 5 year grace period, at 6% interest, to be paid to 

the Government of Brazil (GOB), whlich will repay AID over 40 years, including 
a 10 year grace period, at 2% interest during the grace period and S% thereafter. 

a. Backgrouna: The Brazilian Government has assigned priority to the power 
sector to make up previous deficiencies in power supply and t6 meetlthe continuing
and 6xpanding demands of the economy for electric energy. The GOB plans to 
invest Cr$14 billion (approximately $2.8 billion) between 1969-1978 to satisfy
this demand. In order to carry .out this large program and: manage the enlarged. 
system, Brazil needs to utilize the latest technology and managerial methods. 
The progras covered by this loan is designed to supply these methods and'to 
buildhi Brazil the institutions capable of continuing participation in this transfer 
of technology. 

b. Purpose: 
(1) To develop the capabilities of Brazilian universities to provide graduate.

level training Tn powersystem englneerihg'and electric utility management; and 
- 3(2) To -provide for the transfer of US technology aid managerial expertise to 

the Brazilian power industry in specialized areas of management, engineering, 
and operations. 

o. Description: 
The loan will finance: 

Sixteen man-years of services by U.S. engineering professors gho will,
assist in establishing graduate engineering programs at two Brazilian 
universities. 

'Two man-years of services by a U.S. professor to establish an electric 
utility management course in a Brazilian university.

Short-term training in U.S. utilities of 210 Brazilian engineers (average
trainingperiod of 3 months).

Eighteen man-years, over a 3-year period, of the services of U.S. power 
- engineers-and technicians to-assist Brazilian power, companies in improving 

Power-company operations. 
Proposed Loans (for fiscaL year 1971' or fisoaZ jer 1972) 

1. GapitaZ Market Development 
Amount: $15 million. 
flxecuting agency- Central Bank, National Development Bank, (-BNDB) and 

National Savings,Bank (Caix Econmica). 
a. Baokgrynn .: Industrialgrowth and development depends to a large extent 

on the availability of industrial financing on reasonable terms. In Brazil, the 
problem 'of,.providing sufficient reliable financing, especially, long-term financing
has been a-c0nstantcoucern since the beginning of the Alliance for Progress.- In 
the early Dbase of our assistance in this area, the GOB and AID followed the 
approach of repassing official funds and AID loans through a.system of inter
mediate credit institutions. These funds ,were primarily channelled through
Brazil's National Development Bank ('ENDE) an&the Bank of Brazil (BOB)
and repassed, through regional development banks and the commercial banking 
system to ,support industry's working capital and -expansion needs. This assist
ance had little effect on the development of the local capital markets, and on the 
generation, of local savings. 'To the extent intermediate-credit wag.not ,sufficient.
Brazilian industry was- forced, particularly during, the, pre-1964 inflationary
period, to rely on expensive short term credit-and on retained earnings to finance 
its expansion plans. In more recent years, with,inflation having been -gradually
reduced, conditions have 'become more favorable for the creation of a capital
market capable of Kttendcng to the financing needs of Brazilian industry. 

b. Objective: The objective of the program is to accelerate the development of 
Brazil's capital market, so as to enable it to'perform its function of providing 
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long-term equity and debt financing to ,Brazilian industry. Specifically, the pro
gramn is expected to:;, 

(1) channel private savings into industrial financing by encouraging the 
public to purchase existing and newly introduced long-term corporate finan
eing instruments, 

,(2) strengthen the institutional framework of Brazil's capital markets,
particularly the Anancial intermediaries ,charged with -the underwriting 
function. 

(3)- encourage existing, ]as well as n:6w industrial firms, to resort to the 
capital markets to meet their long term financial needs, thereby broadening
the base of the existing market, and' increasing' the extent of public owner
ship of such firms. 

a.- Description: A $50 million rotating Capital Market Development Fund 
(FI JACAP) will be-established within the Central Bank, to be iepassed by the 

National Development Bank (BNDE) and the National Savings Bank (Caixa
Econonica) to qualified underwriters. FUfMOAP will be capitalized by-the AID 
loan ($12.5 million), a World Bankt loan now under negotiation ($12.5), and a 
matching .contribution of $25 million from the GOB. In addition, the AID loan 
will. include $2.5 million of technical assistance to Brazilian institutions involved 
in training and research for the capital markets, including the Central Bank 
divisioi charged with regulation of this field. 

FIUMCAP *ill be managed by a high level tripartite committee, with represenr
tatives of the Cebitral Bank, BNDE and Cairs Economica, which will provide
overall policy directionand periodic review of its operations. F-WAICAP'funds will 
be administered by the BNDE and Caixa -Ecnomica which will repass 'the funds 
to qualified underwriters. The 'latter will -utilize the credits to finance under
writings of hidustrlal shares (preferred-and common stock) or debentures (bonds, 
or -convertible debentures). Lines of credit to the investment banks will not ex
ceed. 70o of the value of an issue, with the underwriter supplying a minimum 
of 10% from its own resources ad financing or arranging to finance the remain
ing 20% of the issue. These credits will enable the underwriters to finance the 
placement of corporate instruments-in, the market, and at the same time make a 
firm and reasonable offer to the issuing cbiioration for its securities. A manual 
containing special regulations on disclosure, distribution and trading will be is
sued which will apply to corporations and underwriters utilizing F-UtIAP. ' 

2. Supervised Agricultural Credit On the Nortlea~t
 
Amount: $25 mlton. I
 
Executing agency : The Development Bank of the Northeast (-8NB,).
d, Background: While the ratio of agricultural credit to gross agricultural

product (GAP) is low'in comparison to more developed countries, geographic
regions in Brazil have hiftorically received ashare of agricultutal credit.roughly
eyivalent to their contribhti6n 'to "gross!agricultural broduct In 1069, how
ever, the Northeast GAP was approximately 25% of the nation's total, -yetthis 
region's share of agriculturircfedit was only 14%. While-agricultural credit is 
inadequate in all of Brazil the shortage is more severe, in he-'Northeastt The
major reasons for'ithis disparity: &Lre the lowbr return per, unit of credit in the 
Northeast, and-Ihe, limited technicalhcapacity o1 the ortheasternfarm popula
tion to economicallylabsorb-dredit. Both of, theetactors emphasize the need for 
a stronger supervised credit system. Given the fact that the Government'has 
given -mphasis, toagriculture and is-allocatingadditional resources, for agricul
tural credit in -theNortbast, conditionsrre-appropriatefor AX.D. assistance. 

b.-Obhjetives: To increase the flow of' credit to' Northeastern agriculture and 
at 'the'same time strengthen the supervised credit system through providing a 
lliAkage between credit and extension services; and through integrating the ex
tension ervice with research activity. The ultimate objective will be to increase 
productivity with resulting 'real income increases to both Northeast farmers-and 
consumers. 

c. Description:Loan funds will -be -repassedtlthroughthe BNB's 68 branches to 
farmers which are commercial or have, the potential of. becoming commercial 
farmers. Approval of loans wil-be conditioned -upon approval of farm plans by
the State extension agents, who will provide applicants with technical advice 
in selecting commodities, and in the selection and application of farm inputs.

To increase extension agent coverage, 2% of loan charges will be paid to the
State extension services to assist them in covering the cost of hiring and train
ing additional agents, 
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To provide a concentration of,effort, -theprogram willibe limited to;35 sele ted, 
regions which are characterized by agricultural potential and access, to. ma
kets and. farm inputs.., - .., -. -

The emphasis ot the financing, will, be for.labor intenlsiv technoloy 'of seeds, 
fertilizers, pesticides, and on-farm storage. 

The interest rate -willbe subsidized by the Government of Brazil. xrekl terms, 
the interest,rate will be zero or perhaps slightly negative.. L 

In requesting the loan the Minister of Planning stated that the Government 
plans to-allocate in excess of an additional $100 .million in cruzeiro, equivyalent to 
agrfcrltnral credit in the Northeast over the nex.four years. The BNE stated 
that it would allocate an additional amount of credit equal to our loan during 
the three year disbursement period of the loan. 

3. Small and Medium IRuustry in the Northea&t 
Amount: $10 million. 
Executing agencies: The Development -fank df the Northeast (BNE) and 

the Superintendency for the Deyelopment of the -Northeast (SUDENE). 
a. Background: In 1961, recognizing the relative backwardness of the North

east, the Government of Brazil embarked on an aggressive industrial develop
ment program for the area. A Superintendency for the Development of the North
east (SUDENE) was created to organize this regional industrial initiative' 
through an innovative tax incentive 'scheme which allovs Brazilian corpora
tions to receive a tax credit for investments in Northeast industry. Since then 
most of the publicity in connection with SUDENE has focussed on the over 750 
large scale industrial projects that-have, brought over 1 billion of investment 
to the region. More.recently, however, thegovernmenth as begiiiiet recognize the 
potential contribution of the small and medium jindustry (SMIJ 'sector to the 
overall industrial development efe. Recenut studies have indicated that the 
SMI sector contributed approximately $5 percent of the regional industrial 
product and accounted for 38 percent of regional industrial employment in 
1969. Furthermore,. the capital to, labor ratio for small industry in the North
east is less than one-third of the ratio for large scale industry; a critical con 
sideration in a region where the number of lpersons added to the work.forceeach 
year farexceeds available new jobs. 

b. Objective: Given the present importince ahd future potential of the SiAI 
sector in the Northeast, the purpose of this $10 million loan is to increase the 
contribution of this sector to the overall developmentof the region, by improving 
the level of management and technol6gy employed in the sector and by making 
available medium'terni credit. 

c. Description.:The two principal agents of the program will be the-1DND-the 
regional development bank charteredin 1954and todayithe fourth, largest bank 
in Brazil-and the Small Industry Section of SUDIINE, working through its 
Industrial Assistance Nuclei (NAI) .in each of the ten 'Northeast states. These 
two organizations worked together 'in an original SMI program begun in 1967 
but discontinued in 1969 due to a shortage of funds. The ,original program re7 
sulted' in credits -totalling approximately $10.8 million under 459 separate con
tracts. The new program, proposed to, A.I.D. by the President of the BNB and 
strongly encouraged, by .SUDENR, would provide $28 million in credits, tech
nical assistance,, and budget -support The inacial portion- of the program, 
totalling $24 million with A;L.D. loaning $9.5 million ,and the BNB and. other 
Brazilian government agencies providing $14.5 milliol, -would be administered 
by the ENB with the individual state development banks operating as financial 
agents and'reviewing and approving the loanapplications froln small and-medium 
-sized industries; Loans ranging from $16,000 or less to a ceiling ,of $100,000 
would be considered and all loans would'require a detailed, proposal and in 
some cases a diagnostic and feasibility study. Technical assistance, administered 
through the NAIs, iiM each state, would be available to local entrepreneurs in 
preparing such proposals and studies: A total of $1 million ($500,000. from 
AID. and $500,000 from the BNB) 'of technical assistance 'uder the program 
will finance research in the SM! sectbr In the region and' provide training for 
the BNB and NAI administrators of the program. An additional $3.0. million 
would'be provided'the NAs, for budgetary support; this portion of the program 
would be contributed by SODENE ($2.0 million) and the Individual states 
($1 0 million), The $10 million A.I.D. loan would, consequently, stimulate a $298 
milli'ow regional effort in SMI sector. 



4 Grazduate,and T1eoker Educat2n2 ,Loan ., 

Amount: $20 Miion.. . 
Executing Agency: "Ministry of'Education'iand.Culture" ,(IEC) 
a.' ackgroundt'Recognizing seriousdefiiencies in the'system ofghigher educa

tion,'inchl ing graduate education, the Brazilian- government, in, 1968appointed 
a comhmission toprepare a University Reform Plan. -Thisaetion, was based on 
many generally recognized problems:' 1) enrollmentwas$,very limited -and conse-
quently few graduates were produced in proportion to need, 2) the -quality of 
instruction was Jn, need, of improvement,, 3) improyements in administration 
and organizationm were needed, 4) the system needed to buld-within itself its 
own regenerative capacity for producing the essential leadersbip for improving 
the total-education system, 5). the university needed to become, more directly 
related to the process of social and economic development being sought for the 
country. 0) the quantity of well prepared teaching and administrative staff 
needed-to be greatly increased. 

Most recommendations made by the commission have since become law and. 
are'in the processof, being-implemented. Among the-required reforms are: neor
ganization of university administration along more modern lines; reorganiza
tion of the teaching staff including the establishment of a standard rank struc
ture; provisions for upgrading teaching staffs by requiring new faculty to obtain 
advanced '(graduate) training; provision for more adequate salaries for pro
fessional personnel including incentives for full-time work. In addition the 
government has sought to ensure more- direct involvement of the university in 
meeting local, state and national needs related to social and economicdevelopment.

As part of' the'sectoral plan (1970-73) ,the Ministry of Education, and Culture 
has established a priority project which providestor the establishmentof new 
graduate* programs. The principal.purpose establishing such programs is to 
improve-the -preparation of teaching personnel for higher education and thereby 
toassure the continuation of the university reform movement.-By-improvinguni
versity course. offerings ,the program will,also improve the teaching preparation, 
provided for personnel'for secondary-educationand forthe teachers of the-normal 
schools who prepare elementary level-teachers 

'A recent decree has established 53Regional Centers for the development of, 
graduate education to coordinate and promote the development of graduate 
programs in fields considered pri6rity' for national developinent. USAID has 
been requested' by the 'GOB to assist in thisdevelopment and has -begun discus
sions leading toward a jointly agreed-upon Than program: 

b. Objective: The objective of -the'proposed loan-is to supporttthe sdengthening
df graduat lever education'in Braziltii-accordance with the Priority Plan for 
Education (1970-3) developed by the GOB. The programsexpected to expand 
and improve graduate level-education in the fields contidered priority for national 
development. More specifically the loan program will be directed at: 

(1) Strengthening education At'graduate'centers to increase the ability of 
these centers to regenerate teaching staff forthe nniversity system. 

(2) Improving the quality of existing university staff'and, concomitantly, 
increasing the annual produdtion of well qualified' university professors 
thereby strengthening the total university system. .1 

(3y Improving the-qualitative and quantitative output of professionals for 
-public and private services 

(4) Stimulating researchwithin Brazil. 
o. Description.:USAID loan funds, matched by an equal amount of GOB funds, 

*outd provide financing for: 
(1) Sebolarships to be made available to university teaching and admin

istrativeastaff and to' other key persons in the Brazilian-educational system 
for advanced' study in the U.S. or third countries reading to advanceil degrees 
or for post-dbctoral work in education and other fields determined to be 
of priority for the development of Brazil. 

(2) Technical assistance to be provided to the developing graduate centers 
to fill teaching positions in priority fields and to provide technical assistance 
in the development of graduate programs and courses, designing and organiz
ing the use of specialized laboratories; and developinginstructional materials 
relevant to the Brazilian context. 

(3) Materials and equipment needed for developing programs of advanced 
study and to provide facilities for advanced study and research. This would 
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include books, periodicals, and similar materials for libraries at the graduate 
centers. It would also include essential laboratory equipment.

It is expected -thatthe primary administrative responsibility for the program
will be assigned to the fDepartiment of University Affairs of M:EC. This Depart
ment, assisted by the Advisory Committee on Regional Graduate Centers, is ex-
Pected to determine te basic policies to be followed, the ,specific program areas 
to be assisted and the procedures to be followed by -the universities in applying 
for assistance. 
Describe tLe A.LD. -participanttrarnngprogrmI and sheo numbers of -artiic

pants, by Yields an training instiititions.How .has this ehangez over the 
last 10 jrears? 

Brazil's training program for a number of years has been A.I.f.'s largest.
The program is composed of several basic elements: long and short-term aca

demic training, in-service (or intern-like) programs, groups and individual visits
for observation and orientation, plus some combinations of the basic -programs.
Training is given to public officials from federal, regional, state and municipal
public agencies, and to persons from the private sector when their work is related 
tb the government-to-government program of A..D. in Brazil. In principle,trainees are brought to the U.S. after they have experienced the most senior level 
appropriate trainingavailable in Brazil,

In recent years, 92% of the training has been given to Brazilians here in the
United States and in combination with third countries in the hemisphere; 8%
of the Brazilian participants have received training exclusively in countries 
other than tbe United States. 

Most participants are chosen from agencies or organs of government where
there now are or have been A.I,D.-related programs. Participants are usually
chosen because of their leadership role at the time of their training, Some em
phasis, also, has been -given to Younger potential leaders where building a sym-
Pathetic knowledge and understanding of U.S. methods and goals along with
technical competence is considered beneficial to Brazil and to the United States.

Short-term programs can accommodate people who do not speak or understand
English. Such programs, requiring translation services provided by A.I.D., are
almost always group programs. Academic programs 'require a competence in 
English.

A.-D. costs are the dollar costs of training programs. Most international andall travel within Brazil related to the participants' program is :financed by the
Government of Brazil. Salaries of public officials are continued as a Brazilian 
Government expense during the period of training.

Assurance-of the future utilization of trainees following theirreturn to Brazil
is received on all participants as a part of their documentation. The Brazilian 
governments at every level have been particularly faithful to such promised
utilization of returned trainees. 

The roster of returned participants in l3razil includes Ministers of State,
several ministerial level advisors plus a great number of regional, state and
municipal leaders including mot less than -five of the current governors and more
than three dozen mayors of larger municipalities.

The AI.D. Office ot International Training (OIT) utilizes more than 400institutions in over a dozen technical fields here in the United States. Those
institutions or agencies include elements of our federal, state and local govern
ments; universities, business and civic groups, plus more than 4,000 groups and
agencies in most of the states of our nation which cooperate voluntarily with
the basic 400-plus institutions. A computerized print-out of Brazilian partici
pants at the end of February, 1971 shows 99 institutions offering training.

The Brazil training program, both in numbers of participants ai as a shareof the Latin America regional program, has increased in the past ten years. In
1061, Brazil's 340 participants were 18% of the regional total of 1,88G. In 1970,
the 972 Brazilians were 83% of the 2,924 participants trained from all Latin
American countries. A total of 6,120 were trained in the decade 

There has been a generalized consistency in focus on four areas of training
in the past ten years: Food and Agriculture, Education, Labor, and Public Ad
ministration, For the ten-year period, the total percentage of these four sectors 
was 65%. 

In the last two years, education has become the major category; in 1970, 30% 
of the participants wexe in that sector. 
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Signilicautrecent changes include: (1) creation of a special fund to train po
tential leaders not related to a pecfie AID project; (2) elimination of training 
at the undergraduate level with increased emphasis on graduate training in edu
cation, agricalture, economics, etc., (3) increased proportion of participants
financed by-loans instead of grants.

In FY 1972, the'Brazil participant prograii 'is.planned'at a -level. of 609' par
ticipants with emphasis on the four basic sectors of food and-agriculture, educa
tion, labor-and public administration at a cost of-$2:9 million-; 28% of the ALD. 
program budgeted for FY 1972. 

Table I 

BRAZIL PARTICIPANT TRAINING PROGRAM AS A PERWENT OF LATIN AMERICA PROGRAM 

LATIN A11MIgRA 'BRAZIL
-RAZIL ASTOTAL OF _RlA-%'r10,1
 

1961 J 18Q 340
 
1962 g 1975 iW> 12
 

3-295' - fl
 
19z64- -0. -51,8"
24o6 


196511 33137- 65 -19,
 
I 

I 4619o 2825 640 23.
 

1967 3566 918 .26
 

1968 3001 815 27
 

A28672809L1969
1970 2924 - 972 33 
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Table 2 

-014OPEaSOH OF T21 L1RGEST PA.RTICIPANT TRAINING PROGRAWIS IN LATIN AMERICA 
sHwIUGwRr431' OF:PARTICIPANTSt AND PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL NIJEBEROF 
PARTITOINTS FOR LATIN AMIFRICA RtGIOW DURING AIVE YEAR PERIOD 

Lio CorY Number of 6 68 196~hr: Participants36 :719616
 
I~Brazil '84 l 2 6 2-1
 

2i-' acnbia 990 65 

Vvenezueia 962 ~ 3 5f'5 8LJ 

%. Gtatcrala r c 16~L ~~L 6i 
6 jArgen~ina 731 3- 4ei4fl7n 6 

2 27 Bolivia. 460" 

a Chie 3 .38 2 3 
iB7 

9 Equador 1gj273 3 -2 2 I 

10 Costa,Rica io32 341 23 
Sub-total 
Lines 2 - 0 6022 4- ? 1 ,3 
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Table 3 

fAYS-OF PARap; n F2}I BA2 w0T13 ulu.D STr.= Afl IRlmUhflIEs omH- 2H8X tr .S. Bly flSCL imos 

196 1 6 1 2 2 2 1
 

2L 02 S 51 Z 0 3? 2 1
 

3n0 17 ;20 2.- 21L1;;9 7161 9 

1~ '28 p 72 C W £3 L3 53 f. 0 7 2 13
 

6_ji 7. [-1 29 2 5816 

16q j 28 1.2 1 M39 

29E! 1 o 3 I n : 5 5 

151 1 .7 

22 027a jL 24. jjLJ 2Emakn Z 9af8:3 1020 268 

Table 4 

2IS~0~~.R1 i-bS?~H?$r E a Q? S i S FUI MD 
t sf D..) r.)f 

; 22-I5 -) --

1 Ir
I 1z, Iu .i - - r 
24 LL rnis 10i10 1J3U1T j

3_ _ 1 1 I _ 

296ab 30 6 4jo 6 a- 1 2 h~ 

fl6 98 2 3 5 7 2 32

15 972 12 4 3. [ A 3 jao 31 

26 17 9 2,0!rErr 



m-,v Ba-,T TLLn'..'-mM= :204c Y71 -m Aa cxi 

L~~~ora M2i a-,-av 

296). 29 19. 9 5 31 

_qELLJ13 
>63 Lz36I~~u§2h Lo 

25t728 19 10 .'156 

-2L2 

1956 27 69J9J 

21 27 0 

L2 53 

1'67IL_ 

&21105 67 

1521j 

12 

n 24? 

6 

36 

I 6 I 1 6 

'Age-~lbi -i 5li'a 

3562 a7 94n7 L3f 7 '2 

W5 7 16 - -3 11t 

M7 51 23 

1161t~221 
:7 -93 20 

1n6 

1 

i 7 1 

22 

h1X3 
-6I 

-'1 -

~ I 
26 
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ATA&UOrnENT A 

U.S. INSTITUTIONS UTILIZED FOR ACADEMIC TRAINING BY PARTICIPANTS FUNDED 
DURING FISOAL -fABS 1969, 1970 AND 1971 

University of Arizona 
Ball State University 
Brooklyn Polytechnic Institute 
University of California 
University of California at Los Angeles
California Polytechnic Institute 
California State College
Carnegie Institute of Technology 
University of Chicago 
University of Cincinnati 
University of Colorado 
Colorado State College 
Columbia University
University of Connecticut 
Cornell University 
East Texas State University 
University of Florida 
Florida State University 
George Peabody College 
Georgia Institute of Technology
University of Georgia 
Georgetown University
Harvard University 
University of Hartford 
University of Houston 
University of Illinois 
Illinois Institute of Technology 
University of Iowa 
Iowa State University 
Johns Hopkins University 
University of Kansas 
Kansas State University 
Kent State University 
Lamar State University 
Loyola University 
University of Maine 
Marquette University 

University of -Michigan 
Michigan State University 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
University of Minnesota
Mississippi State University 
Montana State University 
University of Nebraska 
University of New Mexico 
New York University 
University of North Carolina 
North Carolina State University 
Northeastern University
Ohio University 
Ohio State University
Oklahoma State University 
University of Pennsylvania 
Pennsylvania State University 
University of Pittsburgh 
University of Puerto Rico 
Purdue University 
Rice Institute 
San Diego State University 
University of South Carolina 
University of Southern California 
University of South Florida 
Southern Ilinois University 
Stanford University
St. Louis University 
Syracuse University
University of Tennessee 
Texas A & M 
Tulane University 
Vanderbilt University 
University of Washington 
West Virginia University 
University of Wisconsin 
Williams College 
Yale University 

68-373 0-71-14
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ATTAC3MENT B
 

INSTITUTIONS THAT HAVE DEVELOPED AND/OR PRESENTED SPECIAL COURSES
 
ATTENDED, BY AID-SPONSORED BRAZILIAN PARTICIPANTS
 

1. Boulder, Colorado: Economics Institute 
2. Harvard University :'Tax Administration Program
 
3.. University ofCalifornia: Tax Administration Program
 
4. University of Connecticut: Data Processing Course 
5. Syracuse University: Administrative Management 
6. University of Pittsburgh: Administrative nagement
7. American, University': Applied Administrative Management Course 
8. Columbia :University: Teachers Program 
9. Loyola University: Development Seminar 

10. Tulane University: Development 'Seminar 
11. WilliamsCollege: Economic Development 
12. University of Houston: University Administration Reform 
13. New York Publishing Firms: Textbook Program 
14. Indiana University: ommunications Media 
15 Social Security Administration 
16., Civil Service, Commission 
17. U.S. Geological Service 
18. Internal Revenue Service: Tax Seminars 
19. Bureau of Reclamation 
20. Bureau of Customs 
21, Census Bureau 
22. Bureau Budget 
23. General Accounting Oice 
24. Pan American Union 
25. Tennessee Valley Authority 
26. Federal Aviation Office 
27. Treasury Department 
28. Bureau Public Roads 
29. Department of Agriculture 
80. Office of Education 
31. Veterans Administration 
32. Voice of America 
83. Brookings Institute 
34. Port Authority-NYC' 
35. Interamerican Development Bank 
36. International Police Academy 
37. Cooperatives Center-Univ. of Wisconsin 
88. Public 'Health Service 
39. I.A.G.S. .Cartographic School-Panama C.Z. 
40: National Health Institute 
41. Communicable Disease Control Center-Atlanta, Georgia: 
,Outlne the-stev witicfl Brazil hao taken to.comply with. the Charter af Punta 

deZ .&te 

In response to a 1968 request from the Committee on Governme it Opera
ions of the House of Representatives, the Agency for International Develop
ment undertook a study to determine whether the goals of the A]Lluce for 
Progress were realistic or attainable in. light of eight years' experieno' AID's 
review concluded that total accomplishment of the ,ambitious goals within the 
decade 1961-71 as contemplated in the Charter of Punta del Este was i ot pos
sible. Too much had been expected. too soon; nonetheless achievement hadi'been 
substantial.' 

Both generalizations hold true for Brazil: (1) The Alliance goals were un
realistic in the given time frame; (2) progress was substantial by 1968. Since 
then it has been exceptional in many areas. The reasons for this dramatic 
growth relate directly to policies and procedures advocated under the Alli
ance for Progress although it would bave-to be said, in all accuracy, that-Bra-

IHouse of Representahves, 91-st Congress, Ist Session. A Review of Alliance for Progress
Goals. a Reportby the Bureau for Latin America, Agency for International Development,
March 1919. 
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zilian development has at all times in the decade 1961-1971 been the product 
-of Brazilian planning, goat-setting, and implementation. Following the'-eco 

nomic and political debacles of 1961-1964, there has been harmony between 
Alliance and Brazilian goals (although the former were in the popular mind 
regarded mainly as U.S. exhortations). Because of this near-identity in goals, 
the elements-of Alliance provide useful terms of reference for a rapid survey of 
the means and-accomplishments of'Brazilian development. 

There %ere at least six factors on which this impressive rate of growth, was 
based: 

(d) Sound Diconomic Planningand PolicyDctermination 
An effective Ministry of Planning emerged after 'the Revolution of 1964, led 

by an internationally-known economist, Roberto Campos, who cooperhted 
closely with a distinguished Minister of Finance, Otavic Bulb6as. Their suc
cessors, Joio Paulo, dos Rels Veloso and' Delfim Nettd, respectively, have main
tained the high professional standard and 'a general continuity in policy. 
Macro-economic planning covers in broad 'terms Brazilian development,prior
ities over the next five years. Sector plans have been drawn up and are being 
followed in key areas such as education, hgriculture, highway construction, ship 
building, and steel expansion. These are basically self-help programs making 
maximum use of domestic resources although most of them include support from 
international lending institutions. Economic policy has been flexible and cre
ative, with basic reliance on the private sector and an open economy. 

The personnel for this strengthened planning and policy system have been 
trained in local institutions, frequently with post-graduate work in the U.S. 
Outstanding among Brazilian institutions producing economists for this effort 
'has been the Unijersity of' Sao Paulo which, under an AlD-Ford Foundation 
grant, has- availed itself of the professional assistance of Vanderbilt Zlniver
sity in the development of a graduate school of economics equal to any in Latin 
America. 

(P) MonetaryandFiscalStability 
Rate of Inflation: 1964 (Peak), 140 percent; 1970, 19.8 percent. 
Brazilian development strategy after 1964 was based on the two simultaneous 

goals of curbing inflation and restoring growth rates. It is -no ea~sy trick :to 
reconcile these two s6mewhat incompatable goals. But through a skillful, flexi
ble combination dt fiscal, monetary, wage and foreign exchange policies, Brazil 
has achieved one of the most impressive economic recoveries and growth surges 
in recent times. Brazil created an atmosphere in which meaningful, and co
herent natiozial development plans could be drawn up, domestic savings, and 
foreign capital attracted in support of these plans, and implementation moved 
forward under a free market economy relying largely on private enterprise. 

(8) Dynamic Private Rector 
Government policies sinca 1964 hafe been designed to encourage private initia

tive and at the same time reduce the protection andspecial privileges of ineffi
dient firms. The result has been a virtual managerial revolution. Tn 1964, the 
private sector was cautious, conservative, old-fashioned, and lacking in confi
dence. It is now among the most aggressive in the world and in a rapid process of 
technological and managerial modernization. 

(4) Tam CollectionsI 
Income Tax Pilers: 1968, 580,000; :1970, 7,700,000. 
Brazil has revolutionized its tax structure and,,widely expanded its revenue 

base since 1964. A recent 5IMF study ranks Brazil-first among 55 developing coun
tries in tax effort. In real.terms, federal tax revenues from all sources increased 
by 19% in 1969-and almost another 15% in 1970. The increase in income ta col
lections, regarded by the Brazilian press as "social justice in action," has cap
'tured -the-popular attention. The real increase in revenue from this source in 
1909 over 1968 was'44% and in.1970, afurther 28%. 

_(5) Mobilizing'DomesticResources 
In addition to the expansion of the tax base, Brazil developed a number of 

programs to attract domestic, private savings into the developme'5t prbeess. Two 
'striking examples of mobilization of private savings ,for basic development ob
jectives are the national housing program and industry expansion in the-impov
erished Northeast region. 
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Recently, a concerted effort to strengthen the Brazilian stock market has-sue
ceeded in converting it from a rather lethargic institution'to one of the world's 
more active. 

(6) ForeignAsistace 
On the basis of continually improved planning, increasingly competent pro

fessional talent and maximum self-help, Brazil has made good use of sizable 
amounts of foreign assistance. The large USAID bilateral program of the miid
1960's has been, phased down to a relatively small, concentrated effort on se
lected areas such as education, agriculture, and health. However, the-total level 
of foreign assistance remains as high, or higher, than in -thepast as the World 
Bank, the Inter-American Development Bank and the Export-Import Bank in
crease markedly their activities in the country. 

The developmental impact of these factors, operating together, has been.to pro
pel Brazil, with growing momentum along the path toward self-sustaining growth. 
Measured against the splcific objectives of the Charter of Punta del Este, the 
picture emerges as follows: 

a. Per Capfta Growt--The Alliance called for a per capita growth rate of 2.5 
per cent per year. Estimates of Brazil's performance based on a population in
crease of 2.8'per cent per year are: 
1961 7.6 1966 --------------- 2.4 
1962 ----------------------- 1. 9 1967 ----------------------- 1.,8 
1963 ---------------------- 0.9 1968 ----------------------- 5.7 
1964 ------------------------- 0 1969----------------------- 6.0 
1965 --------------------- 0. 5 1970 .----------------------- 6.5 
Note that in the last three years Brazil's growth-has been among the-highest in 
the world. 

b. More Equitable Income Distribution-HigherProportionof,National-Prod
aot -Devoted to Iveastmcnt--Icome Distribution-Amore _efficient tax system, 
resources transfers from the more prosperous south to the north of the country, 
job opportunities in industry and service trades, broader educational oppor
tunities, plus gradual improvement in agricultural productivity resulted in a 
considerable improvement in income distribution during the 1960's. See table 
below. Brazil, like other countries undergoing rapid change, still has a long way 
to go. However, President Medici is acutely conscious of the problem and has es
tablished a more equitable income distribution as one of his national goals. 

[in
percent] 

frcome group 1960 198 

Less than $00 -----------------------------------.----------------------------- 32 26 
$100 to ;200 -------------------------------------------------------------------- 12 13 
$200 to $500 -------------------------------------------------------------- 39 41 
$500to $!,000 ------------------------------------- ------- ----------- 5 7-
overoo.. . . . 13 13 

Total ------------------------------------------------------ -100 100 

Investment-Brazilstimulated investment by policies which-created an attrac
tive and stable climate for economic development. Savings were mobilized by 
offering correction for inflation on a periodic basis and tax rebates for invest
ment. The following figures indicate the recovery of Brazilian investment from 
the low point prior to the Revolution of 1964. 

Investment as a Percentageof GNP 

1960 ----------------------- 17.4 1965 ----------------------- 1-7.1 
1961 ----------------------- l.2 1966 ----------------------- 15. 3 
1962 ----------------------- .2 1967 ----------------------- 1.7 
196 ----------------------- 1. 3 1968 ----------------------- 18, 0 
1964 ----------------------- 16.2 1969 ----------------------- 18.5 

Estimates are that private investment was less than 50% of total investment 
during the period 1963-1965. Current estimates are that it has increased to, 
approximately 75% of total-investment. 
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c. Trade Diversiflcation.-Brazl has made a major effort to diversify, its 
economy, regionally as well as functionally. Tax incentives moved almost $830 
million dollars into industry in Brazil's underdeveloped Northeast area from 
19W5-1970. In addition, total federal expenditures in the Northeast exceeded 
receipts from that region by an average of 7W, in 1965-19G9. Incentives 'bave 
also been given to non-traditional fieldsof investment, suchoas fishing, forestry,
and tourism in an effort to broaden the economic base. 

The dollar value of Brazil's exports hits almost doubled since 1964 -and the 
pattern of exports also reflects the diversification, policy. In the early 1960's,
coffee represented over 50% of Brazil's export earnings; in 1970, 349o. New 
products for export were given incentives and procedures were simplified.
Periodic adjustments in the foreign exchange rate were introduced, insuring
that the exporter would receive a realistic return in cruzeiros for his foreign 
sales. 

'The table below highlights the shift in the export pattern from 196L to 1970. 

Exports and share of total exports (in millions of do[]ars) 

1961 Percent 1970 Percent 

Coffee --------------------------------------------
Manofectures- .......----------------------------

710 
66 

50 6 
4.7 

939 
307 

34.3 
13 

Total exports ---------------------------- 1,403 --------------- 2,739 

d. Industriaflzation.-The process of Industrialization in Brazil has far ex
ceeded the rate of growth of GNP,since 1066. Estimates'are that industrial out

put grew by an average of 12 percent since 1068. 
One of the faste.t growing inaustries in recent years has been petro-cheinicals

following promulgation of a formula on ownership between the private and 
public sectors In 1971, a steel expansion program. 'involving approximately $1 
billion was begun, aimed at quadrupling Brazilian steel Production (currently
about five milnon tons per year) by ±80. The Votld Bank and the -Export-
Import Bank are participating in the financing. 

e. Agrinulture.-Historically,Brazilian, industrialization took place at 'the ex
pense of agriculture, but efforts.are now underway to bring about a better bal
ance between these two sectors. Easier access to credit; strengthened research ;
fiscal incentives for agricultural investments; elimination ot taxes on tractors,
fertilizers, etc.; price -supports; incentives to cooperatives; an -expanding net
of farm-to-market roads, and improved storage and marketing facilities are lay
ig the foundation for a breakthrough in-agricultural productivity.

One major breakthrough has become apparent in wheat production. Not too 
long ago, Brazil- was considered unsuitable for wheat cultivation. New seed 
varieties have changed that conclusion in dramatic fashion-production in 1969/
70 (1,500,000 tons) represented an increase over the 1967/68 crop of 810 percent.

Elsewhere, the effect of the new atmosphere for agriculture is also showing
effect. In 1970, for example, overall consumption of fertilizer rose 29 percent to
2.a million tons; tractor sales reached 14,000 units, up from 9,500 in 1969; sale 
of' agricultural chemicals (insecticides, etc.) increased more than 18 times in 
1969 over 1967. 

The overall impact of the new Brazilirin emphsis on agriculture~was seen in 
an increase in production of from 6-8 percent in 1970, despite the second year of 
severe droughts in the Northeast. The-prospects for 1971 are equally good.

f. Agrarian Reform.-Brazil recognizes the need for agrarian reform but 
with thousands of square miles of empty land, does not generally equate it with 
redistribution of land already under cultivation. Instead, the emphasis has 
been on ielocation and coionization. Current plans envision the resettlement 
of 120,000 families (600,000 persons) from the overpopulated Northeast in fron
tier regions, such as along the Transamazon highway. This will be a massive 
challenge and require sizable investments to be sicee- stut. 

Another form of "reform" is Brazil's "Social Integration Program" for farm 
workers. Financed from a 2 percent tax on the first s~le of farm products, the 
program is designed to provide emergency medical care to rural participants,
financing disability pensions and cover retirement pensions at 6 based on one
half the highest minimum salary in any region of the country. The plan has 
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only been recently announced and a record of performance has not yet been 
established. 

g. Education(Adult Literacy) .- After a number of sporadic past efforts, Brazil 
began in 19 i0.a national campaign to reduce adult illiteracy, headed by one of the 
country's outstanding economists. The campaign has reportedly trained 400,000 
adults in the first six months of operations It is so far limiting its efforts to 
urban 	areas, but appears to be well-conceived, -administered and financed. 

EducationalModernzation.-Educationis considered by many observers to be 
Brazil's key bottleneck to more rapid development It has been treated by the 
Brazilian Government since 1968 as a top priority area for reform and invest
ment, and "action" programs are underway for major and often sweeping changes 
at all educational levelb: fundamental, secondary, technical and uni ersity. Quali
tative changes as well as quantitative expansion are involved In the new pro
grams, most of which have been underway a relatively short period of time. 

Some improvements have bad immediate effect, nonetheless, as may be seen 
from the increases in enrollment since t965: Elementary, +80 percent; Second
ary, +96 percent; University, -- 153 percent.

The expansion of secondary education is especially significant. A bottleneck in 
this area, which is rapidly being removed, has reduced entry into.the middle class,
generated social injustice, and created shortages of skilled manpower.

The costs of this modernization campaign have been sizable. In 1970, for exam
ple, the Brazilian Government alone invested in the neighborhood of $1,150,000,000
in education, Public expenditures have expanded over 11% annually in real terms 
since 1961. As a percentage of GNP, the present Government is investing about
65% more per year in this vital area than did pre-revolutionary governments.

A&.Realth.-Brazil's progress in relation to the health goals set out at Punta del 
Este has been slower than the forward movement in any other sector (with the
exception of Latin American economic integration, an area lying outside purely
Brazilian control).

While specific programs and campaigns have been mounted, inalaria control 
for example, and have been reasonably successful, much remains to be done. This 
situation is recognized by the Brazilian Government, and it has experimented
with a variety of approaches to the challenge. Indications are that it will con
tinue to try to improve on past performance.

An outstanding exception has been the public health work of .the National 
Housing Bank in its campaign to assist cities and towns in the construction of 
water and sewerage systems. Water-borne diseases are a major source of illness 
in Brazil, and modern sanitary systems will do much to reduce infant mortality
and adult disease complications.

The Bank's program is based on a shared-cost approach and will result in the 
creation, .for the first time in 'Brazil, of self-supporting water systems.

At the end of 1970 the Bank had signed contracts for sharing the construction 
financing of sanitation facilities in some 983 municipalities, of which about 300 
are already under construction for total project value of over $400,000,000. As of
the end.of 1970, over $40,000,000 had been disbursed by the Bank as its part of the 
financing. The projects now underway svill provide improved sanitation services 
to an estimated 31,000,000 persons.

Further, in 1970 the Bank published the National Sanitation Plan which pro
jects the extension of sanitation services to at least 80% of the population of

Brazil, or 03,000;000 persons, by 1980. For the period 1971 through 1973 alone,

the Bank proposes to invest $40,000,000 in water and sewerage systens. (USAID

has participated, with technical and capital assistance in this program as well as
 
in malaria control and disease research.)

i. Loi-Ooat RoU811g.-Remarkable progress was made in Brazil towards
achieving this 'Alliance goal following creation in August :1904 of the National 
Housing Bank (Banco Nacional da Eabithgo-BNH). On its creation theBNH 
was charged by the Brazilian Government with responsibility for attacking the 
problems of inadequate housing and sanitation services in population centers 
throughout Brazil. -

In 1966, to assist the BNH to accomplish these goals, the GOB replaced piece
meal federal budget allocations to the BNH with the massive resources of the 
national social security fund and by savings from the national .saving and loan 
system. This move allowed the BNH to attract private resources and pursue
non-inflationary investment programs in magnitudes needed to combat realisti
cally the deficits in housing and related services which had been developing even 
prior to World War 11, 
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The BNH, in addition to financial support, developed an organizational struc
ture and continuity of leadership over the years which has made it one of Brazil's 
soundest institutions in terms of competence and accomplishment. It functions 
with such success today that real hope exists that Brazil will eliminate its serious 
housing and sanitation inadequacies during the 1970's. 

Approximately 60%.of all BNH investments have gone for low-income or 'popu
lar" housing. -During,the six years of its existence over 600,000 housing units have 
been or are being constructed, about 129,000 during 1970 alone, benefitting a total 
of some 3,500,000 persons. When compared with the 127,000 housing units con
structed by the GO during the 25 years prior to 1064, the performance of the 
BNR becomes-apparent. According to BNH statistics, the capital mobilized inter
nally in Brazil through the various systems, to.achieve this construction level 
amounted to the equivalent of over $35,billion. Cumulative gross investments in 
housing by the BNH up to the end of 1970 amounted to over $1,000,000,000 (63%
of total BNH4nvestments for the period).

The savings and loan system, established in 1966, has grown to. include about 
1,300,000 members with accounts in 1970 amounting to over $760,000,000. The 
BNH supports the growth of'savings and loan companies-by guaranteeing finan
cial operations, investing for the system-and regulating its activities in the in
terest of the savers. Growth has been so great that during 1970, for the first 
time; the resources voluntarily mobilized under this system exceeded resources 
received by the BNH from Social Security deposits. 
- For the period 1971 through 1973 the BNH proposes to invest over $1.2 billion 
in an additional 644,000 housing units. 

Slum, Relocation Program.-Forthe past ten years the Brazilian Government 
has devoted increasing attention- to,the slum (favela) problems in major ,urban 
centers. The most dramatic favela relocation program undertaken and the, one 
which provided experience for initiating ethers elsewhere in Brazil has,been in 
the city of Rio de Janeiro. -By the end of 1970 this program resulted in the 
construction of some 35,000 housing units into which have been or are being
moved some 49 different favelas. The 35,000 families so far benefitting fromithis 
program-represent about 28% of the totalnumber of families.registered as living 
in-the faverns in and around Rio de Janeiro. 

j. Maintain Stable Prices-The Government which took over in March I64 
made the containment of inflation its primary economic policy target. Rapid 
progress was achieved, and the rate of inflation was reduced from-a -peak rate 
of around 140% per annum for a part of 1964 to about 28% in 1967. Since-then 
the improvement has been, more gradual, but in 1970 ,the-increase in the general
price level was held to less than 20% (19.8) for-the first time in a decade. 

Government budget deficits were probably the major source of inflation in the 
early 1960's; their gradual reduction, and now -virtual elimination, was-a major 
means of reducing inflationary pressure. Credit control was less restrictive; 
credit ,expansion was largely responsible'for generating, the degree of'inflation 
which didoccur., 

Brazil has built into its economic and financial structure certain devices to 
make the .econoiny viable in an inflationary situation. These devices.are prin
cipally designed to provide adjustments of capital values (such. as Treasury
bonds, business assets, mortgages; savings deposits, loan agreements etc.) by the 
amount .of the inflation which has occurred. Adjustments in wage contractsalso 
have reflected past and anticipated inflation. Although these devices are essen
tial from the standpoints of equity and incentives to save, they tend ,to slow 
down the reduction in the rate of inflation. 

The Charter also stresses the need to bear in mind-"the necessity of maintain
ing an adequate-rate of economic growth." The extraordinary feature oftflrazil's 
fight against inflation was that it was concurrent with a successful restoration 
of a high growth rate. 
k.-LatinAmerican Economic Inteqration.-IBecaiseof its large internal, mar

ket and an export pattern with little complementary with other Latin American 
countries Brazil in the 1960's showed only routine interest in the Latin America 
Free Trade Aremas a trading partner.

With diversification of exports accelerating and Brazilian manufactured goodg
becoming increasingly competitive, this situation may undergo some change in 
the 1970's. 
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BRAZILIAN TRADE WITH LAFTA 

[in millions of dullarsi 

Exports Imports
(FOB) (FOB) 

Year
1961 -------------------.................................... 97 118

1962 ----------------------------------------------------------------- 97 199
1963 -------. . . . . ..---------------------------------------------------------22180 
1964 ...................---------------------- ........................... 138 218
 
1965 ------------------.------------------------------------------------- 201 228 
1966 ..........................--------- _-------------_--- - 187 196
 
1967 ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 161 203
1968 .......................... ..................... 193 226
9-----------------------
1969--------..........------------------------........................... 254 242
 
1970 ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 293 238 

I. Conzodity Stabilization-As a signatory of the International Coffee
 
Agreement, Brazil has been highly responsible in reducing coffee production and
 
readjusting export quotas to help maintain relative stability in world markets,
 
Brazil has reduced its average productive capacity from around 37 million bags
 
in the early 1960's to about 22 million bags in 1971. Although Brazil has greatly
 
reduced its dependence on coffee, it recognizes its responsibility to prevent
 
serious economic disruption in smaller countries with less diversified exports.
 
What is the situation in Brazil vitk respect to U.S. and other private foreign


investment? How nwu7o and in tohat fields?
 
Brazil is one of the leading recipients of foreign investment in Latin America. 

U.S. investment in Brazil ranks seventh worldwide. In recent years Brazil has 
had the highest rate of increase in annual expenditures for plant and equipment
by foreign affiliates of U.S. corporations. By 1967, annual expenditures on these 
items in Brazil, through new investment and reinvestment, were larger than 
in any other country in Latin America, increasing to 35% of the regional total 
by 1969.

There is no up-to-date, reliable compilation of foreign investment in Brazil. 
Estimates vary widely, ranging from $3.2 billion to $4.6 billion by the end of 
1969. (The Embassy is inclined toward the lower 'end of this range.) At that 
point, total U.S investment was about $1.6 billion. Thus, depending on which 
estimate of total foreign investment is chosen, the U.S. share would vary be
tween one-third and one-half. 

The Central Bank is registering past foreign investment and so far has 
accounted for $1.7 billion. Five countries, the United States (48%), West Ger
many (10%), Canada (10%), the United Kingdom (6%) and Switzerland (6%), 
account for 80% of total registered foreign investment (including reinvestment)
in Brazil up to December 31, 1969. Since only about half of total foreign invest
ment has been registered, these percentages may not be an accurate indicator 
for the total. 

The sectors which have received the greatest share of foreign investment are 
the automobile industry (vehicles and vehicle parts) with 15.5%; electrical 
equipment 9.8% ; petroleum products 8.3%; basic chemical products 8.3%; food 
products 6.9%, rubber products 5 8% ; and energy 5.5%. 

US. investment in Brazil is heavily concentrated in manufacturing (70%)
and distributed fairly evenly among a number of subsectors. 

Most other foreign investors in Brazil have concentrated their holdings in 
one or a few subsectors of the economy. Thus Canada has 65.3% of its total 
investment in Brazil concentrated in the electrical energy sector, Germany has 
69% in the vehicle and parts sectors, England has 39% in petroleum products,
Belgium has 78.2% in chemical products, and flolland has 869 in electrical 
equipment. In contrast, the sector with the greatest concentration of U.S. invest
ment, the automobile industry, accounts for only 12.6% of total U.9. investment. 
The explanation for the greater diversification of U.S. investment in Brazil is 
that total investment of other countries in Brazil is small relative to U.S. invest
ment (which has nearly five times more investment than the next largest inves
tor), and one large investment in a particular sector such as Light for Canada, 
or Volkswagen for Germany, constitutes a predominant share of total investment 
by that country in Brazil. 
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The primary sector, consisting principally of agriculture, employs 46.7% of 
the active labor force, produces 18.0% of'GNP, and receives only 0.4% of total 
foreign inveetment. The secondary sector (Industry) which employs 13,6% of 
the labor force and produces 31.4% of GNP accounts for 87.7% of foreign invest
ment. The tertiary sector (services) accounts for 11.9% of foreign investment, 
while employing 39.7% of the labor force, and producing 50.6% of GNP. Within 
the secondary sector, manufacturing industries absorb the major share of foreign 
investment (81.2%). As would be expected, given ,the relative comparative ad
vantage of foreign firms, investment tends to be concentrated in those subsectors 
where there is greater opportunity to apply advanced technology. 

Within the major industrial subsectors, the automobile sector has grown the 
fastest (average annual rate of growth of 283% throughout the fifties and most 
of the sixties). It is this sector in which foreign investment has been most highly 
concentrated. 
WlIat is the attitude of the Brazilian Government, business community and 

public towardprivateforeign investment? 
While varying degrees of economic, nationalism and antiforeign investment 

sentiment may prevail in Brazil, foreign investments are generally welcomed 
and even encouraged via special fiscal incentives and government support where 
'they contribute to Brazil's priority objectives of export promotion and tech
nological modernization. 

While local business interests may prefer to avoid foreign competition and 
preserve Brazilian market 'potentials for themselves, pragmatic governmental 
leaders realize that local capital and know-bow are not sufficient to insure 
Brazil's, growth targets in many economic sectors. However, the GOB does 
attempt 'to strengthen the -competitive position of' local investors via, various 
economic and fiscal privileges. 

Among the public, there is a growing appreciation of the many benefits of 
foreign investments, especially' in creating much-needed job opportunities and in 
conserving and expanding Brazil's foreign exchange reserve. Such appreciation 
.and understanding, coupled with demonstrated success of the country's economic 
leadership, outweight any hostile nationalistic or left-leaning elements. The 
current economic boom in Brazil has lessened opposition to and fear of 
foreign competion. Three years ago, "denationalization of industry, i.e., domi
nance of foreign investment, was a major political issue; today it is almost 
completely dormant. 

, What is the currentrateol writing investment guarantees? 
The insurance coverage (by type of coverage) since the beginning of the guar

antee program in .1965and running through to the end of. the first quarter of 1971 
is as follows: 

tin milhons of dollars) 

Combined Pumber of 
(war and cont(acts 

Convert- Expropria- expropria- Actual or 
Year ibhlty tido War risk tioo) Total investment coverages I 

1965------------------ 2.3 1.9 2.0 ------ _. 6.2 1.3 4
196 ................. 22.1 1 0------------ 20:5 43.7 14.8 27
 
1967 ------------------ 56.8 31.5 4.2 14.3 11 8 51.9 28 
1968------.---------- 78.8 36.2 24.8 34 4 174.3 56.8, 37 
1969------------------ 51.4 15.5 21.3 29.0 118.5 43.4 30
1970............... 65 1, 14.1 14.1 50.0 143.3 45"1 35
 
19712 ................ 5.0 ----------------------- 5.0 ............ 2.5 4
 

INot number of actual projects covered, which is much less due to multiple counting; e.g., in the 1st quarter of.1971 
only I project was involved. 

J1st quarter only. 

The rate for the four years 1967-70 was relatively constant. Only one com
pany has been insured 'in 1971, but the time peiod may be too short to indicate 
a trend. 
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The :specfloguarantee issuer! in the 7ast year are detailed below. 

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING GUARANTIES'ISSED, LATIN AMERICA, SCHEDULE III 

, -

Country and investor -Number 

BRAZIL 

Gotes Rubber Co -------------------

D ....-- -----------------

Do ............................ 

,RO-Search, Inc --------------------
-

•Ford Motor 0o .............----


Do -------------
I 


Do ---- _----------------_ 

Vw:R:Grace& Co ------------------

.


,
. 

7110 AA 

710 DA 

7111 AD 

7116 AD 

7195AA 

7195 BA 

7195 CA 
- .

7234-AA" 
I I 


- , Do --- ... .... :.7234,AB'
12 

---------------- 7234 DA 

D-D 
' 

----------- 7234 6, 

,riineSafetyAppliancesCo ........... 7247AA 

S-

-Do ........-................. 7247 DA 
_"Octo"ef

7252 ADEclipse Fue Engineering Cc -----------
. .z-I ,I I 

Dow Chemical NV ................... 7279,A 

c oowCN -I -December1990 

Do ....................... 7279'DA 


-Do--- - .------------.......
.. .7302 DB 

pleips'Dodge Corp .................. 7310 AA: 

- b....... ..................... 731IAA 

'Do--- - ------------- 7310 DA 
DO_------------------------ 7311 DA 


Reductions Face 
Contracts of guaranty and cancel- amnunten

latwens, pay- suing year,
Issue date monte on standby Fees 
expiration Amount guaranty amount collected 

May 13,4970___ 940,678
May 1990 _-------........ 

May13, 1070.. 940,678
May 1990 -----
May 27. 1970... 100,Oo0 
May 1990 -------------------
May 26. 1970... 60,000 

May 1975-------... -----.. 

Aug 24, 1970.... 14,086,912 

August 1990................ 

Aug 24, 1970. 14,086,912

August,1990 .........-.... 

Aug'24, 1970... 14,086,912
August 1990-----------------
Aug 28, 1970.. 650,000 

, August 1982------------
Aug 28-1970 ... 381,000
August 1982--------------- --

-

Aug 28,1970---, 650,000 "5'0 

DOW C c. - .December,1970" ---.......... 


'August1932 ................ 

. Aug 28, 1970--- 381, 000 
August1982 ----------------
Oct 9,1970 . - 477,512' .. 
October.1990 ..l .......... 

Oct- 9, 1970......477,512 


1990 .

Oct 29: 1970. 50,000
Oclober,190 -----------------

Dec 23.1970z-- 5,500,000'-


............... 

Dec.23,1970__ 5,500,000 

DOW Chemical overseas CapitaliCorp. 7280,AB ,Dec. 23, 1970 5,500. 000I I-,- Dceibr 1970 ----------
Do -------------------- 7280DB 

-
Crucible Inc --- ----- ...72SIADi 

- 7302AA 

Do ................... 7302 AS 

Dow Chemical,'N.Y.. . _..-.-. 

Dec 23, I970___ 5,500,000 

December 1990.............. 

Nov. 12,1970--- 86000 

November 1990-------------

Dec. 31, 1970. 12,000,000 

December 1990---, .
 
Dec. 31, 1970-.. 4,390,000 

December 1990..-- -----

. 12,000,000"7302DA -'Dec, 31, 1970 
December-1990 -------------
Dc. 31,-970 ._ 4r390 , 000 
December 1990............. 

Jan 15, 1971_._,=1,400,000 


1 

... .. ..... .. ..... .. .. ... .. .. 


Jan.15,1971.... 1,10,000 0 
T... ...............
-----------.

Jan.15, 1971----2,800,000 ----------
Jan. 15,1971 ....2.200,000-----------

0 D 940.68
0 940, 678 .......
 
0 470,339 4,585.81 
0 470; 339 _........

0 10. 000 115.00
 
0 90, 000 ---------
0 6.000 69.00
 
0 54,000 --------
0 0 14,086.91
 
•0 14,086,912 .........
 
"0 12,20D,000 62,886:91
 
a 8,886, ..........
912 
0 3,900,000 29,686 91
0 10, 186,912 

-

'0 

0 
0' 

,0.

0 

0

0 
0 

0 
,0-


0 650.00 
650,000. ........ 

0 381.00 
381.0C0........
 
650,000 "5,587.50 
. , -.-........
 

381, 000 3,333.;75 
0 

- 0 477:51 
477,512 ---------
240.000 2,337.51
 

0------237,512 - .50
0 5, 000 '57.50 
-0 45,000......... 
0 - -,0 5,500.00 
0 5,50, 000 .-.. . 
0 1,250,'000 15,57.50
0, 4,250,0001: ......... 

.0. 127,500 5,591.20
0 5;372,500 .......... 
0 1"000,000 '13,250.00 
0 4,50,000 ....... _ 
-o too, 000 '950!00 
0 .700,00 -----
0 0 0 

,'0 12 DID000 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 01 
4,390.000 ....... 1_
 
6,260,000 0 
5,740,000 .......
 

"0 0
 
4,390,00 .........
 

0-----
1,400,000 - - - - 

14 0 
1,100,000 .......
 
2, 800,000------
2,200,000------

http:13,250.00
http:5,591.20
http:15,57.50
http:5,500.00
http:2,337.51
http:5,587.50
http:14,086.91
http:4,585.81
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For the past 10 years peae provide a "balano sheet" indicatingfor each year 
the amount invested by U.S. buainess and their proftt remittances. What is 
the net effect of this 1O-year investment perroa on the U.S. balance of 
payments? 

US. net direct Profit Net effect on 
investment in remittances U S. balance ofYear Brazil to United States payments 

1960 ----------------------------------------------- 83 45" --98 
1961-------------------............................ 7 35 +28 
1962..................................................... 14 24 +10 
1963 ---------------------------------------------------- --- 8 13 +21 
1964......-------------------------------------- -36 5 +41_........

1965---------------------------------------------........ -6 19 +25
196- ------------------------------------------------------- 7 33 -54 
1967....................................................... 39 66 +27
1968......... .................................... 75
---------- -5 
1969 --------------------------------------------- 64 66 +2 

Total............................ . ..-------------------------------........... +57
 

Source: U.S Department of Commerce, Survey of Current Business. 1970 data Pot readdiy available 

The direct effect on the U.S. Balance of -Payments during the 1960's has'been 
slightly positive. While U.S. direct investment in Brazil increased by $680 mil
lion (71%) during this period, most of the increase (91%) was financed by re
invested earnings. During the 1960's income remitted to the U.S. from Brazil 
exceeded the net capital outflow from the U.S. every year but three. During the 
early to mid-1060's, deteriorating economic conditions (and an unfavorable over
all climate for foreign investment during the Goulart administration) caused 
the net direct capital outflow to Brazil to decline, reaching a low of minus $36 
million in 1904. During this same period remitted income to the U.S. declined as 
profits fell- (the return on U.S. investment in 1063 reached a low of 5.-7% as 
compared to an 8.3% average for the decade) and administrative obstacles to 
remittance of income developed under the Goulart regime. 

In addition to the direct investment effects, remittances to the U.S. for sales 
of patents, trademarks, and technical services have had an important positive
-effect on the U.S. Balance of Payments averaging about $30-$35 million an
nually during the sixties. 
What is the current "average" return on foreign investment in Brazil? 

The following table provides data for U.S. investment. No data were avail
able for other foreign investment.
 

TOTAL EARNINGS AND REMITTANCES TO THE UNITED STATES AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL U.S. DIRECT 
INVESTMENT IN BRAZIL 

Earnings Earnings
remitted remitted 

Total net to United Total net to United
earnings as States as eCfrnins as States as 

eroent percent percent percent
boo value book value boo value book value 

1946-------------------- 14.3 6.4 1981.................... 7.1 3.5

1948.................... 2.3 6.2 1962------------------ 7.6 2.2
 
1950 ..................._ 16.2 6.0 1963 -------------------- 5,7 1.2

1952-------------------- 25, 6. 1964 ------------------- 5.8 .1
1954 --------------- - 14.2 49 1965 -------------------- 9.4 1.8 
1956................... _ 10.2 2.2 1966 -------------------- 9.8 2.6
1953 -------------------- 83 2.8 1967 ----------------- 8.7 5.0
1959---------.......... 65 3.0 1958 .................... 10.7 5.1
1960.................... 3.4 4.7 169 .......----------- - 9.6 4.0 

Source: Survey of Current Business, Department of Commerce 1970 data not readily available. 
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What is the totalnumber of AlD and AID relatedpersonnel now in Brazil?How 
nuzny are'contract personnel? How many are local kire? 

USAID 
Direct-hire -- 101 
Other Government&agencies -------------------------------- 5 
Contract personnel ----------------------------------------------- 91 

Subtotal ----------------------------------------------- 248 
Local hire. --------------------------------------------- 334 

Total 2---------------------------5 
1 Does-not include-9 U.S.,dlrect hire and 10 local hire employees of the Area Auditor 

General's office which is-not under the authority of the USAID Mission, 

Please describe the major technioal assistance projects currently underway in 
BrazR? 

The annual A.I.fD. presentation to Congress-now'being compiled for the House 
Foreign Affairs Committee-contains a current and complete description of our 
activities. The attached 12 narrative statements and financial summary describe 
our contiuing major programs. Omitted are terminating projects whosefunding 
runs out in FY '71. 

The total technical assistance program toBrazil as shown in the Congressional 
Presentation is as follows: 

Thousands 
of doZtars 

Fiscal year 1970-------------- ----------------------------- 12,364 
Fiscal 'year '1971 ................. 10, 830 
Fiscal year 1972------- ------------------------------------ 10, 325 



TABLE IIPROJECT DATA SUMMARY 
SECTOR: (Dollar Amao t-	 in Thovionids) Part I 

FY:I Tioigh FY 1970 Et..matd FY 1971FY oil $h 4-	 .. . 

Pw[.c;I T)I[. Pr'ott Number O6Ihga-. r rool 0 :0.- Exprl'Q0-d4.ed 06ll00- Ep@ndl- doled Pr....o. 1o 1o.
lio. Oblig, flonz LU.. CMI,ohn lon, I... OI I.on. FV 1972 . Col 

tio 	 6/30/7'0 6/0)71 

1972 14-8' 	 ,T81 1,175AGRICULTURAL EDUCATION 	 12-11-110-094 1951 1,381 1 ,75 15365 1,378 18,718 

AGRARIAN RE0M 512-15-120-249 1965 1975 1,191 765 426 375' 444 357 N65 1,869 3,900 

AGRICMUURAL PRODUCTION 512-15-130-247 165 1974 6e4 538 86 lO 147 49 121 145 1,000 

AGRICUTTUPAL YARKETING o12-13-140-248 63 1972 2,765 2,568 197 14341 441 190 539 3,73 

HEALTH (INCL MESMALARIA ERADICATION) 12-11-540-265 1958 1972 z4, 1 i4,658 143 294 290 147 236 115,331 

EDUCATION ADMIN. & POG. - FUND. SECONDARY 512-11-680-296 1963 1977 5,292 4,505 787 849 1,028 6o 866 3,639 i0,646 

HIGHER EDUCATION 12-1i-660-263 1959 1973 4,876 3 389 ,187 1,582.L1,35 1,724 1,230 L,220 8,90 

TECHNICAL SCI. & FDUC. PUBLXQATIONS 12-11-691-i7 1963 1972 980 874 ao6 163 232 37 106 - 1,249 

DEVELOP. iaG. & ADMIN. 512-11-990-122 1964 197i4 3,820 3,141 679 964 1,120 523 922 135 5,841 

LABOR 312=ii-10-028 1961 1972 4,307 3,783 524 508 687 345 675 - 5,490 

INDUSTRY AND CON1ERCE 21-15-950-227 1963 1975 555 417 138 91 188 41 303 690 [1,639 
TRAINING FOR REGIONAI, I)MORENT 512-15-995-268 	 - - 4oo 148 252 350 

FOR pROTEC Df scnIOpfl SEE ATTACHED N TIVE TABLE I 

ttal ........
Detailed pro]ec no ivo- Tablo I 
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niC C - 15. ?Y'71 T-4 P.flb. - y IYtm FY, 1.C79 
Proecr Tarqet h .d ceuse of Action: To irpcova,the wit% a modern dqpatmenta. system. 
0p-city'of'eaoQ a-atin5 Draz±!lan cofleg@s to (a) pro- FY 1972 Progra.: 'ihesiswill continue on strengthenir 
vidc lC-dersh-. in develoarg Brazfl's aZricea tral and graduate pro ,)7&s, increasing 'invovevent of the co!leae 
ntual resources and (b) 1r&an .equired- agr'cttntural in state agricultural develolment prgranms, e:ansion of 

seoalists. Techlical assistance is provided to four aiplied research progams, and training of Brazilian 
ralla. schools throuh contracts with U. S. universi- faculty nembers in the U. S. (Arizona, $390,000; Wiseon% 

ties, i.d., the Federal Tumiversity of Visosa (..widue cin, $1144-,000; Purdue, $374,000; Ohio State, $105,000). 
5niv-ersity); and-the aaricultpral colece of the Untver- U. S. Technicians: Six Purdue professors and three ran
kaT-es of Rio Grande do Sul (Univeraity of flisconsin), YeaS ,o short-term advisors; seven Arizona professors a 
Oears '(Univrszityof Arzona), and S .o Paulo (Ohio State). ne monthe sbort-term; seven Wisconsin professors, thre 
Ten U. S. Universities provide profesors to help OSU professors tq assipt the respective Braziliarn co!
s;:engthn and pgyada faculty, establish raduate pro- leces. Two direct-hire technicians to coordinate, super 
sr.ts, revise curricula,. a prove aduinxstratitn, develop vise and mnntor$ctvitie. 
=pyled research prrgrois, and i.rove extension services. Pctioekpants; Throudh the university contrtatsaI prt 

Srazilian professors fmn the coopratirg schools *eceive panT( ircludng, extensions) will be trained in a3ricu!
-iing in t'he U: S. at iS, and RFD, levels; tural economics, snimal, plant, soil, and rural-social 
Po.,ess to DaTe: Graduato level prtgra-s havo been science at the participating U. S. universities. 

dities: Labortory equipment.
77 hroe of the Brazi!an schools, ad a our- Coneo -"A 

.Other Costs: Corputer services, teaching-aids. 00 
ih for the Univcrsiy of 0eaa. Estinatodis Itlanr.ed 

g'aduate enrollment in these "acools for 1972 ;Ls 325. 
S-a.ff'.rbers with .S.and Pb.D, desrees have increased
 
frcr 27 in i t6 'to 293 in1971. The Coal for 1972 is345. 
Otne" achiev67&nets of the progran have ben (i).Braziliah 
neOcstanea of the e6nccpt of intdgrating teaching, 
rc-Gareh, and e::tenslor; (2) accaptance of a leadership 
role aA a-.riculture deve-lopett within the respective 
stares ad (3) educational and organizational reform, 
parilcul.arly replacing the "catodratico or chair system- tS. DOLLAR COST WI.kjtF, RINCIPALCOA-TASOrCj 

- Oblitarl ,n ( ;- . s wro. hu coj; d, - LIOATIOS Univerz.ty ofArzoaU~l]<a, a 

T•i '3 0/7 ,,I,-i FY 1971 Pro, FY 197Z ".Uiversity of ti-zconsin
b,hn~td V 15!865 1 A84- I , ., 1 o C.... tnive.rity ; -due 


Y711iU5 1, 683 C ~ AV 6hio'statc itversity
- - U AIt,"d TSi A..ai.FY - R6i40rs00. 

721 ,7B 18.7.1 Ty.18.1.8L7D' k 6 I 651.919-
Tl O.o i..sy8 

http:Univerz.ty
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Reform- Agriculture and Rural Development ; T.C. 

- ~oft _IrINITIAL *VO SPNMC"LOULCOFINAL OLIGATIO 

JTCXIJOCR51215'lo-4oP. 16, rY 71.IA P D.B. - Y, 1265 FYI 1975 
Project Target and Course of Action: To assist the 

Spccill'Group for the Rationalization of the Northeast 
Sager (OEAU to bring about broad'redional, sogial and
R) 
eeorion5c reform through diversification and modernize-
thon of agro-industry and land redistribution in the 
Nortneast (.$E) Sugar Zone. GO4AN se4ks to modernize 
the NE sugarcane industry while reducing the area needed. 
for sugar growing and thereby release nused laid for 
redistribution, U.S. suport will go toward assisting 
GERAN to build a tersonel and Maiagement system for 
ass~ssing, Planning and coordInat-ng projects; training 
personnel outside Brazil; and carrying out short-term 
Istudics in selected problem areas. Under its scheme of 
operation, GEAN encourages VE sugar-growers and 
processors to develop and submit moa6rnizatio plans 
,according to certain criteria established by GERAN. 
progress to Date: A.I.D.-financed studiels af the NE 
star Zone helped stimulate the creation of OESAI in 
1966. It was zeorgin3ze& in 1968 and new legislation 
passed in 1969. Modornization projects have been 
submitted by four sugarimills and approved by GEIRAN.-

There are 27 more projects In fine), stages of prepara-

tion for approval. Aerial amping of the region has 

been completed and results are being used.for soil map-

ping. A'national dadastral survey has provided the 
statistica! basis for new land tazes. Productivity 

studies in sorghum and beans are underway and surveys 
for crop uses of coastal tablelands are oospleted. In 
February 197a1-the first land was avoriated -for 

agrarian reform under' the GERAN program with approx natel
 
200 fanilies being resettled on 4,400 hectares. Work
 
continues on feasibility studies fbr irrigatQnl of Sons
 
67o,000 acres~in the-San Francisco Valley irea. 
FY 1972 Program: "ERAN's Matter Development Plan will be 
completed and some reforms ii organizatiohaf/anageent 
practices are expected which will iiproe'ERA0AN' s capa
bility to carry out its program. A.I.D. expects to as
sist in establishing a training program utilizing state 
universities and regional agricultural training centers. 
Additional investigations of suitable crops for diversi
fication will be undertaken 
U.S. Technicians: Fine long-term contract technicians 
(Clapp & Mlayne, $120,000 Hawaii Agro-Tech, $11,000; 
U.S.D.A. PASA, $99,000) will work in GERAN on developtent 
planning, agriculture vocational training and sugarcane 
transportation., Three long-term crop/land use special
ists viii divide their attentipn between SUDENE and 
OE.M. Three direct-hire technicians yil supervise the
 
various parts of the program.
 
Participants: 26 Brazilians will receive short-term,
 
training inmill management, 'land-Use planning, and 
nmodernizatioh techniqhes in the U.S., Mexico, -and Puerto 
Rico. , I 
Commodities; $10,000, training materials.
 
Other Costa: $3,rO00, local, travel and traini.n costs.
 

,
 
- -*.....
 

U.&. DOLLA COST OhnTigo .Ijnds) --

Obllgpln * 5. 1,J IIAI.1 

Thre~uh 1/,0191 ' 765 
Eisrve FY 717 - 375 444 

,..uh 6/301 1,566 ).,fo0 g 
Ftw*. YoI,

6IllelI..s 

P,.po,:,. FY 72 :7146I 1186. 

U, IquldaoI . . OSLIGATIONS - -

Ih //70 ,191 7 ,4FY1971 P,, 11d VY1a72 
. 426 I -It~td ..... 7Con 

A; "Io niof.... Twoe9 
-g CI Cponc,,s 0,W .,<oet, oAD. y 

U.S.Tkncl 0 16t) 21;9 l Aec5y230 
357 IPaviipans.... - - o6 i02 . 102 

ab; & Mayne
 
Hawaii Agro-Tech

Univ. o2 Arizonar-, 

*
 
T 0I~COLTIOth.r Costs .... 1 -. 10 . 1, -6 41 

3.9oo ! TItal OL llons 266 169 375 199 266 4651 ...... 
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Coun..ry PROJECT DATA TABLE hi 

AGRICULTURE PRODUCTION - FISH AGDCULTURE AN UATURAL RESOURCES T.C. 

7 15,7512-15-130-2, Y 7 LA P .D.B . ry± 196 1i py,1973 

Target: To assist in the development of the institutional 

and natural resources in the Northeast leading to increas-

ed fish protein production for human and animal nutrition, 

Specifically this involves strengthening the national 
agency against the drought (flNOCS) by training personnel
and advisory cooperation; developing fresh water fih 
culture through introduction of new technology; research 
and development efforts in a new fish research institute. 
Course of Action: Fish Processing, Research and Produc-
tion is now the only activity carried under the project 
title. Until this year research and development in live-
stock, teed and forage and high protein corn were incs-
porated under this title. Beginning in FY'72, these 
activities wili be financed under the agriculture research 
loan to the Brazilian government. The recent evaluation 
of the fish program indicated the potential value of 
continuing the grant funding for an additional two years. 
Not only did project results to date promish dramatic 
increases inprotein yields for human and animal nutrition, 
but it would support the general development needs of the 
Northeast priority area. Ho2eover an extension service 
dilension was added to the project vhich required greater 
advisory inputs. 
Progress to Date Fish production has improved to uhere 
one hectare of fresh water now yields 150 kg. of protein
fron fish in compoarison with,a yield of only 5 kg. from 
beef cattle per hetare of land. Furthermore, research 
performed up to the present time suggests potential yields 
from manageable ends of un to 100-150 times the nresent 

-- '.' S DOLLAR COST (InThousa=ds) 
bIgarlns07 EPtndllut 

tho.., 6/30/70 624 538 
.t...... d FY 71 ! l 

Es,,rnotc 
lhrov. 6/lob! 734 685 

F... er 

P ......d FY 72 11 1 

Unllkuldotfd 
8- k ,e.,., ' .,°,6 538 a 4FY1971 P ....0 J Fy 1472 

7//////// Co, CoD..n T.. D1. OI, Auburn-University 

1053 7~~ntn 75 
49I9 , .... 1 0 20 

C-!t50 obC.., 


15 1000 Tota1 01bil~gtios 5 105 110 


1-Sor Core .. . .1 2 - 205-1 

121._____________ 

1U kg.Yields. The work of the Bureau of Commercial 
Fisheries team engaged at the inception of the project
is accomplished and this input will phase out on schedul 
at the end of fW71. 
FY-1972 Program: Auburn University will continue assist-
Ing in research and development of operational systems of 
reservoir management, fish culture, fish technology, ahd 
extension systems for fish farmers. Training of DNOCS
 
technicians will continue with year long management train.
 
Ing courses in Auburn University.
 
U. S. Technicians: Two man Auburn team for 29 man months.
 
Participants: Three new participants for one year's

training in te Ti. S.
 
Commodities. Fish research equipment
 

*nICIIL 

OaLIGATIONS 



Country. PROJECT DATA TABLE LII 

Agripulture Marketing Agriculture and Rural Develotment T. 
PSIOR RCVCflIMC1 INITIAL OWLIGATIO. ,cN tL1Lt FI.AL OOL.ICI 

P..JUCT ,Uv.n. 512-15-340-248 p * 17 *FY'71 LA P.D.B. PY, 1963 Fiv , 2
 
Target: To assist the national agency for agricultural 25 people; helped form public and private organizations
 
cooperatives to better serve, monitor, and promote the needed for implementation of the national seed law, i,e,
 
activities of agricultural cooperatives, to develop producers associations ad enforcement of quality control.
 
national legislation and guidelines on seed research FY 1972 Program: A.I.D. will continue to assist in the
 
quality control and production; and to promo.e a modern development of national and state seed legislation and
 
Drivate seed industry, practices, seed production and distribution enterprises,
 
Course of Action: Using the services of USDA technicians, and farmer organizations interested in improved seed. It
 
provide technical advice to the national agency for mill also resume work in economic statistics and the
 
agrarian development responsible for cooperative develop- storage aspects of the Price Support Program.
 
ment and build the competency%of its Center for Coopera- U. S. Technicians: Four long-term USDA technicians, one
 
tive Studies and Training. Work in agriculture statis- direct-hire, two long-term university people and four
 
tics iill involve the Economics Division of the Ministry short-term university consultants.
 
of Agriculture. Mississippi State University is working Participants, Twenty new participants from the cooperative 
with the Ministry of Agriculture oa national seed legis- program, seven long-term extensions, and 13 short-term 
lation and with private groups in forming the entTepenu- pe6ple under the seed project mill go to Mississippi State 
rial basis for a seed industry. University for training and observation. 
Progress to Late; As part of the coop program, two of the Commoditiesi Supplies and laboratory equipment. to 
four originally planned tarm-storage-center demonstra- tD 
tion units began operations. A. 1. D. has already pro
vided direct assistance on the organization and manage
ment of hundreds of operating farm cooperatives though
out the country. Training at the nation training center
 
has reached 600 coop management and government techni
ciana.% n their commnities,300 rura3youths received year
long exposure to cooperativism. Two new state coopera
tive councils were formed to assist coop-organizations 
within the state. Mississippi State Seed Project has 
completed 28 to 48 seed processing end storage facilities 
uith 20 in pronesst rovided acadeic trainir at o 

U.S DOLLAR COST lIt PtONCIAL t'o ,C=TEouso,4s.6 oOH.tCO 
0b1lotlz E 'ttsnd~.r~te L U,I, q .ldar.d OBLIGATIONS 

IEl.Iotod F 1921 P.s.od FY 1972 Mississippi State 
Through 6/$V7 2,765 2,566 t97 W, Tniversity
EstIma.ta FY 71 " 313 441 Aqncy Trl 

0 
DD,.",U
 

S=tlnmood U.S. T..hnc.s 2 261 a8 = 3" U. B. Dept. of 
through 6/30/71 3,199 31009 1 39l PrIcFnI.... .. 9Q l56 Agriculture5 12C 


FIL,,.° . EY,Iit., Cor Iod itI. ..... 2- . . .. 2 - -
OllI1ooc To:alCost Oih, Co.. ... 44 7. - 7.. 


Prop.d FY 72 Totol Oblloo 8nsa 352 43 141 3 539 

http:EstIma.ta


Coontry BRAZIL PROJECT DATA TABLE m1 
PRoJECT Tifl.C .ec|oa0UNOI 

Health (Tclades Malaria Eradication r P iation and Health TO
 

... .. ... i-2 FY7512-iLAP.D..IYP., Bi 198 72 
Pro-ject Taiet: Strengthen Phblie Health planning at funded PASA advrsot. 4 I. D. is focusing assistance on 
State and Federal Levels; Provide technical advisory a number of different alternatives for adding protein to 
services in connection with U. S. Loan funded Malarid Brazilian diets through enriching wheat flour with lysine 
Eradication prograi, and improve protein intake Among for school lunih programs; research and testing maniac 
Brazil's poorest classes through Intervention (food fortified with soy in the Northeast; Assisting Aarine
 
fortification) in the food processing and mark6tin& zesearch in the preparation and production of FI for 
channels, human diets. 
Progress to Date: A.I.D. assisted in developing the FY 1972 Program: Continue the services of the Malaria Ad-
Public Health lmanning Unit (PAPPE) of the Ministry of visor, kASA, to provide loan monitoring and to$6,000) 
Health and continues through training and advice to advise and assist Brazilian public health officers inplan
strengthen this unit and the planning capabilities of ning and guiding the project. Also advise U. S. loan 
the State Secretariats of Health through PAPPE. funded technicians (5) working in the project. Continue 
Twelve State Secretariats now have competent Public work in Public Health Planning with emphasis on installing
Health Planing Units. Etffetive dontro. of endetmic dis- inBrazil "a HeaIth PlannitngTraining program patterned
eas6s requires constant research; such research has been after that offered at Hopkins; ($45,000) for 'short-term 
stimulated and is oangoin in relation to schistosomiasis, PASA advisors. Launch food fortification demonstratiod 
chagas, plague and yeflow-fever. Preventive Medicine projects at five Brazilian Food processing/prearati6ft 
Departments have been established and ate operating in institutions with emphahis on fuitheiink elisting food 
ten different medical schools. I Maternal and Child Health processing and marketing research. ($i0,oco) will provide
Care Centers are now operating in five Northeast States a full time direct-hire nutritionist and eight shlo't-term 
providing health and ndtrition education to over ,140o consultants. 
wmen'f clubs, Public Health Planning Courses have been U. S. Technicians: One full time A.1.2. Advis6r+(nutrition
conducted locally for over 125 Public Health workers; an ist), One £ull time PASA Advisdr (Malaria), Nine short
additional 36 leaders have received training inthe U. S. term PASA Consultants. 
and six more are,presently studying in a 4 months Public Participants: Thirty-eight short-term participants of 
Health Planning workshop at Johns Hopki ts Hospital. which 10 wall study food fortification and 2$ Public 
The U. S. Loan funded Malaria Eradication program con- Health Planning. 
tinues under monitoring and advisory services of a grant Commoditiest Training materials 

___________ U.S. DOLLAR COST (in TIhsusonds)0SJCLcvntesAEL$ 
Ol.11.0 tc. 5.po.Au.. Un11qir.1'- OBLIoATIONt5 - John Hopkins Univ. 

ThroogI. 030/70 iIL.8L. IiI.65i. .l13 5ttdFY 197) P d FY 1972...... School of Medicine
 
_______...... 6. 1-1.D., 

Estiod, .FY 73 1 Co±t Co9p0nh. Zrct , Todlrec, oi T.oe 
-AID P T5 AID A...e ,C.llM¢ied U S. ol 24¢n LF l ; 0 

hreug. 6/30/71 15095 : 14, 9)8 . ... Pcrtk+soont. .. 75 75 I - 1 

" Fotu,. Y., C[ortonodo4o,... 10010 " iO 3. 

Proposod FY 72 2 6 - 5L T.1.1OIc .12l 95 29Ob24 h S8 236.2 15-T S6 



r~T 1977-Z*. 7- ?IoJsc v1 
-aotl0t-_-0C 'ibyc o2r'ainvl u ''.T'he 

Thua'ocn anou7'Tnpt 

4-0e~t kt zt-rcnthcn Sacrotariats 

zc$o*tty e63cttin =-eas, and to aosist M~C to (a) cc-' planznrd adrnni-ster aor-rchensive statewide e-dueatisnnl


(>S_, ~ tod ra pamfn~nte d SMat of Eduoationls creta 

SrMt plnns aecds and (b) strunsthen d~eh~n~p~ a nd to develop and condluct ftz-zervdaato 
"M'(Sscocar~y' Mitcanon fxztUnit) statane t=rticiyating in Education Soctor Loan I and tile 

is C i'term 1t ufnt iathin KtCC. Thea p'oJcct was * ixYto cualify for sulort =taer Secor Loan 17.
 

~-'~se. ofcrg ,=C:z decision to deal ,ath Csrmoa'vlc but lass lintensive &ss±itance will ber~i
 

aeantcy, and 3u:Lior high leva2ls as ouc syztact o? to an additional 8 states. This rorit will be i'plletn
 
.,~at leteucatto:. ThIe pr2oject P.' n cort under tv'o egatracts, i.e., S=n Diego State CoLlege m
 

lasts of !cr 1. 1~jet(07gl~n~ty (L.1OO n tt'iver~ily of Few York (SD.:)
 

-----an 
 (o2:a) sacondc .y and Thu duCadion. (4sooOoo).nra 
Ail. c~hao zct;vizies unaer- these %o rrojoets bave boon U.S. TcOcos-Tree asxect-hire to rnrtor a.nd 

w-=o =ma' naftc tmc jct. six aSOavlors to vrck "!"4 20 

:*:csto Z2ate: l,±th A.I.D. assistance PfM has :,lE= On educazional Planning and Thur =yf adv!Eor= t;oow a 
20 roziassit sorvcn as r-cCs 'zschnical ass4L ttSito Secrotoriats om 2ucaticn on ad-lnistratio 

inAs I'.--' o _tmaI t. - A'lto 2-9 van-rontla. of shox_rt-t advisos. . 

Ztt~z. tim2'2U assi- '"'a 'c ret t oftred Rtdrb: IdTmry V.A. candidates, fl loa&=': 
-.a~cna~~ if.sp~sz~yn~th.- o' thr!nd-itg urndor AI.D. Education coC at ad!!tonsottr 

S~ctr LonZ. !: M is no'r azsi2zinz ct:: addtionfl under contraet at SDS3 h6ld SLIKy, andA 23dict:fl 
st=tes in th3 e:xciaticdn af deveio-rtnt plfno An I =tl iopntg t solcted U.. flstitStifls. 

na2.yzisC- xi~~ oxE!ak~t:tvortast Cro-mdttias: Euionlmtrials inder tte contract s 

Co-,xofa -a:rza no-s rpatas a vcay hl~h Y:'_a-aty oni 
and 2:= iseyiAJ ~g~~ a rhrce

jo=' 7)A,.= rT:h txcdtuctCLdGrA or c-Iucatton r7izcr. 
nra ~i~to 'C169 to0 t5 biflon by 2.9(3. Over 250 

edvca:e'~ educ=z!o: m2hAnerz a-nd sChool aM~sctc 

- -PlJPLcWR0G~~tu 51 Dl_..LAfc COST(In Thoooc,.4s) 

Obtr't~ I f ~t;~SA1 L~IAATiON4S 8=n Diego State Cofle~a 
292 L Y1971-j P,, tA- FY1972 J(3 )

'3049,. ~. i - Thi Al .44 SDaeUnvesty*~Ill~ 
o L 028 Int -nv-st o~po o~rc/ of 

1_~~i 14f503I&iYietn11_____ -5.5- U.S. 10Lactn12~ 179 I 
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l:_Lher E&ucatiofl uXcation tar .vaspovcr TrainirZ I'2 
rr,5-i- .. 

" .....a'ct and Course o' ActIon: The n.r- . oz s 
_-Y..ct re to: (1)assTan te develozant of Ma-ter's 
:.-2.;"-aprvSre.s in economics at the nsttaze of Econc 
Raz-arch ( 3n), tnivecsaty o-, Sro Paulo, and other 
select;d universities, (2) instituto uoved adni'±n±stra-
t~on Pre5,corcanization Brazilian 

.... ... 63 .2 3, FY 71. I 

da. at selcotod 
"nivera;Ies; (3) foster the dovc!Gorent o1 a corC-group 
of cc ,=tenr rescareh chcmists in razal; and (4) initiate 
resa ch projects at three Brazailan univers!ites. 
?!r.az-esz to Dte: The M.A. uroZran in econoties las 
±nt'z.razed TzIPE an Januarty 1970, vith earolmnent of 10 

The IP4 etaff has been enaex&ed to 15 fuC0l-t0e 
roftors, includlin one Ph.). and 6 M.A.'s triniaz 

cvrscas. Lv..g 1P70, I.E stat, as isted by .!.D- . 
aE-,±xsz, condected 12 intensive courses atterded by 90' 

.rofesors At
of econo.r-as from other fl±VC.-st 
?r"-sPt 58 ?n.D. and 9 *4.A. cand-dates are study-ni 
tna U.S. Most of these vill rezun to join the econoenes 
det-nrtenzs of either IPE or three other Brazilian "ni-

advscd 35 B-azal;an universities on various azocets of 
ad-iniatlaive and o.zganizt _onal reform. Ffty nAver-
sa.ty atd inxstrators.attended four-vcok courses a7 tao 
Uz:'versaty of Houston and ten others comleted ten-ieek 
in-srvice tra.idnZ prozeams at ozher U.s. universities. 

additcna 150 Brazilian a&Tinistrators atmenced 
tdmznsrat~rereforn sentrnars in Brazil. Sieht U.S. 

pos;-doctorlvl iearch .ellcvs are working on cheistry
rescach -. 1pacozs at three'lrazI1-an irstatuons. 

P.D.P. - 23959 1 FY. 1973 
a'flsted py .a.azflln outerms:z One proaoe-, in
 
jhys-cal chemistry, is already conparab-e in quality to
 
st.rilar w=ork in the U.S. In 1971M, 8d of tfne I.E budget

IIll Come fero Brazilian sources, cormared 1th 50% in 
1969. Bra.-1iaW ccntributions to the chemistry researca 
!>r~joet will be roi~ly Eo%of the U.S. ccsutnb_4ttcn. 
1-Z1.972 ?ror-nm: Assist further develorent of grasduate 
ccono%-s education (Vanderbilt, c2O),.ontir 
university adninistrative reform (Houston, 221,0O00); 
coa.t_uze collaborative effort in chemical researc., 'cith 
ten net: U.S. fellow:s to replace the first group (.-IzS, 

aaiooo);and train O present or prosrectlve staff 
=c-,bers of Bfranliaa. ntstttutons (?5l9,o), 
U-1. Tec.n=n' sr One direct-hire to supervise; tWeo 
Vaildabl ccorQsts for IPE; one long-ter. advisor and 
25 short-terc Houston consultants on university refoa:; 
10 tS fc11oIs in checal ;'ezcao . 
R.rLc±oants, Contxact--23 extenslons in graduate eco
11O'-O5 proera-s; 12 short-term parziciants in university 

are uirk in chemistry. Drect-A.ID.z-l ex-oens ons an
 
gtedtcCe econo.ics; 80 long-term specialized r=ticipamt
 
proarws.
 
Cosniodities: Books, publicat.ons, training materials.
 
Oz'er Costs: Local and international travel costs.
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UI DOLLIAQZ COST (inTkOUI-cId.) 
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Coun.ty BRAZIL PROJECT DATA 	 TABLE [1 
FUNDSPAOJ5CT Ttl.L 	 £CCTOf 

Technical, Scientific and Educational Education and Manpower Training T.C. 
Puablications fIfal' ~aSNDL Ht OIAT~ 

PRE... uN 512-11-691-127 Pg. 25, F 71 LA P.n.a. - o 1963 r 1.. 

Project Target and Course of Action: To assist the teachers were trained in textbook UtJilization, In addi-

Brazilian Goverment's efforts to develop a sustained tion, 309,00 teachers manuals and guides have been
 

prozram of textbook distribution to schools at no cost distributed. State textbook commissions and state 
to elementary and secondary schools and at low prices demonstration material centers atd now functioning in 17 
t6 aniversity students. The program is administered by states. Proje t ac6omplishments direct)& contribute to 
a Brazilian Technical Book and Textbook Commission two important sector goals; increased use of improved 

(COLTED) ot the Ministry of Educaiion and Cultura with instructional materials and more effective teachers. 

the participation of the Brazilian Book Publishers There is even some evidence that utiliztion of high-

Association (SNEL), and technical assistance by A.I.D. in wuality textbooks reduces drop-oat and failure rates. 
areas of teztbook uriting, production, and utiliiation. Through FY 1971, GOB will have contributed the equivalnt 
Program Loan counterpart Oruaeiros are used to purchase of $3.5 million to the COINED program. 
and distribute textbooks at all educational levels. In FY 1972 Progranu Textbooks will be issued directly to 
a separate progran, books are translated and adapted 15 municipalitlies and teacher training programs will 
for use in other assistance projects. It is expected continue. The project during its last year will focus 

that grant funding for theke activities will terminate in on the training of personnel with key roles in the
 
FY 72, and that further USAIL support for Biazilian produeti6n of high-quality, low-cost tektbooks,
 
textbook program will be finded from an education'l publishers and editorial managers. 

sector,loan. 	 U.S. Technieians; One direct-hire advisor to monitor 


the project and arrange participant training programs.
Progress to Date: To enable teachers and local sbhool 
officials to participate in textbook selection; and to Participants: Twenty short-term (direct A.X.D.) partici
serve as nuclei for library development, demonstrational pant'in publishing, editorial management, and textbook 
collections have been sent to 3700 schools in 3950 writing. 
Brazilian municipalities. A total &t 30,390 collections Commodities: None 
containing 11.4 million books have been sent t6 schools Other Costs: None 
throughout the couhtry. In an attempt to provide one 
textbook per subject matter per student, 7.5 million
 
books Mere directly issued to 78 Brazilian municipali
ties. Through regional 8emars, 150,000 elementary
 

U.S, DOLLAR COST (in Thousonds} PRINCIPALCOflTf/AECs 

SOllIi rIns 5.ndrtuP,. vl~fd •l C~t Uo.ItqoI " - OBLI GATIONS 

Nh©~9=.1O M ot A...- i,.l.- d FY 1971 AoPro,,od FY 1972
Through 6/3o o 9 . 874 xo 
EstlmogsJ FY 71 13 232 Cost Components Dal., otal O OehIt ToroI 

Esgnoad' - - US$,.7Tc1rnos 109 136 2

,~ce~/3/ 1,14l3 l;10q6 Pogesot .... a 78i i.37 	 .... 22 

I . bLIgatI.n' Total1 Cost Other Costs ... 

Propo....eP:p~,4FY 72 	 -Tt I,249 Tot. o M :19 j 163 lO6 - c6Y72 16 	 blB;
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Cou,-y BRAZIL - P0J.ECT DATA TABLE III 

avelorant fla ing and AdinistrationI ,Education and Manpower Training TC,
"PRO C......... 

noooo . -119A2p. 28, FY 71 LA 
Project Target and Course of.Action To strenothei plan-
Ding, adxfntstrati'on and managameat at national, state 
and local levels to achieve Inroved allocation of e-

sources for social and economic developmtent. To reach 

these go ls, the Projeet Wi upgrade research and admin-
Istnatlon processes; help improve federal tx administra 

ton; assist.in the development and installation of 

important f nancial management and control teohhiquas; ; 

iniove census data collection and statistical seivices; 
and Zrovide assistance to lo¢theast regional admtnistra-
nicn training centeis. 

. ... ..... ° I.o
- i.IY' I. $IJo,, briN+ t 
P.D.B. 91 FY, 
cla]. status reports are-prouced on a timely basis. ;ita 
the 4ssistance of the U.S. Bureau of Census, the Brazilian 
Institute of Geography and STatistics (IBG:) eo.r"eted 
regular data collaetion during'tbe past eight quarters, 
published household sarle surveys and trained 15 statis
ticians and cartographers In the U.S. Three regional 
centers for training public servants have b~en established 
in tae Brazilian Northeast and over 9,000 ha~e been trained 
to date. A Council of Directors of Schools 6f Administra
tion in the Northeast has been established and is function
ing. 

Prrrces to Date: The University of California (Berkele¢ FY 1972 Progra.M Completion of U.S. assistance in budget 
has assisted the Brazilian tnstitute of Economic Studies and ziscal reform (Gritfehhagen-xroeger, $127,000) and 
(IP) to comi te macroeconomie studies in the major tax admin~stratioun (IRS, $240,000); Feasibility studies 
sectors of the Brazilian econoy. Multi-year econctic ($70,000) are planned ih connection with project formula-' 
lAne and investment budgets have been ptodueed. Ove 30 tion; a Bureau of Cdnus advisor ($4O000) to assist 

varticipants Iron the Iliastrxes of Plann,ng and Finanpe TBGE, and continued admInistrativie training in the 

ruestate regional planning agencies are engaged in Northeast. 
grauatc-level 1ior. in econoric plannng in the U.S. The U.S. Techniojans: Three direct-hire project managers two 

MA library us acquired 6vr 400 new titles. U.S. budet/fiscal contract advisors, plus six man-month 
Intenal Revenue Service and Brazilian Secretaria'of consultants; five 1RS tax advisors, !us short-term 
ederal Recepts etfdrts have 'resulted 4in a 225% in- consultnts;- one statistical advisor from the Bureau of 
qrease of revenues in 1970 over 1966. Under the the Census. 
Griffenhagen-Xroeger Contract, the'Ministries of Finance Participants: Two long-term and 99-short-term partici
and Plnuing have established an effective central reeha- pants from government 'organizations and universities nill 

train in the U.S: (Ereau of Census, IRS. Univ. of Com.,
 
nism t6r ccordnatind all aspects of fiscal administra-


tIon. There is increased recognition of the annual etc.) in public administration.
 
budget as'a comprehensive financial control tool; greater Commodities: Training aids, books and publications2
 
cash tlor, control has been achidv&d; and imnroved finan- Other Costs; Demonstration materials 'and Autniis.
 

- ~ . "I_____ U.S DOLLAR POT (In T ,ousoadt) 
CLur,%,, IIO%!AJ.,,, . OBLIGATIaNS 

, .7C.80 1 P,. .. d FY19726 'OtMo ',o." " (ot =mo I'=D, Ae© T~s.1 , OA.,r To.I 

Est,ATed CY 71 ,I . - ". AID cU.S. 

'Ezl¢ratc TI So lhchn 4 T F z-609 r 
.. QO'h.H0 

thoh 
1 . .... O1©dF 1 17A 4,g6lo 523 P l~::: -6719 "i110 

PfltCMPtCNRAfS&OtCC 

GriffenhageA-Kroeger, fn. 
U.S. Internal Revenue 

S er vi c e - -

Bxeai of Census 

P~td FY 72 Qota OLL15~o 360 604 96~ 40_M 482 9M2_________________ 



Labor 	 flucatioa and MapwrTraining IIILOLGYO Ci~E IA bIAI 

p~J~r~yrfl12.-l-hlO-O28 P SPY'71, LA P,.l..ry 1d r.1 2 
Proiect Target and Course of Action: To promote free concentrated 3a two areas in Brazil's Ministry of Laboe 
denocratic trade union development inBrazil by streng- the Lepartments of National Salary and Hygiene and 
thening institutional com.petence through leadership Industrial Safety.(AIFLD, $625,000; Labor PASA, $8,00o 
training and eanded service to trade unions; to assist U. S. Technicianci Seven AIFLD contract advisors for 
the MKinistry of Labor to design and implerent programs worker education and social projects. Two short term 
to improve norker productivity and benefits and under- PASA consultants on wage and salary problems and hygiet 
4snoing of trade union movements in the U. S. and Brazil. and industrial safety, 
Progress to Date: Fifty-four Labor Ministry officials Particinonts Seven direct-AID and ten contract 
have trained inthe U. S. and eight union leaders studied funded particibants will train in the U. S. 
at the University of Puerto Rico and received orientation Other Costs; Expenses for training programs in Brazil, 
from AFL-OO counterpart unions. The Ministry of Labor publication of follow-up material, funding small impaie 
initiated publication of a monthly Cost of living index projects. One TCN education advisor to work with ICT 
for 13 principal cities. The Instituto Cultural do and twenty-three local staff at AIFLD headquarters and 
Trabalh (inSnglish) (ICT has planned and conducted field offices. 
regional training seminars far approximately 20,000 
ajionists and nccvIded 21 training courses for 570 
students, Using AID funds, AIFLD assisted in the 
develop'enC of 34f small social projects for Brazilian 
labor groups. AIFLD coordinated the construction of 
conrunily service centers for rural worker federations 
in lAaoas, Sergipe, and Pernambuco. In the rural union 
movement AIFID collaborated with GOB agencies to extend 
ITC training in22 courses for 680 students. Programs 
included literacy training, nutrition, domestic skills,
 
manual trades, cooperatives, farming techniques, agrarian
 
reform and agrarian legislation.
 
FY 72 Program: AIFLD will continue emphasis in worker . 
ecucation and assistance to self-hela impact and rural
 

U3S DOLLAR COST (In Thooscnds) 9-WcAt 

Oti:0on, ( UMI,,,d.d U. S. Department of41ponditura. 
2 OC4ATIONS 

tFY 111 P-cosed IFY1972 Labor 
TFro 6/30/70 v3783 524l\ -1-- O I'y.uh 4,30 

1 508 687 o s AID AID . perrc Tn - stitte for 

SII IUS ToerltmiA IC - 192 Free Labor DevelopmentI -Yr'f 7U 0 
,? ough 6/30/n1 - 4,815 	 4~47o 3'45 P.,ot.IPos.A... -2U -- B -- 6 -7--F-_U (AIFL) 

Fuluis V.©, E.Ilmatod Cornnso Il, .. - - I - 

7g:I't'a 	 toPr- ,ed OY 5,wC..,0 s . 0 312 312 - 425 425 
6
Pro ,o..d FY 72-	 5,490 Toto bIgo"n 40 468 1508 50 75 675 



CountrY. BRAZIL. PROJECT DATA 	 TABLE I 

endustraal and Urban Development 	 l.0.
Industry aa Commerce limOfl.nrsnc Jc 	 I[flt OOIkINIKOLC1 OIAILN~%.eLCTION 5 s 9U6 riN l, 9061"@TIO 

.OJ.CT.u...512-15-950-227 Pg. 27. FMark1eA .l 	 nst.1n66 aptal CV, 1075arket n,rn ra Bank.and IBMC (razlianProject Targt and Course of Ation, To promote a sound, 

effective expansion of Brazilian capital markets, private tuLe) and (2) the SUDENE to develop small and medium
 
industry and foreign trade through: (1) assistance to industries ia order to create more employment and increase
 
smll and medium industries, (2) training, (3) establish- purchasing power in the Northeast.
 
lag a center for Capital Markets Research and Development, U. a, Techniciansi Eight short-term advisors to assist th(
 
(4) institutionalization of comprehensive programs on Central Bank and IBMEC in establishing the Capital Market 
capital 	markets. Research Center. These advisors will conduct seminars anm
 

r To pate, (3.)BraziLs stock exchanges incorpo- specialized courses in capital markets. Three long-term

rated valuable recommendations made by U. S. advisors advisors to assist SUDENE develop small and medium indus
which, along with a more effective government role, a tries in the Northeast region; one direct-hire to coordi
*500,000 promotional program, an investment of $1.2 nate and supervise the project.

milion in modern cowmunication equipment and A.I.D. Participants: Fourteen short-term participants in small
 
sponsored training programs, accoujt for outstanding sad medr Industry management.
 
improvement in stock exchange operations. (2) Some 300 Comodities: Training aids, books and publications.
 
Financial executives completed an eight-month training Other Costs: None
 
program on capital markets given in Brazil by the Getullo 
Vargas Foundation, (GVF) and New York University (MY).
In addition 72 key financial. executives completed a ten 
veek course on "Control and Regulation of CapItal tlar- OD 
'Rets". To supplement GVF teaching staff, A.I.D. is 
providing further U. S. training to six GVF professors.
 
(3) A.I.D, is also providing comprehensive training pro
grams to eight Industrial Productivity Center (CENI)
 
engineers who will assist Brazilian industry to increase
 
roductivity, and five officers of the Department of' 

.Industrial Property (DNPI) on a patent and trademark 
administration. 
FY 1972 Program; A.I.D. will continue to assist (1) the 

U S. DOLLAR COST (n Thousands) *n,.cI*AL o
 
O~Ll¢ll.t~o,,. Ex .udllu,.. adaOBLIGATIONS
Vt'Ii~jI~ 

Throvgl, 6fl o 555 , -	 .tClnotc d FY 1971 P.,o.d FY1972 CONTRACTOR NOT YET 
6/3070 555aConi Cont0 DETERINED. 
0,%ID, To.]I O~h., T.W,AgEltil.1ote FY 71 .LUU..n' Coo.... AID 01'ny 

US T.cknicon 3 36 *VBl '33 528
 
though 6/30/ 646 6o5 41 Po.lpon,s.... - 10 70
 

ubit. V., Estlotod Comodtl. - 2 2 - 5 5
 
Obl1gat1oN Total Cost Oher Cotta . ..
. 

ProoSd FY 72 303 690 1639 Totl1 Obliations 33 58 _9_1 03 Cp.2OC_ 
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DescribeAID's projects andprogramsin the Northeast 
AID assistance to the Northeast is provided through projects entered into di

rectly with the Northeast Regional Coordinating Agency (SUDENE) and with 
state governments and agencies or branches of Federal agencies. In addition, 
a significant percentage'of assistance to nationwide projects is channelled to the 
Northeast. The following information is broken down into these two broad cate
gories: (FY71 obligations are in thousands of dollars) 

A. Current-directnortheastprojects 
1. AgriculturalEducation--UnWversityof Ueard- (FY71--$447) -This project 

is designed to attack productivity problems and the lack of trained agricultural 
manpower through the upgrading of the agricultural school of the University of 
Cearfi. Emphasis is on undergraduate curriculum, training of faculty, creation 
of a research capability and graduate programs, and improved extension services. 
Services of U.S. contract advisors (University of Arizona) and short-term con
sultants are- provided as well as participant training at the graduate level and 
limited commodity assistance. 

2. Fish Production, Processing and Marketing-(FY1-110)-This project 
is to increase production of animal protein through utilization of freshwater" 
ponds and reservoirs. The National Department of Works Against Drought 
(DNOOS) is being assisted in developing freshwater fish resources through the 
establishment of a fish research institute and identification of exploitable fish 
species. Technical assistance is being provided by two PASA's from the National 
Marine Fisheries Service (scheduled to terminate in June 1971) and two advisors 
under-a contract with Auburn -University. Participant training and fish research 
commodities are also provided. 

3. RuralRehabilitationandRefor?---(F'1--$375)-Thepurpose of this proj
ect is to assist the Northeast in the modernization of the sugar agro-industry.
diversification of' agriculture, and land reform in the sugar ,zone. Assistance is 
being'provided to the Special Group for Reform of the Northeast Sugar Agro-
Industry (GERAN) in the form of three development planning advisors (Olapp, 
& Mayne contract), a cane transportation expert (Agro-Tech Associates con
tract), and agricultural vocational training (Task Order to University of Arizona 
contract). Participant training is also a substantial element of assistance. 

4. Training for Regional Devoloprnet--(1'Y71--$400)-This activity is de
signed to make in-roads into the shortage of trained, qualified manpower which 
exists in every significant field of development activity in Northeast Brazil. Many 
participants are from sectors not otherwise financially-or technically assisted by
AID. Over one hundred participants are trained each year in-the US. and third 
countries under this project. (Additional participants are trained with specific
project-related funds.)

5. Regional Center' for Administration and !Training-(rF71-$1 )-The 
purpose of this project is to improve local government through assistance to 
public administration training centers. Participant training is a key element in 
the project. Short-term technical assistance will be rendered through a university 
contract.
 

6. Assistance to Small and Medium udistry- (FfY7--$210)--The purpose 
of this project (which is not fully developed) is to assist, SUDENR (the North
east development agency) to expand small and medium industry in order to 
create more jobs and purchasing power. A 'commercial contract is anticipated 
which will provide assistance in business management'training. 

7. Export Promotion Centers (NV)-(FYT1-4170)-This project is being, 
developed in response to SUDENE initiatives in the establishment of export
promotion centers in three Northeast cities. The centers wilr provide information 
to businessmen bn export procedures, foreign markets, and potential export 
goods. The goal is to utilize installed industrial capacity and agricultural po
tential, thereby increasing employment and incomes. One long-term and several 
short-term advisors are planned to be provided through a commercial contract. 

8. Elementary Rducation and Curricdumhnprovement-(FY71--$425)-This 
project has provided assistance to Northeast State Secretariats of Education 
in-the fields of education supervisor training and curriculum development through 
direct-hire and contract (State University of New York) advisers since 1962. 
The-project is being merged with a national program entitled "Dducation-Ad
ministration and Planning". 
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9. 00HEBE ($10.7 million toan)-The loan provides U.S. equipment and engi
neering services for a hydroelectric plant and transmission lines. The project is 
located between the states of Maranhao and Piai, in one of the poorest areas 
of the country. 

B. NationaZ ProjecsBenefttting the Norheast
 

.1.Active Loans
 
[in millions of dollars] 

Total t4Edollars 
Purpose amount total 

Agricultural research----------------- -----.--------------------............ 11.9 3. 0 
Urban sanitation ........------- - ................-------- -------------------- 25,0. 21.25 
Educaton II .------...................................................--------- 50. 0 25, 0 
Rural roads -------------------------------------------------------------------- 25.0 15.0 
ME agricultural wholesale markets ----------- -------------------------- . - 15.0 15:0 
Electrical power tehnical assistance----------. _----------...-............ 2.0 .2 
Air navigation aids ------------------------------------------------------------ 2.7 1.3, 
Highway maintenance equipment ........---------------- _---.-------------- - 12.9 1.3 
Feasibility study ....-------------------------................................ 11.0 3.3 
Survey of mineral and water resources --------------.---------- ----------------- 8.4 ,2.5
ilghway engi nearing ---------.........-----------------------------------------. 4 .1
 
Malaria eradication ............................................................ 10.3 2.6
 
Statistical development---------------------------.......----------- ---- 5.3 1.8
 
Educationai .................. --- 32:0 6.7

Health (water supplies). ---------------...................... _--
------ 15.43 

2. Active Grants 
There are 25 national development grant projects which benefit the Northeast. 

Examples include tax administration, educational planning, AFLD, graduate 
economics- education, cooperatives, statistical development, etc. The avdrage
Northeast component is estimated to be 28%. The PY71 obligations for these 
projects were $5;749,000. 
How mrtch AID money in total'hasbee spent in.tho Norteast? 

(FY 62-71, millions of dollarsor equivalent) 

1. Direct dollar grants ---------------------------------------- a.6 
2. Direct dollar loans-- --------------------------------------- 56. 8 
3. NE share (28%) of national dollar grant projects ----------------- 3. 1: 
4. NE share of national dollar loan projects (44%) ------------------ 103. 8 
5. Direct NE Cruzeiro allocations (-U.S. owned or-controlled)' ---------- 189. 6 
6. Program loan generated counterpart-NE share (28%) ------------ 2126. 
7. Public Law 480, title I counterpart NE share (28%) --------------- 3. 8 
8. Direct NE program support-local currency U.S. controlled---------- 15.4 
9. 	 National program support-NE share (28%) local currency-U.S. 

controlled ----------------------------------------------- 6. 

Total ----------------------------------------------- 546.3 
Z'Exclude PL 480 'Title II. See next table 
2 In terms of resource flows, counterpart allocations are a more accurate indicatioi of 

NE share than-is theuse of the foreignexchange. 
a The comparable figure for ,Brazil as a wholeis. 1878.2 million. The NE share is 29%. 

'How much, in total has-bcen provided through.lheFood for Peace Program? 

'PUBLIC LAW 480. TITLE 1i, USAID/BRAZIL-.SUMMARY ESTIMATES 

[in millions] 

1954-6 1966 1967 1966 1969 1970 1971 Total 

Brazil. 
Northeast .............. 51.8 6 6 7.2 10.8 7.1 6.7 11.6 101.8 
North ................ 8 6 17 1.7, 2.0 1.5 1.7 1 9 19.1 
Rest Of Brazil--------- 112 5 13 8 15 2 14.3 .S 8.9 16.6 189.8 

Total 	 ------------- 172 9 22'21 24 1 27.1 17.1 17.3, 30 1 310.7 

Notes: Northeast includes Maranhio. Piauti, CearE, Rio Grande do Norte, Paratba, Pernambuco, Atagoas, Sergipe and 
Bahia. North includes Amazonas, ParS, Roraima, Amapi. . 
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How serious is the drought situation in the Northeast? How is the Brazilian 
governmentrespondingto thi&situation?How is AID respondhiu? 

Seriousness of the Drought: 
The Northeast Drought Polygon is composed of 886,000 square kilometers 

(342,000 square miles), or over 10% of the total Brazilian land mass, The area is 
larger than the state of Texas; about 13 million people, or 20% of the total 
population of Brazil live there. The average annual rainfall varies widely from 
year to year. A few heavy showers frequently account for practically the entire 
annual precipitation. Such downpours on parched soils often create excessive 
runoff and local flooding. 

During the four hundred years ending in 1959 there were a total of 55 droughts 
so severe as to cause wide-spread crop failure, an average of 1 every 7.8 years. 
While a number of relatively small areas are affected annually, there has since 
1559 been one wide-spread drought of 5 years' duration; 5 of 8 years; 8 of 2 
years and 19 of I year's duration. Most of the population in the Drought Polygon 
resides in small villages and on individual farms. They are largely dependent 
upon subsistence agriculture, have almost no reserves of food, inadequate credit 
and' are quick to suffer when droughts hit. In past droughts wide-spread emigra
tion to neighboring cities and to southern urban centers has occurred. Frequently. 
those emigrating are the better educated, possessing a trade skill, leaving the 
more marginal families to subsist in the area. 

First evidence ofan impending drought of possible serious proportions devel
oped in February, 1970 when the normal rainfall in December, January and-
February failed to occur. Initially, the hardest hit was the state of Piaui. 
Gradually the drought spread eastward, eventually covering eight states. Most 
recently it has extended even into areas of the coastal literal sugar zone. 

The numbers of persons directly affected by the drought are estimated at be
tween 7 and 8 million. However, the effect on the entire economy of the eight 
affected states has indirectly touched an even larger number. The effect of the 
drought on agricultural production tells the story. 'Comparing 1970' to 969, the 
4 principal northeastern food crops (beans, rice, corn and manioc) suffered an 
average decline of 89%. Cotton, a major non-food export crop, was down 57%. 
Since most Northeast cotton is grown by peasant farmers, dependent on market 
receipts to buy dietary staples, the effect of this decline on rural living,conditions 
is significant (see attached table for the effect on principal crops grown in these 
states). 

NORTIIEAST, AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION, 1967-1970 

fin thouseads of metric tons] 

Percen,
change

Product 1967 1968 1969 1970 1969-70 

Cotton ------------------------------ 813 875 864 374 -56.7
 
Beans ----------------------------- 951 890 818 422 -48.4
 
Corn -------.............-......... 11789 1,704 3,597 919 -42.5
 
Rice ..........----....... ....... - 983 1,107 624 -39.3
- 1,037
Cacau ------------------------------ 187 141 203 1150 -26.1 
Manioc ----------------------------- 11.302 12,392 13.009 9,615 -26.1 

Sisal ----------------------------- 319 329 311 316 +1.6 
Bananas ---------------------------- 159 174 1S9 (3) (3)
Oranges ............................ 1,547 1.673 1.718 1,768 +2.9 
Sugarcane ------------------------ 25,779 27,488 27,212 '28,000 +2.9 
Castor bean-- ................-.... 237 245 250 274 +5.4 
Sweet potatoes- -----------......... 627 576 538 632 +7.5 
Tomato ...........-------------- .180 217 170 192 -12 9 
Tobacco ----------------------------- 52 63 60 69 +15.1 
Coco (Bahia) ------------------------ 785 648 612 78 +20.5 
Pineapple% ------------------------- 120 119 128 235 +83,9 

1Maranhto. Piaul, Ceari, Rio Grande'do Narte, Paraiba, Pernambuco, Alagoas, Sergipe, Bahia,
SNotoavailable, 
31,000 fruits,
' Estimate.
 
Sources: Adapted from the Anurio Estatfstico, 1970; BNB and Sudene reports.
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The Government of flrazPs a?u AID's Response: 
As the effects of the drought spread across the eight Northeast states,

SUDENR, a federal agency responsible for northeast development, organized a 
coordinated response. Between June 4-6, 1970, President Medici visited the 
drought-stricken region and on June I6 he declared a state of national emergency. 
The GOB initially allocated $15 million in federal funds for use by SUDE1NE to 
enlarge the public works, CC type projects (called work fronts) that it estab
lished to employ the drought victims. 

In early June SUDZNE had established 2 committees to deal .with the situa
tion: 

(1) An emergency committee chaired by the Deputy-Superintendent; and 
(2) A permanent executive committee for food supply for the Northeast, 

composed of representatives of the SUDENE Planning Department, as well 
as the Price Control agency (SUNAB), the Marketing Department 
(COBAI,), and the -Warehousing Organization (CIBRAZEM), all three 
of the Ministry of Agriculture. 

The Governors ot'the drought-stricken state, who sit on the Council of SUDENE, 
met to plan a coordinated response.

In October 3.970 the Federal Government established GEACAP (Special Group 
for Public Calamities). This entity, composed of representatives of al major
ministries, the IRed Cross and similar private organizations Js subordinated 
directly to the Secretary General of the Ministry of Interior. Since it was 
organized it'has worked with SUDENE and the Northeast state Governors. 

On April 17, 1970 SUDENE first requested USAID's assistabce, namely 517 
metric tons (mt) of Title II wheat flour to be used together with other Brazilian 
purchased foods to assist those affected by the drought in four states (Piaui,
RGN, Paraiba and Pernambuco). 

Meanwhile, SUDENE employed large groups of workers to construct small 
dams and wells, and to repair and improve rural roads, etc. By July 1, 1970 
SUDENE had established 85 work fronts employing 239,000 workers. By July
20th, it was employing 330,000 workers on 114 projects in eight states, benefit
ting 1,650,000. At the peak of the public works program, an estimated 500.000 
workers were employed benefitting, thereby, approximately 2.5 million persons 
directly, of the 7.7 million estimated to be severely stricken. The monthly cost 
to SUDENE was $7.3 million of which $6.3 million was paid in wages to the 
workers at the rate of Cr$2,00 per day (less than 50 per day). 

PUBLIo LAW 480, TITLE II, U.S. FOOD COMMODiTIES APPROVED roa DisTamun o 
B? SUDENE TO MEET NE DROUGHT EMERGENCY 

Approved by program determinationsigned August 7, 1970 
In metric tons 

Wheat, flour --------------------------------------------------- 3, 696 
Bulgur -------------------------------------------------------- 2,464 
Cornmeal --------------------------------------------------------- 1, 971. 
Nonfat dry milk -------------------------------------------------- 986 
'Vegetable oil ----------------------------------------------------- 837 

Total ---------------------------------------------------- 9,954 

Approved by program detormnation oigne February 11, 197Z 
Buigur ------------------------------------------------------- 10, 800 
Corn, soy milk blend ----------------------------------------------- 7,200 
Corn ---------------------------------------------------------- 4,320 

Total --------------------------------------------------- 22,820 
Total approved -----------------------------------------------
Total utilized by May 1, 1971------------------------------ 1 6, 000 

In addition to these wages, SUDEN1 has distributed food commodities to the 
workers and their families. In June, 1970 SUDENE again approached USAID to 
request 9,954 mt of P.L. 480 Title Ir commodities to be used for supplemental 
feeding for 1,282,000 workers and their dependents for two months. The esti 
mated CCC value was 1.7 million. 
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contributed substantial quantities of domestically producedSUDENE also 
addition, it contributed 457 nitfoods including beans, rice, sugar, coffee, etc. In 

of corn; 62 mt of cornmeal and 149 mt of vegetable oil representing 20% of the 
U.S. corn and 1% of the U.S_ vegetable oil contribution. 

In December, 1970 SUDENE requested a further U.S. contribution for supple
mental feeding of large numbers of drought afflicted victims to support the ex
panding work front projects. They requested an additional 22,820 mt of Title II 
commodities for distribution as partial payment-in-kind, with a COO value of 
$2,931,800. 

Throughout the last year, isolated incidents have occurred where unemployed 
workers (called "flagelados") have stopped trains, warehouses have been broken 
into and usually peaceful demonstrations held. Frequently these demonstrations 
were to request that 'a work front project be organized in the municipality. 
Most recently, in the sugar zone where drought-affected workers from the drier 
areas traditionally seek employment during the ane-cutting season, workers 
have stayed on after the end of the harvest, and are creating a difficult situation 
for local officials. But such incidents are sporadic and appear to be well handled 
by the new State Governors who took office on March 15,1971. 

Since scattered' rains arrived in January of 1971, SUDENE has gradually 
closed projects to permit the workers to return to their land.for planting. Never
theless, as of February 5, 1971 approximately 442,000 workers were still employed 
on 141 work front projects. 

The 1971 planting season is now underway in all eight states. Unfortunately, 
the first two plantings were lost due to continued drought conditions in many 
areas. The lack of seeds and of credit has created a serious situation, although 
normal rainfall is general. In late January SUDENE signed an agreement with 
the Northeast state governments to distribute seeds through the State Secre
tariats of Agriculture at low prices. 

In some areas in the eastern-most part of the NE (Alagoas, Pernambuco. 
Sergipe and Bahai) the drought conditions have continued. 

Therefore, SUDENE proposes to close its emergency work front projects on 
a carefully scaled basis. Since it expects to close all of them by May 80, 1971, 
in mid-April It requested USAID to cancel, to the extent possible, remaining 
shipments of P.L. 480 Title 11 commodities. 

Other Assistance: 
In addition to the response to the drought situation by SUDENE, three of 

the individual state governments, with USAID's concurrence, rapidly expanded 
their"on-going P.L. 480, Title II, food for work development projects, that have 
been underway for the last five years (Oear, RGN and Paraiba). 

The Brazilian counterparts of three U.S.voluntary agencies-Catholic Relief 
Services, Church World Service and Lutheran World Relief have also provided 
considerable assistance to drought-affected workers and their families. By re
scheduling amounts originally programmed for southern Brazil, it is estimated 
that these voluntary agencies added approximately 6,000 mt of P.L. 480, Title 11, 
coammodities to work-type and family type projects in the drought-affected area. 

In Conclusion: 
In summary, the various Brazilian governmental 'and private voluntary 

agencies responded to the severe Northeast drought with alacrity and good 
organization. SUDENE fulfilled its coordinating role and may be credited with 
having diffused a potentially explosive situation. 

Although the worst of the drought appears to have ended due to the arrival 
of seasonal rains now covering a large area, SUDENE and the voluntary agencies 
continue to program projects of rehabilitation and agricultural development. 

By Alay 1, 1071, SUDENE had used 16,000 mt of P.L.480, Title II, commodities 
at an estimated U.S. cost, including ocean freight of $3.1 million. The voluntary 
agencies have programmed approximately 6,000 mt at a cost of $1.2 million. 
Expanded food for work and other on-going Food for Peace programs in the 
most severely hit states are estimated to have used an additional 2,500 mt at a 
cost of about $500,000. 

Thus, it is estimated that the U S. Government response in P.L.480, Title IT, 
Food for Peace commodities has, to-date, totalled approximately 24,000 mt at a 
US$ CCC cost, including ocean freight, of $4.9 million. The cost to the Brazilian 
Government is estimated to exceed $60 million in direct expenditures, -notinclud
ing the loss to the economy of this traditionally poverty-stricken underdeveloped 
region. 
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Using standard economic indicators, please contrast the economic situation of the Northeast wltbthat of the South. 
1.Area: 620,00 square miles, 19 percent of Brazil. 
2. Popuation: 

Number Percent of 
(millions) Brnzil 

1940---........................................................................ 14.4 35.0 
1950-----........................... ---------------------------------- 1is 0 '34.6 
1960------------------.------------------.-------------------- --------------- 22.4 31.6 
1970 (early census results) ---------------------------------------------------- 27.3 22.6 

3. Growth rates of gross regional product and gross national product (percent per year): 

Brazil Northeast 

1960 .----------------------........................--------------------------- 9 8
 
1961---------------------.--------------------------------------- ---------- 10 7
 

5 6$
1962 --------------------------.----------------------------------------

1963 ------------------------- _----------------------------------- 7
1964 ................................................................. ......... 3 4
 

1965.............. ... .....------------------------------------------------- 7
 
1966L .----------------------------------------.................. 6...........
6
 
1967---------.......---------------.-------------------------------------- 7 7
 
1968----------------------------------------............ . .------------------- 8 8
 

7
1969..................-----------------........... .............. 


4. Per capita income-Northeast as petCentof rest of country: 
1950--------------------------------------------- - ----------------- 3
 
1960-------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 42
 

1962-. -- - ------------------------------------------------------------------ ------- ------ 41
 
1969 _-----------.......................----------------------------------------------------------- . 41
 
1964 ------------------------------------------------ -- --------------------...... 4
 
1965--- -------------------.----------------------------------------............................. 51
 
1966.................- ..... .-------------- -------.. 53
 
1967 ------------------------------------------------------ ----------------- 54
 
1968 ..................................................................................---------- 57
 

------------- W------W--------------------------------------------------
5. Ratio of Federal Government expenditures I in Northeast to Federal receipts from region

1965...--......-........................................................M........................... 170
 
19H ................. 148
 
1967---------------------------- -------------- ------------------ ----- 183
 

1968---------------------- ---------------------------------------- 20 
...... .... .-------------..-.-----1969 ......... ........ ......... ........ 166
 

arFederal tax rebates for investment in the Northeast included in expenditures. 

'6!34118 deposits (during the period of 1962 to 1970, corporations could get back up to 50% of theirincome taxesif they
 
would deposat these taxes in the bank of ths Northeast to be used later in ndustrial-investment projects. They are zalled
 
the 3418.deposils after the numbers of the authorizing laws): ,C.
 

,millions 
of 1970
 

........... .................... .
1962.....................................---- "-----------....... ..--- 96

1963--------------------------------- - -----------------------.-------- 7
 

1963--------------------------------------------------------
1964 ........ - ------------ ---- --- -191
 
1965------------ ------------------------------------------------------- 487
 
1966------ -------------------- ---- .--------------------------------------- 54
 
1967 ..................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...............................--- -- - -- . . . . . . . -- M-- - -M-- M- 697
 

196------------------------ ------------------------------------- 667
 
1969-- -- -- - . --------------------------- 729
.............---................ 

1970--------------------------------------........ -------- -------- 800
 

Total Cor US$905,000,000)... . ..-----.-------.---------- --- --------------- ------- 4,226.9 

7. Per capita electric power consumption: 

east 
percent 

of Brazil 
1961 ......................................-------------------------------------------------- 18
 
1962............................................. ------------------------------------------- 18
 
1983__ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..-------------------20
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
 
1964------------- 0.--------.------- ------------------------ _--------- -- .24
 
1965 ......------------ -------- 0... " 27
------------------------------ --------------------....... 

1966-------------------- _ .... 2. .-M---------
.............. ..-------------------------.--.--- 29
 

----._. .. .. . -_ .......... . 8
1967 _ _ ------------------ .-. .. .. ... .... ........ -- , 

.-----------------------------------------1968-- ------------ .......... 
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8.Share of foreign tradea 

Exports Imports 

1960. 23.0 5,0 
16969 .............................. 6.1.................................... 19.0 


9.Share of industry: 

Northeast as percent of Brazil 

1960 1968
 

Textiles ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 14 12

Food products------ ........--------------------------------- 8 11
 
Tobacco -------..................................--.------------------------- 7 17
 
Perfume, etc. ----------------------.------------------------------------------ 7 6
 
Leather----................................ ------------------------------ 6 7
 
Chemicals-------------------------------------.-------..................----- 6 11

Nonmetallic minerals----------------------------- ----------------------------- 6 9
 
Beverages -------------------- ........................ 5 9
 
Paper ------------------------------------.-.-.-....... .......------------- 4 3
 
Clothing and shows ------------..-------...........-------- -- 3 5
 
Furniture ---------------------------------------------------------- ---------- 3 4
 
Printing---------------------------------------------.------------------- -. 3 5
 
Wood------------------------------------------------------------ 2 3
 
Metals ------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 3
 
Others- ------------------------------------------------------------....................... I
 

Total--------------.......................- ..................... 6 7
 

10 Adult literacy: 

Percent of populatin 

Northeast South 

1940-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 28 54
 
1950------------------------------------------------------------------------ - 32 60
 
1968 (members of.work force) ------------------------------------------------- 60 90
 

11. Comptete primary School: 

Northeast South 

Percent of popu'ation 10 years and older: 
1940------ -. . . . . . . ..----------------------------------------------------2 7
 
1950-------------.----------------------------------------- ------------- 5 21
 
196- .-------------.---------------------.......................... 24
12 


12. Complete secondary School: 

Northeast South 

Percent of population 15 years and older: 
1940-----...... ............................ _0-------------k5 1.S
 
195_--------------------------------------- -------------- -------------- 1:2 4.6
1968 ..... .........................----------------------- 3.1 5.9
 

13. Diet-Calores per day: 

'Braz1i Northeast 

1960 -------------------------------------------------------------------------- 2,90D 12,500
1969 --------------------------------------------------------------------------- 3,100 2;700 

I Below 2,GCO inpoorest groupdin cities and insugar cane area 
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14. Mortah itrates ncapital citles: 

Whole population - Less than I year old 

1969/61 1969 4959161 1969 

Northeast ------------------------------------------ 16.8 12.8 149.7 129.1
S9o Paulo ------------------------------------------ &2 9.1 64.8 51.9 

15. Average lifeexp ectancy. Inyears: 

1950 1964 

Northeatet ...................................................................
. . 42 49 
Rest of Brazil ................................................................... 48 58 

16. Populahon/physiela ratio: 

1960 1968 

Northoeast ............. 3,900 4,300

Bri.zil ---- 3501......................80.................1,850
11850 

,SIZE OF PRESENT AID PROGRAM 

Senator Cmutc. What is the size ofthe AI) program to Brazil for 
the current year? 

Mr. ELLIS. For fiscal year 1971, talking about the dollars or people 
or dollars? 

Senator'Oncxmon. Dollars. 
Mr. ELLIS. We have, as I 'said earlier, authorized $42 million in 

loans. We have a couple of other loans which may be authorizedthis,
fiscal year but I would not expect the total to-exceed $65 million this 
year, probably somewhat less, as compared with the actual figure last 
year of $75 million. This is loans. Our grant program is also reducing.
It was $13 million in 1970 and this year it 'is $11.2 million. The con
gressional request for next year is $10.3 million. 

Senator COuRo. What about technical assistance, Peace Corps, and 
the other components of the AID program?

Mr. ELLIS. I have just mentioned the TC (technical cooperation)
.figure.The trendin the last 3 years, $13, $11 and $10 million. 

Senator C nt-o. The grant program you referred to was technical 
assistance? 

Mr. ELLIs. Yes. 
Senator Ca oH. What about the Peace Corps?
Mr, ELLS. This does not fall under my responsibility but I think 

I have it here: Peace Corps volunteers as of the end of March: 325. 
It fluctuated in previous years and reached a peak of 600. There has 
been a substantial reduction. 

Our TO program is more than half in education ,and agriculture
and the remainder is largely in what you might call the administra
tion- of our program. 'Even though our loan program now is fairly
small, it tends to have an accumulative effect, a snowball effect, and 
we continue to administer projects funded many years earlier. So a 
large share of our people, while they are under the technical assist
ance program--engineers, for examle-,are involved in the imple
mentation of the loan program. It is estimated that 40 percent of our 
staff are now involved -inimplemeltation of the loan program as op
posed to TO projects. 

http:3501......................80
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Senator Onumo. The total this year will come to less than $100 
million. 

Mr. ELLis. With the Public Law 480, Food for Peace, both titles, itnight exceed a $100 million byoa slight amount. 
n ator C11ntem Around $100 million. 
Mr. ELLIS. Around $100 million. 
Senator CnRicn. How would that compare with previous years so 

that I can get some idea of the trend? In totals. 
Mr. ELLis. I think 1965 was the peak year. No; it was $303 million 

in 1966. It does not include Export-Import Bank. So our present level 
is a little more than a third of our peak period. We held fairly con
stant-284, 281, 303--from 1964 to 1966. The real dropoff was 1969. 

NUMBER OF AMERICAN AID STAFF 

Senator Onuncn. How about your personnel? Your program now is 
about a third as big as it was. How does the total staff now compare to 
what it was? 

Mr. ELLIS. The total American staff now is.248. At the end of 1966, 
which is the peak end of year-it may not have.been the peak day but 
the peak end of year-was 433. So it is now less-than 60 percent of the 
peak. The reduction is not proportional to the reduction in dollars. It 
tends to be proportional to.the trend onteclmical.icooperation. 

Senator Onn on. Do you anticipate further reductions in'staff? 
Mr. ELTZS. Yes, sir. 
Senator Cnrciio. Are you planning them? 
Mr. EnLis. Yes, sir. I anticipate 15-, 20-percent reduction just on 

management grounds in the next fiscal year, quite apart from.possible 
reorganization, ceilings imposed, etc. 

Senator Cnnnoi. Mr. Holt.
 
Mr. HOLT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
 

FEDERAL TAX RECErS 

While you were talking about income tax receipts, I dug out'a table, 
which Mr. Dockery and I requested when we were in Rio. It shows 
that Federal income tax receipts in real terms have increased.from a 
base of 100 in 1961 to an index figure of'215 in 1969, butif my rapid
manual calculations are- correct, they decreased from 30t percent of 
total Federal tax receipts to 26 percent of' total Fhderal tax receipts 
in that period. 

(The information follows:) 
FEDERAL TAX RECEIPTS 

Total Income tax Income tax 
(incurrent 

CR$milions) 
Cincurrent 

Cr$millions) 
(in real terms 

1961=100) 

1961 .........------------------------------------- _ ----- 282:6 
1962 ----------------------------------------------- ------ 444:1 
1963-------------------............................... 845.8
1964------- .---.... ..-----------------------------------1,77.7
19655 ----------------------------------................. 102.6 
1966-------- - --............................ . -------.---- - 4,763.5
1967 ---------------------------------------- ------------- 5.U6.51968 .......................................------------- 9,951.6
1969 ---------..------------------------------------------- 14,40.9 
1970--- ------------------------------------..... () 

33.7 
115.6 
2429
482.4 

1.,022.6 
1,339.4
1,549.7
2.173.1 
3; 763.7 
4,628.O 

100.0 
90.9 

109.9
114.6 
154.4 
146.2 
131.7
148.6 
214.6 
221.1 

1Not available. 
Source: Ministerof finan. 
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Mr. HOLT. The main thing I think we ought to elaborate on in the 
record is the mechanics by which dollar resources are transferred in 
these sector loans that you described to begin with. Could you tell us 
in some detail about this in connection with the education loan, for 
example, which is the biggest of the lot at $50 million. It is a loan for 
$50 million. What happens to those dollars that you disburse in that 
loan? 

Mr. ELLIS. I want to make a comment on your previous remarks. I 
think the spectacular increase in income taxes occurred in the last 3 
years, and I think that during that period you would find that as a 
percentage of total tax it has increased a great deal. Probably during 
the period of chaos (1961-61) the income tax tended to be ignored and 
probably fell. Compliance was poor. 

SIILARITY BETWEEN PROGRAM AND SECTOR LOANS 

Now, on the education loan: I might also say that this is the second 
education loan of a similar type. The first one was for approximately
280 modern junior high schools in four States of Brazil. The second 
one is somewhat more flexible and can be used for any intelligent part
of the expansion of the public school system. 

Most of the expenditures are in cruzeiros; they are not in dollars. 
There would be a limited amount for modem equipment, training de
vices, and American professors, and.sending graduate students abroad. 
But probably at least 90 or 95 percent of the money will be spent in 
Brazil. The expenditures are made in cruzeiros. 

The procedure is to reimburse the Brazilian Government on the basis 
of receipts, on a monthly basis. Some of the loans are quarterly, I think 
in this case it is monthly. 

Before any expenditures are made, they are authorized in advance. 
On any major expenditures, for instance, the contract is approved, the 
designs are approved, but then subsequently, after they are made, the 
reimbursement is paid. We deliver a dollar check to the central bank; 
the central bank, in turn, provides the cruzeiros to the executing 
agency, which is a unit of the Ministry of Education. 

Mr. HOLT. And the dollar check you deliver to the central bank then 
becomes the part of Brazil's overall foreign exchange reserves. 

Mr. Emzis. Yes, sir. 
Mr. Horc. So that the principal difference between a sector loan 

and a :program loan is that whereas the dollars in the program loan 
were tied to financing imports from the United States, the dollars in 
the sector loan are not tied to anything so far as foreign trade is 
concerned. 

Mr. Ems. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOT. So that although the sector loan is tied to Brazilian 

cruzeiro expenses in a given sector, be it education or roads or urban 
sanitation or whatever, the dollar disbursements from the United 
States are not really tied to anything. 

Mr. ELLis. That is correct. I would like 6o add that most of these 
loans are disbursed over a 3- to 5-year period. The education loan is a 
5-year program. We are talking about an average of $10 million a year 
and you do not have the same impact on the U.S. balance of payments
which you obviously would have with a $150 million program loan. 

Mr. HorT. Obviously not; but the
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Senator CnXRcH. Wait a minute; I want to be-sure I understand it. 
It is true if you take 1 year's loans and divide them into five parts that 
only one-fifth part would have its impact in any given year; but if you 
are making $100 million worth of loans each year, then you have a 
cumulative effect that becomes rather substantial; does it not? 

Mr. ELLIS. You are quite right. We started in this type of lending 
in fiscal year 1970. If we were to do it-5-year programs-and if you
would do it for 5 years you wouldgradually build up to a cumulative 
figure equal to your annual program. That is correct. 

Mr. HOLT. So that it is really not correct to say sector loans and pro
gram loans are two completely different kinds of animals. 

Mr. ELLTS. That is correct. 

DALANCE Or PAYMENTS AND BUDGETARY SUPPORT 

Mr. HOLT.What are the foreign exchange reserves of Brazil now? 
Mr. ELLIS. Foreign exchange reserves are approximately $1.2 bil

lion, but I think it isimportant to note the composition of those re
serves. To -some extent they are analogous to a man who goes down to 
the small loan company and borrows, lets say $1,200. He has a comfort
able reserve in his pocket but he has a very short term liability to'the 
finance company. The great bulk of these reserves consist of relatively 
short term money that has poured into Brazil in the last 2 years.

The accumulation has occurred almost entirely in the last 2 years 
and, as I said earlier, the average maturities are quite short. 

Mr. HOLT. But making allowance for that, and also making allow
ance for the fact that the level of U.S.lending decreased, the effect is 
still to support the Brazilian balance of payments in the same 
that the old program loans supported it. 

wa& 

Mr. ELLIS. Except for the magnitude the effect is the same, 'that is 
right, sir. 

Mr. HOLT. And it also has the effect of providing budget support for 
the Brazilian Government or local governments.

Mr. ELLIS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. I wanted to make that clear. 

TFRDfTERMINiED U.S. SOURCE OF RIOT EQUIPAMNT 

Just d couple of other things'to clear up the record. You heard yes
,terday the discussion with Mr. Brown.and General -Beatty about the 
police occupation of the University of Brasilia in 1968. Do you know 
the source of the equipment the police-used that still bad "USA" sten
ciled on it at that time. 

Mr. ELLis. I think 'we have that submission for the record: We,can 
read it now if you wish. 

Mr. H-OLT. Fine. 
Mr. ELLIS. Subject: Equipment. This is submitted by Public Safety 

but I think ordinarily you would clear this with the Department of 
-Defense. 

If you wish; Mr. Chairman. They will still get a-hance to clear it. 
Senator Cnru3c. Yes. 
Mr. EmLTs (reading) : 
Subject equipient-were olive-drab canvas pouches for carrying gas masks;

they had "US" stenciled in large black letters on the pouch; below the emblem 



--------- 

241
 

was an insignia believed to be of the U.S. Army Chemical Corps and in smaller 
size stenciled lettering a capital "U" and the words "Army Service Gas Mask." 

U.S. Aid- Public Safety was informed by the acting commander of the military 
police battalion that the masks were loaned to the military police by the Bra
zilian Army. 

Following the incident, U.S. Aid Public Safety advisers discussed the subject 
with Secretary of Public Safety for the Federal District and he made the decision 
to have all the U.S. markings on these pouches painted over with black paint. He 
later issued orders to the military police commander to make certain that all 
equipment on loan from the Brazilian Army be checked and U.S. markings painted 
over. 

FUT E SUPPORT FOR POLICE FUNCTIONS 

Mr. HOLT. What are USAID's intentions about continuing to sup
port the National Police Academy or associated police functions if 
Brazil either with equipment or local.currency after the public safety 
advisers are withdrawn ? 

Mr. ELLIs. We have no intentions to continue local currency support. 
We do plan to consider the desirability of sending individual trainees 
to the United States after the end of the program. But there would be 
no American advisers in Brazil. The trainees would be handled like 
any other leader grant or specialized training. 

GOV N3MENT-OWNED BUSINESSES 

Mr. HOLT. You have mentioned the dynamic private sector in Brazil, 
and the favorable climate for private investment. Do you know or can 
you supply for the record to what extent does the Brazilian Govern
ment own and manage business enterprises in the country? 

Mr. Eusis. I will,try to get an estimate for the record, Mr. Holt. 
Mr. HoLT. Of the 10 biggest corporations how many of them are 

government owned? 
Mr. Et.IS. Yes, sir. As you know some o! the largest corporations 

are.mixed government-private corporations. 
(Tie information follows:) 

Of Brazil's ten largest corporations7 eight are owned and/or controlled by 
Brazilian governmental entities. In considering the next ten largest firms, the 
picture is just the reverse, with eight.companies in private hands. 

The corporations are-: 

Rank and company name ,Activity Ownership 

1. Petrole0 Brasileiro-Petrobms ---------------------: ..... Oil-integrated ------------- overnmefit. 
2. Centrais Electrrcas do Sao Paulo . ....---------- Electric power............... Do.
 
3. LightServicos de Eletricidade ----------------------- do ---------------- Private. 

Mmo .......................
4. Cia. Vale do Rio Dce- ----.----------------------... -- GovernmenL 
5. Cis, Sidergica lacional-----------------.............. Steel ------------------------ Do.
 
6. Cia. Telelonica Brasiera -------_----.----------------- Communications -------------- io. 
7. Cia. Palista do Force e Luz ...................... ...... Electic Power ............... Do.
 
8. Cisa. de Cigarros Souza Cruz ------------------------------ Tobacco --------------------- Private. 
9. Centrals letricas de Minas Gerais- ..---- _------------ Electric power-------------- aovernmenL 

---------- ...10. Central Clleirica de rnas---------... -------....... do .... Do.
 
11. Cia. flidro Eletrica do Sao Francco ----------------------- Electric power---------------- Do 
12. S.A. Industries Votorantim............................... Sundry industries...---------- Privte.
 
13. Volkswagen do Brasil --------------------------------. .Automahiles ----------------- Do. 
14. Cia. Geral de Motores do Brasil ................................ do ..................... Do.
 
15. S.A. Inds Rewmidas F.Matarazzo ......................... Sundry Industries ............ Do.
 
16. Rhodia-Inds Quimicas e Texteis ------------------------ Chemicals and textiles--------- Do. 
17. Cis. Cervejaria Brahma .............................. beverages ................... Do.
 
18. Pirelli S.A Ca. Industrial Bras .......................... Rubber.... ............... Do.
 
9. Cia. Estadelal do Energia Electrica ------------------------- letric power-------------- Government. 

20. General Electric SA ..................................... Electric appliances............ Private.
 

As measured by the Getuilo Vargas Foundation In Conjuntra Eoonomica No. 9, -1970. 
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ATTITIUE TOWARD FOiEIGN INVESTNMNT 

Mr. HloLr. What is the attitude of the Brazilian business community, 
as distinguished from the Brazilian Government, toward foreign 
investment? 

Mr. E Lis. It depends very much on whose ox is being gored, Mr. 
Holt, and at the present time there *arefewer oxes being gored than, 
say, 3 or 4 years ago. The general economic boom, which has xesulted 
in high profitability in nearly every subsector of industry, has damp
ened the opposition'to private investment. In any country you have one 
group which is in fear of competition. You have another group which 
stands to profit by intelligent business relations with foreign invest
ment, introduction of technology, for example. And my impression now 
is that the second group has become dominant. This has always been 
the prevailing official policy view since 1964. But even within the pri
vate community you hear very little about what used to be a common 
political slogan "denationalization," which means the loss of Brazilian 
control-of their own industrial sector. 

Some of the institutional changes have helped, for example, the ex
pansion of the stock market and the availability of loan financing from 
abroad, as opposed to equity investment in Brazil. I mentioned this 
huge accumulation of foreign exchange, much,of this is loan financing 
for the private sector, and it has given the Brazilian firms an opportu
nity to deal with the foreign competition on more of a basis of parity, 
and thishas reduced the friction. 

Mr. HoLT. Are Brazilian companies at a disaldvantage vis-as-vis the 
foreign companies in obtaining bank credit? 

Mr. ELLIs. I think very little. This was very definitely not the case 
a few years ago. Much of the source of the irritation was that American 
companies could get money, say at a prime rate of 6 percent, and it was 
virtually impossible for Brazilians to get any long term money. That 
situation has altered there. Money is tighter abroad and more readily 
available internally, not only from Brazilian saving sources-but also 
fron the international:financial community. 

BRAZILIAN EXPORTS TO UNITED STATES 

Senator Cimicrr. Can you. tell me what raw materials Brazil fur
nishes and exports to the United States? Is it large; is there a large 
out-flow of raw materials from Brazil to the United States? 

Mr. ELLIS. Yes. You are thinking more of strategic items or what? 
Senator Cm-cH. No, I am,thinking more of basic minerals, -ores, 

fuels, petrolem. 
Mr.ELLIS. Definitely not petroleum. 
Senator Cnirmut. That kind of raw material that is needed to fuel 

our own-industry. I don't include coffee. 
Mr.ELLrS. Or sugar. That is what I meant by it. The only one that. 

I think would be significant in this sense is Manganese ore. 
Iron ore is expanding very rapidly but basically to other markets, 

Japan primarily. I would not say we are heavily dependent on iron. 
I don't know the share of manganese of total U.S. use. It amounts to, 
somewhat less than $20 million a year. 
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There may be some othet minerals that are of strategic importance. 
Senator CHUrcH. So as a source of raw materials Brazil is not highly

important to the United States; is that correct?. 
Mr.ELLis.Ithinkthat is correct, sir. 

TRUVATE INV ESTMENT 

Senator Cnunch. But you have tesfified that there are about $1.6 
billion in private investment on the part of American business, in, 
Brazil. Has that investment been going up rapidly since 1964 . 

Mr. ELUs. If you look at it in terms'of the-actual flow of money into 
Brazil, it hasn't been that dramatic. 

In 1964 the figure was minus $64 'million, an outflow. In 1969 it was 
only $64 million -net. 

Senator CHURcH. You are comparing the'amount of American cap
ital flowing into Brazil for investment purposes with the amount of 
profit being draw*n out. 

Mr. ELIS. No, sir. 
Senator CuxoH.'What do you mean bythat?
M ELLis. As opposed' to repatriation of capital. I am not talking 

about profit at all;.thkt is a separate thing. I I 
Senator CHURCH. You'are talking about repatriation of profit.
Mr. ELLIs. No, of capital. This is -a net figure on capital movement 

only, not profit. I I 
Senator ,Cumo. Capital movement; all right. That could -include 

profit, however. 
Mr. Eus.No, I have a table here with the-profit. 
Senator CHURcH. Yes'; U.S. net direct investment in Brazil, profit 

remittances to the United States, and the net effect on U.S. balance 
of payments. 

Mr.-ELLS. Now, in terms of -new investment decisions, which have 
not yet resulted in sizable flows of money, there have been some giant 
decisions -made and announced. One, the largest, was a 50-50 iron ore 
expansion project with United States Steel and a Brazilian public 
company,.mixed company, in the north of the-country. Another is the 
Hanna Mining Co. operation in the south, which is also iron ore and 
involves railroad and port facilities as well. Additional investments in 
the automobile industries. Alcoa inaluminum. Without any doubt the 
figures will begin to increase very sharply as these investments are 
actually made. 

I think the United States Steel deal was $400 million by each party, 
a total of $800 million. 

Senator CHUntc. Is it accurate to say that the present Government 
of Brazil is highly favored by the U.S. business community? 

SHOULD AM RICAN CAPITAL BE INVESTED AT-H10M1:ERATHER THAN-OVERSEAS2 

Mr.,ELs. Yes, sir. 
- Senator O auicu. In strictly economic terms, can you explain to 
me how- our own interests are advanced by encouraging an outflow 
of American capital into foreign investment as opposed to encour
aging investments of our capital' in our own economy?. 

Mr. ELLIS. Iii purely economic terms-
Senator CHURcH. Explain that. It has been our foreign policy for 

some years to encourage American private capital to iivest abroad. 
Now, in economic terms how does it benefit us to-encourage our capital 
to invest abroad instead of encouraging our capital to invest at home 
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in view of such obvious needs as the rebuilding of our own cities, the 
elimination of our own slums, the effective dealing with the persistent 
poverty of a fifth of our people? 

Mr. Emis. Mr. Chairman, if °this were to assume-but the options 
are really for the private company to invest abroad or invest in the 
States but not necessarily dealing with public problems. But take a 
firm, an individual. firm, General Motors, for example, talking about 
benefit to the United States, not Brazil. 

Senator CHURcH. Yes. 
Mr. ELLIS. First of all i the profitability of investment overseas. 

Now in the case of Brazil, history has not shown that investments 
have been more profitable than the same investments made in the 
United States. But obviously, the investment decisions were made on 
the assumption they would be, maybe in the longer run period. . 

An investment in a country like Brazil, with a large internal mar
ket, tends to give you a leg up on future expansion. It isa strategy for 
obtaining a market share. 

Senator Cnmcn. I could see how if I were the president of a large 
corporation, and many of our large corporations are becoming multi
national. in character, I might look at the world at large as my hunting 
ground and seek toinvest my money in places where the returns would 
be largest so as to maximize my profits. That is clear enough. But -why, 
in your judgment, should it be our public policy as a Government to 
encourage investment elsewhere if the purpose is.simply to maximize 
the profit of the.corporation? fow does it serve our national interest 
as a matter of public policy to encourage 'the investments of private 
capital in foreign countries? We not only encourage it, we guarantee 
it; we use public credit of various kinds to protect it. 

Mr. Envs. Mr. Chairman, I understand the question. Now are you 
asking about our political objectives or strictly our economic 
objectives 21 

Senator Cntumcx. Well, first of all, in economic terms, is there some
thing that I fail to see that would justify the public policy? I know 
there are other reasons, and we have discussed some of those other 
reasons earlier this afternoon, and I have raised questions 'about the 
premises that we base-these programs on. But I. fail to see-any economic 
'benefit that accrues to the United States,; that is, to our country at 
large; from encouraging and guaranteeing investment abroad, al
though I can see the benefit that can accrue in terms of higher profit 
to the investors. 

Mr. ELLiS. But if you sum up the total of these individual invest
ments, then the .profitability, profit remittances, in the long run have a " 
positive effect on our balances of payments-as we seemn Brazil, a slight 
positive effect. If, for example, the average profit remittance is5 
percent, then in 20 years you net out, and in 21 years, you ,are ahead. 
I think more importantly in terms of market strategy, the -relation

ship between investments and trade has ,more important effect on the 
balance of payments. Development of infrastructure by Caternillar 
Co. in Brazil, fbr example, good service facilities, has now given them 
a very large, almost assured share of the Brazilian market. 

They produce some Caterpillars in Brazil of very high quality and 
this gives them a leg up to sell others which they do not produce in 
Brazil because tho have established a good trade name and' service 
facilities in the country. 
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Again this is looking, at the thing purely from an, economic 
spoint. 

Senator CHamoi. Yes. You can see some long term advantage in 
the balance of payments and some strengthening of the market posi
tion so far as our exports are concerned. 

Mr. ELLIS. That is right.
 
Senator OnxtcIn. That would beyour answer.
 
Mr. ELLIS. From an economic standpoint, yes, sir.
 

VALUE OF TRADING WITH BRAZIL 

Senator Canon. Can you tell me the value of our trade with 
Brazil, so that we could compare it with the valueof-the.AID program?

Mr. ELmS. 1969 figures indicate around $800 million each way with 
Brazil. This represents 30 percent of Brazilian imports, and 26 per
cent of Brazilian exports. 

Senator CHURCH. Brazilian trade with the United States is roughly
what? 

Mr. ELLIS. $800 million. 
Senator CHUii H. As compared with an AID program ofat little.over 

a hundred. 
Mr. ELLIS. A little over a hundred. 
Senator CHURCH. So the trade would be roughly eight times as im

.portant to Brazil.. 
Mr. RILms. For exchange earnings. Yes. 
Senator CHURCH. As the AID program, is that a rough---
Mr. ELLs. In terms of the bilateral aid program; yes, sir. 
Senator Onuinn. Is there great concern in Brazil about the trend 

toward protectionism in the United States? 
Mr. ELis. Yes, there is, I would say it is probably the single biggest 

area of international economic concern in Brazil. This has occurred, 
ironically, at a time in which their exports have expanded spectacu
larly, 20 percent in-each of the last 2 years, -about double iyr the last 6 
years. And in the United States it tends to focus on specific items. 
Textiles is one which was a major irritant. Shoes appears to be a poten
tial area of what shall-I say, conflict, controversy.
 

Senator CHUo. Pat, do you'have more questions?
 
Mr. HOLT. Yes.
 

U.S. FIRMS ON .BRAZ.IAN STOCK MARKET 

You mentioned an increasingactivity in the Brazilian stock market. 
How many foreign companies or, subsidiaries of foreign companieshave stocks listed on the Sao Paulo and Rio exchange? . 

Mr. ELLIS. Very few, but I would rather get a paper back at the 
office and look it up. 

(The information follows:) 
-Preliminary data indicate -that the following shares traded on the Sio Paulo 

and/or Rio, de -Janeiro stock markets are held by U.S. interests:
 
Acos Vilares (IBEC).
 
Dandy Tubing
 
Cobradsma (Rockwell)
 
Ford Willys
 
Kibon (General Fdods)
 
Moinho Fluminense (Lona Star Cement)
 
White M.artins (Union Carbide)
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Thesame data reflect the following shares traded on the two major exchanges 
as being held by other foreign interests: 

Alpargatas (Bank of London, et al) 
flelgo -Mineira 
Ericsson Brasil 
Ferro Brasileiro (Belgo Mineira) 
Light 
Pirelli 
Mannesman 
Samitri (Beige Mineira) 
Souza Cruz (British American-Tobacco) 
Vemag (Volkswagen and Auto Union) 

TOINT OWNRSMflP OF COMPANIES 

Mr. HOLT. All right. What I am -getting at ishow many foreign 
.companies are willing to shar6-ownership with Brazilians,

Mr. ELLIS. So far very few, as opposed to an initial joint financial 
arrangement in other words, 50-50, 51-49. But most of them have 
not shown much eagerness to go public with existing equity.

Mr. TOLT.Would Brazilians welcome this if they did or do Brazil
ians resent it in view of the fact they do not? 

Mr. ELnis. Brazilians are ambivalent on this question; 'Mr. Holt. 
They recognize the desirability in the long rum of "Brazilianizing"
the companies, but in the. short run they don't welcome the competi
tion for their own savings. The money going into the stockmarket, 
after all, is a scarce resource, and they would prefer to-see, put it the 
other way, they would not like to see American firms with obviously 
a high marketability in the stockmarket, get this money before their 
firms did. 

On balance right now there is no great pressure tohave Americanfirms go public. 
oFOEIGN FnIIMS' SHARE OF 1EXPORTS 

Mr. HOLT.Isone of the,economic policies of the Brazilian Govern
ment to encourage exports, particularly o manufactured products? 

Mr. ELLis. Yes, sir. 
Mr. HOLT. Do foreign companies European as well as Americans, 

cooperate in this drive? 
Mr. Eris. Yes, sir. I think you. could say they have-'carried their 

share of the load. I cannot put my finger on the figure, but the share 
from exports of foreign firms, as I recall, is slightly higher than their 
proportional share of production in Brazil. 

Mr. loLT. If you could supply something on that for the record it 
would be helpful because when Mr. Dockery and I were in Braziltwe 
hakd some criticisms of fordigntfitms, particularly the Europeais, 
for not pushing exports.

(The information follows:) 
The manufacturing sector, where foreign investment is heavily concentrated, 

led Brazil's export expansion of the sixties. Manufactured exports increased 
by 26.8% annually during the period, as compared to 6.7% for minerals and 
3.5o for agricultural products. In 1967 exports of manufactured' goods -increased 
48% ; in 1968, 20%; and in 1969, 40%. While Manufactured exports constituted 
only 2.7% of total exports in 1963, they accounted for 42 5% of the arowth of 
exports between 1968-67 and more than half of the growth, through. 1969. 

Of the 834 foreign firms operating in the manufactured products sectors 
registered with the Division of Foreign Trade of the Bank of Brazil-CACX
(Classes 5, 6, 7, and '8 of the Brazilan Merchandise Nomenclature), ' 197, or 

IClasses 5, 6, 7, and 8 of the NBM correspond to chemical and pharmaceutical products,
machinery and vehicles, processed raw materials, and others, respectively. 
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one in four, exported in 1967. The sectors in which the proportion of foreign 
firms which export is the highest are metallurgy, steel, electrical and communica
tions equipment, mechanical and transport equipment. 

Table I shows that in 1967 foreign firms' share of exports for the total of 
the four sectors shown was 33.8% as compared to 39.2% and 27.0% for local 
firms and state-owned firms, respectively. Foreign firms' share was highest in 
Olass 6, machinery and vehicles (71.8%). Exports for state-owned firms were 
from three steel companies, the larger foreign share was composed of exports 
of 209 foreign firms and the largest share of private local firms was from ex
ports of 935 firms. 

Table 11 shows that while sectors in which foreign capital predominates 
(foreign share greater than 75% of capital in the sector) represented only 
12.6% of total manufactured exports in 1960, these sectors accounted for 38% 
of the growth of manufactured exports in the 1960-O8 period. In contrast, 
sectors in which local firms (private) predominate supplied 76% of exports of 
manufactured goods in 1960, but accounted for only 34% of the growth between 
1960-68.
 

In summary, the export participation rate of foreign firms is relatively high 
(one out of four firms), and much higher than that of local firms. Foreign firms 
export 'A of Brazil's total exports of manufactured goods and half of its ex
ports to LAFTA. Exports of foreign firms tend to be more intensive in modern 
technology than those of Brazilian firms and most of these are sent to LAFTA, 
as opposed to those of local firms which are sent to the developed world. The 
increase of Brazilian exports in recent years has-been led by exports of manu
factured goods. Foreign firms have played a major role in the export boom 
of manufactures. Within manufacturing, those sectors which have had the fast
est rate of growth of exports show a predominance of foreign capital. 

Brazilian exports of manufactured goods increased from $25 million in 1960 
to $172 million in 1968. As shown above, foreign firms contributed about 38% 
of this growth. In the absence of such a contribution, the increase in exports 
($147 million) would have been $56 million lower in 1968 (38% of $147 million) 
than was the case. While this amount is small relative to total exports (3.1%
in 1968), Brazil appears to be entering a period in which expansion of manu
factured exports will provide much of the growth impetus during the seventies, 
similar to that played by import substitution in the 1950's and early sixties. 
In the same way that foreign firms played a major role in import substitution 
in this earlier period, recent evidence indicates that they will make an impor
tant contribuion to this growth of exports in the seventies and thereby con
tinue their full participation in the carrying out of the Government of Brazil's 
export promotion policies. 

TABLE I- SHARE OF FO'IEIGN, PRIVATE LOCAL,AND STATE-OWNED FIRMS IN MANUFACTURED
 
EXPORTS. 1967
 

[i percent] 

Foreign Private 
firms local firms State 

Class 5: Chemical andpharmaceuhcal products ...................... 16.8 83.2 .............
 
Class 6: Machinery and vehicles---- . ..----------------------------- 71 8 28.2----------

ClassO- Manufactures of processed raw materials --------------------- 21.7 21.8 56.5
 
Class 8: Miscellaneous marufactures ................................ 20.7 79.3 --------------


Total ---------------------------.------------------------- 338. .39 2 27.0 

Source: FAJNZYLBER. Fernando "Estudio do Algunos Aspectos Bas:cos para la Formulacidn de una Estrategia de Ex
portaciun de Productos Manufacturados en Brasi." 

TABLE tl.-SHARE OF GROWTH OF MANUFACTURED EXPORTS OF STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN FIRMS, 1960-8 
[In percent 

Total Shared in 
manufactured growth 
exports, 1980 19040 

Sectors in which State-owned firms have predominant share ...................... 11.5 28 0 
Sectors inwhich private local firms have predominant share------------------------ 75.9 34 0
Sectors in which foreign firms have predominant share ----------------------------- 112 6 38.0 

Source: FAJNZYLBER. Fernando "Estudio do Alp=ns Aspectas Basicos pare Is Formuhcidn de una Estrategia do Ex
portacin do Productbs Manufacturados en Brasi,' 
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PURCHASE OF SMAL COMPANIES BY FOREIGN FMMs 

Mr. HOLT.When a small-.or medium-sized Brazilian company be
gins to be successful, is it likely to find itself bought by a foreign 
company?

Mr. ELLis. Well, except for the word "likely" it would be a matter 
of fact as to how many of these mergers or purchases have occurred 
in the last few years. They do occur periodically. I would doubt that 
they represent more than a small fraction of the total number of small 
and medium industries. 

Mr. HoT.But those that do dccur are publicized. 
Mr. ELLIS. They tend to be highly publicized, yes. 
Mr. HOLT. And do they tend to create resentment towards foreign 

business? 
Mr. ELLis. Well, as I said earlier, I think the general receptivity 

to foreign business 'has increased. There is less concern about this now 
than there -used to be. We calculated that total American investment 
represented, I think, 1.2 percent of the captial stock of Brazil, so that 
just simple arithmetic it would be impossible for this investment to 
dominate the industrial s~ctor. Now when things are going badly and 
Brazilian busin~sses are in financial jams, either because they can't 
get working capital at a reasonable price or the economy is in recession 
and they sell out by necessity, naturally 'there is an outcry. When 
things.are going well and- people sell out by choice there is much less 
friction. 

REAL WAGES. IN BRAZIL 

Mr. I-OLT. In the material the State Department submitted to the 
committee there is a statement that "real wages declined sinificantly 
from 1964 through 1968, and Brazilian and international trade imion 
opposition to economic policies increased." 

Can you tell us or supply for the record some statistics to show 
what has happened to real wages since 1964? 

Mr. ELLIS. Well, I am familiar with this paper, Mr: Holt, and there 
is an assumption here that the minimum wage is the best indicator of 
average real wages. It is the easiest indicator, but it is not necessarily
the best. There are two other phenomena which have occurred, which 
raise a question about this indicator. 

-One is the degree of compliance with the minimum wage. A large
portion, or fraction, of the wage earners don't even get the minimum 
wage, particularly in the rural areas. Our indications are that there 
is a higher rate of compliance with the minimumwage. 
. The second is that, as I said earlier, more and more people are-mov
ing up into a more modern sector of the economy, where the wage
levels are higher than the minimum wage, a type of "blue collar up
ward mobility." So for both these reasons my own view is that the 
minimum wage understates the real wage trend. I will do my best 
to document that for the record, Mr. Holt,. 

(The information follows:) 

http:small-.or
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Broazt--ndex of Average Real Earningsin Manufaeturig:1960-69 
(1968=100)

Year: fude No. 
1990 ----------------------------------------------------------- 86
 
1961 87
 
1962 --------------------------------- ----------------------- - -__ 88
 

1963 100 
1964 96 
1965 91 
1966 87 
1907 - 85 
1068 ------------------------------------------------------------ 90 
1969 90 

Source: Agency for International Development, "Summary Economic and Social Indi
cators 18 Latin American Countries: 1960-69." 

A fufther indication of probable recent trends in real wages may be gained 
from the attached table which compares average wage adjustments under the 
official formula with the cost of living increase. A8 may be seen, since mid-1968 
the wage adjustments have tended to exceed the increase in the cost of living 
by 1-2% on an annual basis. 

WAGE ADJUSTMENTS UNDER OFFICIAL FORMULA ' 

jIn percent] 

1968 1969 1970
 

Cost of Cost of Cost of 
Average wage living Average wage living Average wage living

adjustment increase adjustment increase adjustment increase 
over pre- over pre- over pro-

Private Public vious 12 Private Public vious 12 Private Public vious 12 
sector sector months sector sector months sector sector months2 

January---------- 18.6 19.9 24.5 25:2 -24.7 24.0 26.4 26.4 22.6 
February --------- 18,4 18.7 22.4 25.,7 25.4 23.6 24.8 25 3 21.7 
March--------- 18.8 21,5 22.4 24.6 24.1 23.4 24.4 24.8 21.9 
April------------ 19.5 21.6 21.0 25.2 23.7 23.9 25.0 24.9 23.0 
May ........... 25.3 25.8 20.6 21.2 20,6 22,7 23:7 24.1 22.7 
June ------------- 26.1 ,33.8 19.0 21:2 17.9 21.8 2321 24.9 22.3 
July ............. 30.0 29.9 22.6 21.3 19.5 20.0 23.8 23.8' 20.8
August........... 25,0 25.3 21.4 24.4 23 2 21.0 23.0 23.1 21.3

September--:---- 25.3 24.6 22.2 24.2 24,0 21.1 23.9 24.2 22.9 
October ---------- 25.3 26.2 22.0 25.1 25.1 22,5 24.3 . 23.7 22.9 
November ....... . 25.6 26.4 23.2 26.1 26.1 23.0 236 ---------- 22.5 
December---------24.5. 25.1 22.8 28.2 26.4 24.5 ........................ 
Annual average__ 28.5 24.9 22.0 24.4 23.4 22.6.....................
 
1st semester 

average ........ 21.1 23.5 21.7 23.3 22.7 23.2 24.5 25.0, 22.3
 

'Data fora iven month represent the simple average of the adjustmets which were reported during that month.
2Through 1969 the cost of livingindex used inwage adjustments was that of Rio de Janeiro; since January 1970a new 

national cost of living index is being used. 
Source: Ministry of Labor, National Depaitmentfor Wage Adjustment 

PR-flCTS CRITI'IZED BY GAO 

Mr. HOLT. Thank you. 
In a report from the General Accounting Office in 1968 GAO was 

critical of a number of AID major capital projects and in the response 
to GAO, AID commented on the political and economic situation in 
Brazil and informed GAO that normal AID criteria and procedures 
had had to be relaxed somewhat because of overriding U.S. political 
considerations. What were those overriding U.S. political considera
tions? 
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Mr. ELLIs. Well, if my memory is correct the last of those loans was 
made in 1964, maybe one in early 1965. Most of them were made in the 
last few months of the Goulart government or perhaps inthe first few 
months of the new government but had been under negetiation pre
viously. They were an attempt, they were part of a deliberate strategy, 
to support State governors or regonal institutions which were ready 
to -cooperate with the United 9tates in the development of their 
states or institutions under the Alliance for Progress, and which we 
thought might be personalities or states [deleted]. 

Examples are the state of [deleted] where [deleted] was governor 
at the time; the state of [deleted) where [deleted] was governor. 
[Deleted.] But with respect to the projects, there were 11 or 12, as I 
recall, 11. Nine of them are operating satisfactorily or better; some of 
them turned out to he excellent projects. 

Two of them are still in trouble. The worst of the 11 is the synthetic 
rubber plant in Recife. 

Our share of that project was 10 percent. It was $3.4 million of a $30 
odd million project. The loan is not in default. It is being paid, and 
from the standpoint of AID management it was not a major disaster. 
I am not condoning the fact that it is a bad synthetic rubber plant only
mentioned that AID had a relatively small piece of it. 

The-other bad project, or project in difficulty, is in the state of Mato 
Grosso, among the largest and poorest and most remote areas. Power 
distribution over long distances involves very high unit costs. In the 
poor areas it is extremely difficult to impose a rate structure on rural 
or semi-rural clients that would amortize that loan. But from the stand
point of the development of the state it is probably a very important 
project. It is in default now, although AID is being paid by the 
guarantor. 

Mr. HOLT. There are, I have a number of questions here 
Senator ClucH. I just want to comment here that I think your 

answer was given most candidly, and [dMeted]. I don't know of any 
country that has undertaken to spread so much money in such a 
pofligat e way in so many foreign lands [deleted] as has the United 

tates. No wonder so many people have come to the conclusion that 
we are the most imperialistic nation in the world today. I think this has 
the enormous potential for backfiring. 

AMERIAN INSTITUTE FOR FREE LABOR DEVELOPME-BNT 

Mr. HoLT. I have a number of questions here on the American In
stitute for Free Labor Development in Brazil which I would ask 
you to answer for the record. You need not do it now. 

Mr. IELLTS. Yes, sir. 
(The information follows:) 
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AIFLD Aoiv~try AND' FUNDING if BRAZIL 

1- Show total AX.D. funding for AIFLD/Brazii for FY 1970, 1971 and pro
posed 1972. 
FY 19 0 $777, 000 
FY 171 ------------------------------------------------ 468, 000 
FY 1972 --------------------------------------------------------- 625, 000 

2. Show total A.I.D. funding-through AIFLD subcontracts--to International 
Trade Secretariats (1T~s) in Brazil for FY 1970, 1971 and proposed 1972; and 
idestify each Secretariat involved. 

AIFLD has not sulcontracted with International Trade Secretariats for 
work in Brazil luring the years in question. Subcontracts have been made-with 
the-following U.S. unions for work in Brazil in the amounts shown. 

Calendar Calendar Calendar 
year 1970 year 197L year 1972 

Chemical Workers of America ............----------------------------------------- 2,000 -------------

Retail clerks International ....................................... $2,700 '10,600 $8,100
 
Internatlonal Federation of Petroleum and Chemical Workers.......... 1,600 5,600 ........ .
 
Brotherhood of Railway. Airline and Steamship Clerks, Freight Handlers,


Express and Station Employees ---. . . 1,500
. ..---------------------------------------- 6,000
Textile Workers Union of America---------------.-------------------------------- 2,000 6,000 
American Federation of Musicians--------------.---------------.--------------- 2,)00 ............ 
Agrarian Union Development Services ---------..................................... 2,400 25,400 

Total' ---------------- ------------------------- 4,300 26,100 45,500 

," These totals are in addition to the amounts shown in item I above. 

3. Identify all ITSs and-other international or regional labor organizations in 
Brazil, including the address of each. 

The Inter-American. Regional Organization of Workers (ORIT) maintains an 
office ia?.Brazil located at Rua Alcindo Guanabara #24, Sala #1315, Rio de 
JTaneiro. There are no ITS's presently operating in Brazil. 

4. Is the International Metal Workers Federation currently operating in Bra
zil? Please explain. 

Tle Government of Brazil has closed the office of the International Federation 
of Metal Workers (IMF). International labor organizations are required to ob
tain authorization. from the Government of Brazil to operate in-that nation. The 
closing of the Brazilian office of the IMF resulted from the inability of that 
organizatioji to obtain the necessary GOB authorizatibn. 

5. How many AIFLD people ate presently in Brazil? How does this-compare 
with two years ago? Five years ago? 

1971 1969 1566 

'U S.nationals---------------.-------------------............ 6 7 9
 
Third-country'natonals -------------------------------------------- I I I 
Brazilian nationals ----------------------------------............. 22 31 44
 

Total ...... ---------------------------------- 29 39, 54 

'sU OF FR IGN GCUBR NOY IN AID PROGRAM 

Mr. IOLT. Could you also supply for the record a statetnent or a 
table on the use of foteign currency-cruzeiro balances in the AID 
program. 

(The information follows:) 
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CUMULATIVE AND ESTIMATE OF LOCALrCURRENCY USES I 

[lIn thousands of dollar equuvalents] 2 

Fiscal years
1S61-69 Fiscal year Fiscal year

cumulative 1970 estimate 1971 estimate 

1.COUNTRY USES.
 
A Country owned:
 

Agriculture and natural resources -------------------------- 86,382.5 33,277.9 14,595.9 
Industry and mining-----------... . . 1 76,235.3 36,420.9. . ..------------------- 25,825.1
TransportaUon ----------------.--------------- --------- 80,336 -17,697 1 1,220.0
Power ----------------------------------------------------- ------------ 1,627.8 ..........
 
Labor----------------------------------------------------- 19,734.2 4,302.2 1.383.9
 
Health and sanitation -------------------------------------- 1 1,838.0 10,627.8 12,374.0
 
Education ------------------------------------------------ 27,519.9 11,394.8 12,820.2

Public safety and public administrabon -------------------- 5,473.3 1,046.5 446.2
 

* 	 Community development social welfare, housing and urban
 
development --------------------------- --------------- 9,359.3 ..........
 

Budget support (unspecified as to sector) ----------------------- 3,488.3 4,370.5
Project and technical support overhead-trust fund------------ 5.210.3 7,929.9 4,935.0
Other (CONTAP) ----------- ---------------------- 24,929.5 2,325.5 2,-485.7 

Subtotal-Country owned -------------------------------- 457,018.8 119,543.0 91,052.3
8 US.-owned: 

Agriculture and natural resorces ................------------- 11,900.5 1,308.6 1.,465.0
Industry and m ...	 ..------------------------------- 35.0 35.0ng_.. 	 35,8210
Transportation ---------------- --...........................5,508,8
49,656 0 2,745.0
Power----------- _----.------------------------------ 31,838.8 1,091.8 4,070.0
Labor--- _------------------------------------ _ - 423.5 65.0 90.0]
Health and sanitation ------------------------------------ 9;352.3 55.3 40.0 
Educatioh ------------------------------------------------ 23,448.4 100.0 30,0 
Public safety and public administration ...................... 2,774.5 90.0 70,0
Community development, social welfare, housing and urban de

velopment----------------------------------------------. 7,539.3 95.0 70.0 
Budget support .............. . - --.................................................................... 
Other'

Techniol support................................2482,6--------------------

Project costs----------------........ -	 .........
--	 217,764.7.......... 


Subtotal-U.. owned ................................. 193,001.6 8,349.5 " 8,665.0
 

Total-part I........................................ 650 020.4 127,892.5 9,717.3
 

I . U.S USES 
Admimstrative and other_..................................... 11,865.8 3,443.0 2,996•7 

-Total local currency uses ........................................ 	 61,886.2 131,335 5 174,447. 0
 

I Signing of specific agreement isthe point of use. except for trust fund forwhich Obligations Are point of use. 
2 Exchange rates used: Fiscal year 1961-68, Othe. NCr$ 1.795 to 1US$; Trust fund, NCr$ 2 735 to 11US5. Fiscal year

199, NCr 3 78 to IUS$; Fiscal year 1970, NlCr$ 4.30 to 1 US$, Fiscal year 1971, NCr$ 5.06 to 1[S$. 
Due to incomplete information, we are unable to showthe cost breakdown by sectoral categories for project grant cash 

currency conversions. 

WITNESS, SERVICE IN BRAZIL 

Mr. HoLr. Finally, what are the dates of your service in Brazil? 
Mr. ELLIs. I have been director of the AID mission there since 

July 1968. 
Mr. HOLT. Were you in Brazil prior to that time?9 
Mr. ELLIS. Yes; I was deputy director of the AID mission from 

August 1961 until August 1967. 
Mr. OILT. So you have been in Brazil substantially for 7 years. 
Mr. ELL S. A good part of my adult life. 
[Laughter.] 
Senator Muon. 'WhenI first m~t our witness we were both bbys. 
[Laughter.] 
And it was in Rio. 
Mir. ELLIS. The first time we met was in Djakarta, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator Carmc. Djakarta the first time. Then we met in Brazil. 
Mr.ELIxS. That is right. 
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Senator COnrcn. Well, I think your testimony has been extremely
responsive and frank, which we appreciate, and you obviously have 
a thorough Inowledge of the program, and I sense a high degree of 
competency in administering the program. The underlying wisdom 
of the program is a question that lies at a policy level that is not 
your responsibility. But it is part of our responsibility on this com
mittee to attempt, to reach some judgment on those policy questions.
Your testimony in filling out the facts is very much appreciated.

Mr. ELLis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
(Whereupon, at 4:40 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.) 

63-373 0-71---17 



U.S. POLICIES AND PROGRAMS IN BRAZIL. 

TUESDAY, VTA.Y 11, 1971 

UNITED STATES SENSin,. 
Sncom3nrrEE ON WESTh- HMIsPHERE ArrAns 

OF TEE COMMfTTl'E ON FoRiEiGN RELATIONS, 
Washington,D.C. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to recess, at 2:30 p.m., In room 
S-116, the Capitol Building, Senator Frank Church (chairman of 
the subcommittee) presiding. 

Present: Senators Church, Pell, Aiken, and Pearson. 
Also present: Mr. Marcy, Mr. Holt, and Mr. Dockery, of the corn

mittee staff. 
William Ellis, Director, AID Mission, Brazil; Robert W. Dean, 

Director of the Office of Brazilian Affairs, Department of State; and 
Michael A. Samuels, Bureau of Congressidnal Relations, Department
of State. 

Senator nu"cm. The hearing will come to order. 
Mr. Ambassador, if you would just be-seated we will commence the 

hearing. Other Senators, Mr. Cooper of Kentucky, Mr. Javits of -New 
York, and the chairman have indicated thit they expect to be here. 
I think we 'should 'proceed so that we can be certain of completing 
your testimony this afternoon. 

As you know, the purpose of these hearings is mainly to review 
American policies in BraziL IWe have heard from several earlier wit
nesses, the- director of your AID program who testified last week, and 
the general in command of the military mission in Rio, and also the
director of th6 public safety program, so we appreciate your coming
and we look forward t6 hearing your testimony.

The practice of the committee has'been to administer theoath t6the 
witnesses, and if you have no objection, I would ask you to stand and 
take the oath. Do you solemnly swear the testimony you will give this 
subcommittee will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 
truth, so help you God. 

Mr. IonXn' F.I do. 
Senator Cnvno. Please be seated and proceed with your testimony 

as you care to present it, and if there is any part of it that you can 
summarize we will be sure that the entire statement is incorporated in 
the record. 

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM M. ROUNTREE, U.S. AMBASSADOR TO 
BRAZIL 

Mr. RouxTn. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
At the outset I would like to thank you for the-consideration which 

the subcommittee showed in permitting me. to-appear 'at a somewhat 
(255) 
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later date than that requested in order that I .might pursue longstand
in plans for atrip to the northeastern part of Brazil. 

enator COuRcH. We were happy to do that and we know it was 
no small inconvenience for you to come this distance to testify before 
thesubcommittee, and we want to express our appreciation.

Mr. Roux rE. I am here, Mr. Chairman, in response to the sub
committee's request that I appear today to discuss U.S. policies toward 
Brazil, and I am happy to do so. 

Brazil, the largest of our neighbors in the hemisphere both in terms 
of geography and population, is a country with which the United 
States %as enjoyed a close and friendly association throughout our 
respective histories. We have been allies in two world wars. Brazil 
shared in the OAS presence in the Dominican Republic in 1965-1966. 
For many years the United States aAd Brazil have cooperated in a, 
wide range of areas of mutual concern; Brazil is a country whose 
friendship for the United States and acceptance of its responsibilities 
to the world community have been demonstrated in multiple ways. 
I consider it a high honor to serve as U.S. Ambassador to that nation, 
and I have undertaken my responsibilities fully in the context of 
President Nixon's concept of the mature partnership which should 
characterize our relations. 

No two countries, however closely alined and whatever their com
mon interest, can conduct relations as active as those between Brazil 
and the United States without difficulties arising from time to time. 
Brazil, of course, is no exception; problems have arisenin the past, they
exist now, and they no doubt will arise in.the future. But these can and 
should be worked out on the basis of mutual respect and understanding. 
I am happy-that many recent issues have been resolved in this spirit, 
and I expect that those remaining will be. Such difficulties have never 
diminished the cordiality existing between the peoples of the United 
States and of Brazil, or the determination of their leaders to build 
upon the ties which,bind us together. We should strive-to assure that 
this continues. 

In inviting me to be present here today the subcommittee indicated 
a particular desire that I be prepared to discuss my view of the U.S. 
national interest in Brazil, and what policies would best promote that 
interest. 

In response to an earlier communication from the chairman, the De
partment of State in January provided to the subcommittee extensive 
material' including, at its outset, a statement of U.S., national interest 
in Brazil. I have gone over this material and wish to associate myself 
with thatreply. 

(The material referred to is as follows:) 

RESPONSE To T'E 1NQ1=Y FROM THE OHAIMANr OF THE SuiBcoMITTEE ON WEST-
ERN HEMISPHERE AFFAIRS OF THE SENATE FOREIGN RE aTIONS COMMITTEE 

1. What is the U.S. national interest in Brazie? 
The -United States has a continuing interest in the economic and social progress

of Brazil and in the steady improvement of the quality of life in that Country, as 
it has in other developing countries in the world. This interest is founded, in-a 
combination of national self-interest and humanitarianism. A healthy, growing, 
developing Brazil is important to the good health of the Hemisphere and world 
community and thereforeto our own good health. 
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This broaddinterest in Brazilian-growth in -a~stable, open society,can be divided 
into traditional national.interests: security and economic. 

A. Security. Brazil represents half the land mass and half the population 
of South America. Deterioration 'from its current position as a friendly, inde
pendent member of the"free-world community to one of hostility would be a 
significant gain for world, forces opposed, to the United States. Conversely, as 
an emerging major power rich in human and natural resources, a friendly Brazil 
could continue to be a valuable support in any future confrontations with such 
forces, as it has been in the past-

B. Economic. Trade between the United' States and Brazil-annually amounts to 
about $700 million in each direction and is increasing. Worldwide, Brazil is-the 
twelfth largest market for U.S. exports and our eleventh most important foreign 
supplier. 

At the end of 19&9, the book value of U.S. private direct investment in Brazil 
was $1.6 billion. It represented 14 percent of total U;S. private investment in 
Latin America, and 2 percent of total U.S. private investment abroad. 

It is in our interest for Brazil to expand its open economic system, modernize 
its social structures and move toward responsive political institutions, and for 
us to continue to help Brazil work for balanced economic and social growth. 

Our long-term concein, therefore, is to pursue policies which will support 
Brazilian activities leading to the objectives of balanced, sustained economic 
growth and socially responsive institutional development. 

How, if at al, has'itohangeasincoe Worldar If? 
Our 'national interests in Brazil have 'remained the same since 1945. 

IMPORTANCE OF BRAZTL rO UNITfD, STATES 

I consider that 'a growing, developing Brazil is important to the 
hemisphere and the world community, and therefore, important to 
us. I believe that the United States has a continuing interest in the 
steady improvement in the quality of liEfe in that country. The United 
States should continue policies designed. to assist in those areas, sudh 
as economic and social progress, -whereour efforts contribute'positively 
toward constructive ach-ievement. 

I believe it is in the national interest to maintain 'and strengthen 
our long-standing cooperation with Brazil in matters of common 
concern. We should preserve and promote the traditionally close co
operation with Brazil as a means of protecting our own national s6cur
ity and of contributingtoward theirs. 

I believe' that our, nationA interest involves a healthy commerce 
with Brazil. We should promote to the fullest practical extent bi
lateral trade with that country, which with.a current annual two-way 
total exceeding $1.4 billion, ranks 12th in U.S.exports and 11th in 
U.S. imports in -all the world. With its rapidly developing 'economy 
Brazil offers great possibilities for steadily increasing trade, bene
fiting both: our nations. 

I consider'it to be in our national interest to encourage those existing 
economic policies; and public attitudes, inBrazil which lead' the Bra
zilian'Government and people to welcome foreign private investmeit; 
especially in 'areas that contribute to the development of that nation 
and to the expansion of international trade. 

Mr. Chairman, I strongly endorse the Department!s statement that 
we should pursue policies which will support Brazilian activities lead
ing to the objective of a baSanced sustained economic growth and so
cially responsive institutionl development. 

The promotion of our intrest in Brazil requires policies which, are 
friendly and cooperative and which at the same time avoid, involve
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ment in Brazilian internal affairs. I have mentioned that bilateral 
problems have arisen and do exist, and must be expected in the future. 
The Brazilians have adopted policies and programs uniquely their 
own, designedto meet their concept of the needs of the nation across 
the spectrum of life. Many of their internal policies are similar to or 
consistent with our own concepts; others differ. A mature partnership 
such as that which characterizes our relations does not lend itself to 
the exercise of undue influence upon matters which by their nature 
must be resolved by the Brazilians themselves. Our friendly advice 
and assistance should always take this into account; otherwise it would 
be highly counterproductive. 

BRAZIL'S ECONOMIO PROGRESS 

Particularly during the past few years Brazil has achieved remark
able economic progress. Its gross domestic product has increased from 
about $20 billion in 1960 to more than $85 billion at the present time. 
Its exports have risen from $1.27 billion in 1960 to $2.72 billion in 
1970. This progress is, of course, attributable for the most part to the 
sound economic policies of the Government of Brazil and the efforts 
of the Brazilian people. No doubt, however, the substantial American 
aid which has been. extended to Brazil has served as an important sup
plement to Brazilian resources, and I believe it has made a very sub
stantial contribution. With its increased resources and the added con
fidence which its progress has given the international community, 
Brazil's need for foreign credits is being met to an increasing extentby international lending agencies, commercial institutions and the Ex
port-Import Bank. Thus, our own bilateral assistance program has 
been reduced, and in future years will not need to be of the same mag
nitude as before. However, I consider a continuation of an appropri
ate level of bilateral assistance, including technical assistance, to be 
muck in our interest, as, of course, it is in Brazil's. Our present em
phasis upon projects in the fields of public health, agriculture, and 
education is appropriate, as is the pr'iority we assign to assisting 
Brazilian efforts to bring to the people of the northeast region of that 
country a greater share of the prosperity of the nation as a whole. 

"U.S. INTFOPRbATION PROGRA M 

May I add, Mr. Chairman, that one of, our most important tools of 
policy in Brazil is our information and cultural exchange program. 
Since my arrival in that country, I have been greatly impressed by 
the extent of goodwill generated by our USIS program, cultural ac
tivities, and the exchange of persons. In these times when there is so 
much misinformation and misrepresentation of the United States and 
what it stands for, it is indeed refreshing to see the positive results of 
our informational activities in Brazil. I believe that we should make 
every effort to strengthen this program, which in Brazil has been so 
well received., - .PEONL BAI 

To support our p.olicies in Brazil, there were employed on April 80, 
1971, in our agenxcies 588 US. citizens and 811 foreign nationals, ex
cluding the Peace Corps volunteers. We have Foreign Service Officers 
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at the Embassy and five consular establishments. The Embassy itself 
is moving gradually-this year to Brasilia from its previous main base 
in Rio de.Janeiro, with the latter subsequently becoming a consulategeneral. We have an AlTD'mission, still large hilt declinintin numbers. 

The Department of Defense, in addition to its.serviceattachs, main
tains a declining but sabstantial miitary group resp onsibleamong 
other things for our work with the nBrazl-lnted States iit ry 
Commission. Our .S. informgtion Service has representatives, andhelps in ,maintaining binational cultural institutes, in 11 principal 
cities throughout the country. The Embassy provides thii base twgwhieh 
are attachied representatives of a dozen other department~s knd agencies 
of the U.S. Government, in addition to those already mentioned. 

The subcommittee has ask~ed that I provide a detailed breakdown of 
United States Gbvernmnent personnel in Brazil, and the structure of 
our mission. I have this information and submit it now for the record, 

Mr. Chairman. 
Senator CO uonoC. Very -well. . 
Mr. R6uNinrn. Also, I have been asked to provide information re

garding Tranet Station 2008, which is a satellite tracking station lo
cated,at Sao Jose dos Campos, State of Sao Paulb,.providming geodetic
informition to the Unite d'States and Brazilian Governments. This 
station was established in 1960. The Goveriunent of EiBzil, in response 
to a request made by the Enbassy, auithorFzedf N6i Mexico State Uni
versity to operate the station in cooperation'with Brazil's National 
Commission for Space Activities. The university provides a full-time 
station manager wh6 is assisted at times by research personniif from 
the United States. All data. obtained by the stationi, which is.1ocated 
on the site of the Air Technological Institute of thi Brazilian Air 
Force, are available to both governments. I I 

I will-be-happy, Mr. Chaitman, to answer any questions on these and 
other matters which members of thesubcommittee might have. 

-(Attachments to statement follow:), 

BRAZIL-COUNTRYWIDE-AMERICAN AND LOCAL PERSONNEL, APR30, 1971 

EAgency American Local 

Department of State......... .------------------------ .................. 131 233
 
United States InrormatIon Service ---------------------------------------------- 41 140
United states Agency for International Development -------------------------------- 248 334 
Atomic Enefg Commission - .......... ........................ 2.......2 .............. 
Federal Aviation Agency .................................----------------------- * 1 
Foreign Agriculture Service ----------.------------------- ------------------- -- 4 5 
Library of Congress--------------- -------------------- ---------------------- 15 
National Institutes of Health------------------------- - ------------------------------
Peace Corps------------------ ----------------------...................... '23 25 
Smithsonian Institute.............. ......... ............. . ........ 3 ------------
Treasury Attschd Office -----------------------------------------------------z 2 

I=terna! fevenue Service- -----------------------------------------........... 3 ------

United States Travel Service ..............................---- ---------------------.---------

Department of Defense;
 

AttaO ffices------ . I -------------------------------------------- 14 6

rDefense Research Office--------------....... -------------------------------- 1 2
 
Inter-American Geodetic Survey-- _-----------.------------------------1..... 12-l 

United States Marine Guards ................................................ 1 ........-.....
 
Navy Communication Technical Group ------------.------------------------ 25 2 
Mihtary Air-Ground Liatson Office --------------------------------------- 2---------
Pan-American Hoof and Mouth Disease------------------ --------- _--_ --------------I 
Students attached to Department of Defense-FAST program ........---------- 3 .......... 
United States Military Group ..........----------.---- ------------------ 54 s0 

Countrywide total ]------------------------------------ ------------------- -588 811 

' Total excludes 325 Peace Corps volunteers. 
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TRAWET STATioN 2008-SXo Josg Dos CAMpOS, STATE OF Sc ,PAULO, BRAZIL -

The attached documents constitute the written record from Embassy files of 
negotiations bet een the U.S. and Brazilian Governments with regard to estab
lishment and operation of Tranet Station 2008. 

1. Embassy note No. 545 of March 10, 1960 (unclassified) requested GOB per
mission to establish and operate a station in the State of- Sao Paulo as part of 
the Transit Navigational Satellite Program of .the U.S. Department of Defense. 
(Attachment 1) 

(On March 11, 1960, Ambassador Cabot was informed by Brazilian Foreign 
Ministry that project had been approved, by President Kubitschek. According 
to our files, there was no written reply to our note.) 

2. Embassy note No. 628 of April 18, 1900 (unclassified) requested custom 
duties and tax exemption for this authorized project. .(Attachment 2) 

(The exemptions were granted. There is no record of a written reply.) 
3. Embassy A-311 of November 1, 1067 (unclassified) (a) provides a copy of 

Embassy Aide-iimoire of September 5, 1967 (unclassified) requesting exten
sion of the authorization for the station to June 30, 1970, 'and (b) a copy of the 
Brazilian Ministry note of October 30, 1967 (unclassified) granting the request. 
(Attachment 3) 

4. Embassy note No. B-49 of September 18, 1970 (unclassified) requests ex
tension of the station for 10 years from date of signature of a new agreement. 
('Attachment 4) To date the Brazilian Ministry has not made a written reply. 
Meanwhile the station has been operating under an informal oral agreement 
among the agencies concerned, with 'indications that the formal written agree
ment will be forthcoming soon. 

NO. 545 

The Ambassador of the United States of America presents his compliments 
to His Excellency the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the United States of 
Brazil and has the honor to inform him that: 

1. A new satellite program of the Government of'the United'States of America 
is expected to produce basic scientific informdtion of great importance and 
ultimately to establish an all-weather navigational aid available to all nations, 
The project is known as the TRANSIT Navigational Satellite Program, and is 
conducted by the U.S. Department of Defense. 

2. Successful operation of the navigational system requires very precise knowl
edge-of satellite orbits which are measured by passive, i.e., receiving only, sta
tions. A survey of possible locations for such'a station in South America has dis
closed that Sio Paulo, Brazil, would be the most satisfactory site from which 
desired, orbital data and other technical information may be obtained. 

3. The contemplated receiving station would' continue in operation for eighteen 
months or more. The requirements of'floor space and power are'very modest and 
the antenna for receiving has been described as a television-type. 

4. Cominiilcations.between the station and the program's control center in 
the United States would require a full duplex teletypewriter circuit. Existing 
commercial facilities possibly supplemented by existing United States 'govern
'nental channels would be adequate for this purpose. The Government of the 
United States of America is prepared to maketall arrangements-with commercial 
entities for the leasing of lines and the provision of terminal equipment at Srio 
Paulo. 

5. The proposed station would be staffed by a team of four civilian technicians 
and the participation of Brazilian scientists and technicians in the program 
would be most welcome at all times. 

6. Equipment and personnel for the station would probably be brought into 
Brazil in a single transport aircraft. 

7. To meet planned satellite launching schedules, itis desirable that the-neces
saiy equipment and personnel arrive at SAio Paulo not later than April 1, 1960. 

The Ambassador of the United States of American recognizes that this proj
ect is being submitted to Ihe consideration of the Brazilianauthorities at a late 
date. He wishes to express the hope, however, that the Government ofthe United 
States of Brazil Will find it -possible to give its approvdl and support to this 
most worthwhile_ scientific, undertaking. Ap~roval, by the Government of the 
United States oi Brazil of the installation of the station'.des&ribad above would 
greatly expedite the ,successful achievement of project TRANSIT which has 
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basic scientific applications and the practical goal of establishing'a new naviga
tion system for the use of vessels of all nations 

If the Government of'the United States of Brazil approves the installation of 
the station in question, Brazilian guidance and assistance would be greatly ap
preciated in the selection of an, appropriate site, "which perhaps might be found 
at some established, Brazilian academic or scientific facility. Technical details 
on site requirements will be supplied to the interested Brazilian personnel. Fur
thermore, the following ,authorizations by the Government of the United States 
of Brazil would be required: (a) for the introduction of personnel and equip
ment by Atril 1, 1960: and' (b)- for the exemption from any customs duties or 
taxes in connection with the introduction into or removal from Brazil of the 
equipment of the station, which is the property of the Government of the United 
States of America. 

Endorsement of this program by the Government of the United States of 
Brazil and' the, subsequent participation in it by Brazilian scientific personnel 
should afford an early opportunity to make an important contribution to the 
development of satellite technology and man's conquest of space. 

Embassy of the United States of America, Ri, de Janeiro, March 10, 1960. 

,No. 628 

The. Embassy of the United States-of America presents its compliments to the 
Ministry of F oreign AffairN and has the honor'to refer to Embassy Note No. 545 
of March 10, 1960. 

Since the Brazilian government has authorized the operation of the project
under reference, the government of the United States feels that it should be ex
empt from any custom duties or taxes in connection with the introduction or 
the removal of the equipment and personnel from Brazil upon completion of the 
project. To assist the Foreign Office in its approach to the Customs officials, the 
following specific information is cited: 

There will be a four-man operating team initially scheduled to arrive Silo 
Paulo about May 1: William Baer, Joel Trimble, Harold Kimley, Kenneth 
Bryant. Alternates are: "t. D., Stevenson, Leon Bryant, R. T. Merriam, F. 
M. Ashbrook. Equipment list: A. Five equipment cabinets, each about 30 
inches cube. Three contain electronic equippent for station (receivers; oscil
lator; frequency synthesizing equipment, -typing reperforator, electronic time 
clock; electronic data logic module). Fourth contains auxiliary power equip
meat. Fifth contains text equipment. B. Two-drawer filing-cabinet with spare 
parts and stationery. C. Tape recorder. D. Three preamplifiers. . Two 
helical antennas, each five feet long with five-foot diameterground plane and 
with 50-foot wire. P. Four folding chairs. G. One 50-cycle to 60-cycle power 
converter. H. Teletype unit. I. Nems Clark mod 2501 receiver (telemetry). 
Total weight of equipment packed for shipment is about 4,000 pounds. 

The Embassy would appreciate expeditious clearance for this equipment so as 
to avoid delays If additional information is required, the Embassy will be glad 
to provide it upon request. 

The Embassy takes this opportunity to renew to the Ministry the assurance 
of its highest consioeration. 

The Embassy of the United ,States of America, Rio de Janeiro, April 18, 1060. 

DEPAPXTM7ENT OF STAT, 

GEOSAIT-Doppler TRANET Station 2008, iovemnber 1,-1967. 

Department's GA-9894. 

1. Pursuant to instructions in the referenced airgram, the Embassy held dis
cussions with the Foreign Office on the possible extehsion of use of the SRo Jos4 
dos Campos facility for satellite tracking (Statibn 2008)). During a meeting with 
Counselor. Eduardo iforeira flosannah on September 5, 1967, an Aide Memoire 
was left ttthe Foreign Ministry outlining the history of the tracking facility at 
Srio Josd dos Campos and stating.the M. GovernmenVs interest in extending use 

-	 of that facility until June 30, 1970. See enclosed copy of Aide Memoire dated 
September 5, 1967,-(Enclosure A). 
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2. On October 31, the.Embassy received a note (DNU/DAS/267/692.20 (22) 
(42), Enclosure B) dated October 30, 1967 which authorized the use of the 2008 
tracking station at Saoilos6 dos Campos until June 80, 1970 under the following 
conditions: 

(a) Projects carried outat Station 2008, whose principal objective is to conduct 
Geodetic research 'of mutual interest to the Brazilian and North American gov
ernments, are for scientific.and peaceful plrposes. 

(b) Speciahzed Brazilian technical personnel designated by the National Com
mission on Space Activities (CMA4) will participate in the activities of the Sta
tion which will be under the supervision of an adminstrator desgnated by the 
New Mexico State University. 

(o) North American technicians and specialists will be replaced, insofar as 
possible by Brazilian techniciansan4 specialized personnel. 

(4) All data obtained by the; Station will be made-available to the Brazilian 
Government. 

(e) The Station will retain its current equipment and the North American 
personnel in charge of its, operation will not exceed, at any time, the number 
mentioned in the Aide Memoire referred to-above. 

3. The Embassy Aide Memoire was left at the Ministry to provide a further 
basis of discussion with,the ForeignXinistry officers and other Brazilian Govern
ment personnel. It will be noted that its contents follow closely the material in 
the referenced circular airgram and enclosure describing facilities desired. 

4. The Foreign Office did not propose an exchange of notes on the subject. 
For that reason no prior clearance of the communication left at the Foreign 
Office was made with the Department as suggested in paragraph 6 of the refer
enced circnlar airgram. It is hoped that the conditions under which the facility 
will be allowed to function are satisfactory to the Department and other inter
ested American agencies. 

TuTHILL. 
U,nclosure A: 

AIDEMMOIRE 

,gubject:,Geosat-Doppler: Transit Station 2008. 
Pursuant to the conversation between Counselor Eduardo Moreira flosannah 

and representatives of the Embassy of the United States of America on Septem
ber 1, 1967, concerning the passive satellite tracking station located at S&o Tos6 
dos Campos Sdo Paulo, reference is made to this Embassy's notes No. 545 of 
March 10, 1960 and No. 628 of April 18, 1960 expressing the wish of the Govein
ment of the United States of America to install such a station at Sao Tos6 dos 
Campos. 

Counselor Hlosannah will recall that the following rdsum6 was discussed: 
1. That the above mentioned station was originally established with the 

approval of former President Kubitschek, which was conveyed orally on March 11, 
1960 to former U.S. Ambassador to Brazil John M. Cabot by Ambassador Pie 
Corr~a.
 

2. That the passive observation station was engaged in basic research and 
development under the TRANSIT Navigational Satellite Program and that as 
a by-product of the station's observations, valuable contributions were also made 
to geodesy.
 

3. That the originally contemplated period of operation of the station was 
stated as being some 18 months, with the implication that this period might be 
extended if scientific needs so indicated. The TRANSIT Program, however, took 
much longer to complete than was originally estimated, hence the station has 
continued to operate on an informal basis. 

4. That on July 1, 1966 the objectives of the station were transferred to the 
Mapping, Charting and Geodesy Program of the Department of Defense and the 
station designation was changed from 008 to 2008. 

5. That for the first six months the station was operatedby the Naval Ordnance 
Test Station. Since then responsibility for its operation has been in the hands of 
New Mexico State University, under contract to the U.S. Navy, which has en
joyed informal but close cooperation with the Comissao Naclonal de Atividades 
Espaciais (ONAE) . 

6, That since the United States Government's Geodetic Satellite Program has 
been greatly expanded and stations are being established in a broad and global 
network, it is the desire of the United States Government to utilize the sta

63-878-71-18 
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tion in itsgeod~tic research for'acontinue perlod of time terminating June 30, 

7. That ff'permission.-is granted for-the continued.operation of the station as 
mentioned above, the United States of America hope to enlarge the NMSU/QNAE 
co,pleration -to include direct Brazilian participation wherever feasible. 

S. That in continuing the operation, of the station, whereby its main fanction 
is directed towards geodesy, no change ineither personnet.or equipment is neces
sary. The number of personnel -involved in .the-operatoirwill remain small, i.e., 
six or eight at any one time. 

9. That the'equipment is owned by the US. Government; specifically the U.S. 
Navy, and it will be removed upon-completion of the program of geodetic satellite

Iobservations. 
10. That the Government of the United States of America believes that the con

.tinued operation of Station 2008 will constitute a'xisignificant contribution to the 
Geodetic Satellite Program and consequently to geodesy.

11. That the Government "of the United, States of America therefore hopes
that the Government of 'Brazil will find it possible, to-approve the continued op
eration of the station until June 30,1970. 

Enclosedlis a description of the station and its-purpose.

Embassy of the 'United States.of America, Rio de Janeiro, September 5, 1967.
 
Enclosure B:
 

ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THB .BRAfLIAN FOREIGN MINISTRY NOTE ON TRANET 
STATION 2008 

The Ministry -of,Foreign Affairs presents its compliments to the Mmbassy of 
the United States ,of America and, with further referehce to the request con
tained in the aide-memoire of Septembdr 5, 1967, concerning the continuation of 
satellite tracking station 2008, installed at Slo Jos6 dos Campos, State of Saio 
Paulo, as part of the geodetic satellite program of the United States, has the 
honor to inform it that the Brazilian Government has decided to extend the 
authorization for operation of the aforesaid station to June 30, 1970.

2 While informing the Embassy of the Brazilian'Govenment's decision, the 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs makesit clear ,that the authorization is granted in 
the understanding that: 

(a) The projects carried out at station 2008, whose chief aim is to conduct 
geodetic research of mutual interest -to .he Brazilian and United States Govern
ments, are designed for scientific andpeacefutlpurposes;

,(b) The station. of which the supervision is Yested jn an administrator ap
pointed by the State University of New Mexico, will have direct participation by
Brazilian, technical and specialized personnel, appointed by the National Com
mission on-Space-Activities (GCINAE)

(c) American technicians and-specialists will be replaced insofar as possible by
Brazilian technical and specialized personnel;

(d) All data obtained by the station will be made available to the Brazilian 
Government;

(e) The station sballlfaintain its present equipment and -thestrength of -the 
American personnel entrusted with its operation shall at no time exceed the 
eight persons noted in the above-mentioned aide-mmoire. 

SRio do Janeero,October 80,1967. 

The Embassy of the United States of -America presents its compliments to the 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and bas the honor to nofe that informal discbssions 
baveotaken lace among officials.of-the Comissrig Nacional de Atividades Espa
cials, Forqa, AArea Biasileira, Mlexico State University, Idinigtsrio des Relag6es
Exteriores, and this Embassy concerning the continuation of the operation of the 
Doppler Satellite Tracking Statibn, located in Siio Jos6 dos nampos, known as 
Station 2008, As a result, the-Embassy of the United taf~s of American purposes 
that the continued operation of the Station be provided.-for by an agreement be
tween.our tTo go erfinents a, propse text for whichis attached. . 

The'Embassy takes the oppdrtunity tS refew to tie Ministry tiie-assurance of 
its-highest consieration. .. ,,. -. 

- m1taspytf, thie tYmlted tates ot Aijericn, frasili-tSepteme ;18,-97(. 

S--------------: '- ne 
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AGREEMENT B3ETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTS OF THE UVNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND 
BRAZIL 

I. The Government of the United States of America is authorized to' continue 
operations at the Doppler geodetic satellite tracking station at Sao Tos6 dos
 
Campos in accordance with the provisions of this agreement.
 

I. Projects carried out at station 2008, which operates principally to conduct
 
geodetic research of mutual interest in the governments of the United States of
 
America and Brazil, shall, be for scientific and peaceful purposes.
 

III. Subject to the availability of funds to-all parties concerned, the station 
will continue to be staffed by a team of civilian technicians and will be under 
the direction of a station manager aesignated by thb New'Mexieo State Univer
sity. The participation of Brazilian, scientists and technicians 'inthe program 
wifl ,continue, 'as in the :past, to be'most welcome at all times. The station wilt 
retain its current equipment- an, its United States personnel will not exceed 
five persons at any time. 

IV. Communications with the station will be maintained over a full duplex 
typewriter circuit, utilizing existing United States Goverhment channels. The 
Government of the United States, will, make all arrangements with commercial 
entities, for the leasing of lines and the provision of terminal equipment at 
Sao Paulo- (or Sro Jos6 dos Oampos). 

V. Administratite or logistical support for the station Will" continue to -be 
provided as in the past by the Brazilian National Commission, on space activities 
(OINAI) and the Brazilian Air Force. Specialized' Brazilian technical personnel 
designated by these agencies will continue to participate in the activities of the 
station. 

VI. United States personnel will be replaced, insofar as possible, by Brazilian 
technicians and specialized personnel.

VII. Alldata obtained by'the-station will' be made-available to the Brazilian 
Government... 

VIII. The Station's equipment is the property of the Qovernment of the United 
States of America and may be brought into oi removed from Brazil without 

4 payment of &ustomsduties or taxes. I . 

IX. Thisgiagreement shall remain in force for a period ,of'ten, years from'the 
date of ,its signature. However, the agreement may 'e iterminated-by either guv
,ernmentafter giving six months notice in writing, to the other government of its 
intention to termihate-it. 

Senator Onnnon. Thank you, Mr.. Ambassador; for yur statement 
and for the .material that you have-submitted in response to the com
mittee's. recjuest. I will have a nmnberof questions.. I think that Mir. 
Holt will have others'and I would.like to defer firsb.of all.to,Senator 

.Aiken for any questions he would like.to put to yquat this time. 

XERGY P MISONNEL,ATOiG PO COMflfSSTON 

Senator AEE . No.. I have just come from A-ppropriations. What 
are the two personnel provided' by the Atoimc Energy Obmmission 
doing, measuring radiation from the sands or what! 

a technical groilp that maintains contact 
in spientific ields. 

Senator Anim.. I kmow you have two. 
Mr. Roniann. Yes. 
Senator Au-iE. There are certain areas of Brazil where tlie radia

tion amounts to several times what is considered safe'by our environ
nehtal societies. I suppose they are down there trying to determine 

how it is tht people have been tivizig there all. these centuries with 
that. You do not know just what they are doing therel 

Mr. RorNTRB. I do not know the extent to which they collect that 
type of information, Senator. 

'Mr. Rorqn. No, it is, 
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Senator An=rN. I see. 
Mr. RomNnm. I am sure all aspects of atomic energy matters would 

be within their purview. 

AGRICULTURAL A"TACn 

Senator AxKr-.Do you have an-agricultural attach ? . 
Mr. RouNTPE. Yes, we have-an agricultural attach6. 
Senator AniEN. Does he get mileage money, gbing Out a little? 
MA.Rounrir. He -does travel- extensively in the country. As 

-

you
know, the Brazilians buy American commodities in'.he agricultural
field and he is 'interested in the sales aspect as' well as in the produc
tion.of Brazilian commodities. " -

Senator AimEN. I exlfect the situation has changed since Pat IHolt
and I were down there and the agriculturAl, attach6 did-not have 
money to get more than a few miles out of Rio. .ButI prdsumeihe cam
'et much farther now. I have got no more questions, Mr. Chairman. 
I am sorry to .have missed your statement but I had-to ibea the other 
committee at the same time. 

Senator Cnuco. You have a science attach6 at thieEmbassy, do 
you not, Mr. Ambassador? 

Mr. Rouximn. Yes, we do. 
'Senator CHuRo. What is the need of,having both a science attacli6 

and this special ALE group there? Are they not,oerlapping -' 
I Mr. Rou.oN E. It reflects, inpart, the differences iaagencies' which
they represent. To some extent there is-an overlappim,-naturally -but 
there is very close coordination among the people m the Embassy
engaged. in scientific matters of all types. This includes the science-at
tach6, the AEC representatives, and the defense research officer. 

Senator Cnixto. Yes,'Def~nse also has a scientific representative
'whose ,purpose -is to funnel American grants intd Brazil for various 
research purposes. It seems- to me-that all three' agencies 'would not
need personnel in Rio. Is there really a justification for that many
people acting-as conduits for scientific 'purposes or for making money
available for research?, 

Mr. IRonyni. In part, Senator, this organizational structure 
whch prondestrepresentatives of three separate governmental entities 
reflects the 

Senator OnuRo. I understand it is'five excuse me, I forgot the
NIH and also the Smithsonian Institution for additional repfrsenta
tives. 

Mr. ROUNTREE. Primarily the functions of these several personnel
reflect the interest and the responsibilities of their respectiye agencies.
Now, for example, thd Defense representative is concerned not merely
with Brazil but for South America as a whole. His function dealsjvith 
area assistance of this sort. 
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BED-UOTION OF U.S. flRSOWflQDL 

I am aware that a large number of American agencies are repre
sented in the Embassy structure in Brazil. I hopethat as time goes on 
the streamlining which is now in process and has been in process for 
some time, will continue, and that any umecessary overlapping and 
duplication will be resolved. 

Senator Cnracn-. Well, I share your hopes in that regard because 
at one time we had an apparatus in Rio that must have been .repre
sentative of the entire Federal Government, all-of its departments and 
agencies. The size at least was suggestive of that and I would like to 
know, Air. Ambassador, how much success you have had since you 
became Ambassador in cutting down the size of the official American 
establighmnent in Brazil. 

Mr. Ro.NrTn. At the present time, Senator, we have 588 Amenri
cans and 811 local employees in all of the country of all departments 
and agencies represented in our Embassy structure, excluding 325 
Peace Corps volunteers. There is in process a reduction of some of our 
programs. This will continue. The reduction, for example, in our aid 
program already has been substantial, although I do not have imme
diately available the total number of personnel, in Brazil 9 years and 
a year ago. I will be glad to submit that for the record, but there has 
been a downward trend. Reduced programs, and efforts to-streamline 
the organization to the fullest extent, -will continue. 

Senator CHimC-. 'Mr. Ambassador, presently you have about 1400 
people on the payroll excluding Peace Corps volunteers. 

Mr. RomxnrimE. Yes. 
Senator COiu-ci. Does that not strike you as being an extraordi-, 

narily large cadre? 
Mr. ROUNTREE. It is one of the largest Embassy establishments, in, 

the world. Of course, if you analyze the programs we have in oper
ation,in Brazil, you will see that they embrace activities of many U.S. 
governmental agencies including the Treasury, the Library of Con
gress, various agencies of the Department of Defense, the U.S: Travel 
Service, and so forth. 

Senator Cinmon. What is the Library of Congress doing in Rio? 
Mr. RoUm EE. The Library of Congress has a staff which collects 

for the Library a vast amount of Brazilian publications. It has a col
lection function. 

Senator AnmE. Row many members of the Peace Corps are down 
there now? 

Mr. Rounmn Three hundred and twenty-five volunteers and P 

staff of 28 Americans, and 25 locals. 
Senator A=EN. The Americans are trained in Vermont. 

r 
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The other question I laVet.is , what'd6 we pay for Tranet 20081 Is 
not that i the State of Sac Paulo? And it is a'tracking station, is it •
 ..
not? 

Mr. Rbd&ntm. It is a traclciit statiot. It is'lobatedon an Air Force 
lacility in the State of Sao Paulo'. I am not certain, but I do not 
think this involves the payment of rent but I will have,to checkthat. 

Senator Ani. 'Weused to have a tracking station on an island, 
did we not, off the coast?-

Mr. Rouirnr. Yes, we did. 
Senator AaEN. And paid about $27 million a year.
Mr. Rou-N-nE. That facility is no longeroperative. 
Senator Anx. That is something that Panama did not liike com

pared to the rental we were payinj for the Canal Zone This tracking
station in Sao Paulddsunderthe military, isit? 
' r. RoUN Tr..The Present station 2008 is under the military but 
it is handled by a contract with the University of New Mexico, which 
actually operates the facility. 

SIZE AND POPULATION Or BRAZIL 

Senator AKmN. Franldy, I-think -weshould pay more attention to 
Brazil than to most countries, because Brazil has, tremendous poten
tial It is bigger thanwe are; if you leave off Alaska, 

Mr. RoN RrE. If you leave,off ,Alaska.it constitutes-
Senator C mUC.We do not want the record toslow we have left 

off Alaska. . 
Senator AmEN. No, we would not do that. Mainland of the United 

States.. 
Mr. _Rouiv.t. Itconstitutes half the land"areaof South,America 

and half the' population of South America. Itis a very important 
country. I T I I, 

Sehator Aint' -Andthepopulationisinereasing-fast.
Mr. RouNrEE. The population is increasing rapidly but aot as. 

rapidly ad was thought befor-the-,hostredent-census. -

Mr. Ron E.4,percent" 

" pRoTEOTtD -4?nUCTIONISOP' A EMICA- STA, * 

Senator COuRon. - -Ambassador, if you would supply us.the fig
ures of the total numbers employed in previous years I, wpUld like to 
have that information. I also woull like to have-more specific figures 
on projected levels of employmeit as "youstreamline the administra
tion of our program in Brazil. You -havesaid there will be further re
ductions of the staff. Will you be more specific?

Mr. RorrrnmE. Some of our-programs, as you know, Mr. Chairman, 
are being phased out. Some have been discussed, I think, by my col
leagues with you in their own testimony. The AID program has been 
reduced very substantially from its peak. The precise level of person
nel in AID depends in part upon decisions that are now being made 
or soon will be made with respect to the organizational structure for 
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-- rwsgeneralty; andrtlie-prediseinitur$ of projectsto be con-InD ,rigr 

tin ed Biazili We do:anticipate-fWctherreductions-ilthe4TD pro
-gram, and-we ahticip6tq a further reduction*jn our military mis-sion 
-whehistaiready dbwn subtantially frQiinitspeak., At.the present time 
we havei4 Anericansiwo'ur military mission and we expect t have 
nbt mdrethan45 in.th6 -periodimmediately aheid. These qrethe'twolargdst nhissibns, bothsof which wilbe~redncediun size. There are other 
fum-ctions'htb~tcan.b* strea~mlined,,I am confident, butit would be very
difficult at this stage to make precise prediltlons...-

Senator OntmoH. I w..ould like to ask that the- zState Department
furnish us with- a projection. ,Wehave many, such projections offered 
at thle-time the foreign aid bill-comes.ujp concerning anticipated levels
ofspending etnd ]evels of employment of American personnel and 

muh foreign' personnel, so Iwouli like to requestthat projection be 
given to the committee for incorporation in the appropriate place in 
the record showing -whatthe Department-anticipates those downward 
reductions-will be iVdthe coming year and ph~pg the following year. 

MT., RouNTwon. We will submit that, Senator. 
Senator COnoo. Will you do that, Mr. Ambassador, and I would 

appreciateit. . It- I I T I I 
Mr. Rou='mn. With the besbjud minent that we can render at this 

stage.
Spenator CimoH. It:seemsto methat the size of our bureaucracy issimplyiirmense-T-his-is-a -problenquiteapart-fr om-the-wis dom-of our

policy, which is something that e.yill wan tto get into in a moment. 
It-is a problem simply from the standpoint of administering our pro
grams whatvet"they are; whetherthey areciviliaormhtaryin
character. I thinTh there is nothing like it in the history of other a
tibns. According to the Library of Congress, the number of British
-civil servants in India at t~e time of its independence totaled approxi

mately 1,600. We do not haye anywhere near the same responsibility 
in Brazil that thesBritish had in Iidia-it. is totally different-yet 
we have almost as many people there. The same problem is endemic 
in the-militry'forces'of-this country. We are- asked to maintain an 
Army of about a -million men, but out of the million men we are 
financing we can only get about 18 divisions of fighting men. Never 
inthehistory-of the world has an Army consisted of so few feet and 
so:much tail. This problem of bureaucracy is an-extraordinarily serious 
one with which we have not adequately coped. You may remember that 
when you came before the committee for confirmation we disdussed 
-this point. Brazil, of course, is -a flagrant example of an American 
establishment that is out of all proportion to what,would seem to be 
the prudent-size. That is why I tiink we ned to see what thesefigures 
are,-what-they-have-been,.-where- we-have-been,-where-we-are now-and 
where we propose to go, and I would appreciate your cooperation- in 
seeing that they are supplied. 

Senator AT N. Let me say first, Mr. Chairman, yod compard ndia 
and Brazil My experience in the U.N. is Brazil always voted with us 
and India always vted against us. I do not kno-w what the signifi
cance, is of that, but it is'a fact, nearly always. I think Brazil voted 
against usonce, according to my recollection. 
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Senator Ciruorr. I think these figures, are extremdly interesting 
when you consider that just ,prior to independence the British were 
presumably administering the country with 1,600 for 'all -of India,
and we ha e had something in excess of that in the past just to ad
minister our own programs in an indep'endent country, Brazil.,Mr. RONTREE. Senator, I am sureI need mot point -out-that the 
vast majority of th people involved in our missions.'in Brazil are 
technicianis of one sort or another engaged dn project activities that do 
not involve in any sense administration of,the Government of Brazil 
or agencies of the Brazilian Government but are merely-

Senator Cx-uRon. Of course, that is my very point we are not en
gaged' in administering the country. We are just engaged in adminis
tering our own programs.
I 31r. RornnrE. In rendering advice and assistance in those areas 
requested of them. -

SSenator Ckrcn. Yes. So, one would think that the numbers we 
-would need to employ for that purpose would not have to be so large.
14 any case, the figures establishing the trend would be very helpful 
to us. 

MMr. RomN=r. I would be glad to supply that. 
(The information referred to follows:) 

US.'GOVERKMENT PERSONNEL IN, BRAZIL 

Fiscal year

1902 19702 19713 1972' 1973 1 

State------------ _---------------- 137 134 127 127 118
USIS.--. ------------------------- 47 42 40 .40 40
USAID --------------- - ..... 284 275 243 222 191

Direct hire----------------------- (126) (132) (110) (100) (78)
PASA.........------------ ---- (60) (61) (55) (52) (49)
Contract -------------------------- (98) (82() ( (70) (84)

AEC------------------2 222) (2FAA-------.......... ................ 1 1 1 1 ,1
FAS --------------------------------- 5 5 4 3

-LO ------------------------------- 1 1 1 1' 1 
NIH ------------------------------- I ' 
Peace Co ps ------------------------- 24 25 1 - 17 15Smthsonian ----------------------- 2 I 3 3 3
Treasury Atah .----------------------- 3 2 2 2 2
'IRS- ___------------------------.3 3 2 2... 3 
UST ----------------- --------------- 2 2..----------------. 
DefenseAttacKi------------------------- 15 15 14 14 14 
DRO-------------------------------- 3 2 1 1 - 1
lAGS ................................ 18 14 12 1 10
Marines----........ ............ 16 19 12 12 12 
MILGROUP ---------------------------- 81 78 56 47 45 
Other ............................... 33 32 28 26 26 

Total------_ ...............- - 678 653 573 530 4S6
Peace Corp volunteers_------------------ 426 370 325 300 300 

Grand total..................... - ,104 1,023 '898' 830 - 796
 

I As at June 3Q, 1969. 
2 As of May 31, 1970 
3As of Mar 31, 1971. 
* Estimated end fiscal year. 

Senatbr OCfVaRcO. Mr. Ambassador in yourstaement-incidentally,

Senator Pearson, any time you would like to ask questions please feel
 
free to do so. 
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SEOUITY"MEASURES POR STAF 

Senator PEARSo. r. Ambassador, apropos the iunber of people; 
what security measures are deemed necessary for our people in theF mbassy at this stae?-

Mfr. RomnmRE. The Government of Brazil has i/Cicated great
interest in our security and is assisting in providing security for Amer
ican personnel. Of' course, the facilities made, available differ vastly 
among the levels of personnel. For example, the,security.arrangements 
for the Ambassador, for myself, are substantial in the numb.er of 
police guards who accompany me wherever I [go. Similar arrange
ments on a much smaller scale are made for other senior American 
personnel. The diplomatic corps, as a whole, is provided security-by 
the Brazilian authorities. 

Senator PABSsoN. Let me just ask you this. Is it adequate, inyour 
judgment?

Mr. RouxTiE.. I think the precautions taken by the ,Government 
of Brazil are quite reasonable. 

Senator PEARSON,. Thank you, Mx2r. Chairman. 

1hVOLIiE=T IN BRAZflM'S f-WTERNAL AIFAIRS 

Senator COaoH..Mr. Ambassador, in your statement you emphasize
that we should avoid involvement in Brazil's internal affairs., I agree 
with that, but are we not, in fact, involved in a great many ways in 
the internal affairs of Brazil as an actual matter of fact when you 
consider the training we are oiving to Brazilian police, training for 
the At.med, Forces. of Brazi, 'and the setting of educational standards. 
I understand we even had Internal Revenue meh instructing the 
Brazilians on how to collect taxes. Is not the truth of the matter that 
we are engaged very deeply in activities that relate directly to the 
internal aifairs of Brazil? 

Mr. RouxTREE. Senator, spealdng generally of our aid programs 
not only in Brazil but in other countries in which we operate, there 
are many areas in which the governments have determined that they
need- advice and, assistance, and they solicit our, aid. The provisioA 
-of technicians and advisers for the purposes. that you mention, and 
others, is in response to the request of the Govermnent of Brazil, 
and the operations of these people are wholly consistent with the 
sovereignty of Brazil. 

Senator CHvURcH. Your .answer, of course, then to my question is 
yes; we are deeply involved in the internal affairs of Brazil, but it 
the request of the Brazilian Government, is that it? 

Mr. RojNmrE. I would say there is a vast distinction between-
Senator Onron. Would you say we are -or are not involved in the 

internal affairs, of Brazil ? 
Mr. RoisTR. To the extent that the Government of'Brazil has re

quested assistance
Senator-CniRo. Yes. 
M. Rov=.fE. In various fields, and we have responded where we 

felt it appropriateto,do so. 
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Senator OmEscr.To that extent we are involved in the internal af
fairs of Brazil. 

Mr. RouNTE. We are involved in internal affairs of Brazil only 
at the requestof the Brazilian Government. 

Senator CnxRoa. Yes. You see, there is always this ritual in connec
tion with explaining our foreign policy of saying to start with that we 
should not become involved in the internal affairs of these countries, 
but the actual character of our policy does, in fact, involve us very 
deeply in internal affairs. 

Mr. RoUNunE. I am speaking now of the unwarranted and unso
licited involvement which could be interpreted as improper. 

Senator Cuico. Well, I would not think that there would be any 
way for us to involve,ourselves inan unsolicited fashion in the internal 
affairs of Brazil, would there ? 

Mr. Ronwr. We are very careful to avoid it. And I might say this 
is not unique to the United States. Wherever there are technical as
sistance programs, whether they are under the United Nations or un
der the half dozen or more other governments providing technical 
assistance to Brazil in response to requests of the Brazilian Govern
ment, they obviously are working on matters within the internal com
petence of the Brazilian Government, but at its request.

Senator Camon. Do you believe that we have conducted our aid 
Program in Brazil over the years in ways that would not interfere in 
the internal affairs of the country unsolicited by the Government? 

Mr. RouNE.As you know, I am quite new to Brazil and I can 
speak only by virtue of my experience there during the course of the 
last 6 months, and what I have read and heard of our operations before 
then. I think that there has been a very careful application, in our 
approach to Brazil, of the properties of international relations in carry
lng out our programs. 
Senator COuRcn. The subcommittee has had reports to the effect 

that some of our loans were made to certain states in Brazil a few 
years ago for p'urposes of affecting the internal politics of the country.
That we were interested in promoting certain governors of Brazilian 
states, that we had reasons to feel that the Central G6vermnent at the 
time was following policies -of which we disapproved and, therefore, 
we utilized our loan money to,reach certain states and governors that 
we felt would pursue policies that we favored. Is-that the way, is that 
the case? What do you have to say about that? 

Mr. Rou~wTmB. I can say that our aid prograins being conducted 
in Brazil today and during the period in which I have had respon
sibilities there have been .entirely consistent with the desires of the 
Government of Brazil. Relafionships with the, Government of Brazil 
have been wholly proper.

Senator CaRomn. Yes; but you have been dealing with a'government 
of which we have officially approved. I am speaking of a previous
period then we had a'very large aid program but when we had dif
ferences with the Central Government, and then according to infor
mation available to the subcommittee, used the aid money for purposes
of trying to influence the internal politics of the country.

Mr. Rouwrr_?. Senator, let me say that it is my understanding that, 
particularly in the early sixties, the economic situation in Brazil was 
in poor condition. There was rampant inflation, there were economic 



pressures 'o various sorts, there was the 1ack of a government pro
gram whidh could give confidence to the international community con
cernin the future d6 Brazil's economic structure. 

During that period discussions wereheld by Brazil and the United 
States on a number of substantidl econeio programs, some of which 
materialized but some of which did not'because ,of the inability or 
unwillingness of the Government to take measures that were neces
sary in order to make them, wise and fruitful programs. This re
lated not only to the United States aid but'to international aid, includ
ing the International MonetaryFund. 

Senator CH_uR . Yes; we have had reports relating tothat time to 
the effect that oans-were made-to various state governments where we 
were favorably disposed towardythe governor: Now, if that is so, does 
that not constitute internal meddling in the politics of Brazil, that is 
unsolicited by the Government of Brazil? 

Mr. RouNrrn Well, if I may, Senator, continue, what I was 
saying--

Senator Cirum . I wish yu.would-address yoursel to this question. 
This is the informatioi vehadand my question is if that is.so----

Mr. RouNri . With'the background I have given about these "diffm
culties, I was going,on to saythat in these circumstances ourfai4 wa§ 
undertaken in those areas where Wea felt that it would be most effec
tive. If this meant concentration of aid programs -atstate levels or-in 
particular areas, there was at the same time no lack of disposition on 
our part to undertake.programs -in.areas of more direct and immediate 
concern to the CentralG,. vernment if cohditions had,been established 
which would make it~possible to proceed. ! I 

Senator Cauron. Well, I think we, will,let the record stand where 
it is. 

PUBLIC SAFETY PROGRA31 

In.connection withthe-public safety programin Brazil, Mr.,Ambas
sadbr, do you not rthink,that that .isavery highly sensitive-field for g 
foreign government like our own-tb involve itselfl? 1 cannot-think of la 
relationship -more sensitivq between a government and, the-governed 
than its method of enforcing its laws and dealing withits own-citizens 
through 4the ,exercise, of the police power., That is the:.v.ety heartreOf 
sovereignty hut .we haverbeem qngagedir giving training to the'Btar 
zilian police and- iniequippig thfe BraziTian_ police and furnishing 
them -ith certhin-kinds of;coummuicafioffequipmenj, vqiclar equlp. 

, and.-limited quantities, of. tear gas anid, other ;devices. fot main
taining crowd control. What do you think the reaction-in-thisicubitry 
would be if Brazil were up here at the request of our-Government 
giving us instiuction, giving our police instruction as to the methods 
they should use in dealing with American citizens in the-streets? What 
do yofthink'the reactn'hthis,'ouiitry would be if'Brazil~were doing 
up here what we'havelbeen:dbingdown there'?' I 

Mr. RourrRm. Well;it would be-hard forine, Senator, to'visualize 
a situation hi.Which,'with our advanced policetethods,"that situation 
could come about, but Irealize your questionis,urely hypothticaL. ' 

-Senator C.unoi. Well,, -only in part hypothktical, Mr. Ambassa
dor, because your director in his testimony, said that he -felt that he 
would be safer on the streets of Rio than he would be on the streets of 
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Washington, and I asked him why in,that case it was, necessaxy for 
us to,instruct the Brazilians in -policematters., I am not so sure that 
it is all that clear that we are superior and more kmowledgeable when 
it comes to police a-etivities than Brazil. The question I ask you is
,rhetorical in the sense, that I laow what the reaction of -thiscountry
would be and you do,-too, if Brazil-were engaged in such a program 
or any foreign government were in the United States. 

- Now,.why do you think that Brazilian people would, feel.differ
ently about-such a program or would welcoihe such a program?

Mitr. Roux,TRE. '"ell,let me address -myself-
Senator Cnumcir. If you do. 
Mr. RoNTxmEn. Let me address, myself to the situation as I see it,

.takingyour question fully into accounnt. 
Senator Cinumkc. Yes. 
TAL:. Rovxir. The decision was made a number of years back

that as part of our aid program we should be in position torespond to 
requests of friendly governments for assistance in the publicsecurity
feld,and this was undertaken not only, in Brazil but in.a good many
countres. Ten years ago th GovernmentotBrazil asked that such a 
public safety program be undertaken., We responded. The mission
has b6en in the country for these 10-years. At onethue it had a total
of '28 advisers working not merely with the newly constituted Fed
eral 'police; but also -withstate police authorities. 
IThe program -was intended 'o achieve its purposes in a stated pe

,rnod of time, and-themr to withdraw. At-thepresent time there are only
three of these 28 remaining in the country. They are working directly
with the Federal- police. They have assisted therm by various ways
to adopt modern police techniques, and particularly modern train
ing methods. 

The general public reactionrin Brazil,,to my knowledge, and to the
,best of my belief,.has not been adverse. The Government has appreci
ated: the efforts of the mission. By the Government, I mean not only
the present Government,- but governments going all the way back to 
the late fifties when President Kubitschek Was in power at the time the
mission was established. Host of the equipment, at least a good part of
thf equipment that you have referred to, was provided for training 
purposes, illustrative purposes during the early period of the training
mission. I would say that the public reaction to ,ithas notbeen nearly
as profound or as adverse as you have.indi atdd would be-the case if
the Brazilians should send a police mission to the United States. I 
think it has achieveld shbstantially the purposes for which it was 
established-

PUBLIC REACTION TO PURnLtc SAF=y PROGRA-21 

Senator Cnitoun. Oni what basis do.you:say that you do not feel the
public reaction to this program has -been bad? Have you anyevidence
other thansubjective evidence to bear on-that question?

R T. EE. As in thecase of-most evaluations of this sort-onehas 
to apply a,subjective judgment, and you do tothis ---

Senator Cnmonci. Do you think you areclose to the popular attitude 
in Brazil, Mr. Ambassador ? 

2 



281
 

Mr. Ronn=. We do this on the'basis of,what we hear in comments, 
see in press reports,'and gain in impressions from a Wide range'of con
tacts in our daily associations in Brazil. 

Senator Onuoi. Do you think your contacts are representative of 
the cross section of the Brazilian peoplek I 

Ar, BRoNnEr We do everthing-possible to assure that they are 
and obviously we cannot be a hundredpercent successful in-tlts regard. 
But surely, it is the responsibility of any ambassador, and any diplo
matic mission,to the fullest practicable extent to have a feeling of pub
lic, opinion, wht people across the wide spectrum of the public feel. 
There has not to ty-Imowledge been any sttong adverse reaction to 
this public safety program, although there' has been some, including 
criticism of it in propaganda appeaiing abroad.-' 

-Senator Cnnmon. Do you equate criticism with pr6plaganda. 
Ar. RouN=&. No, of course not necessarily. I say fhere has been,a 

lot-of propaganda abroad about this. Therelha also b 6n a lbt of quite 
honest and legitim'ate comment about it. Thd'iTpression that I have, 
in my linited stay in Brazil, is that This is hot, a burniitg issue 

•"- ATTITUDES TOWARD ro)ion. "' 

Senator Cnzton. A-r6thepolice popular with the BrAliairpeople?
 
Ivfr. RotrNTREj. That would be a very' difficult, question fbr me- to
 

ansver. I 'honestly db not Inow' the extent of. the popularity of ethe
 
. ,2" pblicdinNBrazil as ai Whole. 

Senator' CntnouH..'There have been a grehtmany reports concerning 
torture methods being utilized by the police. in'Brazil. coming fkom. 
many diflereit sofilees, and• some, offidial aclmowlede&nt that this 
has happened in Brazil. These methods must be knowh to the people

I I
of the country ;'ar&thy,not? 
, Mr. Rou~im. There, have been a number of articles. As a matter 
of- ot, oe 6. the leading members of the Cabinet only recently said 
that it wonl& be 7rtfhg'to tdeay that excesses havd -bccurred, and also, 
if I remember his w6rds corrtctly, that it,wpuld-he wrong to say that 
this, was -condoned,-or was widespread. President Medidi himnself has 
acknowledged.that there have been excesses but.heilas pointed out this 
is not. condoned by. the Goyrhnent. I think 'i answer to your ques
tion, the discussion of this in,puBlic prin in, Brazil;' ani i formation 
comimg to Brazil from 'the outside'has 'aused many ',people in Brazil 
to inquire about it'or to wdnder about it. [Efeleted.

, Senator CatCn. We have had reports to the effect that the people 
of Brazil were accustomed to police-brutality, and'that,-therefore, there 
was no particifaar public resentment of current reports of such excesses 
in prisons or-o.abusiveitreatment ofprisoners. Do you share that? 

Air. RorncTRrE. I think therehasbeen outspoken criticism from vari
ous quarters in. Brazil, including in.particlar nembers of the clergy 
.concerning excessesof this sort., - ,: 11.- 1 1 

Senator -Cannn.'VItave you expressed:the concern of.the Govern 
ment of the ,nitedStates 'abonit-the torture in-ieftidndThtBrazilto the 
,Vrsident,ofthe.country? . 

iAfr. Rour'EE. To the Gover nment, yes. I might say that the De
partment of State here in Washington has mentioned its concern to-the 
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representatiwes, of fBrazil, ai& the various, .members of the mission,both before and alter my avrival, have indicated concern regarding
these stories. 

DRUINATION O' PUBUIO SArTY PROGRAMd 

Senator C utRio. Is the .public safety prdgram scheduled to ter
minate soon'.

Mr. RowTRmE. Yes, sir; it-is. The decision hasbeen made that it willbe terminated. There,are only three public safety advisers there now ascompared with, thinka seven when I arrived; those three will be reduced to two by the end of this year,.aad final liaison representatives 
will leave in June of 1Y72, according to schedule. 

Senator x cn. Afer the final American conicted with the program leave will-there be a cohitinuag program carried on in this fieldinvolvig gther grants of equipment, vehicles, commiuicat.ion equipment or.polce equpment or continuing training of Brazilian police
men in tnerican police academies?. 

ar.lonly mx. We have not discussed with the Government o Brazil any arrangements following the termination acording to scheduleof ourpublic safety mission. 
.Ido not apticipate, any-additional programs~in tis field. I think the 

purposes of the program ha-re been largely aecomplished. ITsofar aseqipment s concerned, there is no thought being give4 to newprojcots. As to whether ornot there will be any exch.ne of personnel asparf our technial progam train purposes, wereally have notaddressed oursevesto that .I would not exclude it ifit seemed desirale, -but angementsaav bhenmade. 
POSSIhLE SALE OP ASW E2QUXPM:EN, TO :BRAZIl, 

- Senator Cotte Last week we heard testimony to the effect thatBrazil was intereed in purchasing antisubmarine warfare equipment
from the United States. Are negotiationsof such equipment to Brazil.?. now underway for the sale 

mrV. •Rounu. D weic underway bY Bra~il as of the time,iscussions 
-il'ef regarmdng tne pcssible salewof Orion aircraft. It is not at all certain the J.razili'ans willbuy the American co mmodity; however. We
-do._haw hat the Brazilans have had .xtensive-ne'gotitions with theFrtench on & similtar .plane, ,thme Atlantique. But what their decisibnwilloe, I do not imow, and I have had no reports within the 2last 48 
'hours. - I I

Senator Cnluca. Do the-Etazilians believethey arezfaced with thethreat of a submarine attack?
Mr. RouN'niE. As you know,Senator the Brazilian Navy has beenin existence for a considerable period of time, and has cooperated with

the Ainericaa -Navy in many respects. We engage in joint discussionsand joint planning with them. I inkthe Brazilians would'like to havethe capabilityof contributing to the defense of this hemisphere invarious respects ieluding antisubmarine warfare. The extent of their
involvement in or pjannng for this, I am not in position really to
know. 
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Senator CuRon. Do our submarines transit the waters claimed by 
Brazil? I believe the, Government now claims a 200-mile zone to sea, 
does it not, as part of its territorial waters? 

Mr. RomnRE. That is correct. They have made such a claim. 
Senator Crorc. Do our submarines transit those waters? 
TMfr. Ro-TmE. I am not aware of any submarines having actually

transited those waters or having been in the vicinity within the past 
several months but, of course, American warships are frequently there. 

Senator Cmncn. These planes would be designed and equipped to 
patrol these waters, would they not, if the Brazilian Government pur
chased them? 

Air. ROUNREE. Would you repeat that, sir? 
Senator Cnncn. These planes-antisubmarine planes-would be 

designed and equipped to patrol these waters? 
ir. ROUNTR. They are patrol craft; yes. 

Senator Coinuxoi. If the Brazilian Government would purchase 
them-

Mr. RoURE. They are patrol planes. 
Senator COnunon. That would be their purpose?-
Mr. RoUTEE. Yes. 

U.S. INTEREST IN AIDING BRAZIL 

Senator CHuRCH. Since 1961, if my memory serves me right, we have 
spent about $2 billion-around $2 billion-in connection with our vari
ous aid programs for Brazil. 

Mr. RouNTRE. Yes, sir. 
Senator CnRxon:. fHow does that figure compare to the AID pro

grams we have conducted elsewhere in Latin America? 
IVr. ROUNTREE. The total figure, of course, is much larger than the 

figure in any other Latin American country. Applying that figure on 
a er capita basis it is by no means the largest. I think I have some

where some statistics indicating how it stands on a per capita basis. 
Brazil ranks 12th out. of 15 Latin American recipients of American 
aid on a per capita basis. 

Senator OnRcn. What would be your basis for justifying the ex
penditure of $2 billion in Brazil since 1961? Wrhat would be your 
listing of our national interests that have been served by this program? 

Mr. ROUNTREE. Senator, I would find it difficult to assign in pre
cise order our national interests served by this program, but I think 
that first, speaking generally, is the national interest of-contributing to 
the extent possible to the improvement of the living standards of the 
people in this hemisphere, of joining in the humanitarianefforts to im
prove the way of life of other countries in this hemisphere. This is in
portant not merely to the individual countries themselves, but to the 
region as a whole and to the free world-as a whole. This looms of con
siderable importance. 

BRAZILIAN FOREIG-N DEBT SERVICE 

Senitor CBu:ii In that connection, if we may take them one at a 
time, you mentioned the improvement off iving standards of'the peo
ple of Brazil that comes at least to your mhd first of all in response 
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to my question. To what extent is the economic development of Brazil 
or -the amprovement of living standards, as you put it, served by the 
importation of ctpital . I understand that about 25 percent of Brazil's 
foreign exchange earnings are now required to repay external loans.
I think that figure comes perilously close to the-maxitum that a. coun
try can support and still, profitably import additional amounts of 
foreign capital. Is not Brazil very dlose-to the point where she is going
to have to look to internal capital rather than to, rely further on
foreign eapitar if the best interests of her own economic:growth are 
to-be served? 

Mr. RouwTDEr. I would say, sir, to put this in perspective we have 
to go back a bit to the early and midsixbies, when thetulk of our aidprograffiw-weite- decided upon anc were put into effect at that tiinebi
lateral assistance from the' United States' played a tremendously important rple in providing capital -needed to start.the machinery of
development. That is not to say that the amount of naoney that we putinto Brazil was, in terms of percentage, an overwhelming quantitybut, nevertheless, it served as-an extremely useful catalyst, and I think
contributed materially to the development of a broader economic base upon which remarkable progress has been made in 'succeeding years.

Now, during the past 8 or 4 years in Brazil the annual rate of 
progress, a GNP increase of from I to 9.5 percent has expanded theeconomic base, upon wlhich the present prosperity has flowed. And ithas been necessary for the Brazilians in order to capitalize upon these 
opportunities, to look not only to us but to international lending ageniesfor capital to supplement their own resources.

With-this. increased economic base, with.the increased production,
increasing exports; the capacity -of the, Brazilians to, service loans i5
infinitely greater toda 'than it was'5 years ago, and with any reasonable continuation of this progress in the course of the next 5 years
there should not be a criss in the terms that you have mentioned, a
crisis in terms of' the servicing capabilities of tI Brazilian economy.

I think that investment capital, from bilateraI aid, frominternational
'lending agencies, and particularly from Brazilian and foreign private
firms, has been responsible for this relatively good economic -position
that the country is in today. 

USE Or 2rLTILATERAL I:NSTJTUrrONXS 

Senator OIUaOu. NLow, from an economic point of view, to the extent t.tt f6reign capital contributes to economic growth in, Brazil,could' not that objective-be achieved if the same amount of money were
elanneled through the international ,banks, World 'Bank, Inter'American Devlopinena t Bank., the in.fitilatetal lending agencies, ratherthan admiuistered directly in a bilateral .way between the Govern
ments of the Unite&States and Brazil? I
 

Mr. Roxqmnr. Well, sir; a few years ago tkie annuaf in"put from
the U.S. Government sources, on a bilateral basis,, was a quarter of abillion dollars a year, in excess of $250million a year. Today our aid

,9pgram,rnrms attheleveLnf;about,$S7 million inclding technical assistole,.pr about ,$7ti~lion in, loans;, Obyiously the situation -has 
now b eZ .create'dfin.BxIz iI wherby,-th~y-.can, look to An iioreasing 
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extent to the International Bank, the Iter-American Development 
Bank, the Export-Import Bank, private banks, and private firms for 
the vast majority of ,their requirements.

Senator CHuilo. So that this first purpose then that ,you men
tioned, that is promoting economic growth, to improve living stand
ards, as a.general and humanitarian objective will be realizable in,the 
future in the main through these various multilateral institutions? 

Mfr. fRourNE. In the main it already is, in my judgment.
 
Senator CHURCH. Yes.
 
Mr. RoiTiN . And I think that trend at the present tine is very
 

much in that direction. 
Senator Cutito. And actually, the size of our present program of 

some $75 million, is not of great magnitude, is it, as compared to the 
whole Brazilian economy or the total amount of outside capital that 

- is presently coming into Brazil?
 
S1 . lhN~ToL.E It is small in terms of the total magnitude, Senator.
 
I thi it is important in terms of the areas in which we are now con
centrating, that is education, agriculture, public health, and particu
larly •in. connection, with the northeast region, which is far behind the
 
restof the country in sharing the fruits of prosperity which has come
 
,to Brazil. Their per capita income is halt that'of the country as a
 
whole, for example.
 

PROMrS Or AERICA-N RUSINTESS 

Senator CmuRci. You mentioned that one of the.sources of external 
capital was American.private business investment. 

M r. RoUN . $essir. -
Senator Cancn. Iivthe past few years has Americn business taken 

out of Brazil more than it has put in? 
_1r. RouN'nn. Let me say that in the lijst few ,years Ainerican 

business, has done extremely well in Brazil, bath in terms of foreign 
trade ahd in terws of investment. Our economic relationships wdth 
,Brazil hive .been,of enormous .value, to Braiil ,and to us. As to the 
precise amoutt repatriated by firms manufacturing in Brazil I will 
have to submit tigures for you unless my colleagues have them. 

Senator Ciarno. Is that not a rather critical question'in.evaluating 
what contributibn is made by privateAmerican-business investment? 
Is it not rather critical to know 'how-much American business has 
-taken out of the country each, year as compared to how much it has 
invested? 

Mr. Roimrt. Yes, we hiave these figures, anld I would like to em
phasize that it is not merely a question of how much is repatriated in 
any given year in terms of profits---actually removed fron the coun
try.. It is also-a.question of how much is reinv.ested, which provides a 
broader basis for. productive .eiterprise in Brazil and for flture 
profits. According ,to these statistics in .1969%the net direct investment 
in Brazil was $64 million, and the profit remittances were'$66 million. 

Senator Crmon. E xeuse me, would you give that to.meagain? 
Mr. RomTmn. $6!.million -net direct invstments, and $66,mjllion 

represented the,profit actually.r6patrivted or a. net effect on, the '.S. 
balance of payments of $2 million. Now we azeispeaking of net figures 
here, the profits having come from substantial previous investments. 

63-33--------19 
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Senator Ommnc. Yes. 
Mr. RoN=rTE. In addition to this you have reinvestments within 

Brazil which provide a much broader base for future profits.
Senator CEURCH. But last year, according to the figures, if I under

stood them correctly, American companies actually repatriated, that 
is brought back to the United States, if I understand that term, more 
money derived from their investments in Brazil than new money
invested in Brazil. 

Mr. RouinuE. That is correct, for that particular year.
Senator CHuRC:H. So the fact is that American business was actually

withdrawing capital from Brazil, was it not, rather than adding to 
capital formation in Brazil? 

Mr. RouNnrr. I think it was both, Senator. 
Senator CnRcir. I mean, on net balance. 
Air. RorTrE. The inflow of foreign private investment has been 

exceptionally large in the last several years. No doubt these increases 
in industrial plants and equipment have contributed significantly to 
the rapid growth of the Brazil national product, but here again we 
must emphasize that foreign investment has merely supplemented
Brazilian investment, and has succeeded so dramatically only because 
it fits so well into the sound economic and development plans of the 
Brazilian Government. 

United States firms have shared significantly in this investment in
put and have brought in new capital in the amount of $270 million 
during the 4-year period 1966-1969. In addition, these firms have in
vested an even greater amount from profits retained in the country, so 
that total new American investment in Brazil out of new capital and 
reinvested earnings amounts to $550 million over the 4-year period
from 1966 to 1969. Repatriated profits of U.S. firms during this period 
were less than half this amount. 

As I said, part of the profits were reinvested in Brazil to join pre
vious substantial investments, and in terms of the contribution to 
Brazil the extent to which these American firms not only invest capi
tal but bring modern technology in their productive enterprises has 
served greatly to improve the general structure of Brazilian produc
tive capacity. 

A31OUNT Or MONEY REPATMATED 

Senator Caun~on. I have some figures here, I think you must have 
supplied them, or they were supplied by the U.S. Department of 
Commerce in its survey of current business showing a 10-year period
in the 1960's in Brazil. 

Mr. Ron-PrE. Yes. -

Senator Cnucx . And the total, if I read it correctly, shows that 
between $70' and $90 million of net balance has been repatriated in 
profits to the United' States, that is something close to a $100 million 
more has been returned to the United States m profits repatriated to 
this country than has been put into new investments by private firms 
in Brazil in that period.

Mr. RouNnE. Also, Senator, repatriated profits during that pe
riod totaled $281 million, and the reinvested earnings during that 
period totaled $621 million. 
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Senator Cnmcin. So that you are suggesting that two-thirds of the 
profits realized were reinvested 

Mr. RourTnn. Reinvested. 
Senator Co o. In Brazil? 
Mr. RouxmEE. In Brazil, to the benefit of tiw Brazilians. 
Senator Cm H. But as compared to the flow of new money into 

Brazil from the United States and profits taken out of Brazil by
Ajmerican firms, the balances run in the direction of withdrawal from 
Brazil over the 10-year period. That, too, would be true. 

Mr. Rouwnnir. That, too, would be true. I might say in this process 
the productive capacity of Brazil has been enormously increased. 

Senator Cnrui, Mr. Holt has given me a figure here that seems 
hard to believe but let me ask the question. Did the IBM Co. make 
64 percent on its investment in Brazil last year?

Mr. Romw~m m. I saw a publication, perhaps the same publication 
that Mr. Iolt saw, indicating such a figure, and I have not had anopportunity to look into it so I really cannot answer the question. 

Senator Cmir. Have you any reason to doubt the figure? 
Mr. RoREE. I just do not know what it represents, Senator. I 

do not know what the investment is. Do you, Bill? 
Senator CHuRcOJi. I know Mr. Holt has some questions. I will ask 

him to question you and then I may have some windup questions. 
Mr. H LT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
First, [deleted]. This is a classified record. Would you read the 

secret annex to your statement? It is very brief. 
Air. RonTmn. tDeleted.] 
Mr. HOLT. Thank you. 

BACOGIOUND OF TRANET STATION 

Now, referring to various attachments which you included in your 
statement with respect to the Tranet Station in response to our 
request, let me summarize briefly the situation of this station as I get
it from reading these documents, and I ask you to correct me if I 
am mistaken. The station was originally installed in 1960 on the basis 
of permission from President Kubitschek, whib. was conveyed orally.
It was originally contemplated for 18 months or more. There is no 
record of any extension of Brazilian agreement for it to be there 
until 1967, when the Brazilian Government in a note to the American 
Embassy, agreed to eitension until June 30, 1970. In September of 
1970 the Embassy requested a further extension for a period of 10 
years and proposed a written agreement between the two governments,
and apparently the Brazilians "havenot responded to this, although 
it is some 8 months later. Is that a fair summary of where that station 
stands? 

Mr. Rour-nFr. That is a fair summary.
Mfr. H:oLT. In the period since September, has the statlus of the sta

tion been discussed with the Brazilian Government at all, informally 
or otherwise? 

Mr. Roxmms. Yes, by inquiry concerning, the status of the written 
reply, with an indication from the Braziian authorities that a writ
ten agreement would be forthcoming, and a clear indication of their 
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approval for the station to continue to be operated on the basis of 
previous agreements.

Air. 1-IoLT. Have they given any indication or do you have aniy sur
mises as to -why they are so hesitant about proceeding with this? 

Ir.RonNm . No, I have had no indication that they are hesitant. 
IMr. HOLT. Welh-they have hesitated for 8 months. 
Mr. RonTjxrE. 'I have no indication they are hesitant with respect

to the opeartion of the station, and no real explanation as to why-a re
ply to the note has not yet been received. 

Mr. HOLT. IT they were to decide, for whatever reasons, that they
did not want the station there any more, how serious would- this be
from the U.S.point of view? 

M£r. Ro Rnar. I cannot give you an authoritative answer to. that
question but I will be glad to check and submit a comment for the 
record.
 

It is my impression, however, that it does serve an important pur
pose.

Afr. HOLT. It is only one of a nmnber of similar stations, is it not?
Mir. ROCNTAEE. It is. South Africa, Australia have similar stations.[r. O-IOLT. I believe Iceland and' the - and AfghanistaUKand other 

countries also have similar stations. 
Are you in a position to say fromthe technical point of view wheth

er or not the system would work equally well or substantially -aswell
if any one of'this network of stations were eliminated? 

Mr. RoONTRDE. I am not insuch position, no, I do not know. 
Mr. HOLT. Could you give us something for the record on.l that then?,

Mr. RoUN=n. Yes, Sir.
 
(The information referred to follows:)
 

SUTmmARY BAcKGnoxD DATA ox THE TRANET STATION fRAZIL 

Originally, in 1960, the U.S. Doppler station in Brazh was a part of the U.S.
Navy Navigational Satellite Net designed to provide a world-wide navigatfou
capability. In that configuration it was identified' as 'Station 008, Sac Jose dos
Campos,Brazil. 1By 1966, improvement in the knowledge of the Earth's gravity
i.eld, obtained by the original net, permitted. the reduction of the number of the
TRANSIT stations to only four, all of which are located on U.S. soil; The geodetic community, in analyzing the data of the 1960 net, found that the original
net could be used to determine the Earth's gravity field, to a precision whieb
could- support geodesy and gravimetric ,requirements of the Department of De
ense. In 1966,.responsibility for the operation of the world-wide TRANET' net

work, including the Sac Jose Station, was transferred from the Navigation
Program to the Mapping,, Charting and Geodetic Program. This station. was con
sequently redesignated as Station 2008. Observations obtained from the 14-sta
tion. TRANET Network form the basis, o4 the DOD, World Geodetic
 
System and have contributed significantly to the development- of ian earth gravity

model used by DOD. The value of the TIRANET system has been Ruch that the

three other geodetic satellite systems of the DOD (the SECOR electronic rang
ing system, the BO-4 and PC-1000 optical camera systems) have now been

phased out and only the Doppler-system retained as-the DOD geodetic satellite

positioning -system. The TRANET ,stations are extremely selective, in nature in

order to provide best looks at the satellites
 

UT7hITY OF TRANW SYSTU SUX01tD ONa STATION BE OLOSD'" 

- The usefulness of the TRANET system would be seriously impaired il one
 
of the 'TRANE-T' stations were eliminated. The Doppler station in Brazir is 
one-pf a world-wffide net for acquiring geod'Ric and-graimetric, ddta, -from'Which 
the size, shape, positions and gravity field of'the earth are derived. The result
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lug data is utilized specifically: (1) in deriving an ephemeris (satellite position)
for use by the Army, Navy and Air Force in their site positioning surveys; (2)
in the continued refinement and development of the mathematical model of the 
earth's gravity field: (3) as an input for revision of the DOD World Geodetic 
System and (-t) in the computations of the remaining National Geodetic Satellite 
Program statiQns. 

SUBSTITUTION OF U.S. PERSONN-L AT STATION 

ir. Hour. I notice the Brazilian Note of 1967 makes one of the con
ditions of the station that it be used for scientific and peaceful purposes,
and I notice also that it makes one of the conditions that North 
American personnel will be replaced to the extent possible by Bra
zilians. Have they, in fact, been replaced? 

Mr. RouxTnE. Mr. Holt, we will have to give you further informa
tion on this. 

Mr. HOLT. For the record, Mr. Dockery and,I were there, it was one 
man from the State University of New Mexico with four graduate 
students who get a term's credit for staying down there. 

(The information referred to follows:) 
The American Embassy in Rio de Saneiro stated in a letter of 1 November 196T,

that U.S. technicians and specialists will be replaced insofar as possible by Bra
zilian technicians and specialized personnel. In addition, the letter indicated that 
specialized Brazilian technical personnel designated by the Brazilian National 
Commission on Space Activities will participate in the activities o the station 
which will be under the supervision of an administrator designated by New Mex
ico State University. To date, the Brazilians have not designated or made avail
able their personnel to replace U.S. personnel. Informal contact has been main
tnined between on-site 'U.S. tracking station personnel and the Comissfio 
Nacioral do Actividades Espacias Centio Technica de Aeronautea, SFio Tos4 dos 
Campos, Brazil, to encourage the Brazilians to understand the operation of the 
tracking station. Operational status of TRIANET Station 2008 has necessitated 
the continuous operation and maintenance by U.S. personnel. Transfer of station 
to Brazilians will be expeditiously accomplished when Brazilian'tracking Station 
personnel are identified and made available. 

AVAILAM3IIE OF TRANET SYSTEM TO ALL NATIONS 

Mir. HoLT. Oan. anybody-track these satellites? 
Mir. Rou-mN=. Yom'mean, can they be trained to track the satellites?' 
Mr. lioL. No; I mean, is it technically feasible for somebody who 

knows, for a physicist or an electronic engineer with the proper equip
ment to track a satellite that is going around in the sky?

Mr. ROUNTREE. This is an area in which I am not very well informed. 
Mr. HOLT. I just wondered if-well, in the original note to the Bra

zilians requesting permission to establish this station it was said that a 
new satellite progiam of the Government of the United States-this is 
in 1960....is expected ultimately to establish an all-weather naviga
tional,aid available to all nations." 

Is this navigational system available to all nations? 
Mr. Roann. I will have to submit that, also. 
Mr.HoLT. Thank you. 
(The information referred to follows:) 

On July 29, 1967, Vice President Hubert Humphrey, ,as Chairman of the Na
tional Council on Marine Resources and Engineering Development, announced 
that the TRANSIT Navy Navigational Satellite System was available for use by
the industrial oceanograpbi community, off-shore oil companies and. other seg
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ments-of U.S. industry interested in-the commercial-applieation of the system for 
ships requiring'precise ndvigation. TheTIANSI-T'Navy Navigation Satellite'Sys
tem became operational October 1968. According to the Office of Muhitions Con
trol, State Department, -r.& commercial companies can sell Doppler equipment, 
to those countries appe'ahing on the U.S. munitions list. This list specifically ex
cludes communist countries and some others such as S. Africa and Rhodesia. It Is 
generally known, however, that the excluded countries can build their own 
Doppler equipment and receive, thetautomatically transmitted-navigation ephem
eris data. 

BRAZIL S ROLE flW WORLD AFFAIRS 

Mr.. HoLT. Turning from that now to-other matters, would y0t1 look 
ahead a little bit and speculate what role you think Brazil mighi play 
or attempt to play in hemispheric affairs or world afflairs, say 5 years 
from now? In what direction do you see the country moving, in' the 
future? 

Mr. Rouvnrj. The importance of.Brazil in hemisphericaffairs bi4 
indeed, in world, affairs-is indicated by its size, its poptlation, its'econ
omy, and thg rapidity -with which it is prooressina as a real economic 
power in the region. The dedication of the t raziliomnkeders, wihthe 
support of the Brazilian people io this-program of progress, is really 
very impressiVe'. Their progress is being made,u nder a free enterprise 
system which I ,ink serves as a very good example to-others .who' 
might be considering other forms of economic systems for the achieve
ment of their objectives. I I 

Senator C-mRi: Do you feel the same way about the,political'sys
tern, Mr. Ambassador, serving as a good example?

Mr. Ro-Nrn. The political situatiofi existink in Brazil, of course;. 
is uniquely Brazilian. I do not-think they would expect that Brazilian 
solutions-to'the problems of Brazil would necessarily constitute an,ex
ample for other countries whose pfoblems are different, and whose-sit 
uations arh different. - . 

V.S. FOLIOY TOWARD BRAZIL'AND 0TW3R NATIONS 

Senator On rcn. I was just speaking as an .Amrican who was
brought up to-believe in,a: free society and who9,gv5es-as much, at,,aeast 
as mch, -weight, to:,the character of a govcrnment as to -the baMl~fce
sheets on the economy: We hayeinvrested $2 billiondu thebajanc. sheets 
and have, had- a. consummat& int~rest in the state &f the economy- but 
what weight woul. yo.u give to.he -tateqf fTeedbin. -in,Brazil and,tqo 
what extent should that be a matter of concernto :th United-6t#te, 
. Mr. .EowT fi: Well, the situation in Brazil presentT many. differ
ences from our ow.n concepts. I amremendously impressed-with. whaP 
Pr:esidentNixon has-said aboutthis generalquestion.: "-

-The Unted- States lias 'a strong 'politica 'interestih ,mainta-niig cooperation 
with our neighbors regardless of their doiheste vievpoint &have a -clear,pref4 
erence for free and democratic iprocesses. jWe hope -thatgovernments will-evolve 
toward constitutional rroeedqres but it is not our mission to try to provide ex
cept by example, the answers to such questions to other sovereign nations. We
deal with governments as they are. 

Senator OnuRG2O. We not only deal with them, we extend lavish 
amounts of money, in thecasu of Brazil $2 billion to support Brazil% 
fan programs,under the auspices of this'country. With all deference to
the President's statement, it does not go far: enough, in explaining
our policies. We have invest6d a great deal of money inthe Braziliam 
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-situation, and you have justified it on the grounds. that it has-helped 
prombte economic growth. My question is to what extent in your
judgment, should .the Government of the Unitedx.States be conicenedt 
about the political health of Brazil! . You-quoted the President saying 
that is not our affair. But is it assimple ,as. that, Mr. Ambassador?. 
Can we simply say it matters noli what the state of freedom isan any 
country? The concern of the United- States is with the balance sheets, 
the stability: of the economy, and the,promotion ofeclnomac growth. Th 
that really the fll, timensioi of the.American concern in Brazil and 
elsewhere in the world.? I woudd like your own judgment on that 
question. 

(Senator Church left the-.hearing ro)om-temp orarily. );. 

' MALT iEATTTNT OF'TIN-DIVD AIS 

Senator P,wrzr. In. the absence of the~chairman I might interpolate 
one point thaf'interests e 3 the question of the-maltreatment of Jar 
di-vicluals. I went through your statement and I know the charman. 
of the- subcomnnttee.has already~ouched on it, and I realize we can
not spread our energy, too wridely; but I think sone of us. have' done 
a fairly effective job of trying to hold down the maltreatment, .the 
abuse, of the prisoners in Greece by publicizing it, by putting"m the 
r'ecord the names of'the'tortir'ers-and their victimsL .. 

I, as one small'itd-tidnal, am doig this, &ud so are the Council of 
Europe and a variety'9f o~her people. . -

One hears-rmore and more.reports about the maltreatment of politi
cal prisoners in Brazi, and I think this is the sort of thing-that bothers 
a good many of us. If people -are wilhng 'to accept a paternal form of 
governmenator a despotism and they are happy under it or content or 
do not nobject, more .power to therm But It is when individuals arb 
abus~led and this busen-b uzeda a method of keeping-that govefrmnent 
in power that I think the pu~lib conscience 4o the wotldi shodid get 
excited. The maltreatment of politic4l prkqsn~rs iii-Brazil seems to 
have exceeded evenflthat in Greece,. and I,was wondering if you would 
enlarge on' or response earlier iwhen yow-said that it had been ack
Adwledg6d-bf.he-,goVerminit s-haviihg dccfred~but the goi'ernknent 
diid not condbhle it and Wa .biugyhat it could to staxip- it out. Why 
is the government not snc&eeding iii 'smpih~g it6nt'Why do these 
reports keep' cropping up? What can- We do to try to indicate to the 
Brazilians thqat-ijt should ot be done? Howmanytineshave you made 
a forinsl protest"concerning what s-bnvously an inter-nal matter, but 
how m'any tbnesihavd'you-made~wformal.protest in this. regard? 

Mr. Ron nu r Wel, sit'as &,b'us~id thksisan' intern~lbnatter. Our 
:oncerh °regaid3g thds.e r4pp~tih beei "exptessedat various levels 
and at various times'both here and-in Brazil.. - " - - " 

Senator Pmn. ,Publicly;-excuse ma-for interrupting, publicly or 
'
privately?. I ' 

Mr.Rlo15Nna, The' State Iieliartment 'has made atileast onetand I 
thin , perhaps morepublic statementsin tisregard.. , '-

•Senator Qnz. Arfe-these available-for the record, Pat, or do you have 
them-?. 	 ...

M[r. IoLT. No, we do not. - '""
Senator-Pmrn. Could they be submitted for the record? 
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Mir. DEAN. They came out at press conferences at noon briefings. 
Senator PEL. Once or twice ? 
Mr. Roum . Twice. 
Senator PrLu. From 1Rio or Washingoton. 
Mr. R u=-r=E. From Washington.
(The information is as follows:) 

FARTIAL TRANSORIWVS OF STATE DEPARTIE-T PRESS fRIUVIN GS ny i\rn CARL 
4DARTCR, Arm 22. AND JL 23, 1970-9 

A2RIT 21 

Question. Carl, could yoz comment on Senator Kenned's stipulation on -U.S. 
Government responsibility-4n particular,with the Brazilian military govern
ment in power-anti continuing to 4stpport it in spite of terrorism a-n torture of 
prisoners?

Answer. I didnt get the last part of your question. I'm sorry. 
Question. He said the United States gives coutinued--he nentioned the 90 

inilfZin loan last year to the Brazilian Government in spite of the torture and
I . Ipersecution. 

Answer. As far as allegations.bf torture of prisoners' in Brazil are concerned, 
of course we are concerned about this. Now, -we've been assured in eonversa
tions with high Br'azilian officials that the Brazilian Government does not con
done torture. 

,Question.You're satisfieswith this assrtrance? 
Answer. Well, we continue to be concerned about these reports, Tad, and 

we've been in touch with the Brazilian Government.about them. I would assume 
we'll continue to be in touch with them and express our concern. 

Question. In what way haoc you been in touch with them? 
Answer. We've been in touch with them over the past few weeks both here 

and in Rio 
Question. Anti about responsibilityfor bringing the 9ilttarJ.government into 

power? 
Answer. The United States played no role in the Brazilian revolution of 1964. 

Former Assistant Secretary of State Lincoln Gordofl testified on this point 
before the Senate Foreign Relations Committee on February 7th, 1.966. 

Question. Carl, this "is quite interesting, what Vou say. There -was a report 
published in the Vatican about four or five ivee7s ago or more on tortures in 
Brazil. lVill you take the Brazilian Government's assurancesor the Vatican re
ports on what is tleo.orelibilitysituation? 

Answer.'Well, I think about 'the only thing we can do at this ,point,Tad, is to 
seek further information and to continue to bring our concern over these re
ports and allegations to the Brazilian Government-which we have done and 
which we are doing and which we'll continue to do. 

TULY23 

Question. Carl, is there anything to reports 6/ American duplicity in 
Brazilan-

Answer. Well as you know, we continue to reject these charges or implica
tions, .or whatever you call them. I myself haven't seen the full text 45f what
ever was issued there. We're getting.that, but you can recall my statement on 
April 21, We had expresseC our concern over reports of torture to Brazilian 
officials, both here and in Rio. I had said at that time that we had been as
sired' by high-ranking Brazilian officials that the Brazilian Government does 
not condone torture, and I added that we were going to continue to express-our 
concern to the Brazilian Government over these .reports and allegations, which 
we have done, and so I think that should be our position on the matter. 

Question. Carl, this is an internationalbody, apparentlyfrom reports, saying 
that Brazilioas learned proce&uroe of torture an? training from the United 
States. Certainly,you eati address yourself to that,as to whether that is a part 
of nz e mni7itary-granttraining ve give to Latin Am erican countries. [Ufughter.] 

Answer. Torture has not been put on the agenda of the training programs. 
[Laughter.) 

http:allegations.bf
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Seriously-that the United, States conducts in many conntries, or anything 
connected with tbat. 

Qtestion.Well, you saigc it's not been put on t e agenda,Do you flatby deny it? 
Answer. Flatly deny it. It's not practiced, condoned in any way, by the UnitedIStates: 
'Queston. Wel'now, let ine get clear. Are yo. denying that there is any suc74 

idtoctranattiong ven.n U.S. training? 
Answer. Ia 
'Question. !Pkazk you, Carl. ' 
(The-brieflng was closetdat 1 :24p.n.) 

EXTEXT O TORTUEfl& 

Mr. RonTwmrs. NOw, the extent to whichthis sort of thing happens 
is very difficult for anyone really to evaluate. The fact -is that the 
President and one of the ministers, and others as well, have aclmowl
edged that it does. They say they do not condone it, but it has hap
pened. It would be very difficult for me, -as American Ambassador, to 
try to evaluate the extent to -which this has been done. There are 
obviously great difficulties involved in Brazil in their efforts to coumter 
ruthless aets of terrorism involving murder, kidnaping, arson, rob
bery, and so frth, and'indications are that the police--or security
officials hatve comnitted excesses at various times in interrogating 
people suspected of being terrorists. But I do not know the extent to 
which this actually-has taken place. 
. Senato PELL. I can speak toyou as a brave man because I remem

ber my old friend and your friend, your predecessor.
Mr. Rox E.r: Burke Elbrick. 
Senator PE'z. Burke Elbriek; wlo was kidnaped, -so I realize the 

extent of terrorism there but I would have thought that as Ambas
sador there you wouldxhave a .pretty.good idea of the extent to which 
it occurs. They certainly did in Greece,fdeleted]. 

I woul& think this i nformation is most -available. [Deleted.]
Senator PELT. But surely this information is available, and they 

must be able to give you a pretty accurate estimate. If you are arrested 
for political obnoxiousness.and youliave-some information they want 
to extract from you, would you give me a rough estimate of your 
chances of being toxtured to extract .the information--even, one out 
of 10, one out of a hundred br hetterthan even.? 

Mr. Ro-. Tr . It would be pure specil.ation on my part, Senator, 
as to what the statistics wouldbe. 

Senator PELL. I realize that. But what would be your informed 
opinion'as-a, man who has a&ess to everything [deleted]l

Mr. RoxnTmnE. I would be reluctant to put forth a guess in' this 
regadtf. The 'fact is that it happens-Brazilian govermnent officials 
have acknowledged 'that it happeus. The extent to which it actually 
goes on, I think, would be very diffioult for anyone to say. 

Senator P;ELL. I would le to 'have the pxotesb we made in this 
connection, a matter of record. Did we make it because of the human 
rights involved-? 

Mr. flouNTREE. I think we have expressed oar concern on the basis 
of the merits. 

Senltor.PELL,. On the merits of the cise. 
Do u'hbive any thoughts on what more we can db? Maybe we 

should try to dig up more specifics on this, because trying to get the 
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specific names of the hdividuals -who commit these abuses ,did have 
a .salutary .,effect in Greece. Do you haye any. other.sfiggestions 'for 

-usas to how we can esfablish these thihgs 2 " , . . 
Ar. RouN mh. I have none. I think the TIrizilian authorities, had 

this matter called to their attention repeatedly in the, international 
press, by members of the clergy, by foreign. diplomats, and. others. 
There can be no doubt in their inuds as to reaction of the international 
community to it. But I think in the, final .nalysis it is going to be 
entirely fbr the Brazilians themselves to take whatever action is appro
priate to end the basis for this criticism. 

Senator FELL. Do you think conditions are better in this regard 
or worse than they were, sky, 8 years ago?

Mr. R0uxmnmr. You hear considerably less about them now than 
even a year ago.

Senator PbLL. Thank you. 

AWARENES Or I RNATIONWAL REAC-ION 

Mr. HOLT. Jest to follow up.Senator Pell's questions, you saidithe 
Brazilians are aware of internationiri reaction ,to the reports of tor 
ture. Do they take, this international xeattion teriously or do they
tend to dismiss it-as a Communist plot.? 

Mr. RotnwTTn. I think that the fact that members of the; govern
ment address themselve publicly to the question is an indication 
they take it seriously. 

Mr. HoLT. Other than torture, what are tie forms or'tedhniques
of methods of political repression in,.Bril ,•?' 
- Mr RO-uT.Eo. Well, under the extraordinary mehsures-permitted
by'lnstitutional Act No. 5 and. other institutional acts, the security
authorities have very etensive authority., 

lf-fMlR, Or ARRESTS 

Air. HOLT. Going back to Institutional Act No. 1, and since 'that 
time, how many Braziliars have been deprived -of .their political
rights? 1 1 

Mr. ROUvvIfRE. I am told, it has been estimate& at-about 1,200.
•fr.,HoLr.' And how many have been arrestedat onetime or-another 

in connection with political charges?
Mr. Roux:iw . -I have no estimate, no idea. 
Mr. HoLT. Would it -be hundreds, thousands, tens of thousandsfMr. PRouNrTm. 

zations abroad there are 12,000 political prisoner in -Brazilcurrently.
The Brazilian Government has statedI that the number was less than 
500 and that this figure has been accepted as accurate by Brazilians 
who were released under exchanges for 'kidnaped ambassadors. 

M We have seen allegations made by various organi-

SflFPORT TO MfLTTARtY REM=5 QUESTIONED. 

Senator COu ao.When I left the room, Mr. Ambassador, I had 
asked you for your own views on the question of the political con
sideratons that ought to go into formulation of our foreign policy.
You did not have a chance to respond to that question, you had read 
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me the President's statement.blt yoff:ha~d'had no chance to respond 
" that question in your own riht. 
Mr.[RouN .Seno~r,WillX[ yowexcu's 'me just 'ahientbecause 

we got-on other subjects whil;3 you were out and I wit to be sure of 
what you said. 

Senator Ca~cno. Let me rephrase it so you will not have fo 6oback. 
So that you will understand my own position here, I recognize that 
th6 Government of Brazil is the business of Brazil-, and'I thii&we have 
io deal with goveriments as -wefind them regardless of whether or 
-notwe approve of them ;,but our policy in Brazil,rat/least, and in-many
other places, goes, much further tbin simply rdcognizing and having 
normal dealingswith the government of the country. It involves a verylarag American subsidy to the country. 

io, when I go to American colleges and' talk to yonig people they
ask \hy have we spent $2billion in Br.zillwhen the.governmeft there 
is dictatorial in charater, runty militarynen,any number of Brazil
ians are said to be mistreated in -the j;ail, where-ftherearecurrenteports of human torture. Why should the United States giv& such
lavish support to'a governn'ient'of this kind? Thdysiy, "We thought 

that more money has been spept/by the United S~at~s inBrazil thtn 
in other foreign country in rtcent years outside of Thdit. 'Theysay, 'What does this' have to do with the kind of sooi~y we are sup
posectto stand for ?'"Those quest-ionls are not easily answered;. and since 

yatv puliuppoit will be necessary to' sustain -any foreign 
Ihappens when 'that forgna pcy falls to of contact 

wih th 'h0aditoniaivalueg of our-country in such a ay that people 
can nd longer understand its '~urpose nor' 'stify their suppor for it?Young people say, if we are not aihst This' kihcl' of thinmg then what 

s itwe are for in the world te' woworb sdpporing ?his is the.iltimate test of 'a foreign policy and frankly, public support for -the-
American foreign policy is rapidly eroding away. ,
 

Mr. Rocxn'n. With respect to Brazil, I think you are futlly aware 
of the circumstances in which the military regime took over in 1964.
T]his was quit franly a mlifary operation which replaced the form 
of deniocratic government whfich had then existed h Rr~zil. .

As recently as when President Medici came into office he stated~that
Brazil dii not have-a democratic gpveiimgntibut he hbped thatdemoc
racy would be returned' to -the euntry by 'the tbie 'he left office. He
has, in fact, taken a number of measures, retunigsofrefonn of-pub
lie participation in the decisioninakdng process.•-" ' -

"Senatbr royudn. What would be your owiu appraisal of this gay
*erniment today? Would you call it a free government based on popular
'elections, or is it a military dictatorship? What is the present form of*goverorent 

. 
iV!r. IRon-mm. It is certifinly a government which i basedupon the 

military,-'and it is a governmnet which has not yet returned to a full
democratic process but-one which has indicatd an interest and mani
fested an interest in returning to some forms of -public particpation
such as the congressional electiops that they have had in the recentand-reinsttution of Congress itself. mpast 
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OBJECTflES, OF U.S. AM 

Senator Onucn. Certainly, we are not supporting these laxge aid 
programs in Brazil, because we approve-of the political system there, 
are we? 

Air. Ro rNnx . That is correct. 
Senator Cncmac.' So,,our objective, so far as it has been explained 

to me, has to do with our interest in the growtLt and stability of the 
economy, and that gets us back to the earlier question that I asked 
you, and then we were detoured, we never did.get to give you a chance 
to-answer it fully. 'That question had to do witk.our national interests 
in Brazil and what justified the expenditure of $2 billion there since 
1964. 

You answered, first of all, that we had a humanitarian inteiest in 
improving ling standards, but I think the record will .show that 
insofar as that is furthered by external capital, it will now come largely
through multilateral banks and that American business has not been 
a source of new external capital for Brazil in the last 10 years. 

So what other national interests of the United States, sir, are served 
by this $2-billion program? 

Mr. Ron Tmi. I mentioned our :humanitarian interest in the im
provement in the standard of living of the people of Brazil in the 
context of the philosophies underlying the Alliance for Progress as 
one element. Another is that Brazil is a country with whom our rela
tions are important not only to us but to the hemisphere-and to the 
world. I believe it is,important to our national interests to continue 
the type of association that we have had with Brazil in matters of 
common concern, including security interests. , 

Senator CnRxcn. What are those security interests, ir. Ambas
sador? 

Mr. RouNT=rE. Well, Senator, we have had a long history of 
cooperatien-

Senator Cmo . I know we have had a long history--
Mr. RouNaim. In security matters. 

n.S. SECURITY ThTTERESTS IN BRAZIL-

Senator Cnroyon. Do you percive'a threattoBrazil's security today 
which would, in turn, affect our security? 

Mr. RonmUEN. I think that.any threat to the security of any of the 
countries in the hemisphere would bea matter of concern tous. 

Senator CHU-RoH. You mean internal threats? 
Mr. RouNTRE. I think also-
Senator OnROn. Do you. mean internal threats; are you talking 

now about internal Threats? 
Mr. Rouxffn. I am speaking about threats coming from within 

the hemisphere or outside the hemisphere. 
Senator CuAno. Is there any external threat to Brazil today that 

you think is serious? 
AMfr. RomxnR. I think the cooperation that we have with Brazil in 

the security field relates to very general security considerations involv
ing no specific-

Senator CnRUon. The military tells us that the-consideration is the 
internal security. That its present programs are not conducted there 
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on the basis of hemispheric defenses but on the basis of internal 
security. 

Mr. ROUrTREE, I would' say that any military program, would be de
sip-ed to assist the country in preserving internal security and pro
rtdng a reasonable level of defense against any external threat. Now, 
history has disclosed that we and, the Brazilians do have common se
carity interests. They have cooperated with us in two World 'Fars, in 
the OAS presence in the Domi-nican Republic, and elsewhere. 

Senator Caumsu. But this program is not a payoff for past cooper
ation, is it, Mr. Ambassador? 

M r. Rou ,,ir. No, but T think-
Senator CHvnca. What are the present security interests of the 

United States that are promoted by this program? 
MNr. RounaRrn. The mere fact we have a continuing association with 

a strong Brazil which is willing to play its role as a member of the 
international community. They have demonstrated this willingness,
for example, in several cases of United Nations actions in other parts, 
of the world. 

BUYING Or GOODWILL 

Senator Cnumon. You think we would not have cordial relations 
with Brazil if we -hadnot spent $2 billion in AID programs there since 
1964:? You mean, we buy their goodwill with these programs? 

Mr. ROUNTME. No, I think this is only one aspect of the'close rela
tions we have with them. 

Senator Cnunon. Well, your testimony suggests that the program 
promoted cordial relations with a country and that means to me that 
$2 billion spent in Brazil for various AID programs gets us cordial 
relations. Suppose -we had relied on our support of the international 
banks for long-term economic investments, that we had had no large 
bilateral program in Brazil since 1964, do you think that this would 
have meant hostile relations between the two governments? 

Mr. RourrnE. I think the money we spent in Brazil has had mate
rial effect in the development of a stron, and progressing Brazil, and 
I think this is wholly consistent with the purposes of our AID program, 
the Alliance for Progress and other actions that the United States 
Government has taken to strengthen the countries of the hemisphere. 
Brazil has been strengthened -byits own efforts, assisted by our AID 
programs. 

Senator Cnmon. Do you think that this investment has bought us 
cordial relations -with the present government of Brazil? 

'yr. Rouwrn=r. I think our relations with the government and the 
the people of Brazil are very close. 

Senator Cnmmc. And you think this is due to the AID prSgram . 
Mr. ROUNTRE. I would say the AID program has played a role in 

that, yes. 
BRAzUns RmLATIONs \vTDE oTcER ATioNs 

Senator CIRcn. How are the relations of Brazil with the Gov
ernment of England, the Government of France, the Government of 
Italy? Axrethey cordial? 

Mr. RoukmE. I think they 'are cordial. 
Senator (ThroB. Have any of these governments extended-bilateral 

economic aid to Brazil? 
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Mr. IouIxTEE. Well, there have been a number of countries that have 
AID programs of one sort or another in Brazil. But I would say that 
the cordiality of the relationship between Brazil and them has not been, 
based upon the dollars and cents involved in AID programs. 

IS CORDXALITY BASED ON DOLLARS? 

Senator CGan. Do you think the cordiality with us has been based 
on the dollars and cents in our AID programs? 

Mr. RouNTRnu. I think that our AID programs have contributed to 
a very good relationship with Brazil, but that is by no means the 
only factor. Incidentally, in addition to the United States there are 
about 200 or 300 foreign assistance projects underway in Brazil, under 
12 bilateral umbrella teehical assistance agreements. 

Senator Cu:aca. I am just curious, in view of the fact that satis
factory and cordial relations can be maintained between Brazil and 
other countries without the need for large bilateral AID programs,
why is it so necessary for us to furnish that kind of AID in order to 
secure cordial relations? 

Air. ROUNTREE. Senator, I would say this goes to the basic philosophy
of the leadership which the United States has taken since World 
War II in providing at U.S. taxpayers' expense very large programs
of assistance to many nations throughout the world. 

Senator CHhotH. It is that very philosophy that is now so subject
to attack and so open to question and to doubt in light of some rather 
bitter experiences that we are now facing. That is one of the reasons 
for these hearings, to inquire into the basic premises of these policies. 

DIFFIOULTIES BFVfDFEX UNTlED STATES AND B3RAZIL 

You say that, having spent this money, we now enjoy cordial rela
tions with Brazil. I would hope so. It has been costly enough to the 
United States. Yet, aside from the highly favorable climate for Ameri
can business investment, and the very sizable profits that are being
realized by American business in Brazil, I do not see much evidence 
that would indicate close cooperative and cordial ties between the 
two governments. 

Brazil has refused to sign the Non-Proliferation Treaty. It extended 
its territorial sea to 200 miles. It walked out of the OAS'Foreign Min
isters Conference in January. It continues to complain about U.S. trade 
policies, perhaps with justification. It has not displayed much inclina
tion to cooperate-in OASmeetings at Punta del Este in March or Costa 
Rica in April. I do not see the official evidence of closeand cooperative
policies. What is the evidence? 

Mr. RorNxn_. Well, certainly, I would not say that in the type of 
relationship with Brazil that I have indicated there is any lack of dif
ficulties or differences between us. The basis of our policy is a mature 
partnership which takes fully into account that Brazil is an indepen
dent country. On a number of questions, some of which you have 
enumerated here, there are differences. There is an independence, a 
line of thought in Brazil that differs consrde'ably from our own. 
But I would say that taken oEi the whole; ±he'rolationships between 
Brazi Adithe ,THmted, Statesar go&.d: They are, solidran, they.are in 

•
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our mutual interest, and I think.we. should do everything possible to 
diminish areas of disagreement and work out problns -,as they, arise. 
'We have had other problems in -the,recent past that have-been solved 
by mature discussion and negotiation. 

'Senator Ct-ohUH. I would also think that mature discussion and 
negotiation by grownup men and grownup ,governments would be 
productive, but I fail to see the evidence that our large AID program
in Brazil has furthered thiskind of relationship between the two -gov
ernments. Surely Brazil has mature relations with other governments
of the world'that have -not extended' this kind of bilateral "aid to 
Brazil.I I can ufiderstand that we have a national interest in Brazil, as an 
investment opportunity for American business, but the wiole amount 
of the investment in-that country from the beginning of time is less 
than theamount of.money weha&spent onour foreign AIDlprogram
since 1964. 

Mr. RouoNTnfr. But this is only one aspect of the relationship. 
Senator CHmRC., What are the other aspects, Mr. Ambassador,

that are directly related to~and form part of the yield, let us say, of 
this very large, very expensive, ALID program in Brazil ? 

Mfr. R0rNrnnE. Well, I would say in 'addition-

IMPORTANCE OF srBIr~Y 

Senator 'Cndr:onz I would rant yo" the favorable, climate for 
American 'busin'ess-investment,ibut there must bea irhuch 'larger justi
fication for the programnthan that, do you not aoree? 

Mr. RouNmaRm. Yes, When you speak of-business investment, this 
is ohly one-aspect of the total relhtidnship, intmy judgment, not-by-any 
-means the-most important. You can mention a long list of Aneica9n 
investments in Brazil, the very large trade that we have with Brazil,
which exceeds both ways $1.4 million, about $1.5 billion this year. As 
I have indicated, I attach great importance to the kind of association 
we have with Brazil in, security matters. I think another inportant
element'of our interest is in a stable -Brazil which will retain, that 
stability anld contribute to a better position for the hemisphere as-a 
whole. There' are so many-aspects -of-the totality of our iEnterest in 
Brazil that would be difficult -to identify and to try to assign precise
values to 'any particular one. I 

Senator COmo. I take, it you, 6elieve that promoting economic 
dcvelo ment contributes to stability: -

OUNTRE. Yes, I think so. 
Senator Craniro. What makes'you think that that is so . What proof

is there in the experience we have had in this hemisphere in recent 
years that would indicate this assumption? 

Mr. RouNm. Ytlhink in Brazil itsalfyou have a situation-in which 
tw country is'prosperng'and'the benefits of this prosperity are reach
ing larger senentS of the population ,When the Govirnment of Bra
zil has been pursuing policies designed to improve the Welfare of 
tbose 'who liave kdt yetreaped-thdir sfire of the benefits' of,economic 
development There is m -general: an 'atfidspherie of great naional 
pride, of enthusiasm for where Brazil isItodd.' as' borhpared -with,' 
few years ago, and optimism as to where Brazil will be 10, 15, or 20 
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years'from now. I think this has been one of the aspects of our own 
programs there. I do not mean that American aid -hasmade all this 
possible, bit I do believe that the -rograms taken with, the sound 
poliies of the Goverment of Brazil,in 'theeconomic field, and taken 
with the efforts of the Brazilian people, have contributed' a great deal 
to a Situation in which the hope for the future -is-infinitely greater 
than it would have been in their absence. I 

Senator Curon. And would you, with your knowledge of Brazil, 
now believe ,that the future is likely to be stable and-secure, -and you 
see no likelihood of serious upheaval in Brazil in the futur.& 

Mr. RouTE. I think it would be highly precar'ious to anticipate 
developments in Brazil or any other cofintry too Tfar in advance, but 
I see no present indication of that -kind of upheaval in Brazil. Bra
zilian leaders have indicated they would like,to advance 4not only eco
nomically and socially but also politically. How far they will go and 
how quickly they will go I do not know. But one thing is quite certain, 
this -.wil.b-deeided by the Brazilians, thdmiekves and, by no one, else. 

ILATTON\TSI 1REVEEIN AM A.ND MRADE 

Senator C rncn. Well, I think it should be. 'I think that our policy
has been one of extreme intervention and the use of large amounts of 
money in Brazil, presumably to serve interests that relate directly to 
our own national wellbeing. There is no other justification for spendiing 
pu ,licmoney in this quantity unless it can be related to 'the best in
terests of-theUnited States, and you have suggested -thattrade is one 
of those interests. But really, Brazil trades withus due tothe fact that 
itis goodbusiness to trade withus. She-wouild be trading with usquite 
apart from.the AID program, would she not .Did she not-trade with us 
before we had an AID program? Does she not trade with other coun
fries that do ,not-extend AML)? Really, the trade argument is pretty 
much a mavke-work argument, is itnot? 

Mr. Rou-=nmE. But it is a factor in terms of what are the American 
interests in Brazil,responding to your question. 

Senator CGrionr. My question is,what interest has the AID program 
served? AWe have spent $2 billion in Brazil and I am trying to find out 
what national interest of the United States has been served by this ex
penditure. You mentioned trade, and itseems to me that that just does 
not follow. We have had trade, we have had trade before' and we are 
going to have trade after. One day we will have to stop this aid and 
we will have trade with Brazil and we will have it for good reasons, 
good business reasons. 

Mr. RouxTRE. Senator, I am quite certain that those who decided 
upon our AID program in Brazil, indeed those who decided upon the 
Alliance for Progress and those who decided upon our AID programs
generally,:did not do so on the basis of the direct relationship between 
AID and the amount of trade that, we might eventuallyget from-

Senator OHutcE. But you mentioned trade as the reason, Mr. 
Ambassador. 

Mr. RouTtesE. I mentioned trade as one of the elements of our in
terest in Brazil. But you must-take the totality of our 'interests. in 
Brazil embracing many factors. 
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SenatorCn-unH. Well, I am,acquainted with that philosophyr 'and 
it is that, 'th6sepiemises; that ire-being qtiestioned today. Weunder-
Look tlie Aiiice for Progrnssbecause we were frightenedout of-our 
wits by Cgstro inCuba. That is-what suddenly increased our attention 
to Latin America and brought of"ajprogram for -large-scaleAmerican 
aid. Theobjectives of that°program have not -been,fulfilled. One of the 
6bjectivesiwas,'-opefilfy to rolhote free government inLatin Amer
ica, and there hag been nothing other than a precipitous 'slide toward 
militarism in Latih America since. Clearly the political objectiye.has 
not been served. Nor-have eventsborne,out the-theory that-pumping n 
AID money would protect us from extremist governments in L in 
America. The two countries that arg in Latin America that are now 
Marxist are countries that bad-'reG ived very large amounts of Amer
ican investment, and where-the state'of the economy was relatively ad
vanced. I think most of the pi'emises that underlay the Alliance for 
Progrsshave been demonstrably disproven by-rthelexperience, we have 
had since that program was establishd., 

So,. I just antryg So see-what this-money has.been spent for andthe only part of your ainswer that holds up, in my;-judgment;-is 'that 
part whIh suggesttthat the money has helped to produce econoico-rowth and that in turn, h~s 'lelpad~ptomote stability in the,-cas of 

3razil. Now to the extent that that-canbe demonstratedor'documentcd 
the finandial interest of the UnitedStates has.been serVed by this pro
g-ram But the other reasons that are given-I simply fail to see; I just 
do not think they hold up at alh An-d that is why this committee is 
undertaing to reassess the whole aid ptdgram.

Pat, doyou have any further questions 2 . , 

AI ESTS OF' AX=,OAN CIZE-S 

M or.OLT. Just a few which will-not take very long.
Mr. Ambassador, how many cases have there been since December 

1968 of mistreatment of American cititens in Brazil.? 
Mr. RouTn'RE. There have been four-,cases in which the Embassy

'has had an involvement. But I: -would not describe them all as,mis
treatment. For example, you are probably familiar with the. Nancy 
Unger case. 

Mr. HoLT.She has dual citizenship, has she not ? 
Mr. RomNTm . She has dual citizenship and was arrested as a mem

ber of a terrorist organization. She was alleged to have been involved 
in a plot to kidnap the American Consul General. An Arericari officer 
of the Consulate General visited her about every 2 weeks to ascertain 
whether she was receiving good treatment and her rights under Bra
zilian law were being respected. In January 1971 she was included 
among the 70 prisoners exchanged for the liberation of the Swi~s Am
bassador, and she was flown to exile in Chile. In April she applied 'for 

63-373-71----20 
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a 'SaaQstasedort"n itbdii, she would be 
traveling to Algeria but the passport has not ,1546jss. ei' 

Tihe'thee'wsatffecasetotFord ounditlon rfesosA on June 12 
1970,wlio were arrt-ed, and, they alleg§d they vero treated roughly
by authorities. 

Mr.HoLT. How -manyof themwere there,
Mr. fRotrmE. There were three. Dr.Werner B. Baer, program ad

viser to Ford Foundation, T)r. Riordon Moett, Vamderbilt 1Univerity
professor who was conducting: r~search supported.,by the EFord F6un
dation, and' a Dr. Carlos Palaez, a Vanderbilt uniiversity, economist 
conducting research in the Getulio VargasFomdaution under an AID 
contract, and holder of a U.S. passport. , I
I When the duty officer 'learned: of the arrest he personally visited
several security agencies-to asectain,their whereabouts. The Einbassy
action brought abouit their early releaseafter qu-stionifig.'The deten
tion coincided with the kidnapping of the German Ambassador. 

I.. HOLT. Were any charges filed against them,? ' 
Air. ThOflDTRhZ. No. The 'Embassy presented an aidmemoire to.the 

Vorei.a Minister' cal1ing atteition to this incident atd the Foreign
Minister'replied-. This was. after the professors were released.
Mr. H OT.Can-youtellus briefly aboutthe other cases?
 

Mr. RoxTL-B. The other caseinvolvedan, Associated. Press representative, Mi. Allen.Kobrin, American free'lance photogralbhet, and aBrazilian assistant of his who were arrested at the airport.at the timeof the departure 6f the 7O prisoners who were,released in return forthe Swiss Amba~sador. They were held by the police for a number of
hours, [deleted].

I personally c'tlkd the Foreign Mixnister to discuss this matter ex
pressing my seriousconcern. [Deleted.J

Tfr. ;oLT. You said Mr., Kobrin [deleted]. Did he havea rib broken.Mr. Ror n. No, not he. 
MNIr. IOLT. The reporter had a rib broken? 
M21r. ROUNTREE. Yes, the Brazilian. 
Mr. Hour. Yes. 
Mr. Rouxnim. Allegedly, I do not know but I am tol-d the man who 

was with him had a broken rib, He is quite well now,
Then, those are the only cases involving L 

* Mr. HOLT. Was there not ,an American vho was picked up in Belo 
H-orizonte? 

M. Romwnn n. Ilshame.-is Davic-Lohr Wing, American free lance
photographer, who was visiting Brazil and was detained in BeloHorizonte on. July 25, 1970. He was held over thY weelend,released 
on July 27th. He was never queftioned or mistreated nor was he given
any explanation. He was released when he insisted on his right tocommunicate with the U.S. Fzmbassy. Af aide memoire was handed-to the Foreign Ofice on August 14t'h calling attention to the incident 
s alleged, and requestingan aPlropriatednvestigation. 

AIDhE WO&OIR15 REGAmRDIN AR~RESTS 
Mr. HOLT. Could you ,supply for the record, ,the text of the aidememoires that you referred to and the Brazilian replis?'
IMr. Romfnit. Yes. 
(The documents referred to follow:) 
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Texts of the American Embassy.Aide-Mimoire of June 19, 1970 
regarding the detention of Professors Roet, Baer, and Palacz and 
the Brazilian.reply, and o-the American Embassy Aide-Mmoire of 
September 1, i970, concerning the arest of David Lohr 'Wing (no 
Brazilianreply). 

" , . AEICAW fltASST ADE- fo tOar OF JUNE 19, 19 O 

The Embassy of the United States of America wishes to'call the attention of 
the Alinistry of Foreign Affairs to a letter dated June 16, 1970 by Stanley A. 
Nicholson, Acting Reprementative in Brazil- of 'the Ford Foundation addressed 
to General Luiz Franca de Oliveira, Guanabara State Secretary for Public 
Slecurity. Attached to Mr. Nicholson's letter is tegtimony provided 'by three 
Anlerican 'isiting prbfessors in which-they describe an incident which took place 
on the eening of June 12, 1970. 

-Dr. Oarlos Pelaez is conducting economic research at the- Getulio Vargas
Foundation as part'of the Vandrbilt 'Uifiiversity program under a USAID con
tract and holds an official United States passport. Dr. Werner Baer is employed
by the Ford Foundation as program adviser and has been instrumental in the
development of 'ord grants to Brazilian Universities, institutions, and Govern
,ment entities. Dr. Riordan Roett is a visiting Professor trom, Vanderbilt Univer
sity conducting research supported by a Ford Foundation Grant 

The three American professors in question state that on June 12 they were 
arrested by armed Brazilian security forces, who forcibly entered their apart
ments and 'refused, to identify themselves. According to their testimony, agents
ransacked one of the apartments and stole articles belonging to Dr. Ttoett. The 
professors were blindfolded and taken to a remote building where they were
threatened with violence, roughly treated, exposed to abusive language and 
interrogated, at length. They were held incommunicado for approximately seven 
hours before being released. Further detail is provided in their attached report.

The exposure of United States citizens to actions such as described by the three 
individuals is of concern to the Government of the United States of America. 
The Embassy, in bringing this matter to the attention of the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, hopes that appropriate investigation will be made for the purpose of
providing information and an explanation concerning this occurrence." 

BRAZUISAN A-IDE-MBMOfE OF JUNE 4970 (FREE TRANSZ4T101 

The Foreign' Ministry' considered the facts mentioned -in the American Em
bassy's, aide-m6moire of June 19, as wpll as all'the allegations contained in the 
documents annexed thereto, which present the-vertions of the American na
tionils involved in the occurrences which are described. 

The -concern of the Brazilian Govbrmnent over occurrences of the kind men
"tionedin the.referenced, ia1e-remnoire is'no less than,that expressed therein by
the American Embassy.

For that reason, appropriate measures are being taken together with the 
proper federal authorities in an effort to clarify the matter. 

AMERICAN EFMBASSY -ATE-1EMOMfl OP SEPTEMBER 1, 19,70 

A"'7 year old free-lance photographer-jonealist was recently in Brazil col
lecting material for travelog articles encouraging Americans to, ,isit Brazil. 
According to Mr. Wing, he was 'arrested in Belo Horizonte onJuly 25 by an un
identified 'security agent' while photographing the railwaiy station,, held incom
municado, and xreleased on' July 2T. First he was ordered to sit for about three 
hours in,a guard house at therailway station, and was then taken in a jeep-by 
an-armed uniformed guard to-a Jailhouse. Duringthe timelie was under custody,
he was never charged, never given any explanation for his detention, nor was
he ever questioned. 0m the third'day of his'incarceration, he insisted on -theright 
to communicate with Is embassy,-at which-tirmehe was released. 

Exposure of United States citizens to actions such as those related by Mr. 
'Wing is ofconcen.to'the- Goernment of the United Statesof Amerida, and the 
embassy is sure that the ,Government of Brazil shares thi&concern. In bringing /
this matter tothe attention of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs,.the embassy hopes:
that an appropriate investigation will be made for the purpose of verifying Mi:. I 
Wing's-allegations. (The Brazilian Goyernment did not'send a reply to this aide-' 
memoire:) - 

7
 



'L!AGX TE.Ah T' COlP--VOLDTEV1R ' 

£r. HIOLZ, Was±Iot a Pe'ace Cbrps vohimteer arfested in December .
 
1968
 

Mr. IouNTRE. I have not heard of it. 
M£r. HOLT. Could ydi check-that andssupply something about it? 
(The information referred to follqws:) 

DETAILS SunOUDXNO ARREST OF.PEACE Corps, VOLuNTEER, N DEOEM1ER 1908 

The Depattment has no record of the arrest of a Peace Corps vblunteer in 
December of 1968. RC Elbert Macallister Was arrested in Recife on Tuesday, 
February 11, 1969 in connection with the accidental shooting of a youngBrazilian 
woman. A private, out-of-court settle was negotiated..Thefeafter'PCV -i'.acallister 
was permitted to leave Brazil andLretufn to the United States. 

EXPULSION OF AXEHICAN. FTSTS 

M{r. HoLT.-Were not two American priests expelled from Brazil-also 
in December of 1968? 

Mr. RouNTREE. I do not lmow. 
Mr.HOLT. Named Father Darrell Rupiperand Father Peter Grams? 
Mr. Ro-,mRE.I do not lmow. 
Mr. HOLT. The committee has a letter from William Strobala. which 

says they were. WEil you, review your files and ,submit anything you 
have on that subject for the record? '

(The infbrmation referredtto follows:) 

DETAILS CONCERNING TIE ExpsioN OF A ERIcAN. CITIzN PEi8STS DARREL 
RUPIPER AND PETER GRAMS FROM BRAZfL IN DEOEMBER 196S 

On the evening of December 15, 1968, Father Darrell Dean Rupiper and Father 
Peter Albert Grams were arrested in Recife, Brazil, by police officers at the 
order of the Brazilian Fourth Army. The-priests were members of the Order of 
Oblate Priests of St. Paul; Minnesota. 

Representatives of the U.S. Consulate in Recife learned of the priests' deten
tion on the morning of December 16 and bad received permission to visit the 
detainees by 3 p.m....thatafternoon. Fathers Rupiper and Grams reported that 
they had .been.welltreated and fed but asked for ,beds,. cigarettes, and that the 
mother of one of the priests be advised to delay her trip to Brazil. to visit her 
son. Arrangements to meet.their xecuests. were made,

The Consulate attempted tolearn the nature of the charges made against the 
priests from the Chief of Staff of the Fourth Army. The Consulate was informed 
that the charge was "general subversion" and that a long and-detailed investiga
tion of the behavior of the priests was in process and would continue. Consulate 
representatives, were told-informally by'secnrity representatives that the priests
had, been producers 'and distributors of "subversive literature." Examples of 
"subversive materials" found in possessionof'the priests consisted priniarily ,of
weekly church, bulletins highly critical of existing social and economic condi
ltions With calls to the populace to take steps to alter the situation. Brazilian 
armed forces werel.special targets for criticism in the church bulletins, one of 
which 'suggested that Brazilians should' refuse military service as a protest

" I .against existing-conditions. 
Consulate representatives arranged *Ith Brazilian authorities to visit the 

priests on every third day of their detention-and also-arranged for a representa
-tive of their order to visit them. 

On December 18, Father Charles Morrissey of the ObldtejOrder -was detained 
by the Brazilian police when he visited Fathers Rupiper and' Grams in prison. 
After further intervention by Consular representatives, Father Morrissey was 
released on December 19. " 

'During the immediately following days, U.S. rieiresentatives learned that the 
)riests would be detained for an extended period while the Brazilian investi
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gative and judicial process was earried out. UiS. representatives also learned 
that should the imprisoned priests elect to depart from Braziltley would be 
released by Brazilian authorities for that purpose. 

U.S. representatives -kept the imprisoned priests and other members-of'the 
-Oblate Order fully informed-of all developments at all times but-made no:recom
nendhtions to the ,detainees as to the course of action' each should take.' On December 22 at 2:80 p.m. James K. Kohmetschner, Father Superiot of 
Oblates in Recife, informed U S. representatives that the detained priests 'had 

-decided to-depart from-Brazil. 
On December 25 at 1:80 p.m.,, the detained priests were released-from prison 

.and, snbsequently left Recife to return to the United States. 

DflISTA TIOX 13Y CO2ThflSSION ON HUMAN -RIGHTS 

Mr. HoLT. What is the -present status of the.-consideration, of the 
Brazilian case by the Inter-American Connmission-on Human Rights? 

Mr. .RoUNrwx. There has been an exchange 'ofcommunication be: 
tween Brazil and the Commission, and I have heard nothing in the 
recent past about it. 

Mr Hor.T. Have you discussed the matter at all with the Brazilian 
,Government?

Mr. Ronwrx .No, I have not. 
Mqr. 1{OLT. Btazil. admitted, the International Red Cross,to investi

gata charges of mistreatment of Indians, did they not. 
Mr. RouxmE. I am told they did some time ago, before my-arrival 

in Brazil. 
ir. HoLx. Mr. Chairman, I think it might be well to put in the,rec

ord a newspaper'article about the Commission on Human -Rights. 
S narer 'CII-0c. Very well. 
,(Thearticle "referred to follows:) 

• - .[j ron-the WaslangtonJPost,Mar. 7, 19713' 

'fOTcitvS IN 1BiAZa.I~ UT DESPITE REBIUBF OF OAS- PztonnGEX 

- .('By Dan Griffin) 

The Government of Brazil has, refused, to, let ,the InterA:merican Comniission 
o ilHunan Rights; an organ of the Orghnization of American States, enter the
 
'country to investigate chargEs-that 'political prisoners-are beingtortured'tlere.
 

At the sametime, new reports oftorture continue to-filter out of Brazil, Where
 
urban guerrillas.have, obtained, the release of 130 prisoners, held by the',govern
ment in exchange for the safe return of four-itnaped foreign diploniats. And
 
ofrazil's, Catholic bishops; have said for the first 'tIme that torture does' exist in
 
tBrazil. , . ...
 

'The most recent teport ,of ,tortures came fromtthe 'Metropolitan Archbibhop 
of Sao Paulo, -the Most Rev Paulo Evaristo Arns, deseribed by- one knowledge
able tforeigner- as -"calm, balancer, highly Tepedted and f5r2merl' skeptical" of 
torture charges.. - "-

In an official proclamation Feb. 4; which he ordered affixed to the doors .of 
chulches.in his archdioese; Atdhblghop Atffs stated thathe'and-a felbw prelate
"persoifally verified','that a !iriest-oflhis arckdiocese-and,a wodaan-social'ivorker 
were.'"ignominiousI ,torture(" in'the Sac, Paulo Staff Departmhenf' of Pdlitical 
and 'Social Order after they were arrested in Sate 'January on sospidn -of 
subversion. 
*Injta letter smugglediout of'Braiil, a foreign"mSSonaryyriest worlag in the 

rSao, Paulo' ardhdiocese "said that the soCialVWorkr had been "'worked' over 
,sexually" by six men whleshe was in' custoly. The priest's letter added'that 
theie is "a systematic method of torture for all,accused political'prisoners."/

Archbishop Arns said in his proclamation that the governor of the State 
Sao Paulo had offered to allow the two prisoners to be examined by a physicifn 
chosen by the archbishop. The -prelate added, "To date, however, they have ot 
permitted us to carry out this measure." 

63-378------21 ./ 

http:chulches.in
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•
' - NU2x'S TORTURE CHARGE 

Arcdlbishop Arn's accusationis by no-means the first to be issued-by a :Brazilian 
bishop. In-July, 1060, 'Bishop Waldyr Calheiros of Volta Redonda, center of 
Brazil's steel industry, issued-.-together with 11 priests of his diocese-a letter 
charging~that a -labor leader had been tortured ,during an interrogation at a 
,localuilitary unit, fishop Calheiros was chargedwith subversionas an agitator. 

- Ik November, 1969,, Bishop Felicio da Cunha Yasconcelos of the diocese of 
Ribeirao Preto excommunicated two police officials for.having tortured a jailed 
nup, Sister Maurina Borges-da, Silveira. £astAugst, the bishops and.-prikests of 
the State of I2raranhao charged that a young rural priest had-,been tortured 
for two days. 

Other denunciations of tort'ure have come from Archbishop Helder Cainara 
of the Northeast's principal archdiocese, Olinda and'Recife, and from Eugenia 
Gaidinal de Araujo Sales, archbishop of Salvador and primate of Brazil. 
,JA Amber otinteiational groups.have denounceC torture of politi6al.prisonera 

in Brazil, ,among ,themi th 4nternational Commission of Jurists, Which'said, last 
July.that torture appeared to.be a systematic and scientifically developed practice 
o% the Bfazilian government. The jutists commissin-a nonpolitical orgaiza
tibi having consulative status with the United Nations and the Council of 
Europe-has frequently criticized Communist countries and military dietator
shfjj 'L, 1 s- roleof defending humanrights and*the rule of law. I .', 

The National Conference of Brazilian Bishops last month sent Bishops Calheir6s 
and Arns letters of solidarity that reflected a change in attitude, among some 
bishops.who had previously been skeptical of'the torture charges. The lettet to 
Bishp' Calbeiros, said: "Tohtires, unfortunately, do exist in Brazil, and in many 
cases in the most shocking ways" The bishops' strongest language previou . to 
this had.beena coiderihation of torture,"wherever it occurs, either in Brazil or 
ib aily bthe fhation." 

-'Cs.-. - A CAUTIOUS _PROcESS 

The.Inter-American Commission on HumanRfglts ddes not act on the basis 
of pubihshed repoffs or denuncations issued to the wvorli at Jarge--not qvexv those 
issued by bishops. Bather, it responds to complaints made directly to it by idivid
uals or governments, and its response. is 'painstakiig, diplomaticoand time
consuming. 

According to Luis Reque, the'executive secretary, the commission first received 
denunciations of the torture of Brazilian prisoners late last spring, On. Oct. 26, 
Reque said, the commnissioh obk the next step in its procedure: It sent the Brazil
!an government what information it had gathered concerning the cases and re
quested further information. It also asked permission to send a commission 
member-Prof. PlurwardV. Sandifer of American University-to investigate 'the
charges. i - I~ - I 
- Requeasaidtha, theBrazilian governmentrefused therequest for-an on-the-spot 

in-vesgationin-a lettertdated1Jan 11 and signedby Foreigmh [inister Mario'Gibson 
Barbozt However,'Reqne.said,,the Brazilian -reply.did furnish inforination:about 
the casepthecommissionhadasked about 
-. Sandifer-who has ,been desigdted '"rapporteur, in 'the case-is ,now .con
sidering the charges and -Brazil's answer and will report to the commission. IT 
the commission-concludes that there have beetviolationsof human rights, it can 
iecommend steps tbe.Blazilian government canitake-to-remdy 'the violations. If 
the government takes nosuch action withina reasonable time, the commission can 
report the case in its annual report-to the Organization of American ,States next 
spring, 

Meanwhile, other.organizations, includingAtheUS. Catholic Conference andthe 
Canadian Catholic. Conference as' well asnonreligous groups such as Amnesty
International,, continue to,collect information on individual casest One group
the Brazilian Information Front, made up largely of Brazilian exiles and head
quartered in Algiers-has assembled a file of more than 120 cases. 

The Front, is a mixture.of Cristians' and Marxists and includes someindivid
uals who were prominent in Brazilian -national life until the military takeovdr 
of April, 1964, or, insome cases, untilthe-Brazilian Congress was closed in Decem
'her, 1068 It cloaks itself in anonymity. 

-

http:mixture.of
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MA X ACADEMICS 

Of the cases in the Front's dossier, nearly half the victims are students or 
teachers; most of.the rest are in 'the professions--psychiatrists, lawyer, socio
logists, a dentist, etc.-though there are a -few latborers listed. The youngest 'Is 
18; fleoldest 63,.and-the average age is slikhtly over 29. 

.est of the. cases were in the three most developed.states of Brazil: Sac Paulo, 
Guanabara (Rio de Jhneiro) and Vinas Gerais; inmost cases, abtranch of Ile 
militar& service was involved. Here are.two fairly typical cases : 

Victim: Dulce de Souz Naia actress, single, 80 
Circumstances of arrest: Taken prisoner in her home in Sao Paulo in Ianuary,

1969, accused of belonging to a-subversive organization. 
Place and date of torture: Sac PauloDepartment of Political and Social Order. 

(No date given,) 
Types of tortures: Violated several times, in front of other prisoners. Electric 

shocks injjhe vagina' . 

,Tortuers: Policeof the army 
Othler important ,data: The victim was among those exchanged for the West 

German,ambassador. The victim shqws, traces of mental, disturbances. 
Victim: Yoel Jose de Carvalho, printer, 21. 
Circumstances and date of arrest: May 28, 1969, in Sao Paulo, suspected of 

subversion.
 
,Place and date of torture: Sac Paulo Department of Political and Social Order,

%ontihe'same da' ashis arret.' 
I'Typ6,of:torture: Elect.icshohks, principally on'thegenital organs;, telephones
(simultaneous 'bloW on botv-ears)-; rarro"s perch (being hung by wrists and 
knes fromi .pole) ;-JslffocatiOn; kicks; beatings.

Tortuters.: (Tfe dosmierlhstsI0,natnes. adding, "and others") 
aesponsielb authorities. Gen Vianma 'Mbog, Gen. ,Canavarro'Pereira. 
Witnesses and sources of information.:' Reports'of otherprisoners.

:,Other" &ttd'!, Granted hsylum in Chile' in exchange for the ambassador, of 
Swizerlaid.1"-P, , ,. " 
V " ' M OST- STI]LIefIPISONEDfJ. 

Both,of thesecases iyolve-individuals no.w outside Brazil, though, most oaf 
the Front'o cases conclude by indicating,-where the vigtim isimprisoned. A few 
ara.lstedags being.,atlibrtyin Brazil. I , 

The places where the tortures are said-to have taken place were usually polie 
or military tbeadjqartdrs, ,though,afew cases mention-the useof deserted cabins 
or' theiprisonero,,0wn homes. In negrly, every, case, the prisoners bad ,not been 
fprmally. ,charged ,at th 4 time of tbeotortures which seem to-have,been, practiced 
asa mqa]js of-interrogation. . ,
.-.Toures lsed aost requently are beatings; the, 11narrot's perch" and "tel
phones," _tripp)ingapjdsexual, nole station,r-electrical shocks and being forced to 
watch the~tortures.cfothers. - 4- - .. , . - -, -

The anonymity of the Front's operation-,may w eakenitscredibility;, the .sam 
cannot be said for another detailed list of names, dates and places smuggled out 
of Rio's Ilha das Flores prison,, for t.pe-W6, ,ompn prisoners who compiled the 
list signed it Dec. 8, 1969. 

Brazils,government and its.iirba4 gueaillasseem to hare-'hrrive& at an 
imtasse. .The.,government ° poninuei to. hrrest Thos~r-it sfispectsr ,of shbveri-er 
activities;-s'uch, asubelonging to am ,armed,.rerolutionary grou. The guerrillns:
chargink tliat th6i=rimprisonedrcomrades 'areibeing tortured, lddhapfdreigndip
lomatsito tradb for.prisoneis.', , 1 
%"Whentthe OAS discusses measurefsto deaiwith; diplomaticekidnapifIgs, Drazirl 
government leads the faction that insists that these mfist notbe considered .as 
'andiiolated jroblim but rathdr,in some cases, antendto t sequence:" iWhenthe 
OAS Ooinmissi&h'oril'uman 'ikhts asks 'to be allowed. to,investigate the -tortflrn 
charges--.whibh niany observers regard ,as another part of -the "sequence "- Bra&iL refnses. t - , , ." ." * -
I 'Thecycleoseelijs destin6d to icontrhne, beyondftbe0180 prisoiers 1Brazlhas 
released and the four diplomats the guerrillas have -kidnaped, unless,the,g6W4rr2 
ment adopts the suggestioi of oneconre~sman:-, Seid all -political prisoners' ou 
of the country, depriving the guerrillas of their main excuse for kidnapiot 

diplomats. 

I 
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SNT CODI A-IM- OPRA-1107 BVPCAG 

MTr. MOLT. Could you supply for the record, Mr.Ambassador, a. 
brief statement of what is SNI, the Pdrtuguese initials for the Na
tional Intelligence Service; and what-is CODI,the Portuguese initials. 
for Operations Center for Internal' IDefense; and what was Operation
Birdcage? And also what relationship if any, any agency of the 
United States Government in Brazil has with any of these 
organizations? 

(The statement follows:) 
SK'I 

The National -intelligence Service (SNI) was established'Lby -the Brazilian 
Congress shortly after the -March 1964 overthrow of President Goulart. The 
SNI has nationwide jurisdiction for coordination of intelligence activities. It 
has its own budget and authority for the recruitment of itsmilitary and civilian 
personuel. It is headed by a military officer who carries the title of Director and 
has Cabinet level rank. 

ttDeleted.] 

The Centros do Operacoes do Deesm Interna (CODI-Internal Defense Opera
tions Centers), are a nationwide extension of Operaci Bandeirantes (OB-
Operation Pioneer) established in Sac Paulo in mid-1969 as a pilot project to 
coordinate military and police efforts to combat terrorist activities. The various 
security agencies represented in ,OpraeoBandeirantee-andCODI include-rep
resentatives of the -local Army, Air Force and Navy intelligence'sections aid of 
the local state and federal police organizations. 
- The formation of the OB was in response to the intense level of terrorist 
activities during 1968 and early 1969, including bombings of military installa
tions and robberies. The then commander-of the Sao Paulo based.Second Army 
felt that this situation required better coordination among the various intel
ligence and police agencies concerned with subversion. During late 196 'a-ad 
1970 the O concept Was extended;as CODI to other'major Brazilian cities. The 
CODI centers are under the coordination of the local. Army intelligence, 
representative. 

The GODI operation varies from area to area. In Sao'Paulo- and Rio' de 
3an~iro the organiiations maintain what, in effect, are their own staffs capable 
of conducting autonomous anti-snbversive investigations. Elsewhere the centers 
are frequently limited coordination offices where information and plans 'are 
-periddically exchanged' among the, 'ario.us separate investigative agencies. Pri
mary responsibility among the various OB and CODI-membdr agencies for 
staffing and conducting investigations also tend to vary-from area to area. There 
is no connection bet-eenCODI and any U.S.agency. 

OPERATION BRD eCAGE' 

On the weekend of October 30, 1970i Brazilian security forces undertook a 
nationwide round-up designated "Operation Bird Cage" withthe objective of pick
ing up and questioning-all persons suspected of any involvement with terrorist 
organizations, Estimates- of those detained ranged from several hundred to,-sev
eral thousand. Most of the arrests were made in the cities of Rio de-Janelro-and 
Sao Paulo. Most of thesuspected'subversives were released after a day or two; a 
few may still be in custody. -

Ihe official explanation for "Operation Bird Cage" was that it constituted 
preventive- detention to forestall terrorist operations, including kidn-appings-and 
assassinations, -planned to mark, the first anniversary of the death, of the lati 

, urban guerrilla leader, Carlos Marighella. Plans for these operations had been 
found in the effects of Joaquim Camara I successor, whoWerreira Marighella's 


Nbad died two weeks earlier.. - I
 
,'ToU.S. agency had any connection with.OperationBird Cage.
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Finally, are you familiar ~ i t h  the resolution "On Oppression' in 
Brazil," which has been adopted by the Latin American Studies 
Association. 

Mr. ROUNTREE. By the what I! 
Mr. Horn. Latin American Studies Association. 
Mr. Bornmum. No, I am not. 
Mr. HOLT. It states in part. and we can nut it all in the record, 'Vre 

are disturbed about the $req;ent accounts; among otl~er things, of the 
documented role played by the U.S. AID program in the trbin- 
ing of more than 16,000 Brazilian police in criminal. investiga- 
tion and counter-insurgency since 1968. Documented description of 
such inl~uman behavior has already been submitted t o  Pope Paul 
VT. . . ." . . . 

Could you give 11s a comment for the record, on the allegation in 
this resolution? 

Mr. R O U N ~ E E .  Excuse me, may I have that resolution? 
Mr. HOLT. Yes; I mill giveit you. 
(The resolution follows :) 

(Resolution by Latin American Studies Assoeiation) 
As  members of LASA me vigorously protest'the violatiops of academic freedom 

and civ~l r~ghts  of professors, students and intellectmls now taking place in 
Brazil. 

We are e m  more disturbecl about the frequent accounts, &st, of systematic 
torture being practiced on inteIlectuals and other individuals held prisoner by 
Brazilian authorities; second, of the documented role played by the United States 
A.I.D. .ororram in the training of more man 18.000 Brazilian oolice in "trim- - 
inn1 i ~ l ~ c s t i ~ a r i o ~ ~ "  11nd couutcr-insurgc~~cy since'l965. ~oculnefitcrl description 
of such inhuu~an buhm'ior ]Ins nlrcadr been subn~ittcd to Ponc Pnul BI by sixty 
one leacling European iotellectualj: religious spoliesm&~i. Courngeo.us ~ r u -  
zilinns have spoken out against tllc nurgcs, repressiotl and torture. American .. . . .. 
friends of Brazil can doao iess. 

We therefore ask an end to these aeaaemic purges, arbitrary arrests and tor- 
ture and a return to a respect for the fundamehtal dgbts and human dignity 
Of all hertitizens, mitho.ut which academic institutions cannot flourish. 

I n  light of this resolution we call upon the Government Relations Committee 
to prepare a report to the members giving further details on the conditions 
herein described. The Committee is further authorized to appoint, if necessary, a 
mission to Brazil to help prepare this report. 

STATE DEPARTXEXT COXNEXTS ON THE LASA RESOLUTION EKT~LED 
"Ox OPPRESSION IN BBAZU" 

Obviously members of ZASA are entitled to hold such views and pass such 
resolutions as  they wish. The testilnony of Mr. Theodore Brown before this com- 
mittee and the initial response from the Department to inquiries from Senator 
Church esplain fully and accurately A.I.D.'s role in public safety training in 
Brazil during the period from 1960 to the present. 

Deparhnentnl views on allegations about violabions of human rights in  B r ~ z i l  
hare also been fully explained to the committee by Ambassador Rountree and 
othexs in both formal testimony and informal discussions ~ & h  committee and 
staff members. It has been made abnndmtly clear .that the U.S. Governme~lt ab- 
hors violations of human rights wherever they may take place. Furtlier 
ment on the,quotation in question would seem unnecessary. 
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Mr. HOLT. Finally, is there-any evidence that any Brazilian'trained 
by the United States has been connected in m y  may with torture or 
wit11 t11e Death Squads? 

Xr. B o m m ~ .  I am unaware of any. 
3fr. DEAN. Any Brazilian trained? 
Mr. HOLT. Yes. 
Mr. EOUNT~E.  I arn~unawnre of any such identification. 

Senator C w n c ~ .  Mr. Ambassador, are you the honorary president 
bf the American CCllanlber of i=ornmerce in  Bxazil ? 

Mr. ROUF~EE. Yes, I am. 
S e ~ a t o r  C r n ~ c ~ . D o  you think.itis appropriate? 
3Er. ROU~TREE. It is traditional. 
Senator C m t c ~ .  My ,question is, do you think it is appropriate? 
Mr. ROUNTREE. I think it is, because it is an association-of Ameri- 

cans residing there. 
Senator Camrcn. In view of the close relationship between &e pro- 

pram s\-e pursued there and the busiiiess*clinlate, it is. 

On  arch 30, 1971 the Government of BraziI announced re~ula -  
tions t~ implenlent its 300-mile territorial sea claim. Several. Eatin 
countries are now extending thek claims to the 200-niile limit, and I 
am wondering what your opinion is as to 1 1 0 ~  we cw best deal Gith 
hhis question. . ' 

Mr. I C o r n - ~ q ~ .  Tliat is a matter, Senator, that is being considered 
6y the'vayions hiterested agencies of the executive branch. .I might say 
very acti~ely congiilered. The differences betmee~ the Brazilians and 
oursel~es on this q~~esLioii~pressilt real problems. We had, of course, 
hoped that the regulations inlplementing the fisllhg arrangements 
-rronlcl not, in fact, be pro1nulgo;ted as they mere, because it %as been 
our earuest hope sthat the matter co~ild "be resolved 011 a ~orld\vide 
basis under the auspices of the .United Nations ,in their 1973 confer- 
ence on the law of the seas. . . 

The effects that this  ill have on ilmorican &ling, s ~ u r i t x ,  and 
other interests, are, as I said, under consideration at the p~esent  time, 
and we would expect to be discussing this with the Government of 
Bra%& 

senator C-CH. I-Iave yon not discussed it x ~ i t l ~  them yet? ' 

31r. ROUNTREE. We have discussed' it v i th  them but there will be 
, continuing discussions on the problems which arise for us and for the 

entire 11-orld. This is one of the matters under active consideration. 

NATIONAL SECURITY COUNCIL'S STUDY ON B X A m  

\senator C m o a .  The GAO,.has informed usthat  in Tanuary 1969 
t&,presideht commissioned the National Security Council to review 
 policies and p r o p a p  in Brazil. This has r&dted in a study of 
apbximately 800 pages costing roughly $100,000. I n  reviewing aid 
loanto Brazil the CIAO bas had occasion to request this study. The 
N S ~ * k s  refused to comply with this request on the basis that the 
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. .  . 
study is an internal working paper. ~ r e : ~ o u  familiar wi& this, study 
.$ question? . ,  . . 

. \ .  - 2 .  

' . -'M,r;':RO&fiE~. Gs.>;; , -1.: 1. ;  . , . .- , , , , , ..<, , . t  : .,s , ,::,.>*'?!;.: . ,?>&i 
Senator CHURCH. J;IThat can you tell us aboi tAi t~  .r:, ..:: i ;:? ? < > d  c;fits?; . .  . . ' 

' :MI:: R,OUNTREE. Simply.that.it is.a study, a standai.d.reviern-bji.'th.6'. 
executive. bmnch of various aspects of our~programs~in Brazil.: &.far 
as thedetails areconcerned, i t  mas read byrme. as pait  of my ea;rliest; 
briefings in conl~ection with Brazil.. . A ' . !  L . . . . \  

. :.Sefiator ~C~vncz i ;  I s  there any. reasbn why the ~ ~ 0 . s h o u l d . B e  ke- 
fused access. to i t  ? . . . -, . , B ,*, - . . . . . ,  -. . , . .. 

M r . ' R , o u x ~ m ~ .  I am sure you ban apcieciate, senator, that that.,will 
be a question 'which the Department ~vouid kiave to answer;, riot mjielf. 

Senator C I ~ I Z C I ~ .  Can ' you make . Mis. study available, 'to the 
: ,_ . . - 

subcommittee ? , . , . .  . . 
$Ir: R O ~ T R E E .  It. woujd be entirely dependent. ,upon the Depc t -  

. J . ,  ' - ment. I would be glad to. convey the  chdrman's request. . . -  

' , :Senator CEI~.CH..  IVould you convey the ~.equkst'bf, the'subcommittee 
. , fop t l ~ e ' s t u d ~  a.ncl nsli for a reply by the Depa1:tmeht in ii-?iting$" '. 

. . . . Mr. ROU~TREE.  Yes. . .. . . .I , ,. - .. . it 

, ., , . . - Senator C H ~ . C H .  Please. .,, _ .. . . , ..... 
. . (The fbllox~ing 'corl~~ponclence v7\rns s'ubse~t:;luently~i.eceived~:') g' ''. .. . 

Chairnzan, Subconznz~ttce on Latm Americnn Affairs, Senate Foreign Relat iod 
Comnzittce, U.S. Senate. 

D E A ~  MR. CIIAIRI~AX : In the course of the hearings of the ~ubcomliittee b ' i  
Brazil last month, you.:lslted if a study on Brazil, prepared for the National 
Security Council, could be mhcle available to the Subcommittee. 

The docuin6nt concerned was an internal working pacer for the use of the 
Executive Branch. Therefore, and consonant with the iriews expressed on this 
point by tlie Secretary of State to the Senate Foreign Relations Committee on 
May 14, when he appeared to testify on the'proposed War Powers legislation, 
we' would prefer to refer you to the equally ful1,factual information on Brazil, 
provided to the Subcommittee both heretofore and in the 'course of these 
hearings. i 

Sincerely yours, 
DAVID &I. "ABSHIRE. 

Assistant Scopetar?/ for Congressional Rclations. 

2 JUNE 30, 1971. 
Hon. DAVID D l  ABSIITRE, 
dsszstant Secretaru J O r  Congressfonal  relation.^, Departnzent of State, Wash- 

zngton, D.C. I - 
DEAR MR. ARSHIRE: This mill acknonledge your letter of June 25 in response 

to my request of Dlay 11, during hearings before the SuFcommittee on Western 
Hemisphere Affairs, that the State Department make arailable to the Subcom- 
mittee a copy of the Kational Security Council study on Brazil comlnissioned in 
January 1969. 

I do not find pour letter responsive. To~i ' sas  you "iould 13refer" to refer'the 
Subconlnlittee '!to the ,eqi~ally-fi~ll factual, information on Brazil, provided to 
the ~ubcomnit tee both here'tofore and in the course of thehe hearings.:' The , 
Subcoinmittce is appreciative.hf this  information, but it  has ?sked for the:?SC. . . . ,  . . . . , .i . study a s  well. 

I ask you again for a-reply. in n~llich you either transmit the NSC study. or 
assert a claim of esecutire privilege consonant with. Presic1ent.Ni~on's.letter of 
April 7, 1969 to. Chairman Bloss 'of the Hoi~se Forei,gn Operations and,Gorerd- 

. . . . ment.Information Sub~opmittee.' , 
, . , ? 1, ' -'. :;;. . , I  ., . , .. , .  . 

Siyerel3; youl:s, .* ,.. . . . . , 
. . . . . . ' ( ,  i ' , . '  . . FR~Y-KK. CHURCH, . . '-; ., , ', :. , , . . . ., r . c hairnzp.n,,tqij?9p~?z~n.jJ tee:gn r ~ e s  tern5~c$n;i<~l~ere . . . &ff airs:, - ' 

Anything else ? 
Mr. HOLT. NO. 
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J xrsar~cr, OF POLITICAL P R ~ S O X E R ~  . , .  

I 
ML ROUNTREE. Senator, may I make one addition to the record? 
Senator CHURCH. Yes. . . .  

- : k I r . ' R o u ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .  Because I was interrupted at the point by Senator 
~611 , '~nd  it left nle high and dry. I just mentioped I was talking about 
tile 12,030 political prisoners allegedly having been, being held in 
Brazil and I wantecl to go from that point and say that the Brazilian 
Goveri!ment has stated that the number was less than 500 and.this 
figure has been accepted as accurate by Brazilians nrho were released 
under exchanges for kidnapped ambassadors. . 

Senator CHURCH. IS there anything else you would like to add 
to' what you have-said, Mr. Ambassador? 

Mr. ROUNTREE. I think not, Senator. 
- Senator CHURCH: .I want to thank yon Gery much for your coming 
and for your ansqers and testimony this afternoon. , I :  

Mr. .HOLT. Mr. Chaii-man, I think, if you will permit me, we need 
to clarify this matter of the number of political prisoners a little bit 
more. I think both the 12,000 figure you mentioned, which came from . 
the International Commission of Jurists, if I remember correctly, and 
the 500 figure which the Brazilian Government mentioned, referred to 
political prisoners being held at a particular time, and there is a dis- 
tinction to be made between that and the number of people y11o might 
have been or who: have beenarrested and held-for varying periods$of 
time and subsequently released since 1964 or 1968 or whatever time. 
.: Mr. ROUNTREE. I understand. 

Mr. H d h .  lJTould you have an estimate of the total number of 13$ople 
who had been arrested on political charges since 1968 or 1964 and 
subsequently released after varying periods of time? I % 17 A z t i  

Mi-. ROUNTREE.~NO. I thinli'the .record should clearly gdicate that 
I,' do, not know the accukacylof either,,figitre or ivhat figure would 
be, correct. 11 might add .that the, Government of Brazil maintained 
that the 500 figure they stated represents not political prisoners but 
people ~rrested for acts of terrorism and so forth. I n  other words, 
crimes rather than political prisoners as such. 

Sellator C H ~ C H .  Do you believe there are no political prisoners 
presently held in the jails of Brszil, as we would define a political 
prisoner ? 

.Mr. ROUXTREE. I h m e  no way of kno~ving in precise cletail: 
Senator CEIURCH. YOU have no way of knowing. All right, Mr. Am- 

> '{ b'as"sdor, thank you. ' ' 2  

, I 

1 * 8 - , , . .. . ' 1s' ,- - ,. NON-APPEARANGE OF COL. ~IOURA ' . s 

' t +  

Before the record is! closed, I want to insert some correspon~ei~ce - 
I have had with the Department of Deferise~oncerning the production <. f  . 2 of witnesses for these 1zezwi;lgs. This collsists of : : . 

( I )  A letter dated April 8 from me to Secretary of 'befense Afelyin 
Laird'requesting that Major Gel?. George S. Beatty, toinmancler of 
the U.S: niilttary group in, Brazil, ?ncl Co!.;Rrthur S. !Coura, defense 
attacl16, be available for testinlony before $he s~tbcommittee; ' ' 

(2) A latter dated April 26 from Assistant Secretary of ~ e f e i &  
G. y a r r e n  Nutter to me, agreeing to the appearance of General Beatty, 
but peremptbrily and without explanation 'rejecting the request for 
Colonel Moura ; and . n F t . . - 
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Juy 29, 19T1. 
sEon. FRANK OnUnOrT, 
Chairmnan, Suco'mmittee on Tvestern Hemisphere Affars, Committee on Poreigt

Relatons, U.S. Senate,,Washington, D.C. 
DEAn AIR CMAtnxAN: In reply to your letter of Tune 8 concerning hearings on

Brazil conducted by your Subcommittee, the Executive Branch procedure which
I referred' to in my previous letters has always been applicable to the Defense 
Intelligence Agency as well as the Central Intelligence Agency and National 
,Security Agency.

Thne two attaches you noted in your letter, who testified before the Foreign
Relations Subcommittee on U.S. Security Agreements and Commitments Abroad,
testified on matters other than ,those related to their normal responsibilities as 
attaches and representatives of the Defense Intellience Agency. The Air Attache 
in Vientiane testified on his duties as -ir operations officer on the Embassy staft 

-and the former Assistant Army Attache in Luang Prabang testified on his experi
ences with the Royal Laotian Army. Both officeZS were made available, despite
the fact that they were members of the Defense Intelligence Agency and only
the Director of that Agency can testify on intelligence m'ftters, because it was 
understood beforehand that they were testifying on matters.not connected with 
their normal attache dities. 

Sincerely, 
G. WARREN NUTTER. 

(Whereupon, at 5:25 p.m., the hearing was concluded.) 
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